
Board Agenda, October 5, 2023 
 

1 

   

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MEETING AND WORKSHOP  

 
Board of Education Members    
Chinua Rhodes, President (Trustee Area 5) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips, Vice President (Trustee Area 7) 
Jasjit Singh, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Tara Jeane (Trustee Area 1) 
Christina Pritchett (Trustee Area 3) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Taylor Kayatta (Trustee Area 6) 
Liliana Miller Segura, Student Member 
 

Thursday, October 5, 2023 
4:30 p.m. Closed Session  

6:30 p.m. Open Session 
 

Serna Center 
Community Conference Rooms 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA  95824 

 

AGENDA 
 

2023/24-9 
 

       Allotted Time 
4:30 p.m. 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 
 

 2.0 ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE 
DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
 3.0  CLOSED SESSION 

 
 While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also  

recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye.  Closed session 
meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope.  They primarily involve personnel issues, pending 
litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.  

 
 3.1 Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel: 

a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 
Code section 54956.9 (One Potential Case) 

b) Existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1) of Government Code section 
54956.9 (OAH Case No. 2023080243) 

 
3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA 

SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management  
(Cancy McArn) 

 
3.3 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee 

Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
 
           3.4       Government Code 54957- Public Employee Appointment 
                       a)   Approve – School of Engineering and Sciences, Principal 

 



Board Agenda, October 5, 2023 
 

2 

6:30 p.m. 4.0 CALL BACK TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4.1 The Pledge of Allegiance 

 
4.2       Broadcast Statement 
 
4.3       Stellar Student introduced by Board Member Christina Pritchett 

 
6:35 p.m. 5.0 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
 

6:40 p.m. 
 

6.0 AGENDA ADOPTION 
 

6:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.0 PUBLIC COMMENT                                                                                               15 minutes 
Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board.  Public comment may be (1) emailed to publiccomment@scusd.edu; (2) 
submitted in writing through the district’s website at https://www.scusd.edu/submit-public-comment; or 
(3) provided in-person at the meeting.  The submission deadline for written public comments shall be no 
later than noon on the day of the meeting.  If you intend to address the Board in-person, please fill out a 
yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be called in the order that requests are received, or 
grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are limited to two (2) minutes with no more than 15 
minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be heard.  By law, the Board is allowed 
to take action only on items on the agenda.  The Board may, at its discretion, refer a matter to district 
staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.    

 
7:00 p.m. 8.0 COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 

 8.1 Employee Organization Reports:   

 SCTA  
 SEIU 
 TCS 
 Teamsters  
 UPE 

 

Information 
SCTA – 15 minutes  

SEIU – 3 minutes 
TCS – 3 minutes 

Teamsters – 3 minutes 
UPE – 3 minutes  

 

7:27 p.m.   8.2  District Advisory Committees: 

 Student Advisory Council 

 Community Advisory Committee  

 District English Learner Advisory Committee 

 Local Control Accountability Plan/Parent Advisory Committee 

 Black/African American Advisory Board 

Information 
3 minutes each 

 
 

9.0 SPECIAL PRESENTATION 
 

7:42 p.m.             9.1       Approve Resolution No. 3351 : Recognition of Filipino  
                        American History Month (Board Member Jasjit Singh) 
 

Action 
5 minute presentation 

               5 minute discussion 



Board Agenda, October 5, 2023 
 

3 

7:52 p.m.             9.2       Approve Resolution No. 3352: Recognition of the Week of  
                        the School Administrator (Yvonne Wright, Tuong Duong,  
                        Aprille Shafto, Jerad Hyden, Enrique Flores) 
 

Action 
5 minute presentation 

               5 minute discussion 

8:02 p.m.             9.3       Approve Resolution No. 3353: Recognition of National  
                        School Lunch Week (Eric Dela Cruz) 
 

Action 
5 minute presentation 

               5 minute discussion 
8:12 p.m.             9.4 Approve Resolution No. 3348 Adopting Carbon Neutral  

                        Goals and Guidelines for SCUSD Buildings  
                        (Nathaniel Browning and Chamberlain Segrest) 
 

Action 
5 minute presentation 

               5 minute discussion 

 10.0 BOARD WORKSHOP/STRATEGIC INITIATIVE 
 

8:22 p.m.             10.1  Bond Oversight Committee Measures Q and R Annual  
                         Report 2022-2023 (Jesse Castillo) 
 

Information 
10 minute presentation 

5 minute discussion 
 

 

 

 

11.0 COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 

8:37 p.m.              11.1  Interim Superintendent’s Report (Lisa Allen)  Information 
5 minutes 

 
8:42 p.m.  11.2  President’s Report (Chinua Rhodes) Information 

5 minutes 
 

8:47 p.m.  11.3 Student Member Report (Liliana Miller Segura) Information 
5 minutes 

 
8:52 p.m.  11.4  Information Sharing by Board Members Information 

10 minutes 
 

 

9:02 p.m. 12.0 CONSENT AGENDA                                                                                                         Action 
                                                                                                                                                               2 minutes 

Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion.  The Superintendent or a Board 
member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately. 

 
12.1  Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session: 
 

12.1a Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements, Ratification of Other 
Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Approval of Declared Surplus Materials 
and Equipment, Change Notices and Notices of Completion  

    (Jesse Castillo) 
 

                                   12.1b Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn) 
 

12.1c Approve Business and Financial Report: Warrants, Checks and Electronic 
Transfers issued for the Period of July 1-31, 2023 and August 1-31, 2023  

             (Jesse Castillo) 
 
12.1d Approve Donations to the District for the Period of July 1-31, 2023 
            (Jesse Castillo) 



Board Agenda, October 5, 2023 
 

4 

 
12.1e Approve Donations to the District for the Period of August 1-31, 2023  
            (Jesse Castillo) 
 
12.1f Approve Resolution No. 3349 Authorizing the District to Apply For and Sign 
          Applications for Local, State and Federal Programs and Grants Pertaining to 
          Lower Emission Vehicle Incentive Programs (Nathaniel Browning) 

 
12.1g Approve Resolution No. 3350:  Resolution Regarding Board Stipends (Lisa Allen) 
 
12.1h Approve Minutes for the September 10, 2023 Special Board of Education Meeting 

(Lisa Allen) 
 
12.1i Approve Minutes for the September 12, 2023 Special Board of Education Meeting 

(Lisa Allen) 
 
12.1j Approve Agreement to Reimburse for Board Member Leave (Lisa Allen) 
 
12.1k Approve Resolution No. 3355:  Resolution Regarding Board Stipends (Lisa Allen) 
 
12.1l Approve Resolution No. 3356:  Resolution Regarding Board Stipends (Lisa Allen) 
 
12.1m Approve Minutes for the September 26, 2023 Special Board of Education Meeting 

(Lisa Allen) 
 

9:04 p.m. 13.0      BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION/REPORTS               Receive Information  
 
             13.1 Business and Financial Report: Enrollment Report Month 9 & 10 (Jesse Castillo)                   

 
9:06 p.m. 14.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS 

 
 October 19, 2023, 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  

5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 
 

 November 2, 2023, 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 

    
9:08 p.m. 15.0 ADJOURNMENT  

 
NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the 
public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least 
48 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to 
accommodate you.  [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]   
Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting and relating to 
an open session item will be available on the district’s website at www.scusd.edu 

  

http://www.scusd.edu/


Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item 9.1 

 
 
Meeting Date: October 5, 2023 
 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3351: Recognition of Filipino American  
  History Month 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
 
Division: Board of Education Office  
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 3351 Recognition of Filipino American 
History Month 
 
Background/Rationale: Filipino Americans are the second-largest Asian American 
group in the nation and the third-largest ethnic group in California, after Latinos and 
African Americans. The celebration of Filipino American History Month in October 
commemorates the first recorded presence of Filipinos in the continental United States, 
which occurred on October 18, 1587, when “Luzones Indios” came ashore from the 
Spanish galleon Nuestra Senora de Esperanza and landed at what is now Morro Bay, 
California. 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Safe, Emotionally Healthy and Engaged Students 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Resolution No. 3351 
 
 

Estimated Time of Presentation: 5 minutes 

Submitted by: Jasjit Singh, Board Member 

Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 3351 

 
In Recognition of October 2023 as Filipino American History Month 

 

WHEREAS this is an appropriate time to promote and reflect on the richness of Filipino and Filipino American 
history and culture and to provide all Americans with the opportunity to learn, honor, and appreciate 
Filipino American identity and their historic and social contributions to the fabric of the United 
States of America; and 

WHEREAS it is necessary to instill in our youth the importance of education, history, and self-determination in 
creating eminent role models, in establishing a proud cultural identity, and producing exceptional 
citizens of this nation; and 

WHEREAS the earliest documented evidence of Filipinos in the continental United States occurred on October 
18, 1587, when mariners under Spanish command, referred to as “Luzones Indios”, landed in Morro 
Bay, California; and  

WHEREAS the Filipino American National Historical Society (FAHNS) recognizes the year 1763 as the date of 
the first permanent Filipino settlement in the United States in Saint Malo, Louisiana; and  

WHEREAS  today, the Filipino American community is the third largest Asian American group in the United 
States, with an estimated population of 4,200,000 people, second largest Asian American group in 
California; and 

WHEREAS the Filipino American National Historical Society established Filipino American History Month in 
1988 and subsequently, every October, many communities throughout the United States and its 
territories have celebrated this occasion, not only to commemorate the anniversary of the presence of 
the first Filipinos in US soil and to observe its heritage, but also to recognize the social, intellectual, 
and economic contributions of Filipinos and Filipino Americans in this country; and 

WHEREAS the California Department of Education first recognized October as Filipino American History 
Month in 2006 by placing it on its celebrations calendar, the 111th Congress of the United States 
recognized it in November 2009, and the California State Legislature recognized it in September 
2017; and 

WHEREAS Filipino American servicemen and servicewomen have a longstanding history of sacrifice and 
service towards protecting and defending this country in the Armed Forces; and  

WHEREAS immigrants from the Philippines and their families truly have enriched our nation, state, and city 
through their work and contributions in agriculture, their service in the Armed Forces, their 
offerings, skills and expertise as engineers, scientists, entrepreneurs, accountants, teachers, lawyers, 
nurses, and doctors, and their participation in public offices, civic affairs, and community activities; 
and 

WHEREAS preserving our Filipino communities throughout California and the United State is critical to the 
preservation of Filipino culture, history, traditions, and heritage and to the preservation of our state 
and national history as well as our local, state, and national future; and 

WHEREAS the 20,000+-strong Filipino Community plays a vital role in the city of Sacramento’s rich history, 
thereby helping to shape its development and landscape; and 
 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED SCUSD recognizes the celebration of Filipino American History 
Month in October 2023 a testament to the advancement of Filipino Americans; a time to reflect on and 
remember the many notable contributions that Filipino Americans have made to the United States; and a time to 
renew efforts toward the research and examination of history and culture so as to provide an opportunity for all 
people of the United States to learn more about Filipino Americans and to appreciate the historic contributions 
of Filipino Americans to the United States. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education on this 5th day 
of October 2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  ____ 
NOES:  ____ 
ABSTAIN: ____ 
ABSENT: ____ 

 
 

ATTESTED TO: 
 
______________________________________                    ______________________________________ 
Lisa Allen            Chinua Rhodes     
Secretary of the Board of Education                                        President of the Board of Education 
 



Page 1 of 1 
 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 9.2 

 
 

Meeting Date: October 5, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3352: Recognition of the Week of the School  
 Administrators, October 8-14, 2023 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division: Academic Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No.3288: Recognition of the Week of the 
School Administrators, October 8-14, 2023 
 
Background/Rationale: We know that our courageous educators lead outstanding 
schools; we are honored to recognize the week of October 8-14, 2023 as the Week of 
the School Administrators.  We are pleased to offer this spotlight to our administrators 
for their endless commitment to our school community and the scholars we serve. 
Throughout the school year, these educators assume the commitment to lead our 
young people to a prosperous future. They support and guide quality teachers and staff 
resulting in productive learning environments for our children.   
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Safe, Emotionally Healthy and Engaged Students 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Resolution No. 3352 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 5 minutes 

Submitted by: Yvonne Wright, Chief Academic Officer  

Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION No. 3352 

 
RECOGNITION OF OCTOBER 8-14 2023 as the 

 WEEK of the SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS 
 

 
WHEREAS, the State of California has declared the second full week of October as the 
“Week of the School Administrator”; and 

 
WHEREAS, an educated public serves as the foundation of our democracy; and 
 
WHEREAS, our school administrators are passionate, lifelong learners who believe in the value 
of quality public education; and 

 
WHEREAS, our administrators touch, mold, and mentor so many lives with a lasting effect; and 

 
   WHEREAS, excellence in our State and District begins with our administrators; and 
 

WHEREAS, the administrators overcome obstacles and challenges daily to make a 
difference in the lives of students, families, and staff. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Sacramento City Unified School 
District Board of Education commends our administrators and encourages parents and the 
community to recognize the efforts of principals as we celebrate the week of October 8-14, 
2023, as the Week of the School Administrators. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education 
on this 5th day of October 2023, by the following vote: 

 
AYES : 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

 
 
 

ATTESTED TO: 
 
 

 
 

Chinua Rhodes 
President of the Board of Education 

Lisa Allen 
Secretary of the Board of Education 
 



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 9.3   
 
Meeting Date: October 5, 2023 
 
Subject:  Resolution No.3353:  Recognition of National School Lunch Week, 

October 9-13, 2023 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division: Human Resource Services 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No.3353:  Recognition of October 9-13, 2023 
as the Week of National School Lunch 
 
Background/Rationale: The National School Lunch Program (NSLP) serves more 
than 30 million children every school day. President John F. Kennedy created National 
School Lunch Week (NSLW) in 1962 to promote the importance of a healthy school 
lunch in a child’s life and the impact it has inside and outside of the classroom.  Nutrition 
Services at SCUSD works to provide and expand access to school lunches with a team 
of over 400 dedicated staff; we are honored to recognize the week of October 9-13, 
2023 as the Week of the School National School Lunch. 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Safe, Emotionally Healthy and Engaged Students 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Resolution No. 3353 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 5 minutes 
Submitted by: Jesse Castillo, Assistant Superintendent of Business 

Services 
  Diana Flores, Executive Director, Nutrition Services 
Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 

 
 

Page 1 of 1 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION No. 3353 

 
RECOGNITION OF OCTOBER 9-13, 2023 as  

WEEK of NATIONAL SCHOOL LUNCH 
 
WHEREAS, the national school lunch program is just one of several Federal programs offered at 
SCUSD including the School Breakfast Program, the Afterschool Snack Program, the Child and 
Adult Care Food Program, the At Risk Afterschool Supper Program and the Summer 
Foodservice Program;   
 
WHEREAS, the school lunch program not only reduces food insecurity but studies show 
students that participate in the school lunch program see improved attendance, improved 
academic outcomes in math and reading and reduction in behavioral concerns in the classroom;     
 
WHEREAS, today SCUSD’s Nutrition Services department of over 400 employees across the 
district have a goal of 40% of our meals made from scratch with nearly 70% of our seasonal 
produce grown locally and in California; 
 
WHEREAS, school lunch programs offer a unique opportunity to establish early food literacy 
habits with daily access to high quality locally grown fresh fruits and vegetables that improve 
long term health outcomes and preventable diet related disease; 
 
WHEREAS, school lunches not only look and taste great, but meet strict federal nutrition 
standards with regards to whole grains, vegetables in a wide variety, fats, sodium and calories;   
 
WHEREAS, providing healthy food is central to a child’s ability to learn and thrive and no 
child’s health should be determined by the zip code they were born in or by the food their 
families can afford;   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IS RESOLVED, that the Sacramento City Unified School District 
Board of Education, hereby support the mission of the National School Lunch week from 
October 9-13, 2023.     
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of 
Education on this 5th day of October 2023, by the following vote: 
 

AYES : ____ 

NOES: ____ 

ABSTAIN:____ 

ABSENT:____ 

 



 
ATTESTED TO: 
 
 

 
 

Chinua Rhodes                                                                          Lisa Allen  
President of the Board of Education                                     Secretary of the Board of Education 



Page 1 of 2 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 9.4  

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3348: Adopting Carbon Neutral Goals and Guidelines 

for SCUSD Buildings  
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: _____)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
 

Division:  Facility Support Services 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 3348: Adopting Carbon Neutral Goals and 
Guidelines for SCUSD buildings.  
 
Background/Rationale:  Resolution No. 3348 would adopt the Carbon Neutral Goals and 
Guidelines for SCUSD Buildings that was presented to the Board at the September 21, 2023 
Board Meeting. 
 
Sacramento City Unified School District (SCUSD) is embarking on a process to design, 
construct, and modernize school buildings and facilities to achieve carbon neutrality by 2045, 
which is set by California Executive Order B-55-18, 2018. As part of the ongoing work outlined 
by the Facilities Master Plan that was Board approved in October 21, 2021, the District 
partnered with the New Buildings Institute (NBI) and the Sacramento Municipal Utilities District 
(SMUD) to develop District guidelines for prioritizing efforts to achieve building portfolio carbon 
neutrality by 2045, if not sooner. This includes portfolio and project level energy targets and 
timelines, as well as project requirements for new construction, major modernizations, and 
facility upgrades. This was a major component of the Facilities Master Plan. 
 
Financial Considerations:  These targets and guidelines will be incorporated in capital project 
design moving forward, which will positively impact the District’s General Fund over time. 
 
LCAP Goal(s): College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally 
Healthy and Engaged Students; Family and Community Engagement; Operational 
Excellence 
 
Documents Attached:  

1. Resolution No. 3348 



Page 2 of 2 

2. Energy & Carbon Goals 
3. Energy & Carbon Project Guidelines 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 5 minutes 

Submitted by: Nathaniel Browning, Director I of Facilities 

  Chamberlain Segrest, Environmental Sustainability Manager  

Approved by:  Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 



1 
 

Sacramento City Unified School District  
Resolution No. 3348 

 

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT CARBON NEUTRAL GOALS AND GUIDELINES 

 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento community is experiencing the detrimental effects of climate change 
through extreme heat, catastrophic storms, increased wildfires, poor air quality, and historic droughts; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC), the world’s most authoritative 
scientific body on climate change, states in their AR6 report that human activities, principally through 
emissions of greenhouse gases, have unequivocally caused global warming; and 

WHEREAS, Sacramento City School District students and staff are entitled to safe and healthy working 
and learning environments that reflect recommendations of reliable scientific studies indicating that 
student achievement and attendance and teacher and staff retention are improved when their 
environment incorporates natural light, improved indoor air quality and acoustics, and is free of toxins, 
thermally comfortable, and well maintained; and 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento City School District Board is committed to prioritizing the health and 
wellness of staff and students while making positive, tangible changes to mitigate climate change, and 
to ensure that every effort is made to conserve energy and natural resources while exercising sound 
financial management; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Sacramento Action Item Environmental Resources 6.1.6 of the 2035 General Plan 
establishes a goal to reduce municipal greenhouse gas emissions by 83% below 2005 levels by 2050, 
with an interim reduction goal of 49% below 2005 levels by 2035; and  

WHEREAS, the California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 (AB 32) requires the State to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions to 1990 levels by 2020 and beyond, and the energy used in buildings accounts 
for the second largest contribution to California’s greenhouse gas emissions; and 

WHEREAS, the California Energy Efficiency Strategic Plan of 2008 requires all new commercial 
construction to be Zero Net Energy by 2030 and 50% of existing buildings to be Zero Net Energy by 2030; 
and California requires all buildings – new and existing will be Zero Net Energy with clean renewable 
energy by 2050; and  

WHEREAS, an Executive Order to achieve Carbon Neutrality of 2018 (B-55-18) requires the California to 
achieve statewide carbon neutrality by 2045 and maintain net negative emissions thereafter; and 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Municipal Utility District (SMUD) is committed to carbon emission 
reductions, and the implementation of renewables and beneficial all-electric technologies when and 
where possible; and 

WHEREAS, Sacramento City School District embraces the tremendous opportunity to teach students 
about sustainability, climate change, and environmental health and nutrition; to meet math, science, 



2 
 

and social studies standards by integrating environmental education; and to support students in 
becoming leaders as they make their own schools healthier and more ecologically friendly; and 

WHEREAS, research has shown that prioritizing energy efficiency and carbon neutral construction with 
clean and renewable energy improvements in school district facilities and operations save school 
districts money, improve learning environments and the health and wellness of school district student 
and staff; and 

WHEREAS, Sacramento City School District recognizes that achieving environmental sustainability will 
require a commitment from all sectors of society, and that school districts are in a unique position to 
make substantial contributions toward the goal of a sustainable world for future generations; and 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento City School District Board also believes that responsible stewardship of 
public funds requires that new schools and district buildings be designed to provide the district with 
cost-saving, environmentally sustainable systems, flexible configurations that will enable future 
improvements, and efficient use of its land and resources; and  

WHEREAS, the Sacramento City School District Board finds that it has a considerable opportunity 
through the District’s purchasing power to improve the environment and to lower financial outlay by 
providing guidance for district expenditures on energy, mechanical equipment, construction materials, 
and other building construction and energy efficiency needs; and 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento City School District Board intends that the Carbon Neutral Goals and 
Guidelines create a long-term, inspiring vision that integrates and strengthens many efforts in our 
district, and further recognizes that fully implementing this resolution will take time and must be 
achieved in stages that are to be measured each year. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Education of the Sacramento City School District 
recognizes the deliberate progress already made by the district to reduce the district’s energy 
consumption and lessen its carbon footprint. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that as the Sacramento City School District Board seeks to expand upon 
those efforts and to create healthier, more environmentally sustainable schools, the Board hereby 
adopts the Carbon Neutral Goals and Guidelines, attached to this Resolution at Exhibit A, and 
summarized below:  

Portfolio Level Goals: 
1. Achieve carbon neutrality by 2045. 
2. Achieve an average portfolio site energy use intensity of 25 kBtu/sf/yr (without PV).  
3. Reduce energy consumption by 40% by 2030 and 80% by 2040. 

1. EUI in 2030: 31.72 kBtu/sf/yr 
2. EUI in 2040: 27.24 kBtu/sf/yr 

4. Eliminate onsite gas combustion by 2045. 
 

Project Level Goals: 
1. All new construction/addition projects will: 

• Achieve a site energy use intensity of 19-24 kBtu/square foot/year before PV, depending on 
building type, 



3 
 

• Be all-electric and have no on-site gas combustion, 
• Be PV-ready for all projects (wherever on site appropriate), 
• Incorporate renewable energy sources to offset annual electricity use,  
• Reduce life cycle impacts associated with high embodied carbon materials,  
• Prioritize local products, manufacturers, and contractors to reduce carbon impacts in the supply 

chain, 
• Utilize low global warming potential (GWP) refrigerants that are non-toxic to the environment, 
• Consider the integration of electric vehicles (including protected electric bicycle parking) and 

fleet infrastructure. 
 

2. All major modernization projects will:  
• Achieve a site energy use intensity of 25-35 kBtu/square foot/year before PV, depending on 

building type, 
• Either eliminate on-site gas combustion or have a plan to eliminate gas by 2045 (in a resolution 

or signed by the department director/superintendent) 
 

3. All school facility retrofits will improve the site energy use intensity by 20-50% from a 2019 
baseline weighted by the amount of work slated.  
• Retrofitted systems should prioritize a shift to beneficial all-electric. 
• All retrofitted systems must be the most efficient equipment available whether gas or electric. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Sacramento City School District Board will report annually on the 
status of these goals in terms of EUI (kBtu/square foot-year) on new construction and retrofit projects, 
total percent reduction as compared to baseline year of 2019, total annual emissions and percent 
reduction as compared to 2019 baseline, and number of mechanical systems (such as HVAC) converted 
to from natural gas to electric at the end of their useful life. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education on this 5th day 
of October 2023, by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

            
ATESTED TO:       

________________________________                            ________________________________  
Chinua Rhodes                                                                         Lisa Allen  
President of the Board of Education                                    Secretary of the Board of Education 
        



1 
 

Carbon Neutral Goals for Sacramento City School District 
April 2023 

 

SUMMARY: 

This document outlines the energy and carbon goals for Sacramento City Unified School District 
(SCUSD). Once adopted via a formal school resolution, these goals will be incorporated into a 
set of guiding standards to guide the construction process for each building and project type in 
the district. The district is working towards the California State goal of Carbon Neutrality by 
2045. Utilizing a zero over time approach will help districts such as SCUSD achieve carbon 
neutral goals in a way that is cost effective and aligns with broader school district goals and 
plans. Getting to zero carbon over time is a long-term, strategic effort to achieve carbon neutral 
school buildings.   

Achieving zero overtime at the portfolio-level requires attention to individual buildings. Every 
opportunity in a building’s lifecycle is seen as an opportunity for improvement in a zero over time 
approach. New construction, major modernizations, system retrofits and equipment replacement 
are all triggering events where energy efficiency and carbon neutral goals should be addressed. 

In the process of adopting these goals – SCUSD will establish a baseline and set strategic, 
measurable, achievable, realistic, and time-bound goals regarding energy and carbon in 
buildings. Most projects in the existing pipeline can be leveraged to incorporate deep energy 
reductions and possibly renewable energy sources.  

Achievable and quantifiable goals for districts on the path to carbon neutral school buildings 
vary depending on the lifecycle event. These are outlined for SCUSD within this document.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

DEFINITIONS 

ENERGY USE INTENSITY (EUI): EUI is an indicator of the energy efficiency of a building’s 
design and/or operations. Expressed as energy use per square foot per year, EUI is calculated 
by dividing the total energy consumed by the building in one year by the total floor area of the 
building. EUI can be expressed as either “site” or “source” (defined further below). 

GETTING TO ZERO OVER TIME: While getting to zero is a realistic goal, the path to healthy, 
efficient, zero carbon schools is a process that will take time to accomplish. Getting to zero over 
time takes a long-term, cost effective, and strategic approach to energy management. It 
leverages every opportunity for facility upgrades to continually improve energy performance. 
This process sets measurable goals for a portfolio and individual projects and uses policies and 
guidance documents to achieve these goals.  

CARBON NEUTRAL: A carbon neutral school is a highly efficient building that has removed on-
site fossil fuel combustion, most often used for space heating, hot water heating and in kitchens.  

ZERO NET ENERGY (ZNE): A ZNE school is an energy-efficient building where on-site 
renewable energy production meets or exceeds energy used over the course of a year.  

SITE ENERGY USE INTENSITY (Site EUI): Site EUI includes energy consumed (including 
heating, cooling, ventilation, domestic hot water, indoor and outdoor lighting, elevators, plug in 
equipment, etc.) on the building site as measured at the site boundary. Site EUI is calculated 
with the total energy use of the building at the meter, regardless of the source. Gas, electricity, 
and renewable energy are all converted to one unit (thousand British thermal units, or kBtu) and 
counted together. 

SOURCE ENERGY USE INTENSITY (Source EUI): Source EUI includes site energy plus the 
energy consumed in the extraction, processing and transmission of primary fuels. Source EUI 
takes into account the total upstream energy that the building consumes, which means it is 
always larger or equal to the site EUI. The exact difference between the site and source EUI is a 
function of the fuel mix delivered to the building, as well as the building’s location. Different 
regions of the country have varying energy sources and transmission infrastructure. 

 

 

  



3 
 

EXISTING DISTRICT ENERGY STATS FOR SCHOOL DISTRICT: 

Average District Site EUI: 35.1 kBtu/sf/year 

Number of Building Sites: 85 are included in this dataset. Two schools (Chavez and 
Kemble Elementaries are combined because they are on the same site and share a gas meter.) 

School Name Type Site EUI 
(kBtu/sf/year) 

Source 
EUI 

(kBtu/sf/year) 
A. Warren McClacksey Adult Center Adult Education 56 104 
Abraham Lincoln Primary (K-6) 38 91 
A.M. Winn Public Waldorf Primary (K-8) 37 82 
Albert Einstein School Primary (M) N/A N/A 
Alice Birney  Primary (K-8) 33 80 
American Legion High School Secondary (H) 51 157 
Arthur A. Benjamin Health Professions Secondary (H) 42 109 
Bowling Green Chacon Language and 
Science Academy 

Primary (K-6) 20 58 

Bowling Green McCoy Academy for 
Excellence 

Primary (K-6) 34 82 

Bret Harte Elementary  Primary (P-5) 31 83 
Caleb Greenwood Elementary Primary (K-6) 25 57 
California Montessori Project - Capitol 
Campus 

Primary (K-8) 25 54 

California Middle School Primary (M) 31 77 
Camellia Basic Elementary School Primary (K-6) 32 84 
Capital City School (Independent 
Study) 

K-12 19 52 

Capitol Collegiate Academy  Primary (K-8) 40 90 
Caroline Wenzel Elementary Primary (K-6) 25 70 
Cesar E. Chavez Elementary + Edward 
Kemble Elementary at Kemble Site 

Primary (Kemble: K-
3 and Chavez: 4-6) 

COMBINE
D EUI: 35 

COMBINE
D EUI: 73 

Charles A. Jones Career & Education 
Center 

Adult Education 53 129 

C.K. McClatchy High School Secondary (H) 42 95 
Crocker Riverside Elementary  Primary (K-6) 22 62 
David Lubin Elementary Primary (K-6) 28 83 
Earl Warren Elementary School Primary (K-6) 53 131 
Edward Kemble Elementary School Primary (K-3) 38 82 
Elder Creek Elementary School Primary (K-6) 29 70 
Ethel I. Baker Elementary School Primary (K-6) 29 81 
Ethel Phillips Elementary School Primary (K-6) 31 80 
Father Keith B. Kenny School Primary (K-8) 46 115 
Fern Bacon Middle  Primary (M) 38 73 



4 
 

G.W. Carver School of Arts and 
Science 

Secondary (H) 29 72 

Genevieve F. Didion Elementary  Primary (K-6) 33 91 
Golden Empire Elementary School Primary (K-6) 31 94 
H.W. Harkness Elementary School Primary (K-6) 32 77 
Hiram Johnson High School Secondary (H) 63 122 
Hollywood Park Elementary School Primary (K-6) 40 106 
Hubert H. Bancroft Elementary School Primary (K-6) 35 86 
Isador Cohen Elementary School Primary (K-6) 29 75 
James W. Marshall Elementary School Primary (K-6) 28 78 
John Bidwell Elementary Primary (K-6) 27 72 
John Cabrillo Elementary School Primary (K-6) 33 89 
John D. Sloat Elementary Primary (K-6) 40 95 
John F. Kennedy High School Secondary (H) 42 105 
John Morse Therapeutic Center Primary (K-8) 19 46 
John Still Middle (East Campus) Primary (M) 27 67 
John Still Elementary (West Campus)  Primary (K-6) 28 85 
Kit Carson International Academy Secondary (7-12) 24 69 
Language Academy of Sacramento Primary (K-8) 42 133 
Leataata Floyd Elementary Primary (K-6) 23 56 
Leonardo Da Vinci School Primary (K-8) 32 71 
Luther Burbank High School Secondary (H) 33 81 
Maintenance and Operations District Building 57 111 
Mark Twain Elementary School Primary (K-6) 27 71 
Martin Luther King Jr. School Primary (K-8) 36 101 
Matsuyama Elementary Primary (K-6) N/A N/A 
New Joseph Bonnheim Community 
Charter 

Primary (K-6) 37 94 

Nicholas Elementary School Primary (K-6) 25 65 
O.W. Erlewine Elementary Primary (K-6) 37 86 
Oak Ridge Elementary Primary (K-6) 30 76 
Pacific Elementary  Primary (K-6) 26 74 
Parkway Elementary Primary (K-6) 33 85 
Phoebe A. Hearst Elementary Primary (K-6) 37 88 
Pony Express Elementary Primary (K-6) 22 63 
Print Shop/Nutrition Services District 

Administrative 
Building 

30 67 

Rosa Parks School Primary (K-8) 31 64 
Rosemont High School Secondary (H) 50 117 
Sacramento Accelerated Academy Secondary (H) 38 97 
Sacramento Charter High School Secondary (H) 44 96 
Sacramento New Technology School Secondary (H) 28 66 
Sam Brannan Middle  Primary (M) 45 97 



5 
 

School of Engineering and Science Secondary (7-12) 37 108 
Sequoia Elementary Primary (K-6) 26 65 
Serna Center District 

Administrative 
Building 

45 126 

Sol Aureus College Prep  Primary (K-8) 32 78 
Success Academy Primary (4-8) 21 47 
Susan B Anthony Elementary Primary (K-6) 29 77 
Sutter Middle School Primary (M) 26 68 
Sutterville Elementary School Primary (K-6) 35 84 
Tahoe Elementary Primary (K-6) 24 68 
The Met High School Secondary (H) 25 61 
Theodore Judah Elementary School Primary (K-6) 31 70 
Washington Elementary School Primary  (K-6) 33 80 
West Campus High School Secondary (H) 50 116 
Will C Wood Middle Primary (M) 36 77 
William Land Elementary School Primary (K-6) 36 101 
Woodbine Elementary Primary (K-6) 27 75 
Yav Pem Suab Academy Primary  (K-8) 25 71 

 

PROPOSED BUILDING LEVEL GOALS: 

Building Type New Construction 
Site EUI1 

Major Modernization 
Site EUI2 Retrofit EUI 

Administrative 21-26 kBtu/sf/yr 25-33 kBtu/sf/yr Retrofit projects will 
improve the site energy 
use intensity by 20-50% 
from a 2019 baseline 
weighted by the amount 
of work slated. 

Primary School  
(K-5 and Middle) 

19-24 kBtu/sf/yr 25-30 kBtu/sf/yr 

Secondary School  
(High School) 

20-25 kBtu/sf/yr 25-35 kBtu/sf/yr 

Note: Sacramento is ASHRAE Climate Zone 3B3.  

For New Construction, ASHRAE dictates that an EUI of 21.1 for office, an EUI of 19 for primary and an 
EUI of 19.4 for secondary is feasible for new construction in Climate Zone 3B – but we have provided a 
range for design teams. 

For Modernization, ASHRAE sets the standard that an EUI of 33 is achievable for office, an EUI of 30 for 
primary school, and an EUI of 33 for high school. Based on the NBI Getting to Zero database and past 
work in schools, we have amended the ranges above to be slightly more aggressive except for secondary 
schools which may have unique loads in some cases.  

                                                           
1 New construction targets come from the ASHRAE Advanced Energy Design Guide for K-12 Zero 
Energy Schools and ASHRAE Advanced Energy Design Guide for Small to Medium Office for 
Administrative buildings: https://www.ashrae.org/technical-resources/aedgs/zero-energy-aedg-free-
download  
2 Modernization targets come from ASHRAE Standard 100 targets for existing buildings which identifies 
that offices can achieve an EUI of 33, primary can achieve an EUI of 30, and secondary an EUI of 33. 
3 https://openei.org/wiki/Climate_Zone_3B  

https://www.ashrae.org/technical-resources/aedgs/zero-energy-aedg-free-download
https://www.ashrae.org/technical-resources/aedgs/zero-energy-aedg-free-download
https://openei.org/wiki/Climate_Zone_3B


6 
 

With the low average EUI across the district, the lower end of this scale should be achievable by these 
future projects. 

 
1. All new construction/addition projects will: 

• Achieve a site energy use intensity of 19-24 kBtu/square foot/year before 
photovoltaic (PV), depending on building type, 

• Be all-electric and have no on-site gas combustion, 
• Be PV-ready for all projects (wherever on site appropriate), 
• Incorporate renewable energy sources to offset annual electricity use,  
• Reduce life cycle impacts associated with high embodied carbon materials,  
• Prioritize local products, manufacturers, and contractors to reduce carbon impacts in 

the supply chain, 
• Utilize low global warming refrigerants, 
• Consider the integration of electric vehicles and fleet infrastructure. 
• Consider battery storage (including parked school buses at the campus) and/or 

microgrid solutions supporting the PV system, for District and school resiliency, 
where practicable. 

 
2. All major modernization projects will:  

• Achieve a site energy use intensity of 25-35 kBtu/square foot/year before PV, 
depending on building type, 

• Either eliminate on-site gas combustion or have a plan to eliminate gas by 2045 (in a 
resolution or signed by the department director/superintendent) 

 
3. All school facility retrofits will improve the site energy use intensity by 20-50% 

from a 2018-2019 baseline weighted by the amount of work slated.  
• Retrofitted systems should prioritize a shift to all-electric. 
• All retrofitted systems must be the most efficient equipment available whether gas or 

electric. 

  



7 
 

PROPOSED POLICY OR PORTFOLIO LEVEL GOALS 

1. In line with California Executive Order B-55-18, SCUSD’s building portfolio will achieve 
carbon neutrality by 20454. 

2. This district will have an average portfolio site energy use intensity of 25 kBtu/square 
foot/year (without PV).  

3. Reduce energy consumption by 40% by 2030 and 80% by 2040. 
• EUI in 2030: 31.10 kBtu/sf/yr 
• EUI in 2040: 27.10 kBtu/sf/yr 

4. Onsite gas combustion of zero by 2045.  

 

 

 

 

                                                           
4 State of California Executive Order B-55-18 To Achieve Carbon Neutrality: 
https://www.ca.gov/archive/gov39/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/9.10.18-Executive-Order.pdf  

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 2050

EU
I (

kB
TU

/s
f-y

r)

TOTAL PROJECTED DISTRICT ENERGY USE 
INTENSITY (EUI) OVER TIME

https://www.ca.gov/archive/gov39/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/9.10.18-Executive-Order.pdf
https://www.ca.gov/archive/gov39/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/9.10.18-Executive-Order.pdf


Sacramento City Unified Carbon Neutral Guidelines  
 

1   

 
 

Sacramento City Unified School District  
Carbon Neutral Guidelines 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Developed in partnership with 

 New Buildings Institute 
 

  



Sacramento City Unified Carbon Neutral Guidelines  
 

2   

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Introduction           3 

District Energy and Carbon Emission Goals      4 

Capital Projects - New Construction       5 

 Processes          5 

 Technical Approaches        6 

Capital Projects - Major Modernizations       8 

Facilities Projects          10 

District Energy and Carbon Guidelines       11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Sacramento City Unified Carbon Neutral Guidelines  
 

3   

INTRODUCTION 
Guided by the FILL IN RESOLUTION WHEN ADOPTED the Sacramento City Unified School District 
(SCUSD) is embarking on a process to design, construct, and modernize school buildings and 
facilities to achieve carbon neutrality by 2045. Occupant health, student experiences, resource 
efficiency, and sustainability are important to our District and this Project Manual explains how the 
District aims to achieve the stated goals in all construction activities. Incorporating energy and 
carbon requirements into school design standards can make an immediate impact on health, 
attendance, academic performance, and teacher retention while decreasing operational costs.  

The District has outlined the goals, processes, and guidelines found in this document to help protect 
students, staff, school visitors, and community members from the detrimental impacts brought on by 
climate change and to prepare our District for the transition away from on-site fossil gas use.   
 
The District will strive to ensure all buildings are designed with occupant health, indoor 
environmental quality, and resource efficiency at the forefront. These buildings will prepare students 
for the future by providing a high-quality education that supports concepts and practices of 
sustainability. They will preserve current and future resources by adopting practices in design and 
operations that balance environmental, social, and fiscal responsibility to protect and enhance the 
quality of life.   
 
This document dovetails with other District policies and documents, including the SCUSD Technical 
Specifications, Education Specifications, Board Policy 3511, and Administrative Regulation 3511. 
Together, they outline the guidelines and requirements for capital projects (new construction and 
modernizations) and facilities projects, which are defined below. This document will be revisited 
every 3 years to ensure goals and processes are still relevant and up to date. 
 
Capital Projects: Capital projects include new construction, additions, rebuilds and major 
modernizations, often funded by voter-approved bonds and implemented by the Facilities Services 
Department.   
 
Both new construction and modernization projects under the capital construction program will 
prioritize building envelope, HVAC, lighting, and removal of fossil fuel infrastructure to ensure all 
projects are designed to be as energy and carbon efficient as possible. Where opportunities arise 
modernizations will prioritize replacement of end-of-life roofs, windows, or heating systems, 
wherever possible.  
 
Facilities Projects: Facilities projects are the building repairs and deferred maintenance projects 
managed by our Facilities Services Department. These projects are often funded by the school 
District maintenance and operations budgets. Examples of these types of projects include system 
and equipment replacement, lighting, lighting controls, and HVAC system improvements, end-of-life 
equipment replacement, and school program changes.  
 
These projects generally have limited scope and will support energy and carbon goals by upgrading 
building elements as they reach their end of useful life. In each case, the District Energy and Carbon 
Guidelines below and Technical Specifications Document will inform the design and selection of 
materials and equipment. 



Sacramento City Unified Carbon Neutral Guidelines  
 

4   

 
 
DISTRICT ENERGY AND CARBON EMISSIONS GOALS 
 
The District is committed to leveraging each opportunity to further progress toward achieving these goals. 
This includes bond-funded new construction and modernization projects, facilities retrofit projects funded 
with non-bond funds, as well as routine maintenance and operations practices. Energy and carbon 
emissions reduction opportunities should be considered any time the building envelope or energy using 
systems are addressed.  

Portfolio Level Goals: 
• Achieve building portfolio carbon neutrality by 2045, as required by California Executive Order B-

55-18. 
• Have an average portfolio site Energy Use Intensity (EUI) of 25 kBtu/sq ft/yr (without PV). For 

comparison, the District’s current average EUI is 35.1 kBtu/sq ft/yr without PV.  
• Reduce energy consumption by 40% by 2030 and 80% by 2040.  These goals are expressed as 

follows: 
o EUI in 2030: 31.10 kBtu/sf/yr 
o EUI in 2040: 27.10 kBtu/sf/yr 

• Reduce onsite gas combustion to zero by 2045, as required by California Executive Order B-55-
18. 

 
Project Level Goals: 

(1) All new construction projects will: 
• Achieve a site energy use intensity of 19-24 kBtu/sqft/yr without photovoltaic (PV), depending on 

building type, 
• Have no on-site gas combustion (and will be all electric), 
• Be PV-ready (where site appropriate), 
• Incorporate renewable energy sources to offset annual electricity use, including, but not limited to, 

solar and geothermal,  
• Reduce life cycle impacts associated with high embodied carbon materials wherever possible,  
• Prioritize local products, manufacturers, and contractors to reduce carbon impacts in the supply 

chain, 
• Utilize low Global Warming Potential (GWP) refrigerants that minimize (if not eliminate) global 

warming impacts that are non-toxic to the environment, 
• Consider the addition of charging infrastructure for staff electric vehicles (including protected 

electric bicycle parking) and the District fleet (including buses and other heavy duty service 
vehicles), 

• Consider battery storage (including parked school buses at the campus) and/or microgrid 
solutions supporting the PV system, for District and school resiliency, where practicable. 

 
 
 



Sacramento City Unified Carbon Neutral Guidelines  
 

5   

 
(2) All major modernization projects will:  

• Achieve a site energy use intensity of 25-35 kBtu/square foot/year before PV, depending on the 
building type, 

• Eliminate on-site gas combustion completely or include a designed plan to eliminate gas by 2045.  
The plan will come in the form of a board approved resolution and/or document signed by the 
Department Director, Project Sponsor, or Superintendent) 
 

(3) All school facility retrofits will improve the site Energy Use Intensity (EUI) by 20-50% from a 
2018-2019 baseline: 

• Retrofitted systems should prioritize a shift to all-electric. 
• All retrofitted systems must be the most efficient equipment available whether gas or electric. 

 
 

 

CAPITAL PROJECTS - NEW CONSTRUCTION 
 
The design team will incorporate the following elements into the construction process.  
 
Processes 
 
ENGAGE THE LOCAL COMMUNITY: The design team must seek authentic input and 
feedback from the local school community during the design phase. 
 
DESIGNATE AN ENERGY CHAMPION: All projects must nominate an “energy champion” (EC) 
who will ensure that energy and carbon reduction are considered during the design 
process. The EC will sponsor an “eco-charrette,” participate in stakeholder meetings, and will 
review the drawing set at the end of each design phase, and twice during the construction 
documentation phase (conceptual design, schematic design, design development and 
construction documentation). The EC shall participate in the Value Engineering (VE) process so 
that the long-term cost of ownership is considered in the VE process. The EC will engage 
SMUD pre-conceptual design for program offerings and technical support for the upcoming 
projects. 
 
EMPLOY INTEGRATED DESIGN:  Carbon neutral schools require highly structured 
collaboration among those who plan, design, construct, use, operate and maintain them. 
Integrated Design requires that team members from a variety of disciplines work together to 
consider the intersection of local climate conditions, building use patterns, building design and 
layout, building systems, and cost. Integrated design starts early. Engage the local electric utility 
(SMUD) early (ideally pre-conceptual design) for potential incentives and technical support 
through their SMUD Integrated Design Solutions incentive program. In the large bond programs, 
energy efficiency and carbon emission reduction strategies begin when estimating the cost of 
new construction and major modernizations.  
 
Major construction and modernization projects will include an “eco-charrette” early in the design 
process. The eco-charrette will specifically focus on identifying the strategies and systems 
necessary for meeting the EUI targets. In addition, design teams will be expected to optimize 

http://www.smud.org/IDS


Sacramento City Unified Carbon Neutral Guidelines  
 

6   

the interrelationships between the building orientation and building systems, surroundings, and 
occupants. The District’s goal is to include as many passive energy design strategies as 
possible, such as natural daylighting and beneficial electrification that includes heat recovery.  
 

 
 

REDUCE ENERGY LOAD FIRST: A key strategy in integrated design is a “strategic 
implementation hierarchy” to optimize energy and carbon emission reductions. This strategy is 
particularly applicable to modernization project. The goal is to reduce energy loads first.  By 
doing so, HVAC systems may be sized to accommodate the new (lowered) load, rather than 
designed to the former (larger) load.  This saves energy and long term costs for the District.  
Though efficiency in the building envelope is an important part of energy reduction, the 
hierarchy may be different for each project. Consider selecting equipment that will meet 
ASHRAE Extreme Weather for a determined number of years out. Data is reported on 5, 10, 20, 
and 50 year. Selecting equipment for these higher outside air temperatures will protect the 
District in meeting these design conditions. Additionally, the equipment selected can operate 
more efficiently at part load. 
 
PARTICIPATE IN UTILITY AUTO DEMAND RESPONSE PROGRAMS: Continue participation 
in the local electric utility (SMUD) auto demand response program, PowerDirect®. The financial 
incentives offered further encourage the District to shed load during critical electrical strain on 
the grid. These funds can be used to further optimize equipment operation. 
 



Sacramento City Unified Carbon Neutral Guidelines  
 

7   

Technical Approaches 
 
Design teams will refer to the technical guidance contained in the design guide of the American 
Society of Heating, Refrigeration and Air-Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE), Advanced Energy 
Design Guide for K-12 School Buildings: Achieving Zero Energy (AEDG) to ensure the most 
efficient building approaches are utilized. These technical approaches are generally described 
below.  
 
ENERGY MODELING: The design team will conduct energy modeling for every project. This 
model will be refined as details of the design come into focus. Modeling inputs should be clearly 
documented so any variances from modeled numbers during occupancy can be identified 
quickly. All plug loads (including security cameras, emergency lighting, IT equipment, fire 
alarms, and kitchen equipment) should be captured. For measures that are difficult to model in a 
given software, design teams shall be allowed to use external calculation methodologies to 
estimate the usages and savings. Methodologies utilized should receive approval by the District. 

• An early energy model should be developed no later than the schematic design phase. 
Modeling will investigate building massing, orientation, and system type selection. This 
early model will analyze the relative energy impacts of various design decisions and will 
inform the system type selection.  For example, a better insulated building envelope can 
reduce the size of the HVAC system, thus saving first costs.  

• Later in the design process, energy models will investigate and estimate EUI to allow for 
comparison to goals and cost savings potential of energy conservation 
measures.  These same energy model’s estimates can also be used to size on-site 
renewables needed to achieve zero net carbon.  

• Finally, an as-built model will be created to reflect the actual conditions in the new or 
modernized building. This model should be available to calibrate post-occupancy to 
verify assumptions and provide feedback to the District.  

 
LIFECYCLE COSTING: To limit the adverse long-term impacts, the District requires that all 
value engineering decisions include consideration of life cycle costs. Interactive impacts of 
decisions will be considered before making first cost reduction decisions. Indirect, ancillary costs 
and benefits should also be accounted for, such as improved air quality and carbon reduction.  
 
PROJECT CHECK POINTS: During the design and construction process, each project team 
will revisit and report progress on project EUI goals at these key checkpoints:  

• At the end of each phase of the process (conceptual design, schematic design, design 
development, construction documents, and an as-built model).  

• During construction mockups in the field when different disciplines must work together to 
ensure that the building envelope is airtight and energy using systems are integrated.  

• During value engineering when the life cycle costs must be weighed against the first cost 
savings.  

 
COMMISSIONING: Commissioning shall begin in design and follow through to post occupancy. 
Commissioning agents hired by the District will be brought into the design following each project 
through design, construction, and post-occupancy to ensure that the energy goals and design 
intent are achieved as outlined in this document and reflected in the Basis of Design (BOD) 
developed by the project team for each project. Each commissioning plan will include design 
reviews, construction inspections, functional testing, development of a maintenance manual, 
and systems training.  Fundamental commissioning services (as defined by the US Green 

https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy
https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy
https://www.usgbc.org/credits/commercial-interiors/v20/eap1


Sacramento City Unified Carbon Neutral Guidelines  
 

8   

Building Council LEED process) may be provided by the same organization whose 
representatives include design team members.  
 

ENVELOPE COMMISSIONING: Envelope commissioning will be prioritized in all capital 
projects, this process begins with a blower door assessment and thermal imaging of the 
current building shell, where it will be retained, to identify leakage areas of concern. 
Existing envelope improvements should be prioritized based on the building testing 
results to ensure updates are maximizing performance improvement. Design teams 
should refer to the technical specifications of the AEDG for further details on building 
and building envelope commissioning.  

 
TRAINING & STEWARDSHIP:  

• All Facilities Service staff shall be trained by vendors and contractors, per written 
agreement, for any given construction project. Local utility service companies should be 
looped in to provide additional trainings in their area of expertise.  

• It is critical that building occupants such as staff and students are properly engaged to 
operate a building efficiently, maximize savings, and obtain feedback about building 
operation. Occupants must feel ownership over their buildings carbon neutral 
performance and understand their individual and collective roles in sustaining carbon 
neutral performance for the long term. Example training materials include videos, 
manuals, and captivating signage. Examples of feedback include working with the 
Commissioning Agent to undergo post-occupancy commissioning. 

 
FINANCIAL INCENTIVES: All projects will seek out local incentives and grants from utilities, 
Community Choice Aggregators (CCAs), Regional Energy Networks (RENs), and other local 
entities to help support District energy, carbon, and financial goals. It is important for the 
projects to seek these incentives as early as possible. This is due to utility incentives often have 
cut off times for participation. Additionally, SMUD offers third party, limited, technical support, 
also adding value to a project. 
 
VERIFICATION: The measurement and verification (M&V) period typically spans 12 to 24 
months after substantial completion of the building. During this time, the commissioning agent, 
design team, contractor, and energy modeler will work together with the District to review the 
energy performance of the project. This should be an ongoing and proactive process throughout 
the entire period so if anomalies are found between the expected site Energy Use Intensity and 
performance, and the actual site EUI performance, they can be identified and addressed 
quickly.   
 
MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS: Maintenance and operations is a key piece in ensuring that 
resource conservation and efficiency continue through the life of buildings and systems. This 
includes preventative maintenance, energy & water use monitoring, building automation system 
(BAS) monitoring, and continuous commissioning of HVAC and controls. Sustaining carbon 
neutral performance and reducing energy consumption in the long term should be more 
important than saving money in the short term by reducing expenditures on maintenance. 
 
The M&O team will be a key participant in the retro-commissioning of the completed projects. 
Additionally, the team will undergo the following practices to ensure buildings are maintained 
appropriately.  
 

• Defining and maintaining operational setpoints  
• Equipment scheduling and periodic review to ensure match with occupancy schedules  

https://www.usgbc.org/credits/commercial-interiors/v20/eap1


Sacramento City Unified Carbon Neutral Guidelines  
 

9   

• Checking sensor operation  
• Filter changes, fan operation check, coil cleaning and other preventative maintenance 

tasks  
• System flushing and checking steam traps  
• Checking valves for leakage/failure  
• Record keeping of systems and equipment to determine which systems either need 

maintenance or need replacement  
 
EQUIPMENT SELECTION: Every effort shall be made to 1) Select maintenance-friendly, less 
complicated equipment, 2) Select equipment that is tested and proven (ideally in a K-12 setting); 
3) Facilitate easy access to building systems (without ladders/lifts and without disturbing 
classes), and 4) Select materials that are easy to clean and inexpensive to maintain. 
Standardization of replacement materials, such as HVAC filter types and sizes, shall also be 
prioritized. The Maintenance and Operations team should be included in these discussions to 
provide team feedback on system selection.  
 
 
CAPITAL PROJECTS - MAJOR MODERNIZATIONS 
 
While new construction can be designed and built to meet the District’s ambitious energy and 
carbon goals relatively straightforwardly and with minimal additional cost, retrofitting existing 
buildings to reach similar levels of efficiency may present a bigger hurdle. The District 
recognizes that parts of the building may be difficult to update to current standards, for example, 
meeting prescriptive envelope insulation levels within existing walls.  
 
Despite these challenges, modernizations and retrofit projects are key opportunities to 
continually improve energy performance and reduce carbon emissions over time. As mentioned 
in the process section above, design teams will be guided by a strategic implementation 
hierarchy that calls for consideration of balancing energy load reduction, with attention to 
features such as the building envelope and lighting improvements, which should be balanced 
before HVAC upgrades. Minimizing heating load before replacing existing systems avoids 
oversizing of equipment and allows for replacement with equipment and/or systems that are 
more efficient and, where feasible, do not have on-site fossil fuel combustion.  
 
Envelope commissioning will be prioritized in modernization projects, as with all capital projects, 
this process begins with a blower door assessment and thermal imaging of the current building 
shell, where it will be retained, to identify leakage areas of concern. Existing envelope 
improvements should be prioritized based on the building testing results to ensure updates are 
maximizing performance improvement. Design teams should refer to the technical specifications 
of the Advanced Energy Design Guide for K-12 School Buildings for further details on building 
and building envelope commissioning.  
 
 
 

https://www.ashrae.org/technical-resources/aedgs/zero-energy-aedg-free-download


Sacramento City Unified Carbon Neutral Guidelines  
 

10   

The chart below summarizes which elements will be incorporated into each modernization and 
retrofit project and which will only be included on a case-by-case basis. Design teams will 
consider the synergies with planned scope of work, available funding, and site-specific design 
parameters.   

  MODERNIZATION  
SCOPE  
See further details below  Mandatory  Case-by-

case  
Envelope air sealing and insulating walls and openings  ✔    
Roofs insulation, rainwater collection    ✔  
Glazing & Shading heat minimization, high performance windows    ✔  
Lighting LED lighting & controls  ✔    
Electrical energy monitoring  ✔    
Metering submetering     ✔  
Kitchen electrification & Energy Star energy-efficient equipment  ✔    
Heating electrification & maintainability    ✔  
Ventilation heat recovery & filtration    ✔  
Controls set points & operating hours   ✔    
Domestic Hot Water recirculation pumps & pipe insulation  ✔    
Plug Loads are measured & controlled   ✔    
Water backflow device & high-efficiency fixtures  ✔    
Schoolyard green schoolyards, stormwater mgmt. & rainwater collection    ✔  
Materials CalGreen, CA Section 01350 & CA Buy Clean  ✔    
Renewables Onsite solar PV, storage    ✔  
Zero Energy Ready roof solar readiness  ✔    



Sacramento City Unified Carbon Neutral Guidelines  
 

11   

FACILITIES PROJECTS 
 
The Facilities Department is an integral part of the District’s efforts to care for and improve its 
building stock, tackle deferred maintenance, and achieve energy and carbon goals. Typical 
work includes lighting retrofits, control upgrades, window retrofits, roofing replacement, 
installation of information technology, security or fire alarm systems, and replacement of boilers 
or other aging equipment.  
 
Facilities projects shall adhere to the following overarching decision-making processes in order 
for those projects to align with the District’s goals and project processes:  

• The energy champion shall be consulted and provide guidance on incorporating energy 
efficiency and carbon emission reduction into the design of retrofits and replacements.  

• Specifications for new equipment will match those for new construction unless prohibited 
by Division of State Architect’s Interpretation of Regulations (IR) A-22 or this change 
requires significant and costly expansion of electricity infrastructure. This will avoid like 
for like replacements and ensure that replacement equipment will be more energy 
efficient.  

• New fossil fuel burning equipment will not be installed.  
  
The District Technical Standards and Specifications are to be consulted for all Facilities projects 
so architects working on these projects continue to work to achieve the District’s energy and 
carbon goals.   
 
  



Sacramento City Unified Carbon Neutral Guidelines  
 

12   

DISTRICT ENERGY AND CARBON GUIDELINES 
 
In order to adhere to the goals set forth by the District, design teams will consult the Advanced 
Energy Design Guide for K-12 School Buildings (AEDG): Achieving Zero Energy (ASHRAE) and 
follow the Energy and Carbon Guidelines below. While these guidelines are most easily 
implemented in new construction, they should also be utilized where applicable in other 
projects. For reference, Sacramento County is in ASHRAE Climate Zone 3B: Warm Dry. All 
requirements below reflect the modeled capabilities of this climate zone. 
 
ENERGY 
New buildings should be designed to achieve a modeled site energy use intensity (EUI) of 19 
kBtu/sf/year for primary schools and 19.4 kBtu/sf/year for secondary schools including plug 
loads, security cameras, IT & fire alarm systems, and kitchen equipment. Building systems 
should be “designed for off”, meaning that they will shut down without user intervention. Energy 
modeling during design should confirm that site EUI targets are achieved.  
Reference: Table 3-1 of the Advanced Energy Design Guide for K-12 School Buildings 

  
FORM & SITING 
Buildings should be simple and compact, integrated into the landscape, oriented to allow for 
daylighting while managing solar gain, minimizing glare and maximizing renewable energy 
production. Building form should consider exterior circulation to minimize the need for 
conditioned common areas and stacking functions to promote energy efficiency.  
  
ENVELOPE 
Roof, wall, slab edge, and door insulation will be continuous and optimized via building 
modeling to comply with the EUI target above. In general, a roof U-factor of 0.039 and wall U-
factor of 0.064 should be specified. Exterior insulation should be specified over cavity insulation 
and fiberglass batts should be limited in certain circumstances due to poor thermal performance 
in the field. Double swinging doors without a center post or rolling overhead doors without 
insulated panels are discouraged due to poor air sealing properties.  
Reference: Table 5-3 of the Advanced Energy Design Guide for K-12 School Buildings 
 
If PV panels are mounted to the roof, the roofing system must be able to handle uplift from the 
panels. Attachments for PV panels need to minimize thermal bridging (see section EN35 in the 
Advanced Energy Design Guide for K-12 School Buildings).  

  
AIR & MOISTURE CONTROL 
Moisture and air control layers will be continuous and reside on the warm side of exterior 
insulation, and architects will design and specify airtight construction practices (.25 CFM/SF @ 
75 Pa). 
Reference: As noted in section EN2 of the Advanced Energy Design Guide for K-12 School Buildings  
 
INSULATION 
Roof, wall, slab edge, and door insulation will be continuous and optimized via energy modeling 
to comply with the EUI target above and to minimize the cooling dominated climate zone. In 
general, R30 roof and R20 wall insulation should be specified. 
 
WINDOWS  
Windows and skylights will have U-values <.30 and thermally-broken frames. Windows size and 
Solar Heat Gain Coefficients (SHGC) will be tuned to building orientation, with north and 

https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy
https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy
https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy
https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy
https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy
https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy


Sacramento City Unified Carbon Neutral Guidelines  
 

13   

(shaded) south-facing glass being larger and having a higher SHGC than east or west-facing 
glass. Windows should additionally consider the access to views for building occupants.  
Reference: Table 5-5 of the Advanced Energy Design Guide for K-12 School Buildings 
 
SHADING 
The need for glare and heat control (on E/S/W elevations) should be determined through 
daylight modeling and provided via exterior shading devices.  

• Interior shades will be provided in all classrooms and offices.  
• Exterior building shades will be provided, with consideration of solar angled or 

perforated sunshades. 
• Exterior ground shading: 

o Shading must cover at least 50% of the parking area. All parking shade 
structures will have PV arrays.  

o Shade tree plantings will be required over at least 20% of the landscape area 
and 20% of the hardscape area within 15 years, with landscape irrigation 
necessary to establish and maintain tree health (per Title 24). 
 

DAYLIGHTING 
Whenever possible, buildings will utilize natural light to meet lighting needs. Acceptable 
strategies include sloped ceilings, light louvers, clerestories, reflective interior surfaces, sun 
tubes, and skylights along interior walls. 
 
LIGHTING 
In general, lights should run parallel to windows, with the closest bank controlled via daylight 
sensors. Lights in daylit stairs or hallways should be similarly controlled. Skylights, sun tubes, or 
light wells may be considered in permanently occupied spaces without access to natural light 
provided that rooftop solar requirements can be met. 

• Interior lighting will be 100% LED, with manual on/auto off in classrooms/offices, 
occupancy sensors in common areas, and daylighting controls per Title 24. A Lighting 
Power Density (LPD) of 0.4 watts/sf or less shall be achieved. Architects should refer to 
the District’s Technical Standards and Specifications for appropriate light levels, set 
points, and design guidance for each space type. Zoned lighting should be considered 
where appropriate to utilize lighting systems only when needed. 

• Exterior lighting will also be LED, incorporate bi-level control, and astronomical time 
clocks. 

 
ELECTRICAL  
Size of new transformers and switchgear should be right-sized. They will be evaluated based on 
future electric heating and solar loads wherever possible. Often electrical equipment is already 
oversized and with energy efficiency measures in place, the increase in size may not be 
needed. This should be carefully evaluated for each project. Electrical rooms should provide a 
spare breaker for future PV panels and space for a solar inverter. Plug loads (controlled and 
uncontrolled), electrical systems (cameras, fire alarm, IT), lighting, heating/cooling, ventilation, 
kitchen equipment, and DHW should be monitored and may be separately sub-metered if cost 
effective and appropriate in new buildings and when subpanels are replaced in existing ones. 
Electric vehicle and bus infrastructure should be considered where appropriate. 
 
An energy monitor and comprehensive energy dashboard are to be installed in all new and 
modernized buildings to maintain the engagement of students, staff, and the larger community. 
The energy dashboard is an unparalleled source of data about how the building is performing. 

https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy


Sacramento City Unified Carbon Neutral Guidelines  
 

14   

 
PLUG LOADS  
Plug loads consist of the many and varied devices that are plugged into receptacle outlets in 
buildings. Plug loads can be controlled either with a management plan requiring human action 
or with a passive system where plug load devices are controlled by an automation system that 
removes human action from the equation (preferred). Staff refrigerators and microwaves should 
be provided to discourage individual units. Outlets wired for receptacle control (as per Title 24) 
shall be clearly labeled. HVAC systems should be designed to ensure appropriate thermal 
comfort with adjustability, and then thoroughly commissioned to ensure proper installation, to 
reduce the use of fans and portable heaters. 

KITCHEN EQUIPMENT 
Efficient kitchen equipment is required and must be all electric by 2045. The CA Energy Wise 
website provides equipment recommendations for kitchen appliances, walk-ins, and cooking 
hoods. Include commercial induction ranges for making school meals wherever possible. The 
Food Service Technology Center provides best practices on all-electric kitchens. 

 
HEATING & COOLING  
Heating and cooling shall be provided by HFC-free (when available), centralized, all-electric 
systems that meet CEE Tier 2 levels of efficiency. Projects should prioritize the removal of gas 
heating systems in existing buildings and NO gas heating systems are allowed in new 
construction. 
 
VENTILATION 
Mechanical ventilation should incorporate dedicated outside air systems (DOAS) with 
occupancy and/or CO2-based controls, a 15-minute delay, and MERV-13 final filters throughout. 
Fresh air should originate from a shaded/cool part of the building exterior and be delivered low 
in each space. Ceiling fans may be used to expand the comfort range and to allow for an 
increased cooling set point. Kitchen hoods should incorporate heat recovery and variable flow 
control and be designed according to CA Energy Wise Design Guides. Ventilation in single-
occupancy restrooms should be tied into the local occupancy sensor.  
 
Design teams should additionally consult the CDC recommendations for ventilation best 
practices to increase the delivery of clean air and dilute potential contaminants. 
 
CONTROLS 
Space conditioning controls should be tied into the District EMS systems and separate controls 
provided for each zone. Occupied hours vary depending on room (7AM-3PM for classrooms; 
7AM-3PM for offices, etc.). The system should be off after hours, on weekends, and over 
unoccupied holidays (with the possibility of limited duration and zone-specific overrides).  

• Set points should be 68 +/- 3 degrees F in heating mode and 78 +/- 3 degrees F in 
cooling mode for all new/modernized buildings 

• Set points should be 68 degrees F in heating mode and 74 degrees F in cooling mode 
for all non-modernized buildings.  

 
HOT WATER 
Refer to the Advanced Energy Design Guide for K-12 School Buildings for domestic and service 
hot water. In addition, large kitchens with walk-in coolers/freezers should be outfitted with heat 

https://caenergywise.com/rebates/
https://fishnick.com/
https://library.cee1.org/content/consortium-energy-efficiency-cee-high-efficiency-commercial-air-conditioning-and-heat-pump-0/
https://caenergywise.com/design-guides/
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/ventilation.html
https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy


Sacramento City Unified Carbon Neutral Guidelines  
 

15   

recovery systems that preheat hot water. All pipes shall be insulated, and water temps set at 
<120 degrees F, except for commercial kitchen water temperatures. 
 
RENEWABLES  
Appropriately sized breakers, panel and conduit will be included in the base bid.  Renewable 
energy system panels and equipment will be considered as an add alternate in new construction 
and major modernization construction projects. Projects will use the PV Watts Calculator to 
calculate the solar capacity for your project location and compare against the modeled energy 
use to correctly size the PV array. 
 
ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
WATER & IRRIGATION  
Urinals shall use no more than one pint per flush and be installed with partitions in all male 
restrooms. Other fixtures shall meet the latest CalGreen requirements. Remodeled restrooms 
shall contain shut-off valves to aid in the identification and repair of plumbing leaks. Multi-fixture 
restrooms should be pre-plumbed to receive rainwater for toilet flushing. Drought-tolerant plants 
should be used (outside of food gardens), hose bibbs provided around the perimeter of 
buildings, and natural grass replaced with turf on athletic fields. 
 
STORM & RAINWATER  
Playground matting shall be permeable, and schoolyards should be graded to allow perimeter 
infiltration.  
 
It shall be the goal of all new projects to capture and retain all stormwater runoff on site. To that 
end, all roofs shall be rainwater-harvesting friendly (TPO, metal) and incorporate external 
downspouts. Backflow devices are required at the point of collection and at the street. Finally, 
toilets at frequently used multi-stall restrooms should be pre-plumbed as follows (or retrofitted 
during gut modernizations): 

• Toilets should be served by a dedicated water line that is labeled as a rainwater line 
(inside walls only). 

• That water line should be connected to the local domestic water system. 
• Design teams should create an accessible tie-in point where future rainwater can be 

routed into the toilet water line and a three-way valve added. 
• Low impact development, like rain gardens, porous pavement, and bioswales shall be 

considered when appropriate. 
 
MATERIALS  
Finishes and other materials shall be durable, contain recycled/bio-based content, lead and 
PVC-free, recyclable at end-of-life, and meet low emissions criteria outlined in CalGreen and CA 
Section 01350. This applies to paints, coatings, adhesives, sealants, flooring/carpet, composite 
wood/panels, acoustical ceilings, insulation, and furniture. 
 
EV and FLEET 
EV charging capability shall be incorporated for a minimum of Level 2 Charging Infrastructure 
for 10% of the current parking spaces for staff and visitors. Additionally, the District plan to 
transition EV Fleet to Electric Bus should be made available to the design team to be able to 
appropriately incorporate bus charging infrastructure for future charging.  

https://pvwatts.nrel.gov/


Sacramento City Unified Carbon Neutral Guidelines  
 

16   

 
ACTIVE COMMUTE 
Walking and biking routes on the school campus shall be planned to improve safety and 
encourage active commutes. Design teams will provide one bike rack (4-loops) for schools on 
hills and two bike racks or enough to meet demand (whichever is greater) at all other locations. 
Design teams will engage with external partners, including the city, to ensure active 
transportation friendly crosswalks and sidewalks are either maintained or included in the design.  
 
SCHOOLYARD 
Incorporate drought tolerant and biophilic landscaping wherever possible. Ensure the 
design is student and maintenance friendly.  

• Shade tree plantings will cover at least 30% of each school property in the areas 
used by children and youth during the school day. 

• Per Title 24, shade tree plantings will be required over at least 20% of the landscape 
area and 20% of the hardscape area within 15 years, with landscape irrigation 
necessary to establish and maintain tree health. 

• Interactive gardens and outdoor classrooms should be considered at all elementary 
schools. The design should be student and maintenance friendly. 

• Design schoolyards to protect students from extreme heat while also nurturing their 
development and growth. This means climate resilient schoolyards with nature play, 
outdoor classrooms, gardens, and pocket forests. 



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Agenda Item# _10.1_ 

 
 
Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023 
 
Subject:  Bond Oversight Committee Measures Q and R Annual Report 2022-2023 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Facilities Support Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Board to receive the 2022-2023 Measures Q and R Bond 
Oversight Committee’s report. 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  The Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee for Measures Q and 
R is comprised of community members who are committed to improving the school 
facilities in which our children learn, and overseeing the District’s fiscal oversight duty to 
the voters.  The Committee oversees the District’s expenditure of bond proceeds by 
reviewing expenditure reports produced by the District to ensure bond proceeds are 
expended only for the purpose set forth in the ballot measure and that no bond 
proceeds are used for any teacher or administrative salaries or other operating 
expenses.  The Committee works with an independent auditor, conducts research, and 
conducts site visits to guarantee these duties are fulfilled.  The Committee meets four 
times a year.  One of the requirements of this Committee is to present an annual report 
to the Board of Education. 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College and Career Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy, 
Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 



Documents Attached:   
1. Executive Summary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 10 minute presentation 
Submitted by:  Jesse M. Castillo, Assistant Superintendent, 

Business Services 
Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 
 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Facilities Support Services 
Bond Oversight Committee Measures Q and R Annual Report 
October 5, 2023  
  
 

 
Department Name 1 

 
I.  OVERVIEW / HISTORY  
Proposition 39 General obligation bonds require the appointment of a Citizens’ Bond Oversight    
Committee (CBOC). The CBOC oversees the expenditure of money for the construction, repair, 
and modernization of schools by the District. The CBOC communicates its finding to the Board 
and the public in order to ensure that school bond funds are invested as the voters intended 
and that projects are completed wisely and efficiently. 
To guarantee this, the Committee works with an independent auditor and conducts research, 
surveys and site visits at the district and school site level. The CBOC typically meets four times a 
year. During these meetings, the committee will listen to reports from staff and consultants 
summarize the status of projects in progress. At some point during the year, a financial audit 
and a performance audit is presented for the Committee’s review.  Once a year, the Committee 
presents a year-end report to the Board of Education. 
 
II. DRIVING GOVERNANCE 
California Constitution (Article 13A) 
Education Codes 15264 
Board Policy 7210 
 
III.   BUDGET  
N/A 
 
IV.   GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND MEASURES  
The Sacramento City Unified School District's Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee is to inform 
the Board and the public regarding the expenditure of general obligation bond funds. 
 
V.   MAJOR INITIATIVES  
N/A 
 
VI.   RESULTS  
The Committee has prepared a presentation/report to the Board of Education regarding 
expenditures from Measures Q and R funds for the 2022-2023 fiscal year. 
 
 
VII.   LESSONS LEARNED / NEXT STEPS  
Board of Education to receive the report. 
 

 



 Page 1 of 1  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 12.1a 

 
Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023 
 
 
Subject: Approval/Ratification of Grants, Entitlements, and Other Income Agreements 

Approval/Ratification of Other Agreements 
Approval of Bid Awards 
Approval of Declared Surplus Materials and Equipment 
Change Notices 
Notices of Completion 

 
 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Recommend approval of items submitted. 
 
Background/Rationale:   
 
Financial Considerations:  See attached. 
 
LCAP Goal(s): College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy, 
Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence    
 
Documents Attached:  
1. Grants, Entitlements, and Other Income Agreements 
2. Expenditure and Other Agreements 
3. Approval of Declared Surplus Materials and Equipment 
4. Recommended Bid Awards – Purchasing 
5. Recommended Bid Awards - Facilities 
6. Notices of Completion – Facilities Projects 
 

Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 

Submitted by:  Jesse Castillo, Assistant Superintendent of Business 
Services 

  Tina Alvarez Bevens, Contract Analyst 

Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent



 Page 1 of 7  

GRANTS, ENTITLEMENTS AND OTHER INCOME AGREEMENTS – REVENUE 

Contractor New Grant   Amount 

EDUCATOR AND LEADERSHIP DEPARTMENT 

University of Phoenix 
A24-00014 

☐  Yes 
☒  No, received grant in 2016/17 

$0 
No Match 

Period: 7/1/23 – 6/30/26.  Description Internship MOU. Approved program for the Multiple and Single 
Subject Credentials. Each intern candidate will work under the direct and continuing supervision of a 
University of Phoenix Intern Supervisor and Employer Mentor who provides general support at the 
classroom level of the Intern’s Employer. 
 

CAREER AND COLLEGE DEPARTMENT 

California Department of Education 
A24-00027 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$81,000 
No Match 

Period: 7/1/23-6/30/25.  Description Law and Social Justice Academy (0022) at Luther Burbank High 
School.  One-time grant award of $81,000. 
 
CAREER AND COLLEGE DEPARTMENT 

California Department of Education 
A24-00028 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$72,000 
No Match 

Period: 7/1/23-6/30/25.  Description Building Trades Academy (0585) at Luther Burbank High School.  
One-time grant award of $72,000. 
 
CAREER AND COLLEGE DEPARTMENT 

California Department of Education 
A24-00029 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$45,000 
No Match 

Period: 7/1/23-6/30/25.  Description Criminal Justice and Community Services Academy (0095) at John 
F. Kennedy High School.  One-time grant award of $45,000. 
 
 
CAREER AND COLLEGE DEPARTMENT 

California Department of Education 
A24-00030 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$81,000 
No Match 

Period: 7/1/23-6/30/25.  Description Law and Social Justice Academy (0084) at Hiram Johnson High 
School.  One-time grant award of $81,000. 
 
CAREER AND COLLEGE DEPARTMENT 

California Department of Education 
A24-00031 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$81,000 
No Match 

Period: 7/1/23-6/30/25.  Description Health and Medical Sciences Academy (0168) at Hiram Johnson 
High School.  One-time grant award of $81,000. 
 
CAREER AND COLLEGE DEPARTMENT 

California Department of Education 
A24-00032 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$81,000 
No Match 

Period: 7/1/23-6/30/25.  Description Corporate Business Academy (0086) at Hiram Johnson High School.  
One-time grant award of $81,000. 

  



 Page 2 of 7  

 
CAREER AND COLLEGE DEPARTMENT 

California Department of Education 
A24-00033 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$81,000 
No Match 

Period: 7/1/23-6/30/25.  Description Law and Public Services Academy (0571) at C.K. McClatchy High 
School.  One-time grant award of $81,000. 
 
HOMELESS SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

California Department of Education 
A24-00036 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$77,069 
No Match 

Period: 7/1/23-6/30/24.  Description Education for Homeless Children and Youth.  One-time grant award 
of $77,069. 
 

 

EXPENDITURE AND OTHER AGREEMENTS 

Restricted Funds 

Contractor Description Amount 

FACILITIES DEPARTMENT 
 
Nacht & Lewis 
SA24-00321 
 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

10/5/23 – 12/31/25: Architectural and engineering services 
for the Fern Bacon Middle School Modernization and New 
School project. Project consists of a infrastructure 
stabilization, roof replacement, interior and exterior 
painting, site security fencing, flooring replacement, 
accessibility upgrades, HVAC replacement. 
 
Nacht & Lewis was selected for this project from the 
District’s pool of architects qualified through a Request for 
Qualification process on June 22, 2023. 
 

$2,105,614 
Measure H 

Funds 

   
Kitchell CEM 
SA24-00319 
 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

5/4/23 – 12/31/24: Project and construction management 
services for the C.K. McClatchy High School New School 
HVAC project.  Project consists of HVAC replacement at 
the campus. 
 
Kitchell CEM was selected for this project from the District’s 
pool of construction managers qualified through an RFQ 
process in December 2021. 
 

$185,680 
Measure Q 

Funds 

 
Kitchell CEM 
SA24-00320 
 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

5/4/23 – 12/31/24: Project and construction management 
services for the C.K. McClatchy High School New 
Softball/Baseball Field Improvements project.  Project 
consists of new softball and baseball fields. 
 
Kitchell CEM was selected for this project from the District’s 
pool of construction managers qualified through an RFQ 
process in December 2021. 

$248,600 
Measure H 

Funds 

   
  



 Page 3 of 7  

Olympic Land 
Construction 
R24-01779 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

Ratify irrigation repairs required at Parkway Elementary, 
James Marshall Elementary, Edward Kemble Elementary, 
Golden Empire Elementary, Pacific Elementary, Sutterville 
Elementary, Genevieve Didion, John Still k-8, California 
Middle. Albert Einstein Middle, New Tech High School, 
Sacramento High School.  

$132,191 
Ongoing 

Maintenance 
Funds 

   
   
ACADEMIC OFFICE DEPARTMENT 
 

 

Texthelp 
R24-01672 
 
New Contract: 
☐  Yes 
☒  No 

9/2023 – 9/2024: Approve renewal software subscription 
for math, reading and writing digital support tools for use by 
all students and staff. Includes access to all supported 
platforms including Windows, Mac, Google Chrome, Edge, 
iPad and Android. Helping students to improve 
comprehension skills and build engagement in learning.    

$143,993 
ESSER III Funds 

   
Nearpod 
R24-01284 
 
 
New Contract: 
☐  Yes 
☒  No 

9/1/23 – 8/31/24: Renewal subscription to Nearpod 
Premium Plus, Flocabulary Plus, and Nearpod’s 21st 
Century Readiness Program. Providing lessons, videos, 
activity and creation delivery platform with formative 
assessment and media features. Standards aligning k-12 
lessons across all core subjects, enabling teachers to 
assign lessons and activities and view results of 
assessments. 21st Century readiness program connects 
skill topics in Social & Emotional Learning, College & 
Career Readiness to help students thrive in the classroom.   

$265,752 
ESSER III Funds 

   
SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 
 

 

United College Action 
Network (U-CAN) 
SA24-00314 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

Implement the college admission preparation program 
designed to support high school students on a successful 
path to career and college attainment and graduation by 
assisting students individually and in small groups.  
Program will provide direct college and career support 
services to all interested and/or referred students at the 
following sites during the 2023-2024 school year: C.K. 
McClatchy, Hiram Johnson, John F. Kennedy, Luther 
Burbank, Rosemont and West Campus. 

$160,000 
ESSER III Funds 

   
SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 
 

 

Teachtown  
R24-01688 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

Approve K-12 pilot materials and professional 
development for special education that will offer students 
with moderate to severe disabilities equitable and inclusive 
access to the general education curriculum and the 
individualized interventions that support their success. A 
blend of computer-delivered and teacher-led applied 
behavior analysis (ABA) instruction to increase student’s 
vocabulary, listening skills, social-emotional development, 
independence, academics and cognitive skills. 

$109,968 
ESSER III Funds 

 

   
News 2 You (N2Y) 
Unique Learning 
Systems 
R24-00827 
 

8/4/23 – 8/3/24: Renewal subscription to allow students 
with moderate-severe needs differentiated content to learn 
within our self-contained classrooms (SCC) while adhering 
to standards. Unique Learning Systems (ULS) gives 
students access to the curriculum in a way that enables 

$147,329 
Special 

Education Funds 
 



 Page 4 of 7  

New Contract: 
☐  Yes 
☒  No 

them to demonstrate their knowledge according to their 
ability level. This was identified as a need while looking 
across the district for equal access points for curriculum 
and technology for students receiving special education 
services. Built in assessment tools and resource will 
provide insight into each learner as they grow. Extensive 
data gathered related to that growth will inform instruction 
and support our teachers in documenting mastery toward 
IEP goals and standards.  
 

   
Bluum 
R24-01099 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

Approve projectors and portable projector screens.to 
provide educational technology for special education 
students and staff that aids in regular and substantive 
educational interactions between students and their 
special education service providers and special education 
department staff and families. 
Action Item B21. 

$159,863 
ESSER III Funds 

 

   
CONSOLIDATED PROGRAMS DEPARTMENT 
 

 

Vision 2000 
SA24-00232 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

Develop, administer, maintain and sustain the 
tutoring/intervention program under ESSA/ESEA to eligible 
private school students during the 2023-24 school year. 
The primary purpose of the Vision 2000 Programming is to 
enhance academic skills and provide services to eligible 
students in private non-profit schools that are equitable to 
those provided district-wide. 
 
Contractor will work collaboratively with the District to 
develop, support, coordinate, and implement the Vision 
2000 Student Support Program. This collaboration is 
designed to assist academically low performing, eligible 
students who live in District Title I funded school 
attendance areas with literacy and numeracy development 
services designed to support increased academic 
achievement and provide opportunities for parents to 
actively participate in their children’s education 

$194,000 
Every Student 
Succeeds Act 
(ESSA), Title I 

Funds 
 

 
HEALTH SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 
Maxim Healthcare  
SA24-00225 
 
New Contract: 
☐  Yes 
☒  No 

7/1/23 – 6/30/24: Amendment No. 1 for Additional Nursing 
and staffing services for COVID-19 testing and contact 
tracing for all SCUSD staff and students. Action Item A1. 
 

$300,000 
ESSER III Funds 

 

 
Action Supportive 
Care  
SA24-00223 
 
New Contract: 
☐  Yes 
☒  No 

7/1/23 – 6/30/24: Amendment No. 1 for Additional Nursing 
and staffing services for COVID-19 testing and contact 
tracing for all SCUSD staff and students. Action Item A1. 
 

$550,000 
ESSER III Funds 

 

 



 Page 5 of 7  

Action Supportive 
Care  
SA24-00221 
 
New Contract: 
☐  Yes 
☒  No 

7/1/23 – 6/30/24: Additional Nursing and staffing. Provide 
direct healthcare services as prescribed by a licensed 
authorized healthcare provider to District students with 504 
accommodation(s) who require such services at student’s 
school of attendance.   
 

$350,000 
Medi-Cal Billing 

Option Funds 
 

 

 
Unrestricted Funds 

STRATEGY & CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT 
 
College Entrance 
Examination Board 
SA24-00338 
 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

7/1/23 – 6/30/24: College Board will furnish SCUSD with 
exams, products, licenses, services and/or materials.  This 
will include PSAT 8/9: materials for students; materials for 
SCUSD schools, reports for SCUSD; delivering SAT 
Practice Tools and Support.  
 

$208,690 
LCFF Funds 

   
 
 
APPROVAL OF DECLARED SURPLUS MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 

SITE/DEPT DESCRIPTION 
Caroline Wenzel ES 

Cesar Chavez Intermediate 
New Technology HS 

 

BACKGROUND: The Education Code regulates the procedures by 
which a school district can dispose of personal property. Education Code 
section 17546 provides that the governing board may, by unanimous 
vote, dispose of items valued at $2,500 or less by private sale without 
advertising, by selling the items at public auction, or if the board finds 
that the property is of insufficient value to defray the costs of arranging 
a sale, the property may be donated to a charitable organization 
deemed appropriate by the board, or it may be disposed of in the local 
public dump. The District has held previous auctions, but they have 
generally cost more than they have netted for the District. 

 
STATUS: The District has determined these items are not repairable 
nor usable. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Education 
approve the salvage of the listed items per Education Code section 17546 
 
 

ITEMS 
Chromebooks (157 each) 

Macbooks (249 each) 
Computers (35 each) 

Smartboards (12 each) 
Projectors (1 each) 
Printers (5 each) 
Radio (1 each) 

 
 

TOTAL VALUE 
$0.00 

DISPOSAL METHOD 
E-Waste  

 
  



 Page 6 of 7  

 
RECOMMENDED BID AWARDS – PURCHASING 

Bid No:    24-1019 Wheelchair Accessible Vans 
  
Bids Received: 11:00 am, September 18, 2023 
 
Recommendation: Award to Model 1 Commercial Vehicles 
 
Amount/Funding: $485,207.75 / ESSER III Funds 
 
BIDDER BIDDER LOCATION      AMOUNT   

 
Model 1 Commercial Vehicles Chino, CA $485,207.75 
   

 
Rationale: Bid 24-1019 was publicly posted on August 18th and on August 25th in the Daily Recorder.  
By the closing date, September 18, 2023, one (1) bid was received. The bid specifications were drafted in 
accordance to meet ADA standards for the safe transport of wheelchair passengers. The District 
recommends the award of wheelchair accessible vans for the Transportation Services department. 
  
California Federal Regulation § 2414.408-70 states when only one bid is received in response to an 
invitation for bids, such bid may be considered and accepted if the Contracting Officer makes a written 
determination that: (a) The specifications were clear and not unduly restrictive; (b) adequate competition 
was solicited and it could have been reasonably assumed that more than one bid would have been 
submitted; (c) the price is reasonable; and (d) the bid is otherwise in accordance with the invitation for 
bids. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED BID AWARDS – FACILITIES 

 
Bid No:    0510-433, CKM CCTV Cameras 
  
Bids received: 1:00 pm, July 27, 2023 

Recommendation: Retract Award to Johnson Controls, Approved August 17, 2023 

                                          Award to 3D Technology (Second Lowest Bidder)   

 

Funding Source:  Measure Q Funds 

BIDDER BIDDER LOCATION AMOUNT 
   
Johnson Controls Sacramento, CA $153,978 
3D Technology Rancho Cordova, CA $214,726 
Precision Communications West Sacramento, CA $215,425 
HCI Systems Sacramento, CA $215,600 
Bockmon & Woody Stockton, CA $320,182 
   

 
Rationale: Johnson Controls failed to timely request relief Pursuant to California Public Contract Code 
5100 et seq. and refused to execute contract within ten (10) days following Notice of Award, issued on 
August 10, 2023. On September 5, 2023, Johnson Controls issued electronic correspondence to the 
District requesting withdrawal of its bid on the project. As provided in Public Contract Code section 5106, 
the public entity may award the contract to the second lowest bidder.    
 



 Page 7 of 7  

NOTICES OF COMPLETION – FACILITIES PROJECTS 

Contract work is complete and Notices of Completion may be executed. 

Contractor Project Completion Date 
   
Swinerton Builders Albert Einstein/ Fern Bacon/ John Still ES 

Gym HVAC Replacement 
 

8/31/23 

Landmark Construction John F. Kennedy C-Wing HVAC 
Replacement 
 

8/31/23 

John F. Otto dba Otto 
Construction 
 

Miwok Gym HVAC Replacement 8/31/23 

CORE Construction Umoja HVAC Replacement 8/31/23 
 

 



6.1.22 

 
INTERNSHIP MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

UNIVERSITY OF PHOENIX – California 
 
The University of Phoenix Internship Program is a California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CCTC) 
approved program for the Multiple and Single Subject Credentials.  The Internship Credential has the same 
legal status as the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CCTC) Preliminary Credential, except 
that it is only valid in one school district or consortium.  For this reason, interns must have a contract before a 
credential can be issued.  Each intern candidate will work under the direct and continuing supervision of a 
University of Phoenix Intern Supervisor and Employer Mentor who provides general support at the classroom 
level of the Intern’s Employer.  
 
The University of Phoenix and employing district will provide each participating intern with a copy of this 
Internship Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for acknowledgement regarding their placement pursuant 
to this MOU.  
 
 
Preconditions Established by State Law for Internship Programs 
 
For initial and continuing accreditation by the Committee on Accreditation, participating districts and 
universities adhere to the following requirements of state law. 
 

(1) Bachelor’s Degree Requirement.  Candidates admitted to internship programs hold a baccalaureate 
degree or higher from a regionally accredited institution of higher education in accordance with Education 
Code Section 44453. 
 

(2) Subject Matter Requirement.  Each Multiple Subject intern admitted into the program passed the 
Commission-approved subject matter examination(s) for the subject area(s) in which the Intern is 
authorized to teach, and each Single Subject intern admitted into the program passed the Commission-
approved subject matter examination(s) for the subject areas in which the intern is authorized to teach. 
Education Code Sections 44325(c) (3). 

 
(3) Pre-Service Requirement.  Each Multiple and Single Subject Internship program includes a minimum of 

120 clock hours (or the semester or quarter unit equivalent) pre-service component which includes 
foundational preparation in general pedagogy including classroom management and planning, 
reading/language arts, subject specific pedagogy, human development, and teaching English learners. 

    
(4) Professional Development Plan.  The employing district has developed and implemented a Professional 

Development Plan for interns in consultation with University of Phoenix’s Commission-approved program 
of teacher preparation.  The plan includes all of the following: 

 
a. Provisions for an annual evaluation of the intern. 
b. A description of the courses to be completed by the intern, if any, and a plan for the completion 

of pre-service or other clinical training, if any, including student teaching. 



6.1.22 

c. Additional instruction during the first semester of service, for interns teaching in kindergarten 
or grades 1 to 6 inclusive, in child development and teaching methods, and special education 
programs for pupils with mild and moderate disabilities.  

 
(5) Supervision of Interns 

a. The participating institution, University of Phoenix, in partnership with the employing district 
provides 144 hours of support and supervision annually and 45 hours of support and 
supervision specific to teaching English learners pursuant to California Code of Regulations 
§80033. 

 
b. No intern’s salary may be reduced by more than 1/8 of its total to pay for supervision, and the 

salary of the intern shall not be less than the minimum base salary paid to a regularly 
certificated person.  If the intern’s salary is reduced, no more than eight interns may be advised 
by one district support person in accordance with Education Code Section 44462. University 
of Phoenix describes the procedures used in assigning supervisors and, where applicable, the 
system used to pay for supervision. 

 
(6) Assignment and Authorization.  To receive approval, the participating institution, University of Phoenix, 

authorizes the candidates in an internship program to assume the functions that are authorized by the 
regular standard credential in accordance with Education Code Section 44454.  The institution, University 
of Phoenix, stipulates that the intern’s services meet the instructional or service needs of the participating 
district(s) in accordance with Education Code Section 44458. 
 

(7) Participating Districts.  Participating districts are public school districts or county offices of education.  
Submissions for approval must identify the specific districts involved and the specific credential involved 
in accordance with Education Code Sections 44321 and 44452. 

 
(8) Early Completion Option. Each multiple and single subject intern program must make available to 

candidates who qualify for the option the opportunity to choose an early program completion option, 
culminating in a five-year preliminary teaching credential. This option must be made available to interns 
who meet the following requirements:  

a. Pass a written assessment adopted by the commission that assesses knowledge of teaching 
foundations as well as the following: 
• Human development as it relates to teaching and learning aligned with the state content 

and performance standards for K-12 students  
• Techniques to address learning differences, including working with students with special 

needs 
• Techniques to address working with English learners to provide access to the curriculum 
• Reading instruction in accordance with state standards 
• Assessment of student progress based on the state content and performance standards 
• Classroom management techniques 
• Methods of teaching the subject fields 

b. Pass the teaching performance assessment. This assessment may be taken only one time by an 
intern participating in the early completion option. 

c. Pass the Reading Instruction Competence Assessment (RICA) (Multiple Subject Credential 
only). 

d. Meet the requirements for teacher fitness.  
 

https://www.ctcexams.nesinc.com/TestView.aspx?f=HTML_FRAG/CA_RICA_Written_TestPage.html


6.1.22 

An intern who chooses the early completion option but is not successful in passing the assessment may 
complete his or her full internship program. (Reference: Education Code Section 44468). 

 
(9) Length and Validity of the Intern Certificate.  Each intern certificate will be valid for a period of two 

years. However, a certificate may be valid for three years if the intern is participating in a program leading 
to the attainment of a specialist credential to teach students, or for four years if the intern is participating 
in a district intern program leading to the attainment of both a multiple subject or a single subject teaching 
credential and a specialist credential to teach students with mild/moderate disabilities in accordance with 
Education Code Section 44325 (b). 
 

(10) Non-Displacement of Certificated Employees.  The institution, University of Phoenix, and participating 
district certify that interns do not displace qualified, certificated employees in participating districts.  
 

(11) Justification of Internship Program. When an institution submits a program for initial or continuing 
accreditation, the institution must explain why the internship is being implemented. Programs that are 
developed to meet employment shortages must include a statement from the participating district(s) about 
the availability of qualified certificated persons holding the credential. The exclusive representative of 
certificated employees in the credential area (when applicable) is encouraged to submit a written statement 
to the Committee on Accreditation agreeing or disagreeing with the justification that is submitted. 

 
 
The University Intern Expectations 
Participating interns must be made aware of and agree to adhere to the following.  

(1) All interns must obtain an approved teaching contract.  
 
(2) Each intern must hold a CA Intern Credential. 
 
(3) Interns must assume full teaching and legal responsibility for their assigned classroom pursuant to their 

teaching contract from the first day of the teaching assignment as a paid employee of the School District 
for at least one academic semester. 

 
(4) Interns will receive standard salary and benefits based on the assigned School District’s current policies. 

The intern may be assigned to extracurricular activities, department and/or faculty meetings proportionate 
to the teaching load of a regular contractual teacher and agrees to attend department and faculty meetings 
and parent-teacher conferences as assigned by the school administration.   

 
(5) Interns are expected to attend all school and district in-service training sessions whenever possible.   

 
(6) Interns agree to attend assigned District and School orientations that occur prior to the start of the school.   

 
(7) Interns are responsible for maintaining up-to-date records of course plans, lesson plans, and unit plans to 

meet the needs of all students.  The intern is expected to:   
a. make preparations to accomplish their teaching responsibilities outside the classroom, which 

includes and is not limited to development of lesson plans for all students 
b. abide by the policies of the school and district  
c. meet administrative due dates  
d. communicate with parents by letter, phone, and/or conference when necessary  
e. maintain prompt and regular attendance  
f. maintain a grade book according to the requirements of the school 



6.1.22 

g. conference with the University Supervisor and Mentor to discuss progress and receive 
feedback about their teaching performance  

h. maintain classroom control and management of all students   
i. provide proper supervision of the students  
j. complete the University of Phoenix Progression Requirements for its Master of Arts/Teacher 

Education Program through continuous enrollment  
k. meet all requirements of the CA TK-12 state standards 

(9) Acknowledge that they have received a copy of this MOU and agree to the terms set forth herein.  
 
 
The Intern’s University Supervisor Expectations 

(1) Provide a University of Phoenix Intern Supervisor with the following qualifications: 
a. Five (5) years or more K-12 experience 
b. EL Authorization 
c. CLEAR or Life teaching credential 

 
(2) Complete annual university training in supervision, assessment, academic standards and framework. 
 
(3) Conduct University Internship Orientation with the intern and mentor prior to assuming responsibilities. 
 
(4) Model professional practices in teaching and learning, including Valuing Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion; 

Collaborating with Educational Communities; Integrating Technology; Engaging in Reflective Practice; 
Leading through Innovative Practices; Practicing Professional Ethics; and Advocate for Learning. 

 
(5) Provide supervision and in-classroom coaching specific to the needs of English learners.   
 
(6) Communicate with the assigned mentor to offer support to the intern, including sharing of documentation 

and monitoring of the Intern.  
 
(7) Provide five (5) hours per month advice and assistance, including in-class observations, evaluations, and 

coaching as outlined in the Support and Supervision document. 
 
(8) Establish communication procedures with mentor and intern.  
 
(9) Annual review of the intern. 

 
 

The Intern’s Employer Expectations  
(1) Assign a district/school mentor to the intern to provide support throughout the Internship. 

 
(2) The mentor will serve as an on-site guide, who observes the intern, and provides substantive feedback as 

outlined in Intern Support and Supervision document.  
 

(3) The mentor qualifications are Master’s degree preferred, a minimum of five (5) years teaching experience 
and hold a CLEAR or LIFE credential in the appropriate subject, and hold an EL Authorization.  
 

(4) Provide written verification of intern’s position, including a letter of intent to hire and a copy of the official 
teaching contract. 
 



6.1.22 

(5) Provide sufficient classroom resources, including the use of technology. 
 

(6) Communicate with University of Phoenix and the faculty supervisor to offer support to the intern. 
 

(7) Provide seventy-two (72) hours of support per intern per semester with a minimum of two (2) hours of 
support every five (5) instructional days, including coaching and in-class assistance working with English 
Language Leaners, including lesson planning, assessment of language needs and progress, and resource 
support options.  
 

(8) Provide opportunities and resources for professional development, including an intern professional 
development plan as outlined in Precondition #4 above. 

 
(9) Annual review of the intern in conjunction with the University Intern Supervisor. 

 
 
We, the Sacramento City Unified School District, Charter School, or County Office of Education agree to all of 
the conditions of this Internship Memorandum of Understanding as specified above, to be effective on July 1, 
2023, and continue until June 30, 2026, unless otherwise terminated in writing by either party with a 60 day 
prior notice. 
 
 
 
University of Phoenix Representatives   District, Consortium, or County  

Office of Education Representative 
 
 
               
Signature of College of Education Dean (or Designee)  Signature          
       
  
        Jesse Castillo, Assistant Superintendent   
Print name with Title      Print name with Title 
 
 
        Sacramento City USD     
Signature of Credential Analyst     Organization   
 
 
               
Print name with Title      CDS Code 
 
 
4035 S. Riverpoint Parkway, Phoenix, AZ 85040   5735 47th Avenue, Sacramento CA  95824  
Address         Address  
        
        (916) 643-7400      
Phone        Phone 
 
               
Date        Date 
 



6.1.22 

 
UOPX Intern Candidate      
 
               
Signature of Intern       Intern Address 
 
               
Intern printed name      Intern Phone 
 
___________________________________________   
Date 



Jesse Castillo Asst Superintendent of Business Serv

jesse-m-castillo@scusd.edu (916) 643-9055



Jesse Castillo Asst Superintendent of Business Serv

jesse-m-castillo@scusd.edu (916) 643-9055



Jesse Castillo Asst Superintendent of Business Serv

jesse-m-castillo@scusd.edu (916) 643-9055



Jesse Castillo Asst Superintendent of Business Serv

jesse-m-castillo@scusd.edu (916) 643-9055



Jesse Castillo Asst Superintendent of Business Serv

jesse-m-castillo@scusd.edu (916) 643-9055



Jesse Castillo Asst Superintendent of Business Serv

jesse-m-castillo@scusd.edu (916) 643-9055



Jesse Castillo Asst Superintendent of Business Serv

jesse-m-castillo@scusd.edu (916) 643-9055





 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agreement for Architectural Services 

between 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

and 

Nacht & Lewis Architects, Inc. 

for  

Architectural Services 

 
 

Fern Bacon Middle School Modernization and New 
School Construction 

 
 

Dated: October 5, 2023 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page i 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Article 1  Definitions ................................................................................................................................................. 1 

Article 2  Scope, Responsibilities and Services of Architect ...................................................................... 3 

Article 3  Architect Staff .......................................................................................................................................... 7 

Article 4  Schedule of Services ............................................................................................................................. 9 

Article 5  Construction Cost Budget ................................................................................................................... 9 

Article 6  Fee and Method of Payment .......................................................................................................... 10 

Article 7  Payment for Extra Services or Changes ...................................................................................... 11 

Article 8  Ownership of Data .............................................................................................................................. 11 

Article 9  Termination of Contract ................................................................................................................... 13 

Article 10 Indemnity / Architect Liability ........................................................................................................ 15 

Article 11 Fingerprinting and Conduct on Project Site ............................................................................. 16 

Article 12 Responsibilities of the District ........................................................................................................ 16 

Article 13 Liability of District ............................................................................................................................... 17 

Article 14 Nondiscrimination .............................................................................................................................. 17 

Article 15 Insurance ................................................................................................................................................ 17 

Article 16 Covenant against Contingent Fees .............................................................................................. 17 

Article 17 Entire Agreement/Modification ..................................................................................................... 18 

Article 18 Non-Assignment of Agreement .................................................................................................... 18 

Article 19 Law, Venue ............................................................................................................................................. 18 

Article 20 Alternative Dispute Resolution ...................................................................................................... 19 

Article 21 Tolling of Claims .................................................................................................................................. 19 

Article 22 Attorneys’ Fees ..................................................................................................................................... 19 

Article 23 Severability ............................................................................................................................................ 20 

Article 24 Employment Status ............................................................................................................................ 20 

Article 25 Certificate of Architect ...................................................................................................................... 21 

Article 26 Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports ............................................................... 21 

Article 27 Notice & Communications .............................................................................................................. 22 

Article 28 Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Participation ............................................................... 22 

Article 29 District’s Right to Audit ..................................................................................................................... 22 

Article 30 Other Provisions .................................................................................................................................. 23 

Article 31 Exhibits ”A” through "H" ................................................................................................................... 24 

  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page ii 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

EXHIBIT “A” – RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT A-1 
EXHIBIT “B” – CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES B-1 
EXHIBIT “C” – SCHEDULE OF SERVICES C-1 
EXHIBIT “D” – PAYMENT SCHEDULE D-1 
EXHIBIT “E” – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS E-1 
EXHIBIT “F” – IRAN CONTRACTING ACT CERTIFICATION  F-1 
 
 
 
 
   



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 1 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

 This Agreement for Architectural Services is made as of October 5, 2023, between the 
Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district (“District”), and Nacht & 
Lewis (“Architect”) (collectively “Parties”), for the following project (“Project”):  

Fern Bacon Middle School Modernization and New Construction 

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties hereto 
agree as follows: 

Article 1. Definitions 

1.1. In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions of words or 
phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits: 

1.1.1. Agreement:  The Agreement consists exclusively of this 
document and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated 
by reference. 

1.1.2. Architect:  The Architect identified in the first paragraph of this 
Agreement, including all Consultants to the Architect.  The term 
Architect means the Design Professional in General Responsible 
Charge on this Project. 

1.1.3. As-Built Drawings (“As-Builts”):  Any document prepared and 
submitted by District’s Contractor(s) that details on a 
Conforming Set, the actual construction performed during the 
Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change 
Documents and change orders, and detailed by the District’s 
construction contractor(s) on a Conforming Set.   

1.1.4. Bid Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of 
the Construction Documents Phase that the Division of the State 
Architect (“DSA”) has approved and that the District can use to 
go out to bid for construction of the Project. 

1.1.5. Conforming Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the 
end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, 
issued during the Bidding Phase.  The Architect shall ensure that 
DSA has approved all revisions to the Bid Set that are 
incorporated onto the Conforming Set and for which DSA 
approval is required. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 2 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

1.1.6. Construction Budget:  The total amount of funds indicated by 
the District for the entire Project plus all other costs, including 
design, construction, administration, and financing. 

1.1.7. Construction Change Documents (“CCD”):  The 
documentation of changes to the DSA-approved construction 
documents. 

1.1.8. Construction Cost Budget: The total cost to District of all 
elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect, 
as adjusted at the end of each design phase in accordance with 
this Agreement.  The Construction Cost Budget does not include 
the compensation of the Architect and the Architect’s 
Consultants, the cost of land, rights-of-way, financing or other 
costs which are the responsibility of the District, including 
construction management. 

1.1.9. Construction Manager:  The District’s representative on the 
Project if the District retains a construction manager, project 
manager, or owner’s representative. 

1.1.10. Contractor:  One or more licensed contractors under contract 
with the District for construction of all or a portion of the Project. 

1.1.11. Consultant(s):  Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), 
subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the Architect. 

1.1.12. District:  The Sacramento City Unified School District.  

1.1.13. DSA:  The Division of the State Architect. 

1.1.14. Extra Services:  District-authorized services outside of the 
scope in Exhibit “A” or District-authorized reimbursable not 
included in Architect’s Fee. 

1.1.15. Laboratory of Record: The District-designated laboratory(ies) 
for testing of concrete, soils, materials, and other required 
testing. 

1.1.16. Project:  Fern Bacon Middle School located at 4140 Cuny 
Avenue, Sacramento CA  95823. 

1.1.17. Record Drawings:  A final set of drawings prepared by the 
Architect that incorporates all changes from all As-Builts, 
sketches, details, and clarifications.  This includes a “1A” sheet. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 3 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

1.1.18. Service(s):  All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and 
work that the Architect is required to perform and that are 
required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and 
that are necessary for the design and completion of the Project.  

1.1.19. Visually Verify: To verify to the fullest extent possible by 
physical inspection and reasonable investigation and without 
any destructive action. 

Article 2. Scope, Responsibilities, and Services of Architect 

2.1. Architect shall render the Services described in Exhibit “A,” commencing 
with receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District 
representative.  Architect’s Services will be completed in accordance with 
the schedule attached as Exhibit “C.” 

2.2. Architect and its Consultants shall provide Services for the Project (i) using 
its professional skill and judgment; (ii) acting with due care and in 
accordance with respective applicable standards of care under California 
law for those providing similar services for projects the size, scope and 
complexity of the Project for California school districts in or around the 
same geographic area of the District; (iii) the terms of this Agreement; and 
(iv) in accordance with said standards regarding application and 
interpretation of applicable law, code, rule or regulation at the time the 
Services are rendered (“Standard of Care”). All persons providing 
professional services hereunder shall be properly licensed as required by 
California law. 

2.3. The District intends to award the Project to Contractor(s) pursuant to a 
competitive bid process.  District reserves its right to use alternative delivery 
methods and the Architect’s scope of work may be adjusted accordingly. 

2.4. Architect acknowledges that all California public school districts are 
obligated to develop and implement the following storm water 
requirements for the discharge of storm water to surface waters from its 
construction and land disturbance activities where the project disturbs one 
(1) or more acres of land and is not part of a larger common plan of 
development or sale, the project disturbs one acre or more of land, or the 
project disturbs less than one (1) acre of land but is part of a larger common 
plan of development or sale, or where the District engages in maintenance 
(e.g., fueling, cleaning, repairing) or transportation activities. 

2.4.1. Architect shall provide the design for the Project, without limitation: 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 4 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

2.4.1.1. A municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (“MS4”).  An MS4 
is a system of conveyances used to collect and/or convey 
storm water, including, without limitation, catch basins, 
curbs, gutters, ditches, man-made channels, and storm 
drains. 

2.4.1.2. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (“SWPPP”) that 
contains specific best management practices (“BMPs”) and 
establishes numeric effluent limitations. 

2.4.2. Architect shall conform its design work to the District’s storm water 
requirements indicated above, that are approved by the District and 
applicable to the Project, at no additional cost to the District.  In 
addition, as required Architect shall develop a grading and drainage 
plan and a site plan from architectural information showing a final 
development of the site.  This drawing will also include a horizontal 
and vertical control plan and a utility infrastructure plan.  The 
Services described in this subparagraph shall be provided by a 
professional civil engineer who contracts with or is an employee of 
the Architect.   

2.5. Architect shall contract for or employ at Architect’s expense, Consultant(s) 
to the extent deemed necessary for completion of the Project including, 
but not limited to: architects; mechanical, electrical, structural and civil 
engineers; landscapers; and interior designers, licensed as such by the State 
of California as part of the Basic Services under this Agreement.  The names 
of Consultant(s) shall be submitted to the District for approval prior to 
commencement of Services, as indicated below.  The District reserves the 
right to reject Architect’s use of any particular Consultant.  Nothing in the 
foregoing procedure shall create any contractual relationship between the 
District and any Consultant employed by the Architect under terms of the 
Agreement.  Architect shall require each of the Consultants retained by it 
to execute agreements with standard of care and indemnity provisions 
commensurate with this Agreement, but Architect shall remain solely 
responsible and liable to District for all matters covered by this Agreement. 

2.6. Architect shall coordinate with District personnel or its designated 
representatives as may be requested and desirable, including with other 
professionals employed by the District for the design, coordination or 
management of other work related to the Project.  This shall include, 
without limitation, coordination with State labor compliance, if any.  If the 
Architect employs Consultant(s), the Architect shall ensure that its 
contract(s) with its Consultant(s) include language notifying the 
Consultant(s) of State labor compliance, if any. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 5 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

2.7. Architect shall identify the regulatory agencies that have jurisdiction over 
essential building and design elements and coordinate with and implement 
the requirements of the regulatory agencies, including, without limitation, 
the California Department of Education, the Office of Public School 
Construction, the Department of General Services, DSA, including DSA 
Fire/Life Safety, DSA Access Compliance Section, DSA Structural Safety 
Section, the State Fire Marshal and any regulatory office or agency that has 
authority for review and supervision of school district construction projects. 

2.7.1. If the Project is subject to DSA jurisdiction, then Architect, and its 
Consultants, if any, shall comply with all the DSA requirements, 
including without limitation, all the requirements included and/or 
referenced in the following forms, bulletins (“BU”), interpretations 
of regulations (“IR”), policies (“PL”), or procedures (“PR”): 

2.7.1.1. DSA IR A-6, Construction Change Document Submittal 
and Approval Process. 

2.7.1.2. DSA IR A-18, Use of Construction Documents Prepared by 
Other Professionals. 

2.7.1.3. DSA IR A-24, Construction Phase Duties of the School 
District, Contractor and Design Professional. 

2.7.1.4. DSA PR 07-01: Pre-Check Approval Process.  

2.7.1.5. DSA PR 07-02:  Over-The-Counter Review of Projects 
Using Pre-Check Approved Design.   

2.7.1.6. DSA PR 18-04.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Design 
Professionals of Record Using Bluebeam 2018. 

2.7.1.7. DSA PR 18-09.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Over-the-
Counter (“OTC”) Projects Using Bluebeam 2018. 

2.7.1.8. Form DSA PR 13-01, Construction Oversight Process. 

2.7.1.8.1. Each of Architect’s duties as provided in the 
DIR Construction Oversight Process shall be 
performed timely so as not to result in any 
delay to the Project. 

2.7.1.9. Form DSA PR 13-02, Project Certification Process. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 6 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

2.7.2. Notwithstanding the DSA forms, BUs, IRs, PLs, or PRs referenced 
anywhere in this Agreement, each of which is current as of the 
Effective Date, all Projects subject to DSA’s jurisdiction shall be 
submitted for review, back check, and approval, under the electronic 
plan review process (“EPR process”), rather than paper submission, 
for all projects submitted to DSA.  Architect, and its Consultants, if 
any, shall comply with the EPR process and related DSA procedures, 
including, without limitation, DSA PR 18-04.BB18 and DSA PR 18-
09.BB18, and any subsequent or replacement procedures relating 
to the EPR process promulgated by DSA. Any reference herein to a 
particular DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, shall mean and include the 
then-current DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, respectively, and, to the 
extent that the EPR process has superseded such form or paper 
submission process, the EPR process then in effect shall control. 

2.8. Architect shall provide Services as required to obtain any local, state and/or 
federal agencies’ approval for on-site and off-site work related to the 
Project including review by regulatory agencies having jurisdiction over the 
Project. 

2.9. Architect shall coordinate the work of the District’s DSA project inspector(s) 
(“Project Inspector(s)”) and the Laboratory of Record.  Architect shall 
provide code required supervision of special inspectors not provided by the 
Laboratory of Record. 

2.10. Architect shall give efficient supervision to Services, using its professional 
skill and attention.  Architect shall carefully study and compare all contract 
documents, drawings, specifications, and other instructions (“Contract 
Documents”) and shall at once report to District, Construction Manager, 
and Contractor, any error, inconsistency, or omission that Architect or its 
employees may discover, in writing, with a copy to District's Project 
Inspector(s).  Architect shall have responsibility for discovery of errors, 
inconsistencies, or omissions in its own Contract Documents and that of its 
Sub consultants, but shall have no responsibility for District hired 
consultants. 

2.11. Architect recognizes that the District may obtain the services of a 
Construction Manager and that Architect may have to assume certain 
coordination and management responsibilities, including tracking Requests 
for Information (“RFI”), providing RFI responses, and leading all 
coordination meetings between the District, Project Inspectors, and 
Contractors on the Project.  The District reserves the right to retain the 
services of a Construction Manager at any time.  The Construction Manager, 
if any, shall be authorized to give Architect Services authorizations and 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 7 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

issue written approvals and notices to proceed on behalf of District.  The 
District reserves the right to designate a different Construction Manager at 
any time.  Any task, including, but not limited to, reviews or approvals that 
the District may perform pursuant to this Agreement may be performed by 
the Construction Manager, unless that task indicates it shall be performed 
by the Governing Board of the District.  In addition, the District may have a 
constructability review of Architect’s design documents.  Architect shall 
conform any design documents to the constructability review as part of the 
Services under this Agreement and shall not be entitled to any 
compensation as Extra Services for this activity. 

2.12. Architect shall provide computer-generated pictures downloaded to 
computer files, updated as requested by the District, that the District may 
use on its website. 

2.13. As part of the basic Services pursuant to this Agreement, Architect is not 
responsible for: 

2.13.1.    Ground contamination or hazardous material analysis.  

2.13.2. Any asbestos and/or lead testing, design or abatement; however, 
it shall coordinate and integrate its work with any such 
information provided by District. 

2.13.3. Compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”), except that Architect agrees to coordinate its work with 
that of any CEQA consultants retained by the District, to provide 
current elevations and schematic drawings for use in CEQA 
compliance documents, and to incorporate any mitigation 
measures adopted by the District into the Project design at no 
additional cost to the District.   

2.13.4. Historical significance report.  

2.13.5. Soils investigation. 

2.13.6. Geotechnical hazard report, except as indicated in Exhibit “A.” 

2.13.7. Topographic surveys of existing conditions 

2.13.8. State and Local agency fees. 

2.13.9. Testing and inspection 

Article 3. Architect Staff 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 8 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

3.1. Architect has been selected to perform the Services herein because of the 
skills and expertise of key individuals. 

3.2. Architect agrees that the following key people in Architect’s firm shall be 
associated with the Project in the following capacities:  

Principal In Charge: Brian Maytum 

Project Director: Brian Maytum 

Project Architect(s): Chris Flatt 

  

Major Consultants: 

Electrical:   Capital Engineering Consultants 

Low Voltage/Fire Alarm: KMM Services 

Mechanical/Plumbing:  Capital Engineering Consultants 

Landscaping:   MTW Group 

Structural:   Buehler Structural Engineers 

Civil:    Warren Consulting Engineers 

Cost Estimating:    Sierra West 

3.3. Architect shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without 
prior written approval by the District, unless said personnel cease to be 
employed by Architect.  In either case, the District shall be allowed to 
interview and approve replacement personnel.  

3.4. If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of 
the District, then upon written notice Architect shall have five (5) calendar 
days to remove that person from the Project and replace that person with 
one acceptable to the District.  All lead or key personnel for any Consultant 
must also be designated by the Consultant and are subject to all conditions 
stated in this paragraph. 

3.5. Architect represents that Architect has no existing interest and will not 
acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner 
or degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement 
and that no person having any such interest shall be employed by Architect. 

3.6. Architect shall comply with Education Code section 17302(a) and agrees 
that any plans and/or specifications included in the Services shall be 
prepared under the supervision of licensed personnel, and that licensed 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 9 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

personnel shall be in “responsible charge” of persons who observe the 
construction. 

 

Article 4. Schedule of Services 

Architect shall commence Services under this Agreement upon receipt of a written 
Notice to Proceed and shall prosecute the Services diligently as described in 
Exhibit “A,” so as to proceed with and complete the Services in compliance with 
the schedule in Exhibit “C.”  Time is of the essence and failure of Architect to 
perform Services on time as specified in this Agreement is a material breach of this 
Agreement.  It shall not be a material breach if a delay is beyond the Architect’s or 
its Consultant(s)’ reasonable control. 

Article 5. Construction Cost Budget 

5.1. Architect hereby accepts the District’s established Construction Cost 
Budget and Project scope.  In accordance with Exhibit “A,” the Architect 
shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the 
Construction Cost Budget for the District at the beginning of the Project 
and at the completion of each design phase.  The District and Construction 
Manager shall also have responsibility to develop, review, and reconcile the 
Construction Cost Budget with the Architect. 

5.2. Architect shall complete all Services as described in Exhibit “A,” including 
all plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other Contract Documents, 
so that the cost to construct the work designed by the Architect will not 
exceed the Construction Cost Budget, as adjusted subsequently with the 
District’s written approval.  Architect shall maintain cost controls 
throughout the Project to deliver the Project within the Construction Cost 
Budget.   

5.3. The District may, in its sole discretion, do one, or a combination, of the 
following if any of the events in Article 5.4 occur: 

5.3.1. Give Architect written approval on an agreed adjustment to the 
Construction Cost Budget. 

5.3.2. Authorize Architect to re-negotiate, when appropriate, and/or re-
bid the Project within three (3) months’ time of receipt of bids 
(exclusive of District and other agencies’ review time) at no 
additional cost to the District. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 10 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

5.3.3. Terminate this Agreement if the Project is abandoned by the 
District, without further obligation by either party. 

5.3.4. Within three (3) months’ time of receipt of bids, instruct Architect 
to revise the drawings and specifications (in scope and quality as 
approved by the District) to bring the Project within the 
Construction Cost Budget for re-bidding at no additional cost to the 
District.   

5.4. If any of the following events occur, the District may exercise any one, or 
any combination, of the actions set forth in Article 5.3 above: 

5.4.1. The lowest responsive base bid received is in excess of five percent 
(5%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or  

5.4.2. If the combined total of base bid and all additive alternates come in 
ten percent (10%) or more under the Construction Cost Budget; or  

5.4.3. If the Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to 
the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes 
in the condition of the construction market in the county in which 
the District is located, in so far as these have not been caused by 
Acts of God, earthquakes, strikes, war, or energy shortages due to 
uncontrollable events in the world economy. 

Article 6. Fee and Method of Payment 

6.1. The District shall pay Architect for all Services contracted for under this 
Agreement an amount equal to the following (“Fee”): 

A fixed fee amount of $3,600,000. The fee represents 6% of the 
proposed construction value of $60,000,000.00 million.  At the 
completion of Schematic Design phase, a one-time fee 
reconciliation to a final, confirmed construction cost shall occur. 

Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic 
and Additional Services and will be billed at a multiple of 1.10% 
the expenses incurred. These charges include, but are not limited 
to, expenses incurred which are directly related to the Project, such 
as reproductions, plans and plots for owner, agency or contractor’s 
use, standard form documents, postage, handling and delivery of 
Instruments of Service, and mileage. Reimbursable expenses are 
not expected to exceed $180,000.  All reimbursable expenses 
must be pre-approved by District. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 11 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

6.2. The District shall pay Architect the Fee pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit 
“D.” 

6.3. Architect shall bill for performance of Services under this Agreement in 
accordance with Exhibit “D.”  

6.4. No increase in Fee will be due from CCDs and/or change orders generated 
during the construction period to the extent caused by Architect’s error or 
omission.   

6.5. The Architect’s Fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation 
for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof as 
indicated in Exhibit “D.” 

6.6. Regardless of the structure of Architect’s Fee, the Architect’s Fee may be 
adjusted downward if the Scope of Services of this Agreement is reduced 
by the District in accordance with this Agreement. 

6.7. Neither the District’s review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the 
Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a 
waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable 
to the District in accordance with this Agreement for direct damages to the 
District caused by Architect’s failure to perform any of the Services 
furnished under this Agreement to the standard of care under California 
law for architects performing similar work for California school districts in 
or around the same geographic area as the District. 

Article 7. Payment for Extra Services or Changes 

Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in Exhibit 
“B” only upon certification that the claimed Extra Service was authorized as 
indicated herein and that the Extra Services have been satisfactorily completed.  If 
any service is done by Architect without prior written authorization by the 
Construction Manager or the District’s authorized representative, the District will 
not be obligated to pay for such service.  The foregoing provision notwithstanding, 
Architect will be paid by the District as described in Exhibit “B” for Extra Services 
that the Construction Manager or the District’s authorized representative verbally 
requests, provided that Architect confirms such request in writing pursuant to the 
notice requirements of this Agreement, and proceeds with such Extra Services not 
earlier than two (2) business days after the District receives confirmation of the 
request from the Architect. 

Article 8. Ownership of Data 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 12 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

8.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 17316, this Agreement creates a non-
exclusive and perpetual license for the District to use, at its discretion, all 
plans including, but not limited to, record drawings, specifications, 
estimates and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or 
cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.  

8.2. Architect retains all rights to all copyrights over designs and other 
intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, 
estimates, and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare 
or cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.  

8.3. Architect shall perform the Services and prepare all documents under this 
Agreement with the assistance of Computer Aided Design Drafting 
Technology (“CADD”) (e.g., AutoCAD).  Architect shall deliver to District all 
drawings in DWG format.  As to any drawings that Architect provides in a 
CADD file format, the District acknowledges that anomalies and errors may 
be introduced into data when it is transferred or used in a computer 
environment, and that the District should rely on hard copies of all 
documents. 

8.4. In order to document exactly what CADD information was given to the 
District, Architect and District shall each date and sign a “hard” copy of 
reproducible documents that depict the information at the time Architect 
produces the CADD information.  The District agrees to release Architect 
from all liability, damages, and/or claims that arise due to any changes 
made to this information by anyone other than Architect or its Consultant(s) 
subsequent to it being given to the District. 

8.5. Following the termination of this Agreement, for any reason whatsoever, 
Architect shall promptly deliver to the District upon written request and at 
no cost to the District the following items (hereinafter “Instruments of 
Service”), which the District shall have the right to utilize in any way 
permitted by statute: 

8.5.1. One (1) set of the Contract Documents, including the bidding 
requirements, specifications, and all existing cost estimates for the 
Project, in hard copy, reproducible format. 

8.5.2. One (1) set of fixed image CADD files in DXF format of the drawings 
that are part of the Contract Documents. 

8.5.3. One (1) set of non-fixed image CADD drawing files in DXF or DWG 
or both formats of the site plan, floor plans (architectural, plumbing, 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 13 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

structural, mechanical and electrical), roof plan, sections and 
exterior elevations of the Project. 

8.5.4. All finished or unfinished documents, studies, reports, calculations, 
drawings, maps, models, photographs, technology data and reports 
prepared by the Architect under this Agreement. 

8.5.5. The obligation of Section 8.5 of this Agreement shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever.  

8.6. In the event the District changes or uses any fully or partially completed 
documents without Architect’s knowledge or participation or both, the 
District agrees to release Architect of responsibility for such changes, and 
shall hold Architect harmless from and against any and all claims on 
account of any damages or losses to property or persons, or economic 
losses, arising out of that change or use, unless Architect is found to be 
liable in a forum of competent jurisdiction.  In the event that the District 
uses any fully or partially completed documents without the Architect’s full 
involvement, the District shall remove all title blocks and other information 
that might identify Architect and its Consultants.  

Article 9. Termination of Contract  

9.1. District’s Request for Assurances:  If District at any time reasonably believes 
that Architect is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in 
its sole discretion notify Architect of this fact and request written assurances 
from Architect of performance of Services and a written plan from Architect 
to remedy any potential default under the terms this Agreement that the 
District may advise Architect of in writing.  Architect shall, within ten (10) 
days of District’s request, deliver a written cure plan that meets the 
requirements of the District’s request for assurances. Architect’s failure to 
provide such written assurances of performance and the required written 
plan, within ten (10) days of request, will constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement sufficient to justify termination for cause. 

9.2. District’s Termination of Architect for Cause:  If Architect fails to perform 
Architect’s duties to the satisfaction of the District, or if Architect fails to 
fulfill in a timely and professional manner Architect’s material obligations 
under this Agreement, or if Architect shall violate any of the material terms 
or provisions of this Agreement, the District shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, effective immediately upon 
the District giving written notice thereof to the Architect.  In the event of a 
termination pursuant to this subdivision, Architect may invoice the District 
for all Services performed until the notice of termination, but the District 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 14 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

shall have the right to withhold payment and deduct any amounts equal to 
the District’s costs because of Architect’s actions, errors, or omissions. 
District may, at its discretion, provide the Architect time to cure its default 
or breach. 

9.3. District’s Termination of Architect for Convenience:  District shall have the 
right in its sole discretion to terminate the Agreement for its own 
convenience.  In the event of a termination for convenience, Architect may 
invoice District and District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services 
performed until the District’s notice of termination for convenience. 

9.4. Architect’s Termination of Agreement for Cause:  Architect has the right to 
terminate this Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material 
obligations under this Agreement and fails to cure such material default 
within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice of said defaults, or if the 
default cannot be cured within sixty (60) days, commence to cure such 
default, diligently pursue such cure, and complete the cure within a 
reasonable time following written notice and demand from Architect.  Such 
termination shall be effective thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice 
from Architect to the District.  Architect may invoice the District and the 
District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services performed until 
Architect’s notice of termination. 

9.5. Effect on Pre-Termination Services:  Except as indicated in this Article, 
termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of 
the Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective 
date of such termination. 

9.6. Ceasing Services upon Termination:  If, at any time in the progress of the 
Design of the Project, the Governing Board of the District determines that 
the Project should be terminated, Architect, upon written notice from the 
District of such termination, shall immediately cease Services on the Project.  
The District shall pay Architect only the fee associated with the Services 
provided since the last invoice that has been paid and up to the notice of 
termination. 

9.7. Project Suspension:  If the District suspends the Project for more than one 
hundred twenty (120) consecutive days, Architect shall be compensated for 
Services performed prior to notice of that suspension. When the Project is 
resumed, the schedule shall be adjusted and Architect’s compensation shall 
be equitably adjusted to provide for expenses incurred in the resumption 
of the Architect’s Services.  Architect shall make every effort to maintain the 
same Project personnel after suspension.  If the District suspends the 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 15 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

Project for more than two (2) years, Architect may terminate this Agreement 
by giving written notice.  

Article 10. Indemnity/Architect Liability  

10.1. To the furthest extent permitted by California law and in accordance with 
California Civil Code section 2782.8, Architect shall indemnify and hold free 
and harmless the District, its Governing Board, agents, representatives, 
officers, consultants, employees, trustees, and members (“the Indemnified 
Parties”) from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, 
expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law or equity 
(“Claim(s)”) to the extent that the Claim(s) arises out of, pertains to, or 
relates to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the 
Architect, its directors, officers, employees, subcontractors, consultants, or 
agents, arising out or, connected with, or resulting from the performance 
of the Services, the Project, of this Agreement.. Architect, to the furthest 
extent permitted by California law, also has the duty to defend the 
Indemnified Parties from Claim(s) at Architect’s own expense, including 
attorneys’ fees and costs, however, in no event shall the cost to defend 
charged to the Architect exceed the Architect’s proportionate percentage 
of fault. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, in the event one or more 
defendants is unable to pay its share of defense costs due to bankruptcy or 
dissolution of the business, the design professional shall meet and confer 
with other parties regarding unpaid defense costs. If a Claim arises out of, 
or relates in any way to the Services provided under this Agreement, upon 
the District’s or the Architect’s request, the District and the Architect agree 
to undertake good faith measures to allow the Architect to assist the 
District in resolving the dispute or litigation.  The Architect’s assistance, 
described as “Mandatory Assistance” in Exhibit A, Section B.8, shall be 
provided at Architect’s own expense and excluded from any reimbursement 
calculation. At the commencement of the Mandatory Assistance Phase, 
District and Architect shall also negotiate in good faith as to the scope and 
extent of further assistance, including consideration of a joint defense 
agreement if appropriate.  During the Mandatory Assistance Phase, each 
Party shall be responsible for their own attorneys’ fees and costs incurred; 
however, each Party reserves its rights pursuant to Civil Code section 
2782.8.   

10.2. Architect shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award, or decree that may be 
rendered against the Indemnified Parties in any Claim as defined in Article 
10.1. These amounts may be paid by Architect to District or the District may 
in reasonable good faith withhold those costs from amounts owing to 
Architect, pending resolution of the dispute. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 16 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

10.3. Architect’s duty to indemnify under this Agreement shall apply during the 
term of this Agreement and shall survive any expiration or termination of 
this Agreement until such Claim(s) are barred by the applicable statute of 
limitations and is in addition to any other rights or remedies that the District 
may have under the law or under this Agreement. 

Article 11. Fingerprinting  

11.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, the District has determined 
on the basis of scope of Services in this Agreement, that Architect, its 
Consultants and their employees will have only limited contact with pupils. 
Architect shall promptly notify the District in writing of any facts or 
circumstances which might reasonably lead the District to determine that 
contact will be more than limited as defined by Education Code section 
45125.1(d).  

11.2. For all workers on District property, the Architect shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19.  Further, 
except to the extent the Order provides otherwise, the Architect and 
Architect’s personnel shall continue to comply with all other applicable 
terms in the CDPH’s State Public Health Officer Orders.  

Article 12. Responsibilities of the District  

12.1. The District shall examine the documents submitted by the Architect and 
shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of 
the Architect’s Services. 

12.2. The District shall verbally or in writing advise Architect if the District 
becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, including any errors, 
omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s documents.  Failure to 
provide such notice shall not relieve Architect of its responsibility therefore, 
if any. 

12.3. The District shall furnish the services of a hazardous material consultant or 
other consultants when such services are requested in writing by Architect 
and deemed necessary by the District or are requested by the District. These 
services shall include: asbestos and lead paint survey; abatement 
documentation; and specifications related to said matters, which are to be 
incorporated into bid documents prepared by Architect. If the hazardous 
materials consultant is furnished by the District and is not a Consultant of 
the Architect, the specifications shall include a note to the effect that the 
hazardous materials consultant’s specifications are included in the 
Architect’s bid documents for the District’s convenience and have not been 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 17 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

prepared or reviewed by the Architect. The note shall also direct questions 
about the hazardous materials consultant’s specifications related to 
asbestos and lead paint survey and/or abatement documentation to the 
preparer of the hazardous materials consultant’s specifications.    

12.4. The District shall timely provide to the Architect all relevant information in 
its possession regarding the Project that is necessary for performance of 
Architect’s services. 

Article 13. Liability of District  

13.1. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s financial obligations 
under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation 
provided in this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, in no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any 
claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or 
incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, 
arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the Services 
performed in connection with this Agreement. 

13.2. District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as 
a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by Architect, or 
by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to 
Architect by District.  

Article 14. Nondiscrimination  

Architect agrees to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment 
and Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government 
Code, commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set 
forth in Public Law 88-352, and all amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246; 
and all administrative rules and regulations found to be applicable to Architect and 
all of its subcontractors. In addition, Consultant agrees to require like compliance 
by all of its subcontractor(s). 

Article 15. Insurance  

15.1. Architect shall comply with the insurance requirements for this Agreement, 
set forth in Exhibit “E.”  

15.2. Architect shall provide certificates of insurance and endorsements to 
District prior to commencement of the work of this Agreement as required 
in Exhibit “E.” 

Article 16. Covenant against Contingent Fees  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 18 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

Architect warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, 
other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, to solicit or 
secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration contingent 
on or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or 
violation of this warranty, the District shall have the right to annul this Agreement 
without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or 
consideration or to recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage 
fee, gift, or contingency. 

Article 17. Entire Agreement/Modification  

This Agreement, including the Exhibits attached hereto, supersedes all previous 
contracts and constitutes the entire understanding of the Parties hereto.  Architect 
shall be entitled to no other benefits than those specified herein.  No changes, 
amendments or alterations shall be effective unless in writing and signed by both 
Parties.  Architect specifically acknowledges that in entering this Agreement, 
Architect relies solely upon the provisions contained in this Agreement and no 
others. 

Article 18. Non-Assignment of Agreement 

In as much as this Agreement is intended to secure the specialized Services of the 
Architect, Architect may not assign, transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein 
without the prior written consent of District and any such assignment, transfer, 
delegation or sublease without the District’s prior written consent shall be 
considered null and void.  Likewise, District may not assign, transfer, delegate or 
sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of Architect and any 
such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without Architect’s prior written 
consent shall be considered null and void. If an assignment is approved, this 
Agreement shall be binding on the successors and assign of the parties.  

Article 19. Law, Venue 

19.1. This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California 
and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of 
this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State 
of California. 

19.2. To the fullest extent permitted by California law, the county in which the 
District administration office is located shall be the venue for any action or 
proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by 
reason of this Agreement. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 19 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

Article 20. Alternative Dispute Resolution 

20.1. All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the 
interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be 
decided through mediation as the first method of resolution.  Notice of the 
demand for mediation of a dispute shall be filed in writing with the other 
party to the Agreement.  The demand for mediation shall be made within 
a reasonable time after written notice of the dispute has been provided to 
the other party, but in no case longer than ninety (90) days after initial 
written notice.  

20.2. If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all 
applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Architect shall comply with 
all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing 
with section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with section 910) of Part 3 
of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent to 
the Architect’s right to bring a civil action against the District.  For purposes 
of those provisions, the running of the time within which a claim must be 
presented to the District shall be tolled from the time the Architect submits 
its written claim until the time the claim is denied, including any time 
utilized by any applicable meet and confer process. 

20.3. Pending resolution of the dispute, Architect agrees it will neither rescind 
the Agreement nor stop the performance of the Services.   

Article 21. Tolling of Claims 

Architect agrees to toll all statutes of limitations for District’s assertion of claims 
against Architect that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to Contractors’ or 
subcontractors’ claims against District involving Architect’s work, until the 
Contractors’ or subcontractors’ claims are finally resolved. 

Article 22. Attorneys’ Fees 

In the event either party shall bring any action or legal proceeding for damages for 
any alleged breach of any provision of or performance under this Agreement, to 
terminate this Agreement, or to enforce, protect or establish any term or covenant 
of this Agreement or right or remedy of either party, the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to recover, as a part of the action or proceeding, reasonable attorneys' fees 
and court costs, including consultants’ fees, attorneys' fees and costs for appeal, as 
may be fixed by the court.  The term “prevailing party” shall mean the party who 
received substantially the relief requested, whether by settlement, dismissal, 
summary judgment, judgment, or otherwise.   



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 20 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

Article 23. Severability 

If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court 
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the 
provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be 
affected, impaired or invalidated thereby. 

Article 24. Employment Status 

24.1. Architect shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be an independent 
contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it be 
construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture 
relationship, or to allow the District to exercise discretion or control over 
the professional manner in which Architect performs the Services that are 
the subject matter of this Agreement; provided always, however, that the 
Services to be provided by Architect shall be provided in a manner 
consistent with all applicable standards and regulations governing such 
Services. 

24.2. Architect understands and agrees that Architect’s personnel are not and 
will not be eligible for membership in or any benefits from any District 
group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance or for membership in 
any District retirement program or for paid vacation, paid sick leave or other 
leave, with or without pay or for other benefits which accrue to a District 
employee.  

24.3. Should the District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as 
the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development 
Department, or both, determine that Architect, or any employee or 
Consultant of Architect, is an employee of the District for purposes of 
collection of any employment taxes, the amounts payable under this 
Agreement shall be reduced by amounts equal to both the employee and 
employer portions of the tax due (and offsetting any credits for amounts 
already paid by Architect which can be applied against this liability).  The 
District shall then forward those amounts to the relevant taxing authority.  

24.4. Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services 
performed by Architect for the District, upon notification of such fact by the 
District, Architect shall promptly remit such amount due or arrange with the 
District to have the amount due withheld from future payments to Architect 
under this Agreement (again, offsetting any amounts already paid by 
Architect which can be applied as a credit against such liability). 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 21 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

24.5. A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two (2) 
paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, 
and for all other purposes of this Agreement, Architect shall not be 
considered an employee of the District.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
should any court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determine that 
Architect is an employee for any other purpose, then Architect agrees to a 
reduction in District’s liability resulting from this Agreement pursuant to 
principles similar to those stated in the foregoing paragraphs so that the 
total expenses of District under this Agreement shall not be greater than 
they would have been had the court, arbitrator, or administrative authority 
determined that Architect or its employees of Consultants was not an 
employee.  

24.6. Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on 
persons or entities not a party to this Agreement. 

Article 25. Certificate of Architect 

25.1. Architect certifies that the Architect is properly certified or licensed under 
the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the 
professional services that it has herein agreed to perform. 

25.2. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor 
Code that require every employer to be insured against liability for workers 
compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the 
provisions of that code, and it certifies that it will comply with those 
provisions before commencing the performance of the Services of this 
Agreement. 

25.3. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of California Labor Code 
and California Code of Regulations that require the payment of prevailing 
wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain “public 
works” and “maintenance” projects (“Prevailing Wage Laws”).  Architect 
agrees to fully comply with and to require its Consultant(s) to fully comply 
with all requirements of the Prevailing Wage Laws, if applicable to Architect 
and its Consultants’ professional services to be provided under this 
Agreement. 

Article 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports 

Architect shall be responsible for compliance with California Government Code 
section 7550, if the total cost of the Contract is over five thousand dollars ($5,000). 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 22 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

Article 27. Notice & Communications 

Notices and communications between the Parties to this Agreement may be sent 
to the following addresses: 

District: 
 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 
ATTN:  Chris Ralston, Director III, Facilities 
EMAIL: chris-ralston@scusd.edu 

With a Copy to: 
Dannis Woliver Kelley 
200 California Street #400  
San Francisco, CA 94111 
ATTN:  Deidree Sakai, Esq. 

Architect: 
 
Nacht & Lewis 
600 Q Street, Suite 100 
Sacramento, CA  95811 
ATTN: Brian Maytum 

  
Any notice personally given shall be effective upon receipt.  Any notice sent by 
electronic mail shall be effective the day after transmission.  Any notice sent by 
overnight delivery service shall be effective the day after delivery.  Any notice given 
by mail shall be effective five (5) days after deposit in the United States mail. 

Article 28. Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Participation 

Pursuant to section 17076.11 of the Education Code, the District has a participation 
goal for disabled veteran business enterprises (“DVBEs”) of at least three percent 
(3%), per year, of funds expended each year by the District on projects that use funds 
allocated by the State Allocation Board pursuant to the Leroy F.  Greene School 
Facilities Act (the “Act”).  This Project may use funds allocated under the Act.  
Therefore, to the extent feasible and pertaining to future hirings, Architect, before it 
executes the Agreement, shall provide to the District certification of compliance with 
the procedures for implementation of DVBE contracting goals, appropriate 
documentation identifying the amount(s) intended to be paid to DVBEs in 
conjunction with the contract, and documentation demonstrating Architect’s good 
faith efforts to meet these goals. 

Article 29. District’s Right to Audit 

29.1. District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of 
access to Architect’s and any Consultant’s premises to review and audit the 
Architect’s compliance with the provisions of this Agreement (“District’s 
Right”). The District’s Right includes the right to inspect, photocopy, and to 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 23 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

retain copies, outside of Architect’s premises, of any and all Project-related 
records and other information with appropriate safeguards, if such 
retention is deemed necessary by the District in its sole discretion. The 
District shall keep this information confidential, as allowed by applicable 
law. 

29.2. The District’s Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, 
documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the 
District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether Architect is 
in compliance with all requirements of this Agreement. 

29.3. If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the 
District’s Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, 
and any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices 
that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify all direct and 
indirect costs, of whatever nature, which are claimed to have been incurred, 
or anticipated to be incurred. 

29.4. Architect shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practices in the industry. Architect shall 
make available to the District for review and audit all Project-related 
accounting records and documents and any other financial data. Upon 
District’s request, Architect shall submit exact duplicates of originals of all 
requested records to the District. 

29.5. Architect shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, 
and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants. 

29.6. Architect shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the 
District’s written request to review and audit any or all of Architect’s Project-
related records and information. 

Article 30. Other Provisions 

30.1. Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and 
understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of 
executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this 
Agreement was the product of negotiation, that no party is the author of 
this Agreement, and that this Agreement shall not be construed against any 
party as the drafter of the Agreement. 

30.2. The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Architect warrants 
and represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and 
bind the CM to all terms hereof. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 24 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

30.3. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original. A facsimile or electronic signature shall 
be deemed to be the equivalent of the actual original signature. All 
counterparts so executed shall constitute one Agreement binding all the 
Parties hereto.  

30.4.  Architect shall issue a credit to the District as an offset to the Architect’s 
Fee, an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the actual tax benefit derived 
by the Architect or its shareholders, after deducting associated tax 
consulting fees based on the Project per Internal Revenue Code section 
179D (the Energy Efficient Commercial Buildings deduction). 

Article 31. Exhibits “A” through “H” attached hereto are hereby incorporated by this 
reference and made a part of this Agreement. 

 
[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 25 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date(s) 
indicated below. 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT 

Date:    , 20_  _ 

By:       

Title: Jesse Castillo, Assistant Superintendent 
of Business Services 

NACHT & LEWIS ARCHITECTS, INC. 

 
Date:    , 20_  _ 

By:       

Title: Brian Maytum, Vice President and 
Principal 

September 15,                     23



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

A. SCOPE OF PROJECT ....................................................................................................................................... 1 
B. BASIC SERVICES .............................................................................................................................................. 1 
C. PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES ............................................................................................. 4 
D. SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE ..................................................................................................................... 7 
E. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE ........................................................................................................... 12 
F. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE ............................................................................................ 16 
G. BIDDING PHASE .......................................................................................................................................... 20 
H. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE ....................................................... 21 
I. CLOSE OUT PHASE ..................................................................................................................................... 25 
J. MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS .............................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCOPE AND BASIC SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT 
 
Architect shall provide all professional services necessary for completing the following: 
 
SCOPE OF PROJECT 

Project Name:  Fern Bacon MS Modernization and New Construction 

Cost Budget:  $60,000,000 (Construction budget)   

BASIC SERVICES  

Architect agrees to provide the Services described below:   
 

1. Architect shall be responsible for the professional quality and technical accuracy of all 
studies, reports, projections, master plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other 
services furnished by Architect under the Agreement as well as coordination with all 
master plans, studies, reports and other information provided by District.  Architect shall, 
without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors or omissions in its studies, 
reports, projections, master plans, design, drawings, specifications and other Services.   

 
2. Architect will use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications 

and all other information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders 
discloses and publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have 
an impact on a Contractor's cost of performance.  Architect shall advise the District of 
the most effective methods of identifying and securing such information as part of each 
stage of design.  Architect shall track for District's benefit all such suggested and 
disclosed information. 

 
3. The District shall provide all information available to it to the extent the information 

relates to Architect’s scope of work.  This information shall include, if available,  
 

a. As-builts;  
 

b. Physical characteristics;  
 

c. Legal limitations and utility locations for the Project site(s);  
 

d. Written legal description(s) of the Project site(s);  
 

e. Grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, and adjoining property and structures;  
 
  



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCOPE AND BASIC SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

f. Adjacent drainage;  
 

g. Rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, and 
boundaries and contours of the Project site(s);  

 
h. Locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other 

improvements and trees;  
 
i. Information concerning available utility services and lines, mechanical and other 

services, both public and private, above and below grade, including inverts and depths;   
 

j. Surveys, reports, as-built drawings, record drawings; and 
 

k. Subsoil data, chemical data, and other data logs of borings. 
 

Architect shall Visually Verify this information and all existing Project utilities, including 
capacity, and document the location of existing utility lines, telephone, water, sewage, 
storm drains and other lines on or around the Project to the extent determinable by the 
documents provided by the District.   
 
If Architect determines that the information or documentation the District provides is 
insufficient for purposes of design, or if Architect requires:  a topographical survey; a 
geotechnical report; structural, mechanical, and/or chemical tests; tests for air and/or 
water pollution; test borings; test pits; determinations of soil bearing values; percolation 
tests; ground corrosion tests; resistivity tests; tests for hazardous materials; tests for 
anticipating subsoil conditions; and/or other information that the District has not 
provided, then, at the soonest possible time after Architect has become aware that this 
additional information is needed, the Architect shall request that the District acquire that 
information.  If the Parties mutually agree in writing, this additional information and service 
shall be procured through the Architect, who may invoice the District for those services as 
Extra Services.  

 
4. Technology Backbone.  Architect shall be responsible for the coordination of the design 

and the layout of the technology backbone system with the District’s technology 
consultant, and lay out any included technology backbone system.  The coordination effort 
shall include location and routing of raceways, conduits and outlets and the required 
spaces to accommodate electrical, data and communication wiring.  Architect and 
Consultant(s) shall prepare and be responsible for documents prepared by the Architect 
based on the information provided by the District’s technology consultant as appropriate 
to the level of design completion. 

 
5. District Standards.  Architect shall incorporate into its work and the work of all 

Consultants the adopted District standards for facilities and construction. 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 3 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCOPE AND BASIC SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

High Performance Schools.  If the District adheres to the Collaborative for High 
Performance School (“CHPS”) Best Practice Standards, the Services provided by the 
Architect shall incorporate the CHPS Best Practice Standards and criteria to the extent 
feasible. 

 
6. Mandatory Assistance.  If a third party dispute or litigation, or both, arises out of, or 

relates in any way to the Services provided under this Agreement, upon the District's 
request, the Architect, its agents, officers, and employees agree to assist in resolving the 
dispute or litigation. Architect's assistance includes, but is not limited to, providing 
professional consultations, attending mediations, arbitrations, depositions, trials or any 
event related to the dispute resolution and/or litigation (“Mandatory Assistance”). 

 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 4 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

C. PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES  
 

1. Project Initiation 
 

Upon final execution of the Agreement with the District, Architect shall: 
 
a. Within the first week following execution of the Agreement, review the proposed 

Schedule of Services set forth in Exhibit “C” to the Agreement and prepare a detailed 
scope of work list and work plan for documentation to the District’s satisfaction.  This 
scope of work list and work plan will identify specific tasks including, but not limited 
to: interviews, data collection, analysis, report preparation, planning, architectural 
programming, concepts and schematic design preparation and estimating that are 
part of the work of the Project.  Architect shall also identify milestone activities or dates, 
specific task responsibilities, required completion times necessary for review and 
approval by the District and by all regulatory agencies and additional definition of 
deliverables. 

 
b. Review the developed work plan with the District and its representatives to familiarize 

them with the proposed tasks and schedule and develop necessary modifications. 
 

2. Development of Architectural Program 
 

Architect shall prepare for the District’s review of an architectural program as follows:  
 

a. Perform pre-design investigations to establish appropriate guidelines around which 
and within which the Project is to be designed.  Identify design issues relating to 
functional needs, directives and constraints imposed by regulatory codes.  Review all 
data pertinent to the Project including survey, site maps, geotechnical reports and 
recommendations, soil testing results reports, and pertinent historical data, and other 
relevant information provided by District. 

 
b. Review DSA codes pertaining to the proposed Project design.   

 
c. Identify design issues relating to functional needs, directives and constraints imposed 

by applicable regulatory codes.   
 

d. Based on survey and topography data provided by the District, input into computer 
and develop existing conditions base for the Schematic Design Phase. 

 
e. Administer Project as required to coordinate work with the District and among 

Consultants. 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 5 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

f. Review District-provided standards for facilities and construction, including but not 
limited to designation of any material, product, thing or service by specific brand or 
trade name pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400, subdivision (c). 

 
3. Construction Cost Budget 

 
a. Architect shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the 

Construction Cost Budget within the parameters of the Construction Budget 
established by the District for the Project.  The estimates forming the basis of the 
Construction Cost Budget are to be based on the developed functional architectural 
program as approved by the District. The following conditions apply to the 
Construction Cost Budget prepared by the Architect: 

 
(i) All costs are to be based on current bid prices, with escalation rate and duration 

clearly identified as a separate line item; rate of cost escalation and projected 
bid and construction dates are to be approved by the District and its 
representatives. 
 

(ii) Format shall be estimated space use square foot costs (classroom sq. ft. costs, 
office space, etc. 
 

(iii) Contingencies for design, bidding, and construction are to be included as 
individual line items, with the percentage and base of calculation clearly 
identified. 
 

(iv) Architect shall include all information and estimates from the District and/or 
the Construction Manager that are intended to be part of the Construction Cost 
Budget. 
 

(v) One week prior to submittal of documents, Architect shall submit its proposed 
Construction Cost Budget to the District and the Construction Manager for 
review and approval.  At that time, Architect shall coordinate with the District 
and the Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile the 
Construction Cost Budget. 
 

(vi) Mechanical, electrical, civil, landscape and estimating consultant(s) shall 
participate in the progress meeting as appropriate and shall provide input and 
feedback into the development of the Construction Cost Budget. 

 
b. The Construction Cost Budget will inform the District’s Construction Budget for the 

Project.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the responsibility of 
the Architect. 

 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 6 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

4. Presentation 
 
If requested, Architect, along with any involved consultant(s), shall present and review with 
the District and, if directed, with the District’s Governing Board, the summary and detail of 
work involved in this Phase, including two-dimensional renderings of any proposed facility 
suitable for public presentation. 
 

5. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies  
 

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District an 
electronic copy of the following items produced in this Phase: 

 
a. Architectural Program (include comparison between developed program and “model” 

program, include narrative explaining any substantial deviations); 
 

b. Site Plan; 
 

c. Revised Construction Cost Budget; 
 

d. Final Schedule of Services;  
 

e. Meeting Reports/Minutes from the Kick-off and other meetings; and 
 

f. Renderings, if requested by District.  
 

6. Meetings 
 

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis. 

 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 7 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

D. SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare for the District’s review a 
Schematic Design Study, containing the following items as applicable to the Project scope, as 
follows: 

 
1. Prepare and review with District staff a scope of work list and work plan identifying specific 

tasks including, but not limited to: interviews, data collection, analysis, report preparation, 
planning, architectural programming, concepts and schematic design preparation and 
estimating that are part of the work of the Project.  Also identified will be milestone 
activities or dates, specific task responsibilities of the Architect, required completion times 
necessary for the review and approval by the District and by pertinent regulatory agencies 
and additional definition of deliverables. 

 
2. Review the developed work plan with the District and its representatives to familiarize 

them with the proposed tasks and schedule and develop necessary modifications. 
 

3. Architectural 
 

a. Scaled floor plans showing overall dimensions, identifying the various major areas and 
their relationship.  Include circulation and room-by-room tabulation of all net usable 
floor areas and a summary of gross floor area.  Also, provide typical layouts of major 
equipment or operational layout. 

 
b. Preliminary building exterior elevations and sections in sufficient detail to demonstrate 

design concept indicating location and size of fenestration. 
 

c. As applicable, identify proposed roof system, deck, insulation system, and drainage 
technique. 

 
d. Identify minimum finish requirements, including ceiling, floors, walls, doors, windows, 

and types of hardware. 
 

e. Identify code requirements, include occupancy classification(s) and type of 
construction. 

 
4. Structural 

 
a. Layout structural systems with dimensions and floor elevations.  Identify structural 

systems (including pre-cast, structural steel with composite deck, structural steel bar 
joists) with preliminary sizing identified.       

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 8 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

b. Identify foundation systems (including fill requirements, piles, caissons, spread 
footings) with preliminary sizing identified. 

 
5. Mechanical 

 
a. Calculate block heating, ventilation, and cooling loads including skin versus internal 

loading. 
 

b. Select a minimum of two (2) HVAC systems that appear compatible with loading 
conditions for subsequent life cycle costing. 

 
c. Show selected system on drawings as follows: 

 
(i) Single line drawing(s) of all mechanical equipment spaces, ductwork and pipe 

chases. 
 
(ii) Location and preliminary sizing of all major equipment and duct work in allocated 

spaces. 
 
(iii) Schematic piping. 
 
(iv) Temperature control zoning. 

 
d. Provide design criteria to include the intent base of design for the Project. 

 
e. Evaluate and confirm the load requirements of all equipment and systems, the impact 

of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase these loads to 
accommodate the increase. 

 
6. Electrical 

 
a. Calculate overall approximate electrical loads. 

 
b. Identify proposed electrical system for service, power, lighting, low voltage and 

communication loads, including proposed or planned additional buildings or other 
facilities on the Project site. 

 
c. Show system(s) selected on drawings as follows: 

 
(i) Single line drawing(s) showing major distribution system. 
 
(ii) Location and preliminary sizing of all major electrical systems and components 

including: 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 9 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(A) Load centers. 

(B) Main panels. 

(C) Switch gear. 
 

d. Provide design criteria to include the intent base of design for the Project.  
 

e. Evaluate and confirm the load requirements of all equipment and systems, the impact 
of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase these loads to 
accommodate the increase. 

 
7. Civil 

 
a. Develop on and off site utility systems such as sewer, water, storm drain, firewater lines 

and fire hydrants. 
 

b. Identify surface improvements including roadways, walkways, parking (with assumed 
wheel weights), preliminary finish grades and drainage. 

 
c. Coordinate finish floor elevations with architectural site plan. 

 
8. Specifications 

 
Prepare outline specifications of proposed architectural, structural, mechanical and 
electrical materials, systems and equipment and their criteria and quality standards.  
Architect is to use District’s standardized equipment/material list for new construction and 
modernization in development of the Project design and specifications.   Architect shall 
review and comment on District’s construction bid contracts and contract documents (the 
“Division 0” and “Division 1” documents) as part of its Services under the Agreement. 

 
9.  Construction Cost Budget 

 
Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project.  Along with the conditions identified 
in the preceding Phase, the following conditions apply to the revised Construction Cost 
Budget: 

 
a. Schematic Estimates: This estimate consists of unit cost applied to the major items and 

quantities of work.  The unit cost shall reflect the complete direct current cost of work.  
Complete cost includes labor, material, waste allowance, sales tax and subcontractor's 
mark-up.   

 
(i) General conditions shall be applied separately.  This estimate shall be prepared by 

specification section and summarized by the CSI categories.   



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 10 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
b. The estimate shall separate the Project's building cost from site and utilities cost.  

Architect shall submit to the District the cost estimating format for prior review and 
approval. 

 
c. Escalation: all estimates shall be priced out at current market conditions.  The estimates 

shall incorporate all adjustments as appropriate, relating to mid-point construction, 
contingency, and cost index (i.e. Lee Saylor Index). 

 
d. The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 

Construction Budget.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the 
responsibility of the Architect. 

 
e. Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the 

Construction Manager for review and approval.  At that time, Architect shall coordinate 
with the District and Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile 
the Construction Cost Budget.   

 
f. At the end of this Phase, the Construction Cost Budget may include design 

contingencies of no more than ten percent (10%) in the cost estimates. 
 

10. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies 
 

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard 
copy of the following items produced in this phase, together with one (1) copy of each 
item in electronic format: 

 
a. Breakdown of Construction Cost Budget as prepared for this Phase; 
 
b. Meeting reports/minutes; 
 
c. Schematic Design Package with alternatives; 
 
d. Statement indicating changes made to the Architectural Program and Schedule; 

and 
 
e. Copy of the DSA file, including all correspondence and meeting notes to date, or 

notification in writing that Architect has not met or corresponded with DSA. 
 

11. Presentation 
 

a. Architect shall present and review with the District the detailed Schematic Design. 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 11 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

b. The Schematic Design shall be revised within the accepted program parameters until 
a final concept within the accepted Construction Cost Budget has been accepted and 
approved by the District at no additional cost to the District. 

 
12. Meetings 

 
During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis. 

 
 
 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 12 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
E. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE  

 
Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare from the accepted 
deliverables from the Schematic Design Phase, the Design Development Phase documents 
consisting of the following for each proposed system within Architect’s scope of services:  

 
1. Architectural 

 
a. Scaled, dimensioned floor plans with final room locations including all openings. 

 
b. 1/8” scale building sections showing dimensional relationships, materials and 

component relationships. 
 
c. Exterior elevations of all proposed new buildings, existing buildings to be renovated 

and all architectural elements of the Project. 
 

d. Identification of all fixed equipment to be installed in Project. 
 
e. Interior finishes identified and located within the rooms of all buildings. 

 
f. Site plan completely drawn with beginning notes and dimensions including grading 

and paving. 
 

g. Preliminary development of details and large scale blow-ups. 
 

h. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings. 
 

i. Floor plans identifying all fixed and major movable equipment and furniture. 
 

j. Further refinement of Outline Specifications for architectural, structural, mechanical, 
electrical, civil and landscape manuals, systems and equipment. 

 
k. Typical reflected ceiling development including ceiling grid and heights for each 

ceiling to be used, showing: 
 

(i) Light fixtures. 
 
(ii) Ceiling registers or diffusers. 
 
(iii) Access Panels. 

 
  



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 13 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

2. Structural 
 

a. Structural drawings with all major members located and sized. 
 

b. Establish final building and floor elevations. 
 

c. Preliminary specifications. 
 
d. Preliminary calculations for the structural systems including lateral force resistive 

systems, foundations, and all structural system components. 
 

e. Identify foundation requirement (including fill requirement, piles) with associated soil 
pressure, water table and seismic center. 

 
3. Mechanical 

 
a. Heating and cooling load calculations as required and major duct or pipe runs sized 

to interface with structural. 
 

b. Major mechanical equipment should be scheduled indicating size and capacity. 
 

c. Ductwork and piping should be substantially located and sized. 
 
d. Plumbing plans for the Project shall indicate numbers and locations of fixtures and be 

in conformance with the code-mandated fixture count requirements of the Project. 
 

e. Devices in ceiling should be located. 
 

f. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings. 
 

g. More developed Outline Specifications indicating quality level and manufacture. 
 

h. Control Systems identified. 
 

i. Further evaluation and confirmation of the load requirements of all equipment and 
systems, the impact of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase 
these loads to accommodate the increase. 

 
4. Electrical 

 
a. All lighting fixtures should be located and scheduled showing all types and quantities 

of fixtures to be used, including proposed lighting levels for each usable space. 
 

b. All major electrical equipment should be scheduled indicating size and capacity. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 14 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

c. Complete electrical distribution including a one-line diagram indicating final location 
of switchboards, communications, controls (high and low voltage), motor control 
centers, panels, transformers and emergency generators, if required.  Low-voltage 
system includes fire alarm system, security system, clock and public address system, 
bell system, voice-data system, and telecom/technology system. 

 
d. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings. 

 
e. More developed and detailed Outline Specifications indicating quality level and 

manufacture. 
 

f. Further evaluation and confirmation of the load requirements of all equipment and 
systems, the impact of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase 
these loads to accommodate the increase. 

 
5. Civil 

 
a. Further refinement of Schematic Design Phase development of on and off site utility 

systems for sewer, electrical, water, storm drain and fire water.  Includes, without 
limitation, pipe sizes, materials, invert elevation location and installation details. 

 
b. Further refinement of Schematic Design Phase roadways, walkways, parking and storm 

drainage improvements.  Includes details and large scale drawings of curb and gutter, 
manhole, thrust blocks, paved parking and roadway sections. 

 
6. Bid Documents 

 
Architect shall review and comment on District’s construction bid contracts and contract 
documents (the “Division 0” documents and “Division 1” documents) as part of its Services 
under the Agreement. 

 
7. Construction Cost Budget 

 
a. Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project.  Along with the conditions 

identified in the Agreement and the preceding Phases, the following conditions apply 
to the revised Construction Cost Budget: 

 
(i) Design Development Estimate: This further revised estimate shall be prepared by 

specification section, summarized by CSI category and divided by trade and work 
item.  The estimate shall include individual item unit costs of materials, labor and 
equipment.  Sales tax, Contractor's mark-ups, and general conditions shall be listed 
separately.   

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 15 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 
Construction Budget.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the 
responsibility of the Architect. 

 
(iii) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget may include design 

contingencies of no more than ten percent (10%) in the cost estimates. 
 

b. Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the 
Construction Manager for review and approval.  At that time, the Architect shall 
coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, review, 
and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.   

 
8. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies 

 
Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this 
phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format: 

 
a. Design Development drawing set from all professional disciplines necessary to deliver 

the Project; 
 

b. Specifications; 
 

c. Revised Construction Cost Budget; and 
 

d. Copy of the DSA file, including all correspondence and meeting notes to date, or 
notification in writing that Architect has not met or corresponded with DSA.  

 
The Design Development deliverables shall be revised within the accepted program 
parameters until a final concept within the accepted Construction Cost Budget has been 
accepted and approved by the District at no additional cost to the District. 

 
9. Meetings 

 
During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis. 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 16 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

F. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District 
has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare from the accepted 
deliverables from the Design Development Phase the Construction Documents consisting 
of the following for each proposed system within Architect’s scope of work.  All Projects 
subject to DSA’s jurisdiction shall be submitted for review, back check, and approval, under 
the electronic plan review process (“EPR process”), rather than paper submission. 

 
 

1. Construction Documents – 100% / Completion Stage: 
 

a. Architectural 
 

(i) Completed site plan. 
 
(ii) Completed floor plans, elevations, and sections. 
 
(iii) Architectural details and large blow-ups completed. 
 
(iv) Finish, door, and hardware schedules completed, including all details. 
 
(v) Site utility plans completed. 
 
(vi) Fixed equipment details and identification completed. 
 
(vii) Reflected ceiling plans completed. 
 

b. Structural 
 

(i) Structural floor plans and sections with detailing completed. 
 
(ii) Structural calculations completed. 

 
c. Mechanical 

 
(i) Large scale mechanical details complete. 
 
(ii) Mechanical schedules for equipment completed. 
 
(iii) Completed electrical schematic for environmental cooling and exhaust equipment. 
 
(iv) Complete energy conservation calculations and report. 

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 17 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

d. Electrical 
 

(i) Lighting and power plan showing all switching and controls.  Fixture schedule and 
lighting details completed. 

 
(ii) Distribution information on all power consuming equipment, including lighting, 

power, signal and communication device(s) branch wiring completed. 
 
(iii) All electrical equipment schedules completed. 
 
(iv) Special system components plans completed. 
 
(v) Electrical load calculations completed.  

 
e. Civil 

 
All site plans, site utilities, parking and roadway systems completed. 

 
f. Construction Cost Budget 

 
(i) Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project.  Along with the conditions 

identified in the preceding phases, Architect shall update and refine the fifty 
percent (50%) Construction Documents Phase revisions to the Construction Cost 
Budget.   

 
(ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 

Construction Budget.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the 
responsibility of the Architect. 

 
(iii) Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and 

the Construction Manager for review and approval.  At that time, Architect shall 
coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, 
review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.   

 
(iv) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget shall not include any 

design contingencies in excess of the cost estimates. 
 

g. Specifications 
 

(i) Complete development and preparation of technical specifications describing 
materials, systems and equipment, workmanship, quality and performance criteria 
required for the construction of the Project.   

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 18 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(ii) No part of the specifications shall call for a designated material, product, thing, or 
service by specific brand or trade name unless: 

 
(A) The specification is followed by the words “or equal” so that bidders may 

furnish any equal material, product, thing, or service, as required by Public 
Contract Code section 3400, or 

 
(B) The designation is allowable by specific allowable exemptions or exceptions 

pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400. 
 

(iii) Specifications shall not contain restrictions that will limit competitive bids other 
than those required for maintenance convenience by the District and only with 
District’s prior approval. 

 
(iv) At one hundred percent (100%) review, District shall review the Specifications and 

shall direct Architect to make corrections at no cost to the District. 
 
(v) Coordination of the Specifications with specifications developed by other 

disciplines. 
 
(vi) Specifications shall be in CSI format. 

 
h. Constructability Review 

 
The District and/or its designee, at its sole discretion, shall have the right to conduct a 
constructability review of the Construction Documents.  A report shall be given to the 
Architect who shall make necessary changes along with providing written comments 
for each item listed in the report.  Conducting a constructability review does not excuse 
the Architect’s obligation to provide Services that shall comply with professional 
architectural standards, including the standard of care applicable to architects 
designing public school facilities and applicable requirements of federal, state, and 
local law. 

 
i. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a 
hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of 
each item in electronic format: 

 
(i) Working drawings; 
 
(ii) Specifications; 
 
(iii) Engineering calculations; 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 19 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
(iv) Construction Cost Budgets; 
 
(v) Statement of requirements for testing and inspection of service for compliance 

with Construction Documents and applicable codes; 
 
(vi) Copy of DSA file including all correspondence, meeting, minutes or reports, back-

check comments, checklists to date; and 
 
(vii) Statement indicating any authorized changes made to the design from the last 

Phase and the cost impact of each change on the previously approved 
Construction Cost Budget.  If no design changes occur but shifts of costs occur 
between disciplines, identify for District review.   

 
2. Construction Documents Final Back-Check Stage: 

 
a. The Construction Documents final back-check stage shall be for the purpose of the 

Architect incorporating all regulatory agencies' comments into the drawings, 
specifications, and estimate.  All changes made by the Architect during this stage shall 
be at no additional cost to the District. 

 
b. The final contract documents delivered to the District upon completion of the 

Architect’s work shall be the Bid Set and shall consist of the following: 
 
 

(i) Specifications: Original word-processed technical specifications on reproducible 
masters in CSI format.  

 
c. Architect shall update and refine the Consultants’ completed Contract Documents.  

d. Conclusion of Construction Document Phase requires final stamp-out by DSA. 
 

3. Meetings 
 

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a monthly basis. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 20 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
BIDDING PHASE  
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

G. BIDDING PHASE 
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Bidding Phase services for 
District as follows:  

 
1. Contact potential bidders and encourage their participation in the Project. 

 
2. Coordinate the development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract 

Documents with the District. 
 

3. The development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents 
shall be the joint responsibility of the District and Architect.  Nevertheless, Architect will 
use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications and all other 
information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders discloses and 
publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have an impact on a 
Contractor's cost of performance. 

 
4. While the Project is being advertised for bids, all questions concerning intent shall be 

referred to the District for screening and subsequent processing through Architect. 
 

5. In the event that items requiring interpretation of the drawings or specifications are 
discovered during the bidding period, those items shall be analyzed by the Architect for 
decision by the District as to the proper procedure required.  Corrective action will be in 
the form of an addendum prepared by the Architect and issued by the District.   

 
6. Attend bid opening. 

 
7. Coordinate with Architect Consultants. 

 
8. Respond to District and potential bidder questions and clarifications. 

 
9. Deliverables and Number of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard 
copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each 
item in electronic format: 

 
a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;  

 
b. Meeting report/minutes from the pre-bid site walk; and 

 
c. Upon completion of the Bidding Phase, Architect shall produce a Conforming Set of 

plans and specifications incorporating all addenda issued thus far.  Architect shall 
supply District with two (2) complete, reproducible sets of plans and specifications 
marked as a Conforming Set.  



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 21 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

H. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Construction Contract 
Administration Phase services for the District as follows:  

 
1. Architect’s responsibility to provide basic services for the Construction Phase under the 

Agreement commences with the award of the contract for construction and terminates 
upon satisfactory performance and completion of all tasks in this phase and 
commencement of the Closeout Phase or upon the District’s terminating the Agreement, 
whichever is earlier. 

 
2. Construction Oversight and Project Certification Process  

a. Architect shall ensure that the Project Inspector is approved by the DSA for the Project 
by submitting the applicable Inspector’s Qualification Record (form DSA 5 or more 
current version) to and by obtaining approval from the DSA prior to commencement 
of construction and prior to requesting issuance of project inspections cards (form DSA 
152 or more current version). 

b. Architect shall request issuance of the proper number of project inspection cards 
(forms DSA 152 or more current version) by electronically submitting form DSA 102-
IC (or more current version) to the DSA after the construction contract has been 
awarded.  Architect shall provide project inspection cards to the Project Inspector prior 
to commencement of construction. 

c. Prior to commencement of construction, Architect shall provide (1) a copy of the DSA 
approved construction documents and (2) the DSA approved Statement of Structural 
Tests and Special Inspections (form DSA 103 or more current version) prepared by 
Architect to the Project Inspector and Laboratory of Record. 

d. Architect shall prepare and submit a Contract Information form (form DSA 102 or more 
current version) for all construction contracts. 

e. Architect shall maintain such personal contact with the Project as is necessary to assure 
themselves of compliance, in every material respect, with the DSA-approved 
construction documents.  Personal contact shall include visits to the Project site by the 
Architect or engineer or their qualified representative to observe construction.   

f. Architect shall notify DSA as to the disposition of materials noted on laboratory testing, 
and/or special inspection, reports as not conforming to the DSA-approved 
construction documents. 

g. Architect shall respond to DSA field trip notes as necessary. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 22 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

h. Architect shall submit an interim Verified Report (form DSA 6-AE or more current 
version) to the DSA electronically and a copy to the Project Inspector for each of the 
applicable nine (9) sections of form DSA 152 prior to the Project Inspector signing off 
that section of the project inspection card. 

i. Architect shall submit a Statement of Final Actual Project Cost (form DSA 168 or more 
current version) to the DSA. 

j. Architect shall submit Verified Reports (form DSA 6-AE or more current form) to the 
DSA and to the Project Inspector if any of the following events occur:  (1) when 
construction is sufficiently complete in accordance with the DSA-approved 
construction documents so that the District can occupy or utilize the Project; (2) work 
on the Project is suspended for a period of more than one month; (3) the services of 
the Architect are terminated for any reason prior to completion of the Project; or (4) 
DSA requests a Verified Report.    

 
3. Change Orders 

 
a. Architect shall review all of Contractor’s change order requests to determine if those 

requests are valid and appropriate.  Architect shall provide a recommendation to 
District as to whether the change should be approved, partially approved, returned to 
the Contractor for clarification, or rejected.  

 
b. Architect shall furnish all necessary Construction Change Documents and additional 

drawings for supplementing, clarifying, and/or correcting purposes and for change 
orders.  The District shall request these Construction Change Documents and drawings 
from the Architect, which shall be provided at no additional cost unless designated as 
Extra Services by the District.  The original tracing(s) and/or drawings and contract 
wording for change orders shall be submitted to the District for duplication and 
distribution. 

 
4. Submittals 

 
a. Architect shall review and approve or take other appropriate action upon Contractor's 

submittals such as: shop drawings, Project data, samples and Construction Change 
Documents, but only for the purpose of checking for conformance with information 
given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents.   

 
b. Architect shall review Contractor’s schedule of submittals and advise the District on 

whether that schedule is complete.  Architect shall provide the District with proposed 
revisions to this schedule and advise the District on whether the District should 
approve this schedule. 

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 23 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

c. Architect’s action upon Contractor’s submittals shall be taken as expeditiously as 
possible so as to cause no unreasonable delay in the construction of the Project or in 
the work of Contractor(s), while allowing sufficient time in the Architect’s professional 
judgment to permit adequate review.  In no case shall the review period associated 
with a single, particular submittal exceed twenty-one (21) calendar days from its receipt 
by the Architect.  Architect’s response to each submittal shall be a substantive and 
acceptable response.  This twenty-one (21)-day time period shall not include time 
when a submittal is within the District’s control or if the submittal is being reviewed by 
DSA.  In no way does this provision reduce Architect’s liability if it fails to prepare 
acceptable documents. 

 
5. RFIs.  During the course of construction as part of the basic services, Architect must 

respond to all Requests for Information (“RFI”) as expeditiously as possible so as not to 
impact and delay the construction progress.  In no case shall the review period associated 
with an RFI exceed seven (7) calendar days from receipt by the Architect.  Architect’s 
response to each RFI shall be a substantive and acceptable response.  This seven-day time 
period shall not include time when a submittal is within the District’s control or if the 
submittal is being reviewed by DSA.  In no way does this provision reduce the Architect’s 
liability if it fails to prepare acceptable documents.  Architect must verify that RFIs are 
passed through the Project Inspector, if any. 

 
6. Notices of Deficient Work.  On the basis of on-site observations, Architect shall keep the 

District informed of the progress and the quality of the work, and shall endeavor to guard 
the District against defects and deficiencies in the work.  Architect shall timely notify the 
District in writing of any defects or deficiencies in the work by any of the District’s 
Contractors that Architect may observe.  However, Architect shall not be a guarantor of 
the Contractor's performance.  

 
7. As-Built Drawings.  Architect shall review and evaluate for District the Contractor(s)’ 

documentation of the actual construction performed during the Project that the 
Contractor(s) should prepare and submit as As-Builts.  As-Builts are documents that show 
the actual construction performed during the Project, including changes necessitated by 
Construction Change Documents and change orders, and detailed by the District’s 
construction Contractor(s) on a Conforming Set. 

 
8. Record Drawings.  Architect shall incorporate all information on all As-Builts, sketches, 

details, and clarifications, and prepare one (1) set of final Record Drawings for the District.  
The Record Drawings shall incorporate onto one (1) set of drawings, all changes from all 
As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications, including, without limitation, all requests for 
information, Construction Change Documents and change orders based upon the 
construction Contractor’s representations of actual construction.  Architect shall deliver 
the Record Drawings to the District at completion of the construction in a format 
acceptable to the District, and it shall be a condition precedent to the District’s approval 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 24 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

of Architect’s final payment.  Architect may insert the following notice on the Record 
Drawings: 

 
These drawings [or corrected specifications] have been prepared based 
on information submitted, in part, by others.  Architect has provided a 
review consistent with its legal standard of care. 
 

9. O&M Manuals and Warranties.  Architect shall review equipment, operation and 
maintenance manuals, and a complete set of warranty documents for all equipment and 
installed systems, to ensure that they meet the requirements of the plans and 
specifications.  

 
10. Start-up.  Architect shall also provide, at the District’s request, architectural/engineering 

advice to the District on start-up, break-in, and debugging of facility systems and 
equipment, and on apparent deficiencies or defects in construction following the 
acceptance of the Contractor's work. 

 
11. Payment Statements.  Recommendations of Payment by Architect constitute Architect’s 

representation to the District that work has progressed to the point indicated to the best 
of Architect’s knowledge, information, and belief, and that the quality of the work is in 
general conformance with the Contract Documents.  

 
12. Deliverables and Number of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard 
copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each 
item in electronic format: 

 
a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;  

 
b. Observation reports; and 

 
c. Weekly meeting reports.  

 
13. Meetings 

 
During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis. 

 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 25 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CLOSE-OUT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

I. CLOSE OUT PHASE 
 

1. As the Construction Administration Phase progresses, Architect shall perform the following 
Close Out Phase services for the District as required in a timely manner: 

 
a. Architect shall review the Project and observe the construction as required to 

determine when the Contractor has completed the construction of the Project and 
shall prepare punch lists of items that remain in need of correction or completion. 

 
b. Architect shall collect from the Contractor, review, and forward to the District all written 

warranties, operation manuals, and spare parts with Architect’s recommendation as to 
the adequacy of these items. 

 
c. Architect shall prepare or collect, as applicable, and provide to DSA, all reports required 

by DSA related to the design and construction of the Project. 
 

d. Architect shall respond to the DSA “90-day” letter. 
 

e. Architect shall obtain all required DSA approval of all Construction Change Documents 
and addenda to the Contractor’s contract. 

 
f. Architect shall prepare a set of As-Built Drawings for the Project, as required by the 

District. 
 

g. Architect shall review and prepare a package of all warranty and O&M documentation. 
 

h. Architect shall organize electronic files, plans and prepare a Project binder. 
 

i. Architect shall have primary responsibility to coordinate all Services required to close-
out the design and construction of the Project with the District and among Consultants. 

 
2. When the design and construction of the Project is complete, the District shall prepare and 

record with the County Recorder a Notice of Completion for the Project. 
 

3. Deliverables and Number of Copies 
 

a. Punch list; and 
 

b. Upon completion of the Project, all related Project documents, including As-Builts and 
Record Drawings.  These are the sole property of the District. 

 
4. Meetings 

 
During this phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops as needed. 



 

EXHIBIT B Page B - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “B” 

CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES 

The following Extra Services to the Agreement shall be performed by Architect if needed and if 
authorized or requested by the District: 

A. Providing services as directed by the District that are not part of the Basic Services of this 
Agreement, or otherwise included within Exhibit “A.”    

B. Providing deliverables or other items in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit “A.”  
Before preparing, providing, sending, or invoicing for extra deliverables, Architect shall 
inform the District that expected deliverables may be in excess of the number indicated 
in Exhibit “A,” so that the District can procure the additional deliverables itself or direct 
Architect to procure the deliverables at the District’s expense or on the District’s account 
at a specific vendor. 

C. Making revisions in drawings, specifications, or other documents when such revisions are 
required by the enactment or revisions of codes, laws, or regulations subsequent to the 
preparation of the Conforming Set.  

D. Providing consultation concerning replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause 
during construction and furnishing services required in connection with replacement of 
that work. 

E. Providing services made necessary by the default of Contractor(s). 

F. In the absence of a final Certificate of Payment or Notice of Completion, providing 
services more than ninety (90) days after the date of completion of work by Contractor(s) 
and after Architect has completed all of its obligations and tasks under the Agreement. 

G. Providing services as an expert and/or witness for the District in any mediation, 
arbitration, and/or trial in which the Architect is (1) not a party, and (2) did not in any way 
cause the dispute that is being adjudicated. 

H. The following rates, which include overhead, administrative cost, and profit, shall be 
utilized in arriving at the fee for Extra Services and shall not be changed for the term of 
the Agreement. 

Job Title Hourly Rate 
Principal In Charge: $345.00 
Senior Project Manager: $255.00 
Project Manager: $225.00 
Senior Project Architect: $240.00 
Project Architect: $210.00 
Designer: $175.00 
Intern Designer:: $175.00 
Project Administrator: $120.00 



 

EXHIBIT B Page B - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

I. The mark-up on any approved reimbursable item of Extra Services shall not exceed five 
percent (5%).  

1. The following items are approved for mark-up: 

a. Sub-consultant Invoices. 

2. Any approved item of Extra Services not identified in the above list may not be 
marked-up. 

J. Format and Content of Invoices (Extra Services Only) 

Architect acknowledges that the District requires Architect’s invoices to include detailed 
explanations of the Services performed.  For example, a six hour charge for “RFIs and CORs” 
is unacceptable and will not be payable.  A more detailed explanation, with specificity, is 
required.  This includes a separate entry for each RFI, PCO, CCD and change order.  For 
example, the following descriptions, in addition to complying with all other terms of this 
Agreement, would be payable.  The times indicated below are just placeholders: 

Review RFI 23; review plans and specifications for response to 
same; prepare responses to same and forward to contractor, 
district, construction manager, and project inspector.   

0.8 hours 

Review COR 8; review scope of same and plans and specifications 
for appropriateness of same; prepare draft change order and 
language for same. 

0.7 hours 

Review COR 11; review scope of same and plans and 
specifications for appropriateness of same; prepare rejection of 
COR 11 for review by district, CM, IOR. 

1.2 hours 

 

END OF EXHIBIT 



 

EXHIBIT C Page C - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “C” 

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 

A. Promptly after the execution of this Agreement, Architect shall prepare and submit for 
approval to the District a Schedule of Services showing the order in which Architect 
proposes to carry out Architect's Services (“Schedule of Services”).  The Schedule of Services 
shall apply to the completion of all Services listed hereunder within the times established by 
this Agreement.  The Schedule of Services shall be in the form of a progress chart clearly 
delineating all important increments and review dates.  Architect shall update the Schedule 
of Services on a monthly basis and deliver two (2) hard copies and one (1) electronic copy to 
the District along with the monthly billing. 

B. Architect shall complete Services required under the Development of Architectural Program 
section within _three (3)_ months after written authorization from the District to proceed. 

C. Architect shall complete Services required under the Schematic Design Phase within _Four 
(4)_ months after written authorization from District to proceed. 

D. Architect shall complete Services required under the Design Development Phase within 
_Four (4) months after receipt of a written authorization from District to proceed. 

E. Architect shall complete Services required under Construction Documents Phase within 
_Eight (8)__ months after written authorization from District to proceed, and as more 
specifically indicated below.  Excluded from this duration is the time associated with DSA 
review the Construction Documents back-check stage. 

1. DSA Review & Approval _5_ months 
2. Bidding/Procurement/Award (partial overlap w/DSA review) _2_ months 
3. Construction Administration (accounting for phasing) _20_ months 
4. Project Closeout 2 months 

F. The durations stated above include the review periods of _48__ months required by the 
District.  

G. All times to complete tasks set forth in this Exhibit are of the essence, as indicated in the 
Agreement.  If delays in the Schedule of Services are incurred as a result of the District’s 
inability to comply with requested meeting schedules, Architect shall maintain the right to 
request an adjustment in the Schedule of Services if deemed necessary to meet the 
deadlines set forth in this Exhibit.  If approved, those extensions shall be authorized in 
writing by the District. 

 

 

END OF EXHIBIT 



 

EXHIBIT D Page D - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES   
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “D” 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

A. Compensation 

1. The payment of consideration to Architect as provided herein shall be full 
compensation for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof, 
including, printing and shipping of deliverables in the quantities set forth in Exhibit 
“A,”  Except as expressly set forth in the Agreement and Exhibit “B,” there shall be 
no payment for extra costs or expenses. 

2. The total compensation to Architect shall be as stated in Article 6 of the Agreement. 

3. District shall pay Architect as follows for all Services contracted for under this 
Agreement: 

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL FEE PER PHASE 
      Phase Phase Amount 
Pre-Design/Architectural Program Development Phase 2.5% 
Schematic Design Phase 10% 
Design Development Phase 15% 
Construction Documents Phase-Submittal to DSA 27.5% 
Approval by DSA 10% 

Bidding Phase 2% 
Construction Contract Administration Phase 23% 
Close Out Phase 10% 
 Generate Punch List 2%  
 Sign Off On Punch List 2%  
 Receive and Review All M & O Documents 2%  
 Filing All DSA Required Close Out Documents 2%  
 Receiving DSA Close Out, including DSA  
         approval of the final set of Record Drawings 2% 

 

TOTAL BASE COMPENSATION 100% 

Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Additional 
Services and will be billed at a multiple of 1.10% the expenses incurred. These 
charges include, but are not limited to, expenses incurred which are directly 
related to the Project, such as reproductions, plans and plots for owner, agency 
or contractor’s use, standard form documents, postage, handling and delivery of 
Instruments of Service, and mileage. Reimbursable expenses are not expected to 
exceed $180,000. 

 

 

 



 

EXHIBIT D Page D - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES   
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

B. Method of Payment 

1. Invoices shall be on a form approved by the District and are to be submitted to the 
District via the District’s authorized representative. 

2. Architect shall submit to District on a monthly basis documentation showing proof 
that payments were made to its Consultant(s). 

3. Architect shall submit to the District for approval a copy of the Architect’s monthly 
pay request format. 

4. Upon receipt and approval of Architect’s invoices, the District agrees to make 
payments of undisputed amounts within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice as 
follows: 

a. Pre- Design/Architectural Program Development Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Pre-Design/Architectural 
Program.

b. For Schematic Design Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Schematic Design Phase by 
the District. 

c. For Design Development Phase:  

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Design Development Phase 
by the District. 

d. For Construction Documents Phase: 

Monthly payments for percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-five 
percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Construction Documents 
Phase by the District.  

e. For Bidding Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon the District’s award of the bid. 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT D Page D - 3 

AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

f. For Construction Contract Administration Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon the District’s notice of completion. 

g. For Close Out: 

Lump sum payment no sooner than thirty-five (35) days and no later than 
forty-five (45) days after completion of all items in this Phase. 

 
END OF EXHIBIT 



 

 

EXHIBIT E Page E - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

EXHIBIT “E” 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Architect shall procure, prior to commencement of the Services of this Agreement and 
maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons 
or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the 
Services hereunder by the Architect, his agents, representatives, employees and 
Consultant(s).  Architect’s liabilities, including but not limited to Architect’s indemnity or 
defense obligations, under this Agreement shall not be deemed limited in any way to the 
insurance coverage required herein. Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a 
material element of this Agreement and Architect’s failure to maintain or renew coverage or 
to provide evidence of renewal during the term of this Agreement, as required or when 
requested, may be treated by the District as a material breach of contract. 

B. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance:  Coverage shall be at least as broad as the 
following scopes and limits. Umbrella or Excess Liability policies are acceptable where the 
need for higher liability limits is noted and shall provide liability coverages that at least 
follow form over the underlying insurance requirements where necessary for Commercial 
General Liability, Commercial Automobile Liability, Employers’ Liability, and other liability 
coverage (except Professional Liability) designated under this Section B – Insurance 
Requirements.” Minimum Scope of Insurance: 

1. Commercial General Liability.  Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence for 
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability 
or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate 
limit shall apply separately to each project/location or the general aggregate limit 
shall be twice the required occurrence limit.  

2. Commercial Automobile Liability. Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per accident for 
bodily injury and property damage. 

 
3. Workers' Compensation Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are 

subject to this Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or 
federal law, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, a Workers' Compensation 
policy.   

 
4. Employers’ Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are subject to this 

Agreement, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, an Employment Practices 
Liability policy with minimum liability coverage of two million dollars ($2,000,000) per 
occurrence.   

 
5. Professional Liability.  This insurance shall cover the prime design professional and 

his/her consultant(s) on a Claims Made basis for two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) 
aggregate limit subject to no more than two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) 
per claim deductible, coverage to continue through completion of construction plus 
two (2) years thereafter. 



 

 

EXHIBIT E Page E - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

C. District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with 
appropriate credits or changes to be negotiated for such changes.  

D. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention:  Architect shall inform the District in writing if any 
deductibles or self-insured retention exceeds two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000).  At 
the option of the District, either:  

1. The District can accept the higher deductible; 

2. Architect’s insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retention 
as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or  

E. Other Insurance Provisions:  The general liability and automobile liability policies are to 
contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  

1. The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, 
agents, and volunteers (“Additional Insureds”) are to be covered as additional 
insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the 
Architect; Instruments of Service and completed operations of the Architect; premises 
owned, occupied or used by the Architect; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or 
borrowed by the Architect.  The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the 
scope of protection afforded to the Additional Insureds.  

 
2. For any claims related to the projects, Architect’s insurance coverage shall be primary 

insurance as respects the Additional Insureds.  Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of Architect’s insurance and 
shall not contribute with it.  

 
3. Architect shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of 

subrogation against District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, 
agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers. 

 
4. Architect’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is 

made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.  

5. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including 
breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.  

 
6. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage 

shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except 
after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, 
has been given to the District.  

 
7. Architect shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for required waivers 

of subrogation or the endorsement of additional insureds. If Architect fails to 



 

 

EXHIBIT E Page E - 3 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

maintain insurance, District may take out comparable insurance, and deduct and 
retain amount of premium from any sums due Architect under the Agreement. 

8. Architect shall require all sub consultants to maintain the level of insurance Architect 
deems appropriate with respect to the consultant’s scope of the Work unless 
otherwise indicated in the Agreement. Architect shall cause the sub consultants to 
furnish proof thereof to District within ten (10) days of District’s request. Should 
Architect not require sub consultants to provide the same level of insurance as is 
required of Architect, as provided in this Agreement, Architect is not relieved of its 
indemnity obligations to District or fulfilling its insurance requirements as provided in 
this Agreement. 

F. Acceptability of Insurers:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in California 
with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: VII.  Architect shall inform the District in 
writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best’s rating less than A: VII.  At the option of the 
District, the District may either:  

1. Accept the lower rating; or 

2. Require Architect to procure insurance from another insurer. 

G. Verification of Coverage:  Prior to commencing with its provision of Services under this 
Agreement, Architect shall furnish District with:  

1. Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverages; 
and 

 
2. Original endorsements affecting general liability and automobile liability coverage.  

The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind 
coverages on its behalf.  All endorsements are to be received and approved by the 
District before Services commence.  

H. Copy of Insurance Policy(ies): Upon the District’s request, Architect will furnish District with 
a copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services under this Agreement. 

 
 

END OF EXHIBIT 
 
 



 

 

  
EXHIBIT F Page G - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “F” 
 

IRAN CONTRACTING ACT CERTIFICATION  
(Public Contract Code Sections 2202-2208) 

PROJECT/CONTRACT NO.:   Fern Bacon MS Modernization and New Construction /478 between 
the Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”) and  Nacht & Lewis Architects (“Consultant”) 
(“Contract” or “Project”). 

Prior to bidding on or submitting a proposal for a contract for goods or services of $1,000,000 or 
more, the bidder/proposer must submit this certification pursuant to Public Contract Code section 
2204.   

The proposer must complete ONLY ONE of the following two options.  To complete OPTION 1, 
check the corresponding box and complete the certification below. To complete OPTION 2, check 
the corresponding box, complete the certification below, and attach documentation demonstrating 
the exemption approval.   

 OPTION 1. Proposer is not on the current list of persons engaged in investment activities 
in Iran created by the California Department of General Services (“DGS”) pursuant to Public 
Contract Code section 2203(b), and we are not a financial institution extending twenty million 
dollars ($20,000,000) or more in credit to another person, for 45 days or more, if that other 
person will use the credit to provide goods or services in the energy sector in Iran and is 
identified on the current list of persons engaged in investment activities in Iran created by 
DGS.  

 OPTION 2. Proposer has received a written exemption from the certification requirement 
pursuant to Public Contract Code sections 2203(c) and (d). A copy of the written 
documentation demonstrating the exemption approval is included with our proposal.   

CERTIFICATION: 

I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY, that I am duly authorized to 
legally bind the bidder/proposer to the OPTION selected above. This certification is made under the 
laws of the State of California. 

Vendor Name/Financial Institution (Printed) Federal ID Number (or n/a) 

By (Authorized Signature) 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing Date Executed 

END OF DOCUMENT 

X

Nacht & Lewis Architects, Inc.                                                    94-26888872

Brian J. Maytum, Principal / Vice President                                 September 15, 2023



�

������������������� ����������	
���
�������
���������������������������������������
���������	�������

����������������������������� ��!����!�!�����������"�������

��"#���$�
%�����������&�'��
����(��)*)+



�

���������	�
��
��������������� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �������� �� !"�#�$���#����%�&������'�(�!��)�"�������*��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��������+�� �*�!�'��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������,��������,�� !"-�(.&�����/��0������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������,��������1�� ������."����������2.(3���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������1��������4�� 5���'�(�*��-�(����6'7���������2'��"�!��)�"����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������4��������8�� 6'7����������9��'�!��)�"��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������8��������:�� ;<����-�#�����'�'����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������8���������=�� ������'�������������'"������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������:������������ ��(�����7�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������=������������ ���(."�����6��>�"��!����'�(�5��3��#������3������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������=��������� �� ��#����%�&����������-��������"��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������+�� ��'%�&��7����������"��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������,�� ���.�'�"�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������1�� ?��(��"�����'������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������1���������4�� ��)��'����3'�����������3����5��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������1���������8�� ��������3�������@*�(���"'����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������1���������:�� ?��A����3����������3�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������1���������=�� �'<$�B��.������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������1������������ �&����'��)�����#.������&.������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������1������������ ��&&��3�����&'���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������4��������� �� !�)��'%�&��7����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������4�



�

��������	
�� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	��� �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	 �� �����!"�#�������$�!�#���������%���"���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&���������	��� ������"#��"����'�(��"#�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&���������	��� !"��)��%�*�������+��"�����������"���,���"#"��"������������������������������������������������������������������������������&���������	&�� !"���"#�-���"./�������%"�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&���������01�� 2�/���,��3"�"��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	1���������0��� �4/")"�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	���567898:;�<=>�?�<5>�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� ����������������
���������	�������

����������������� �!""#$""%&�

�'())�)*+�,-(��-*�+(��+.-*���*�')�)*+��)(/.�)��� 0123�45677879:�;<6�=<93:6>?:2<9�@A9A57879:�B76C2?73�DE45677879:FG�23�8AH7�A3�<;�I?:<J76�KL�MNMOL�J7:P779�:17�BA?6A879:<�=2:Q�R92;27H�B?1<<S�T23:62?:L�A�=AS2;<692A�U>JS2?�3?1<<S�H23:62?:�DET23:62?:FGL�A9H�V2:?17SSW=X@L�Y9?Z�DE=@FG�DJ<:1�?<SS7?:2C7SQ�E[A6:273FGL�;<6�:17�;<SS<P295�U6<\7?:�DE[6<\7?:FG]��017�?<93:6>?:2<9�AH82923:6A:2<9�<;�=ZVZ�@?=SA:?1Q�̂251�B?1<<S�̂_4=�[6<\7?:�S<?A:7H�A:�OǸ �̀a677U<6:�b<>S7CA6HL�BA?6A879:<�=4��cKded��B77�)f��g���h�i�;<6�H7:A2S7H�[6<\7?:�3?<U7Z�017�[6<\7?:�8AQ�29?S>H7�8>S:2US7�?<8U<979:3Z�49Q�<97�<;�:17�?<8U<979:3�<6�?<8J29A:2<9�:1767<;�8AQ�J7�?1A957HL�29?S>H295�:76829A:7HL�A3�29H2?A:7H�176729L�P2:1<>:�?1A95295�29�A9Q�PAQ�:17�678A29295�?<8U<979:D3G�<6�:123�45677879:Z�017�U6<C232<93�<;�:123�45677879:�31ASS�AUUSQ�:<�7A?1�?<8U<979:�P2:1<>:�675A6H�:<�:17�3:A:>3�<;�:17�678A29295�?<8U<979:D3GZ�=@�31ASS�29C<2?7�;<6�7A?1�?<8U<979:�37UA6A:7SQ�A9H�T23:62?:�31ASS�?<8U793A:7�=@�;<6�7A?1�?<8U<979:�37UA6A:7SQ�<9�A�U6<U<6:2<9A:7�JA323�JA37H�<9�:17�S7C7S�A9H�3?<U7�<;�P<6j�?<8US7:7H�;<6�7A?1�?<8U<979:Z�a<6�A9H�29�?<932H76A:2<9�<;�:17�8>:>AS�?<C79A9:3�176729�?<9:A297HL�:17�[A6:273�1767:<�A5677�A3�;<SS<P3]��(+.�k)��l� ��	�����
���eZe� Y9�AHH2:2<9�:<�:17�H7;292:2<93�AJ<C7L�:17�;<SS<P295�H7;292:2<93�;<6�P<6H3�<6�U16A373�31ASS�AUUSQ�P179�>37H�29�:123�45677879:L�29?S>H295�ASS�Xm12J2:3]�eZeZe� ���������n�017�45677879:�?<9323:3�7m?S>32C7SQ�<;�:123�H<?>879:�A9H�ASS�2H79:2;27H�7m12J2:3�A::A?17H�A9H�29?<6U<6A:7H�JQ�67;7679?7Z�eZeZM� ���������n�017�A6?12:7?:D3G�:1A:�:17�T23:62?:�H73259A:73�A3�J7295�:17�A6?12:7?:D3G�;<6�ASS�<6�A�U<6:2<9�<;�:17�[6<\7?:L�29?S>H295�ASS�?<93>S:A9:3�:<�:17�46?12:7?:D3GZ�eZeZO� ��op�������q�����rh��op����isn�49Q�H<?>879:�U67UA67H�A9H�3>J82::7H�JQ�T23:62?:�=<9:6A?:<6�:1A:�H7:A2S3�<9�A�=<9;<68295�B7:L�:17�A?:>AS�?<93:6>?:2<9�U76;<687H�H>6295�:17�[6<\7?:L�29?S>H295�?1A9573�97?7332:A:7H�JQ�=<93:6>?:2<9�=1A957�T<?>879:3�A9H�?1A957�<6H763L�A9H�H7:A2S7H�JQ�:17�T23:62?:t3�?<93:6>?:2<9�=<9:6A?:<6�<9�A�=<9;<68295�B7:Z��eZeZu� p
���n�017�T23:62?:t3�v<C769295�b<A6HZ�eZeZK� �
�	
���������n�017�USA93L�H6AP2953L�A9H�3U7?2;2?A:2<93�A:�:17�79H�<;�:17�b2HH295�[1A37�:1A:�29?<6U<6A:7�ASS�AHH79HAL�2;�A9QL�233>7H�H>6295�:17�b2HH295�[1A37Z��eZeZ̀� �
�������
��p����n�017�:<:AS�A8<>9:�29H2?A:7H�JQ�:17�T23:62?:�;<6�:17�[6<\7?:�US>3�ASS�<:176�?<3:3L�29?S>H295�H73259L�?<93:6>?:2<9L�AH82923:6A:2<9L�;29A9?295L�A9H�ASS�<:176�?<3:3Z�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� ����������������
���������	�������

����������������� �!""#$""%&�

'('()� �
�������
����������
�������*+���,-.�/01�2345617898:37�3;�4097<1=�83�801�>?@A9BBC3D12�437=8C548:37�23456178=(�'('(E� �
�������
���
���F����.�/01�8389G�43=8�83�>:=8C:48�3;�9GG�1G16178=�3;�9�HC3I148�21=:<712�3C�=B14:;:12�JK�801�@C40:8148L�9=�92I5=812�25C:7<�972�98�801�172�3;�801�21=:<7�B09=1�:7�9443C29741�M:80�80:=�@<C116178�972�801�@<C116178�;3C�@C40:81485C9G�?1CD:41=(�/01�N37=8C548:37�N3=8�O52<18�231=�738�:74G521�801�436B17=98:37�3;�801�HC3I148�>1=:<7�/196L�801�HC3<C96�P979<1CL�801�NP�972�97K�=5J437=5G8978=L�801�43=8�3;�801�G972L�C:<08=A3;AM9KL�3C�;:7974:7<L�M0:40�9C1�801�C1=B37=:J:G:8K�3;�801�>:=8C:48(�'('(Q� �
�������
���������.�/01�178:8K�G:=812�:7�801�;:C=8�B9C9<C9B0�3;�80:=�@<C116178(���'('('R� �
�������*�-.�@7K�972�9GG�437=5G8978S=TL�=5JA437=5G8978S=TL�=5J4378C9483CS=TL�3C�9<178S=T�83�801�NP(�'('(''� �
������
�.�U71�3C�63C1�G:417=12�972�C1<:=81C12�4378C9483C=�5721C�4378C948�M:80�801�>:=8C:48�;3C�437=8C548:37�3;�9GG�3C�9�B3C8:37�3;�801�HC3I148(�'('('V� �������W���.�/01�@C40:8148S=T�8098�801�>:=8C:48�21=:<7981=�9=�J1:7<�801�9C40:8148S=T�;3C�9GG�3C�9�B3C8:37�3;�801�HC3I148L�:74G52:7<�9GG�437=5G8978=�83�801�@C40:8148S=TL�BG5=�9GG�17<:711CS=T�3C�3801C�21=:<71CS=TL�M03�09D1�9�C1=B37=:J:G:8K�83�801�>:=8C:48�83�21=:<7�9GG�3C�9�B3C8:37�3;�801�HC3I148�1:801C�2:C148GK�3C�9=�9�=5J437=5G8978�3C�=5J4378C9483C(�/01�81C6�>1=:<7�/196�:74G521=�801�>1=:<7�HC3;1==:379G�:7�X171C9G�Y1=B37=:JG1�N09C<1�37�80:=�HC3I148(�'('('Z� �[\.�N9G:;3C7:9�>1B9C86178�3;�]725=8C:9G�Y1G98:37=(�'('('̂� ��������.�/01�?94C961783�N:8K�_7:;:12�?4033G�>:=8C:48(�'('('̀� ��������a��\�b�����������.�/01�:72:D:259G�:2178:;:12�01C1:7�8098�:=�95803C:c12�83�948�37�801�>:=8C:48d=�J109G;�M:80�C1=B148�83�801�HC3I148(�/01�:7:8:9G�>:=8C:48d=�Y1BC1=17898:D1�=09GG�J1�N0C:=�Y9G=837L�>:C1483C�]]]�3;�e94:G:8:1=(�>:=8C:48�69K�4097<1�801�>:=8C:48d=�Y1BC1=17898:D1�JK�738:41�9=�=18�;3C80�01C1:7(�'('('f� ���.�>:D:=:37�3;�801�?8981�@C40:8148�:7�801�N9G:;3C7:9�>1B9C86178�3;�X171C9G�?1CD:41=(�'('(')� gh������������.�>:=8C:48A95803C:c12�?1CD:41=�358=:21�3;�801�=43B1�:7�gh��i���+�,�3C�>:=8C:48A95803C:c12�C1:6J5C=9JG1=�738�:74G5212�:7�NPd=�;11(�'('('E� j��.�/01�NPd=�e11�:=�21;:712�:7�@C8:4G1�)�972�B9K9JG1�9=�=18�;3C80�:7�gh��i���+�k,��



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� ����������������
���������	�������

����������������� �!""#$""%&�

'('(')� ��
������������*�+,-�./01/23�32,214/�56/47�80�.4/90/3�./01/23�32,21434,8�:4/;6<4:�90/�854�=6:8/6<8>�6,<?@76,1�2??�A0,:@?82,8B:C�80�854�D/01/23�E2,214/(��'('(FG� ��
H����I��J���
�K�I��J���
��
	�L��
��K�IML*�N54�214,8�09�854�=O+�28�854�./0P4<8�:684�Q50:4�./632/-�/4:.0,:6R6?68-�Q6??�R4�80�6,:@/4�8528�854�./0P4<8�6:�<0,:8/@<847�6,�<03.?62,<4�Q685�<@//4,8�<074:S�=O+T2../0;47�.?2,:�2,7�:.4<696<2860,:�/4?286,1�80�96/4�?694�:2948->�:8/@<8@/4>�2,7�2<<4::6R6?68-S�2,7�U@2?68-�<0,8/0?:�/4U@6/47�09�2�.@R?6<�Q0/V:�92<6?68-(�N54�WXY�Q6??�/4.0/8�80�R085�854�=O+�2,7�854�+/<5684<8(�'('(F'� L��
������Z����*�+�96,2?�:48�09�7/2Q6,1:�./4.2/47�R-�854�+/<5684<8�6,<0/.0/286,1�2??�<52,14:�9/03�2??�+:T[@6?8:>�:V48<54:>�74826?:>�2,7�<?2/696<2860,:(�'('(FF� �������\�]*�+??�?2R0/>�3284/62?:>�:@.4/;6:60,>�:4/;6<4:>�82:V:>�2,7�Q0/V�8528�854�AE�6:�/4U@6/47�80�.4/90/3�2,7�8528�2/4�/4U@6/47�R->�0/�/42:0,2R?-�6,94//47�9/03>�854�+1/4434,8>�2,7�8528�2/4�,4<4::2/-�90/�854�74:61,�2,7�<03.?4860,�09�854�D/0P4<8(���L̂I�_̀�ab� �̂���F('� �̂��*�N56:�+1/4434,8�:52??�R4<034�4994<86;4�0,�O4.843R4/�'>�FGFc>�2,7>�4d<4.8�2:�0854/Q6:4�./0;6747�54/46,>�Q6??�<0,86,@4�6,�4994<8�@,86?�=4<43R4/�c'>�FGFe(��L̂I�_̀��b� ��
J�K�L��J
���f���������������������
	����c('� ��
J�*�AE�:52??�./0;674�854�O4/;6<4:�74:</6R47�54/46,�2,7�@,74/�̀g��f���h�i�90/�854�D/0P4<8(��c(F� ���������
	�����*�AE>�68:�0996<4/:>�214,8:>�43.?0-44:>�:@R<0,8/2<80/:>�A0,:@?82,8:�2,7�2,-�.4/:0,:�0/�4,86864:�90/�Q503�AE�6:�/4:.0,:6R?4>�:52??�./0;674�2??�O4/;6<4:�.@/:@2,8�80�856:�+1/4434,8�6,�2<<0/72,<4�Q685�854�/4U@6/434,8:�09�856:�+1/4434,8�2,7�6,�2�32,,4/�<0,:6:84,8�Q685�854�:82,72/7�09�<2/4�@,74/�A2?690/,62�?2Q�2..?6<2R?4�80�850:4�Q50�:.4<62?6j4�6,�./0;676,1�854�:234�:4/;6<4:�90/�./0P4<8:�09�854�8-.4>�:<0.4>�2,7�<03.?4d68-�09�854�D/0P4<8(�N54�=6:8/6<8k:�/4;64Q>�2../0;2?�09>�0/�.2-34,8�90/�2,-�09�854�O4/;6<4:�/4U@6/47�@,74/�856:�+1/4434,8�:52??�,08�R4�<0,:8/@47�2:�2::4,8�8528�AE�52:�<03.?647>�,0/�6,�2,-�Q2-�/4?64;4�854�AE�09�<03.?62,<4>�Q685�B6C�854�2..?6<2R?4�:82,72/7�09�<2/4>�0/�B66C�2..?6<2R?4�:828@84:>�/41@?2860,:>�/@?4:>�1@674?6,4:�2,7�/4U@6/434,8:(�c(c� �

�������
�*�W,�854�.4/90/32,<4�09�AEk:�:4/;6<4:�@,74/�856:�+1/4434,8>�AE�21/44:�8528�68�Q6??�326,826,�<00/76,2860,�Q685�=6:8/6<8T74:61,2847�/4./4:4,8286;4:�2:�32-�R4�/4U@4:847�2,7�74:6/2R?4(�N56:�:52??�6,<?@74>�Q6850@8�?63682860,>�<00/76,2860,�Q685�2??�343R4/:�09�854�=6:8/6<8k:�=4:61,�N423>�854�D/0P4<8�W,:.4<80/>�2,7�854�D/01/23�E2,214/(��



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� ����������������
���������	�������

����������������� �!""#$""%&�

'()� *������
��������+�,-�./0�12�0345678�89:;<6=895.>=.?8@A�./0�12�8/>55�0=89B0�./>.�C.8�<6=.B><.?8@�DC./�C.8�89:;<6=895.>=.?8@�C=<59E0�5>=F9>F0�C=<6B46B>.C=F�./0�.0B38�6-�./C8�GFB0030=.(�'(H� ��I��������������J�K�����������+�12�DC55�><.�>8�./0�LC8.BC<.M8�>F0=.�.6�B0=E0B�./0�N0BOC<08�>=E�-9B=C8/�./0�D6BP�>8�E08<BC:0E�C=�QR��S���T�UV�<6330=<C=F�DC./�./0�B0<0C4.�6-�>�DBC..0=�W6.C<0�.6�XB6<00E�8CF=0E�:7�./0�LC8.BC<.�Y04B080=.>.CO0(�12M8�80BOC<08�DC55�:0�<63450.0E�C=�><<6BE>=<0�DC./�./0�8</0E950�>..></0E�>8�QR��S���T�ZV�L9BC=F�./0�XB6[0<.M8�16=8.B9<.C6=�X/>80A�./0�LC8.BC<.�3>7�B0\9CB0�./>.�./0�16=.B><.6B8�89:3C.�>55�=6.C<08�>=E�<6339=C<>.C6=�B05>.C=F�.6�./0�XB6[0<.�ECB0<.57�.6�./0�12(�'(]� J����̂ �
	�_�������*S������
��̀ 
�����
�����J�K
���������������I��a���������������������+�12�DC55�B0OC0D�./0�LC8.BC<.M8�b><C5C.C08�2>8.0B�X5>=�-6B�./0�LC8.BC<.�>=E�6./0B�DBC..0=�3>.0BC>58�./0�LC8.BC<.�3>P08�>O>C5>:50�:7�./0�LC8.BC<.�.6�12�.6�9=E0B8.>=E�-9557�./0�=>.9B0A�0c.0=.�>=E�C=.0=.�6-�./0�b><C5C.C08�X5>=�>=E�./0�XB6[0<.(�'(d� J����̂ �
	��������e+�12�DC55�B0OC0D�20>89B0�f�>=E�6./0B�DBC..0=�3>.0BC>58�3>E0�>O>C5>:50�:7�./0�LC8.BC<.�.6�12�./>.�B05>.0�.6�20>89B0�f�.6�-9557�9=E0B8.>=E�./0�0c.0=.�6-�-9=EC=F�>O>C5>:50�.6�C345030=.�./0�LC8.BC<.M8�2>8.0B�b><C5C.C08�X5>=�-6B�./0�LC8.BC<.A�./0�>=.C<C4>.0E�8</0E950�-6B�C889>=<0�6-�g6=E8�9=E0B�20>89B0�f�B05>.CO0�.6�./0�>=.C<C4>.0E�E08CF=A�:CEEC=F�>=E�<6=8.B9<.C6=�6-�4B6[0<.8(��'(h� QRK����
��
	�i
�j�S�����
��������
����a���+�N/695E�./0�g6>BE�E0<CE0�.6�0c4>=E�./0�8<640�6-�./0�XB6[0<.�>=Ek6B�89445030=.�./0�16=8.B9<.C6=�g9EF0.�:>80E�946=�>O>C5>:C5C.7�6-�>EEC.C6=>5�-9=E8A�16=8.B9<.C6=�2>=>F0B�>FB008�.6�40B-6B3�./0�>EEC.C6=>5�8<640�6-�D6BP�9=E0B�./0�-00�>=E�<68.�.0B38�6-�./C8�GFB0030=.(�'(l� �
�	������
	�m����������
��S����+���'(l(n� 12�9=E0B8.>=E8�./>.�LC8.BC<.�6--C<C>58�>=E�034567008�>B0�4B6/C:C.0E�-B63�C=O65O030=.�C=�E0<C8C6=8�C=�D/C</�./07�3>7�/>O0�>�-C=>=<C>5�C=.0B08.�49B89>=.�.6�o6O0B=30=.�16E0�80<.C6=8�nplp�>=E�hdnpp�0.�80\(A�>=E�<0B.C-C08�./>.�C.�E608�=6.�P=6D�6-�>=7�-><.8�C=EC<>.C=F�./>.�>=7�LC8.BC<.�6--C<C>5�6B�03456700�/>8�>=�6D=0B8/C4�6B�6./0B�-C=>=<C>5�C=.0B08.A�ECB0<.�6B�C=ECB0<.A�C=�./C8�GFB0030=.(��b9B./0BA�12�/0B0:7�<0B.C-C08�./>.�=6�<9BB0=.�LC8.BC<.�6--C<C>5�6B�03456700�6-�./0�LC8.BC<.A�>=E�=6�6=0�D/6�/>8�:00=�>�LC8.BC<.�6--C<C>5�6B�03456700�6-�./0�LC8.BC<.�DC./C=�./0�4>8.�.D6�70>B8�/>8�4>B.C<C4>.0E�C=�:CEEC=FA�8055C=F�6B�4B636.C=F�./C8�GFB0030=.(��12�9=E0B8.>=E8�./>.�C=�>EEC.C6=�.6�./0�B030EC08�>O>C5>:50�>.�5>DA�./>.�>=7�->C59B0�.6�4B6OCE0�>=�><<9B>.0�<0B.C-C<>.C6=�6B�>=7�OC65>.C6=�6-�./C8�4B6OC8C6=�8/>55�3>P0�./0�GFB0030=.�O6CE>:50�:7�LC8.BC<.(��'(l(q� 12�8/>55�=6.�:0�40B3C..0E�.6�89:3C.�4B6468>58�6B�6./0BDC80�800P�<6=.B><.8�-6B�./0�-6556DC=F�80BOC<08�.6�:0�4B6<9B0E�:7�./0�LC8.BC<.�C=�<6==0<.C6=�DC./�>=7�4B6[0<.�<6O0B0E�:7�./C8�GFB0030=.r�L08CF=�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� ����������������
���������	�������

����������������� �!""#$""%&�

'()*+,,-)./01�234,�)(�5+,672.,8+96-).:�2*�;<�-=+.6-*-+,�8)6+.6-/0�>+,-?.�'()*+,,-)./0,1�'()@+96�2.,8+96)(,�)(�5+,672.,8+96-).�,+(A-9+,�-.�9)..+96-).�B-6C�/�8()@+961�;<�,C/00�/**-(D/6-A+0E�/.=�F.+GF-A)9/00E�(+8(+,+.6�/.=�B/((/.6�6)�6C+�>-,6(-96�6C/6�.+-6C+(�;<�.)(�/.E�8+(,).�BC)�C)0=,�+GF-6E�-.6+(+,6�-.�;<H,�)(?/.-I/6-).�-,�/�*)(D+(�)(�9F((+.6�C)0=+(�)*�/.E�+GF-6E�-.6+(+,6�-.�6C+�*-(D�-=+.6-*-+=�)(�C/,�/.E�*-./.9-/0�-.6+(+,6�-.�6C+�*-(D�-=+.6-*-+=:�>-,6(-96�(+,+(A+,�6C+�,)0+�=-,9(+6-).�6)�B/-A+�6C-,�,FJ,+96-).H,�(+GF-(+D+.6,�).�/�9/,+KJEK9/,+�J/,-,:��LMN�OP�QR� ������		�S:T� 5C+�>-,6(-96�,+0+96+=�;<�6)�8+(*)(D�6C+�U+(A-9+,�J+9/F,+�)*�6C+�;<H,�,V-00,�/.=�+W8+(6-,+�)*�V+E�8+(,)..+0:��S:X� ;<�/?(++,�6C/6�6C+�*)00)B-.?�V+E�8+(,)..+0�-.�;<H,�*-(D�,C/00�J+�/,,)9-/6+=�B-6C�6C+�'()@+96�/.=�8+(*)(D�6C+�U+(A-9+,�-.�6C+�*)00)B-.?�9/8/9-6-+,Y�'()@+96�>-(+96)(Y� � >/.�')(6+(�'()@+96�</./?+(�227;<Y� 4E/.�Z/=+��[-+0=�\.?7'()@+96�\.?�22Y� ]̂ _̀ab�cde�S:f� ;<�,C/00�.)6�9C/.?+�/.E�)*�6C+�V+E�8+(,)..+0�0-,6+=�/J)A+�B-6C)F6�6C+�>-,6(-96H,�8(-)(�B(-66+.�/88()A/01�F.0+,,�,/-=�8+(,)..+0�9+/,+�6)�J+�+D80)E+=�JE�;<:�4+?/(=0+,,�)*�6C+�(+/,).�*)(�6C+�9C/.?+�-.�V+E�8+(,)..+01�>-,6(-96�,C/00�J+�/00)B+=�6)�-.6+(A-+B�/.=�(+6/-.,�6C+�(-?C6�6)�/88()A+�(+80/9+D+.6�8+(,)..+0:��S:S� 2*�/.E�=+,-?./6+=�0+/=�)(�V+E�8+(,).�*/-0,�6)�8+(*)(D�6)�6C+�,/6-,*/96-).�)*�6C+�>-,6(-961�6C+.�F8).�6C+�>-,6(-96H,�B(-66+.�.)6-9+1�6C+�;<�B-00�C/A+�,+A+.�ghi�9/0+.=/(�=/E,�6)�(+D)A+�6C/6�8+(,).�*()D�6C+�'()@+96�/.=�,C/00�8()A-=+�/�(+80/9+D+.6�8+(,).�/99+86/J0+�6)�6C+�>-,6(-96:��S:S:T� j00�0+/=�)(�V+E�8+(,)..+0�*)(�/.E�;).,F06/.6�DF,6�/0,)�J+�=+,-?./6+=�JE�6C+�;).,F06/.6�/.=�/(+�,FJ@+96�6)�/00�9).=-6-).,�,6/6+=�-.�6C-,�j?(++D+.6:�S:k� ;<�(+8(+,+.6,�6C/6�6C+�;).,6(F96-).�</./?+(�C/,�.)�+W-,6-.?�-.6+(+,6�/.=�B-00�.)6�/9GF-(+�/.E�-.6+(+,61�=-(+96�)(�-.=-(+961�6C/6�9)F0=�9).*0-96�-.�/.E�D/..+(�)(�=+?(++�B-6C�6C+�8+(*)(D/.9+�)*�U+(A-9+,�(+GF-(+=�F.=+(�6C-,�j?(++D+.6:�;<�/?(++,�*F(6C+(�6C/6�.)�8+(,).�C/A-.?�/.E�,F9C�-.6+(+,6�,C/00�J+�+D80)E+=�JE�;<:��LMN�OP��R� ��������
	�l
�m�;<�,C/00�9)DD+.9+�B)(V�F.=+(�6C-,�j?(++D+.6�F8).�(+9+-86�)*�/�n)6-9+�6)�'()9++=�/.=�,C/00�8(),+9F6+�6C+�B)(V�=-0-?+.60E�/,�=+,9(-J+=�-.�Po��p���q�r�,)�/,�6)�8()9++=�B-6C�/.=�9)D80+6+�6C+�U+(A-9+,�-.�9)D80-/.9+�B-6C�6C+�,9C+=F0+�/66/9C+=�/,�Po��p���



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� ����������������
���������	�������

����������������� �!""#$""%&�

'�()�*+,-�+.�/0�12-�-..-34-�536�05+789-�/0�:;�1/�<-90/9,�=/9>�/3�1+,-�5.�.<-4+0+-6�+3�12+.�?@9--,-31�+.�5�,51-9+57�A9-542�/0�12+.�?@9--,-31B���CDE�FG��(� �
�������
���
���H�����IBJ� :;�.2577�25K-�9-.</3.+A+7+1LM�57/3@�=+12�12-�?942+1-41M�1/�6-K-7/<M�9-K+-=M�536�9-4/34+7-�12-�:/3.19841+/3�:/.1�N86@-1�<-9�O9/P-41�=+12�12-�?942+1-41�536�12-�Q+.19+41�129/8@2/81�12-�6-.+@3�<9/4-..�536�4/3.19841+/3B��IBR� *2-�:/3.19841+/3�:/.1�N86@-1�.2577�A-�12-�1/157�4/.1�1/�Q+.19+41�/0�577�O9/P-41�-7-,-31.�12-�Q-.+@3�*-5,�6-.+@3.�/9�.<-4+0+-.B��IBS� :;�.2577�=/9>�4//<-951+K-7L�=+12�12-�O9/P-41�Q-.+@3�*-5,�129/8@2/81�12-�O9/P-41M�+34786+3@�A81�3/1�7+,+1-6�1/M�12-�T42-,51+4�Q-.+@3�O25.-M�Q-.+@3�Q-K-7/<,-31�O25.-M�536�:/3.19841+/3�Q/48,-31.�O25.-M�5.�6-.49+A-6�+3�GU��V���'�W)�./�1251�12-�O9/P-41X.�4/3.19841+/3�4/.1�5.�6-.+@3-6�AL�12-�O9/P-41�Q-.+@3�*-5,�=+77�3/1�-Y4--6�12-�:/3.19841+/3�:/.1�N86@-1M�5.�,5L�A-�56P8.1-6�.8A.-Z8-317L�=+12�12-�Q+.19+41X.�=9+11-3�5<<9/K57B�:;�.2577�3/1+0L�12-�Q+.19+41�+0�+1�A-7+-K-.�12-�O9/P-41X.�4/3.19841+/3�4/.1�/0�12-�=/9>�AL�12-�O9/P-41�Q-.+@3�*-5,�=+77�-Y4--6�12-�:/3.19841+/3�:/.1�N86@-1M�536[/9�+0�+1�A-7+-K-.�12-�4/3.19841+/3�4/.1�5.�6-.+@3-6�=+77�-Y4--6�12-�:/3.19841+/3�:/.1�N86@-1B�:;M�2/=-K-9M�.2577�3/1�<-90/9,�/9�A-�9-.</3.+A7-�0/9�53L�6-.+@3�/9�5942+1-418957�.-9K+4-.B��IB\� ]K57851+/3.�/0�12-�Q+.19+41X.�:/3.19841+/3�N86@-1M�536�:;X.�<9-7+,+359L�536�6-15+7-6�4/.1�-.1+,51-.M�9-<9-.-31�12-�:;X.�A-.1�P86@,-31�5.�5�<9/0-..+/357�05,+7+59�=+12�12-�4/3.19841+/3�+368.19LB�IB̂� _0�12-�N+66+3@�O25.-�25.�3/1�4/,,-34-6�=+12+3�3+3-1L�̀abc�65L.�501-9�QT?�5<<9/K57�/0�12-�<753.�536�.<-4+0+451+/3.M�12-�:/3.19841+/3�:/.1�N86@-1�,5L�A-�56P8.1-6�51�Q+.19+41X.�9-Z8-.1�1/�9-07-41�4253@-.�+3�12-�@-3-957�7-K-7�/0�<9+4-.�+3�12-�4/3.19841+/3�+368.19L�A-1=--3�12-�651-�/0�.8A,+..+/3�/0�12-�:/3.19841+/3�Q/48,-31.�1/�12-�Q+.19+41�536�12-�651-�/3�=2+42�<9/</.57.�59-�./8@21B�IBI� *2-�Q+.19+41�,5LM�+3�+1.�./7-�6+.49-1+/3M�6/�/3-M�/9�5�4/,A+351+/3M�/0�12-�0/77/=+3@�+0�53L�/0�12-�-K-31.�+3�?91+47-�IBd�/4489e�IBIBJ� f+K-�:;�=9+11-3�5<<9/K57�/0�53�5@9--6�56P8.1,-31�1/�12-�:/3.19841+/3�:/.1�N86@-1B�IBIBR� ?812/9+g-�:;�1/�9-h3-@/1+51-�536[/9�9-hA+6�12-�O9/P-41M�=2-3�5<<9/<9+51-M�=+12+3�129--�̀Sc�,/312.X�1+,-�/0�9-4-+<1�/0�A+6.M�51�3/�566+1+/357�4/.1�1/�12-�Q+.19+41�̀-Y478.+K-�/0�Q+.19+41�536�/12-9�5@-34+-.X�9-K+-=�1+,-cB�IBIBS� *-9,+351-�12+.�?@9--,-31�+0�12-�O9/P-41�+.�5A536/3-6�AL�12-�Q+.19+41�=+12/81�08912-9�/A7+@51+/3�AL�-+12-9�<591LB�IBIB\� i+12+3�129--�̀Sc�,/312.�/0�9-4-+<1�/0�A+6.M�+3.19841�Q-.+@3�*-5,�1/�9-K+.-�12-�695=+3@.�536�.<-4+0+451+/3.�̀+3�.4/<-�536�Z857+1L�5.�5<<9/K-6�AL�12-�Q+.19+41c�1/�A9+3@�12-�O9/P-41�=+12+3�12-�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� ����������������
���������	�������

����������������� �!""#$""%&�

'()*+,-.+/()�'(*+�0-123+�4(,�,356/11/)27�'8�9/::�;3,4(,<�.(*+�3*+/<=+/()>�?=:-3�3)2/)33,/)2>�.()*+,-.+=6/:/+@�,3?/39*>�=)1A(,�6/11/)2�*-;;(,+�=+�)(�=11/+/()=:�.(*+�+(�+B3�C/*+,/.+7��D7E� F4�=)@�(4�+B3�4(::(9/)2�3?3)+*�(..-,>�+B3�C/*+,/.+�<=@�3G3,./*3�=)@�()3>�(,�=)@�.(<6/)=+/()>�(4�+B3�=.+/()*�*3+�4(,+B�/)�H,+/.:3�D7D�=6(?3I�D7E7J� KB3�:(93*+�,3*;()*/?3�6=*3�6/1�,3.3/?31�/*�4/?3�;3,.3)+�LMNO�(,�<(,3�/)�3G.3**�(4�+B3�'()*+,-.+/()�'(*+�0-123+�(,��D7E7P� KB3�.(<6/)31�+(+=:�(4�6=*3�6/1�=)1�=::�=11/+/?3�=:+3,)=+3*�3Q-=:�(,�3G.331�+3)�;3,.3)+�LJRNO�(4�+B3�'()*+,-.+/()�'(*+�0-123+S�(,��D7E7T� KB3�'()*+,-.+/()�'(*+�0-123+�/).,3=*3*�/)�;B=*3*�*-6*3Q-3)+�+(�+B3�U.B3<=+/.�C3*/2)�VB=*3�1-3�+(�,3=*()=6:@�4(,3*33=6:3�.B=)23*�/)�+B3�.()1/+/()�(4�+B3�.()*+,-.+/()�<=,W3+�/)�+B3�U=.,=<3)+(�H,3=>�/)�*(�4=,�=*�+B3*3�B=?3�)(+�633)�.=-*31�6@�H.+*�(4�X(1>�3=,+BQ-=W3*>�*+,/W3*>�9=,>�(,�3)3,2@�*B(,+=23*�1-3�+(�-).()+,(::=6:3�3?3)+*�/)�+B3�9(,:1�3.()(<@7��YZ[�\]��̂� _�����������
��
	���������	
��̀��������������E7J� C/*+,/.+�*B=::�;=@�'8�=)�=<(-)+�)(+�+(�3G.331�a���b������]�����c_����Z�
�������d�b������]�������
������efghijkhlm�4(,�=::�*3,?/.3*�.()+,=.+31�4(,�-)13,�+B/*�H2,33<3)+�=)1�6=*31�()�+B3�n33�U.B31-:3�*3+�4(,+B�/)�]d��o���p�̂q��E7P� C/*+,/.+�*B=::�;=@�'8�+B3�n33�;-,*-=)+�+(�+B3�;,(?/*/()*�B3,3/)�=)1�+B3�<3+B(1�(4�;=@<3)+�*3+�4(,+B�/)�]d��o���p�̂q�E7T� '8�*B=::�6/::�/+*�9(,W�-)13,�+B/*�H2,33<3)+�()�=�;3,.3)+�(4�.(<;:3+/()�6=*/*�/)�=..(,1=).3�9/+B�]d��o���p�̂q��E7r� s(�/).,3=*3�/)�433�9/::�63�1-3�4,(<�.B=)23�(,13,*�23)3,=+31�1-,/)2�+B3�.()*+,-.+/()�;3,/(1�+(�+B3�3G+3)+�.=-*31�6@�'8t*�3,,(,L*O�(,�(</**/()L*O7�E7M� KB3�'8t*�433�*3+�4(,+B�/)�+B/*�H2,33<3)+�*B=::�63�4-::�.(<;3)*=+/()�4(,�=::�(4�'8t*�U3,?/.3*�/).-,,31�/)�+B3�;3,4(,<=).3�B3,3(4�=*�/)1/.=+31�/)�]d��o���p�jq�/).:-1/)2>�9/+B(-+�:/</+=+/()>�=::�.(*+*�4(,�;3,*())3:>�+,=?3:�9/+B/)�+9(�B-)1,31�LPRRO�</:3*�(4�+B3�V,(u3.+�:(.=+/()>�(44/.3*>�;3,�1/3<�3G;3)*3*>�;,/)+/)2>�;,(?/1/)2�(,�*B/;;/)2�(4�13:/?3,=6:3*�/)�+B3�Q-=)+/+/3*�*3+�4(,+B�/)�]d��o���p�̂q��� �



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� ����������������
���������	�������

����������������� �!""#$""%&�

�'()�*+��,� ��������	
��+-�������������./0� 123�456789:�;<7�=>?76�@97AB49:�:56CC�D9�E6BF�D3�?59�GB:?7B4?�6:�F9:47BD9F�B2�+-��H���IJK�6?�?59�76?9:�:9?�;<7?5�B2�+-��H���I�K�<2C3�LE<2�497?B;B46?B<2�<;�?59�GB:?7B4?M:�E7B<7�N7B??92�6L?5<7BO6?B<2�<;�?59�4C6BP9F�=>?76�@97AB49:�62F�?59�=>?76�@97AB49:�56A9�D992�:6?B:;64?<7BC3�4<PEC9?9F/��./Q� RS�:56CC�:LDPB?�?<�GB:?7B4?�6�N7B??92�E7<E<:6C�F9:47BDB28�?59�E7<E<:9F�:4<E9�<;�:97AB49:�62F�CB:?B28�?59�E97:<229CT�C6D<7�FL76?B<2T�76?9:T�62F�4<:?/�RS�:56CC�E7<499F�NB?5�=>?76�@97AB49:�<2C3�LE<2�7949BAB28�?59�GB:?7B4?M:�E7B<7�N7B??92�6L?5<7BO6?B<2/�RS�NBCC�2<?�D9�92?B?C9F�?<�623�4<PE92:6?B<2�;<7�=>?76�@97AB49:�E97;<7P9F�E7B<7�?<�7949BAB28�GB:?7B4?M:�N7B??92�6L?5<7BO6?B<2/�./U� V;�RS�E97;<7P:�623�=>?76�@97AB49:�NB?5<L?�?59�GB:?7B4?M:�6L?5<7BO9F�79E79:92?6?BA9M:�E7B<7�N7B??92�6L?5<7BO6?B<2T�?59�GB:?7B4?�NBCC�2<?�D9�<DCB86?9F�?<�E63�;<7�:L45�=>?76�@97AB49:/�W59�;<798<B28�E7<AB:B<2�2<?NB?5:?62FB28T�RS�NBCC�D9�E6BF�D3�?59�GB:?7B4?�6:�F9:47BD9F�B2�+-��H���IJK�;<7�=>?76�@97AB49:�?59�GB:?7B4?M:�6L?5<7BO9F�79E79:92?6?BA9�A97D6CC3�79XL9:?:T�E7<ABF9F�RS�4<2;B7P:�:L45�79XL9:?�B2�N7B?B28�EL7:L62?�?<�?59�2<?B49�79XLB79P92?:�<;�?5B:�18799P92?T�62F�E7<499F:�NB?5�:L45�=>?76�@97AB49:�2<?�967CB97�?562�?N<�YQZ�DL:B29::�F63:�6;?97�?59�GB:?7B4?�7949BA9:�RSM:�N7B??92�4<2;B7P6?B<2�<;�?59�79XL9:?/��'()�*+�[,� \]������̂�
	������_/0� 1CC�<;�RSM:�N<7̀�E7<FL4?�E79E679F�<7�892976?9F�B2�4<2294?B<2�NB?5�?5B:�18799P92?�B:�?59�GB:?7B4?M:�E7<E97?3/��_/Q� aE<2�?59�GB:?7B4?M:�79XL9:?T�?59�RS�:56CC�P6̀9�6A6BC6DC9�?<�?59�GB:?7B4?�6CC�N<7̀�E7<FL4?�4<PEC9?9F�<7�B2�E7<879::�6?�?59�?BP9�<;�:L45�6�79XL9:?/�_/U� 1;?97�b7<c94?�4<PEC9?B<2�<7T�B;�?59�GB:?7B4?�9>974B:9:�?59�7B85?�?<�?97PB26?9�?5B:�18799P92?�EL7:L62?�?<�?59�18799P92?�?97P:T�RS�:56CC�6::9PDC9�62F�F9CBA97�?<�GB:?7B4?�NB?5B2�;BA9�YdZ�46C92F67�F63:�<;�?59�GB:?7B4?M:�N7B??92�79XL9:?T�6CC�<;�RSM:�N<7̀�E7<FL4?�<;�?59�892976?9FT�E79E679FT�79AB9N9F�<7�4<PEBC9F�B2�4<2294?B<2�NB?5�?5B:�18799P92?�62F�?59�@97AB49:�62F�6L?5<7BO9F�=>?76�@97AB49:�5979L2F97/�W5B:�B24CLF9:T�NB?5<L?�CBPB?6?B<2T�6CC�RS�892976?9F�F<4LP92?:T�4<EB9:�<;�6CC�F<4LP92?:�RS�9>456289F�NB?5�<7�4<EB9F�?<�<7�;7<P�6CC�<?597�b7<c94?�E67?B4BE62?:T�62F�6CC�4C<:9<L?�F<4LP92?:/�RS�:56CC�D9�B2F9>�62F�<7862BO9�6EE7<E7B6?9C3�:6BF�b7<c94?�794<7F:�;<7�96:3�L:9�D3�GB:?7B4?�E97:<229C/��_/e� 1CC�b7<c94?�794<7F:�679�GB:?7B4?�E7<E97?3T�N59?597�<7�2<?�?5<:9�794<7F:�679�B2�?59�RSM:�E<::9::B<2/�GB:?7B4?�79?6B2:�6CC�7B85?:�?<�6CC�4<E37B85?:T�F9:B82:T�62F�<?597�B2?9CC94?L6C�E7<E97?3�9PD<FB9F�B2�?59�EC62:T�794<7F�F76NB28:T�:E94B;B46?B<2:T�9:?BP6?9:T�62F�<?597�F<4LP92?:�?56?�RS�<7�B?:�R<2:LC?62?:�E79E679�<7�46L:9�?<�D9�E79E679F�EL7:L62?�?<�?5B:�18799P92?/�f<?NB?5:?62FB28�?59�E7949FB28�:92?9249T�RS�62F�B?:�R<2:LC?62?:�:56CC�D9�92?B?C9F�?<�79L:9�N<7̀�E7<FL4?�892976?9F�L2F97�?5B:�18799P92?/�� �



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� ����������������
���������	�������

����������������� �!""#$""%&�

�'()�*+�,-.� (��������
��
	��
��������/01/� 2345637584�9:;<:45�=>6�?44<6@A7:4B�C=�23456375�@5�@AD�53E:�6:@4>A@FGD�F:G3:H:4�IJ�34�>6�E@D�F:�3A�K:=@<G5�<AK:6�5L34�?M6::E:A5N�23456375�E@D�3A�354�4>G:�K3476:53>A�A>53=D�IJ�>=�5L34�=@75�@AK�6:;<:45�O6355:A�@44<6@A7:4�=6>E�IJ�>=�P:6=>6E@A7:�>=�Q:6H37:4�@AK�@�O6355:A�PG@A�=6>E�IJ�5>�6:E:KD�@AD�P>5:A53@G�K:=@<G5�<AK:6�5L:�5:6E4�5L34�?M6::E:A5�5L@5�5L:�23456375�E@D�@KH34:�IJ�>=�3A�O6353AM1�IJ�4L@GGN�O35L3A�5:A�R/0S�7@G:AK@6�K@D4�>=�2345637584�6:;<:45N�K:G3H:6�@�O6355:A�7<6:�PG@A�5L@5�E::54�5L:�2345637584�6:;<36:E:A54�3A�354�6:;<:45�=>6�@44<6@A7:41�IJ84�=@3G<6:�5>�P6>H3K:�4<7L�O6355:A�@44<6@A7:4�>=�P:6=>6E@A7:�@AK�5L:�6:;<36:K�O6355:A�PG@AN�O35L3A�5:A�R/0S�7@G:AK@6�K@D4�>=�6:;<:45N�O3GG�7>A4535<5:�@�E@5:63@G�F6:@7L�>=�5L34�?M6::E:A5�4<==373:A5�5>�T<453=D�5:6E3A@53>A�=>6�7@<4:1�/01U� 2345637584�V:6E3A@53>A�>=�IJ�=>6�I@<4:B�C=�IJ�=@3G4�5>�P:6=>6E�IJ84�K<53:4�5>�5L:�2345637584�4@534=@753>AN�>6�3=�IJ�=@3G4�5>�=<G=3GG�3A�@�53E:GD�@AK�P6>=:443>A@G�E@AA:6�IJ84�E@5:63@G�>FG3M@53>A4�<AK:6�5L34�?M6::E:A5N�>6�3=�IJ�H3>G@5:4�@AD�>=�5L:�E@5:63@G�5:6E4�>6�P6>H343>A4�>=�5L34�?M6::E:A5N�5L:�23456375�4L@GG�L@H:�5L:�63ML5�5>�5:6E3A@5:�5L34�?M6::E:A5�:==:753H:�3EE:K3@5:GD�<P>A�5L:�23456375�M3H3AM�IJ�O6355:A�A>537:�5L:6:>=1�CA�5L:�:H:A5�>=�@�5:6E3A@53>A�P<64<@A5�5>�5L34�4<FK3H343>AN�IJ�E@D�3AH>37:�23456375�=>6�@GG�O>6W�P:6=>6E:K�<A53G�5L:�A>537:�>=�5:6E3A@53>AN�F<5�23456375�4L@GG�L@H:�5L:�63ML5�5>�O35LL>GK�P@DE:A5�@AK�K:K<75�@AD�@E><A54�:;<@G�5>�5L:�2345637584�7>454�F:7@<4:�>=�IJ84�@753>A4N�:66>64N�>6�>E3443>A41��/01X� 2345637584�V:6E3A@53>A�>=�IJ�=>6�I>AH:A3:A7:B�23456375�4L@GG�L@H:�5L:�63ML5�3A�354�4>G:�K3476:53>A�5>�5:6E3A@5:�5L34�?M6::E:A5�=>6�354�>OA�7>AH:A3:A7:1�CA�5L:�:H:A5�>=�@�5:6E3A@53>A�=>6�7>AH:A3:A7:N�IJ�E@D�3AH>37:�23456375�@AK�23456375�4L@GG�P@D�@GG�<AK34P<5:K�3AH>37:R4S�=>6�O>6W�P:6=>6E:K�<A53G�5L:�A>537:�>=�5:6E3A@53>A1�VL34�4L@GG�F:�5L:�>AGD�@E><A5R4S�P>5:A53@GGD�>O3AM�5>�IJ�3=�5L:6:�34�@�5:6E3A@53>A�=>6�7>AH:A3:A7:1�/01Y� IJ84�V:6E3A@53>A�>=�?M6::E:A5�=>6�I@<4:B�IJ�L@4�5L:�63ML5�5>�5:6E3A@5:�5L34�?M6::E:A5�3=�5L:�23456375�K>:4�A>5�=<G=3GG�354�E@5:63@G�>FG3M@53>A4�<AK:6�5L34�?M6::E:A5�@AK�=@3G4�5>�7<6:�4<7L�E@5:63@G�K:=@<G5�O35L3A�43Z5D�R[0S�K@D4�>=�6:7:3P5�>=�O6355:A�A>537:�>=�4@3K�K:=@<G54N�>6�3=�5L:�K:=@<G5�7@AA>5�F:�7<6:K�O35L3A�43Z5D�R[0S�K@D4N�7>EE:A7:�5>�7<6:�4<7L�K:=@<G5N�K3G3M:A5GD�P<64<:�4<7L�7<6:N�@AK�7>EPG:5:�5L:�7<6:�O35L3A�@�6:@4>A@FG:�53E:�=>GG>O3AM�O6355:A�A>537:�@AK�K:E@AK�=6>E�IJ1�Q<7L�5:6E3A@53>A�4L@GG�F:�:==:753H:�@=5:6�6:7:3P5�>=�O6355:A�A>537:�=6>E�IJ�5>�5L:�234563751�/01\� ]==:75�>A�̂ 6:_V:6E3A@53>A�Q:6H37:4B�]Z7:P5�@4�3AK37@5:K�3A�5L34�?6537G:N�5:6E3A@53>A�4L@GG�L@H:�A>�:==:75�<P>A�@AD�>=�5L:�63ML54�@AK�>FG3M@53>A4�>=�5L:�@̂653:4�@6343AM�><5�>=�@AD�56@A4@753>A�>77<663AM�P63>6�5>�5L:�:==:753H:�K@5:�>=�4<7L�5:6E3A@53>A1�/01[� I:@43AM�Q:6H37:4�<P>A�V:6E3A@53>AB�C=N�@5�@AD�53E:�3A�5L:�P6>M6:44�>=�P:6=>6E3AM�Q:6H37:4�<AK:6�5L34�?M6::E:A5N�5L:�23456375�K:5:6E3A:4�5L@5�IJ84�Q:6H37:4�4L><GK�F:�5:6E3A@5:KN�5L:�IJN�<P>A�5L:�2345637584�O6355:A�A>537:�>=�4<7L�5:6E3A@53>AN�4L@GG�3EE:K3@5:GD�7:@4:�P6>H3K3AM�Q:6H37:4N�:Z7:P5�5>�56@A4=:6�=3G:4�@4�K36:75:K�FD�5L:�234563751�VL:�23456375�4L@GG�P@D�IJ�>AGD�5L:�=::�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

())*+,(-./�0,-1�-1.�2.34,+.)�53*4,/./�(6/�(553*4./�78�9,)-3,+-�),6+.�-1.�:()-�5(,/�,64*,+.�(6/�;5�-*�-1.�6*-,+.�*<�-.3=,6(-,*6>�?@>A� B3*C.+-�2;)5.6),*6D�E<�-1.�B3*C.+-�,)�);)5.6/./�78�-1.�9,)-3,+-�<*3�=*3.�-1(6�*6.�1;6/3./�(6/�.,F1-8�G?H@I�+*6).+;-,4.�/(8)J�-1.�KL�)1(::�7.�+*=5.6)(-./�<*3�).34,+.)�5.3<*3=./�53,*3�-*�6*-,+.�*<�);+1�);)5.6),*6>�M1.6�-1.�B3*C.+-�,)�3.);=./J�-1.�)+1./;:.�)1(::�7.�(/C;)-./�(6/�-1.�KLN)�+*=5.6)(-,*6�)1(::�7.�.O;,-(7:8�(/C;)-./�-*�53*4,/.�<*3�.P5.6).)�,6+;33./�,6�-1.�3.);=5-,*6�*<�-1.�KLN)�2.34,+.)>�KL�)1(::�=(Q.�.4.38�.<<*3-�-*�=(,6-(,6�-1.�)(=.�B3*C.+-�5.3)*66.:�(<-.3�);)5.6),*6>��RST�UV���W� T����������??>?� X*�-1.�<;3-1.)-�.P-.6-�5.3=,--./�78�K(:,<*36,(�:(0J�KL�)1(::�,6/.=6,<8�(6/�1*:/�<3..�(6/�1(3=:.))�-1.�9,)-3,+-J�,-)�Y*4.36,6F�Z*(3/J�(F.6-)J�3.53.).6-(-,4.)J�*<<,+.3)J�+*6);:-(6-)J�.=5:*8..)J�-3;)-..)J�(6/�4*:;6-..3)�G[-1.�E6/.=6,<,./�B(3-,.)\I�<3*=�(68�(6/�(::�+:(,=)J�/.=(6/)J�+(;).)�*<�(+-,*6J�+*)-)J�.P5.6).)J�:,(7,:,-8J�:*))J�/(=(F.�*3�,6C;38�*<�(68�Q,6/J�,6�:(0�*3�.O;,-8�G[K:(,=\I�-*�-1.�.P-.6-�+(;)./�78�-1.�6.F:,F.6+.J�3.+Q:.))6.))J�*3�0,::<;:�=,)+*6/;+-�*<�-1.�KLJ�,-)�*<<,+.3)J�.=5:*8..)J�);7+*6-3(+-*3)J�+*6);:-(6-)J�*3�(F.6-)J�.P+:;/,6F�0,-1*;-�:,=,-(-,*6J�-1.�5(8=.6-�*<�(::�+*6).O;.6-,(:�/(=(F.)>��KL�)1(::�(:)*J�-*�-1.�<;3-1.)-�.P-.6-�5.3=,--./�78�K(:,<*36,(�:(0J�/.<.6/�-1.�E6/.=6,<,./�B(3-,.)�(-�KLN)�*06�.P5.6).J�,6+:;/,6F�(--*36.8)N�<..)�(6/�+*)-)J�<3*=�(68�(6/�(::�K:(,=G)I�(6/�(::.F(-,*6)�3.:(-,6F�-1.3.-*�0,-1�+*;6).:�(553*4./�78�9,)-3,+-�01.3.�);+1�(553*4(:�,)�6*-�-*�7.�;63.()*6(7:8�0,-11.:/>��??>]� KL�)1(::�5(8�(6/�)(-,)<8�(68�C;/F=.6-J�(0(3/J�*3�/.+3..�-1(-�=(8�7.�3.6/.3./�(F(,6)-�-1.�E6/.=6,<,./�B(3-,.)�,6�(68�K:(,=>�KLN)�*7:,F(-,*6�5;3);(6-�-*�3̂-,+:.�??>?�,6+:;/.)�3.,=7;3),6F�-1.�9,)-3,+-�<*3�-1.�+*)-�*<�(68�).--:.=.6-�5(,/�78�-1.�E6/.=6,<,./�B(3-,.)�(6/�<*3�(68�(6/�(::�<..)�(6/�+*)-)J�,6+:;/,6F�7;-�6*-�:,=,-./�-*J�:.F(:�<..)�(6/�+*)-)J�.P5.3-�0,-6.))�<..)J�(6/�+*6);:-(6-�<..)J�,6+;33./�78�-1.�E6/.=6,<,./�B(3-,.)�,6�-1.�/.<.6).�*<�(68�K:(,=G)IJ�*3�-*�.6<*3+.�-1.�,6/.=6,-8�1.3.,6>�KLN)�*7:,F(-,*6�-*�,6/.=6,<8�)1(::�6*-�7.�3.)-3,+-./�-*�,6);3(6+.�53*+../)>��??>_� 9,)-3,+-�=(8�0,-11*:/�<3*=�(=*;6-)�*0,6F�-*�KL�(68�(6/�(::�+*)-)�-1(-�(3,).�*;-�*<J�5.3-(,6�-*J�*3�3.:(-.�-*�-1.�6.F:,F.6+.J�3.+Q:.))6.))J�*3�0,::<;:�=,)+*6/;+-�*<�-1.�KL>���RST�UV��̀W� �
�����
����
a�������������b�����c��������?]>?� d6(++.5-(7:.�(6/e*3�:*;/�:(6F;(F.�0,::�6*-�7.�-*:.3(-./>�[K(-�+(::)\�*3�*-1.3�/.3*F(-*38�:(6F;(F.�-*0(3/�)-;/.6-)�*3�5;7:,+�0,::�6*-�7.�(::*0./>�?]>]� 93;F)J�(:+*1*:J�(6/�)=*Q,6F�*6�9,)-3,+-�53*5.3-8�(3.�)-3,+-:8�53*1,7,-./>�f*�/3;F)J�(:+*1*:�(6/e*3�)=*Q,6F�(3.�(::*0./�(-�(68�-,=.�,6�(68�7;,:/,6F�(6/e*3�F3*;6/)�*6�9,)-3,+-N)�53*5.3-8>�f*�)-;/.6-)J�)-(<<J�4,),-*3)�*3�+*6-3(+-*3)�(3.�-*�;).�/3;F)�*6�9,)-3,+-N)�53*5.3-8>��



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

����������������� �!""#$""%&�

'()*� +,-.,/01�12�34,5/1620�7248�.851620�9:'(:)(;�1<8�=6.1-651�</.�4818->6084�20�1<8�?/.6.�2@�1<8�.52A8�2@�B8-C658.�60�1<6.�DE-88>801�1</1�7F�/04�61.�.,?5201-/512-.�/04�8>AG2H88.�I6GG�</C8�20GH�G6>6184�5201/51�I61<�A,A6G.)�7F�I6GG�A-2>A1GH�0216@H�1<8�=6.1-651�60�I-6160E�2@�/0H�@/51.�2-�56-5,>.1/058.�I<65<�>6E<1�-8/.20/?GH�G8/4�1<8�=6.1-651�12�4818->608�1</1�5201/51�I6GG�?8�>2-8�1</0�G6>6184)��B<2,G4�1<8-8�?8�>2-8�1</0�G6>6184�5201/51;�7F�.</GG�52>AGH�I61<�1<8�A-2C6.620.�2@�34,5/1620�7248�.851620�9:'(:)'�-8E/-460E�1<8�.,?>6..620�2@�8>AG2H88�@60E8-A-601.�12�1<8�7/G6@2-06/�=8A/-1>801�2@�J,.1658�/04�1<8�52>AG81620�2@�5-6>60/G�?/5KE-2,04�60C8.16E/1620.�2@�61.�8>AG2H88.)�7F�.</GG�021�A8->61�/0H�8>AG2H88�12�</C8�/0H�5201/51�I61<�=6.1-651�A,A6G.�,016G�.,5<�16>8�/.�1<8�7F�</.�C8-6@684�60�I-6160E�12�1<8�E2C8-060E�?2/-4�2@�1<8�=6.1-651�1</1�1<8�8>AG2H88�</.�021�?880�520C65184�2@�/�@8G20H;�/.�48@6084�60�34,5/1620�7248�.851620�9:'(()')�7FL.�-8.A20.6?6G61H�.</GG�8M1804�12�/GG�8>AG2H88.;�/E801.;�/04�8>AG2H88.�2-�/E801.�2@�61.�720.,G1/01.�-8E/-4G8..�2@�I<81<8-�1<2.8�6046C64,/G.�/-8�A/64�2-�,0A/64;�5205,--801GH�8>AG2H84�?H�1<8�=6.1-651;�2-�/5160E�/.�7FL.�6048A804801�5201-/512-.)�7F�.</GG�A-2C648�12�=6.1-651�C8-6@65/1620�2@�52>AG6/058�I61<�1<6.�.851620�?H�.,?>61160E�/0�8M85,184�7-6>60/G�N/5KE-2,04�O0C8.16E/1620�78-16@65/1620�PQR��S���TQUV)�'()9� W2-�/GG�I2-K8-.�20�=6.1-651�A-2A8-1H;�7F�.</GG�52>AGH�I61<�/GG�/AAG65/?G8�@848-/G;�.1/18�/04�G25/G�G/I.�-8E/-460E�7XYO=Z'[;�605G,460E�?,1�021�G6>6184�12�1<8�7=+\L.�B1/18�+,?G65�\8/G1<�X@@658-�X-48-.)���]̂_�̀Q��ab� ]��c
���S��������
	��������������'*)'� d<8�=6.1-651�.</GG�8M/>608�1<8�425,>801.�.,?>61184�?H�1<8�7F�/04�.</GG�-8048-�4856.620.�.2�/.�12�/C264�,0-8/.20/?G8�48G/H�60�1<8�A-258..�2@�1<8�7FL.�B8-C658.)��'*)(� d<8�=6.1-651�.</GG�A-2C648�12�1<8�7F�/.�52>AG818�60@2->/1620�/.�6.�/C/6G/?G8�12�=6.1-651�-8E/-460E�1<8�=6.1-651L.�+-2e851�-8f,6-8>801.)��'*)*� d<8�=6.1-651�.</GG�-81/60�48.6E0�A-2@8..620/GP.V�I<2.8�.8-C658.;�4,168.�/04�-8.A20.6?6G6168.�I6GG�?8�48.5-6?84�60�I-61180�/E-88>801P.V�?81I880�1<8�=6.1-651�/04�48.6E0�A-2@8..620/GP.V)�'*)9� g0G8..�1<8�5201-/51�425,>801.�-8f,6-8�1</1�7201-/512-�A-2C648�/0H�2@�1<8�@2GG2I60E;�1<8�=6.1-651�.</GG;�60�/�16>8GH�>/008-;�/04�I61<�7FL.�/..6.1/058;�.85,-8;�.,?>61�/04�A/H�@2-�0858../-H�/AA-2C/G.;�8/.8>801.;�/..8..>801.;�A8->61.�/04�5</-E8.�-8f,6-84�@2-�1<8�520.1-,51620;�,.8;�2-�255,A/05H�2@�A8->/0801�.1-,51,-8.�2-�@2-�A8->/0801�5</0E8.�60�8M6.160E�@/56G6168.;�.,?e851�12�7FL.�/04h2-�1<8�=8.6E0�d8/>L.�4,168.�12�-852>>804�2-�A-2C648�./>8)��'*):� d<8�=6.1-651;�61.�-8A-8.801/16C8.;�/04�520.,G1/01.�.</GG�52>>,065/18�I61<�1<8�7201-/512-�861<8-�46-851GH�2-�1<-2,E<�1<8�7F)�'*)i� d<8�=6.1-651�.</GG�48.6E0/18�/0�2@@658-;�8>AG2H88�/04h2-�21<8-�/,1<2-6j84�-8A-8.801/16C8.�12�/51�20�1<8�=6.1-651L.�?8</G@�I61<�-8.A851�12�1<8�+-2e851)�d<8�=6.1-651L.�+-2e851�-8A-8.801/16C8�.</GG�?8�/C/6G/?G8�4,-60E�I2-K60E�<2,-.�/04�/.�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

()*+,)-+.*�/,012-+�,23,2*24+5+)62�*7588�92�565)85982�:;,)4<�=0,>)4<�70;,*�54:�5*�0?+24�5*�@5A�92�,2B;),2:�+0�,24:2,�:2-)*)04*�54:�+0�?;,4)*7�)4?0,@5+)04�)4�5�+)@28A�@5442,C��DEF�GH��IJ� G��K������
	����������LMCL� N+72,�+754�5*�3,06):2:�)4�+7)*�O<,22@24+P�()*+,)-+.*�098)<5+)04*�;4:2,�+7)*�O<,22@24+�*7588�92�8)@)+2:�+0�+72�35A@24+�0?�+72�-0@324*5+)04�5*�3,06):2:�)4�+7)*�O<,22@24+C�Q0+=)+7*+54:)4<�54A�0+72,�3,06)*)04�0?�+7)*�O<,22@24+P�)4�40�2624+�*7588�()*+,)-+�0,�RS�92�8)5982�+0�+72�0+72,P�,2<5,:82**�0?�=72+72,�54A�-85)@�)*�95*2:�04�-04+,5-+�0,�+0,+P�?0,�54A�*32-)58P�-04*2B;24+)58P�)4:),2-+�0,�)4-):24+58�:5@5<2*P�)4-8;:)4<�9;+�40+�8)@)+2:�+0P�80*+�3,0?)+*�0,�,2624;2P�5,)*)4<�0;+�0?�0,�)4�-0442-+)04�=)+7�+7)*�O<,22@24+�?0,�+72�*2,6)-2*�32,?0,@2:�)4�-0442-+)04�=)+7�+7)*�O<,22@24+C���LMCT� RS�*7588�35A�+0�()*+,)-+�54A�54:�588�-0*+*�)4-;,,2:�9A�()*+,)-+P�0,�?0,�=7)-7�()*+,)-+�@5A�92-0@2�8)5982P�+0�+72�2U+24+�-5;*2:�9A�42<8)<24+�:285A*P�5-+*P�0,�0@)**)04*�0?�RS�)4�)+*�32,?0,@54-2�0?�)+*�V2,6)-2*C��LMCW� ()*+,)-+�*7588�40+�92�,2*304*)982�?0,�54A�:5@5<2�+0�32,*04*�0,�3,032,+A�5*�5�,2*;8+�0?�+72�;*2P�@)*;*2�0,�?5)8;,2�0?�54A�2B;)3@24+�;*2:�9A�RSP�0,�9A�)+*�2@380A22*P�2624�+70;<7�*;-7�2B;)3@24+�92�?;,4)*72:�0,�80542:�+0�RS�9A�()*+,)-+C��LMCM� RS�72,29A�=5)62*�54A�54:�588�-85)@X*Y�?0,�,2-062,A�?,0@�+72�()*+,)-+�;4:2,�+7)*�O<,22@24+P�=7)-7�80**�0,�:5@5<2�)*�-062,2:�9A�658):�54:�-0882-+)982�)4*;,54-2�308)-)2*C�RS�5<,22*�+0�7562�)+*�,2B;),2:�)4*;,54-2�308)-)2*�24:0,*2:�+0�3,2624+�+72�)4658):5+)04�0?�)4*;,54-2�-062,5<2*�9A�,25*04�0?�+7)*�=5)62,C�Z7)*�=5)62,�*7588�2U+24:�+0�-85)@*�35):P�0,�2U324*2*�)4-;,,2:P�9A�RS.*�)4*;,54-2�-0@354A�04�+72�()*+,)-+.*�92758?C��DEF�GH��[J� F���������L\CL� RS�*7588�3,0-;,2P�3,)0,�+0�-0@@24-2@24+�0?�V2,6)-2*P�54:�=)88�@5)4+5)4�?0,�+72�:;,5+)04�0?�+72�O<,22@24+�)4*;,54-2�5<5)4*+�-85)@*�?0,�)41;,)2*�+0�32,*04*�0,�:5@5<2*�+0�3,032,+A�=7)-7�@5A�5,)*2�?,0@�0,�)4�-0442-+)04�=)+7�+72�32,?0,@54-2�0?�+72�=0,>�72,2;4:2,�9A�+72�RSP�+72),�5<24+*P�,23,2*24+5+)62*P�2@380A22*�54:�*;9]-04*;8+54+X*YC�RS.*�8)59)8)+)2*P�)4-8;:)4<�9;+�40+�8)@)+2:�+0P�RS.*�)4:2@4)+A�0,�:2?24*2�098)<5+)04*�;4:2,�+7)*�O<,22@24+P�*7588�40+�92�:22@2:�8)@)+2:�)4�54A�=5A�+0�+72�)4*;,54-2�-062,5<2�,2B;),2:�72,2)4C�S5)4+2454-2�0?�*32-)?)2:�)4*;,54-2�-062,5<2�)*�5�@5+2,)58�282@24+�0?�+7)*�O<,22@24+�54:�RS.*�?5)8;,2�+0�@5)4+5)4�0,�,242=�-062,5<2�0,�+0�3,06):2�26):24-2�0?�,242=58�:;,)4<�+72�+2,@�0?�+7)*�O<,22@24+P�5*�,2B;),2:�0,�=724�,2B;2*+2:P�@5A�92�+,25+2:�9A�+72�()*+,)-+P�*;912-+�+0�)+*�*082�:)*-,2+)04P�5*�5�@5+2,)58�9,25-7�0?�-04+,5-+C�L\CT� ���������
̂������G������
	�F�������_�R062,5<2�*7588�92�5+�825*+�5*�9,05:�5*�+72�?0880=)4<�*-032*�54:�8)@)+*_�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

()*+,-�*(.)/+01023�0245/6-�*2(�7)(08*9�:*67)2+1�*/01023�;/<7�+,)�:)/;</7*28)�<;�*26�:</+0<2�<;�+,)�=)/.08)1>�?;�@<77)/80*9�A)2)/*9�B0*C090+6�</�<+,)/�;</7�D0+,�*�3)2)/*9�*33/)3*+)�9070+�01�51)(-�)0+,)/�+,)�3)2)/*9�*33/)3*+)�9070+�1,*99�*::96�1):*/*+)96�+<�+,01�E/<4)8+F9<8*+0<2�</�+,)�3)2)/*9�*33/)3*+)�9070+�1,*99�C)�+D08)�+,)�/)G50/)(�<885//)28)�9070+>��HI>J>J� �
�����������
�
K����L��K�����M�������
>�ND<�70990<2�(<99*/1�OPJ-QQQ-QQQR�:)/�<885//)28)>�HI>J>S� T
�U���V��
�W������
�>�=+*+5+</6�9070+1�/)G50/)(�C6�+,)�=+*+)�<;�@*90;</20*>�X</�*99�<;�+,)�@YZ1�)7:9<6))1�D,<�*/)�15C4)8+�+<�+,01�[3/))7)2+�*2(�+<�+,)�)\+)2+�/)G50/)(�C6�+,)�*::908*C9)�1+*+)�</�;)()/*9�9*D-�@Y�1,*99�])):�02�;599�;</8)�*2(�);;)8+-�*�̂ </])/1_�@<7:)21*+0<2�:<9086>�@Y�1,*99�:/<.0()�*2�)2(</1)7)2+�+,*+�+,)�0215/)/�D*0.)1�+,)�/03,+�<;�15C/<3*+0<2�*3*021+�+,)�̀01+/08+�*2(�0+1�/)1:)8+0.)�)9)8+)(�<;;080*91-�<;;08)/1-�)7:9<6))1-�*3)2+1-�/):/)1)2+*+0.)1-�8<2159+*2+1-�+/51+))1-�*2(�.<952+))/1>�HI>J>a� b�W�
���V��L��K�����c�d2)�70990<2�(<99*/1�OPH-QQQ-QQQR�:)/�*880()2+�;</�C<(096�0245/6�</�(01)*1)>�X</�*99�<;�+,)�@YZ1�)7:9<6))1�D,<�*/)�15C4)8+�+<�+,01�[3/))7)2+-�@Y�1,*99�])):�02�;599�;</8)�*2(�);;)8+-�*2�e7:9<6)/1Z�B0*C090+6�:<9086>�N,*+�:<9086�1,*99�:/<.0()�)7:9<6)/1Z�90*C090+6�8<.)/*3)�D0+,�7020757�90*C090+6�8<.)/*3)�<;�ND<�70990<2�(<99*/1�OPJ-QQQ-QQQR�:)/�<885//)28)>�@Y�1,*99�:/<.0()�*2�)2(</1)7)2+�+,*+�+,)�0215/)/�D*0.)1�+,)�/03,+�<;�15C/<3*+0<2�*3*021+�+,)�̀01+/08+�*2(�0+1�/)1:)8+0.)�)9)8+)(�<;;080*91-�<;;08)/1-�)7:9<6))1-�*3)2+1-�/):/)1)2+*+0.)1-�8<2159+*2+1-�+/51+))1-�*2(�.<952+))/1>��HI>J>I� ��
	����
����L��K�����>�N,01�0215/*28)�1,*99�8<.)/�+,)�@Y�*2(�0+1�15Cf8<2159+*2+O1R-�0;�*26-�;</�+D<�70990<2�(<99*/1�OPJ-QQQ-QQQR�*33/)3*+)�9070+�15C4)8+�+<�2<�89*07�()(58+0C9)-�8<.)/*3)�+<�8<2+025)�+,/<53,�8<7:9)+0<2�<;�8<21+/58+0<2�:951�+D<�6)*/1�+,)/)*;+)/>�N,)�:<9086�751+�8<2+*02�+)/71�</�)2(</1)7)2+1�)\+)2(023�8<.)/*3)�+,*+�/)G50/)1�+,)�0215/)/�+<�();)2(�*2(�02()720;6�;</�*8+1�D,08,�,*::)2�C);</)�+,)�);;)8+0.)�(*+)�<;�+,)�:<9086�:/<.0()(�+,)�89*07�01�;0/1+�7*()�(5/023�+,)�:<9086�:)/0<(>�HI>S� N,)�̀01+/08+�/)1)/.)1�+,)�/03,+�+<�7<(0;6�+,)�9070+1�*2(�8<.)/*3)1�()18/0C)(�,)/)02-�D0+,�*::/<:/0*+)�8/)(0+1�</�8,*/3)1�+<�C)�2)3<+0*+)(�;</�158,�8,*23)1>��HI>a� ������K�����������	gh������i������
�j�[26�()(58+0C9)1�</�1)9;f0215/)(�/)+)2+0<2�)\8))(023�ND)2+6fX0.)�N,<51*2(�̀<99*/1�OPJI-QQQR�751+�C)�()89*/)(�+<�*2(�*::/<.)(�C6�+,)�̀01+/08+>�[+�+,)�<:+0<2�<;�+,)�̀01+/08+-�)0+,)/j��HI>a>H� N,)�̀01+/08+�8*2�*88):+�+,)�,03,)/�()(58+0C9)k�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

()*+*,� -./0�1203454�06788�4593:5�;4�581<127=5�03:6�9593:=1>850�;4�058?@1203459�45=52=1;2�70�450A5:=0�=65�B10=41:=C�1=0�;??1:540C�;??1:1780C�5<A8;D550�729�E;832=5540F�;4��()*+*G� -.�06788�A4;:345�7�>;29�H37472=5512H�A7D<52=�;?�8;0050�729�4587=59�12E50=1H7=1;20C�:871<�79<1210=47=1;2�729�95?5205�5IA52050*��()*)� J�����K����������
����
��L�M65�H525478�817>181=D�729�73=;<;>185�817>181=D�A;81:150�745�=;�:;2=712C�;4�>5�529;4059�=;�:;2=712C�=65�?;88;N12H�A4;E101;20L��()*)*(� O88�A;81:150�5I:5A=�?;4�=65�N;4P54/0�:;<A5207=1;2C�5<A8;D54/0�817>181=D�729�A4;?5001;278�817>181=D�1203472:5�A;81:D�06788�>5�N41==52�;2�72�;::34452:5�?;4<*�()*)*,� M65�B10=41:=C�1=0�45A45052=7=1E50C�:;2038=72=0C�=430=550C�;??1:540C�;??1:1780C�5<A8;D550C�7H52=0C�729�E;832=5540�QRO991=1;278�S2034590TU�745�=;�>5�:;E5459�70�7991=1;278�12034590�70�450A5:=0�817>181=D�741012H�;3=�;?�7:=1E1=150�A54?;4<59�>D�;4�;2�>5678?�;?�=65�-.F�S20=43<52=0�;?�V54E1:5�729�:;<A85=59�;A547=1;20�;?�=65�-.F�A45<1050�;N259C�;::3A159�;4�3059�>D�=65�-.F�;4�73=;<;>1850�;N259C�857059C�61459�;4�>;44;N59�>D�=65�-.*�M65�:;E547H5�06788�:;2=712�2;�0A5:178�81<1=7=1;20�;2�=65�0:;A5�;?�A4;=5:=1;2�7??;4959�=;�=65�O991=1;278�S2034590*�O88�529;405<52=0�06788�N71E5�72D�41H6=�=;�03>4;H7=1;2�7H7120=�72D�;?�=65�O991=1;278�S2034590*��()*)*G� O2D�?718345�=;�:;<A8D�N1=6�45A;4=12H�;4�;=654�A4;E101;20�;?�=65�A;81:150�12:83912H�>457:650�;?�N74472=150�06788�2;=�7??5:=�:;E547H5�A4;E1959�=;�=65�O991=1;278�S2034590*��()*)*+� -.�06788�A7D�788�1203472:5�A45<13<0C�12:83912H�72D�:674H50�?;4�45W31459�N71E540�;?�03>4;H7=1;2�;4�=65�529;405<52=�;?�7991=1;278�12034590*�S?�-.�?7180�=;�<712=712�1203472:5C�B10=41:=�<7D�=7P5�;3=�:;<A747>85�1203472:5C�729�9593:=�729�45=712�7<;32=�;?�A45<13<�?4;<�72D�03<0�935�-.�32954�=65�OH455<52=*�()*)*)� M65�-./0�1203472:5�06788�7AA8D�05A747=58D�=;�57:6�1203459�7H7120=�N6;<�:871<�10�<795�;4�031=�10�>4;3H6=C�5I:5A=�N1=6�450A5:=�=;�=65�81<1=0�;?�=65�1203454/0�817>181=D*��()*)*X� Y7:6�1203472:5�A;81:D�45W31459�>D�=610�:87305�06788�>5�529;4059�=;�0=7=5�=67=�:;E547H5�06788�2;=�>5�:72:5859C�2;=�4525N59C�;4�<7=54178�:672H5�12�:;E547H5�5I:5A=�7?=54�=614=D�QGZU�97D0�A41;4�N41==52�2;=1:5�>D�:54=1?159�<718C�45=342�45:51A=�45W350=59C�670�>552�H1E52�=;�=65�B10=41:=*��()*)*[� -./0�1203472:5�:;E547H5�06788�>5�A41<74D�729�2;2@:;2=41>3=;4D�1203472:5�70�450A5:=0�=65�O991=1;278�S2034590�N1=6�450A5:=�=;�72D�:871<0�4587=59�=;C�741012H�;3=�;?C�;4�:;225:=59�N1=6�=65�\4;]5:=*�O2D�1203472:5�;4�058?@1203472:5�<712=71259�>D�=65�O991=1;278�S2034590�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

()*++�,-�./�-01-((�23�4)-�567(�./(89*/1-�*/:�()*++�/24�12/49.,84-�;.4)�.4<��=><><?� 52/(49814.2/�6*/*@-9�()*++�A92B.:-�*/�-/:29(-C-/4�4)*4�4)-�./(89-9�;*.B-(�4)-�9.@)4�23�(8,92@*4.2/�*@*./(4�4)-�D.(49.14�*/:�.4(�9-(A-14.B-�-+-14-:�233.1.*+(E�233.1-9(E�-CA+2F--(E�*@-/4(E�9-A9-(-/4*4.B-(E�12/(8+4*/4(E�498(4--(E�*/:�B2+8/4--9(<�=><><G� 56�()*++�9-H8.9-�*++�(8,12/(8+4*/4(�42�C*./4*./�4)-�+-B-+�23�./(89*/1-�56�:--C(�*AA92A9.*4-�;.4)�9-(A-14�42�4)-�12/(8+4*/47(�(12A-�23�4)-�I29J�8/+-((�24)-9;.(-�./:.1*4-:�./�4)-�K@9--C-/4<�56�()*++�1*8(-�4)-�(8,12/(8+4*/4(�42�389/.()�A9223�4)-9-23�42�D.(49.14�;.4)./�4-/�L=MN�:*F(�23�D.(49.147(�9-H8-(4<�O)28+:�56�/24�9-H8.9-�(8,12/(8+4*/4(�42�A92B.:-�4)-�(*C-�+-B-+�23�./(89*/1-�*(�.(�9-H8.9-:�23�56E�*(�A92B.:-:�./�4).(�K@9--C-/4E�56�.(�/24�9-+.-B-:�23�.4(�./:-C/.4F�2,+.@*4.2/(�42�D.(49.14�29�38+3.++./@�.4(�./(89*/1-�9-H8.9-C-/4(�*(�A92B.:-:�./�4).(�K@9--C-/4<�=><><=M� P3�56�/29C*++F�1*99.-(�./(89*/1-�./�*/�*C28/4�@9-*4-9�4)*/�4)-�C./.C8C�*C28/4(�9-H8.9-:�)-9-./E�4)*4�@9-*4-9�*C28/4�()*++�,-12C-�4)-�C./.C8C�9-H8.9-:�*C28/4�23�./(89*/1-�329�A89A2(-(�23�4)-�K@9--C-/4<�Q)-9-329-E�56�)-9-,F�*1J/2;+-:@-(�*/:�*@9--(�4)*4�*++�./(89*/1-�1*99.-:�,F�.4�()*++�,-�:--C-:�+.*,.+.4F�12B-9*@-�329�*++�*14.2/(�.4�A-9329C(�./�12//-14.2/�;.4)�4)-�K@9--C-/4<�=><R� ����S��T������
	�U������V�P/(89*/1-�.(�42�,-�A+*1-:�;.4)�./(89-9(�*:C.44-:�./�5*+.329/.*�;.4)�*�1899-/4�K<6<�W-(4X(�9*4./@�23�/2�+-((�4)*/�KVYPP<�56�()*++�./329C�4)-�D.(49.14�./�;9.4./@�.3�*/F�23�.4(�./(89-9L(N�)*B-�*/�K<6<�W-(47(�9*4./@�+-((�4)*/�KVYPP<�K4�4)-�2A4.2/�23�4)-�D.(49.14E�4)-�D.(49.14�C*F�-.4)-9V�=><R<=� K11-A4�4)-�+2;-9�9*4./@Z�29�=><R<[� \-H8.9-�56�42�A92189-�./(89*/1-�392C�*/24)-9�./(89-9<�=><]� �̂��	�����
��
	��
������V�_9.29�42�12CC-/1./@�;.4)�.4(�A92B.(.2/�23�O-9B.1-(�8/:-9�4).(�K@9--C-/4E�,84�/2�+*4-9�4)*/�4)9--�L̀N�1*+-/:*9�*34-9�4)-�a24.1-�23�K;*9:E�56�()*++�389/.()�4)-�D.(49.14�;.4)V��=><]<=� 5-94.3.1*4-(�23�./(89*/1-�()2;./@�C*./4-/*/1-�23�4)-�9-H8.9-:�./(89*/1-�12B-9*@-Z��=><]<[� b9.@./*+�-/:29(-C-/4(�*33-14./@�12B-9*@-<�Q)-�-/:29(-C-/4(�*9-�42�,-�(.@/-:�,F�*�A-9(2/�*84)29.c-:�,F�4)*4�./(89-9�42�,./:�12B-9*@-�2/�.4(�,-)*+3<�K++�-/:29(-C-/4(�*9-�42�,-�9-1-.B-:�*/:�*AA92B-:�,F�4)-�D.(49.14�,-329-�;29J�12CC-/1-(<��=><?� �
S��
	�U���������
����d���ef�gA2/�4)-�D.(49.147(�9-H8-(4E�56�;.++�389/.()�D.(49.14�;.4)�*�12AF�23�*++�./(89*/1-�A2+.1.-(�9-+*4-:�42�.4(�A92B.(.2/�23�O-9B.1-(�8/:-9�4).(�K@9--C-/4<�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

�()*�+,���-� .
�������������
��/0�123445�67�879:;<�=>6?�6?4�:37@>5>7A5�7B�6?4�/1;>B73A>1�C1>3�D9:;7<94A6�1AE�F7G5>A2�H86�15�546�B736?�>A�:136�IJK�7B�E>@>5>7A�L�7B�6?4�/1;>B73A>1�M7@43A94A6�/7E4N�87994A8>A2�16�5486>7A�OIPQQR�6?4�C4E431;�/>@>;�S>2?65�H86�7B�OPTUN�15�546�B736?�>A�VGW;>8�X1=�KKYLZIN�1AE�1;;�194AE94A65�6?43467R�D[48G6>@4�\3E43�OOIUTR�1AE�1;;�1E9>A>56316>@4�3G;45�1AE�342G;16>7A5�B7GAE�67�W4�1::;>81W;4�67�/7A5G;61A6�1AE�1;;�7B�>65�5GW87A63186735J�]A�1EE>6>7AN�/7A5G;61A6�123445�67�34̂G>34�;>_4�879:;>1A84�W<�1;;�7B�>65�5GW87A6318673̀5aJ���()*�+,��b-� �
����������������
���������c����/0�=1331A65�6?16�>6�?15�A76�49:;7<4E�73�3461>A4E�1A<�879:1A<�73�:4357AN�76?43�6?1A�1�W7A1�B>E4�49:;7<44�=73_>A2�57;4;<�B73�6?4�/0N�67�57;>8>6�73�548G34�6?>5�H234494A6N�1AE�6?16�>6�?15�A76�:1>E�73�12344E�67�:1<�1A<�879:1A<�73�:4357AN�76?43�6?1A�1�W7A1�B>E4�49:;7<44�=73_>A2�57;4;<�B73�6?4�/0N�1A<�B44N�8799>55>7AN�:4384A6124N�W37_43124�B44N�2>B6N�73�1A<�76?43�87A5>E4316>7A�87A6>A24A6�7A�73�345G;6>A2�B379�6?4�1=13E�73�91_>A2�7B�6?>5�H234494A6J�C73�W3418?�73�@>7;16>7A�7B�6?>5�=1331A6<N�6?4�d>563>86�5?1;;�?1@4�6?4�3>2?6�67�1AAG;�6?>5�H234494A6�=>6?7G6�;>1W>;>6<N�73�>A�>65�E>58346>7AN�67�E4EG86�B379�6?4�87A63186�:3>84�73�87A5>E4316>7A�73�76?43=>54�3487@43�6?4�BG;;�197GA6�7B�5G8?�B44N�8799>55>7AN�:4384A6124�B44N�2>B6N�73�87A6>A24A8<J��()*�+,��e-� ,���������������f�
��	�����
��g?>5�H234494A6N�>A8;GE>A2�6?4�D[?>W>65�?43467N�5G:4354E45�1;;�:34@>7G5�87A631865�1AE�87A56>6G645�6?4�4A6>34�GAE43561AE>A2�7B�6?4�V136>45�?43467J�/0�5?1;;�W4�4A6>6;4E�67�A7�W4A4B>6�76?43�6?1A�6?754�5:48>B>4E�?434>AJ�h7�8?1A245N�194AE94A65�73�1;64316>7A5�5?1;;�W4�4BB486>@4�GA;455�>A�=3>6>A2�1AE�5>2A4E�W<�W76?�V136>45J�/0�5:48>B>81;;<�18_A7=;4E245�6?16�>A�4A643>A2�>A67�6?>5�H234494A6N�/0�34;>45�57;4;<�G:7A�6?4�:37@>5>7A5�87A61>A4E�>A�6?>5�H234494A6�1AE�A7�76?435J��()*�+,��i-� .
�j�����������
	�����������g?>5�H234494A6�>5�>A64AE4E�67�548G34�6?4�/0k5�5:48>1;>l4E�543@>845J�/0�91<�A76�155>2AN�631A5B43N�E4;42164�73�5GW;46�1A<�>A643456�6?434>A�=>6?7G6�6?4�d>563>86k5�:3>73�=3>664A�87A54A6J�HA<�155>2A94A6N�631A5B43N�E4;4216>7A�73�5GW;4154�=>6?7G6�6?4�d>563>86k5�:3>73�=3>664A�87A54A6�5?1;;�W4�87A5>E434E�AG;;�1AE�@7>EJ���()*�+,�mn-� +�op�q����IQJO� g?>5�H234494A6�?15�W44A�4[48G64E�1AE�E4;>@434E�>A�6?4�r6164�7B�/1;>B73A>1�1AE�6?4�@1;>E>6<N�4AB73841W>;>6<�1AE�>A643:34616>7A�7B�1A<�7B�6?4�8;1G545�7B�6?>5�H234494A6�5?1;;�W4�E46439>A4E�1AE�27@43A4E�W<�6?4�;1=5�7B�6?4�r6164�7B�/1;>B73A>1J��IQJI� g7�6?4�BG;;456�4[64A6�:439>664E�W<�/1;>B73A>1�;1=N�r183194A67�/7GA6<�5?1;;�W4�6?4�@4AG4�B73�1A<�186>7A�73�:37844E>A2�6?16�91<�W4�W37G2?6�73�13>54�7G6�7BN�>A�87AA486>7A�=>6?�73�W<�34157A�7B�6?>5�H234494A6J���()*�+,�m�-� ���������������s���(��
���
��



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

()*)� +,,�-,./012�3/145671�89�-8:698;791/71�.9/1/:<�856�8=2�89�/:�97,.6/8:�68�6>7�/:6794976.6/8:2�.44,/-.6/8:�89�7:=89-707:6�8=�6>/1�+<97707:6�0.?�@7�37-/373�6>985<>�073/.6/8:�.1�6>7�=/916�076>83�8=�9718,56/8:*�A86/-7�8=�6>7�370.:3�=89�073/.6/8:�8=�.�3/14567�1>.,,�@7�=/,73�/:�B9/6/:<�B/6>�6>7�86>79�4.96?�68�6>7�+<97707:6*�C>7�370.:3�=89�073/.6/8:�1>.,,�@7�0.37�B/6>/:�.�97.18:.@,7�6/07�.=679�B9/667:�:86/-7�8=�6>7�3/14567�>.1�@77:�498;/373�68�6>7�86>79�4.96?2�@56�/:�:8�-.17�,8:<79�6>.:�:/:76?�DEFG�3.?1�.=679�/:/6/.,�B9/667:�:86/-7*��()*(� H=�.�-,./02�89�.:?�4896/8:�6>7978=2�970./:1�/:�3/14567�548:�1.6/1=.-6/8:�8=�.,,�.44,/-.@,7�3/14567�9718,56/8:�97I5/9707:612�6>7�J8:15,6.:6�1>.,,�-804,?�B/6>�.,,�-,./01�49717:6.6/8:�97I5/9707:61�.1�498;/373�/:�J>.4679�)�D-8007:-/:<�B/6>�17-6/8:�EFFG�.:3�J>.4679�(�D-8007:-/:<�B/6>�17-6/8:�E)FG�8=�K.96�L�8=�M/;/1/8:�L*N�8=�C/6,7�)�8=�O8;79:07:6�J837�.1�.�-8:3/6/8:�497-737:6�68�6>7�J8:15,6.:6P1�9/<>6�68�@9/:<�.�-/;/,�.-6/8:�.<./:16�6>7�M/169/-6*�Q89�45948171�8=�6>817�498;/1/8:12�6>7�95::/:<�8=�6>7�6/07�B/6>/:�B>/->�.�-,./0�0516�@7�49717:673�68�6>7�M/169/-6�1>.,,�@7�68,,73�=980�6>7�6/07�6>7�J8:15,6.:6�15@0/61�/61�B9/667:�-,./0�5:6/,�6>7�6/07�6>7�-,./0�/1�37:/732�/:-,53/:<�.:?�6/07�56/,/R73�@?�.:?�.44,/-.@,7�0776�.:3�-8:=79�498-711*��()*L� A86B/6>16.:3/:<�.:?�3/1456712�-,./01�89�86>79�3/1.<97707:61�@76B77:�6>7�JS�.:3�6>7�M/169/-62�JS�1>.,,�-8:6/:57�68�498;/37�.:3�479=890�T79;/-71�>7975:379�47:3/:<�.�15@17I57:6�9718,56/8:�8=�15->�3/145671*���UVW�XY�ZZ[� V
������
	��������JS�.<9771�68�68,,�.,,�16.65671�8=�,/0/6.6/8:1�=89�M/169/-6P1�.11796/8:�8=�-,./01�.<./:16�JS�6>.6�.9/17�856�8=2�4796./:�682�89�97,.67�68�J8:69.-6891P�89�15@-8:69.-6891P�-,./01�.<./:16�M/169/-6�/:;8,;/:<�JSP1�B89\2�5:6/,�6>7�J8:69.-6891P�89�15@-8:69.-6891P�-,./01�.97�=/:.,,?�9718,;73*��UVW�XY�Z][� ������̂������H=�.:?�67902�-8;7:.:62�-8:3/6/8:�89�498;/1/8:�8=�6>/1�+<97707:6�/1�>7,3�@?�.�-8596�8=�-804767:6�_59/13/-6/8:�68�@7�/:;.,/32�;8/3�89�5:7:=89-7.@,72�6>7�970./:379�8=�6>7�498;/1/8:1�>7978=�1>.,,�970./:�/:�=5,,�=89-7�.:3�7==7-6�.:3�1>.,,�/:�:8�B.?�@7�.==7-6732�/04./973�89�/:;.,/3.673�6>797@?*��UVW�XY�Z̀[� Y�a�
������������(b*)� JS�1>.,,2�359/:<�6>7�7:6/97�6790�8=�+<97707:62�@7�-8:169573�68�@7�.:�/:3747:37:6�-8:69.-689�.:3�:86>/:<�/:�6>/1�+<97707:6�/1�/:67:373�:89�1>.,,�/6�@7�-8:169573�68�-97.67�.:�704,8?79c704,8?77�97,.6/8:1>/42�.�_8/:6�;7:6597�97,.6/8:1>/42�89�68�.,,8B�M/169/-6�68�7d79-/17�3/1-976/8:�89�-8:698,�8;79�6>7�498=711/8:.,�0.::79�/:�B>/->�JS�479=8901�6>7�T79;/-71�B>/->�.97�6>7�15@_7-6�0.6679�8=�6>/1�+<97707:6e�498;/373�.,B.?12�>8B7;792�6>.6�6>7�T79;/-71�68�@7�498;/373�@?�JS�1>.,,�@7�498;/373�/:�.�0.::79�-8:1/167:6�B/6>�.,,�.44,/-.@,7�16.:3.931�.:3�97<5,.6/8:1�<8;79:/:<�15->�T79;/-71*��(b*(� JS�5:37916.:31�.:3�.<9771�6>.6�JSP1�47918::7,�.97�:86�.:3�B/,,�:86�@7�7,/</@,7�=89f�070@791>/4�/:2�89�68�97-7/;7�.:?�@7:7=/61�=9802�.:?�M/169/-6�<9854�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

()*+�,-.�/-0(12*)3�04.516*)�-.�78916*)�1+04.*+68:�787;8.0/1(�1+�*+<�=102.162�.821.878+2�(.-5.*7:�(*19�>*6*21-+3�(*19�016?�)8*>8�-.�-2/8.�)8*>83�@12/�-.�@12/-42�(*<:�-.�*+<�-2/8.�;8+8,120�@/16/�*66.48�2-�*�=102.162�87()-<88A�BCAD� E/-4)9�=102.1623�1+�120�9106.821-+3�-.�*�.8)8>*+2�2*F1+5�*42/-.12<�046/�*0�2/8�G+28.+*)�H8>8+48�E8.>168�-.�2/8�E2*28�I7()-<78+2�=8>8)-(78+2�=8(*.278+23�-.�;-2/3�9828.71+8�2/*2�JK�-.�*+<�87()-<88�-,�JK�10�*+�87()-<88�-,�=102.162�,-.�(4.(-080�-,�6-))8621-+�-,�*+<�87()-<78+2�2*F803�2/8�*7-4+20�(*<*;)8�4+98.�2/10�L5.8878+2�0/*))�;8�.894689�;<�*7-4+20�8M4*)�2-�;-2/�2/8�87()-<88�*+9�87()-<8.�(-.21-+0�-,�2/8�2*F�948�N*+9�-,,08221+5�*+<�6.89120�,-.�*7-4+20�*).8*9<�(*19�;<�JK�@/16/�6*+�;8�*(()189�*5*1+02�2/10�)1*;1)12<OA�=102.162�0/*))�2/8+�,-.@*.9�2/-08�*7-4+20�2-�2/8�.8)8>*+2�2*F1+5�*42/-.12<A�BCAC� E/-4)9�*�.8)8>*+2�2*F1+5�*42/-.12<�9828.71+8�*�)1*;1)12<�,-.�(*02�08.>1680�(8.,-.789�;<�JK�,-.�=102.1623�4(-+�+-21,16*21-+�-,�046/�,*62�;<�=102.1623�JK�0/*))�(.-7(2)<�.8712�2/8�*7-4+2�948�-.�*..*+58�@12/�=102.162�2-�/*>8�2/8�*7-4+2�948�@12//8)9�,.-7�,424.8�(*<78+20�2-�JK�4+98.�2/10�L5.8878+2�N*5*1+3�-,,08221+5�*+<�*7-4+20�*).8*9<�(*19�;<�JK�@/16/�6*+�;8�*(()189�*0�*�6.8912�*5*1+02�2/*2�)1*;1)12<OA�BCAP� L�9828.71+*21-+�-,�87()-<78+2�02*240�(4.04*+2�2-�2/8�(.86891+5�2@-�(*.*5.*(/0�0/*))�;8�0-)8)<�,-.�2/8�(4.(-080�-,�2/8�(*.2164)*.�2*F�1+�M48021-+3�*+9�,-.�*))�-2/8.�(4.(-080�-,�2/10�L5.8878+23�JK�0/*))�+-2�;8�6-+0198.89�*+�87()-<88�-,�=102.162A�Q-2@12/02*+91+5�2/8�,-.85-1+53�0/-4)9�*+<�6-4.23�*.;12.*2-.3�-.�*971+102.*21>8�*42/-.12<�9828.71+8�JK�10�*+�87()-<88�,-.�*+<�-2/8.�(4.(-083�2/8+�JK�*5.880�2-�*�.894621-+�1+�=102.162R0�)1*;1)12<�.804)21+5�,.-7�2/10�L5.8878+2�(4.04*+2�2-�(.1+61()80�0171)*.�2-�2/-08�02*289�1+�2/8�,-.85-1+5�(*.*5.*(/0�0-�2/*2�2/8�2-2*)�8F(8+080�-,�=102.162�4+98.�2/10�L5.8878+2�0/*))�+-2�;8�5.8*28.�2/*+�2/8<�@-4)9�/*>8�;88+�/*9�2/8�6-4.23�*.;12.*2-.3�-.�*971+102.*21>8�*42/-.12<�9828.71+89�JK�@*0�+-2�*+�87()-<88A�BCAS� Q-2/1+5�1+�2/10�L5.8878+2�0/*))�-(8.*28�2-�6-+,8.�.15/20�-.�;8+8,120�-+�(8.0-+0�-.�8+212180�+-2�*�(*.2<�2-�2/10�L5.8878+2A��TUV�WX�YZ[� \��������
	����BPA]� JK�@*..*+20�2/*2�JK�10�(.-(8.)<�)168+089�*+9̂-.�68.21,189�4+98.�2/8�)*@0�*+9�.854)*21-+0�-,�2/8�E2*28�-,�J*)1,-.+1*�2-�(.->198�2/8�E8.>1680�2/*2�12�/*0�/8.81+�*5.889�2-�(8.,-.7A�JK�,4.2/8.�@*..*+20�2/*2�*))�-,�2/8�@-.?�JK�(8.,-.70�4+98.�2/10�L5.8878+2�0/*))�6-7()<�@12/�*))�*(()16*;)8�)*@03�.4)803�.854)*21-+0�*+9�6-980�-,�2/8�_+1289�E2*280�*+9�2/8�E2*28�-,�J*)1,-.+1*A�JK�*)0-�@*..*+20�2/*2�12�0/*))�6-7()<�@12/�*))�*(()16*;)8�-.91+*+6803�.854)*21-+03�*+9�.80-)421-+0�-,�E*6.*78+2-�J-4+2<A�BPAB� JK�68.21,180�2/*2�12�10�*@*.8�-,�2/8�(.->101-+0�-,�2/8�J*)1,-.+1*�̀*;-.�J-98�-,�2/8�E2*28�-,�J*)1,-.+1*3�.8M41.1+5�8>8.<�87()-<8.�2-�;8�1+04.89�*5*1+02�)1*;1)12<�,-.�@-.?8.0�6-7(8+0*21-+�-.�2-�4+98.2*?8�08),a1+04.*+68�1+�*66-.9*+68�@12/�2/8�(.->101-+0�-,�2/*2�6-983�*+9�12�68.21,180�2/*23�1,�*(()16*;)83�12�@1))�6-7()<�@12/�2/-08�(.->101-+0�;8,-.8�6-778+61+5�2/8�(8.,-.7*+68�-,�2/8�@-.?�-,�2/10�L5.8878+2A�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

()*+� ,-�./0�01.02.�./3.�./0�4-56�7058-590:�;2:05�./<=�>-2.53>.�<=�=;?@0>.�.-�A3?-5�>-97A<32>0�32:�028-5>0902.�?B�./0�CDEF�GH�=70><8<>3AAB�3>62-4A0:I0=�32:�;2:05=.32:=�./3.�<.�=/3AA�7058-59�./0�J05K<>0=�4/<A0�>-97AB<2I�4<./�3AA�377A<>3?A0�75-K<=<-2=�-8�C<K<=<-2�(F�L35.�MF�G/37.05�N�-8�./0�O3?-5�G-:0�32:�,<.A0�P�-8�./0�G3A<8-52<3�G-:0�-8�E0I;A3.<-2=F�<2>A;:<2I�3AA�377A<>3?A0�750K3<A<2I�43I0�50Q;<50902.=*��RST�UV�WXY� �
��������
����Z��
�����������[�������R�\
����GH�=/3AA�?0�50=7-2=<?A0�8-5�>-97A<32>0�4<./�G3A<8-52<3�]-K052902.�G-:0�=0>.<-2�M))̂F�<8�./0�.-.3A�>-=.�-8�./0�_I500902.�<=�-K05�8<K0�./-;=32:�:-AA35=�̀a)F̂̂ b̂*��RST�UV�WcY� �
��������
���d�e
�����f-.<>0=�32:�>-99;2<>3.<-2=�?0.4002�./0�L35.<0=�.-�./<=�_I500902.�93B�?0�=02.�.-�./0�8-AA-4<2I�3::50==0=�?B�50I<=.050:�-5�>05.<8<0:�93<A�4<./�7-=.3I0�75073<:F�50.;52�50>0<7.�50Q;0=.0:F�?B�-K052<I/.�:0A<K05B�=05K<>0F�-5�?B�705=-23A�:0A<K05Bg���������h��J3>53902.-�G<.B�i2<8<0:�J>/--A�C<=.5<>.��)M+)�jM./�_K02;0�J3>53902.-F�G_�k)P(j�_,,fg�,<23�_AK350l�m0K02=� ��h��n<.>/0AAoGpH�D2>*�(j)̂�q02.;50�r36=�s3BF�J.0�)̂ �̂J3>53902.-�G_��k)P++�_,,fg��t088�C00=oC32�L-5.05��D8�2-.<>0�<=�I<K02�?B�50I<=.050:�-5�>05.<8<0:�93<A�4<./�7-=.3I0�75073<:F�50.;52�50>0<7.�50Q;0=.0:F�<.�=/3AA�?0�>-2=<:050:�:0A<K050:�-2�./0�:3B�./0�2-.<>0�<=�=<I20:�8-5*�D8�2-.<>0�<8�I<K02�?B�-K052<I/.�:0A<K05B�=05K<>0F�<.�=/3AA�?0�>-2=<:050:�:0A<K050:�-2�./0�:3.0�=.3.0:�<2�./0�75--8�-8�:0A<K05B*��GH�32:�C<=.5<>.F�?B�2-.<>0�I<K02�/050;2:05F�93B�:0=<I23.0�:<880502.�3::50==0=�.-�4/<>/�=;?=0Q;02.�2-.<>0=F�>05.<8<>3.0=�-5�-./05�>-99;2<>3.<-2=�4<AA�?0�=02.*��RST�UV�WuY� ����v����w�������x�������V����\������������\���
���L;5=;32.�.-�=0>.<-2�NM̂My*NN�-8�./0�p:;>3.<-2�G-:0F�./0�C<=.5<>.�/3=�3�735.<><73.<-2�I-3A�8-5�:<=3?A0:�K0.0532�?;=<20==�02.0575<=0=�̀zCqmp{b�-8�3.�A03=.�./500�705>02.�̀+|bF�705�B035F�-8�8;2:=�01702:0:�03>/�B035�?B�./0�C<=.5<>.�-2�75-@0>.=�./3.�;=0�8;2:=�3AA->3.0:�?B�./0�J.3.0�_AA->3.<-2�m-35:�7;5=;32.�.-�./0�O05-B�}*�]50020�J>/--A�}3><A<.<0=�_>.�̀./0�z_>.{b*�,/<=�L5-@0>.�93B�;=0�8;2:=�3AA->3.0:�;2:05�./0�_>.*�,/0508-50F�GHF�?08-50�<.�010>;.0=�./0�_I500902.F�=/3AA�75-K<:0�.-�./0�C<=.5<>.�>05.<8<>3.<-2�-8�>-97A<32>0�4<./�./0�75->0:;50=�8-5�<97A0902.3.<-2�-8�Cqmp�>-2.53>.<2I�I-3A=F�3775-75<3.0�:->;902.3.<-2�<:02.<8B<2I�./0�39-;2.̀=b�<2.02:0:�.-�?0�73<:�.-�Cqmp=�<2�>-2@;2>.<-2�4<./�./0�>-2.53>.F�32:o-5�:->;902.3.<-2�:09-2=.53.<2I�GH~=�I--:�83<./�088-5.=�.-�900.�./0=0�I-3A=*��RST�UV�W�Y� �����������R������
������(k*N� C<=.5<>.�50.3<2=�./0�5<I/.�.-�50K<04�32:�3;:<.F�32:�./0�503=-23?A0�5<I/.�-8�3>>0==�.-�GH~=�32:�32B�G-2=;A.32.~=�7509<=0=�.-�50K<04�32:�3;:<.�./0�GH~=�>-97A<32>0�4<./�./0�75-K<=<-2=�-8�./<=�_I500902.�̀zC<=.5<>.~=�E<I/.{b*�,/0�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

()*+,)-+.*�/)01+�)2-3456*�+16�,)01+�+7�)2*86-+9�817+7-78:9�;25�+7�,6+;)2�-78)6*9�74+*)56�7<�=>.*�8,6?)*6*9�7<�;2:�;25�;33�@,7A6-+B,63;+65�,6-7,5*�;25�7+16,�)2<7,?;+)72�C)+1�;88,78,);+6�*;<604;,5*9�)<�*4-1�,6+62+)72�)*�566?65�26-6**;,:�D:�+16�()*+,)-+�)2�)+*�*736�5)*-,6+)72E�F16�()*+,)-+�*1;33�G668�+1)*�)2<7,?;+)72�-72<)562+);39�;*�;337C65�D:�;883)-;D36�3;CE�HIEH� F16�()*+,)-+.*�/)01+�)2-3456*�+16�,)01+�+7�6J;?)26�;2:�;25�;33�D77G*9�,6-7,5*9�57-4?62+*�;25�;2:�7+16,�6K)562-6�7<�8,7-654,6*�;25�8,;-+)-6*�+1;+�+16�()*+,)-+�56+6,?)26*�)*�26-6**;,:�+7�5)*-7K6,�;25�K6,)<:�C16+16,�=>�)*�)2�-7?83);2-6�C)+1�;33�,6L4),6?62+*�7<�+1)*�M0,66?62+E�HIEN� O<�+16,6�)*�;�-3;)?�<7,�;55)+)72;3�-7?862*;+)72�7,�<7,�PJ+,;�Q6,K)-6*9�+16�()*+,)-+.*�/)01+�)2-3456*�+16�,)01+�+7�6J;?)26�D77G*9�,6-7,5*9�57-4?62+*9�;25�;2:�;25�;33�7+16,�6K)562-6�;25�;--742+)20�8,7-654,6*�;25�8,;-+)-6*�+1;+�+16�()*+,)-+�56+6,?)26*�)*�26-6**;,:�+7�5)*-7K6,�;25�K6,)<:�;33�5),6-+�;25�)25),6-+�-7*+*9�7<�C1;+6K6,�2;+4,69�C1)-1�;,6�-3;)?65�+7�1;K6�D662�)2-4,,659�7,�;2+)-)8;+65�+7�D6�)2-4,,65E�HIER� =>�*1;33�?;)2+;)2�-7?836+6�;25�;--4,;+6�,6-7,5*�)2�;--7,5;2-6�C)+1�0626,;33:�;--68+65�;--742+)20�8,;-+)-6*�)2�+16�)254*+,:E�=>�*1;33�?;G6�;K;)3;D36�+7�+16�()*+,)-+�<7,�,6K)6C�;25�;45)+�;33�@,7A6-+B,63;+65�;--742+)20�,6-7,5*�;25�57-4?62+*�;25�;2:�7+16,�<)2;2-);3�5;+;E�S872�()*+,)-+.*�,6L46*+9�=>�*1;33�*4D?)+�6J;-+�5483)-;+6*�7<�7,)0)2;3*�7<�;33�,6L46*+65�,6-7,5*�+7�+16�()*+,)-+E�HIET� =>�*1;33�)2-3456�;45)+�8,7K)*)72*�)2�;2:�;25�;33�7<�)+*�*4D-72+,;-+*9�;25�*1;33�62*4,6�+1;+�+16*6�*6-+)72*�;,6�D)25)20�4872�;33�=72*43+;2+*E�HIEU� =>�*1;33�-7?83:�C)+1�+16*6�8,7K)*)72*�C)+1)2�<)<+662�VWTX�5;:*�7<�+16�()*+,)-+.*�C,)++62�,6L46*+�+7�,6K)6C�;25�;45)+�;2:�7,�;33�7<�=>.*�@,7A6-+B,63;+65�,6-7,5*�;25�)2<7,?;+)72E��YZ[�\]�̂�_� �̀������
����
���NaEW� =>�*1;33�D6�,6*872*)D36�<7,�+16�-7*+�7<�-72*+,4-+)72�-1;206�7,56,*�-;4*65�5),6-+3:�D:�=>.*�C)33<43�?)*-7254-+�7,�2603)062+�;-+*9�6,,7,*�7,�7?)**)72*E�b)+174+�3)?)+)20�=>.*�3);D)3)+:�<7,�)25),6-+�7,�-72*6L462+);3�-7*+�)?8;-+*9�+16�5),6-+�-7*+*�<7,�C1)-1�=>�*1;33�D6�3);D36�*1;33�6L4;3�)+*�8,787,+)72;+6�*1;,6�7<�+16�5)<<6,62-6�D6+C662�+16�-7*+�7<�+16�-1;206�7,56,�;25�+16�,6;*72;D36�-7*+�7<�+16�C7,G�1;5�*4-1�C7,G�D662�;�8;,+�7<�+16�7,)0)2;33:�8,68;,65�=72*+,4-+)72�(7-4?62+*E�F16*6�;?742+*�*1;33�D6�8;)5�D:�=>�+7�()*+,)-+�7,�+16�()*+,)-+�?;:�C)+11735�+17*6�-7*+*�<,7?�;?742+*�546�7,�+7�D6-7?6�546�+7�=>E�NaEH� c6)+16,�+16�()*+,)-+.*�,6K)6C9�;88,7K;3�7<9�27,�8;:?62+�<7,9�;2:�7<�+16�Q6,K)-6*�,6L4),65�4256,�+1)*�M0,66?62+�*1;33�D6�-72*+,465�+7�786,;+6�;*�;�C;)K6,�7<�;2:�,)01+*�4256,�+1)*�M0,66?62+9�;25�=>�*1;33�,6?;)2�3);D36�+7�+16�()*+,)-+�)2�;--7,5;2-6�C)+1�+1)*�M0,66?62+�<7,�;33�5;?;06*�+7�+16�()*+,)-+�-;4*65�D:�=>.*�<;)34,6�+7�86,<7,?�;2:�7<�+16�Q6,K)-6*�<4,2)*165�4256,�+1)*�M0,66?62+�+7�+16�*+;25;,5�7<�-;,6�7<�+16�=>�<7,�)+*�Q6,K)-6*9�C1)-1�*1;33�D69�;+�;�?)2)?4?9�+16�*+;25;,5�7<�-;,6�7<�-72*+,4-+)72�?;2;06,*�86,<7,?)20�*)?)3;,�C7,G�<7,�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

()*+,-./+)�012*+3�435--*�6+47.+374�)7�-.�).-1/6�758�4)98�7+98�)/6�+/�-.�).-1/6�758�4)98�:8-:.)05+3�).8)�-,�758�;+47.+37<��=><=� (?�45)**�45).8@�3.86+7@�-.�.8+921.48�;+47.+37�,+,7A�08.38/7�BC>DE�-,�758�)9-1/7�-,�)/A�7)F�686137+-/�)/6G-.�3.86+7�(?�.838+H84�,-.�;+47.+37�I.-J8374�1/68.�758�(-998.3+)*�K1+*6+/:4�L/8.:AML,,+3+8/3A�N)F�;86137+-/@�OP�Q<R<�(-68�S�TUV;�BWR837+-/�TUV;XE<��(?�45)**�0.-H+68�;+47.+37�Y+75�)**�/83844).A�6-3198/7)7+-/�7-�8/)2*8�;+47.+37�7-�H8.+,A�758�)9-1/74�-,�758�R837+-/�TUV;�7)F�686137+-/<��(?�45)**�/-7+,A�;+47.+37�+/�Y.+7+/:�-,�758�R837+-/�TUV;�7)F�686137+-/�Y+75+/�=>�6)A4�-,�Y58/�(?�.838+H84�Z[R�/-7+38�-,�758�R837+-/�TUV;�7)F�686137+-/�-.�.838+H84�758�R837+-/�TUV;�7)F�.8,1/6@�Y5+358H8.�-331.4�,+.47<�=><\� L)35�0).7A�Y)..)/74�75)7�+7�5)4�5)6�758�-00-.71/+7A�7-�3-/41*7�3-1/48*�)/6�1/68.47)/64�758�78.94�-,�75+4�]:.8898/7�)/6�758�3-/48̂18/384�-,�8F8317+/:�+7<�Z/�)66+7+-/@�8)35�0).7A�)3_/-Y*86:84�75)7�758�6.),7+/:�-,�75+4�]:.8898/7�Y)4�758�0.-6137�-,�/8:-7+)7+-/@�75)7�/-�0).7A�+4�758�)175-.�-,�75+4�]:.8898/7@�)/6�75)7�75+4�]:.8898/7�45)**�/-7�28�3-/47.186�):)+/47�)/A�0).7A�)4�758�6.),78.�-,�758�]:.8898/7<�=><C� N58�+/6+H+61)*�8F8317+/:�75+4�]:.8898/7�-/�285)*,�-,�(?�Y)..)/74�)/6�.80.848/74�75)7�458G58�+4�)175-.+̀86�7-�8F83178�75+4�]:.8898/7�)/6�2+/6�758�(?�7-�)**�78.94�58.8-,<�=><P� N5+4�]:.8898/7�9)A�28�8F831786�+/�-/8�-.�9-.8�3-1/78.0).74@�8)35�-,�Y5+35�45)**�28�688986�)/�-.+:+/)*<�]�,)34+9+*8�-.�8*837.-/+3�4+:/)71.8�45)**�28�688986�7-�28�758�8̂1+H)*8/7�-,�758�)371)*�-.+:+/)*�4+:/)71.8<�]**�3-1/78.0).74�4-�8F831786�45)**�3-/47+7178�-/8�]:.8898/7�2+/6+/:�)**�758�I).7+84�58.87-<���abc�de�f�g� eh��i���<�LF5+2+74�W]X�75.-1:5�WLX�)77)3586�58.87-�).8�58.82A�+/3-.0-.)786�2A�75+4�.8,8.8/38�)/6�9)68�)�0).7�-,�75+4�]:.8898/7<��Zj�kZNjLRR�klL[Lmn@�758�0).7+84�58.87-�5)H8�8F831786�75+4�]:.8898/7�-/�758�6)78B4E�+/6+3)786�28*-Y<����a��eobp��cbq��ocrce����sppd��c�bac�b���KAt� uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu�� v8448�()47+**-�� ]44+47)/7�R108.+/78/68/7�;)78t��uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu� wcb�seddx�e��co�g���KAt� uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu�� k8/6A�(-58/�� I.84+68/7� � � � �;)78t��uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu�9/16/2023



�����������	
�����

������������������������������������������������������ ��!��� �"#$�%&� '()*+�),-.*+,)�&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&�%�/&� 0,1,-(2�3-45,+6�),-.*+,)�&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&�7�8&� 3-,+41)6-9+6*41�3:(),�&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&�;�7&� 3-,<'*=�3:(),�&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&�>�;&� '*==*10�3:(),�&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&�>�?&� +41)6-9+6*41�3:(),�&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&�@�>&� 3-45,+6�+4A32,6*41�&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&�%%�@&� B*1(2�=4+9A,16)&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&�%/�



�

��������� 	
���������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!�"��������#$%�#&'�())*+)),-�

��������./�0��	12����3������2"���04�����15��12��0����12��26�0�789:;<=>;?89�&@9@AB<�CD7&EF�:G@HH�I<8,?JB�I<8KB::?89@H�:B<,?>B:�9B>B::@<L�K8<�>8MIHB;?9A�;GB�K8HH8N?9AO��P� �������04�����QRQR� S<8,?JB�N8<T�NG?>G�:G@HH�>8MIHL�N?;G�I<8KB::?89@H�:;@9J@<J:�@9J�@IIH?>@UHB�<BV=?<BMB9;:�8K�KBJB<@HW�:;@;BW�@9J�H8>@H�H@NX�QRYR� &89?;8<�@9J�@J,?:B�;GB�#?:;<?>;�@:�;8�@HH�M@;B<?@H�JB,BH8IMB9;:�?9�;GB�S<8ZB>;X�&@?9;@?9�<BI8<;?9A�:L:;BM:�K8<�:>8IBW�:BV=B9>?9AW�:>GBJ=H?9AW�U=JAB;:�@9J�>8MM=9?>@;?89�K8<�;GB�S<8ZB>;�=:?9A�B[?:;?9A�#?:;<?>;�:8K;N@<BX�QR\R� ]B�;GB�K8>@H�I8?9;�8K�@HH�>8MM=9?>@;?89�;8�@9J�K<8M�>89:;<=>;?89�789;<@>;8<C:FX�QR̂R� _MIHBMB9;�MB;G8J:�;8�U=JAB;�@9J�;<@>T�@HH�B[IB9J?;=<B:�89�;GB�S<8ZB>;X�7&�:G@HH�AB9B<@;B�M89;GHL�<BI8<;:�;8�;GB�#?:;<?>;�<BKHB>;?9A�;G?:�?9K8<M@;?89X�QR̀R� S<BI@<B�MB;G8J:�;8�;<@>T�@9J�<BI8<;�89�:>GBJ=HB�:;@;=:�K8<�;GB�S<8ZB>;X�7&�:G@HH�JB,BH8I�M@:;B<�:>GBJ=HB:�@9J�M?HB:;89B�:>GBJ=HB:�K8<�;GB�S<8ZB>;W�@9J�:G@HH�<BI8<;�89�:@MB�B@>G�M89;G�;8�;GB�#?:;<?>;X�QRaR� 7&�:G@HH�N8<T�>88IB<@;?,BHL�N?;G�#?:;<?>;�;8�@9;?>?I@;B�@9J�M@?9;@?9�@�:>GBJ=HB�8K�=I>8M?9A�]8@<J�?9K8<M@;?89�@9J�@>;?89�?;BM:�@9J�:G@HH�I<BI@<B�<BI8<;:W�U@>TA<8=9J�M@;B<?@H:W�@9J�I<BH?M?9@<L�M@;B<?@H:�?9�#?:;<?>;b:IB>?K?BJ�K8<M@;X��QRcR� 7&�:G@HH�N8<T�>88IB<@;?,BHL�N?;G�;GB�#B:?A9�dB@M�@9J�;GB�#?:;<?>;�;8O�QRcRQR�#BK?9B�@9J�:>GBJ=HB�;GB�S<8ZB>;X��QRcRYR�S<8,?JB�'B<,?>B:�;G@;�N?HH�<B:=H;�?9�;GB�JB,BH8IMB9;�8K�@9�8,B<@HH�S<8ZB>;�:;<@;BAL�N?;G�<BA@<J�;8�IG@:B:W�>89:;<=>;?89�:>GBJ=HB:W�;?M?9AW�U=JAB;W�I<BV=@H?K?>@;?89W�>89;@>;8<�@9J�>89:=H;@9;�I<8>=<BMB9;W�>89:;<=>;?89�M@;B<?@H:W�U=?HJ?9A�:L:;BM:W�@9J�BV=?IMB9;X�QReR� f<A@9?gB�@9�?9?;?@H�IH@99?9A�N8<T:G8I�;8�><B@;B�U@:BH?9B�I@<@MB;B<:�K8<�;GB�S<8ZB>;C:FW�;8�JBK?9B�8,B<@HH�U=?HJ?9A�<BV=?<BMB9;:W�S<8ZB>;C:F�:;<@;BALW�>89>BI;=@H�U=JAB;�@9J�:>GBJ=HBX�S=<:=@9;�;8�=9JB<:;@9J?9A:�<B@>GBJ�@;�;GB:B�MBB;?9A:W�7&�N?HH�JB,BH8I�@9�?MIHBMB9;@;?89�IH@9�;G@;�?JB9;?K?B:�;GB�,@<?8=:�IG@:B:�8K�;GB�S<8ZB>;C:FW�>88<J?9@;?89�@M89A�IG@:B:W�@9J�U=JAB;�@9J�;?MB�>89:;<@?9;:�K8<�B@>G�IG@:B�8K�;GB�S<8ZB>;X�dGB�IH@9�N?HH�?9>H=JB�@�JB;@?HBJ�:;<@;BALW�S<8ZB>;�]=JAB;�@9J�S<8ZB>;�:>GBJ=HB�@:�NBHH�@:�?JB9;?K?>@;?89�8K�><?;?>@H�B,B9;:�@9J�M?HB:;89B�@>;?,?;?B:X�QRhR� SB<K8<M�>89:;<=>;@U?H?;L�<B,?BN:W�JB;B<M?9B�>89:;<=>;?89�KB@:?U?H?;LW�@,@?H@U?H?;L�8K�M@;B<?@H:�@9J�H@U8<W�;?MB�<BV=?<BMB9;:�K8<�?9:;@HH@;?89�@9J�>89:;<=>;?89W�@9J�K@>;8<:�<BH@;BJ�;8�>8:;W�?9>H=J?9A�>8:;:�8K�@H;B<9@;?,B�JB:?A9:W�8K�M@;B<?@H:W�I<BH?M?9@<L�U=JAB;:W�@9J�I8::?UHB�B>898M?B:X�



�

��������� 	
���������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!�"��������#$%�#&'�())*+)),-�

./.0/�123456784�9:3;�3;4�<=235783=5�72>�7??�@AB8=235783=5@�>A5:2C�8=2@35A83:=2�3=�42@A54�3;73�3;4�#:@35:83�:@�D5=,:>4>�9:3;�72�7884D37B?4�E5=F483�72>�3;4�B4@3�,7?A4�6=5�37GD7H45�>=??75@I�./../�J>,:@4�3;4�#:@35:83�7@�3=�3;4�54CA?73=5H�7C428:4@�3;73�;7,4�FA5:@>:83:=2�=,45�72H�D=53:=2�=5�7??�=6�3;4�E5=F483K�72>�7@�3=�8==5>:273:=2�9:3;�72>�:LD?4L42373:=2�=6�3;4�54MA:54L423@�=6�3;4�54CA?73=5H�7C428:4@K�:28?A>:2C�9:3;=A3�?:L:373:=2�#'JI�./.N/�<=235783�6=5�=5�4LD?=HK�73�<&O@�4GD42@4K�@ABP8=2@A?3723Q@R�3=�3;4�4G3423�>44L4>�2484@@75H�6=5�<&O@�@45,:84@I�S=3;:2C�:2�3;4�6=54C=:2C�@;7??�854734�72H�8=235783A7?�54?73:=2@;:D�B439442�3;4�#:@35:83�72>�72H�@ABP8=2@A?3723Q@R�4LD?=H4>�BH�3;4�<&�A2>45�345L@�=6�3;:@�JC544L423I�./.T/�<==D45734�9:3;�3;4�#:@35:83K�U=75>K�72>�=3;45�D5=64@@:=27?@�4LD?=H4>�BH�3;4�#:@35:83�6=5�3;4�>4@:C2K�8==5>:273:=2�=5�L727C4L423�=6�=3;45�9=5V�54?734>�3=�3;4�E5=F483K�:28?A>:2C�#:@35:83�@3766�72>�8=2@A?3723@K�D5=F483�L727C45Q@RK�8:3:W42@O�=,45@:C;3�8=LL:3344K�=3;45�#:@35:83�8=LL:3344@K�72>�3;4�8=LLA2:3H�3=�678:?:3734�3;4�3:L4?H�8=LD?43:=2�=6�3;4�E5=F483�9:3;:2�U=75>P7DD5=,4>�BA>C43@�72>�3=�#:@35:83�>4@:C2�@372>75>@I��./.X/�<;7:5K�8=2>A83�72>�37V4�L:2A34@�=6�D45:=>:8�L443:2C@�B439442�#:@35:83�72>�:3@�>4@:C2�D5=64@@:=27?Q@RK�3;4�':34�<=LL:3344�L443:2C@K�72>�8=2@35A83:=2�L443:2C@�>A5:2C�3;4�8=A5@4�=6�3;4�E5=F483I�<&�@;7??�:2,:34�3;4�#:@35:83�72>Y=5�:3@�54D54@42373:,4�72>�3;4�E5=F483�12@D483=5�3=�D753:8:D734�:2�3;4@4�L443:2C@I�<&�@;7??�V44D�L443:2C�L:2A34@�3=�>=8AL423�8=LL423@�C4245734>�:2�3;4@4�L443:2C@I�./.Z/�#4,4?=D�6=5�#:@35:83�7DD5=,7?�7�E5=F483�3:L4�@8;4>A?4�73�3;4�@3753�=6�E5=F483�>4,4?=DL423�3;73�>=4@�3;4�6=??=9:2C[�./.Z/./�E5=,:>4@�@A66:8:423�3:L4�6=5�D54MA7?:6:873:=2K�72>�:6�2484@@75H�3;4�54@=?A3:=2�=6�72H�7DD47?@K�B:>>:2CK�72>K�:6�2484@@75HK�54B:>>:2CK�=5�24C=3:73:2C�:6�7DD?:87B?4K�3;4�E5=F483\��./.Z/N/�<==5>:2734@�72>�:234C5734@�3;4�>4@:C2�D5=64@@:=27?Q@RO�>4@:C2�466=53@�9:3;�B:>>:2C�@8;4>A?4@\��./.Z/T/�128?A>4@�547?:@3:8�783:,:3H�@4MA4284@�72>�>A573:=2@K�7??=873:=2�=6�?7B=5�72>�L7345:7?@�72>�>4?:,45H�=6�D5=>A83@�54MA:5:2C�?=2C�?47>P3:L4�D5=8A54L423\�72>�./.Z/X/�]7V4@�:23=�788=A23�3;4�#:@35:83O@�=88AD728H�54MA:54L423@�Q@;=9:2C�D=53:=2@�=6�3;4�E5=F483�;7,:2C�=88AD728H�D5:=5:3H�72>�=2C=:2C�=D4573:=27?�=88AD728H�54MA:54L423@RI��./.̂ /�U4�54@D=2@:B?4�6=5�3;4�D5=64@@:=27?�MA7?:3H�72>�348;2:87?�788A578H�=6�7??�8=@3�4@3:L734@K�8=2@35A837B:?:3H�54,:49@K�@3A>:4@K�54D=53@K�D5=F483:=2@K�=D:2:=2@�=6�3;4�D5=B7B?4�8=@3�=6�8=2@35A83:=2K�72>�=3;45�@45,:84@�6A52:@;4>�BH�<&�A2>45�3;:@�JC544L423�7@�94??�7@�8==5>:273:=2�9:3;�7??�&7@345�E?72@K�@3A>:4@K�54D=53@�72>�=3;45�:26=5L73:=2�D5=,:>4>�BH�#:@35:83�3=�<&I�<&�@;7??K�9:3;=A3�7>>:3:=27?�8=LD42@73:=2K�8=55483�=5�54,:@4�72H�455=5@�=5�=L:@@:=2@�:2�L7345:7?@�:3�C4245734@I�./._/�&7:237:2�7�?=C�=6�7??�L443:2C@K�@:34�,:@:3@�=5�>:@8A@@:=2@�;4?>�:2�8=2FA283:=2�9:3;�3;4�9=5V�=6�3;4�E5=F483K�9:3;�>=8AL42373:=2�=6�L7F=5�>:@8A@@:=2�D=:23@K�=B@45,73:=2@K�>48:@:=2@K�



�

��������� 	
���������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!�"��������#$%�#&'�())*+)),-�

./0123451�46�748805219�:;010�1;<==�>0�?/6531;0@�24�2;0�#3126372�<5@A46�321�60B601052<23,0�?46�357=/1345�35�2;0�4,06<==�C64D072�@47/8052<23459�EFEGF�H446@35<20�26<518322<=�4?�@47/80521�24�60I/=<246J�<I057301�?46�60,30K�<5@�<@,310�2;0�#3126372�4?�B420523<=�B64>=081�35�748B=02345�4?�1/7;�60,30K19�EFELF�C60B<60�<�>3@@061�=312�?46�0<7;�>3@�B<7M<I0�?46�<BB64,<=�>J�2;0�#31263729�EFNOF�P11312<570�K32;�<@8353126<2345�4?�2;0�B60./<=3?37<2345�B647011Q��EFNEF�P11312<570�35�@0,0=4B8052�4?�@47/80521�507011<6J�46�<BB64B63<20�?46�>3@@35I�2;0�H45126/72345�H4526<72�?46�2;0�C64D072Q��EFNNF�#0,0=4B8052�4?�>3@@061R�35206012�35�<�C64D072S�357=/@35I�>/2�542�=38320@�24�20=0B;4537�<5@�746601B45@0570�7<8B<3I51�<5@�B60B<635I�<5@�B=<735I�5423701�<5@�<@,06231080521�24�14=3732�>3@1�?46�2;0�C64D072T1UQ��EFNVF�P11312<570�35�745@/7235I�D4>�K<=M1�<5@�>3@@061R�745?0605701�<5@�2;0�8<35205<570�<5@�B60B<6<2345�4?�835/201�4?�D4>�K<=M1�46�>3@@06R1�745?0605701Q��EFNWF�P11312<570�35�601B45@35I�24�>3@@061R�35./36301�<5@�2;0�@0,0=4B8052�4?�>3@�<@@05@<�<1�507011<6J�46�<BB64B63<20Q��EFNXF�Y0,30K�4?�>3@�B64B41<=1�?46�601B4513,05011�24�>3@�60./36080521S�0,<=/<2345�4?�>3@@06�601B4513>3=32JS�<5@�<5<=J131�4?�748B=020@�./0123455<3601Q�EFNZF�[5206,30K35I�B4113>=0�>3@@061S�60?0605701S�>45@35I�<I0521�<5@�?35<573<=�351232/23451Q��EFN\F�C60B<635I�60748805@<23451�?46�2;0�#3126372�?46�B60]./<=3?37<2345�4?�B641B0723,0�>3@@061Q�EFNGF�:<>/=<23451�<5@�0,<=/<2345�4?�>3@�601/=21�<=45I�K32;�<�60748805@<2345�?46�<K<6@�4?�2;0�H45126/72345�H4526<72�?46�<�C64D072Q��EFNLF�P1131235I�K32;�6014=/2345�4?�<5J�<BB0<=1Q��EFVOF� 4̂6�_0<10�_0<10><7M�B64D0721S�7446@35<20�Y0./012�?46�̀/<=3?37<23451AC64B41<=1�TaŶCbU�B647011�<5@�<11312�35�50I423<2345�4?�<I60080521S�357=/@35IS�'320�_0<10�<5@�̂<73=32301�_0<10�K32;�I/<6<5200@�8<c38/8�B6370Q�<5@�EFVEF�C60B<6<2345�4?�<I05@<�32081�?46�d4<6@�<BB64,<=9�EFVNF�C64,3@0�@47/8052<2345S�B372/601S�<5@�42;06�35?468<2345�<5@�<11312<570�24�2;0�#3126372�?46�2;0�#3126372R1�/10�45�<�K0>1320�?46�B/>=37�<77011�24�1;4K�C64D072�12<2/19�EFVVF�C64,3@0�@36072345�<5@�B=<5535I�24�051/60�C64D072�<@;060570�24�<BB=37<>=0�05,36458052<=�60./36080521S�1/7;�<1�2;410�08<5<235I�?648�2;0�e5,36458052<=�C642072345�PI057J�TaeCPbUS�H<=AeCPS�2;0�H<=3?4653<�e5,36458052<=�̀/<=32J�P72�TaHèPbUS�<5@�'2<20�4?�H<=3?4653<�=<K1S�60I/=<23451�<5@�6/=019�H&�1;<==�748B=J�K32;S�<5@�051/60�2;<2�<==�H451/=2<521S�<==�H4526<72461�<5@�2;036�1/>74526<72461�<5@�@013I5�B64?011345<=1�<5@�2;036�1/>7451/=2<521�748B=J�K32;S�<5J�12468�K<206�B4==/2345�B60,052345�B=<51S�42;06�12468�K<206�8<5<I08052�B64I6<8�<5@�42;06�05,36458052<=�38B<72�8323I<2345�60./36080521�2;<2�<60�<BB64,0@�>J�2;0�#3126372�<5@�<BB=37<>=0�24�2;0�C64D072S�<2�54�<@@32345<=�7412�24�2;0�#31263729�



�

��������� 	
���������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!�"��������#$%�#&'�())*+)),-�

./01/�233456785�79:�;<4=5<598�#;>86;?8@>�654368;9A�83�79:�;9856B7?5�C;8D�8D5�E7F36�23<<;>>;3956@>�GBB;?5H�;9?=I:;9A�FI8�938�=;<;85:�83J�./01/./�K5A;>856;9A�4IF=;?�C36L>�463M5?8�C;8D�8D5�#54768<598�3B�N9:I>86;7=�K5=78;39>�O#NKP�C;8D;9�8D;68Q�O(RP�:7Q>�3B�8D5�7C76:H�FI8�;9�93�5,598�=7856�8D79�8D5�B;6>8�:7Q�;9�CD;?D�7�?39867?836�D7>�C36L56>�5<4=3Q5:�I439�8D5�4IF=;?�C36LS�./01/T/�K5UI;6;9A�4633B�3B�4IF=;?�C36L>�?39867?836�65A;>8678;39�F5B365�7??548;9A�7�F;:�36�7C76:;9A�7�?39867?8S�79:�./01/0/�K54368;9A�79Q�>I>45?85:�4IF=;?�C36L>�,;3=78;39>�83�8D5�E7F36�23<<;>>;3956V�./0W/�2&�>D7==�<7;987;9�7??I6785�X63M5?8�?3>8�7??3I98;9A�65?36:>�<7;987;95:�C;8D�A59567==Q�7??5485:�7??3I98;9A�46;9?;4=5>�OYZ[[X\P�39�7I8D36;]5:�C36L�456B36<5:�I9:56�I9;8�?3>8>H�7?8I7=�?3>8>�B36�=7F36�79:�<7856;7=H�36�38D56�F7>;>�B36�<7;987;9;9A�65UI;65:�7??3I98;9A�65?36:>V�2&�>D7==�463,;:5�7??3I98;9A�65?36:>�83�8D5�#;>86;?8�39�7�<398D=Q�F7>;>H�36�7>�657>397F=Q�65UI5>85:�FQ�#;>86;?8V�2&�>D7==�7BB36:�8D5�#;>86;?8�7??5>>�83�8D5>5�65?36:>�79:�465>56,5�8D5>5�65?36:>�B36�7�456;3:�3B�8D655�O(P�Q576>�7B856�B;97=�47Q<598H�78�93�?3>8�83�8D5�#;>86;?8V�./0̂ /�[>>;>8�[6?D;85?8�C;8D�8D5�46547678;39�3B�79�5>8;<785�3B�?3>8>�B36�7==�7::59:7�79:�?336:;9785�C;8D�[6?D;85?8�83�>IF<;8�8D5�5>8;<785�83�8D5�#;>86;?8�B36�74463,7=V�[>>;>8�79:�?336:;9785�C;8D�[6?D;85?8�7>�65UI;65:�83�7:MI>8�8D5�239>86I?8;39�23>8�_I:A58�79:�38D56�X63M5?8�?3>8>�7>�;9:;?785:�;9�8D;>�[A655<598�79:�7>�65UI;65:�;9�8D5�[A655<598�B36�[6?D;85?8I67=�'56,;?5>V�./0̀/�X63,;:5�79:�<7;987;9�7�<797A5<598�465>59?5�39�8D5�X63M5?8�>;85V�./0a/�2&�;>�bc��65>439>;F=5�B36J�./0a/./�Z63I9:�?3987<;978;39�36�D7]76:3I>�<7856;7=�797=Q>;>V�./0a/T/�[9Q�7>F5>83>�85>8;9AH�:5>;A9�36�7F785<598S�D3C5,56H�;8�>D7==�?336:;9785�79:�;985A6785�;8>�C36L�C;8D�79Q�>I?D�;9B36<78;39�463,;:5:�FQ�#;>86;?8V�./0a/0/�23<4=;79?5�C;8D�8D5�27=;B369;7�d9,;639<5987=�eI7=;8Q�[?8�OY2de[\PH�5f?548�8D78�2&�7A655>�83�?336:;9785�;8>�C36L�C;8D�8D78�3B�79Q�2de[�?39>I=8798>�6587;95:�FQ�8D5�#;>86;?8H�79:�8D5�C36L�3B�239867?836�79:�8D5�#5>;A9�g57<�83�463,;:5�?I66598�;9B36<78;39�B36�I>5�;9�2de[�?3<4=;79?5�:3?I<598>�79:�83�;:598;BQ�79:�?766Q�3I8�<;8;A78;39�<57>I65>V�./0a/1/�h;>836;?7=�>;A9;B;?79?5�654368V�./0a/W/�'3;=>�;9,5>8;A78;39V�./0a/̂/�Z5385?D9;?7=�D7]76:�654368V�./0a/̀/�g343A674D;?�>I6,5QH�;9?=I:;9A�I8;=;8Q�=3?78;9A�>56,;?5>V�ij� k�b�lm�	lcn������lo�����*V-� k����
!J�&39;836�79:�7:,;>5�8D5�#;>86;?8�79:�X63A67<�&797A56�7>�83�7==�<7856;7=�:5,5=34<598>�39�8D5�X63M5?8V�2&�>D7==�;<4=5<598�C;8D�#;>86;?8�74463,7=�654368;9A�<58D3:>�:5,5=345:�FQ�X63A67<�&797A56�B36�>?D5:I=5>H�?3>8�79:�FI:A58�>878I>V�gD5�2&�>D7==�F5�



�

��������� 	
���������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!�"��������#$%�#&'�())*+)),-�

./0�12345�6278.�21�455�3299:8734.728�.2�48;�1<29�328=.<:3.728�>28.<43.2<�48;�=/455�?0�32670;�28�455�3299:8734.728=�?0.@008�./0�#7=.<73.�48;�7.=�#0=7A8�B049C�*C*� �� ���!���D�B<43E�48;�<062<.�28�=3/0;:50�=.4.:=�12<�F<2G03.C�B/0�>&�=/455�;0,0526�F<2G03.�94=.0<�=3/0;:50=�48;�9750=.280�=3/0;:50=H�48;�<0,70@�48;�466<2,0�>28.<43.2<�6<2G03.�=3/0;:50=�48;�9750=.280�=3/0;:50=�12<�./0�6<2G03.�60<�=60371734.728=H�48;�=/455�<062<.�28�=490�043/�928./�.2�./0�#7=.<73.�48;�F<2A<49�&484A0<C�*C(� �����������!�D�I9650908.�90./2;=�.2�.<43E�328=.<:3.728�0J608;7.:<0=�28�./0�F<2G03.�:=78A�90./2;=�;0,05260;�?K�F<2A<49�&484A0<C�B/0�>&�=/455�A080<4.0�928./5K�<062<.=�.2�./0�#7=.<73.�<01503.78A�./7=�7812<94.728C�LM� 	N��OP��N����OP�	����(C-� B2�./0�0J.08.�<0Q:0=.0;�?K�#7=.<73.�2<�F<2A<49�&484A0<H�4==7=.�@7./�6<2,7;78A�2,0<455�322<;784.728�21�./0�F<2G03.R�=0<,0�4=�./0�12345�6278.�21�3299:8734.728H�.<48=97..78A�7812<94.728�.2�./0�#7=.<73.�48;�#0=7A8�B049�28�A080<45�4=603.=�21�./0�F<2G03.H�7835:;78A�6548878AH�=3/0;:578AH�32=.�9484A0908.H�6<2A<0==�<062<.78AH�;0=7A8�<0,70@H�;7=6:.0�<0=25:.728H�48;�;23:908.4.728C�>299:8734.728=�1<29�./0�328=.<:3.728�>28.<43.2<�.2�./0�#7=.<73.�48;�#0=7A8�B049�=/455�?0�./<2:A/�./0�>&C�B/0�>&�=/455�<0307,0�=79:5.4802:=�32670=�21�455�@<7..08�3299:8734.728=�1<29�./0�#7=.<73.�2<�./0�#0=7A8�B049�.2�./0�328=.<:3.728�>28.<43.2<C�(C*� B2�./0�0J.08.�<0Q:0=.0;�?K�#7=.<73.�2<�F<2A<49�&484A0<H�4==7=.�@7./�./0�;0.4750;�;01787.728�21�6<2G03.�=3260H�?:;A0.H�48;�=3/0;:50H�4=�800;0;C�S0,70@�48;�<03283750�32=.�0=.794.0=�1<29�./0�4==7A80;�4<3/7.03.�48;�322<;784.0�600<�<0,70@�0=.794.0=�@/08�<0Q:0=.0;�?K�./0�#7=.<73.C�T;,7=0�./0�#7=.<73.�<0A4<;78A�2@80<U=:66570;�0Q:76908.�48;�2./0<�62.08.745�32=.U=4,78A�904=:<0=C�(C(� B2�./0�0J.08.�<0Q:0=.0;�?K�#7=.<73.�2<�F<2A<49�&484A0<H�4==7=.�./0�#7=.<73.�78�./0�=25737.4.728�48;�<0.08.728�21�;0=7A8�48;�08A7800<78A�328=:5.48.=H�48;�322<;784.0�;0=7A8�328=:5.48.=V�43.7,7.70=�48;�;057,0<K�=3/0;:50=H�4=�800;0;C�F<2,7;0�,45:0�08A7800<78A�48;�5710�3K350�32=.�4845K=7=C��(CW� F<2,7;0�;0=7A8U6/4=0�=0<,730=�78�328G:83.728�@7./�./0�4<3/7.03.:<0�17<9=�4@4<;0;�./0�F<2G03.�?K�./0�#7=.<73.C�$2<E�@7./�./0�T<3/7.03.�.2�32812<9�48;�<01780�;0=7A8=�.2�32<<054.0�;0=7A8=�.2�?:;A0.�48;�X43757.70=�&4=.0<�F548H�71�4665734?50C�S0,70@�;0=7A8�;23:908.=�12<�328=.<:3.4?757.KH�=3/0;:578AH�328=7=.083KH�48;�322<;784.728�;:<78A�=3/094.73�48;�;0=7A8�;0,0526908.�6/4=0=�21�@2<EC�F0<12<9�328=.<:3.4?757.K�<0,70@=�4.�466<26<74.0�=.4A0=�21�;0=7A8C�T==7=.�@7./�,0<71734.728�21�=7.0�328;7.728=C�YJ60;7.0�;0=7A8�<0,70@=H�7835:;78A�92;71734.728=C�%006�433:<4.0�;23:908.4.728�21�455�;7=3:==728=�@7./�:=0<=�<0A4<;78A�=3260�48;�<0=25:.728C�(C+� F<064<0�48;�9478.478�4�>28=.<:3.728�&484A0908.�=3/0;:50�12<�./0�F<2G03.C�F<064<0�4�6<23:<0908.�6548�48;�92,0�78�233:6483K�6548878AH�@/0<0�<0Q:7<0;C��(CZ� B2�./0�0J.08.�<0Q:0=.0;�?K�#7=.<73.�2<�F<2A<49�&484A0<H�4==7=.�@7./�9287.2<78A�48;�<062<.78A�.2�./0�#7=.<73.�28�=.4.:=�21�;0=7A8�48;�=.4.0�466<2,45�78�<054.728�.2�./0�=3/0;:50�12<�./0�F<2G03.C�T..08;�900.78A=�.2�322<;784.0�;0=7A8�0112<.=�12<�./0�F<2G03.C�T==7=.�78�7;08.71K78A�48;�2?.47878A�455�8030==4<K�466<2,45=C�



�

��������� 	
���������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!�"��������#$%�#&'�())*+)),-�

(.)� /0�123�341351�63783913:�;<�#=916=>1�06�?60@6AB�&A5A@36C�A99=91�D=12�90E=>=1=5@�F60F09AE9C�3,AE8A13C�A5:�63>0BB35:�01236�F60G399=05AE�>0598E1A519�533:3:�10�>0BFE313�123�?60H3>1.��(.I� JBFE3B351�#=916=>1KAFF60,3:�=BFE3B351A1=05�F60>3:8639C�G06B9�A5:�63F061=5@�6378=63B3519�G06�123�?60H3>1�12A1�=5,0E,3�AEE�B3B;369�0G�123�?60H3>1�13ABC�=5>E8:=5@�123�#=916=>1C�#39=@5�/3ABC�A5:�>059168>1=05�L0516A>106.�(.M� $06N�D=12�123�#39=@5�/3AB�A5:�#=916=>1�10�:3,3E0F�123�G=5AE�9=O39C�>20=>3�0G�BA136=AE9C�936,=>39�A5:�81=E=1=39�A5:�01236�:31A=E3:�:39=@5�A5:�F36G06BA5>3�>6=136=A�0G�123�?60H3>1.��(.-P� /0�123�341351�63783913:�;<�#=916=>1�06�?60@6AB�&A5A@36C�F60,=:3�,AE83�35@=5336=5@�A1�123�'>23BA1=>�#39=@5�A5:Q06�-PPR�#39=@5�#3,3E0FB351�?2A93.�/2=9�3,AE8A1=05�D=EE�>059=91�0G�A�63,=3D�0G�123�F60F093:�BA136=AE9C�378=FB351C�9<913B9�A5:�01236�=13B9�:3F=>13:�=5�123�:39=@5�:0>8B3519�A5:�92AEE�;3�>006:=5A13:�D=12�123�#=916=>1S9�:39=@5�@8=:3E=539�A5:�:39=@5�F60G399=05AET9U.�/23�L&�D=EE�F63FA63�A�,AE83�35@=5336=5@�63F061�:0>8B351=5@�123�6398E19�0G�123�3,AE8A1=05�A5:�BAN3�63>0BB35:A1=059�10�123�#=916=>1�D=12�639F3>1�10�AE1365A1=,39C�:3E31=059C�06�AB35:B3519�0G�98>2�F60F093:�=13B9�12A1�F361A=5�10�123�A51=>=FA13:�>059168>1=05�>0919C�893G8E�E=G3C�BA=5135A5>3�A5:�0F36A1=05AE�>0919�A5:�3GG=>=35>=39.�/23�L&�92AEE�F60,=:3�10�123�#=916=>1�,AE83�35@=5336=5@�63>0BB35:A1=059�A5:�>091Q;353G=1�A5AE<9=9�0G�12093�63>0BB35:A1=059.�(.--� ?36G06B�06�98;>0516A>1�G06�>059168>1A;=E=1<�63,=3D9�0G�123�?60H3>1�A1�123�#39=@5�#3,3E0FB351�?2A93�A5:�A1�MPR�0G�123�L059168>1=05�#0>8B3519�?2A93.�/23�L&�92AEE�63,=3D�123�:39=@5�:0>8B3519�G06�>EA6=1<C�>059=9135><C�>059168>1A;=E=1<�A5:�>006:=5A1=05.�/23�6398E19�0G�123�63,=3D�92AEE�;3�F60,=:3:�=5�D6=1=5@�A5:�A9�501A1=059�05�123�:0>8B3519�10�123�#=916=>1.�/23�L&�92AEE�AE90�BAN3�63>0BB35:A1=059�10�123�#=916=>1�D=12�639F3>1�10�>059168>1A;=E=1<C�>059168>1=05�>091C�937835>3�0G�>059168>1=05C�A5:�>059168>1=05�:86A1=05.��(.-*� #3,3E0F�BA9136�;=:QADA6:�9>23:8E3T9U�=5>E8:=5@�>059168>1=05�B=E3910539�G06�123�?60H3>1�12608@2�123�>0BFE31=05�0G�>059168>1=05C�A9�:=63>13:�;<�123�#=916=>1C�=5�>006:=5A1=05�D=12�:39=@5�F60G399=05AET9U�A5:�A:,=93�A5:�>0598E1�D=12�123�#=916=>1.�L&�92AEE�63,=3D�A5:�AFF60,3�>059168>1=05�L0516A>106V9�9>23:8E39C�;81�92AEE�501�:=>1A13�A5<�>059168>1=05�L0516A>106V9�B3A59�A5:Q06�B3120:9�0G�F36G06BA5>3.�(.-(� W91A;E=92�9>23:8E39�G06�A5<�L0598E1A51C�A5:�G06�A5<�2AOA6:089�BA136=AE9�06�01236�1391=5@C�A5:�63,=3D�>0919C�391=BA139C�A5:�=5,0=>39�0G�3A>2.�(.-X� JBFE3B351�A�BA5A@3B351�>05160E�9<913B�10�98FF061�98>2�G85>1=059�A9�FEA55=5@C�06@A5=O=5@C�9>23:8E=5@C�;8:@31=5@C�63F061=5@�F60@6399C�A5:�=:351=G<=5@�A5:�:0>8B351=5@�F60;E3B9�A5:�90E81=059�G06�123�?60H3>1.�?63FA63�B0512E<�F60@6399�63F0619�G06�123�#=916=>1�63@A6:=5@�123�9>23:8E3�G06�123�?60H3>1.�(.-+� /0�123�341351�63783913:�;<�#=916=>1�06�?60@6AB�&A5A@36C�06@A5=O3�A5�=5=1=AE�FEA55=5@�D06N920F�10�>63A13�;A93E=53�FA6AB31369�G06�123�?60H3>1C�10�:3G=53�0,36AEE�;8=E:=5@�6378=63B3519C�?60H3>1�916A13@<C�>05>3F18AE�;8:@31�A5:�9>23:8E3.��?8698A51�10�85:3691A5:=5@9�63A>23:�A1�12393�B331=5@9C�L059168>1=05�&A5A@36�D=EE�:3,3E0F�A5�=BFE3B351A1=05�FEA5�12A1�=:351=G=39�123�,A6=089�F2A939�0G�123�?60H3>1C�>006:=5A1=05�AB05@�F2A939C�A5:�;8:@31�A5:�1=B3�>05916A=519�G06�3A>2�F2A93�0G�123�?60H3>1.��/23�FEA5�D=EE�=5>E8:3�A�:31A=E3:�916A13@<C�BA9136�;8:@31�A5:�BA9136�9>23:8E3�A9�D3EE�A9�=:351=G=>A1=05�0G�>6=1=>AE�3,3519�A5:�B=E391053�A>1=,=1=39.�



�

��������� 	
���������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!�"��������#$%�#&'�())*+)),-�

�(.-/� 01�234�452462�74894:24;�<=�#>:27>?2�17�@71A7BC�&B6BA47D�E71,>;4�9E;B24;�?1:2�4:2>CB24:�F17�234�@71G4?2�B2�234�'?34CB2>?�#4:>A6D�#4:>A6�#4,4H1EC462D�B6;�I16:279?2>16�#1?9C462:�@3B:4:�B:�;>74?24;�<=�#>:27>?2J�?117;>6B24�K>23�;4:>A6�E71F4::>16BHL:M�B6;�74?16?>H4�?1:2�4:2>CB24:�K>23�;4:>A6�E71F4::>16BHL:MN�4:2>CB24:.�(.-)� O;,>:4�#>:27>?2�74AB7;>6A�PA7446�<9>H;>6AQ�24?361H1A=�B6;�H>F4?=?H4�?1:2>6AD�K346�BEEH>?B<H4.�(.-R� S9HH=�?117;>6B24�BHH�?3B6A4:�74894:24;�<=�B6=�92>H>2=�?1CEB6=�644;4;�21�?1CEH424�234�@71G4?2.�(.-T� U4,>4K�B6;�2B>H17�234�#>:27>?2N:�F7162�46;�;1?9C462:�F17�234�@71G4?2.�U4?1CC46;�234�69C<47�1F�;B=:�7489>74;�F17�234�?16:279?2>16�E3B:4�LB6;�B6=�:9<VE3B:4:D�:9?3�B:�3BWB7;19:�CB247>BH�B<B24C462M�B6;�74?1CC46;�234�BC1962�1F�234�H>89>;B24;�;BCBA4:.��XY� 	Z����"�	����[.-� #4,4H1E�CB:247�:?34;9H4:�B6;�?16:279?2>16�:?34;9H4:�F17�234�@71G4?2.�#4,4H1E�<9;A42L:M�F17�234�@71G4?2�<B:4;�16�?16:279?2>16�?1:2�4:2>CB24:.�[.*� \6�?16:9H2B2>16�K>23�234�#>:27>?2�B6;�B??17;>6A�21�#>:27>?2VBEE71,4;�E1H>?>4:D�E71?4;974:D�B6;�:2B6;B7;:D�>CEH4C462�E71?4;974:D�F17C:D�B6;�74E172>6A�7489>74C462:�F17�234�@71G4?2.�]:2B<H>:3D�B??17;>6AH=D�B�?1CC96>?B2>16:�E71?4;974�F17�234�@71G4?2�23B2�BHH1K:�F17�;4?>:>16�CB̂>6A�B2�BEE71E7>B24�H4,4H:�1F�74:E16:><>H>2=�B6;�B??1962B<>H>2=.�[.(� $17̂�K>23�234�@71A7BC�&B6BA47�B6;�#4:>A6�04BC�21�C1;>F=�17�B;;�21�:2B6;B7;D�:E4?>BHD�17�A4647BH�?16;>2>16:�F17�?1627B?2�;1?9C462:�23B2�C>A32�<4�644;4;�F17�96>894�@71G4?2�17�?1627B?2�?16;>2>16:D�F17�234�#>:27>?2N:�BEE71,BHD�B6;_17�B::>:2�>6�234�;4,4H1EC462�1F�;1?9C462:�64?4::B7=�F17�234�<>;;>6A�E3B:4.�[.[� 01�234�452462�74894:24;�<=�#>:27>?2�17�@71A7BC�&B6BA47D�CB̂4�74?1CC46;B2>16:�F17�;4,4H1EC462�B6;�>CEH4C462B2>16�1F�E71?4;974:�21�?1CEH=�K>23�BEEH>?B<H4�<>;;>6A�17�US@�7489>74C462:�F17�234�@71G4?2�B:�BEEH>?B<H4�B6;�F17�45E4;>2>6A�?1CEH42>16�1F�234�<>;;>6A�E71?4::�F17�234�@71G4?2.�034�:?1E4�1F�234�F174A1>6A�>6?H9;4:�K>23192�H>C>2B2>16D�74?1CC46;B2>16:�1F�I&�K>23�74:E4?2�21̀�LBM�E74V89BH>F>?B2>16�1F�E12462>BH�?1627B?217:J�L<M�?1C<>6B2>16�1F�2K1�17�C174�1F�234�@71G4?2:�F17�;4:>A6D�<>;;>6A�B6;_17�?16:279?2>16�E97E1:4:J�B6;�L?M�BH2476B2>,4�?16:279?2>16�;4H>,47=�BEE71B?34:�F17�234�@71G4?2D�>6?H9;>6A�?16:>;47B2>16�1F�B�:>6AH4�A4647BH�?1627B?217�B6;_17�a4B:4�a4B:4<B?̂�BEE71B?3�21�?16:279?2>16�F17�4B?3�@71G4?2.�bY� ��""�cd�	����+.-� 01�234�452462�74894:24;�<=�#>:27>?2�17�@71A7BC�&B6BA47D�B::>:2�K>23�E74V89BH>F>?B2>16�E71?4::�F17�234�:4H4?2>16�1F�E7>C4�B6;_17�:9<V?1627B?217:�<B:4;�16�234�;42B>H4;�;4F>6>2>16�1F�@71G4?2�:?1E4D�<9;A42D�:?34;9H4D�B6;�E71A7BCC>6A�:9EE172.�#4,4H1E�B�H>:2�1F�E74V89BH>F>4;�E7>C4�B6;�:9<V?1627B?217:D�B:�7489>74;.�+.*� #4,4H1E�<>;;47:N�>62474:2�>6�234�@71G4?2.�I117;>6B24�BHH�<>;�E3B:4�B?2>,>2>4:�K>23�#>:27>?2�;4EB72C462:.�I16;9?2�E74V<>;�?16F4746?4:�21�FBC>H>B7>W4�<>;;47:�K>23�234�<>;;>6A�



�

��������� 	
���������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!�"��������#$%�#&'�())*+)),-�

./01234567�84.�849�6:30;8<�69653267�2853=;8<6�/=�235>/.6�84.�?;5>�@=/A305�:=/03.1=36B�C/4.105�A/D�?8<E6�84.�D;..3=6F�0/4G3=340367�28;458;4�84.�:=3:8=3�2;41536�/G�A/D�?8<E6�/=�D;..3=F6�0/4G3=34036B�H;3<.�I1365;/46�G=/2�D;..3=67�=3G3==;4J�I1365;/46�5/�#36;J4�K382�84.�#;65=;05�86�=3I1;=3.B�C//=.;4853�?;5>�#36;J4�K382�5/�=36:/4.�5/�D;..3=�I1365;/46�D9�8..34.8B��+B(� @=3:8=3�:1D<;0�6/<;0;585;/4�4/5;036�G/=�#;65=;05�8::=/,8<B�L3,;3?7�0//=.;48537�84.�365;2853�0/65�/G�D;.�:>863�8..34.8B��+BM� L3,;3?�D;.�:=/:/68<6�G/=�=36:/46;,34366�5/�D;.�=3I1;=3234567�3,8<1853�D;..3=�=36:/46;D;<;597�84.�0/4.105�=3G3=3403�0>30E6B�@=3:8=3�D;.�848<9636�84.�8.,;63�5>3�#;65=;05�/4�0/2:<;8403�/G�D;..3=6�?;5>�#;65=;05�=3I1;=323456�84.�D;.�=3I1;=323456B�L3:/=5�84.�=30/2234.�5/�5>3�#;65=;05�8G53=�=3,;3?�84.�3,8<185;/4B�&8E3�=30/2234.85;/46�5/�5>3�#;65=;05�G/=�:=3I18<;G;085;/4�/G�D;..3=6�84.�8?8=.�/G�0/45=8056�/=�=3A305;/4�/G�D;.6B�+B+� C/4.105�:/65ND;.�0/4G3=34036�86�=3I1;=3.B�O66;65�84.�8.,;63�=3J8=.;4J�D;.�:=/53656B��+BP� QG�8::=/:=;8537�0//=.;4853�0/45=805;4J�?;5>�C/45=805/=�8?8=.3.�5>3�0/45=8057�;40<1.;4J�3,8<185;4J�D/4.6�84.�;461=84037�84.�43J/5;853�G;48<�53=26�/G�0/465=105;/4�0/45=805/=F6�0/45=805R6S7�;G�8::<;08D<3B�+B)� C/4.105�:=3N8?8=.�0/4G3=34036�?;5>�6100366G1<�D;..3=6B�+BT� '0>3.1<3�84.�0/4.105�:=30/465=105;/4�2335;4J6B�&8;458;47�:=3:8=37�84.�.;65=;D153�2;41536B�+BU� O66;65�?;5>�5>3�:=3:8=85;/4�/G�8J34.8�;5326�G/=�V/8=.�8::=/,8<B�C//=.;4853�61D2;558<6�=3I1;=3.�D9�J/,3=4;4J�8J340;36B�WX� �YZ��[����YZ�	����PB-� O.2;4;653=�5>3�0/465=105;/4�C/45=805B��PB*� #3,3</:�.358;<3.�0/465=105;/4�60>3.1<36�/=�=3,;3?�C/45=805/=F6�61D2;553.�60>3.1<367�86�433.3.B�O.2;4;653=�84.�0//=.;4853�5>3�?/=E�/G�C/45=805/=�/4�8�.8;<9�D86;6B�\4G/=03�:3=G/=284037�60>3.1<;4J7�84.�4/5;03�=3I1;=323456B�L3,;3?�C/45=805/=F6�60>3.1<3�61D2;558<6�84.�28E3�=30/2234.85;/46�5/�5>3�#;65=;05B��PB(� &/4;5/=�60>3.1<3�84.�0/65�;4G/=285;/4�G/=�C/45=805/=B�#/012345�5>3�:=/J=366�84.�0/656�/G�5>3�@=/A305B�L3:/=5�84.�8.,;63�:=/805;,3<9�/4�:/5345;8<�60>3.1<3�84.�D1.J35�,8=;84036�84.�;2:8056B�L30/2234.�:/5345;8<�6/<15;/46�5/�60>3.1<3�84.�0/65�:=/D<326B�$/=E�0//:3=85;,3<9�?;5>�5>3�#;65=;057�O=0>;53057�84.�C/45=805/=�5/�3461=3�5>85�@=/A305�;6�.3<;,3=3.�/4�5;23�84.�?;5>;4�D1.J35B�L3,;3?�0/465=105;/4�:=/J=366�84.�:=3:8=3�=3:/=56B��PBM� ]3=;G9�:3=2;567�8::=/,8<67�D/4.67�;461=840367�84.�60>3.1<36�/G�,8<136B�C//=.;4853�?;5>�#'O�@=/A305�Q46:305/=7�84.�3461=3�0/2:<;8403�?;5>�8<<�#'O�=3:/=5;4J�84.�0</63/15�=3I1;=323456B�'1D2;5�4303668=9�=3:/=56�5/�65853�84.�</08<�815>/=;5;36B��PB+� &/4;5/=�5>3�0/465=105;/4�C/45=805/=�5/�,3=;G9�5>85�5//<67�3I1;:23457�84.�<8D/=�8=3�G1=4;6>3.�84.�?/=E�:3=G/=23.�84.�0/2:<353.�?;5>;4�5>3�5;23�=3I1;=3.�/=�;4.;0853.�D9�5>3�:<846�84.�6:30;G;085;/467�14.3=�5>3�.;=305;/4�84.�5/�5>3�685;6G805;/4�/G�5>3�#;65=;05X�K>3�C&�3̂:=366<9�



�

��������� 	
���������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!�"��������#$%�#&'�())*+)),-�

./0112�34�,10567�38.3�381�291:565:.354;2�.01�<13=�4>210,1?=�910640<1?=�.;?�64@@4A1?�5;�.::40?.;:1�A538�381�904612254;.@�23.;?.0?2�46�:.01�640�:4;230B:354;�<.;./1<1;3C��DCD� E440?5;.31�A40F�46�381�:4;230B:354;�E4;30.:340�.;?�1661:35,1@7�<.;./1�381�G04H1:3�34�.:851,1�381�#52305:3I2�4>H1:35,12�5;�01@.354;�34�:423=�35<1�.;?�JB.@537C��DC)� G04,5?1�:4;35;B4B2�4;K2531�:4;230B:354;�<.;./1<1;3�91024;;1@=�.2�;11?1?C�E4;?B:3�:4;230B:354;�<1135;/2�640�381�G04H1:3�34�?52:B22�.;?�0124@,1�2B:8�<.33102�.2�904/0122=�JB.@537�.;?�2:81?B@5;/C�'.5?�<1135;/2�28.@@�>1�A11F@7�B;@122�G04H1:3�:4;?5354;2�?4�;43�01JB501�38.3�601JB1;:7C�G019.01�.;?�904<93@7�?52305>B31�<5;B312C�$81;�01JB501?�>7�651@?�40�43810�:4;?5354;2=�:4;230B:354;�904/0122=�40�381�JB.@537�46�A40F<.;2859=�:4;?B:3�291:5.@�:4;230B:354;�<1135;/2L�01:40?=�9019.01=�.;?�?52305>B31�<5;B312�46�38121�<1135;/2�34�381�#52305:3=�381�.661:31?�:4;230B:354;�E4;30.:340=�.;?�#125/;�M1.<C��DCN� O23.>@528�.;?�5<9@1<1;3�31.<�:4<<B;5:.354;�904:1?B012C��DCP� O;2B01�38.3�:4;230B:354;�E4;30.:340�904,5?12�:4;230B:354;�2:81?B@12�.2�01JB501?�>7�381�:4;230B:354;�E4;30.:32=�5;:@B?5;/�.:35,537�21JB1;:12�.;?�?B0.354;2=�2B><533.@�2:81?B@1=�40�904:B01<1;3�2:81?B@1�640�904?B:32�38.3�01JB501�@4;/�@1.?�35<1C�M81�E&�28.@@�01,51A�:4;230B:354;�E4;30.:340I2�:4;230B:354;�2:81?B@12�640�:4;640<537�A538�381�01JB501<1;32�46�381�:4;230B:354;�E4;30.:3�.;?�:4;640<537�A538�381�4,10.@@�2:81?B@1�640�381�G04H1:3C�$8101�:4;230B:354;�E4;30.:340I2�:4;230B:354;�2:81?B@12�?4�;43�24�:4;640<=�381�E&�A5@@�3.F1�.9904905.31�<1.2B012�34�21:B01�:4<9@5.;:1=�2B>H1:3�34�#52305:3�.9904,.@C�DC-Q� O;2B01�:4;230B:354;�E4;30.:340R2�:4<9@5.;:1�A538�381�01JB501<1;32�46�381�01291:35,1�:4;230B:354;�E4;30.:3�640�B9?.35;/=�01,525;/=�.;?�43810�4>@5/.354;2�01@.35,1�34�38150�01291:35,1�:4;230B:354;�2:81?B@12C��DC--� E423�E4;304@C�E&�28.@@�?1,1@49�.;?�<4;5340�.;�1661:35,1�27231<�46�:4;230B:354;�:423�:4;304@�640�381�G04H1:3C�E&�28.@@�5?1;3567�,.05.;:12�>13A11;�.:3B.@�.;?�>B?/131?�40�1235<.31?�:4232�.;?�.?,521�#52305:3�.;?�?125/;�904612254;.@S2T�A81;1,10�.�G04H1:3�:423�1U:11?2�>B?/132�40�1235<.312C�E&�28.@@�<.;./1�381�:4;230B:354;�>5?2�.;?�:4;30.:32�5;�.::40?.;:1�A538�381�E4;230B:354;�VB?/13C��DC-*� E4;35;B.@@7�<4;5340�A813810�:4;230B:354;�:4;30.:3�01JB501<1;32�.01�>15;/�6B@65@@1?�.;?�01:4<<1;?�:4B0212�46�.:354;�34�381�#52305:3�A81;�E4;30.:340�6.5@2�34�6B@65@@�:4;30.:3B.@�01JB501<1;32C��DC-(� M81�E&�<.7�.B38405W1�<5;40�,.05.354;2�5;�381�A40F�604<�381�01JB501<1;32�46�381�:4;30.:3�?4:B<1;32�38.3�?4�;43�5;,4@,1�.;�.?HB23<1;3�5;�381�:4;30.:3�905:1�40�381�:4;30.:3�35<1�40�?125/;�.;?�A85:8�.01�:4;25231;3�A538�381�4,10.@@�5;31;3�46�381�:4;30.:3�?4:B<1;32C�M81�E&�28.@@�904,5?1�34�381�?125/;�904612254;.@S2T�.;?�381�#52305:3�:49512�46�38121�.B38405W.354;2C�DC-X� O,.@B.31�.;?�904:122�9.7<1;3�.99@5:.354;2�.;?�,10567�904/0122C��DC-+� Y10567�38.3�2.6137�904/0.<2�.01�?1,1@491?�.;?�2B><5331?�>7�381�:4;230B:354;�E4;30.:340�.2�01JB501?�>7�381�E4;30.:3C�Z153810�E&=�G04H1:3�&.;./10�;40�#52305:3�28.@@�>1�01294;25>@1�640�40�8.,1�.;7�@5.>5@537�640�E4;30.:340I2�6.5@B01�34�904,5?1=�:4<9@7�A538=�40�1;640:1�2.5?�2.6137�904/0.<2C�



�

��������� 	
����������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
����������������� ���!��"�#��������$%&�$'(�)**+,**-.�

/0./� 123452567�89:4;7<�=>67?>4�3?>@?:2A�;6=49B;6@�CDEF9;47�$?:G;6@D�:==9?:=<0�H>>?B;6:75�:6B�5-:49:75�H>67?:=7>?ID�?5=>-5?<�D=J5B945D0��/0.*� K5=>?B�7J5�3?>@?5DD�>L�7J5�M?>N5=7�O<�:�4>@0�/0.P� '>6;7>?�>6@>;6@�M?>N5=7�=>D7D�7>�-5?;L<�7J:7�3?>N5=75B�=>D7D�B>�6>7�5Q=55B�:33?>-5B�O9B@57�:6B�3?>-;B5�7J5�$;D7?;=7�7;254<�6>7;=5�>L�:6<�3>7567;:4�;6=?5:D5�;6�=>D7D�;6�5Q=5DD�>L�:33?>-5B�O9B@57D�3?>-;B5B�7>�H'0��/0.R� S5@>7;:75�H>67?:=7>?ID�3?>3>D:4D�:6B�?5-;5G�=J:6@5�>?B5?D�3?53:?5B�O<�$5D;@6�T5:2A�G;7J�$5D;@6�T5:2ID�;6397�:D�655B5BA�L>?�:33?>-:4�O<�7J5�$;D7?;=70�/0+U� V-:49:75�:6B�3?>=5DD�=J:6@5�>?B5?�?5895D7D0�':W5�?5=>2256B:7;>6D�7>�7J5�$;D7?;=70�$575?2;65�=>D7�:6B�D=J5B945�5LL5=7D�>L�=J:6@5�>?B5?D0�M?53:?5�=J:6@5�>?B5?�?53>?7D�:6B�2:;67:;6�:�=J:6@5�>?B5?�4>@�L>?�7J5�M?>N5=7�:6B�;23452567�3?>=5B9?5D�7>�5Q35B;75�3?>=5DD;6@�>L�=J:6@5�>?B5?D0�/0+.� CDD;D7�7J5�$;D7?;=7�;6�=>>?B;6:7;6@�7J5�D5?-;=5D�>L�D35=;:4�=>6D947:67D�:6B�75D7;6@�4:O>?:7>?;5D�>6�7J5�M?>N5=70�/0++� 16�=>6N96=7;>6�G;7J�7J5�$5D;@6�T5:2A�2>6;7>?�G>?W�>L�7J5�=>6D7?9=7;>6�H>67?:=7>?�7>�B575?2;65�7J:7�7J5�G>?W�;D�O5;6@�35?L>?25B�;6�:==>?B:6=5�G;7J�7J5�?589;?52567D�>L�7J5�?5D35=7;-5�=>6D7?9=7;>6�B>=92567D�L>?�7J5�M?>N5=7A�;6=49B;6@�O97�6>7�4;2;75B�7>�7J5�34:6DA�D35=;L;=:7;>6DA�:BB56B:A�:6B�:44�>7J5?�=>67?:=7�B>=92567DA�:D�G544�:D�:44�:334;=:O45�4:GDA�?5@94:7;>6D�:6B�B;?5=7;-5D�>L�:@56=;5D�G;7J�N9?;DB;=7;>6�>-5?�:6<�>L�7J5�M?>N5=70�CD�:33?>3?;:75A�G;7J�:DD;D7:6=5�>L�$5D;@6�T5:2A�2:W5�?5=>2256B:7;>6D�7>�7J5�$;D7?;=7�:6B�M?>@?:2�':6:@5?�?5@:?B;6@�D35=;:4�;6D35=7;>6�>?�75D7;6@�>L�G>?W�7J:7�;D�6>7�;6�:==>?B:6=5�G;7J�7J5�3?>-;D;>6D�>L�7J5�=>67?:=7�B>=92567D0��/0+)� T>�@9:?B�$;D7?;=7�:@:;6D7�B5L5=7D�;6�7J5�G>?W�>L�7J5�=>6D7?9=7;>6�H>67?:=7>?A�7J5�H'�DJ:44�;23452567�:�89:4;7<�=>67?>4�3?>@?:2�7>�2>6;7>?�7J5�89:4;7<�:6B�G>?W2:6DJ;3�>L�=>6D7?9=7;>6�L>?�=>6L>?2;7<�G;7JX��/0+)0.�C==5375B�;6B9D7?<�D7:6B:?BDY��/0+)0+�C334;=:O45�4:GDA�?945DA�>?�>?B;6:6=5DY�:6B��/0+)0)�TJ5�B5D;@6�B>=92567D�:6B�=>67?:=7�B>=92567D0�/0+Z� %J5?5�7J5�G>?W�>L�:�=>6D7?9=7;>6�H>67?:=7>?�B>5D�6>7�=>6L>?2�:D�D57�L>?7J�:O>-5A�7J5�H'�DJ:44A�G;7J�7J5�;6397�>L�$5D;@6�T5:2X�/0+Z0.�S>7;L<�7J5�$;D7?;=7�>L�:6<�6>6E=>6L>?2;6@�G>?W�>OD5?-5B�O<�7J5�H'Y�/0+Z0+�K5N5=7�7J5�6>6E=>6L>?2;6@�G>?WY�:6B��/0+Z0)�T:W5�:6<�:6B�:44�:=7;>6[D\�65=5DD:?<�7>�=>2354�7J5�=>6D7?9=7;>6�H>67?:=7>?�7>�=>??5=7�7J5�G>?W0��/0+,� V-:49:75A�7?:=WA�:6B�2:;67:;6�4>@D�>L�?5895D7D�L>?�;6L>?2:7;>6�[]K̂1_\�L?>2�=>6D7?9=7;>6�H>67?:=7>?�:6B�?5D3>6D5DA�DJ>3�B?:G;6@DA�D:2345DA�:6B�>7J5?�D9O2;77:4DA�O:D5BA�;6�3:?7A�>6�



�

��������� 	
����������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!�"��������#$%�#&'�())*+)),-�

./012345.1/�1654./78�0213�597�87:.;/�<2107::.1/4=>:?@�A8,.:7�#.:52.B5�4/8�C21;243�&4/4;72�4:�51�:545D:�4/8�B2.5.B4=.5E�10�FGH:@��I@*I� H3<=737/5�<21B78D27:J�./�B1==461245.1/�K.59�597�#.:52.B5J�C21;243�&4/4;72�4/8�#7:.;/�L743J�012�7M<78.5./;�597�<21B7::./;�4/8�4<<21,4=�10�:91<�824K./;:J�<218DB5�8454J�:43<=7:J�4/8�15972�:D63.554=:�012�74B9�B1/524B5@�F7B7.,7�4/8�524/:3.5�4==�:D63.554=:�0213�597�B1/:52DB5.1/�N1/524B512�51�597�#7:.;/�L743�012�27,.7K�4/8�4<<21,4=@�&4./54./�:D63.554=�4/8�:91<�824K./;�=1;:@�I@*)� F7B128�597�<21;27::�10�K12O�45�597�C21P7B5@�$97/�<27:7/5J�<27<427�84.=E�27<125:�012�597�C21P7B5�B1/54././;�4�27B128�10�K745972J�B1/:52DB5.1/�N1/524B512>:?�<27:7/5�4/8�597.2�/D3672�10�K12O72:J�K12O�4BB13<=.:978J�<216=73:�7/B1D/57278J�4/8�15972�27=7,4/5�8454@�I@*Q� C27<427�4/8�8.:52.6D57�31/59=E�<21P7B5�:545D:�27<125:�012�597�C21P7B5�./B=D8./;�D<8457:�1/�<21P7B5�4B5.,.5.7:J�<21;27::�10�K12OJ�1D5:54/8./;�.::D7:J�<157/5.4=�<216=73:J�:B978D=7J�4/8�:545D:�10�FGH:J�B94/;7�12872:J�4/8�:D63.554=:@�I@*R� N1128./457J�4::.:5J�4/8�:D<<125�A2B9.57B5�8D2./;�B1/:52DB5.1/�483./.:5245.1/�<94:7�4:�27SD.278@�I@(T� N&�:94==�34./54./�27B128:�10�<2./B.<4=�6D.=8./;�=4E1D5�=./7:J�7=7,45.1/:�10�597�615513�10�0115./;:J�0=112�=7,7=:J�4/8�O7E�:.57�7=7,45.1/:�4:�<21,.878�6E�597�B1/:52DB5.1/�N1/524B512@�A5�597�B13<=75.1/�10�597�C21P7B5J�87=.,72�4==�:DB9�27B128:�51�#.:52.B5@�N1/:52DB5.1/�N1/524B512�4/8�87:.;/�<2107::.1/4=>:?�:9427�27:<1/:.6.=.5E�51�<27<427�F7B128�#24K./;:�4/8�A:UVD.=5�#24K./;:@�I@(-� N1128./457�597�31,7�./51�597�C21P7B5:@�I@(*� $12O�K.59�#.:52.B5�5743�51�87,7=1<�=.:5:�10�./B13<=757�12�D/:45.:04B512E�K12O�>W<D/B9�=.:5:X?@��I@((� GD==E�81BD37/5�4/8�<27<427�878DB5.,7�B94/;7�12872:�012�7M524�:72,.B7:�10�B1/:D=54/5:�5945�427�597�27:<1/:.6.=.5E�10�4�N1/524B512�12�4/15972�B1/:D=54/5@�C27:7/5�:DB9�4�B94/;7�12872�012�:.;/45D27�6E�597�N1/524B512�12�B1/:D=54/5@��I@(Y� #75723./7�0./4=�B13<=75.1/�4/8�<4E37/5@�#75723./7�B13<=75.1/�8457:J�0./4=�<4E37/5:J�4/8�27=74:7�10�2757/5.1/@�N1128./457�<21BD2737/5�4/8�./:54==45.1/�10�GD2/.5D27J�G.M5D27:J�4/8�ZSD.<37/5�>WGG[ZX?@�\]� 	̂ _̀�����_�	a���_b�)@-� L97�N&�:94==�16:72,7�597�B1/:52DB5.1/�N1/524B512c:�B97BOU1D5:�10�D5.=.5.7:J�1<7245.1/4=�:E:573:�4/8�7SD.<37/5J�4/8�:5425UD<�4/8�57:5./;@�L97�N&�:94==�34./54./�27B128:�10�:5425UD<�4/8�57:5./;�4:�<21,.878�6E�597�B1/:52DB5.1/�N1/524B512�4/8�:94==�7/:D27�597�#.:52.B5�10�B13<=.4/B7�K.59�4<<=.B46=7�<21,.:.1/:�10�597�N1/524B5J�5945�4==�K12O�94:�677/�<72012378�4/8�4BB7<578J�4/8�5945�4==�:E:573:�427�B13<=757�4/8�1<7245.,7@�)@*� A5�597�<D/B9�=.:5�<94:7�10�597�C21P7B5�12�87:.;/4578�<125.1/:�5972710J�N&J�./�B1/:D=545.1/�K.59�597�A2B9.57B5J�:94==�7/:D27�597�<27<4245.1/�10�4�=.:5�10�./B13<=757�12�D/:45.:04B512E�K12O�12�K12O�K9.B9�817:�/15�B1/0123�51�597�27SD.2737/5:�10�597�B1/524B5�81BD37/5:�>W<D/B9�=.:5�K12OX?�4/8�4�:B978D=7�012�597�B13<=75.1/�10�597�<D/B9�=.:5�K12O@�N&�:94==�<21,.87�59.:�=.:5�51�597�B1/:52DB5.1/�N1/524B512@�N&�:94==�B1128./457�B1/:52DB5.1/�



�

��������� 	
����������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
����������������� ���!��"�#��������$%&�$'(�)**+,**-.�

/01234520367�893:03;4159�41<�50;8=92>01�0:�8?15@�=>72�A03BC�/'�7@4==�39->9AD�A>2@�2@9�E35@>2952�41<�$>723>52D�2@9�50;8=929<�8?15@�=>72�A03BC�/'�7@4==�917?39�2@42D�A>2@�>18?2�0:�2@9�E35@>2952D�2@9�50;8=929<�8?15@�=>72�A03B�50;8=>97�A>2@�488=>54F=9�830->7>017�0:�2@9�501723?52>01�/0123452C�*C)� /'�7@4==�<9293;>19D�A>2@�2@9�E35@>2952�41<�$>723>52D�A@91�2@9�G30H952�03�<97>I1429<�8032>017�2@9390:�439�50;8=929C�*CJ� /'�7@4==�501<?52D�A>2@�2@9�E35@>2952�41<�$>723>52D�:>14=�>178952>017�0:�2@9�G30H952�03�<97>I1429<�8032>017�2@9390:C�/'�7@4==�102>:K�2@9�$>723>52�0:�:>14=�50;8=92>01C�*C,� /'�7@4==�5017?=2�A>2@�2@9�E35@>2952�41<�$>723>52�41<�7@4==�<9293;>19�A@91�2@9�G30H952�41<�2@9�501723?52>01�/01234520367�A03B�439�:>14==K�50;8=929<C�/'�7@4==�477>72�A>2@�2@9�>77?4159�0:�4�/932>:>5429�0:�L>14=�/0;8=92>01D�41<�7@4==�830-><9�20�2@9�$>723>52�4�A3>2291�3950;;91<42>01�39I43<>1I�84K;912�20�2@9�/012345203C�*CM� /'�7@4==�5003<>1429�5=079N0?2�83059<?397D�>15=?<>1I�89370119=�234>1>1IC�E<->79�$>723>52�724::�01�7K729;7�089342>017D�234>1>1I�41<�5=079N0?2�0:�G30H952C��*C*� /'�7@4==�5003<>1429�41<�9O89<>29�/012345203�5=079N0?2�39P?>39;9127D�>15=?<>1I�I?43412997QA433412>97D�5932>:>54297D�B9K7D�;41?4=7D�E7NR?>=2�$34A>1I7D�S9503<�$34A>1I7D�7895>:>542>017D�<4>=K�=0I7D�41<�-93>:>9<�3980327C�T17?39�2@42�4==�02@93�830H952�8432>5>84127�7?F;>2�19597743K�5=079N0?2�<05?;91242>01C�*CU� /'�7@4==�5003<>1429�089342>014=�74:92K�39->9A7�A>2@�$>723>52�8072�055?8415K�41<�;414I9�5033952>-9�A03B�47�19597743KC�*CV� /'�7@4==�917?39�2@42�4==�F?>=<>1I�50;;>77>01>1I�39P?>39;9127�@4-9�F991�:?=:>==9<�>1�4�2>;9=K�;41193�2@30?I@�$>723>52�50;;>77>01>1I�4I9127C�*C.W� /'�7@4==�0F24>1�055?8415K�893;>27�XA@939�39P?>39<YD�5003<>1429�:>14=�2972>1ID�<05?;91242>01D�41<�39I?=4203K�>178952>017C�G398439�055?8415K�8=41�398032C�*C..� /'�7@4==�8398439�:>14=�4550?12>1I�3980327C��Z[� \�]̂�#_����]���@̀9�/01723?52>01�'414I93�7@4==�39->9A�41<�;01>203�4==�E7NR?>=2�$34A>1I7D�;4>12914159�41<�089342>017�;41?4=7D�41<�02@93�5=0790?2�<05?;9127�20�F9�7?39�2@42�4==�39P?>39<�<05?;9127�;992>1I�50123452�39P?>39;9127�439�830-><9<D�41<�7@4==�795?39�41<�23417;>2�20�2@9�$>723>52�41<�G30I34;�'414I93�2@079�<05?;9127�41<�4==�39P?>39<�I?43412997D�B9K7D�;41?4=7D�39503<�<34A>1I7D�41<�<4>=K�=0I7C��̀@9�/01723?52>01�'414I93�7@4==�4=70�:03A43<�4==�<05?;9127�41<�8=417�20�2@9�$>723>52�?801�50;8=92>01�0:�2@9�830H952�41<�917?39�4==�7?5@�8=417�41<�<05?;9127�439�A9==�03I41>a9<�:03�41K�4883083>429�4?<>2�03�39->9A�0:�2@9�G30H952C�b[� cdd]�e�@̀9�/01723?52>01�'414I93�7@4==�477>72�G30I34;�'414I93�47�19597743K�20�>;8=9;912�4�%433412K�f178952>01�41<�%433412K�%03B�83059<?39�:03�2@9�G30H952�2@42�/012345203�;?72�:0==0AC��̀@9�83059<?39�7@4==�>15=?<9�4�2A9=-9�X.+Y�;012@�54==�F45B�893>0<�41<�4�:>14=�A433412K�>178952>01�9=9-91�



�

��������� 	
����������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
����������������� ���!��"�#��������$%&�$'(�)**+,**-.�

/..0�123456�7849:�;:2<9=4�=21>?94@23�42�@36>9=4�459�;:2<9=4�73A�@A934@8B�73B�2C46473A@3D�E7::734B�E2:FG���HI� 	JKL�����MK��K���N2�459�9O4934�:9PC9649A�QB�$@64:@=4�2:�;:2D:71�'737D9:R�459�S2364:C=4@23�'737D9:�657??�766@64�$@64:@=4R�T:=5@49=4R�73A�;:2D:71�'737D9:�76�39=9667:B�42�936C:9�7??�@382:174@23�73A�A2=C193474@23�39=9667:B�82:�;:2<9=4�=?2692C4�E@45�459�$(T�@6�=21>?949�73A�459�;:2<9=4�@6�4@19?B�=?269A�2C4�E@45�$(TG��N5@6�@3=?CA96�QC4�@6�324�?@1@49A�42�:9>2:46�8:21�@3A9>93A934�=236C?47346R�@36>9=42:6R�4964@3D�?7Q2:742:@96R�73A�=2::96>23A@3D�2:�:9PC@:9A�$(T�82:16G��UVW'TXY$WV�Z[�;T\W�XYNWYNXZYT]]̂�]W[N�_]TY&̀���



�

��������� 	
��������������������	����
���
�
�����������������
��
������������������������ �!���������"#$�"%&�'(()*((+,�

��������-�.��/���/����0!���11�02�34/����/����/5�����678�9:;;:<=>?�@ABCD�&8C+=E8F�B:�B7=F�G?C88H8>B�F7D;;�I8�J8C9:CH8K�IL�M%�=9�>88K8K�D>K�C8NO8FB8K�IL�"=FBC=EBP�QR� SC:+=K=>?�F8C+=E8F�C8NO=C8K�I8EDOF8�:9�F=?>=9=ED>B�K:EOH8>B8K�E7D>?8F�=>�B78�SC:T8EB�=>=B=DB8K�IL�B78�"=FBC=EBU�=>E;OK=>?�IOB�>:B�;=H=B8K�B:�F=V8U�NOD;=BLU�E:HJ;8A=BLU�:C�B78�"=FBC=EBWF�FE78KO;8X�YR� SC:+=K=>?�E:>FO;BDB=:>�E:>E8C>=>?�C8J;DE8H8>B�:9�<:CZ�KDHD?8K�IL�9=C8�:C�:B78C�EDOF8�KOC=>?�E:>FBCOEB=:>�D>K�9OC>=F7=>?�F8C+=E8F�C8NO=C8K�=>�E:>>8EB=:>�<=B7�C8J;DE8H8>B�:9�FOE7�<:CZX�[R� SC:+=K=>?�F8C+=E8F�HDK8�>8E8FFDCL�IL�B78�K89DO;B�:9�M:>BCDEB:CU�:C�IL�HDT:C�K898EBF�:C�K89=E=8>E=8F�=>�B78�<:CZ�:9�B78�M:>BCDEB:CU�:C�IL�9D=;OC8�:9�J8C9:CHD>E8�:9�B78�"=FBC=EBWF�E:>FO;BD>BFX�\R� &88Z=>?�+DC=D>E8F�:C�E7D>?8F�B:�D?8>EL�?O=K8;=>8F�:>�I87D;9�:9�B78�"=FBC=EB�<78>�F:�K=C8EB8K�IL�B78�"=FBC=EBX�]R� SC8JDC=>?�B:�F8C+8�:C�F8C+=>?�DF�D�<=B>8FF�=>�E:>>8EB=:>�<=B7�D>L�JOI;=E�78DC=>?U�K=FJOB8�C8F:;OB=:>�JC:E88K=>?�:C�;8?D;�JC:E88K=>?U�:B78C�B7D>�B7DB�>8E8FF=BDB8K�IL�B78�>8?;=?8>B�DEBFU�8CC:CF�:C�:H=FF=:>F�:9�M%�:C�<78C8�B78�M%�=F�D�JDCBL�B78C8B:U�8AE8JB�9:C�D�M:>BCDEB:CWF�78DC=>?�>8E8FF=BDB8K�IL�D�I=K�JC:B8FB�:C�IL�D�M:>BCDEB:CWF�C8NO8FB�B:�FOIFB=BOB8�D�FOIE:>BCDEB:CU�:C�IL�7D>K;=>?�:9�D>L�FB:J�JDLH8>B�>:B=E8FX�R̂� S8C9:CH=>?�B8E7>=ED;�=>FJ8EB=:>�D>K�B8FB=>?X�_R� SC:+=K=>?�:B78C�F8C+=E8F�>:B�:B78C<=F8�=>E;OK8K�=>�B7=F�G?C88H8>B�D>K�>:B�EOFB:HDC=;L�9OC>=F78K�=>�DEE:CKD>E8�<=B7�B78�?8>8CD;;L�DEE8JB8K�FE:J8�:9�E:>FBCOEB=:>�HD>D?8H8>B�JCDEB=E8X�3���
��
�����������������������M%�DEZ>:<;8K?8F�B7DB�B78�"=FBC=EB�C8NO=C8F�M%WF�=>+:=E8F�B:�=>E;OK8�K8BD=;8K�8AJ;D>DB=:>F�:9�B78�&8C+=E8F�J8C9:CH8KX�̀:C�8ADHJ;8U�D�F=A�7:OC�E7DC?8�9:C�B78�8>B=C8�KDL�=F�O>DEE8JBDI;8�D>K�<=;;�>:B�I8�JDLDI;8X�G�H:C8�K8BD=;8K�8AJ;D>DB=:>�K8FEC=I=>?�FJ8E=9=E�BDFZF�=F�C8NO=C8KX����a� ��/
���������b��
����������QR� 678�9:;;:<=>?�CDB8FU�<7=E7�=>E;OK8�:+8C78DKU�DKH=>=FBCDB=+8�E:FB�D>K�JC:9=BU�F7D;;�I8�OB=;=V8K�=>�DCC=+=>?�DB�B78�988�9:C�@ABCD�&8C+=E8F�D>K�F7D;;�>:B�I8�E7D>?8K�9:C�B78�B8CH�:9�B78�G?C88H8>BX�M%�F7D;;�I=;;�=>�NODCB8Cc7:OC�=>EC8H8>BF�9:C�D;;�@ABCD�&8C+=E8FX��d�e���� �� ��a� ��/
���SC:T8EB�"=C8EB:C� f),*�SC:T8EB�%D>D?8C�� f,gh�=̀8;K�@>?=>88CiSC:T8EB�@>?=>88C� f,h*��



�

��������� 	
��������������������	����
���
�
�����������������
��
������������������������ �!���������"#$�"%&�'(()*((+,�

-.� /01�2345678�9:�3:;�38849+1<�=>12�9?�@A>43�&14+=B1C�814?9421<�D;�C7D6B9:C7E>3:>FCG�94�C7DB9:>43B>94FCG�C03EE�:9>�1AB11<�?=+1�814B1:>�F*HGI���



�

��������� 	
��������������������	����
���
�
�����������������
��
����������������������� �!��������"#$�"%&�'(()*((+,�

��������-.����!�/��01�2034��567�89�:7;<=9>9?@ABC9D>9?E��



S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D

160 200 160 160 200 160 160 200 160 160 200 160 160 200 160 200

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

Move in and Closeout

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Position / Classification Name

Project Director Dan Poter 2 2 2 2 8 8 16 16 16 16 16 8 8 4 124.0 215.00$  26,660$          

Project Manager Ryan Wade 16 16 16 32 50 80 32 40 32 16 40 32 16 16 434.0 160.00$  69,440$          

Project Engineer Andrew Lai/TBD 100 80 80 100 80 80 80 60 60 60 780.0 105.00$  81,900$          

 Total (FTEs / Month) 18 18 18 34 158 168 136 164 136 120 144 108 84 80 0 0 1,386 185,680$        

Architect Lionakis

Project Budget $6,000,000

Fee % 3.1%

Provide Construction management services from Design through DSA 

Closeout

Construction

Scope of Services: Note: Timeline is based on preliminary schedules. If 

the contrators schedule pushes out past this timeline 

the hours will need to be adjusted. 

Procurement of DBB

Sacramento City Unified School District -

McClatchy - HVAC

Schedule / Phase

2023 2024

Procurement of Long Lead Chiller (50 weeks)

Total Hours Rates Total

Procurement of Long Lead Chiller (50 weeks)

Procurement of DBB

Construction

Move in and Closeout

EXHIBIT C



�

��������� 	
���������������������	����
���
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!����������"#$�"%&�'(()*((+,�

��������-.�/��������0�����1���
�����23� 456�7%89�:66�96;�:<=;5�>?�;5>9�@A=66B6?;�95CDD�E6�:FDD�G<BH6?9C;><?�:<=�CDD�<:�7%89�&6=+>G69�>?GF==6I�>?�>;9�H6=:<=BC?G6J�>?GDFI>?AJ�K>;5<F;�D>B>;C;><?J�CDD�G<9;9�:<=�H6=9<??6DJ�;=C+6D�K>;5>?�;K<�5F?I=6I�L)MMN�B>D69�<:�;56�O=<P6G;�D<GC;><?�L;=C+6D�=6>BEF=96B6?;9�BF9;�E6�CHH=<+6I�EQ�">9;=>G;�H=><=�;<�;=C+6DNJ�<::>G69J�H6=�I>6B�6RH6?969J�<::>G6�9FHHD>69J�H=>?;>?AJ�H=<+>I>?AJ�<=�95>HH>?A�<:�I6D>+6=CED69�>?�;56�SFC?;>;>69�96;�:<=;5�>?��T �U���-�V.�W3� 456�CB<F?;�<:�G<BH6?9C;><?�95CDD�E6�;56�CB<F?;�96;�:<=;5�>?�;56�@A=66B6?;J�>?GDFI>?A�CDD�E>DD6I�6RH6?969X�Y<�G<BH6?9C;><?�K>DD�E6�HC>I�<=�IF6J�K>;5<F;�CI+C?G6�K=>;;6?�CHH=<+CD�<:�;56�">9;=>G;X����� ������	
����������
�������������23� 7%�95CDD�9FEB>;�B<?;5DQ�>?+<>G69�:<=�;56�H<=;><?�<:�;56�<+6=CDD�:66�=6:D6G;>?A�;56�96=+>G69�H6=:<=B6I�C?I�G<9;9�>?GF==6I�:<=�6CG5�=69H6G;>+6�B<?;5X�Z?�?<�6+6?;�95CDD�;56�;<;CD�HCQB6?;9�6RG66I�;56�7%89�:66�96;�:<=;5�>?�@=;>GD6�(�;5>9�@A=66B6?;�6RG6H;�C9�CF;5<=>[6I�F?I6=��T �U���-�V.�W3� 7%�95CDD�9FEB>;�;5696�>?+<>G69�>?�IFHD>GC;6�;<�;56�">9;=>G;�+>C�;56�">9;=>G;89�CF;5<=>[6I�=6H=696?;C;>+6X�\3� 7%�95CDD�9FEB>;�;<�">9;=>G;�<?�C�B<?;5DQ�EC9>9�I<GFB6?;C;><?�95<K>?A�H=<<:�;5C;�HCQB6?;9�K6=6�BCI6�;<�5>9]56=�9FÊG<?9FD;C?;9X�_3� H̀<?�=6G6>H;�C?I�CHH=<+CD�<:�7%89�>?+<>G69J�;56�">9;=>G;�CA=669�;<�BCa6�HCQB6?;9�<?�CDD�F?I>9HF;6I�CB<F?;9�?<�DC;6=�;5C?�;5>=;Q�L'MN�ICQ9�:=<B�=6G6>H;�<:�;56�>?+<>G6X�b3� 456�">9;=>G;�BCQ�K>;55<DI�<=�I6IFG;�:=<B�CB<F?;9�<;56=K>96�IF6�7%�56=6F?I6=�>:�7%�:C>D9�;<�;>B6DQ�C?I�G<BHD6;6DQ�H6=:<=B�BC;6=>CD�<ED>AC;><?9�;<�E6�H6=:<=B6I�<?�>;9�HC=;�F?I6=�;5>9�@A=66B6?;J�K>;5�;56�CB<F?;9�K>;556DI�<=�I6IFG;6I�E6>?A�=6D6C96I�C:;6=�7%�5C9�:FDDQ�GF=6I�9FG5�:C>DF=6�<:�H6=:<=BC?G6J�D699�G<9;9J�ICBCA69�<=�D<9969�9F9;C>?6I�EQ�;56�">9;=>G;�=69FD;>?A�;56=6:=<BX��



�

��������� 	
���������������������	����
���
�
�����������������
��
������������������������ �!���������"#$�"%&�'(()*((+,�

��������-�.��/���0�1����23/4�0!��05����3���4067�03�/	/�0��03���/��7�����40�89:;<=>?=:@>9A=>�@:BC�D*,DEF''�GHIJHHK�ILH�&MNOMPHKIQ�=RIS�TKRURHV�&NLQQW�"RXIORNI�YZ"RXIORNI[\�MKV�$RINLHWW?=<%�]KNB�YZ=%[\�UQO�NQKXIÔNIRQK�PMKM_HPHKI�XHO+RNHX�UQO�ILH�=B$B�%N=WMINLS�̀R_L�&NLQQW�̀aA=�8OQbHNI�YZ=QKIOMNI[�QO�Z8OQbHNI[\B�>LH�̂KVHOXR_KHV�VQHX�LHOHGS�NHOIRUS�IQ�ILH�_Q+HOKRK_�GQMOV�QU�ILH�"RXIORNI�MX�UQWWQJXC����>LMI�]�MP�M�OHcOHXHKIMIR+H�QU�ILH�=%�N̂OOHKIWS�̂KVHO�NQKIOMNI�JRIL�ILH�"RXIORNId�ILMI�]�MP�UMPRWRMO�JRIL�ILH�UMNIX�LHOHRK�NHOIRURHVd�MKV�ILMI�]�MP�M̂ILQOReHV�MKV�f̂MWRURHV�IQ�HgHN̂IH�ILRX�NHOIRURNMIH�QK�GHLMWU�QU�=%B�=%�NHOIRURHX�ILMI�RI�LMX�IMhHK�MI�WHMXI�QKH�QU�ILH�UQWWQJRK_�MNIRQKX�JRIL�OHXcHNI�IQ�ILH�8OQbHNI�ILMI�MOH�ILH�X̂GbHNI�QU�ILH�=QKIOMNI�YNLHNh�MWW�ILMI�MccWS\C� �i�8̂OX̂MKI�IQ�<V̂NMIRQK�=QVH�XHNIRQK�F*,)*B)j�=%�LMX�RKXIMWWHV�QO�JRWW�RKXIMWWj�cORQO�IQ�NQPPHKNHPHKI�QU�#QOhj�M�cLSXRNMW�GMOORHO�MI�ILH�#QOh�&RIHj�ILMI�JRWW�WRPRI�NQKIMNI�GHIJHHK�=%kX�HPcWQSHHX�MKV�"RXIORNI�ĉcRWX�MI�MWW�IRPHXd�MKV?QO�l�8̂OX̂MKI�IQ�<V̂NMIRQK�=QVH�XHNIRQK�F*,)*B)j�=%�NHOIRURHX�ILMI�MWW�HPcWQSHHX�JRWW�GH�̂KVHO�ILH�NQKIRK̂MW�X̂cHO+RXRQK�QUj�MKV�PQKRIQOHV�GSj�MK�HPcWQSHH�QU�ILH�=%�JLQ�ILH�=MWRUQOKRM�"HcMOIPHKI�QU�;̂XIRNH�YZ":;[\�LMX�MXNHOIMRKHVj�QO�MX�VHXNORGHV�GHWQJj�JRWW�MXNHOIMRKj�LMX�KQI�GHHK�NQK+RNIHV�QU�M�+RQWHKI�QO�XHORQ̂X�UHWQKSB�>LH�KMPH�MKV�IRIWH�QU�ILH�HPcWQSHH�JLQ�JRWW�GH�X̂cHO+RXRK_�=%kX�MKV�RIX�X̂GNQKIOMNIQOXk�HPcWQSHHX�RXC�@MPHC��;HUU�"HHX� � � � � � � �>RIWHC��8OQbHNI�"ROHNIQO�� � � � � � �04��C�]U�ILH�=%�RX�M�XQWH�cOQcORHIQOj�MKV�HWHNIX�ILH�MGQ+H�QcIRQKj�=%�P X̂I�LM+H�ILH�MGQ+HEKMPHV�HPcWQSHHmX�URK_HOcORKIX�cOHcMOHV�MKV�X̂GPRIIHV�GS�ILH�"RXIORNIj�RK�MNNQOVMKNH�JRIL�<V̂NMIRQK�=QVH�XHNIRQK�F*,)*B,YL\B�@Q�JQOh�XLMWW�NQPPHKNH�̂KIRW�X̂NL�VHIHOPRKMIRQK�GS�ILH�":;�LMX�GHHK�PMVHB��AX�MK�M̂ILQOReHV�"RXIORNI�QUURNRMWj�]�MP�UMPRWRMO�JRIL�ILH�UMNIX�LHOHRK�NHOIRURHVj�MKV�MP�M̂ILQOReHV�IQ�HgHN̂IH�ILRX�NHOIRURNMIH�QK�GHLMWU�QU�ILH�"RXIORNI�MKV�̂KVHOIMhH�IQ�cOHcMOH�MKV�X̂GPRI�=%mX�URK_HOcORKIX�MX�RU�LH�QO�XLH�JMX�MK�HPcWQSHH�QU�ILH�"RXIORNIB��"MIHC��nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn�"RXIORNI�9HcOHXHKIMIR+HmX�@MPH�MKV�>RIWHC��n;HXXH�=MXIRWWQj�AXXRXIMKI�&̂cHORKIHKVHKI�QU�ôXRKHXX�&HO+RNHX�"RXIORNI�9HcOHXHKIMIR+HmX�&R_KMÎOHC�nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn�i�>LH�#QOh�QK�ILH�=QKIOMNI�RX�HRILHO�YR\�MI�MK�̂KQNN̂cRHV�XNLQQW�XRIH�MKV�KQ�HPcWQSHH�MKV?QO�X̂GNQKIOMNIQO�QO�X̂ccWRHO�QU�MKS�IRHO�QU�ILH�=QKIOMNI�XLMWW�NQPH�RK�NQKIMNI�JRIL�ILH�"RXIORNI�ĉcRWX�QO�YRR\�=%mX�HPcWQSHHX�QO�MKS�X̂GNQKIOMNIQO�QO�X̂ccWRHO�QU�MKS�IRHO�QU�ILH�=QKIOMNI�JRWW�LM+H�QKWS�WRPRIHV�NQKIMNIj�RU�MKSj�JRIL�"RXIORNI�ĉcRWX�MKV�ILH�"RXIORNI�JRWW�IMhH�MccOQcORMIH�XIHcX�IQ�cOQIHNI�ILH�XMUHIS�QU�MKS�ĉcRWX�ILMI�PMS�NQPH�RK�NQKIMNI�JRIL�=QKX̂WIMKImX�HPcWQSHHXj�X̂GNQKIOMNIQOX�QO�X̂ccWRHOX�XQ�ILMI�ILH�URK_HOcORKIRK_�MKV�NORPRKMW�GMNh_OQ̂KV�RK+HXIR_MIRQK�OHf̂ROHPHKIX�QU�<V̂NMIRQK�=QVH�XHNIRQK�F*,)*B,�XLMWW�KQI�MccWS�IQ�=%�̂KVHO�ILH�=QKIOMNIB��AX�MK�M̂ILQOReHV�"RXIORNI�QUURNRMWj�]�MP�UMPRWRMO�JRIL�ILH�UMNIX�LHOHRK�NHOIRURHVj�MKV�MP�M̂ILQOReHV�IQ�HgHN̂IH�ILRX�NHOIRURNMIH�QK�GHLMWU�QU�ILH�"RXIORNIB��



�

��������� 	
���������������������	����
���
�
�����������������
��
������������������������ �!���������"#$�"%&�'(()*((+,�

"-./0�1111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111��"23.425.�6/74/3/8.-.2+/93�:-;/�-8<�=2.>/0�111111111111111111111111111111111��"23.425.�6/74/3/8.-.2+/93�&2?8-.@4/0�1111111111111111111111111111111111111�A�=B/�C%D�EBF�23�8F.�-�3F>/�74F742/.F4D�B-3�5F;7>2/<�E2.B�.B/�G28?/47428.28?�4/H@24/;/8.3�FG�I<@5-.2F8�CF</�3/5.2F8�J*,)*K,�E2.B�4/37/5.�.F�->>�C%93�/;7>FL//3�-8<�->>�FG�2.3�3@M5F8.4-5.F439�/;7>FL//3�EBF�;-L�B-+/�5F8.-5.�E2.B�"23.425.�7@72>3�28�.B/�5F@43/�FG�74F+2<28?�3/4+25/3�7@43@-8.�.F�.B/�CF8.4-5.D�-8<�.B/�"NO�B-3�</./4;28/<�.B-.�8F8/�FG�.BF3/�/;7>FL//3�B-3�M//8�5F8+25./<�FG�-�G/>F8LD�-3�.B-.�./4;�23�</G28/<�28�I<@5-.2F8�CF</�3/5.2F8�J*,))K,K��P�5F;7>/./�-8<�-55@4-./�>23.�FG�C%Q3�/;7>FL//3�-8<�FG�->>�FG�2.3�3@M5F8.4-5.F43Q�/;7>FL//3�EBF�;-L�5F;/�28�5F8.-5.�E2.B�"23.425.�7@72>3�<@428?�.B/�5F@43/�-8<�35F7/�FG�.B/�CF8.4-5.�23�-..-5B/<�B/4/.FR�-8<SF4�A�=B/�C%�23�-�3F>/�74F742/.F4�-8<�28./8<3�.F�5F;7>L�E2.B�.B/�G28?/47428.28?�4/H@24/;/8.3�FG�I<@5-.2F8�CF</�3/5.2F8�J*,)*K,TBU�E2.B�4/37/5.�.F�->>�C%93�/;7>FL//3�EBF�;-L�B-+/�5F8.-5.�E2.B�"23.425.�7@72>3�28�.B/�5F@43/�FG�74F+2<28?�3/4+25/3�7@43@-8.�.F�.B/�CF8.4-5.D�-8<�B/4/ML�-?4//3�.F�.B/�"23.425.93�74/7-4-.2F8�-8<�3@M;2332F8�FG�G28?/47428.3�3@5B�.B-.�.B/�"NO�;-L�</./4;28/�.B-.�8F8/�FG�.BF3/�/;7>FL//3�B-3�M//8�5F8+25./<�FG�-�G/>F8LD�-3�.B-.�./4;�23�</G28/<�28�I<@5-.2F8�CF</�3/5.2F8�J*,))K,K��:F�EF4V�3B->>�5F;;/85/�@8.2>�3@5B�</./4;28-.2F8�ML�.B/�"NO�B-3�M//8�;-</K��P3�-8�-@.BF42W/<�"23.425.�FGG252->D�X�-;�G-;2>2-4�E2.B�.B/�G-5.3�B/4/28�5/4.2G2/<D�-8<�-;�-@.BF42W/<�.F�/Y/5@./�.B23�5/4.2G25-./�F8�M/B->G�FG�.B/�"23.425.�-8<�@8</4.-V/�.F�74/7-4/�-8<�3@M;2.�C%93�G28?/47428.3�-3�2G�B/�F4�3B/�E-3�-8�/;7>FL//�FG�.B/�"23.425.K��"-./0��1111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111�"23.425.�6/74/3/8.-.2+/93�:-;/�-8<�=2.>/0�� 11111111111111111111111111111�"23.425.�6/74/3/8.-.2+/93�&2?8-.@4/0�11111111111111111111111111111111111111�� �C%93�4/37F832M2>2.L�GF4�M-5V?4F@8<�5>/-4-85/�/Y./8<3�.F�->>�FG�2.3�/;7>FL//3D�3@M5F8.4-5.F43�F4�3@77>2/43D�-8<�/;7>FL//3�FG�3@M5F8.4-5.F43�F4�3@77>2/43�5F;28?�28.F�5F8.-5.�E2.B�"23.425.�7@72>3�4/?-4<>/33�FG�EB/.B/4�.B/L�-4/�</32?8-./<�-3�/;7>FL//3�F4�-5.28?�-3�28</7/8</8.�5F8.4-5.F43�FG�.B/�C%K�Z�����[[\�����]�̂���_L0� 1111111111111111111111111111111111111�� #/8<L�CFB/8�� 4̀/32</8.� � � � �"-./0��1111111111111111111111111119/16/2023



�

������������������� ����������	
���
�������
���������������������������������������
���������	�������

����������������������������� ��!����!�!�����������"�������

��#����
	������$��������%����� �&�
��������'�
(�����������)�*��
����+��,-,.



�

���������	�
��
��������������� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �������� �� !"�#�$���#����%�&������'�(�!��)�"�������*��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��������+�� �*�!�'��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������,��������,�� !"-�(.&�����/��0������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������,��������1�� ������."����������2.(3���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������1��������4�� 5���'�(�*��-�(����6'7���������2'��"�!��)�"����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������4��������8�� 6'7����������9��'�!��)�"��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������8��������:�� ;<����-�#�����'�'����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������8���������=�� ������'�������������'"������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������:������������ ��(�����7�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������=������������ ���(."�����6��>�"��!����'�(�5��3��#������3������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������=��������� �� ��#����%�&����������-��������"��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������+�� ��'%�&��7����������"��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������,�� ���.�'�"�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������1�� ?��(��"�����'������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������1���������4�� ��)��'����3'�����������3����5��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������1���������8�� ��������3�������@*�(���"'����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������1���������:�� ?��A����3����������3�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������1���������=�� �'<$�B��.������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������1������������ �&����'��)�����#.������&.������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������1������������ ��&&��3�����&'���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������4��������� �� !�)��'%�&��7����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������4�



�

��������	
�� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	��� �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	 �� �����!"�#�������$�!�#���������%���"���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&���������	��� ������"#��"����'�(��"#�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&���������	��� !"��)��%�*�������+��"�����������"���,���"#"��"������������������������������������������������������������������������������&���������	&�� !"���"#�-���"./�������%"�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&���������01�� 2�/���,��3"�"��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	1���������0��� �4/")"�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	���567898:;�<=>�?�<5>�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� ����������������
���������	�������

����������������� �!""#$""%&�

�'())�)*+�,-(��-*�+(��+.-*���*�')�)*+��)(/.�)��� 0123�45677879:�;<6�=<93:6>?:2<9�@A9A57879:�B76C2?73�DE45677879:FG�23�8AH7�A3�<;�I?:<J76�KL�MNMOL�J7:P779�:17�BA?6A879:<�=2:Q�R92;27H�B?1<<S�T23:62?:L�A�=AS2;<692A�U>JS2?�3?1<<S�H23:62?:�DET23:62?:FGL�A9H�V2:?17SSW=X@L�Y9?Z�DE=@FG�DJ<:1�?<SS7?:2C7SQ�E[A6:273FGL�;<6�:17�;<SS<P295�U6<\7?:�DE[6<\7?:FG]��017�?<93:6>?:2<9�AH82923:6A:2<9�<;�=ZVZ�@?=SA:?1Q�̂251�B?1<<S�_7P�̀A37JASS�W�B<;:JASS�a27SH�Y8U6<C7879:3�[6<\7?:�S<?A:7H�A:�ONbb�a677U<6:�̀<>S7CA6HL�BA?6A879:<�=4��cKded��B77�)f��g���h�i�;<6�H7:A2S7H�[6<\7?:�3?<U7Z�017�[6<\7?:�8AQ�29?S>H7�8>S:2US7�?<8U<979:3Z�49Q�<97�<;�:17�?<8U<979:3�<6�?<8J29A:2<9�:1767<;�8AQ�J7�?1A957HL�29?S>H295�:76829A:7HL�A3�29H2?A:7H�176729L�P2:1<>:�?1A95295�29�A9Q�PAQ�:17�678A29295�?<8U<979:D3G�<6�:123�45677879:Z�017�U6<C232<93�<;�:123�45677879:�31ASS�AUUSQ�:<�7A?1�?<8U<979:�P2:1<>:�675A6H�:<�:17�3:A:>3�<;�:17�678A29295�?<8U<979:D3GZ�=@�31ASS�29C<2?7�;<6�7A?1�?<8U<979:�37UA6A:7SQ�A9H�T23:62?:�31ASS�?<8U793A:7�=@�;<6�7A?1�?<8U<979:�37UA6A:7SQ�<9�A�U6<U<6:2<9A:7�JA323�JA37H�<9�:17�S7C7S�A9H�3?<U7�<;�P<6j�?<8US7:7H�;<6�7A?1�?<8U<979:Z�a<6�A9H�29�?<932H76A:2<9�<;�:17�8>:>AS�?<C79A9:3�176729�?<9:A297HL�:17�[A6:273�1767:<�A5677�A3�;<SS<P3]��(+.�k)��l� ��	�����
���eZe� Y9�AHH2:2<9�:<�:17�H7;292:2<93�AJ<C7L�:17�;<SS<P295�H7;292:2<93�;<6�P<6H3�<6�U16A373�31ASS�AUUSQ�P179�>37H�29�:123�45677879:L�29?S>H295�ASS�Xm12J2:3]�eZeZe� ���������n�017�45677879:�?<9323:3�7m?S>32C7SQ�<;�:123�H<?>879:�A9H�ASS�2H79:2;27H�7m12J2:3�A::A?17H�A9H�29?<6U<6A:7H�JQ�67;7679?7Z�eZeZM� ���������n�017�A6?12:7?:D3G�:1A:�:17�T23:62?:�H73259A:73�A3�J7295�:17�A6?12:7?:D3G�;<6�ASS�<6�A�U<6:2<9�<;�:17�[6<\7?:L�29?S>H295�ASS�?<93>S:A9:3�:<�:17�46?12:7?:D3GZ�eZeZO� ��op�������q�����rh��op����isn�49Q�H<?>879:�U67UA67H�A9H�3>J82::7H�JQ�T23:62?:�=<9:6A?:<6�:1A:�H7:A2S3�<9�A�=<9;<68295�B7:L�:17�A?:>AS�?<93:6>?:2<9�U76;<687H�H>6295�:17�[6<\7?:L�29?S>H295�?1A9573�97?7332:A:7H�JQ�=<93:6>?:2<9�=1A957�T<?>879:3�A9H�?1A957�<6H763L�A9H�H7:A2S7H�JQ�:17�T23:62?:t3�?<93:6>?:2<9�=<9:6A?:<6�<9�A�=<9;<68295�B7:Z��eZeZu� p
���n�017�T23:62?:t3�v<C769295�̀<A6HZ�eZeZK� �
�	
���������n�017�USA93L�H6AP2953L�A9H�3U7?2;2?A:2<93�A:�:17�79H�<;�:17�̀2HH295�[1A37�:1A:�29?<6U<6A:7�ASS�AHH79HAL�2;�A9QL�233>7H�H>6295�:17�̀2HH295�[1A37Z��eZeZb� �
�������
��p����n�017�:<:AS�A8<>9:�29H2?A:7H�JQ�:17�T23:62?:�;<6�:17�[6<\7?:�US>3�ASS�<:176�?<3:3L�29?S>H295�H73259L�?<93:6>?:2<9L�AH82923:6A:2<9L�;29A9?295L�A9H�ASS�<:176�?<3:3Z�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� ����������������
���������	�������

����������������� �!""#$""%&�

'('()� �
�������
����������
�������*+���,-.�/01�2345617898:37�3;�4097<1=�83�801�>?@A9BBC3D12�437=8C548:37�23456178=(�'('(E� �
�������
���
���F����.�/01�8389G�43=8�83�>:=8C:48�3;�9GG�1G16178=�3;�9�HC3I148�21=:<712�3C�=B14:;:12�JK�801�@C40:8148L�9=�92I5=812�25C:7<�972�98�801�172�3;�801�21=:<7�B09=1�:7�9443C29741�M:80�80:=�@<C116178�972�801�@<C116178�;3C�@C40:81485C9G�?1CD:41=(�/01�N37=8C548:37�N3=8�O52<18�231=�738�:74G521�801�436B17=98:37�3;�801�HC3I148�>1=:<7�/196L�801�HC3<C96�P979<1CL�801�NP�972�97K�=5J437=5G8978=L�801�43=8�3;�801�G972L�C:<08=A3;AM9KL�3C�;:7974:7<�M0:40�9C1�801�C1=B37=:J:G:8K�3;�801�>:=8C:48(�'('(Q� �
�������
���������.�/01�178:8K�G:=812�:7�801�;:C=8�B9C9<C9B0�3;�80:=�@<C116178(���'('('R� �
�������*�-.�@7K�972�9GG�437=5G8978S=TL�=5JA437=5G8978S=TL�=5J4378C9483CS=TL�3C�9<178S=T�83�801�NP(�'('(''� �
������
�.�U71�3C�63C1�G:417=12�972�C1<:=81C12�4378C9483C=�5721C�4378C948�M:80�801�>:=8C:48�;3C�437=8C548:37�3;�9GG�3C�9�B3C8:37�3;�801�HC3I148(�'('('V� �������W���.�/01�@C40:8148S=T�8098�801�>:=8C:48�21=:<7981=�9=�J1:7<�801�9C40:8148S=T�;3C�9GG�3C�9�B3C8:37�3;�801�HC3I148L�:74G52:7<�9GG�437=5G8978=�83�801�@C40:8148S=TL�BG5=�9GG�17<:711CS=T�3C�3801C�21=:<71CS=TL�M03�09D1�9�C1=B37=:J:G:8K�83�801�>:=8C:48�83�21=:<7�9GG�3C�9�B3C8:37�3;�801�HC3I148�1:801C�2:C148GK�3C�9=�9�=5J437=5G8978�3C�=5J4378C9483C(�/01�81C6�>1=:<7�/196�:74G521=�801�>1=:<7�HC3;1==:379G�:7�X171C9G�Y1=B37=:JG1�N09C<1�37�80:=�HC3I148(�'('('Z� �[\.�N9G:;3C7:9�>1B9C86178�3;�]725=8C:9G�Y1G98:37=(�'('('̂� ��������.�/01�?94C961783�N:8K�_7:;:12�?4033G�>:=8C:48(�'('('̀� ��������a��\�b�����������.�/01�:72:D:259G�:2178:;:12�01C1:7�8098�:=�95803C:c12�83�948�37�801�>:=8C:48d=�J109G;�M:80�C1=B148�83�801�HC3I148(�/01�:7:8:9G�>:=8C:48d=�Y1BC1=17898:D1�=09GG�J1�N0C:=�Y9G=837L�>:C1483C�]]]�3;�e94:G:8:1=(�>:=8C:48�69K�4097<1�801�>:=8C:48d=�Y1BC1=17898:D1�JK�738:41�9=�=18�;3C80�01C1:7(�'('('f� ���.�>:D:=:37�3;�801�?8981�@C40:8148�:7�801�N9G:;3C7:9�>1B9C86178�3;�X171C9G�?1CD:41=(�'('(')� gh������������.�>:=8C:48A95803C:c12�?1CD:41=�358=:21�3;�801�=43B1�:7�gh��i���+�,�3C�>:=8C:48A95803C:c12�C1:6J5C=9JG1=�738�:74G5212�:7�NPd=�;11(�'('('E� j��.�/01�NPd=�e11�:=�21;:712�:7�@C8:4G1�)�972�B9K9JG1�9=�=18�;3C80�:7�gh��i���+�k,��



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� ����������������
���������	�������

����������������� �!""#$""%&�

'('(')� ��
������������*�+,-�./01/23�32,214/�56/47�80�.4/90/3�./01/23�32,21434,8�:4/;6<4:�90/�854�=6:8/6<8>�6,<?@76,1�2??�A0,:@?82,8B:C�80�854�D/01/23�E2,214/(��'('(FG� ��
H����I��J���
�K�I��J���
��
	�L��
��K�IML*�N54�214,8�09�854�=O+�28�854�./0P4<8�:684�Q50:4�./632/-�/4:.0,:6R6?68-�Q6??�R4�80�6,:@/4�8528�854�./0P4<8�6:�<0,:8/@<847�6,�<03.?62,<4�Q685�<@//4,8�<074:S�=O+T2../0;47�.?2,:�2,7�:.4<696<2860,:�/4?286,1�80�96/4�?694�:2948->�:8/@<8@/4>�2,7�2<<4::6R6?68-S�2,7�U@2?68-�<0,8/0?:�/4U@6/47�09�2�.@R?6<�Q0/V:�92<6?68-(�N54�WXY�Q6??�/4.0/8�80�R085�854�=O+�2,7�854�+/<5684<8(�'('(F'� L��
������Z����*�+�96,2?�:48�09�7/2Q6,1:�./4.2/47�R-�854�+/<5684<8�6,<0/.0/286,1�2??�<52,14:�9/03�2??�+:T[@6?8:>�:V48<54:>�74826?:>�2,7�<?2/696<2860,:(�'('(FF� �������\�]*�+??�?2R0/>�3284/62?:>�:@.4/;6:60,>�:4/;6<4:>�82:V:>�2,7�Q0/V�8528�854�AE�6:�/4U@6/47�80�.4/90/3�2,7�8528�2/4�/4U@6/47�R->�0/�/42:0,2R?-�6,94//47�9/03>�854�+1/4434,8>�2,7�8528�2/4�,4<4::2/-�90/�854�74:61,�2,7�<03.?4860,�09�854�D/0P4<8(���L̂I�_̀�ab� �̂���F('� �̂��*�N56:�+1/4434,8�:52??�R4<034�4994<86;4�0,�O4.843R4/�'>�FGFc>�2,7>�4d<4.8�2:�0854/Q6:4�./0;6747�54/46,>�Q6??�<0,86,@4�6,�4994<8�@,86?�=4<43R4/�c'>�FGFe(��L̂I�_̀��b� ��
J�K�L��J
���f���������������������
	����c('� ��
J�*�AE�:52??�./0;674�854�O4/;6<4:�74:</6R47�54/46,�2,7�@,74/�̀g��f���h�i�90/�854�D/0P4<8(��c(F� ���������
	�����*�AE>�68:�0996<4/:>�214,8:>�43.?0-44:>�:@R<0,8/2<80/:>�A0,:@?82,8:�2,7�2,-�.4/:0,:�0/�4,86864:�90/�Q503�AE�6:�/4:.0,:6R?4>�:52??�./0;674�2??�O4/;6<4:�.@/:@2,8�80�856:�+1/4434,8�6,�2<<0/72,<4�Q685�854�/4U@6/434,8:�09�856:�+1/4434,8�2,7�6,�2�32,,4/�<0,:6:84,8�Q685�854�:82,72/7�09�<2/4�@,74/�A2?690/,62�?2Q�2..?6<2R?4�80�850:4�Q50�:.4<62?6j4�6,�./0;676,1�854�:234�:4/;6<4:�90/�./0P4<8:�09�854�8-.4>�:<0.4>�2,7�<03.?4d68-�09�854�D/0P4<8(�N54�=6:8/6<8k:�/4;64Q>�2../0;2?�09>�0/�.2-34,8�90/�2,-�09�854�O4/;6<4:�/4U@6/47�@,74/�856:�+1/4434,8�:52??�,08�R4�<0,:8/@47�2:�2::4,8�8528�AE�52:�<03.?647>�,0/�6,�2,-�Q2-�/4?64;4�854�AE�09�<03.?62,<4>�Q685�B6C�854�2..?6<2R?4�:82,72/7�09�<2/4>�0/�B66C�2..?6<2R?4�:828@84:>�/41@?2860,:>�/@?4:>�1@674?6,4:�2,7�/4U@6/434,8:(�c(c� �

�������
�*�W,�854�.4/90/32,<4�09�AEk:�:4/;6<4:�@,74/�856:�+1/4434,8>�AE�21/44:�8528�68�Q6??�326,826,�<00/76,2860,�Q685�=6:8/6<8T74:61,2847�/4./4:4,8286;4:�2:�32-�R4�/4U@4:847�2,7�74:6/2R?4(�N56:�:52??�6,<?@74>�Q6850@8�?63682860,>�<00/76,2860,�Q685�2??�343R4/:�09�854�=6:8/6<8k:�=4:61,�N423>�854�D/0P4<8�W,:.4<80/>�2,7�854�D/01/23�E2,214/(��



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� ����������������
���������	�������

����������������� �!""#$""%&�

'()� *������
��������+�,-�./0�12�0345678�89:;<6=895.>=.?8@A�./0�12�8/>55�0=89B0�./>.�C.8�<6=.B><.?8@�DC./�C.8�89:;<6=895.>=.?8@�C=<59E0�5>=F9>F0�C=<6B46B>.C=F�./0�.0B38�6-�./C8�GFB0030=.(�'(H� ��I��������������J�K�����������+�12�DC55�><.�>8�./0�LC8.BC<.M8�>F0=.�.6�B0=E0B�./0�N0BOC<08�>=E�-9B=C8/�./0�D6BP�>8�E08<BC:0E�C=�QR��S���T�UV�<6330=<C=F�DC./�./0�B0<0C4.�6-�>�DBC..0=�W6.C<0�.6�XB6<00E�8CF=0E�:7�./0�LC8.BC<.�Y04B080=.>.CO0(�12M8�80BOC<08�DC55�:0�<63450.0E�C=�><<6BE>=<0�DC./�./0�8</0E950�>..></0E�>8�QR��S���T�ZV�L9BC=F�./0�XB6[0<.M8�16=8.B9<.C6=�X/>80A�./0�LC8.BC<.�3>7�B0\9CB0�./>.�./0�16=.B><.6B8�89:3C.�>55�=6.C<08�>=E�<6339=C<>.C6=�B05>.C=F�.6�./0�XB6[0<.�ECB0<.57�.6�./0�12(�'(]� J����̂ �
	�_�������*S������
��̀ 
�����
�����J�K
���������������I��a���������������������+�12�DC55�B0OC0D�./0�LC8.BC<.M8�b><C5C.C08�2>8.0B�X5>=�-6B�./0�LC8.BC<.�>=E�6./0B�DBC..0=�3>.0BC>58�./0�LC8.BC<.�3>P08�>O>C5>:50�:7�./0�LC8.BC<.�.6�12�.6�9=E0B8.>=E�-9557�./0�=>.9B0A�0c.0=.�>=E�C=.0=.�6-�./0�b><C5C.C08�X5>=�>=E�./0�XB6[0<.(�'(d� J����̂ �
	��������e+�12�DC55�B0OC0D�20>89B0�f�>=E�6./0B�DBC..0=�3>.0BC>58�3>E0�>O>C5>:50�:7�./0�LC8.BC<.�.6�12�./>.�B05>.0�.6�20>89B0�f�.6�-9557�9=E0B8.>=E�./0�0c.0=.�6-�-9=EC=F�>O>C5>:50�.6�C345030=.�./0�LC8.BC<.M8�2>8.0B�b><C5C.C08�X5>=�-6B�./0�LC8.BC<.A�./0�>=.C<C4>.0E�8</0E950�-6B�C889>=<0�6-�g6=E8�9=E0B�20>89B0�f�B05>.CO0�.6�./0�>=.C<C4>.0E�E08CF=A�:CEEC=F�>=E�<6=8.B9<.C6=�6-�4B6[0<.8(��'(h� QRK����
��
	�i
�j�S�����
��������
����a���+�N/695E�./0�g6>BE�E0<CE0�.6�0c4>=E�./0�8<640�6-�./0�XB6[0<.�>=Ek6B�89445030=.�./0�16=8.B9<.C6=�g9EF0.�:>80E�946=�>O>C5>:C5C.7�6-�>EEC.C6=>5�-9=E8A�16=8.B9<.C6=�2>=>F0B�>FB008�.6�40B-6B3�./0�>EEC.C6=>5�8<640�6-�D6BP�9=E0B�./0�-00�>=E�<68.�.0B38�6-�./C8�GFB0030=.(�'(l� �
�	������
	�m����������
��S����+���'(l(n� 12�9=E0B8.>=E8�./>.�LC8.BC<.�6--C<C>58�>=E�034567008�>B0�4B6/C:C.0E�-B63�C=O65O030=.�C=�E0<C8C6=8�C=�D/C</�./07�3>7�/>O0�>�-C=>=<C>5�C=.0B08.�49B89>=.�.6�o6O0B=30=.�16E0�80<.C6=8�nplp�>=E�hdnpp�0.�80\(A�>=E�<0B.C-C08�./>.�C.�E608�=6.�P=6D�6-�>=7�-><.8�C=EC<>.C=F�./>.�>=7�LC8.BC<.�6--C<C>5�6B�03456700�/>8�>=�6D=0B8/C4�6B�6./0B�-C=>=<C>5�C=.0B08.A�ECB0<.�6B�C=ECB0<.A�C=�./C8�GFB0030=.(��b9B./0BA�12�/0B0:7�<0B.C-C08�./>.�=6�<9BB0=.�LC8.BC<.�6--C<C>5�6B�03456700�6-�./0�LC8.BC<.A�>=E�=6�6=0�D/6�/>8�:00=�>�LC8.BC<.�6--C<C>5�6B�03456700�6-�./0�LC8.BC<.�DC./C=�./0�4>8.�.D6�70>B8�/>8�4>B.C<C4>.0E�C=�:CEEC=FA�8055C=F�6B�4B636.C=F�./C8�GFB0030=.(��12�9=E0B8.>=E8�./>.�C=�>EEC.C6=�.6�./0�B030EC08�>O>C5>:50�>.�5>DA�./>.�>=7�->C59B0�.6�4B6OCE0�>=�><<9B>.0�<0B.C-C<>.C6=�6B�>=7�OC65>.C6=�6-�./C8�4B6OC8C6=�8/>55�3>P0�./0�GFB0030=.�O6CE>:50�:7�LC8.BC<.(��'(l(q� 12�8/>55�=6.�:0�40B3C..0E�.6�89:3C.�4B6468>58�6B�6./0BDC80�800P�<6=.B><.8�-6B�./0�-6556DC=F�80BOC<08�.6�:0�4B6<9B0E�:7�./0�LC8.BC<.�C=�<6==0<.C6=�DC./�>=7�4B6[0<.�<6O0B0E�:7�./C8�GFB0030=.r�L08CF=�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� ����������������
���������	�������

����������������� �!""#$""%&�

'()*+,,-)./01�234,�)(�5+,672.,8+96-).:�2*�;<�-=+.6-*-+,�8)6+.6-/0�>+,-?.�'()*+,,-)./0,1�'()@+96�2.,8+96)(,�)(�5+,672.,8+96-).�,+(A-9+,�-.�9)..+96-).�B-6C�/�8()@+961�;<�,C/00�/**-(D/6-A+0E�/.=�F.+GF-A)9/00E�(+8(+,+.6�/.=�B/((/.6�6)�6C+�>-,6(-96�6C/6�.+-6C+(�;<�.)(�/.E�8+(,).�BC)�C)0=,�+GF-6E�-.6+(+,6�-.�;<H,�)(?/.-I/6-).�-,�/�*)(D+(�)(�9F((+.6�C)0=+(�)*�/.E�+GF-6E�-.6+(+,6�-.�6C+�*-(D�-=+.6-*-+=�)(�C/,�/.E�*-./.9-/0�-.6+(+,6�-.�6C+�*-(D�-=+.6-*-+=:�>-,6(-96�(+,+(A+,�6C+�,)0+�=-,9(+6-).�6)�B/-A+�6C-,�,FJ,+96-).H,�(+GF-(+D+.6,�).�/�9/,+KJEK9/,+�J/,-,:��LMN�OP�QR� ������		�S:T� 5C+�>-,6(-96�,+0+96+=�;<�6)�8+(*)(D�6C+�U+(A-9+,�J+9/F,+�)*�6C+�;<H,�,V-00,�/.=�+W8+(6-,+�)*�V+E�8+(,)..+0:��S:X� ;<�/?(++,�6C/6�6C+�*)00)B-.?�V+E�8+(,)..+0�-.�;<H,�*-(D�,C/00�J+�/,,)9-/6+=�B-6C�6C+�'()@+96�/.=�8+(*)(D�6C+�U+(A-9+,�-.�6C+�*)00)B-.?�9/8/9-6-+,Y�'()@+96�>-(+96)(Y� � >/.�')(6+(�'()@+96�</./?+(�227;<Y� 4E/.�Z/=+��[-+0=�\.?7'()@+96�\.?�22Y� ]̂ _̀ab�cde�S:f� ;<�,C/00�.)6�9C/.?+�/.E�)*�6C+�V+E�8+(,)..+0�0-,6+=�/J)A+�B-6C)F6�6C+�>-,6(-96H,�8(-)(�B(-66+.�/88()A/01�F.0+,,�,/-=�8+(,)..+0�9+/,+�6)�J+�+D80)E+=�JE�;<:�4+?/(=0+,,�)*�6C+�(+/,).�*)(�6C+�9C/.?+�-.�V+E�8+(,)..+01�>-,6(-96�,C/00�J+�/00)B+=�6)�-.6+(A-+B�/.=�(+6/-.,�6C+�(-?C6�6)�/88()A+�(+80/9+D+.6�8+(,)..+0:��S:S� 2*�/.E�=+,-?./6+=�0+/=�)(�V+E�8+(,).�*/-0,�6)�8+(*)(D�6)�6C+�,/6-,*/96-).�)*�6C+�>-,6(-961�6C+.�F8).�6C+�>-,6(-96H,�B(-66+.�.)6-9+1�6C+�;<�B-00�C/A+�,+A+.�ghi�9/0+.=/(�=/E,�6)�(+D)A+�6C/6�8+(,).�*()D�6C+�'()@+96�/.=�,C/00�8()A-=+�/�(+80/9+D+.6�8+(,).�/99+86/J0+�6)�6C+�>-,6(-96:��S:S:T� j00�0+/=�)(�V+E�8+(,)..+0�*)(�/.E�;).,F06/.6�DF,6�/0,)�J+�=+,-?./6+=�JE�6C+�;).,F06/.6�/.=�/(+�,FJ@+96�6)�/00�9).=-6-).,�,6/6+=�-.�6C-,�j?(++D+.6:�S:k� ;<�(+8(+,+.6,�6C/6�6C+�;).,6(F96-).�</./?+(�C/,�.)�+W-,6-.?�-.6+(+,6�/.=�B-00�.)6�/9GF-(+�/.E�-.6+(+,61�=-(+96�)(�-.=-(+961�6C/6�9)F0=�9).*0-96�-.�/.E�D/..+(�)(�=+?(++�B-6C�6C+�8+(*)(D/.9+�)*�U+(A-9+,�(+GF-(+=�F.=+(�6C-,�j?(++D+.6:�;<�/?(++,�*F(6C+(�6C/6�.)�8+(,).�C/A-.?�/.E�,F9C�-.6+(+,6�,C/00�J+�+D80)E+=�JE�;<:��LMN�OP��R� ��������
	�l
�m�;<�,C/00�9)DD+.9+�B)(V�F.=+(�6C-,�j?(++D+.6�F8).�(+9+-86�)*�/�n)6-9+�6)�'()9++=�/.=�,C/00�8(),+9F6+�6C+�B)(V�=-0-?+.60E�/,�=+,9(-J+=�-.�Po��p���q�r�,)�/,�6)�8()9++=�B-6C�/.=�9)D80+6+�6C+�U+(A-9+,�-.�9)D80-/.9+�B-6C�6C+�,9C+=F0+�/66/9C+=�/,�Po��p���



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� ����������������
���������	�������

����������������� �!""#$""%&�

'�()�*+,-�+.�/0�12-�-..-34-�536�05+789-�/0�:;�1/�<-90/9,�=/9>�/3�1+,-�5.�.<-4+0+-6�+3�12+.�?@9--,-31�+.�5�,51-9+57�A9-542�/0�12+.�?@9--,-31B���CDE�FG��(� �
�������
���
���H�����IBJ� :;�.2577�25K-�9-.</3.+A+7+1LM�57/3@�=+12�12-�?942+1-41M�1/�6-K-7/<M�9-K+-=M�536�9-4/34+7-�12-�:/3.19841+/3�:/.1�N86@-1�<-9�O9/P-41�=+12�12-�?942+1-41�536�12-�Q+.19+41�129/8@2/81�12-�6-.+@3�<9/4-..�536�4/3.19841+/3B��IBR� *2-�:/3.19841+/3�:/.1�N86@-1�.2577�A-�12-�1/157�4/.1�1/�Q+.19+41�/0�577�O9/P-41�-7-,-31.�12-�Q-.+@3�*-5,�6-.+@3.�/9�.<-4+0+-.B��IBS� :;�.2577�=/9>�4//<-951+K-7L�=+12�12-�O9/P-41�Q-.+@3�*-5,�129/8@2/81�12-�O9/P-41M�+34786+3@�A81�3/1�7+,+1-6�1/M�12-�T42-,51+4�Q-.+@3�O25.-M�Q-.+@3�Q-K-7/<,-31�O25.-M�536�:/3.19841+/3�Q/48,-31.�O25.-M�5.�6-.49+A-6�+3�GU��V���'�W)�./�1251�12-�O9/P-41X.�4/3.19841+/3�4/.1�5.�6-.+@3-6�AL�12-�O9/P-41�Q-.+@3�*-5,�=+77�3/1�-Y4--6�12-�:/3.19841+/3�:/.1�N86@-1M�5.�,5L�A-�56P8.1-6�.8A.-Z8-317L�=+12�12-�Q+.19+41X.�=9+11-3�5<<9/K57B�:;�.2577�3/1+0L�12-�Q+.19+41�+0�+1�A-7+-K-.�12-�O9/P-41X.�4/3.19841+/3�4/.1�/0�12-�=/9>�AL�12-�O9/P-41�Q-.+@3�*-5,�=+77�-Y4--6�12-�:/3.19841+/3�:/.1�N86@-1M�536[/9�+0�+1�A-7+-K-.�12-�4/3.19841+/3�4/.1�5.�6-.+@3-6�=+77�-Y4--6�12-�:/3.19841+/3�:/.1�N86@-1B�:;M�2/=-K-9M�.2577�3/1�<-90/9,�/9�A-�9-.</3.+A7-�0/9�53L�6-.+@3�/9�5942+1-418957�.-9K+4-.B��IB\� ]K57851+/3.�/0�12-�Q+.19+41X.�:/3.19841+/3�N86@-1M�536�:;X.�<9-7+,+359L�536�6-15+7-6�4/.1�-.1+,51-.M�9-<9-.-31�12-�:;X.�A-.1�P86@,-31�5.�5�<9/0-..+/357�05,+7+59�=+12�12-�4/3.19841+/3�+368.19LB�IB̂� _0�12-�N+66+3@�O25.-�25.�3/1�4/,,-34-6�=+12+3�3+3-1L�̀abc�65L.�501-9�QT?�5<<9/K57�/0�12-�<753.�536�.<-4+0+451+/3.M�12-�:/3.19841+/3�:/.1�N86@-1�,5L�A-�56P8.1-6�51�Q+.19+41X.�9-Z8-.1�1/�9-07-41�4253@-.�+3�12-�@-3-957�7-K-7�/0�<9+4-.�+3�12-�4/3.19841+/3�+368.19L�A-1=--3�12-�651-�/0�.8A,+..+/3�/0�12-�:/3.19841+/3�Q/48,-31.�1/�12-�Q+.19+41�536�12-�651-�/3�=2+42�<9/</.57.�59-�./8@21B�IBI� *2-�Q+.19+41�,5LM�+3�+1.�./7-�6+.49-1+/3M�6/�/3-M�/9�5�4/,A+351+/3M�/0�12-�0/77/=+3@�+0�53L�/0�12-�-K-31.�+3�?91+47-�IBd�/4489e�IBIBJ� f+K-�:;�=9+11-3�5<<9/K57�/0�53�5@9--6�56P8.1,-31�1/�12-�:/3.19841+/3�:/.1�N86@-1B�IBIBR� ?812/9+g-�:;�1/�9-h3-@/1+51-�536[/9�9-hA+6�12-�O9/P-41M�=2-3�5<<9/<9+51-M�=+12+3�129--�̀Sc�,/312.X�1+,-�/0�9-4-+<1�/0�A+6.M�51�3/�566+1+/357�4/.1�1/�12-�Q+.19+41�̀-Y478.+K-�/0�Q+.19+41�536�/12-9�5@-34+-.X�9-K+-=�1+,-cB�IBIBS� *-9,+351-�12+.�?@9--,-31�+0�12-�O9/P-41�+.�5A536/3-6�AL�12-�Q+.19+41�=+12/81�08912-9�/A7+@51+/3�AL�-+12-9�<591LB�IBIB\� i+12+3�129--�̀Sc�,/312.�/0�9-4-+<1�/0�A+6.M�+3.19841�Q-.+@3�*-5,�1/�9-K+.-�12-�695=+3@.�536�.<-4+0+451+/3.�̀+3�.4/<-�536�Z857+1L�5.�5<<9/K-6�AL�12-�Q+.19+41c�1/�A9+3@�12-�O9/P-41�=+12+3�12-�



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 7 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

Construction Cost Budget for re-bidding. CM will perform cost 
estimation, value engineering, constructability reviews, and/or 
bidding support at no additional cost to the District.  

6.7 If any of the following events occur, the District may exercise any one, or any 
combination, of the actions set forth in Article 6.6 above: 

6.7.1 The lowest responsive base bid received is five percent (5%) or 
more in excess of the Construction Cost Budget or  

6.7.2 The combined total of base bid and all additive alternates equal 
or exceed ten percent (10%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or  

6.7.3 The Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to 
the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable 
changes in the condition of the construction market in the 
Sacramento Area, in so far as these have not been caused by Acts 
of God, earthquakes, strikes, war, or energy shortages due to 
uncontrollable events in the world economy. 

ARTICLE 7. Fee and Method of Payment for Basic Services 

7.1 District shall pay CM an amount not to exceed Two Hundred Eighteen 
Thousand Six Hundred Seventy Dollars ($218,670) for all services 
contracted for under this Agreement and based on the Fee Schedule set forth 
in Exhibit “D.”    

7.2 District shall pay CM the Fee pursuant to the provisions herein and the method 
of payment set forth in Exhibit “D.” 

7.3 CM shall bill its work under this Agreement on a percent of completion basis 
in accordance with Exhibit “D.”  

7.4 No increase in fee will be due from change orders generated during the 
construction period to the extent caused by CM’s error(s) or omission(s). 

7.5 The CM’s fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of 
CM’s Services incurred in the performance hereof as indicated in Exhibit “D,” 
including, without limitation, all costs for personnel, travel within two hundred 
(200) miles of the Project location, offices, per diem expenses, printing, 
providing or shipping of deliverables in the quantities set forth in Exhibit “A.”  

  



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� ����������������
���������	�������

����������������� �!""#$""%&�

�'()�*+��,� ��������	
��+-�������������./0� 123�456789:�;<7�=>?76�@97AB49:�:56CC�D9�E6BF�D3�?59�GB:?7B4?�6:�F9:47BD9F�B2�+-��H���IJK�6?�?59�76?9:�:9?�;<7?5�B2�+-��H���I�K�<2C3�LE<2�497?B;B46?B<2�<;�?59�GB:?7B4?M:�E7B<7�N7B??92�6L?5<7BO6?B<2�<;�?59�4C6BP9F�=>?76�@97AB49:�62F�?59�=>?76�@97AB49:�56A9�D992�:6?B:;64?<7BC3�4<PEC9?9F/��./Q� RS�:56CC�:LDPB?�?<�GB:?7B4?�6�N7B??92�E7<E<:6C�F9:47BDB28�?59�E7<E<:9F�:4<E9�<;�:97AB49:�62F�CB:?B28�?59�E97:<229CT�C6D<7�FL76?B<2T�76?9:T�62F�4<:?/�RS�:56CC�E7<499F�NB?5�=>?76�@97AB49:�<2C3�LE<2�7949BAB28�?59�GB:?7B4?M:�E7B<7�N7B??92�6L?5<7BO6?B<2/�RS�NBCC�2<?�D9�92?B?C9F�?<�623�4<PE92:6?B<2�;<7�=>?76�@97AB49:�E97;<7P9F�E7B<7�?<�7949BAB28�GB:?7B4?M:�N7B??92�6L?5<7BO6?B<2/�./U� V;�RS�E97;<7P:�623�=>?76�@97AB49:�NB?5<L?�?59�GB:?7B4?M:�6L?5<7BO9F�79E79:92?6?BA9M:�E7B<7�N7B??92�6L?5<7BO6?B<2T�?59�GB:?7B4?�NBCC�2<?�D9�<DCB86?9F�?<�E63�;<7�:L45�=>?76�@97AB49:/�W59�;<798<B28�E7<AB:B<2�2<?NB?5:?62FB28T�RS�NBCC�D9�E6BF�D3�?59�GB:?7B4?�6:�F9:47BD9F�B2�+-��H���IJK�;<7�=>?76�@97AB49:�?59�GB:?7B4?M:�6L?5<7BO9F�79E79:92?6?BA9�A97D6CC3�79XL9:?:T�E7<ABF9F�RS�4<2;B7P:�:L45�79XL9:?�B2�N7B?B28�EL7:L62?�?<�?59�2<?B49�79XLB79P92?:�<;�?5B:�18799P92?T�62F�E7<499F:�NB?5�:L45�=>?76�@97AB49:�2<?�967CB97�?562�?N<�YQZ�DL:B29::�F63:�6;?97�?59�GB:?7B4?�7949BA9:�RSM:�N7B??92�4<2;B7P6?B<2�<;�?59�79XL9:?/��'()�*+�[,� \]������̂�
	������_/0� 1CC�<;�RSM:�N<7̀�E7<FL4?�E79E679F�<7�892976?9F�B2�4<2294?B<2�NB?5�?5B:�18799P92?�B:�?59�GB:?7B4?M:�E7<E97?3/��_/Q� aE<2�?59�GB:?7B4?M:�79XL9:?T�?59�RS�:56CC�P6̀9�6A6BC6DC9�?<�?59�GB:?7B4?�6CC�N<7̀�E7<FL4?�4<PEC9?9F�<7�B2�E7<879::�6?�?59�?BP9�<;�:L45�6�79XL9:?/�_/U� 1;?97�b7<c94?�4<PEC9?B<2�<7T�B;�?59�GB:?7B4?�9>974B:9:�?59�7B85?�?<�?97PB26?9�?5B:�18799P92?�EL7:L62?�?<�?59�18799P92?�?97P:T�RS�:56CC�6::9PDC9�62F�F9CBA97�?<�GB:?7B4?�NB?5B2�;BA9�YdZ�46C92F67�F63:�<;�?59�GB:?7B4?M:�N7B??92�79XL9:?T�6CC�<;�RSM:�N<7̀�E7<FL4?�<;�?59�892976?9FT�E79E679FT�79AB9N9F�<7�4<PEBC9F�B2�4<2294?B<2�NB?5�?5B:�18799P92?�62F�?59�@97AB49:�62F�6L?5<7BO9F�=>?76�@97AB49:�5979L2F97/�W5B:�B24CLF9:T�NB?5<L?�CBPB?6?B<2T�6CC�RS�892976?9F�F<4LP92?:T�4<EB9:�<;�6CC�F<4LP92?:�RS�9>456289F�NB?5�<7�4<EB9F�?<�<7�;7<P�6CC�<?597�b7<c94?�E67?B4BE62?:T�62F�6CC�4C<:9<L?�F<4LP92?:/�RS�:56CC�D9�B2F9>�62F�<7862BO9�6EE7<E7B6?9C3�:6BF�b7<c94?�794<7F:�;<7�96:3�L:9�D3�GB:?7B4?�E97:<229C/��_/e� 1CC�b7<c94?�794<7F:�679�GB:?7B4?�E7<E97?3T�N59?597�<7�2<?�?5<:9�794<7F:�679�B2�?59�RSM:�E<::9::B<2/�GB:?7B4?�79?6B2:�6CC�7B85?:�?<�6CC�4<E37B85?:T�F9:B82:T�62F�<?597�B2?9CC94?L6C�E7<E97?3�9PD<FB9F�B2�?59�EC62:T�794<7F�F76NB28:T�:E94B;B46?B<2:T�9:?BP6?9:T�62F�<?597�F<4LP92?:�?56?�RS�<7�B?:�R<2:LC?62?:�E79E679�<7�46L:9�?<�D9�E79E679F�EL7:L62?�?<�?5B:�18799P92?/�f<?NB?5:?62FB28�?59�E7949FB28�:92?9249T�RS�62F�B?:�R<2:LC?62?:�:56CC�D9�92?B?C9F�?<�79L:9�N<7̀�E7<FL4?�892976?9F�L2F97�?5B:�18799P92?/�� �



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� ����������������
���������	�������

����������������� �!""#$""%&�

�'()�*+�,-.� (��������
��
	��
��������/01/� 2345637584�9:;<:45�=>6�?44<6@A7:4B�C=�23456375�@5�@AD�53E:�6:@4>A@FGD�F:G3:H:4�IJ�34�>6�E@D�F:�3A�K:=@<G5�<AK:6�5L34�?M6::E:A5N�23456375�E@D�3A�354�4>G:�K3476:53>A�A>53=D�IJ�>=�5L34�=@75�@AK�6:;<:45�O6355:A�@44<6@A7:4�=6>E�IJ�>=�P:6=>6E@A7:�>=�Q:6H37:4�@AK�@�O6355:A�PG@A�=6>E�IJ�5>�6:E:KD�@AD�P>5:A53@G�K:=@<G5�<AK:6�5L:�5:6E4�5L34�?M6::E:A5�5L@5�5L:�23456375�E@D�@KH34:�IJ�>=�3A�O6353AM1�IJ�4L@GGN�O35L3A�5:A�R/0S�7@G:AK@6�K@D4�>=�2345637584�6:;<:45N�K:G3H:6�@�O6355:A�7<6:�PG@A�5L@5�E::54�5L:�2345637584�6:;<36:E:A54�3A�354�6:;<:45�=>6�@44<6@A7:41�IJ84�=@3G<6:�5>�P6>H3K:�4<7L�O6355:A�@44<6@A7:4�>=�P:6=>6E@A7:�@AK�5L:�6:;<36:K�O6355:A�PG@AN�O35L3A�5:A�R/0S�7@G:AK@6�K@D4�>=�6:;<:45N�O3GG�7>A4535<5:�@�E@5:63@G�F6:@7L�>=�5L34�?M6::E:A5�4<==373:A5�5>�T<453=D�5:6E3A@53>A�=>6�7@<4:1�/01U� 2345637584�V:6E3A@53>A�>=�IJ�=>6�I@<4:B�C=�IJ�=@3G4�5>�P:6=>6E�IJ84�K<53:4�5>�5L:�2345637584�4@534=@753>AN�>6�3=�IJ�=@3G4�5>�=<G=3GG�3A�@�53E:GD�@AK�P6>=:443>A@G�E@AA:6�IJ84�E@5:63@G�>FG3M@53>A4�<AK:6�5L34�?M6::E:A5N�>6�3=�IJ�H3>G@5:4�@AD�>=�5L:�E@5:63@G�5:6E4�>6�P6>H343>A4�>=�5L34�?M6::E:A5N�5L:�23456375�4L@GG�L@H:�5L:�63ML5�5>�5:6E3A@5:�5L34�?M6::E:A5�:==:753H:�3EE:K3@5:GD�<P>A�5L:�23456375�M3H3AM�IJ�O6355:A�A>537:�5L:6:>=1�CA�5L:�:H:A5�>=�@�5:6E3A@53>A�P<64<@A5�5>�5L34�4<FK3H343>AN�IJ�E@D�3AH>37:�23456375�=>6�@GG�O>6W�P:6=>6E:K�<A53G�5L:�A>537:�>=�5:6E3A@53>AN�F<5�23456375�4L@GG�L@H:�5L:�63ML5�5>�O35LL>GK�P@DE:A5�@AK�K:K<75�@AD�@E><A54�:;<@G�5>�5L:�2345637584�7>454�F:7@<4:�>=�IJ84�@753>A4N�:66>64N�>6�>E3443>A41��/01X� 2345637584�V:6E3A@53>A�>=�IJ�=>6�I>AH:A3:A7:B�23456375�4L@GG�L@H:�5L:�63ML5�3A�354�4>G:�K3476:53>A�5>�5:6E3A@5:�5L34�?M6::E:A5�=>6�354�>OA�7>AH:A3:A7:1�CA�5L:�:H:A5�>=�@�5:6E3A@53>A�=>6�7>AH:A3:A7:N�IJ�E@D�3AH>37:�23456375�@AK�23456375�4L@GG�P@D�@GG�<AK34P<5:K�3AH>37:R4S�=>6�O>6W�P:6=>6E:K�<A53G�5L:�A>537:�>=�5:6E3A@53>A1�VL34�4L@GG�F:�5L:�>AGD�@E><A5R4S�P>5:A53@GGD�>O3AM�5>�IJ�3=�5L:6:�34�@�5:6E3A@53>A�=>6�7>AH:A3:A7:1�/01Y� IJ84�V:6E3A@53>A�>=�?M6::E:A5�=>6�I@<4:B�IJ�L@4�5L:�63ML5�5>�5:6E3A@5:�5L34�?M6::E:A5�3=�5L:�23456375�K>:4�A>5�=<G=3GG�354�E@5:63@G�>FG3M@53>A4�<AK:6�5L34�?M6::E:A5�@AK�=@3G4�5>�7<6:�4<7L�E@5:63@G�K:=@<G5�O35L3A�43Z5D�R[0S�K@D4�>=�6:7:3P5�>=�O6355:A�A>537:�>=�4@3K�K:=@<G54N�>6�3=�5L:�K:=@<G5�7@AA>5�F:�7<6:K�O35L3A�43Z5D�R[0S�K@D4N�7>EE:A7:�5>�7<6:�4<7L�K:=@<G5N�K3G3M:A5GD�P<64<:�4<7L�7<6:N�@AK�7>EPG:5:�5L:�7<6:�O35L3A�@�6:@4>A@FG:�53E:�=>GG>O3AM�O6355:A�A>537:�@AK�K:E@AK�=6>E�IJ1�Q<7L�5:6E3A@53>A�4L@GG�F:�:==:753H:�@=5:6�6:7:3P5�>=�O6355:A�A>537:�=6>E�IJ�5>�5L:�234563751�/01\� ]==:75�>A�̂ 6:_V:6E3A@53>A�Q:6H37:4B�]Z7:P5�@4�3AK37@5:K�3A�5L34�?6537G:N�5:6E3A@53>A�4L@GG�L@H:�A>�:==:75�<P>A�@AD�>=�5L:�63ML54�@AK�>FG3M@53>A4�>=�5L:�@̂653:4�@6343AM�><5�>=�@AD�56@A4@753>A�>77<663AM�P63>6�5>�5L:�:==:753H:�K@5:�>=�4<7L�5:6E3A@53>A1�/01[� I:@43AM�Q:6H37:4�<P>A�V:6E3A@53>AB�C=N�@5�@AD�53E:�3A�5L:�P6>M6:44�>=�P:6=>6E3AM�Q:6H37:4�<AK:6�5L34�?M6::E:A5N�5L:�23456375�K:5:6E3A:4�5L@5�IJ84�Q:6H37:4�4L><GK�F:�5:6E3A@5:KN�5L:�IJN�<P>A�5L:�2345637584�O6355:A�A>537:�>=�4<7L�5:6E3A@53>AN�4L@GG�3EE:K3@5:GD�7:@4:�P6>H3K3AM�Q:6H37:4N�:Z7:P5�5>�56@A4=:6�=3G:4�@4�K36:75:K�FD�5L:�234563751�VL:�23456375�4L@GG�P@D�IJ�>AGD�5L:�=::�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

())*+,(-./�0,-1�-1.�2.34,+.)�53*4,/./�(6/�(553*4./�78�9,)-3,+-�),6+.�-1.�:()-�5(,/�,64*,+.�(6/�;5�-*�-1.�6*-,+.�*<�-.3=,6(-,*6>�?@>A� B3*C.+-�2;)5.6),*6D�E<�-1.�B3*C.+-�,)�);)5.6/./�78�-1.�9,)-3,+-�<*3�=*3.�-1(6�*6.�1;6/3./�(6/�.,F1-8�G?H@I�+*6).+;-,4.�/(8)J�-1.�KL�)1(::�7.�+*=5.6)(-./�<*3�).34,+.)�5.3<*3=./�53,*3�-*�6*-,+.�*<�);+1�);)5.6),*6>�M1.6�-1.�B3*C.+-�,)�3.);=./J�-1.�)+1./;:.�)1(::�7.�(/C;)-./�(6/�-1.�KLN)�+*=5.6)(-,*6�)1(::�7.�.O;,-(7:8�(/C;)-./�-*�53*4,/.�<*3�.P5.6).)�,6+;33./�,6�-1.�3.);=5-,*6�*<�-1.�KLN)�2.34,+.)>�KL�)1(::�=(Q.�.4.38�.<<*3-�-*�=(,6-(,6�-1.�)(=.�B3*C.+-�5.3)*66.:�(<-.3�);)5.6),*6>��RST�UV���W� T����������??>?� X*�-1.�<;3-1.)-�.P-.6-�5.3=,--./�78�K(:,<*36,(�:(0J�KL�)1(::�,6/.=6,<8�(6/�1*:/�<3..�(6/�1(3=:.))�-1.�9,)-3,+-J�,-)�Y*4.36,6F�Z*(3/J�(F.6-)J�3.53.).6-(-,4.)J�*<<,+.3)J�+*6);:-(6-)J�.=5:*8..)J�-3;)-..)J�(6/�4*:;6-..3)�G[-1.�E6/.=6,<,./�B(3-,.)\I�<3*=�(68�(6/�(::�+:(,=)J�/.=(6/)J�+(;).)�*<�(+-,*6J�+*)-)J�.P5.6).)J�:,(7,:,-8J�:*))J�/(=(F.�*3�,6C;38�*<�(68�Q,6/J�,6�:(0�*3�.O;,-8�G[K:(,=\I�-*�-1.�.P-.6-�+(;)./�78�-1.�6.F:,F.6+.J�3.+Q:.))6.))J�*3�0,::<;:�=,)+*6/;+-�*<�-1.�KLJ�,-)�*<<,+.3)J�.=5:*8..)J�);7+*6-3(+-*3)J�+*6);:-(6-)J�*3�(F.6-)J�.P+:;/,6F�0,-1*;-�:,=,-(-,*6J�-1.�5(8=.6-�*<�(::�+*6).O;.6-,(:�/(=(F.)>��KL�)1(::�(:)*J�-*�-1.�<;3-1.)-�.P-.6-�5.3=,--./�78�K(:,<*36,(�:(0J�/.<.6/�-1.�E6/.=6,<,./�B(3-,.)�(-�KLN)�*06�.P5.6).J�,6+:;/,6F�(--*36.8)N�<..)�(6/�+*)-)J�<3*=�(68�(6/�(::�K:(,=G)I�(6/�(::.F(-,*6)�3.:(-,6F�-1.3.-*�0,-1�+*;6).:�(553*4./�78�9,)-3,+-�01.3.�);+1�(553*4(:�,)�6*-�-*�7.�;63.()*6(7:8�0,-11.:/>��??>]� KL�)1(::�5(8�(6/�)(-,)<8�(68�C;/F=.6-J�(0(3/J�*3�/.+3..�-1(-�=(8�7.�3.6/.3./�(F(,6)-�-1.�E6/.=6,<,./�B(3-,.)�,6�(68�K:(,=>�KLN)�*7:,F(-,*6�5;3);(6-�-*�3̂-,+:.�??>?�,6+:;/.)�3.,=7;3),6F�-1.�9,)-3,+-�<*3�-1.�+*)-�*<�(68�).--:.=.6-�5(,/�78�-1.�E6/.=6,<,./�B(3-,.)�(6/�<*3�(68�(6/�(::�<..)�(6/�+*)-)J�,6+:;/,6F�7;-�6*-�:,=,-./�-*J�:.F(:�<..)�(6/�+*)-)J�.P5.3-�0,-6.))�<..)J�(6/�+*6);:-(6-�<..)J�,6+;33./�78�-1.�E6/.=6,<,./�B(3-,.)�,6�-1.�/.<.6).�*<�(68�K:(,=G)IJ�*3�-*�.6<*3+.�-1.�,6/.=6,-8�1.3.,6>�KLN)�*7:,F(-,*6�-*�,6/.=6,<8�)1(::�6*-�7.�3.)-3,+-./�-*�,6);3(6+.�53*+../)>��??>_� 9,)-3,+-�=(8�0,-11*:/�<3*=�(=*;6-)�*0,6F�-*�KL�(68�(6/�(::�+*)-)�-1(-�(3,).�*;-�*<J�5.3-(,6�-*J�*3�3.:(-.�-*�-1.�6.F:,F.6+.J�3.+Q:.))6.))J�*3�0,::<;:�=,)+*6/;+-�*<�-1.�KL>���RST�UV��̀W� �
�����
����
a�������������b�����c��������?]>?� d6(++.5-(7:.�(6/e*3�:*;/�:(6F;(F.�0,::�6*-�7.�-*:.3(-./>�[K(-�+(::)\�*3�*-1.3�/.3*F(-*38�:(6F;(F.�-*0(3/�)-;/.6-)�*3�5;7:,+�0,::�6*-�7.�(::*0./>�?]>]� 93;F)J�(:+*1*:J�(6/�)=*Q,6F�*6�9,)-3,+-�53*5.3-8�(3.�)-3,+-:8�53*1,7,-./>�f*�/3;F)J�(:+*1*:�(6/e*3�)=*Q,6F�(3.�(::*0./�(-�(68�-,=.�,6�(68�7;,:/,6F�(6/e*3�F3*;6/)�*6�9,)-3,+-N)�53*5.3-8>�f*�)-;/.6-)J�)-(<<J�4,),-*3)�*3�+*6-3(+-*3)�(3.�-*�;).�/3;F)�*6�9,)-3,+-N)�53*5.3-8>��



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

����������������� �!""#$""%&�

'()*� +,-.,/01�12�34,5/1620�7248�.851620�9:'(:)(;�1<8�=6.1-651�</.�4818->6084�20�1<8�?/.6.�2@�1<8�.52A8�2@�B8-C658.�60�1<6.�DE-88>801�1</1�7F�/04�61.�.,?5201-/512-.�/04�8>AG2H88.�I6GG�</C8�20GH�G6>6184�5201/51�I61<�A,A6G.)�7F�I6GG�A-2>A1GH�0216@H�1<8�=6.1-651�60�I-6160E�2@�/0H�@/51.�2-�56-5,>.1/058.�I<65<�>6E<1�-8/.20/?GH�G8/4�1<8�=6.1-651�12�4818->608�1</1�5201/51�I6GG�?8�>2-8�1</0�G6>6184)��B<2,G4�1<8-8�?8�>2-8�1</0�G6>6184�5201/51;�7F�.</GG�52>AGH�I61<�1<8�A-2C6.620.�2@�34,5/1620�7248�.851620�9:'(:)'�-8E/-460E�1<8�.,?>6..620�2@�8>AG2H88�@60E8-A-601.�12�1<8�7/G6@2-06/�=8A/-1>801�2@�J,.1658�/04�1<8�52>AG81620�2@�5-6>60/G�?/5KE-2,04�60C8.16E/1620.�2@�61.�8>AG2H88.)�7F�.</GG�021�A8->61�/0H�8>AG2H88�12�</C8�/0H�5201/51�I61<�=6.1-651�A,A6G.�,016G�.,5<�16>8�/.�1<8�7F�</.�C8-6@684�60�I-6160E�12�1<8�E2C8-060E�?2/-4�2@�1<8�=6.1-651�1</1�1<8�8>AG2H88�</.�021�?880�520C65184�2@�/�@8G20H;�/.�48@6084�60�34,5/1620�7248�.851620�9:'(()')�7FL.�-8.A20.6?6G61H�.</GG�8M1804�12�/GG�8>AG2H88.;�/E801.;�/04�8>AG2H88.�2-�/E801.�2@�61.�720.,G1/01.�-8E/-4G8..�2@�I<81<8-�1<2.8�6046C64,/G.�/-8�A/64�2-�,0A/64;�5205,--801GH�8>AG2H84�?H�1<8�=6.1-651;�2-�/5160E�/.�7FL.�6048A804801�5201-/512-.)�7F�.</GG�A-2C648�12�=6.1-651�C8-6@65/1620�2@�52>AG6/058�I61<�1<6.�.851620�?H�.,?>61160E�/0�8M85,184�7-6>60/G�N/5KE-2,04�O0C8.16E/1620�78-16@65/1620�PQR��S���TQUV)�'()9� W2-�/GG�I2-K8-.�20�=6.1-651�A-2A8-1H;�7F�.</GG�52>AGH�I61<�/GG�/AAG65/?G8�@848-/G;�.1/18�/04�G25/G�G/I.�-8E/-460E�7XYO=Z'[;�605G,460E�?,1�021�G6>6184�12�1<8�7=+\L.�B1/18�+,?G65�\8/G1<�X@@658-�X-48-.)���]̂_�̀Q��ab� ]��c
���S��������
	��������������'*)'� d<8�=6.1-651�.</GG�8M/>608�1<8�425,>801.�.,?>61184�?H�1<8�7F�/04�.</GG�-8048-�4856.620.�.2�/.�12�/C264�,0-8/.20/?G8�48G/H�60�1<8�A-258..�2@�1<8�7FL.�B8-C658.)��'*)(� d<8�=6.1-651�.</GG�A-2C648�12�1<8�7F�/.�52>AG818�60@2->/1620�/.�6.�/C/6G/?G8�12�=6.1-651�-8E/-460E�1<8�=6.1-651L.�+-2e851�-8f,6-8>801.)��'*)*� d<8�=6.1-651�.</GG�-81/60�48.6E0�A-2@8..620/GP.V�I<2.8�.8-C658.;�4,168.�/04�-8.A20.6?6G6168.�I6GG�?8�48.5-6?84�60�I-61180�/E-88>801P.V�?81I880�1<8�=6.1-651�/04�48.6E0�A-2@8..620/GP.V)�'*)9� g0G8..�1<8�5201-/51�425,>801.�-8f,6-8�1</1�7201-/512-�A-2C648�/0H�2@�1<8�@2GG2I60E;�1<8�=6.1-651�.</GG;�60�/�16>8GH�>/008-;�/04�I61<�7FL.�/..6.1/058;�.85,-8;�.,?>61�/04�A/H�@2-�0858../-H�/AA-2C/G.;�8/.8>801.;�/..8..>801.;�A8->61.�/04�5</-E8.�-8f,6-84�@2-�1<8�520.1-,51620;�,.8;�2-�255,A/05H�2@�A8->/0801�.1-,51,-8.�2-�@2-�A8->/0801�5</0E8.�60�8M6.160E�@/56G6168.;�.,?e851�12�7FL.�/04h2-�1<8�=8.6E0�d8/>L.�4,168.�12�-852>>804�2-�A-2C648�./>8)��'*):� d<8�=6.1-651;�61.�-8A-8.801/16C8.;�/04�520.,G1/01.�.</GG�52>>,065/18�I61<�1<8�7201-/512-�861<8-�46-851GH�2-�1<-2,E<�1<8�7F)�'*)i� d<8�=6.1-651�.</GG�48.6E0/18�/0�2@@658-;�8>AG2H88�/04h2-�21<8-�/,1<2-6j84�-8A-8.801/16C8.�12�/51�20�1<8�=6.1-651L.�?8</G@�I61<�-8.A851�12�1<8�+-2e851)�d<8�=6.1-651L.�+-2e851�-8A-8.801/16C8�.</GG�?8�/C/6G/?G8�4,-60E�I2-K60E�<2,-.�/04�/.�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

()*+,)-+.*�/,012-+�,23,2*24+5+)62�*7588�92�565)85982�:;,)4<�=0,>)4<�70;,*�54:�5*�0?+24�5*�@5A�92�,2B;),2:�+0�,24:2,�:2-)*)04*�54:�+0�?;,4)*7�)4?0,@5+)04�)4�5�+)@28A�@5442,C��DEF�GH��IJ� G��K������
	����������LMCL� N+72,�+754�5*�3,06):2:�)4�+7)*�O<,22@24+P�()*+,)-+.*�098)<5+)04*�;4:2,�+7)*�O<,22@24+�*7588�92�8)@)+2:�+0�+72�35A@24+�0?�+72�-0@324*5+)04�5*�3,06):2:�)4�+7)*�O<,22@24+C�Q0+=)+7*+54:)4<�54A�0+72,�3,06)*)04�0?�+7)*�O<,22@24+P�)4�40�2624+�*7588�()*+,)-+�0,�RS�92�8)5982�+0�+72�0+72,P�,2<5,:82**�0?�=72+72,�54A�-85)@�)*�95*2:�04�-04+,5-+�0,�+0,+P�?0,�54A�*32-)58P�-04*2B;24+)58P�)4:),2-+�0,�)4-):24+58�:5@5<2*P�)4-8;:)4<�9;+�40+�8)@)+2:�+0P�80*+�3,0?)+*�0,�,2624;2P�5,)*)4<�0;+�0?�0,�)4�-0442-+)04�=)+7�+7)*�O<,22@24+�?0,�+72�*2,6)-2*�32,?0,@2:�)4�-0442-+)04�=)+7�+7)*�O<,22@24+C���LMCT� RS�*7588�35A�+0�()*+,)-+�54A�54:�588�-0*+*�)4-;,,2:�9A�()*+,)-+P�0,�?0,�=7)-7�()*+,)-+�@5A�92-0@2�8)5982P�+0�+72�2U+24+�-5;*2:�9A�42<8)<24+�:285A*P�5-+*P�0,�0@)**)04*�0?�RS�)4�)+*�32,?0,@54-2�0?�)+*�V2,6)-2*C��LMCW� ()*+,)-+�*7588�40+�92�,2*304*)982�?0,�54A�:5@5<2�+0�32,*04*�0,�3,032,+A�5*�5�,2*;8+�0?�+72�;*2P�@)*;*2�0,�?5)8;,2�0?�54A�2B;)3@24+�;*2:�9A�RSP�0,�9A�)+*�2@380A22*P�2624�+70;<7�*;-7�2B;)3@24+�92�?;,4)*72:�0,�80542:�+0�RS�9A�()*+,)-+C��LMCM� RS�72,29A�=5)62*�54A�54:�588�-85)@X*Y�?0,�,2-062,A�?,0@�+72�()*+,)-+�;4:2,�+7)*�O<,22@24+P�=7)-7�80**�0,�:5@5<2�)*�-062,2:�9A�658):�54:�-0882-+)982�)4*;,54-2�308)-)2*C�RS�5<,22*�+0�7562�)+*�,2B;),2:�)4*;,54-2�308)-)2*�24:0,*2:�+0�3,2624+�+72�)4658):5+)04�0?�)4*;,54-2�-062,5<2*�9A�,25*04�0?�+7)*�=5)62,C�Z7)*�=5)62,�*7588�2U+24:�+0�-85)@*�35):P�0,�2U324*2*�)4-;,,2:P�9A�RS.*�)4*;,54-2�-0@354A�04�+72�()*+,)-+.*�92758?C��DEF�GH��[J� F���������L\CL� RS�*7588�3,0-;,2P�3,)0,�+0�-0@@24-2@24+�0?�V2,6)-2*P�54:�=)88�@5)4+5)4�?0,�+72�:;,5+)04�0?�+72�O<,22@24+�)4*;,54-2�5<5)4*+�-85)@*�?0,�)41;,)2*�+0�32,*04*�0,�:5@5<2*�+0�3,032,+A�=7)-7�@5A�5,)*2�?,0@�0,�)4�-0442-+)04�=)+7�+72�32,?0,@54-2�0?�+72�=0,>�72,2;4:2,�9A�+72�RSP�+72),�5<24+*P�,23,2*24+5+)62*P�2@380A22*�54:�*;9]-04*;8+54+X*YC�RS.*�8)59)8)+)2*P�)4-8;:)4<�9;+�40+�8)@)+2:�+0P�RS.*�)4:2@4)+A�0,�:2?24*2�098)<5+)04*�;4:2,�+7)*�O<,22@24+P�*7588�40+�92�:22@2:�8)@)+2:�)4�54A�=5A�+0�+72�)4*;,54-2�-062,5<2�,2B;),2:�72,2)4C�S5)4+2454-2�0?�*32-)?)2:�)4*;,54-2�-062,5<2�)*�5�@5+2,)58�282@24+�0?�+7)*�O<,22@24+�54:�RS.*�?5)8;,2�+0�@5)4+5)4�0,�,242=�-062,5<2�0,�+0�3,06):2�26):24-2�0?�,242=58�:;,)4<�+72�+2,@�0?�+7)*�O<,22@24+P�5*�,2B;),2:�0,�=724�,2B;2*+2:P�@5A�92�+,25+2:�9A�+72�()*+,)-+P�*;912-+�+0�)+*�*082�:)*-,2+)04P�5*�5�@5+2,)58�9,25-7�0?�-04+,5-+C�L\CT� ���������
̂������G������
	�F�������_�R062,5<2�*7588�92�5+�825*+�5*�9,05:�5*�+72�?0880=)4<�*-032*�54:�8)@)+*_�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

()*+,-�*(.)/+01023�0245/6-�*2(�7)(08*9�:*67)2+1�*/01023�;/<7�+,)�:)/;</7*28)�<;�*26�:</+0<2�<;�+,)�=)/.08)1>�?;�@<77)/80*9�A)2)/*9�B0*C090+6�</�<+,)/�;</7�D0+,�*�3)2)/*9�*33/)3*+)�9070+�01�51)(-�)0+,)/�+,)�3)2)/*9�*33/)3*+)�9070+�1,*99�*::96�1):*/*+)96�+<�+,01�E/<4)8+F9<8*+0<2�</�+,)�3)2)/*9�*33/)3*+)�9070+�1,*99�C)�+D08)�+,)�/)G50/)(�<885//)28)�9070+>��HI>J>J� �
�����������
�
K����L��K�����M�������
>�ND<�70990<2�(<99*/1�OPJ-QQQ-QQQR�:)/�<885//)28)>�HI>J>S� T
�U���V��
�W������
�>�=+*+5+</6�9070+1�/)G50/)(�C6�+,)�=+*+)�<;�@*90;</20*>�X</�*99�<;�+,)�@YZ1�)7:9<6))1�D,<�*/)�15C4)8+�+<�+,01�[3/))7)2+�*2(�+<�+,)�)\+)2+�/)G50/)(�C6�+,)�*::908*C9)�1+*+)�</�;)()/*9�9*D-�@Y�1,*99�])):�02�;599�;</8)�*2(�);;)8+-�*�̂ </])/1_�@<7:)21*+0<2�:<9086>�@Y�1,*99�:/<.0()�*2�)2(</1)7)2+�+,*+�+,)�0215/)/�D*0.)1�+,)�/03,+�<;�15C/<3*+0<2�*3*021+�+,)�̀01+/08+�*2(�0+1�/)1:)8+0.)�)9)8+)(�<;;080*91-�<;;08)/1-�)7:9<6))1-�*3)2+1-�/):/)1)2+*+0.)1-�8<2159+*2+1-�+/51+))1-�*2(�.<952+))/1>�HI>J>a� b�W�
���V��L��K�����c�d2)�70990<2�(<99*/1�OPH-QQQ-QQQR�:)/�*880()2+�;</�C<(096�0245/6�</�(01)*1)>�X</�*99�<;�+,)�@YZ1�)7:9<6))1�D,<�*/)�15C4)8+�+<�+,01�[3/))7)2+-�@Y�1,*99�])):�02�;599�;</8)�*2(�);;)8+-�*2�e7:9<6)/1Z�B0*C090+6�:<9086>�N,*+�:<9086�1,*99�:/<.0()�)7:9<6)/1Z�90*C090+6�8<.)/*3)�D0+,�7020757�90*C090+6�8<.)/*3)�<;�ND<�70990<2�(<99*/1�OPJ-QQQ-QQQR�:)/�<885//)28)>�@Y�1,*99�:/<.0()�*2�)2(</1)7)2+�+,*+�+,)�0215/)/�D*0.)1�+,)�/03,+�<;�15C/<3*+0<2�*3*021+�+,)�̀01+/08+�*2(�0+1�/)1:)8+0.)�)9)8+)(�<;;080*91-�<;;08)/1-�)7:9<6))1-�*3)2+1-�/):/)1)2+*+0.)1-�8<2159+*2+1-�+/51+))1-�*2(�.<952+))/1>��HI>J>I� ��
	����
����L��K�����>�N,01�0215/*28)�1,*99�8<.)/�+,)�@Y�*2(�0+1�15Cf8<2159+*2+O1R-�0;�*26-�;</�+D<�70990<2�(<99*/1�OPJ-QQQ-QQQR�*33/)3*+)�9070+�15C4)8+�+<�2<�89*07�()(58+0C9)-�8<.)/*3)�+<�8<2+025)�+,/<53,�8<7:9)+0<2�<;�8<21+/58+0<2�:951�+D<�6)*/1�+,)/)*;+)/>�N,)�:<9086�751+�8<2+*02�+)/71�</�)2(</1)7)2+1�)\+)2(023�8<.)/*3)�+,*+�/)G50/)1�+,)�0215/)/�+<�();)2(�*2(�02()720;6�;</�*8+1�D,08,�,*::)2�C);</)�+,)�);;)8+0.)�(*+)�<;�+,)�:<9086�:/<.0()(�+,)�89*07�01�;0/1+�7*()�(5/023�+,)�:<9086�:)/0<(>�HI>S� N,)�̀01+/08+�/)1)/.)1�+,)�/03,+�+<�7<(0;6�+,)�9070+1�*2(�8<.)/*3)1�()18/0C)(�,)/)02-�D0+,�*::/<:/0*+)�8/)(0+1�</�8,*/3)1�+<�C)�2)3<+0*+)(�;</�158,�8,*23)1>��HI>a� ������K�����������	gh������i������
�j�[26�()(58+0C9)1�</�1)9;f0215/)(�/)+)2+0<2�)\8))(023�ND)2+6fX0.)�N,<51*2(�̀<99*/1�OPJI-QQQR�751+�C)�()89*/)(�+<�*2(�*::/<.)(�C6�+,)�̀01+/08+>�[+�+,)�<:+0<2�<;�+,)�̀01+/08+-�)0+,)/j��HI>a>H� N,)�̀01+/08+�8*2�*88):+�+,)�,03,)/�()(58+0C9)k�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

()*+*,� -./0�1203454�06788�4593:5�;4�581<127=5�03:6�9593:=1>850�;4�058?@1203459�45=52=1;2�70�450A5:=0�=65�B10=41:=C�1=0�;??1:540C�;??1:1780C�5<A8;D550�729�E;832=5540F�;4��()*+*G� -.�06788�A4;:345�7�>;29�H37472=5512H�A7D<52=�;?�8;0050�729�4587=59�12E50=1H7=1;20C�:871<�79<1210=47=1;2�729�95?5205�5IA52050*��()*)� J�����K����������
����
��L�M65�H525478�817>181=D�729�73=;<;>185�817>181=D�A;81:150�745�=;�:;2=712C�;4�>5�529;4059�=;�:;2=712C�=65�?;88;N12H�A4;E101;20L��()*)*(� O88�A;81:150�5I:5A=�?;4�=65�N;4P54/0�:;<A5207=1;2C�5<A8;D54/0�817>181=D�729�A4;?5001;278�817>181=D�1203472:5�A;81:D�06788�>5�N41==52�;2�72�;::34452:5�?;4<*�()*)*,� M65�B10=41:=C�1=0�45A45052=7=1E50C�:;2038=72=0C�=430=550C�;??1:540C�;??1:1780C�5<A8;D550C�7H52=0C�729�E;832=5540�QRO991=1;278�S2034590TU�745�=;�>5�:;E5459�70�7991=1;278�12034590�70�450A5:=0�817>181=D�741012H�;3=�;?�7:=1E1=150�A54?;4<59�>D�;4�;2�>5678?�;?�=65�-.F�S20=43<52=0�;?�V54E1:5�729�:;<A85=59�;A547=1;20�;?�=65�-.F�A45<1050�;N259C�;::3A159�;4�3059�>D�=65�-.F�;4�73=;<;>1850�;N259C�857059C�61459�;4�>;44;N59�>D�=65�-.*�M65�:;E547H5�06788�:;2=712�2;�0A5:178�81<1=7=1;20�;2�=65�0:;A5�;?�A4;=5:=1;2�7??;4959�=;�=65�O991=1;278�S2034590*�O88�529;405<52=0�06788�N71E5�72D�41H6=�=;�03>4;H7=1;2�7H7120=�72D�;?�=65�O991=1;278�S2034590*��()*)*G� O2D�?718345�=;�:;<A8D�N1=6�45A;4=12H�;4�;=654�A4;E101;20�;?�=65�A;81:150�12:83912H�>457:650�;?�N74472=150�06788�2;=�7??5:=�:;E547H5�A4;E1959�=;�=65�O991=1;278�S2034590*��()*)*+� -.�06788�A7D�788�1203472:5�A45<13<0C�12:83912H�72D�:674H50�?;4�45W31459�N71E540�;?�03>4;H7=1;2�;4�=65�529;405<52=�;?�7991=1;278�12034590*�S?�-.�?7180�=;�<712=712�1203472:5C�B10=41:=�<7D�=7P5�;3=�:;<A747>85�1203472:5C�729�9593:=�729�45=712�7<;32=�;?�A45<13<�?4;<�72D�03<0�935�-.�32954�=65�OH455<52=*�()*)*)� M65�-./0�1203472:5�06788�7AA8D�05A747=58D�=;�57:6�1203459�7H7120=�N6;<�:871<�10�<795�;4�031=�10�>4;3H6=C�5I:5A=�N1=6�450A5:=�=;�=65�81<1=0�;?�=65�1203454/0�817>181=D*��()*)*X� Y7:6�1203472:5�A;81:D�45W31459�>D�=610�:87305�06788�>5�529;4059�=;�0=7=5�=67=�:;E547H5�06788�2;=�>5�:72:5859C�2;=�4525N59C�;4�<7=54178�:672H5�12�:;E547H5�5I:5A=�7?=54�=614=D�QGZU�97D0�A41;4�N41==52�2;=1:5�>D�:54=1?159�<718C�45=342�45:51A=�45W350=59C�670�>552�H1E52�=;�=65�B10=41:=*��()*)*[� -./0�1203472:5�:;E547H5�06788�>5�A41<74D�729�2;2@:;2=41>3=;4D�1203472:5�70�450A5:=0�=65�O991=1;278�S2034590�N1=6�450A5:=�=;�72D�:871<0�4587=59�=;C�741012H�;3=�;?C�;4�:;225:=59�N1=6�=65�\4;]5:=*�O2D�1203472:5�;4�058?@1203472:5�<712=71259�>D�=65�O991=1;278�S2034590�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

()*++�,-�./�-01-((�23�4)-�567(�./(89*/1-�*/:�()*++�/24�12/49.,84-�;.4)�.4<��=><><?� 52/(49814.2/�6*/*@-9�()*++�A92B.:-�*/�-/:29(-C-/4�4)*4�4)-�./(89-9�;*.B-(�4)-�9.@)4�23�(8,92@*4.2/�*@*./(4�4)-�D.(49.14�*/:�.4(�9-(A-14.B-�-+-14-:�233.1.*+(E�233.1-9(E�-CA+2F--(E�*@-/4(E�9-A9-(-/4*4.B-(E�12/(8+4*/4(E�498(4--(E�*/:�B2+8/4--9(<�=><><G� 56�()*++�9-H8.9-�*++�(8,12/(8+4*/4(�42�C*./4*./�4)-�+-B-+�23�./(89*/1-�56�:--C(�*AA92A9.*4-�;.4)�9-(A-14�42�4)-�12/(8+4*/47(�(12A-�23�4)-�I29J�8/+-((�24)-9;.(-�./:.1*4-:�./�4)-�K@9--C-/4<�56�()*++�1*8(-�4)-�(8,12/(8+4*/4(�42�389/.()�A9223�4)-9-23�42�D.(49.14�;.4)./�4-/�L=MN�:*F(�23�D.(49.147(�9-H8-(4<�O)28+:�56�/24�9-H8.9-�(8,12/(8+4*/4(�42�A92B.:-�4)-�(*C-�+-B-+�23�./(89*/1-�*(�.(�9-H8.9-:�23�56E�*(�A92B.:-:�./�4).(�K@9--C-/4E�56�.(�/24�9-+.-B-:�23�.4(�./:-C/.4F�2,+.@*4.2/(�42�D.(49.14�29�38+3.++./@�.4(�./(89*/1-�9-H8.9-C-/4(�*(�A92B.:-:�./�4).(�K@9--C-/4<�=><><=M� P3�56�/29C*++F�1*99.-(�./(89*/1-�./�*/�*C28/4�@9-*4-9�4)*/�4)-�C./.C8C�*C28/4(�9-H8.9-:�)-9-./E�4)*4�@9-*4-9�*C28/4�()*++�,-12C-�4)-�C./.C8C�9-H8.9-:�*C28/4�23�./(89*/1-�329�A89A2(-(�23�4)-�K@9--C-/4<�Q)-9-329-E�56�)-9-,F�*1J/2;+-:@-(�*/:�*@9--(�4)*4�*++�./(89*/1-�1*99.-:�,F�.4�()*++�,-�:--C-:�+.*,.+.4F�12B-9*@-�329�*++�*14.2/(�.4�A-9329C(�./�12//-14.2/�;.4)�4)-�K@9--C-/4<�=><R� ����S��T������
	�U������V�P/(89*/1-�.(�42�,-�A+*1-:�;.4)�./(89-9(�*:C.44-:�./�5*+.329/.*�;.4)�*�1899-/4�K<6<�W-(4X(�9*4./@�23�/2�+-((�4)*/�KVYPP<�56�()*++�./329C�4)-�D.(49.14�./�;9.4./@�.3�*/F�23�.4(�./(89-9L(N�)*B-�*/�K<6<�W-(47(�9*4./@�+-((�4)*/�KVYPP<�K4�4)-�2A4.2/�23�4)-�D.(49.14E�4)-�D.(49.14�C*F�-.4)-9V�=><R<=� K11-A4�4)-�+2;-9�9*4./@Z�29�=><R<[� \-H8.9-�56�42�A92189-�./(89*/1-�392C�*/24)-9�./(89-9<�=><]� �̂��	�����
��
	��
������V�_9.29�42�12CC-/1./@�;.4)�.4(�A92B.(.2/�23�O-9B.1-(�8/:-9�4).(�K@9--C-/4E�,84�/2�+*4-9�4)*/�4)9--�L̀N�1*+-/:*9�*34-9�4)-�a24.1-�23�K;*9:E�56�()*++�389/.()�4)-�D.(49.14�;.4)V��=><]<=� 5-94.3.1*4-(�23�./(89*/1-�()2;./@�C*./4-/*/1-�23�4)-�9-H8.9-:�./(89*/1-�12B-9*@-Z��=><]<[� b9.@./*+�-/:29(-C-/4(�*33-14./@�12B-9*@-<�Q)-�-/:29(-C-/4(�*9-�42�,-�(.@/-:�,F�*�A-9(2/�*84)29.c-:�,F�4)*4�./(89-9�42�,./:�12B-9*@-�2/�.4(�,-)*+3<�K++�-/:29(-C-/4(�*9-�42�,-�9-1-.B-:�*/:�*AA92B-:�,F�4)-�D.(49.14�,-329-�;29J�12CC-/1-(<��=><?� �
S��
	�U���������
����d���ef�gA2/�4)-�D.(49.147(�9-H8-(4E�56�;.++�389/.()�D.(49.14�;.4)�*�12AF�23�*++�./(89*/1-�A2+.1.-(�9-+*4-:�42�.4(�A92B.(.2/�23�O-9B.1-(�8/:-9�4).(�K@9--C-/4<�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

�()*�+,���-� .
�������������
��/0�123445�67�879:;<�=>6?�6?4�:37@>5>7A5�7B�6?4�/1;>B73A>1�C1>3�D9:;7<94A6�1AE�F7G5>A2�H86�15�546�B736?�>A�:136�IJK�7B�E>@>5>7A�L�7B�6?4�/1;>B73A>1�M7@43A94A6�/7E4N�87994A8>A2�16�5486>7A�OIPQQR�6?4�C4E431;�/>@>;�S>2?65�H86�7B�OPTUN�15�546�B736?�>A�VGW;>8�X1=�KKYLZIN�1AE�1;;�194AE94A65�6?43467R�D[48G6>@4�\3E43�OOIUTR�1AE�1;;�1E9>A>56316>@4�3G;45�1AE�342G;16>7A5�B7GAE�67�W4�1::;>81W;4�67�/7A5G;61A6�1AE�1;;�7B�>65�5GW87A63186735J�]A�1EE>6>7AN�/7A5G;61A6�123445�67�34̂G>34�;>_4�879:;>1A84�W<�1;;�7B�>65�5GW87A6318673̀5aJ���()*�+,��b-� �
����������������
���������c����/0�=1331A65�6?16�>6�?15�A76�49:;7<4E�73�3461>A4E�1A<�879:1A<�73�:4357AN�76?43�6?1A�1�W7A1�B>E4�49:;7<44�=73_>A2�57;4;<�B73�6?4�/0N�67�57;>8>6�73�548G34�6?>5�H234494A6N�1AE�6?16�>6�?15�A76�:1>E�73�12344E�67�:1<�1A<�879:1A<�73�:4357AN�76?43�6?1A�1�W7A1�B>E4�49:;7<44�=73_>A2�57;4;<�B73�6?4�/0N�1A<�B44N�8799>55>7AN�:4384A6124N�W37_43124�B44N�2>B6N�73�1A<�76?43�87A5>E4316>7A�87A6>A24A6�7A�73�345G;6>A2�B379�6?4�1=13E�73�91_>A2�7B�6?>5�H234494A6J�C73�W3418?�73�@>7;16>7A�7B�6?>5�=1331A6<N�6?4�d>563>86�5?1;;�?1@4�6?4�3>2?6�67�1AAG;�6?>5�H234494A6�=>6?7G6�;>1W>;>6<N�73�>A�>65�E>58346>7AN�67�E4EG86�B379�6?4�87A63186�:3>84�73�87A5>E4316>7A�73�76?43=>54�3487@43�6?4�BG;;�197GA6�7B�5G8?�B44N�8799>55>7AN�:4384A6124�B44N�2>B6N�73�87A6>A24A8<J��()*�+,��e-� ,���������������f�
��	�����
��g?>5�H234494A6N�>A8;GE>A2�6?4�D[?>W>65�?43467N�5G:4354E45�1;;�:34@>7G5�87A631865�1AE�87A56>6G645�6?4�4A6>34�GAE43561AE>A2�7B�6?4�V136>45�?43467J�/0�5?1;;�W4�4A6>6;4E�67�A7�W4A4B>6�76?43�6?1A�6?754�5:48>B>4E�?434>AJ�h7�8?1A245N�194AE94A65�73�1;64316>7A5�5?1;;�W4�4BB486>@4�GA;455�>A�=3>6>A2�1AE�5>2A4E�W<�W76?�V136>45J�/0�5:48>B>81;;<�18_A7=;4E245�6?16�>A�4A643>A2�>A67�6?>5�H234494A6N�/0�34;>45�57;4;<�G:7A�6?4�:37@>5>7A5�87A61>A4E�>A�6?>5�H234494A6�1AE�A7�76?435J��()*�+,��i-� .
�j�����������
	�����������g?>5�H234494A6�>5�>A64AE4E�67�548G34�6?4�/0k5�5:48>1;>l4E�543@>845J�/0�91<�A76�155>2AN�631A5B43N�E4;42164�73�5GW;46�1A<�>A643456�6?434>A�=>6?7G6�6?4�d>563>86k5�:3>73�=3>664A�87A54A6J�HA<�155>2A94A6N�631A5B43N�E4;4216>7A�73�5GW;4154�=>6?7G6�6?4�d>563>86k5�:3>73�=3>664A�87A54A6�5?1;;�W4�87A5>E434E�AG;;�1AE�@7>EJ���()*�+,�mn-� +�op�q����IQJO� g?>5�H234494A6�?15�W44A�4[48G64E�1AE�E4;>@434E�>A�6?4�r6164�7B�/1;>B73A>1�1AE�6?4�@1;>E>6<N�4AB73841W>;>6<�1AE�>A643:34616>7A�7B�1A<�7B�6?4�8;1G545�7B�6?>5�H234494A6�5?1;;�W4�E46439>A4E�1AE�27@43A4E�W<�6?4�;1=5�7B�6?4�r6164�7B�/1;>B73A>1J��IQJI� g7�6?4�BG;;456�4[64A6�:439>664E�W<�/1;>B73A>1�;1=N�r183194A67�/7GA6<�5?1;;�W4�6?4�@4AG4�B73�1A<�186>7A�73�:37844E>A2�6?16�91<�W4�W37G2?6�73�13>54�7G6�7BN�>A�87AA486>7A�=>6?�73�W<�34157A�7B�6?>5�H234494A6J���()*�+,�m�-� ���������������s���(��
���
��



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

()*)� +,,�-,./012�3/145671�89�-8:698;791/71�.9/1/:<�856�8=2�89�/:�97,.6/8:�68�6>7�/:6794976.6/8:2�.44,/-.6/8:�89�7:=89-707:6�8=�6>/1�+<97707:6�0.?�@7�37-/373�6>985<>�073/.6/8:�.1�6>7�=/916�076>83�8=�9718,56/8:*�A86/-7�8=�6>7�370.:3�=89�073/.6/8:�8=�.�3/14567�1>.,,�@7�=/,73�/:�B9/6/:<�B/6>�6>7�86>79�4.96?�68�6>7�+<97707:6*�C>7�370.:3�=89�073/.6/8:�1>.,,�@7�0.37�B/6>/:�.�97.18:.@,7�6/07�.=679�B9/667:�:86/-7�8=�6>7�3/14567�>.1�@77:�498;/373�68�6>7�86>79�4.96?2�@56�/:�:8�-.17�,8:<79�6>.:�:/:76?�DEFG�3.?1�.=679�/:/6/.,�B9/667:�:86/-7*��()*(� H=�.�-,./02�89�.:?�4896/8:�6>7978=2�970./:1�/:�3/14567�548:�1.6/1=.-6/8:�8=�.,,�.44,/-.@,7�3/14567�9718,56/8:�97I5/9707:612�6>7�J8:15,6.:6�1>.,,�-804,?�B/6>�.,,�-,./01�49717:6.6/8:�97I5/9707:61�.1�498;/373�/:�J>.4679�)�D-8007:-/:<�B/6>�17-6/8:�EFFG�.:3�J>.4679�(�D-8007:-/:<�B/6>�17-6/8:�E)FG�8=�K.96�L�8=�M/;/1/8:�L*N�8=�C/6,7�)�8=�O8;79:07:6�J837�.1�.�-8:3/6/8:�497-737:6�68�6>7�J8:15,6.:6P1�9/<>6�68�@9/:<�.�-/;/,�.-6/8:�.<./:16�6>7�M/169/-6*�Q89�45948171�8=�6>817�498;/1/8:12�6>7�95::/:<�8=�6>7�6/07�B/6>/:�B>/->�.�-,./0�0516�@7�49717:673�68�6>7�M/169/-6�1>.,,�@7�68,,73�=980�6>7�6/07�6>7�J8:15,6.:6�15@0/61�/61�B9/667:�-,./0�5:6/,�6>7�6/07�6>7�-,./0�/1�37:/732�/:-,53/:<�.:?�6/07�56/,/R73�@?�.:?�.44,/-.@,7�0776�.:3�-8:=79�498-711*��()*L� A86B/6>16.:3/:<�.:?�3/1456712�-,./01�89�86>79�3/1.<97707:61�@76B77:�6>7�JS�.:3�6>7�M/169/-62�JS�1>.,,�-8:6/:57�68�498;/37�.:3�479=890�T79;/-71�>7975:379�47:3/:<�.�15@17I57:6�9718,56/8:�8=�15->�3/145671*���UVW�XY�ZZ[� V
������
	��������JS�.<9771�68�68,,�.,,�16.65671�8=�,/0/6.6/8:1�=89�M/169/-6P1�.11796/8:�8=�-,./01�.<./:16�JS�6>.6�.9/17�856�8=2�4796./:�682�89�97,.67�68�J8:69.-6891P�89�15@-8:69.-6891P�-,./01�.<./:16�M/169/-6�/:;8,;/:<�JSP1�B89\2�5:6/,�6>7�J8:69.-6891P�89�15@-8:69.-6891P�-,./01�.97�=/:.,,?�9718,;73*��UVW�XY�Z][� ������̂������H=�.:?�67902�-8;7:.:62�-8:3/6/8:�89�498;/1/8:�8=�6>/1�+<97707:6�/1�>7,3�@?�.�-8596�8=�-804767:6�_59/13/-6/8:�68�@7�/:;.,/32�;8/3�89�5:7:=89-7.@,72�6>7�970./:379�8=�6>7�498;/1/8:1�>7978=�1>.,,�970./:�/:�=5,,�=89-7�.:3�7==7-6�.:3�1>.,,�/:�:8�B.?�@7�.==7-6732�/04./973�89�/:;.,/3.673�6>797@?*��UVW�XY�Z̀[� Y�a�
������������(b*)� JS�1>.,,2�359/:<�6>7�7:6/97�6790�8=�+<97707:62�@7�-8:169573�68�@7�.:�/:3747:37:6�-8:69.-689�.:3�:86>/:<�/:�6>/1�+<97707:6�/1�/:67:373�:89�1>.,,�/6�@7�-8:169573�68�-97.67�.:�704,8?79c704,8?77�97,.6/8:1>/42�.�_8/:6�;7:6597�97,.6/8:1>/42�89�68�.,,8B�M/169/-6�68�7d79-/17�3/1-976/8:�89�-8:698,�8;79�6>7�498=711/8:.,�0.::79�/:�B>/->�JS�479=8901�6>7�T79;/-71�B>/->�.97�6>7�15@_7-6�0.6679�8=�6>/1�+<97707:6e�498;/373�.,B.?12�>8B7;792�6>.6�6>7�T79;/-71�68�@7�498;/373�@?�JS�1>.,,�@7�498;/373�/:�.�0.::79�-8:1/167:6�B/6>�.,,�.44,/-.@,7�16.:3.931�.:3�97<5,.6/8:1�<8;79:/:<�15->�T79;/-71*��(b*(� JS�5:37916.:31�.:3�.<9771�6>.6�JSP1�47918::7,�.97�:86�.:3�B/,,�:86�@7�7,/</@,7�=89f�070@791>/4�/:2�89�68�97-7/;7�.:?�@7:7=/61�=9802�.:?�M/169/-6�<9854�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

()*+�,-.�/-0(12*)3�04.516*)�-.�78916*)�1+04.*+68:�787;8.0/1(�1+�*+<�=102.162�.821.878+2�(.-5.*7:�(*19�>*6*21-+3�(*19�016?�)8*>8�-.�-2/8.�)8*>83�@12/�-.�@12/-42�(*<:�-.�*+<�-2/8.�;8+8,120�@/16/�*66.48�2-�*�=102.162�87()-<88A�BCAD� E/-4)9�=102.1623�1+�120�9106.821-+3�-.�*�.8)8>*+2�2*F1+5�*42/-.12<�046/�*0�2/8�G+28.+*)�H8>8+48�E8.>168�-.�2/8�E2*28�I7()-<78+2�=8>8)-(78+2�=8(*.278+23�-.�;-2/3�9828.71+8�2/*2�JK�-.�*+<�87()-<88�-,�JK�10�*+�87()-<88�-,�=102.162�,-.�(4.(-080�-,�6-))8621-+�-,�*+<�87()-<78+2�2*F803�2/8�*7-4+20�(*<*;)8�4+98.�2/10�L5.8878+2�0/*))�;8�.894689�;<�*7-4+20�8M4*)�2-�;-2/�2/8�87()-<88�*+9�87()-<8.�(-.21-+0�-,�2/8�2*F�948�N*+9�-,,08221+5�*+<�6.89120�,-.�*7-4+20�*).8*9<�(*19�;<�JK�@/16/�6*+�;8�*(()189�*5*1+02�2/10�)1*;1)12<OA�=102.162�0/*))�2/8+�,-.@*.9�2/-08�*7-4+20�2-�2/8�.8)8>*+2�2*F1+5�*42/-.12<A�BCAC� E/-4)9�*�.8)8>*+2�2*F1+5�*42/-.12<�9828.71+8�*�)1*;1)12<�,-.�(*02�08.>1680�(8.,-.789�;<�JK�,-.�=102.1623�4(-+�+-21,16*21-+�-,�046/�,*62�;<�=102.1623�JK�0/*))�(.-7(2)<�.8712�2/8�*7-4+2�948�-.�*..*+58�@12/�=102.162�2-�/*>8�2/8�*7-4+2�948�@12//8)9�,.-7�,424.8�(*<78+20�2-�JK�4+98.�2/10�L5.8878+2�N*5*1+3�-,,08221+5�*+<�*7-4+20�*).8*9<�(*19�;<�JK�@/16/�6*+�;8�*(()189�*0�*�6.8912�*5*1+02�2/*2�)1*;1)12<OA�BCAP� L�9828.71+*21-+�-,�87()-<78+2�02*240�(4.04*+2�2-�2/8�(.86891+5�2@-�(*.*5.*(/0�0/*))�;8�0-)8)<�,-.�2/8�(4.(-080�-,�2/8�(*.2164)*.�2*F�1+�M48021-+3�*+9�,-.�*))�-2/8.�(4.(-080�-,�2/10�L5.8878+23�JK�0/*))�+-2�;8�6-+0198.89�*+�87()-<88�-,�=102.162A�Q-2@12/02*+91+5�2/8�,-.85-1+53�0/-4)9�*+<�6-4.23�*.;12.*2-.3�-.�*971+102.*21>8�*42/-.12<�9828.71+8�JK�10�*+�87()-<88�,-.�*+<�-2/8.�(4.(-083�2/8+�JK�*5.880�2-�*�.894621-+�1+�=102.162R0�)1*;1)12<�.804)21+5�,.-7�2/10�L5.8878+2�(4.04*+2�2-�(.1+61()80�0171)*.�2-�2/-08�02*289�1+�2/8�,-.85-1+5�(*.*5.*(/0�0-�2/*2�2/8�2-2*)�8F(8+080�-,�=102.162�4+98.�2/10�L5.8878+2�0/*))�+-2�;8�5.8*28.�2/*+�2/8<�@-4)9�/*>8�;88+�/*9�2/8�6-4.23�*.;12.*2-.3�-.�*971+102.*21>8�*42/-.12<�9828.71+89�JK�@*0�+-2�*+�87()-<88A�BCAS� Q-2/1+5�1+�2/10�L5.8878+2�0/*))�-(8.*28�2-�6-+,8.�.15/20�-.�;8+8,120�-+�(8.0-+0�-.�8+212180�+-2�*�(*.2<�2-�2/10�L5.8878+2A��TUV�WX�YZ[� \��������
	����BPA]� JK�@*..*+20�2/*2�JK�10�(.-(8.)<�)168+089�*+9̂-.�68.21,189�4+98.�2/8�)*@0�*+9�.854)*21-+0�-,�2/8�E2*28�-,�J*)1,-.+1*�2-�(.->198�2/8�E8.>1680�2/*2�12�/*0�/8.81+�*5.889�2-�(8.,-.7A�JK�,4.2/8.�@*..*+20�2/*2�*))�-,�2/8�@-.?�JK�(8.,-.70�4+98.�2/10�L5.8878+2�0/*))�6-7()<�@12/�*))�*(()16*;)8�)*@03�.4)803�.854)*21-+0�*+9�6-980�-,�2/8�_+1289�E2*280�*+9�2/8�E2*28�-,�J*)1,-.+1*A�JK�*)0-�@*..*+20�2/*2�12�0/*))�6-7()<�@12/�*))�*(()16*;)8�-.91+*+6803�.854)*21-+03�*+9�.80-)421-+0�-,�E*6.*78+2-�J-4+2<A�BPAB� JK�68.21,180�2/*2�12�10�*@*.8�-,�2/8�(.->101-+0�-,�2/8�J*)1,-.+1*�̀*;-.�J-98�-,�2/8�E2*28�-,�J*)1,-.+1*3�.8M41.1+5�8>8.<�87()-<8.�2-�;8�1+04.89�*5*1+02�)1*;1)12<�,-.�@-.?8.0�6-7(8+0*21-+�-.�2-�4+98.2*?8�08),a1+04.*+68�1+�*66-.9*+68�@12/�2/8�(.->101-+0�-,�2/*2�6-983�*+9�12�68.21,180�2/*23�1,�*(()16*;)83�12�@1))�6-7()<�@12/�2/-08�(.->101-+0�;8,-.8�6-778+61+5�2/8�(8.,-.7*+68�-,�2/8�@-.?�-,�2/10�L5.8878+2A�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

()*+� ,-�./0�01.02.�./3.�./0�4-56�7058-590:�;2:05�./<=�>-2.53>.�<=�=;?@0>.�.-�A3?-5�>-97A<32>0�32:�028-5>0902.�?B�./0�CDEF�GH�=70><8<>3AAB�3>62-4A0:I0=�32:�;2:05=.32:=�./3.�<.�=/3AA�7058-59�./0�J05K<>0=�4/<A0�>-97AB<2I�4<./�3AA�377A<>3?A0�75-K<=<-2=�-8�C<K<=<-2�(F�L35.�MF�G/37.05�N�-8�./0�O3?-5�G-:0�32:�,<.A0�P�-8�./0�G3A<8-52<3�G-:0�-8�E0I;A3.<-2=F�<2>A;:<2I�3AA�377A<>3?A0�750K3<A<2I�43I0�50Q;<50902.=*��RST�UV�WXY� �
��������
����Z��
�����������[�������R�\
����GH�=/3AA�?0�50=7-2=<?A0�8-5�>-97A<32>0�4<./�G3A<8-52<3�]-K052902.�G-:0�=0>.<-2�M))̂F�<8�./0�.-.3A�>-=.�-8�./0�_I500902.�<=�-K05�8<K0�./-;=32:�:-AA35=�̀a)F̂̂ b̂*��RST�UV�WcY� �
��������
���d�e
�����f-.<>0=�32:�>-99;2<>3.<-2=�?0.4002�./0�L35.<0=�.-�./<=�_I500902.�93B�?0�=02.�.-�./0�8-AA-4<2I�3::50==0=�?B�50I<=.050:�-5�>05.<8<0:�93<A�4<./�7-=.3I0�75073<:F�50.;52�50>0<7.�50Q;0=.0:F�?B�-K052<I/.�:0A<K05B�=05K<>0F�-5�?B�705=-23A�:0A<K05Bg���������h��J3>53902.-�G<.B�i2<8<0:�J>/--A�C<=.5<>.��)M+)�jM./�_K02;0�J3>53902.-F�G_�k)P(j�_,,fg�,<23�_AK350l�m0K02=� ��h��n<.>/0AAoGpH�D2>*�(j)̂�q02.;50�r36=�s3BF�J.0�)̂ �̂J3>53902.-�G_��k)P++�_,,fg��t088�C00=oC32�L-5.05��D8�2-.<>0�<=�I<K02�?B�50I<=.050:�-5�>05.<8<0:�93<A�4<./�7-=.3I0�75073<:F�50.;52�50>0<7.�50Q;0=.0:F�<.�=/3AA�?0�>-2=<:050:�:0A<K050:�-2�./0�:3B�./0�2-.<>0�<=�=<I20:�8-5*�D8�2-.<>0�<8�I<K02�?B�-K052<I/.�:0A<K05B�=05K<>0F�<.�=/3AA�?0�>-2=<:050:�:0A<K050:�-2�./0�:3.0�=.3.0:�<2�./0�75--8�-8�:0A<K05B*��GH�32:�C<=.5<>.F�?B�2-.<>0�I<K02�/050;2:05F�93B�:0=<I23.0�:<880502.�3::50==0=�.-�4/<>/�=;?=0Q;02.�2-.<>0=F�>05.<8<>3.0=�-5�-./05�>-99;2<>3.<-2=�4<AA�?0�=02.*��RST�UV�WuY� ����v����w�������x�������V����\������������\���
���L;5=;32.�.-�=0>.<-2�NM̂My*NN�-8�./0�p:;>3.<-2�G-:0F�./0�C<=.5<>.�/3=�3�735.<><73.<-2�I-3A�8-5�:<=3?A0:�K0.0532�?;=<20==�02.0575<=0=�̀zCqmp{b�-8�3.�A03=.�./500�705>02.�̀+|bF�705�B035F�-8�8;2:=�01702:0:�03>/�B035�?B�./0�C<=.5<>.�-2�75-@0>.=�./3.�;=0�8;2:=�3AA->3.0:�?B�./0�J.3.0�_AA->3.<-2�m-35:�7;5=;32.�.-�./0�O05-B�}*�]50020�J>/--A�}3><A<.<0=�_>.�̀./0�z_>.{b*�,/<=�L5-@0>.�93B�;=0�8;2:=�3AA->3.0:�;2:05�./0�_>.*�,/0508-50F�GHF�?08-50�<.�010>;.0=�./0�_I500902.F�=/3AA�75-K<:0�.-�./0�C<=.5<>.�>05.<8<>3.<-2�-8�>-97A<32>0�4<./�./0�75->0:;50=�8-5�<97A0902.3.<-2�-8�Cqmp�>-2.53>.<2I�I-3A=F�3775-75<3.0�:->;902.3.<-2�<:02.<8B<2I�./0�39-;2.̀=b�<2.02:0:�.-�?0�73<:�.-�Cqmp=�<2�>-2@;2>.<-2�4<./�./0�>-2.53>.F�32:o-5�:->;902.3.<-2�:09-2=.53.<2I�GH~=�I--:�83<./�088-5.=�.-�900.�./0=0�I-3A=*��RST�UV�W�Y� �����������R������
������(k*N� C<=.5<>.�50.3<2=�./0�5<I/.�.-�50K<04�32:�3;:<.F�32:�./0�503=-23?A0�5<I/.�-8�3>>0==�.-�GH~=�32:�32B�G-2=;A.32.~=�7509<=0=�.-�50K<04�32:�3;:<.�./0�GH~=�>-97A<32>0�4<./�./0�75-K<=<-2=�-8�./<=�_I500902.�̀zC<=.5<>.~=�E<I/.{b*�,/0�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

()*+,)-+.*�/)01+�)2-3456*�+16�,)01+�+7�)2*86-+9�817+7-78:9�;25�+7�,6+;)2�-78)6*9�74+*)56�7<�=>.*�8,6?)*6*9�7<�;2:�;25�;33�@,7A6-+B,63;+65�,6-7,5*�;25�7+16,�)2<7,?;+)72�C)+1�;88,78,);+6�*;<604;,5*9�)<�*4-1�,6+62+)72�)*�566?65�26-6**;,:�D:�+16�()*+,)-+�)2�)+*�*736�5)*-,6+)72E�F16�()*+,)-+�*1;33�G668�+1)*�)2<7,?;+)72�-72<)562+);39�;*�;337C65�D:�;883)-;D36�3;CE�HIEH� F16�()*+,)-+.*�/)01+�)2-3456*�+16�,)01+�+7�6J;?)26�;2:�;25�;33�D77G*9�,6-7,5*9�57-4?62+*�;25�;2:�7+16,�6K)562-6�7<�8,7-654,6*�;25�8,;-+)-6*�+1;+�+16�()*+,)-+�56+6,?)26*�)*�26-6**;,:�+7�5)*-7K6,�;25�K6,)<:�C16+16,�=>�)*�)2�-7?83);2-6�C)+1�;33�,6L4),6?62+*�7<�+1)*�M0,66?62+E�HIEN� O<�+16,6�)*�;�-3;)?�<7,�;55)+)72;3�-7?862*;+)72�7,�<7,�PJ+,;�Q6,K)-6*9�+16�()*+,)-+.*�/)01+�)2-3456*�+16�,)01+�+7�6J;?)26�D77G*9�,6-7,5*9�57-4?62+*9�;25�;2:�;25�;33�7+16,�6K)562-6�;25�;--742+)20�8,7-654,6*�;25�8,;-+)-6*�+1;+�+16�()*+,)-+�56+6,?)26*�)*�26-6**;,:�+7�5)*-7K6,�;25�K6,)<:�;33�5),6-+�;25�)25),6-+�-7*+*9�7<�C1;+6K6,�2;+4,69�C1)-1�;,6�-3;)?65�+7�1;K6�D662�)2-4,,659�7,�;2+)-)8;+65�+7�D6�)2-4,,65E�HIER� =>�*1;33�?;)2+;)2�-7?836+6�;25�;--4,;+6�,6-7,5*�)2�;--7,5;2-6�C)+1�0626,;33:�;--68+65�;--742+)20�8,;-+)-6*�)2�+16�)254*+,:E�=>�*1;33�?;G6�;K;)3;D36�+7�+16�()*+,)-+�<7,�,6K)6C�;25�;45)+�;33�@,7A6-+B,63;+65�;--742+)20�,6-7,5*�;25�57-4?62+*�;25�;2:�7+16,�<)2;2-);3�5;+;E�S872�()*+,)-+.*�,6L46*+9�=>�*1;33�*4D?)+�6J;-+�5483)-;+6*�7<�7,)0)2;3*�7<�;33�,6L46*+65�,6-7,5*�+7�+16�()*+,)-+E�HIET� =>�*1;33�)2-3456�;45)+�8,7K)*)72*�)2�;2:�;25�;33�7<�)+*�*4D-72+,;-+*9�;25�*1;33�62*4,6�+1;+�+16*6�*6-+)72*�;,6�D)25)20�4872�;33�=72*43+;2+*E�HIEU� =>�*1;33�-7?83:�C)+1�+16*6�8,7K)*)72*�C)+1)2�<)<+662�VWTX�5;:*�7<�+16�()*+,)-+.*�C,)++62�,6L46*+�+7�,6K)6C�;25�;45)+�;2:�7,�;33�7<�=>.*�@,7A6-+B,63;+65�,6-7,5*�;25�)2<7,?;+)72E��YZ[�\]�̂�_� �̀������
����
���NaEW� =>�*1;33�D6�,6*872*)D36�<7,�+16�-7*+�7<�-72*+,4-+)72�-1;206�7,56,*�-;4*65�5),6-+3:�D:�=>.*�C)33<43�?)*-7254-+�7,�2603)062+�;-+*9�6,,7,*�7,�7?)**)72*E�b)+174+�3)?)+)20�=>.*�3);D)3)+:�<7,�)25),6-+�7,�-72*6L462+);3�-7*+�)?8;-+*9�+16�5),6-+�-7*+*�<7,�C1)-1�=>�*1;33�D6�3);D36�*1;33�6L4;3�)+*�8,787,+)72;+6�*1;,6�7<�+16�5)<<6,62-6�D6+C662�+16�-7*+�7<�+16�-1;206�7,56,�;25�+16�,6;*72;D36�-7*+�7<�+16�C7,G�1;5�*4-1�C7,G�D662�;�8;,+�7<�+16�7,)0)2;33:�8,68;,65�=72*+,4-+)72�(7-4?62+*E�F16*6�;?742+*�*1;33�D6�8;)5�D:�=>�+7�()*+,)-+�7,�+16�()*+,)-+�?;:�C)+11735�+17*6�-7*+*�<,7?�;?742+*�546�7,�+7�D6-7?6�546�+7�=>E�NaEH� c6)+16,�+16�()*+,)-+.*�,6K)6C9�;88,7K;3�7<9�27,�8;:?62+�<7,9�;2:�7<�+16�Q6,K)-6*�,6L4),65�4256,�+1)*�M0,66?62+�*1;33�D6�-72*+,465�+7�786,;+6�;*�;�C;)K6,�7<�;2:�,)01+*�4256,�+1)*�M0,66?62+9�;25�=>�*1;33�,6?;)2�3);D36�+7�+16�()*+,)-+�)2�;--7,5;2-6�C)+1�+1)*�M0,66?62+�<7,�;33�5;?;06*�+7�+16�()*+,)-+�-;4*65�D:�=>.*�<;)34,6�+7�86,<7,?�;2:�7<�+16�Q6,K)-6*�<4,2)*165�4256,�+1)*�M0,66?62+�+7�+16�*+;25;,5�7<�-;,6�7<�+16�=>�<7,�)+*�Q6,K)-6*9�C1)-1�*1;33�D69�;+�;�?)2)?4?9�+16�*+;25;,5�7<�-;,6�7<�-72*+,4-+)72�?;2;06,*�86,<7,?)20�*)?)3;,�C7,G�<7,�



�

����������	
���
�������
���������������������� �����������������
���������	�������

���������������� !�"##$%##&'�

()*+,-./+)�012*+3�435--*�6+47.+374�)7�-.�).-1/6�758�4)98�7+98�)/6�+/�-.�).-1/6�758�4)98�:8-:.)05+3�).8)�-,�758�;+47.+37<��=><=� (?�45)**�45).8@�3.86+7@�-.�.8+921.48�;+47.+37�,+,7A�08.38/7�BC>DE�-,�758�)9-1/7�-,�)/A�7)F�686137+-/�)/6G-.�3.86+7�(?�.838+H84�,-.�;+47.+37�I.-J8374�1/68.�758�(-998.3+)*�K1+*6+/:4�L/8.:AML,,+3+8/3A�N)F�;86137+-/@�OP�Q<R<�(-68�S�TUV;�BWR837+-/�TUV;XE<��(?�45)**�0.-H+68�;+47.+37�Y+75�)**�/83844).A�6-3198/7)7+-/�7-�8/)2*8�;+47.+37�7-�H8.+,A�758�)9-1/74�-,�758�R837+-/�TUV;�7)F�686137+-/<��(?�45)**�/-7+,A�;+47.+37�+/�Y.+7+/:�-,�758�R837+-/�TUV;�7)F�686137+-/�Y+75+/�=>�6)A4�-,�Y58/�(?�.838+H84�Z[R�/-7+38�-,�758�R837+-/�TUV;�7)F�686137+-/�-.�.838+H84�758�R837+-/�TUV;�7)F�.8,1/6@�Y5+358H8.�-331.4�,+.47<�=><\� L)35�0).7A�Y)..)/74�75)7�+7�5)4�5)6�758�-00-.71/+7A�7-�3-/41*7�3-1/48*�)/6�1/68.47)/64�758�78.94�-,�75+4�]:.8898/7�)/6�758�3-/48̂18/384�-,�8F8317+/:�+7<�Z/�)66+7+-/@�8)35�0).7A�)3_/-Y*86:84�75)7�758�6.),7+/:�-,�75+4�]:.8898/7�Y)4�758�0.-6137�-,�/8:-7+)7+-/@�75)7�/-�0).7A�+4�758�)175-.�-,�75+4�]:.8898/7@�)/6�75)7�75+4�]:.8898/7�45)**�/-7�28�3-/47.186�):)+/47�)/A�0).7A�)4�758�6.),78.�-,�758�]:.8898/7<�=><C� N58�+/6+H+61)*�8F8317+/:�75+4�]:.8898/7�-/�285)*,�-,�(?�Y)..)/74�)/6�.80.848/74�75)7�458G58�+4�)175-.+̀86�7-�8F83178�75+4�]:.8898/7�)/6�2+/6�758�(?�7-�)**�78.94�58.8-,<�=><P� N5+4�]:.8898/7�9)A�28�8F831786�+/�-/8�-.�9-.8�3-1/78.0).74@�8)35�-,�Y5+35�45)**�28�688986�)/�-.+:+/)*<�]�,)34+9+*8�-.�8*837.-/+3�4+:/)71.8�45)**�28�688986�7-�28�758�8̂1+H)*8/7�-,�758�)371)*�-.+:+/)*�4+:/)71.8<�]**�3-1/78.0).74�4-�8F831786�45)**�3-/47+7178�-/8�]:.8898/7�2+/6+/:�)**�758�I).7+84�58.87-<���abc�de�f�g� eh��i���<�LF5+2+74�W]X�75.-1:5�WLX�)77)3586�58.87-�).8�58.82A�+/3-.0-.)786�2A�75+4�.8,8.8/38�)/6�9)68�)�0).7�-,�75+4�]:.8898/7<��Zj�kZNjLRR�klL[Lmn@�758�0).7+84�58.87-�5)H8�8F831786�75+4�]:.8898/7�-/�758�6)78B4E�+/6+3)786�28*-Y<����a��eobp��cbq��ocrce����sppd��c�bac�b���KAt� uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu�� v8448�()47+**-�� ]44+47)/7�R108.+/78/68/7�;)78t��uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu� wcb�seddx�e��co�g���KAt� uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu�� k8/6A�(-58/�� I.84+68/7� � � � �;)78t��uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu�9/16/2023



�����������	
�����

������������������������������������������������������ ��!��� �"#$�%&� '()*+�),-.*+,)�&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&�%�/&� 0,1,-(2�3-45,+6�),-.*+,)�&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&�7�8&� 3-,+41)6-9+6*41�3:(),�&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&�;�7&� 3-,<'*=�3:(),�&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&�>�;&� '*==*10�3:(),�&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&�>�?&� +41)6-9+6*41�3:(),�&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&�@�>&� 3-45,+6�+4A32,6*41�&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&�%%�@&� B*1(2�=4+9A,16)&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&�%/�



�

��������� 	
���������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!�"��������#$%�#&'�())*+)),-�

��������./�0��	12����3������2"���04�����15��12��0����12��26�0�789:;<=>;?89�&@9@AB<�CD7&EF�:G@HH�I<8,?JB�I<8KB::?89@H�:B<,?>B:�9B>B::@<L�K8<�>8MIHB;?9A�;GB�K8HH8N?9AO��P� �������04�����QRQR� S<8,?JB�N8<T�NG?>G�:G@HH�>8MIHL�N?;G�I<8KB::?89@H�:;@9J@<J:�@9J�@IIH?>@UHB�<BV=?<BMB9;:�8K�KBJB<@HW�:;@;BW�@9J�H8>@H�H@NX�QRYR� &89?;8<�@9J�@J,?:B�;GB�#?:;<?>;�@:�;8�@HH�M@;B<?@H�JB,BH8IMB9;:�?9�;GB�S<8ZB>;X�&@?9;@?9�<BI8<;?9A�:L:;BM:�K8<�:>8IBW�:BV=B9>?9AW�:>GBJ=H?9AW�U=JAB;:�@9J�>8MM=9?>@;?89�K8<�;GB�S<8ZB>;�=:?9A�B[?:;?9A�#?:;<?>;�:8K;N@<BX�QR\R� ]B�;GB�K8>@H�I8?9;�8K�@HH�>8MM=9?>@;?89�;8�@9J�K<8M�>89:;<=>;?89�789;<@>;8<C:FX�QR̂R� _MIHBMB9;�MB;G8J:�;8�U=JAB;�@9J�;<@>T�@HH�B[IB9J?;=<B:�89�;GB�S<8ZB>;X�7&�:G@HH�AB9B<@;B�M89;GHL�<BI8<;:�;8�;GB�#?:;<?>;�<BKHB>;?9A�;G?:�?9K8<M@;?89X�QR̀R� S<BI@<B�MB;G8J:�;8�;<@>T�@9J�<BI8<;�89�:>GBJ=HB�:;@;=:�K8<�;GB�S<8ZB>;X�7&�:G@HH�JB,BH8I�M@:;B<�:>GBJ=HB:�@9J�M?HB:;89B�:>GBJ=HB:�K8<�;GB�S<8ZB>;W�@9J�:G@HH�<BI8<;�89�:@MB�B@>G�M89;G�;8�;GB�#?:;<?>;X�QRaR� 7&�:G@HH�N8<T�>88IB<@;?,BHL�N?;G�#?:;<?>;�;8�@9;?>?I@;B�@9J�M@?9;@?9�@�:>GBJ=HB�8K�=I>8M?9A�]8@<J�?9K8<M@;?89�@9J�@>;?89�?;BM:�@9J�:G@HH�I<BI@<B�<BI8<;:W�U@>TA<8=9J�M@;B<?@H:W�@9J�I<BH?M?9@<L�M@;B<?@H:�?9�#?:;<?>;b:IB>?K?BJ�K8<M@;X��QRcR� 7&�:G@HH�N8<T�>88IB<@;?,BHL�N?;G�;GB�#B:?A9�dB@M�@9J�;GB�#?:;<?>;�;8O�QRcRQR�#BK?9B�@9J�:>GBJ=HB�;GB�S<8ZB>;X��QRcRYR�S<8,?JB�'B<,?>B:�;G@;�N?HH�<B:=H;�?9�;GB�JB,BH8IMB9;�8K�@9�8,B<@HH�S<8ZB>;�:;<@;BAL�N?;G�<BA@<J�;8�IG@:B:W�>89:;<=>;?89�:>GBJ=HB:W�;?M?9AW�U=JAB;W�I<BV=@H?K?>@;?89W�>89;@>;8<�@9J�>89:=H;@9;�I<8>=<BMB9;W�>89:;<=>;?89�M@;B<?@H:W�U=?HJ?9A�:L:;BM:W�@9J�BV=?IMB9;X�QReR� f<A@9?gB�@9�?9?;?@H�IH@99?9A�N8<T:G8I�;8�><B@;B�U@:BH?9B�I@<@MB;B<:�K8<�;GB�S<8ZB>;C:FW�;8�JBK?9B�8,B<@HH�U=?HJ?9A�<BV=?<BMB9;:W�S<8ZB>;C:F�:;<@;BALW�>89>BI;=@H�U=JAB;�@9J�:>GBJ=HBX�S=<:=@9;�;8�=9JB<:;@9J?9A:�<B@>GBJ�@;�;GB:B�MBB;?9A:W�7&�N?HH�JB,BH8I�@9�?MIHBMB9;@;?89�IH@9�;G@;�?JB9;?K?B:�;GB�,@<?8=:�IG@:B:�8K�;GB�S<8ZB>;C:FW�>88<J?9@;?89�@M89A�IG@:B:W�@9J�U=JAB;�@9J�;?MB�>89:;<@?9;:�K8<�B@>G�IG@:B�8K�;GB�S<8ZB>;X�dGB�IH@9�N?HH�?9>H=JB�@�JB;@?HBJ�:;<@;BALW�S<8ZB>;�]=JAB;�@9J�S<8ZB>;�:>GBJ=HB�@:�NBHH�@:�?JB9;?K?>@;?89�8K�><?;?>@H�B,B9;:�@9J�M?HB:;89B�@>;?,?;?B:X�QRhR� SB<K8<M�>89:;<=>;@U?H?;L�<B,?BN:W�JB;B<M?9B�>89:;<=>;?89�KB@:?U?H?;LW�@,@?H@U?H?;L�8K�M@;B<?@H:�@9J�H@U8<W�;?MB�<BV=?<BMB9;:�K8<�?9:;@HH@;?89�@9J�>89:;<=>;?89W�@9J�K@>;8<:�<BH@;BJ�;8�>8:;W�?9>H=J?9A�>8:;:�8K�@H;B<9@;?,B�JB:?A9:W�8K�M@;B<?@H:W�I<BH?M?9@<L�U=JAB;:W�@9J�I8::?UHB�B>898M?B:X�



�

��������� 	
���������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!�"��������#$%�#&'�())*+)),-�

./.0/�123456784�9:3;�3;4�<=235783=5�72>�7??�@AB8=235783=5@�>A5:2C�8=2@35A83:=2�3=�42@A54�3;73�3;4�#:@35:83�:@�D5=,:>4>�9:3;�72�7884D37B?4�E5=F483�72>�3;4�B4@3�,7?A4�6=5�37GD7H45�>=??75@I�./../�J>,:@4�3;4�#:@35:83�7@�3=�3;4�54CA?73=5H�7C428:4@�3;73�;7,4�FA5:@>:83:=2�=,45�72H�D=53:=2�=5�7??�=6�3;4�E5=F483K�72>�7@�3=�8==5>:273:=2�9:3;�72>�:LD?4L42373:=2�=6�3;4�54MA:54L423@�=6�3;4�54CA?73=5H�7C428:4@K�:28?A>:2C�9:3;=A3�?:L:373:=2�#'JI�./.N/�<=235783�6=5�=5�4LD?=HK�73�<&O@�4GD42@4K�@ABP8=2@A?3723Q@R�3=�3;4�4G3423�>44L4>�2484@@75H�6=5�<&O@�@45,:84@I�S=3;:2C�:2�3;4�6=54C=:2C�@;7??�854734�72H�8=235783A7?�54?73:=2@;:D�B439442�3;4�#:@35:83�72>�72H�@ABP8=2@A?3723Q@R�4LD?=H4>�BH�3;4�<&�A2>45�345L@�=6�3;:@�JC544L423I�./.T/�<==D45734�9:3;�3;4�#:@35:83K�U=75>K�72>�=3;45�D5=64@@:=27?@�4LD?=H4>�BH�3;4�#:@35:83�6=5�3;4�>4@:C2K�8==5>:273:=2�=5�L727C4L423�=6�=3;45�9=5V�54?734>�3=�3;4�E5=F483K�:28?A>:2C�#:@35:83�@3766�72>�8=2@A?3723@K�D5=F483�L727C45Q@RK�8:3:W42@O�=,45@:C;3�8=LL:3344K�=3;45�#:@35:83�8=LL:3344@K�72>�3;4�8=LLA2:3H�3=�678:?:3734�3;4�3:L4?H�8=LD?43:=2�=6�3;4�E5=F483�9:3;:2�U=75>P7DD5=,4>�BA>C43@�72>�3=�#:@35:83�>4@:C2�@372>75>@I��./.X/�<;7:5K�8=2>A83�72>�37V4�L:2A34@�=6�D45:=>:8�L443:2C@�B439442�#:@35:83�72>�:3@�>4@:C2�D5=64@@:=27?Q@RK�3;4�':34�<=LL:3344�L443:2C@K�72>�8=2@35A83:=2�L443:2C@�>A5:2C�3;4�8=A5@4�=6�3;4�E5=F483I�<&�@;7??�:2,:34�3;4�#:@35:83�72>Y=5�:3@�54D54@42373:,4�72>�3;4�E5=F483�12@D483=5�3=�D753:8:D734�:2�3;4@4�L443:2C@I�<&�@;7??�V44D�L443:2C�L:2A34@�3=�>=8AL423�8=LL423@�C4245734>�:2�3;4@4�L443:2C@I�./.Z/�#4,4?=D�6=5�#:@35:83�7DD5=,7?�7�E5=F483�3:L4�@8;4>A?4�73�3;4�@3753�=6�E5=F483�>4,4?=DL423�3;73�>=4@�3;4�6=??=9:2C[�./.Z/./�E5=,:>4@�@A66:8:423�3:L4�6=5�D54MA7?:6:873:=2K�72>�:6�2484@@75H�3;4�54@=?A3:=2�=6�72H�7DD47?@K�B:>>:2CK�72>K�:6�2484@@75HK�54B:>>:2CK�=5�24C=3:73:2C�:6�7DD?:87B?4K�3;4�E5=F483\��./.Z/N/�<==5>:2734@�72>�:234C5734@�3;4�>4@:C2�D5=64@@:=27?Q@RO�>4@:C2�466=53@�9:3;�B:>>:2C�@8;4>A?4@\��./.Z/T/�128?A>4@�547?:@3:8�783:,:3H�@4MA4284@�72>�>A573:=2@K�7??=873:=2�=6�?7B=5�72>�L7345:7?@�72>�>4?:,45H�=6�D5=>A83@�54MA:5:2C�?=2C�?47>P3:L4�D5=8A54L423\�72>�./.Z/X/�]7V4@�:23=�788=A23�3;4�#:@35:83O@�=88AD728H�54MA:54L423@�Q@;=9:2C�D=53:=2@�=6�3;4�E5=F483�;7,:2C�=88AD728H�D5:=5:3H�72>�=2C=:2C�=D4573:=27?�=88AD728H�54MA:54L423@RI��./.̂ /�U4�54@D=2@:B?4�6=5�3;4�D5=64@@:=27?�MA7?:3H�72>�348;2:87?�788A578H�=6�7??�8=@3�4@3:L734@K�8=2@35A837B:?:3H�54,:49@K�@3A>:4@K�54D=53@K�D5=F483:=2@K�=D:2:=2@�=6�3;4�D5=B7B?4�8=@3�=6�8=2@35A83:=2K�72>�=3;45�@45,:84@�6A52:@;4>�BH�<&�A2>45�3;:@�JC544L423�7@�94??�7@�8==5>:273:=2�9:3;�7??�&7@345�E?72@K�@3A>:4@K�54D=53@�72>�=3;45�:26=5L73:=2�D5=,:>4>�BH�#:@35:83�3=�<&I�<&�@;7??K�9:3;=A3�7>>:3:=27?�8=LD42@73:=2K�8=55483�=5�54,:@4�72H�455=5@�=5�=L:@@:=2@�:2�L7345:7?@�:3�C4245734@I�./._/�&7:237:2�7�?=C�=6�7??�L443:2C@K�@:34�,:@:3@�=5�>:@8A@@:=2@�;4?>�:2�8=2FA283:=2�9:3;�3;4�9=5V�=6�3;4�E5=F483K�9:3;�>=8AL42373:=2�=6�L7F=5�>:@8A@@:=2�D=:23@K�=B@45,73:=2@K�>48:@:=2@K�



�

��������� 	
���������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!�"��������#$%�#&'�())*+)),-�

./0123451�46�748805219�:;010�1;<==�>0�?/6531;0@�24�2;0�#3126372�<5@A46�321�60B601052<23,0�?46�357=/1345�35�2;0�4,06<==�C64D072�@47/8052<23459�EFEGF�H446@35<20�26<518322<=�4?�@47/80521�24�60I/=<246J�<I057301�?46�60,30K�<5@�<@,310�2;0�#3126372�4?�B420523<=�B64>=081�35�748B=02345�4?�1/7;�60,30K19�EFELF�C60B<60�<�>3@@061�=312�?46�0<7;�>3@�B<7M<I0�?46�<BB64,<=�>J�2;0�#31263729�EFNOF�P11312<570�K32;�<@8353126<2345�4?�2;0�B60./<=3?37<2345�B647011Q��EFNEF�P11312<570�35�@0,0=4B8052�4?�@47/80521�507011<6J�46�<BB64B63<20�?46�>3@@35I�2;0�H45126/72345�H4526<72�?46�2;0�C64D072Q��EFNNF�#0,0=4B8052�4?�>3@@061R�35206012�35�<�C64D072S�357=/@35I�>/2�542�=38320@�24�20=0B;4537�<5@�746601B45@0570�7<8B<3I51�<5@�B60B<635I�<5@�B=<735I�5423701�<5@�<@,06231080521�24�14=3732�>3@1�?46�2;0�C64D072T1UQ��EFNVF�P11312<570�35�745@/7235I�D4>�K<=M1�<5@�>3@@061R�745?0605701�<5@�2;0�8<35205<570�<5@�B60B<6<2345�4?�835/201�4?�D4>�K<=M1�46�>3@@06R1�745?0605701Q��EFNWF�P11312<570�35�601B45@35I�24�>3@@061R�35./36301�<5@�2;0�@0,0=4B8052�4?�>3@�<@@05@<�<1�507011<6J�46�<BB64B63<20Q��EFNXF�Y0,30K�4?�>3@�B64B41<=1�?46�601B4513,05011�24�>3@�60./36080521S�0,<=/<2345�4?�>3@@06�601B4513>3=32JS�<5@�<5<=J131�4?�748B=020@�./0123455<3601Q�EFNZF�[5206,30K35I�B4113>=0�>3@@061S�60?0605701S�>45@35I�<I0521�<5@�?35<573<=�351232/23451Q��EFN\F�C60B<635I�60748805@<23451�?46�2;0�#3126372�?46�B60]./<=3?37<2345�4?�B641B0723,0�>3@@061Q�EFNGF�:<>/=<23451�<5@�0,<=/<2345�4?�>3@�601/=21�<=45I�K32;�<�60748805@<2345�?46�<K<6@�4?�2;0�H45126/72345�H4526<72�?46�<�C64D072Q��EFNLF�P1131235I�K32;�6014=/2345�4?�<5J�<BB0<=1Q��EFVOF� 4̂6�_0<10�_0<10><7M�B64D0721S�7446@35<20�Y0./012�?46�̀/<=3?37<23451AC64B41<=1�TaŶCbU�B647011�<5@�<11312�35�50I423<2345�4?�<I60080521S�357=/@35IS�'320�_0<10�<5@�̂<73=32301�_0<10�K32;�I/<6<5200@�8<c38/8�B6370Q�<5@�EFVEF�C60B<6<2345�4?�<I05@<�32081�?46�d4<6@�<BB64,<=9�EFVNF�C64,3@0�@47/8052<2345S�B372/601S�<5@�42;06�35?468<2345�<5@�<11312<570�24�2;0�#3126372�?46�2;0�#3126372R1�/10�45�<�K0>1320�?46�B/>=37�<77011�24�1;4K�C64D072�12<2/19�EFVVF�C64,3@0�@36072345�<5@�B=<5535I�24�051/60�C64D072�<@;060570�24�<BB=37<>=0�05,36458052<=�60./36080521S�1/7;�<1�2;410�08<5<235I�?648�2;0�e5,36458052<=�C642072345�PI057J�TaeCPbUS�H<=AeCPS�2;0�H<=3?4653<�e5,36458052<=�̀/<=32J�P72�TaHèPbUS�<5@�'2<20�4?�H<=3?4653<�=<K1S�60I/=<23451�<5@�6/=019�H&�1;<==�748B=J�K32;S�<5@�051/60�2;<2�<==�H451/=2<521S�<==�H4526<72461�<5@�2;036�1/>74526<72461�<5@�@013I5�B64?011345<=1�<5@�2;036�1/>7451/=2<521�748B=J�K32;S�<5J�12468�K<206�B4==/2345�B60,052345�B=<51S�42;06�12468�K<206�8<5<I08052�B64I6<8�<5@�42;06�05,36458052<=�38B<72�8323I<2345�60./36080521�2;<2�<60�<BB64,0@�>J�2;0�#3126372�<5@�<BB=37<>=0�24�2;0�C64D072S�<2�54�<@@32345<=�7412�24�2;0�#31263729�



�

��������� 	
���������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!�"��������#$%�#&'�())*+)),-�

./01/�233456785�79:�;<4=5<598�#;>86;?8@>�654368;9A�83�79:�;9856B7?5�C;8D�8D5�E7F36�23<<;>>;3956@>�GBB;?5H�;9?=I:;9A�FI8�938�=;<;85:�83J�./01/./�K5A;>856;9A�4IF=;?�C36L>�463M5?8�C;8D�8D5�#54768<598�3B�N9:I>86;7=�K5=78;39>�O#NKP�C;8D;9�8D;68Q�O(RP�:7Q>�3B�8D5�7C76:H�FI8�;9�93�5,598�=7856�8D79�8D5�B;6>8�:7Q�;9�CD;?D�7�?39867?836�D7>�C36L56>�5<4=3Q5:�I439�8D5�4IF=;?�C36LS�./01/T/�K5UI;6;9A�4633B�3B�4IF=;?�C36L>�?39867?836�65A;>8678;39�F5B365�7??548;9A�7�F;:�36�7C76:;9A�7�?39867?8S�79:�./01/0/�K54368;9A�79Q�>I>45?85:�4IF=;?�C36L>�,;3=78;39>�83�8D5�E7F36�23<<;>>;3956V�./0W/�2&�>D7==�<7;987;9�7??I6785�X63M5?8�?3>8�7??3I98;9A�65?36:>�<7;987;95:�C;8D�A59567==Q�7??5485:�7??3I98;9A�46;9?;4=5>�OYZ[[X\P�39�7I8D36;]5:�C36L�456B36<5:�I9:56�I9;8�?3>8>H�7?8I7=�?3>8>�B36�=7F36�79:�<7856;7=H�36�38D56�F7>;>�B36�<7;987;9;9A�65UI;65:�7??3I98;9A�65?36:>V�2&�>D7==�463,;:5�7??3I98;9A�65?36:>�83�8D5�#;>86;?8�39�7�<398D=Q�F7>;>H�36�7>�657>397F=Q�65UI5>85:�FQ�#;>86;?8V�2&�>D7==�7BB36:�8D5�#;>86;?8�7??5>>�83�8D5>5�65?36:>�79:�465>56,5�8D5>5�65?36:>�B36�7�456;3:�3B�8D655�O(P�Q576>�7B856�B;97=�47Q<598H�78�93�?3>8�83�8D5�#;>86;?8V�./0̂ /�[>>;>8�[6?D;85?8�C;8D�8D5�46547678;39�3B�79�5>8;<785�3B�?3>8>�B36�7==�7::59:7�79:�?336:;9785�C;8D�[6?D;85?8�83�>IF<;8�8D5�5>8;<785�83�8D5�#;>86;?8�B36�74463,7=V�[>>;>8�79:�?336:;9785�C;8D�[6?D;85?8�7>�65UI;65:�83�7:MI>8�8D5�239>86I?8;39�23>8�_I:A58�79:�38D56�X63M5?8�?3>8>�7>�;9:;?785:�;9�8D;>�[A655<598�79:�7>�65UI;65:�;9�8D5�[A655<598�B36�[6?D;85?8I67=�'56,;?5>V�./0̀/�X63,;:5�79:�<7;987;9�7�<797A5<598�465>59?5�39�8D5�X63M5?8�>;85V�./0a/�2&�;>�bc��65>439>;F=5�B36J�./0a/./�Z63I9:�?3987<;978;39�36�D7]76:3I>�<7856;7=�797=Q>;>V�./0a/T/�[9Q�7>F5>83>�85>8;9AH�:5>;A9�36�7F785<598S�D3C5,56H�;8�>D7==�?336:;9785�79:�;985A6785�;8>�C36L�C;8D�79Q�>I?D�;9B36<78;39�463,;:5:�FQ�#;>86;?8V�./0a/0/�23<4=;79?5�C;8D�8D5�27=;B369;7�d9,;639<5987=�eI7=;8Q�[?8�OY2de[\PH�5f?548�8D78�2&�7A655>�83�?336:;9785�;8>�C36L�C;8D�8D78�3B�79Q�2de[�?39>I=8798>�6587;95:�FQ�8D5�#;>86;?8H�79:�8D5�C36L�3B�239867?836�79:�8D5�#5>;A9�g57<�83�463,;:5�?I66598�;9B36<78;39�B36�I>5�;9�2de[�?3<4=;79?5�:3?I<598>�79:�83�;:598;BQ�79:�?766Q�3I8�<;8;A78;39�<57>I65>V�./0a/1/�h;>836;?7=�>;A9;B;?79?5�654368V�./0a/W/�'3;=>�;9,5>8;A78;39V�./0a/̂/�Z5385?D9;?7=�D7]76:�654368V�./0a/̀/�g343A674D;?�>I6,5QH�;9?=I:;9A�I8;=;8Q�=3?78;9A�>56,;?5>V�ij� k�b�lm�	lcn������lo�����*V-� k����
!J�&39;836�79:�7:,;>5�8D5�#;>86;?8�79:�X63A67<�&797A56�7>�83�7==�<7856;7=�:5,5=34<598>�39�8D5�X63M5?8V�2&�>D7==�;<4=5<598�C;8D�#;>86;?8�74463,7=�654368;9A�<58D3:>�:5,5=345:�FQ�X63A67<�&797A56�B36�>?D5:I=5>H�?3>8�79:�FI:A58�>878I>V�gD5�2&�>D7==�F5�



�

��������� 	
���������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!�"��������#$%�#&'�())*+)),-�

./0�12345�6278.�21�455�3299:8734.728�.2�48;�1<29�328=.<:3.728�>28.<43.2<�48;�=/455�?0�32670;�28�455�3299:8734.728=�?0.@008�./0�#7=.<73.�48;�7.=�#0=7A8�B049C�*C*� �� ���!���D�B<43E�48;�<062<.�28�=3/0;:50�=.4.:=�12<�F<2G03.C�B/0�>&�=/455�;0,0526�F<2G03.�94=.0<�=3/0;:50=�48;�9750=.280�=3/0;:50=H�48;�<0,70@�48;�466<2,0�>28.<43.2<�6<2G03.�=3/0;:50=�48;�9750=.280�=3/0;:50=�12<�./0�6<2G03.�60<�=60371734.728=H�48;�=/455�<062<.�28�=490�043/�928./�.2�./0�#7=.<73.�48;�F<2A<49�&484A0<C�*C(� �����������!�D�I9650908.�90./2;=�.2�.<43E�328=.<:3.728�0J608;7.:<0=�28�./0�F<2G03.�:=78A�90./2;=�;0,05260;�?K�F<2A<49�&484A0<C�B/0�>&�=/455�A080<4.0�928./5K�<062<.=�.2�./0�#7=.<73.�<01503.78A�./7=�7812<94.728C�LM� 	N��OP��N����OP�	����(C-� B2�./0�0J.08.�<0Q:0=.0;�?K�#7=.<73.�2<�F<2A<49�&484A0<H�4==7=.�@7./�6<2,7;78A�2,0<455�322<;784.728�21�./0�F<2G03.R�=0<,0�4=�./0�12345�6278.�21�3299:8734.728H�.<48=97..78A�7812<94.728�.2�./0�#7=.<73.�48;�#0=7A8�B049�28�A080<45�4=603.=�21�./0�F<2G03.H�7835:;78A�6548878AH�=3/0;:578AH�32=.�9484A0908.H�6<2A<0==�<062<.78AH�;0=7A8�<0,70@H�;7=6:.0�<0=25:.728H�48;�;23:908.4.728C�>299:8734.728=�1<29�./0�328=.<:3.728�>28.<43.2<�.2�./0�#7=.<73.�48;�#0=7A8�B049�=/455�?0�./<2:A/�./0�>&C�B/0�>&�=/455�<0307,0�=79:5.4802:=�32670=�21�455�@<7..08�3299:8734.728=�1<29�./0�#7=.<73.�2<�./0�#0=7A8�B049�.2�./0�328=.<:3.728�>28.<43.2<C�(C*� B2�./0�0J.08.�<0Q:0=.0;�?K�#7=.<73.�2<�F<2A<49�&484A0<H�4==7=.�@7./�./0�;0.4750;�;01787.728�21�6<2G03.�=3260H�?:;A0.H�48;�=3/0;:50H�4=�800;0;C�S0,70@�48;�<03283750�32=.�0=.794.0=�1<29�./0�4==7A80;�4<3/7.03.�48;�322<;784.0�600<�<0,70@�0=.794.0=�@/08�<0Q:0=.0;�?K�./0�#7=.<73.C�T;,7=0�./0�#7=.<73.�<0A4<;78A�2@80<U=:66570;�0Q:76908.�48;�2./0<�62.08.745�32=.U=4,78A�904=:<0=C�(C(� B2�./0�0J.08.�<0Q:0=.0;�?K�#7=.<73.�2<�F<2A<49�&484A0<H�4==7=.�./0�#7=.<73.�78�./0�=25737.4.728�48;�<0.08.728�21�;0=7A8�48;�08A7800<78A�328=:5.48.=H�48;�322<;784.0�;0=7A8�328=:5.48.=V�43.7,7.70=�48;�;057,0<K�=3/0;:50=H�4=�800;0;C�F<2,7;0�,45:0�08A7800<78A�48;�5710�3K350�32=.�4845K=7=C��(CW� F<2,7;0�;0=7A8U6/4=0�=0<,730=�78�328G:83.728�@7./�./0�4<3/7.03.:<0�17<9=�4@4<;0;�./0�F<2G03.�?K�./0�#7=.<73.C�$2<E�@7./�./0�T<3/7.03.�.2�32812<9�48;�<01780�;0=7A8=�.2�32<<054.0�;0=7A8=�.2�?:;A0.�48;�X43757.70=�&4=.0<�F548H�71�4665734?50C�S0,70@�;0=7A8�;23:908.=�12<�328=.<:3.4?757.KH�=3/0;:578AH�328=7=.083KH�48;�322<;784.728�;:<78A�=3/094.73�48;�;0=7A8�;0,0526908.�6/4=0=�21�@2<EC�F0<12<9�328=.<:3.4?757.K�<0,70@=�4.�466<26<74.0�=.4A0=�21�;0=7A8C�T==7=.�@7./�,0<71734.728�21�=7.0�328;7.728=C�YJ60;7.0�;0=7A8�<0,70@=H�7835:;78A�92;71734.728=C�%006�433:<4.0�;23:908.4.728�21�455�;7=3:==728=�@7./�:=0<=�<0A4<;78A�=3260�48;�<0=25:.728C�(C+� F<064<0�48;�9478.478�4�>28=.<:3.728�&484A0908.�=3/0;:50�12<�./0�F<2G03.C�F<064<0�4�6<23:<0908.�6548�48;�92,0�78�233:6483K�6548878AH�@/0<0�<0Q:7<0;C��(CZ� B2�./0�0J.08.�<0Q:0=.0;�?K�#7=.<73.�2<�F<2A<49�&484A0<H�4==7=.�@7./�9287.2<78A�48;�<062<.78A�.2�./0�#7=.<73.�28�=.4.:=�21�;0=7A8�48;�=.4.0�466<2,45�78�<054.728�.2�./0�=3/0;:50�12<�./0�F<2G03.C�T..08;�900.78A=�.2�322<;784.0�;0=7A8�0112<.=�12<�./0�F<2G03.C�T==7=.�78�7;08.71K78A�48;�2?.47878A�455�8030==4<K�466<2,45=C�



�

��������� 	
���������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!�"��������#$%�#&'�())*+)),-�

(.)� /0�123�341351�63783913:�;<�#=916=>1�06�?60@6AB�&A5A@36C�A99=91�D=12�90E=>=1=5@�F60F09AE9C�3,AE8A13C�A5:�63>0BB35:�01236�F60G399=05AE�>0598E1A519�533:3:�10�>0BFE313�123�?60H3>1.��(.I� JBFE3B351�#=916=>1KAFF60,3:�=BFE3B351A1=05�F60>3:8639C�G06B9�A5:�63F061=5@�6378=63B3519�G06�123�?60H3>1�12A1�=5,0E,3�AEE�B3B;369�0G�123�?60H3>1�13ABC�=5>E8:=5@�123�#=916=>1C�#39=@5�/3ABC�A5:�>059168>1=05�L0516A>106.�(.M� $06N�D=12�123�#39=@5�/3AB�A5:�#=916=>1�10�:3,3E0F�123�G=5AE�9=O39C�>20=>3�0G�BA136=AE9C�936,=>39�A5:�81=E=1=39�A5:�01236�:31A=E3:�:39=@5�A5:�F36G06BA5>3�>6=136=A�0G�123�?60H3>1.��(.-P� /0�123�341351�63783913:�;<�#=916=>1�06�?60@6AB�&A5A@36C�F60,=:3�,AE83�35@=5336=5@�A1�123�'>23BA1=>�#39=@5�A5:Q06�-PPR�#39=@5�#3,3E0FB351�?2A93.�/2=9�3,AE8A1=05�D=EE�>059=91�0G�A�63,=3D�0G�123�F60F093:�BA136=AE9C�378=FB351C�9<913B9�A5:�01236�=13B9�:3F=>13:�=5�123�:39=@5�:0>8B3519�A5:�92AEE�;3�>006:=5A13:�D=12�123�#=916=>1S9�:39=@5�@8=:3E=539�A5:�:39=@5�F60G399=05AET9U.�/23�L&�D=EE�F63FA63�A�,AE83�35@=5336=5@�63F061�:0>8B351=5@�123�6398E19�0G�123�3,AE8A1=05�A5:�BAN3�63>0BB35:A1=059�10�123�#=916=>1�D=12�639F3>1�10�AE1365A1=,39C�:3E31=059C�06�AB35:B3519�0G�98>2�F60F093:�=13B9�12A1�F361A=5�10�123�A51=>=FA13:�>059168>1=05�>0919C�893G8E�E=G3C�BA=5135A5>3�A5:�0F36A1=05AE�>0919�A5:�3GG=>=35>=39.�/23�L&�92AEE�F60,=:3�10�123�#=916=>1�,AE83�35@=5336=5@�63>0BB35:A1=059�A5:�>091Q;353G=1�A5AE<9=9�0G�12093�63>0BB35:A1=059.�(.--� ?36G06B�06�98;>0516A>1�G06�>059168>1A;=E=1<�63,=3D9�0G�123�?60H3>1�A1�123�#39=@5�#3,3E0FB351�?2A93�A5:�A1�MPR�0G�123�L059168>1=05�#0>8B3519�?2A93.�/23�L&�92AEE�63,=3D�123�:39=@5�:0>8B3519�G06�>EA6=1<C�>059=9135><C�>059168>1A;=E=1<�A5:�>006:=5A1=05.�/23�6398E19�0G�123�63,=3D�92AEE�;3�F60,=:3:�=5�D6=1=5@�A5:�A9�501A1=059�05�123�:0>8B3519�10�123�#=916=>1.�/23�L&�92AEE�AE90�BAN3�63>0BB35:A1=059�10�123�#=916=>1�D=12�639F3>1�10�>059168>1A;=E=1<C�>059168>1=05�>091C�937835>3�0G�>059168>1=05C�A5:�>059168>1=05�:86A1=05.��(.-*� #3,3E0F�BA9136�;=:QADA6:�9>23:8E3T9U�=5>E8:=5@�>059168>1=05�B=E3910539�G06�123�?60H3>1�12608@2�123�>0BFE31=05�0G�>059168>1=05C�A9�:=63>13:�;<�123�#=916=>1C�=5�>006:=5A1=05�D=12�:39=@5�F60G399=05AET9U�A5:�A:,=93�A5:�>0598E1�D=12�123�#=916=>1.�L&�92AEE�63,=3D�A5:�AFF60,3�>059168>1=05�L0516A>106V9�9>23:8E39C�;81�92AEE�501�:=>1A13�A5<�>059168>1=05�L0516A>106V9�B3A59�A5:Q06�B3120:9�0G�F36G06BA5>3.�(.-(� W91A;E=92�9>23:8E39�G06�A5<�L0598E1A51C�A5:�G06�A5<�2AOA6:089�BA136=AE9�06�01236�1391=5@C�A5:�63,=3D�>0919C�391=BA139C�A5:�=5,0=>39�0G�3A>2.�(.-X� JBFE3B351�A�BA5A@3B351�>05160E�9<913B�10�98FF061�98>2�G85>1=059�A9�FEA55=5@C�06@A5=O=5@C�9>23:8E=5@C�;8:@31=5@C�63F061=5@�F60@6399C�A5:�=:351=G<=5@�A5:�:0>8B351=5@�F60;E3B9�A5:�90E81=059�G06�123�?60H3>1.�?63FA63�B0512E<�F60@6399�63F0619�G06�123�#=916=>1�63@A6:=5@�123�9>23:8E3�G06�123�?60H3>1.�(.-+� /0�123�341351�63783913:�;<�#=916=>1�06�?60@6AB�&A5A@36C�06@A5=O3�A5�=5=1=AE�FEA55=5@�D06N920F�10�>63A13�;A93E=53�FA6AB31369�G06�123�?60H3>1C�10�:3G=53�0,36AEE�;8=E:=5@�6378=63B3519C�?60H3>1�916A13@<C�>05>3F18AE�;8:@31�A5:�9>23:8E3.��?8698A51�10�85:3691A5:=5@9�63A>23:�A1�12393�B331=5@9C�L059168>1=05�&A5A@36�D=EE�:3,3E0F�A5�=BFE3B351A1=05�FEA5�12A1�=:351=G=39�123�,A6=089�F2A939�0G�123�?60H3>1C�>006:=5A1=05�AB05@�F2A939C�A5:�;8:@31�A5:�1=B3�>05916A=519�G06�3A>2�F2A93�0G�123�?60H3>1.��/23�FEA5�D=EE�=5>E8:3�A�:31A=E3:�916A13@<C�BA9136�;8:@31�A5:�BA9136�9>23:8E3�A9�D3EE�A9�=:351=G=>A1=05�0G�>6=1=>AE�3,3519�A5:�B=E391053�A>1=,=1=39.�



�

��������� 	
���������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!�"��������#$%�#&'�())*+)),-�

�(.-/� 01�234�452462�74894:24;�<=�#>:27>?2�17�@71A7BC�&B6BA47D�E71,>;4�9E;B24;�?1:2�4:2>CB24:�F17�234�@71G4?2�B2�234�'?34CB2>?�#4:>A6D�#4:>A6�#4,4H1EC462D�B6;�I16:279?2>16�#1?9C462:�@3B:4:�B:�;>74?24;�<=�#>:27>?2J�?117;>6B24�K>23�;4:>A6�E71F4::>16BHL:M�B6;�74?16?>H4�?1:2�4:2>CB24:�K>23�;4:>A6�E71F4::>16BHL:MN�4:2>CB24:.�(.-)� O;,>:4�#>:27>?2�74AB7;>6A�PA7446�<9>H;>6AQ�24?361H1A=�B6;�H>F4?=?H4�?1:2>6AD�K346�BEEH>?B<H4.�(.-R� S9HH=�?117;>6B24�BHH�?3B6A4:�74894:24;�<=�B6=�92>H>2=�?1CEB6=�644;4;�21�?1CEH424�234�@71G4?2.�(.-T� U4,>4K�B6;�2B>H17�234�#>:27>?2N:�F7162�46;�;1?9C462:�F17�234�@71G4?2.�U4?1CC46;�234�69C<47�1F�;B=:�7489>74;�F17�234�?16:279?2>16�E3B:4�LB6;�B6=�:9<VE3B:4:D�:9?3�B:�3BWB7;19:�CB247>BH�B<B24C462M�B6;�74?1CC46;�234�BC1962�1F�234�H>89>;B24;�;BCBA4:.��XY� 	Z����"�	����[.-� #4,4H1E�CB:247�:?34;9H4:�B6;�?16:279?2>16�:?34;9H4:�F17�234�@71G4?2.�#4,4H1E�<9;A42L:M�F17�234�@71G4?2�<B:4;�16�?16:279?2>16�?1:2�4:2>CB24:.�[.*� \6�?16:9H2B2>16�K>23�234�#>:27>?2�B6;�B??17;>6A�21�#>:27>?2VBEE71,4;�E1H>?>4:D�E71?4;974:D�B6;�:2B6;B7;:D�>CEH4C462�E71?4;974:D�F17C:D�B6;�74E172>6A�7489>74C462:�F17�234�@71G4?2.�]:2B<H>:3D�B??17;>6AH=D�B�?1CC96>?B2>16:�E71?4;974�F17�234�@71G4?2�23B2�BHH1K:�F17�;4?>:>16�CB̂>6A�B2�BEE71E7>B24�H4,4H:�1F�74:E16:><>H>2=�B6;�B??1962B<>H>2=.�[.(� $17̂�K>23�234�@71A7BC�&B6BA47�B6;�#4:>A6�04BC�21�C1;>F=�17�B;;�21�:2B6;B7;D�:E4?>BHD�17�A4647BH�?16;>2>16:�F17�?1627B?2�;1?9C462:�23B2�C>A32�<4�644;4;�F17�96>894�@71G4?2�17�?1627B?2�?16;>2>16:D�F17�234�#>:27>?2N:�BEE71,BHD�B6;_17�B::>:2�>6�234�;4,4H1EC462�1F�;1?9C462:�64?4::B7=�F17�234�<>;;>6A�E3B:4.�[.[� 01�234�452462�74894:24;�<=�#>:27>?2�17�@71A7BC�&B6BA47D�CB̂4�74?1CC46;B2>16:�F17�;4,4H1EC462�B6;�>CEH4C462B2>16�1F�E71?4;974:�21�?1CEH=�K>23�BEEH>?B<H4�<>;;>6A�17�US@�7489>74C462:�F17�234�@71G4?2�B:�BEEH>?B<H4�B6;�F17�45E4;>2>6A�?1CEH42>16�1F�234�<>;;>6A�E71?4::�F17�234�@71G4?2.�034�:?1E4�1F�234�F174A1>6A�>6?H9;4:�K>23192�H>C>2B2>16D�74?1CC46;B2>16:�1F�I&�K>23�74:E4?2�21̀�LBM�E74V89BH>F>?B2>16�1F�E12462>BH�?1627B?217:J�L<M�?1C<>6B2>16�1F�2K1�17�C174�1F�234�@71G4?2:�F17�;4:>A6D�<>;;>6A�B6;_17�?16:279?2>16�E97E1:4:J�B6;�L?M�BH2476B2>,4�?16:279?2>16�;4H>,47=�BEE71B?34:�F17�234�@71G4?2D�>6?H9;>6A�?16:>;47B2>16�1F�B�:>6AH4�A4647BH�?1627B?217�B6;_17�a4B:4�a4B:4<B?̂�BEE71B?3�21�?16:279?2>16�F17�4B?3�@71G4?2.�bY� ��""�cd�	����+.-� 01�234�452462�74894:24;�<=�#>:27>?2�17�@71A7BC�&B6BA47D�B::>:2�K>23�E74V89BH>F>?B2>16�E71?4::�F17�234�:4H4?2>16�1F�E7>C4�B6;_17�:9<V?1627B?217:�<B:4;�16�234�;42B>H4;�;4F>6>2>16�1F�@71G4?2�:?1E4D�<9;A42D�:?34;9H4D�B6;�E71A7BCC>6A�:9EE172.�#4,4H1E�B�H>:2�1F�E74V89BH>F>4;�E7>C4�B6;�:9<V?1627B?217:D�B:�7489>74;.�+.*� #4,4H1E�<>;;47:N�>62474:2�>6�234�@71G4?2.�I117;>6B24�BHH�<>;�E3B:4�B?2>,>2>4:�K>23�#>:27>?2�;4EB72C462:.�I16;9?2�E74V<>;�?16F4746?4:�21�FBC>H>B7>W4�<>;;47:�K>23�234�<>;;>6A�



�

��������� 	
���������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!�"��������#$%�#&'�())*+)),-�

./01234567�84.�849�6:30;8<�69653267�2853=;8<6�/=�235>/.6�84.�?;5>�@=/A305�:=/03.1=36B�C/4.105�A/D�?8<E6�84.�D;..3=6F�0/4G3=340367�28;458;4�84.�:=3:8=3�2;41536�/G�A/D�?8<E6�/=�D;..3=F6�0/4G3=34036B�H;3<.�I1365;/46�G=/2�D;..3=67�=3G3==;4J�I1365;/46�5/�#36;J4�K382�84.�#;65=;05�86�=3I1;=3.B�C//=.;4853�?;5>�#36;J4�K382�5/�=36:/4.�5/�D;..3=�I1365;/46�D9�8..34.8B��+B(� @=3:8=3�:1D<;0�6/<;0;585;/4�4/5;036�G/=�#;65=;05�8::=/,8<B�L3,;3?7�0//=.;48537�84.�365;2853�0/65�/G�D;.�:>863�8..34.8B��+BM� L3,;3?�D;.�:=/:/68<6�G/=�=36:/46;,34366�5/�D;.�=3I1;=3234567�3,8<1853�D;..3=�=36:/46;D;<;597�84.�0/4.105�=3G3=3403�0>30E6B�@=3:8=3�D;.�848<9636�84.�8.,;63�5>3�#;65=;05�/4�0/2:<;8403�/G�D;..3=6�?;5>�#;65=;05�=3I1;=323456�84.�D;.�=3I1;=323456B�L3:/=5�84.�=30/2234.�5/�5>3�#;65=;05�8G53=�=3,;3?�84.�3,8<185;/4B�&8E3�=30/2234.85;/46�5/�5>3�#;65=;05�G/=�:=3I18<;G;085;/4�/G�D;..3=6�84.�8?8=.�/G�0/45=8056�/=�=3A305;/4�/G�D;.6B�+B+� C/4.105�:/65ND;.�0/4G3=34036�86�=3I1;=3.B�O66;65�84.�8.,;63�=3J8=.;4J�D;.�:=/53656B��+BP� QG�8::=/:=;8537�0//=.;4853�0/45=805;4J�?;5>�C/45=805/=�8?8=.3.�5>3�0/45=8057�;40<1.;4J�3,8<185;4J�D/4.6�84.�;461=84037�84.�43J/5;853�G;48<�53=26�/G�0/465=105;/4�0/45=805/=F6�0/45=805R6S7�;G�8::<;08D<3B�+B)� C/4.105�:=3N8?8=.�0/4G3=34036�?;5>�6100366G1<�D;..3=6B�+BT� '0>3.1<3�84.�0/4.105�:=30/465=105;/4�2335;4J6B�&8;458;47�:=3:8=37�84.�.;65=;D153�2;41536B�+BU� O66;65�?;5>�5>3�:=3:8=85;/4�/G�8J34.8�;5326�G/=�V/8=.�8::=/,8<B�C//=.;4853�61D2;558<6�=3I1;=3.�D9�J/,3=4;4J�8J340;36B�WX� �YZ��[����YZ�	����PB-� O.2;4;653=�5>3�0/465=105;/4�C/45=805B��PB*� #3,3</:�.358;<3.�0/465=105;/4�60>3.1<36�/=�=3,;3?�C/45=805/=F6�61D2;553.�60>3.1<367�86�433.3.B�O.2;4;653=�84.�0//=.;4853�5>3�?/=E�/G�C/45=805/=�/4�8�.8;<9�D86;6B�\4G/=03�:3=G/=284037�60>3.1<;4J7�84.�4/5;03�=3I1;=323456B�L3,;3?�C/45=805/=F6�60>3.1<3�61D2;558<6�84.�28E3�=30/2234.85;/46�5/�5>3�#;65=;05B��PB(� &/4;5/=�60>3.1<3�84.�0/65�;4G/=285;/4�G/=�C/45=805/=B�#/012345�5>3�:=/J=366�84.�0/656�/G�5>3�@=/A305B�L3:/=5�84.�8.,;63�:=/805;,3<9�/4�:/5345;8<�60>3.1<3�84.�D1.J35�,8=;84036�84.�;2:8056B�L30/2234.�:/5345;8<�6/<15;/46�5/�60>3.1<3�84.�0/65�:=/D<326B�$/=E�0//:3=85;,3<9�?;5>�5>3�#;65=;057�O=0>;53057�84.�C/45=805/=�5/�3461=3�5>85�@=/A305�;6�.3<;,3=3.�/4�5;23�84.�?;5>;4�D1.J35B�L3,;3?�0/465=105;/4�:=/J=366�84.�:=3:8=3�=3:/=56B��PBM� ]3=;G9�:3=2;567�8::=/,8<67�D/4.67�;461=840367�84.�60>3.1<36�/G�,8<136B�C//=.;4853�?;5>�#'O�@=/A305�Q46:305/=7�84.�3461=3�0/2:<;8403�?;5>�8<<�#'O�=3:/=5;4J�84.�0</63/15�=3I1;=323456B�'1D2;5�4303668=9�=3:/=56�5/�65853�84.�</08<�815>/=;5;36B��PB+� &/4;5/=�5>3�0/465=105;/4�C/45=805/=�5/�,3=;G9�5>85�5//<67�3I1;:23457�84.�<8D/=�8=3�G1=4;6>3.�84.�?/=E�:3=G/=23.�84.�0/2:<353.�?;5>;4�5>3�5;23�=3I1;=3.�/=�;4.;0853.�D9�5>3�:<846�84.�6:30;G;085;/467�14.3=�5>3�.;=305;/4�84.�5/�5>3�685;6G805;/4�/G�5>3�#;65=;05X�K>3�C&�3̂:=366<9�



�

��������� 	
���������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!�"��������#$%�#&'�())*+)),-�

./0112�34�,10567�38.3�381�291:565:.354;2�.01�<13=�4>210,1?=�910640<1?=�.;?�64@@4A1?�5;�.::40?.;:1�A538�381�904612254;.@�23.;?.0?2�46�:.01�640�:4;230B:354;�<.;./1<1;3C��DCD� E440?5;.31�A40F�46�381�:4;230B:354;�E4;30.:340�.;?�1661:35,1@7�<.;./1�381�G04H1:3�34�.:851,1�381�#52305:3I2�4>H1:35,12�5;�01@.354;�34�:423=�35<1�.;?�JB.@537C��DC)� G04,5?1�:4;35;B4B2�4;K2531�:4;230B:354;�<.;./1<1;3�91024;;1@=�.2�;11?1?C�E4;?B:3�:4;230B:354;�<1135;/2�640�381�G04H1:3�34�?52:B22�.;?�0124@,1�2B:8�<.33102�.2�904/0122=�JB.@537�.;?�2:81?B@5;/C�'.5?�<1135;/2�28.@@�>1�A11F@7�B;@122�G04H1:3�:4;?5354;2�?4�;43�01JB501�38.3�601JB1;:7C�G019.01�.;?�904<93@7�?52305>B31�<5;B312C�$81;�01JB501?�>7�651@?�40�43810�:4;?5354;2=�:4;230B:354;�904/0122=�40�381�JB.@537�46�A40F<.;2859=�:4;?B:3�291:5.@�:4;230B:354;�<1135;/2L�01:40?=�9019.01=�.;?�?52305>B31�<5;B312�46�38121�<1135;/2�34�381�#52305:3=�381�.661:31?�:4;230B:354;�E4;30.:340=�.;?�#125/;�M1.<C��DCN� O23.>@528�.;?�5<9@1<1;3�31.<�:4<<B;5:.354;�904:1?B012C��DCP� O;2B01�38.3�:4;230B:354;�E4;30.:340�904,5?12�:4;230B:354;�2:81?B@12�.2�01JB501?�>7�381�:4;230B:354;�E4;30.:32=�5;:@B?5;/�.:35,537�21JB1;:12�.;?�?B0.354;2=�2B><533.@�2:81?B@1=�40�904:B01<1;3�2:81?B@1�640�904?B:32�38.3�01JB501�@4;/�@1.?�35<1C�M81�E&�28.@@�01,51A�:4;230B:354;�E4;30.:340I2�:4;230B:354;�2:81?B@12�640�:4;640<537�A538�381�01JB501<1;32�46�381�:4;230B:354;�E4;30.:3�.;?�:4;640<537�A538�381�4,10.@@�2:81?B@1�640�381�G04H1:3C�$8101�:4;230B:354;�E4;30.:340I2�:4;230B:354;�2:81?B@12�?4�;43�24�:4;640<=�381�E&�A5@@�3.F1�.9904905.31�<1.2B012�34�21:B01�:4<9@5.;:1=�2B>H1:3�34�#52305:3�.9904,.@C�DC-Q� O;2B01�:4;230B:354;�E4;30.:340R2�:4<9@5.;:1�A538�381�01JB501<1;32�46�381�01291:35,1�:4;230B:354;�E4;30.:3�640�B9?.35;/=�01,525;/=�.;?�43810�4>@5/.354;2�01@.35,1�34�38150�01291:35,1�:4;230B:354;�2:81?B@12C��DC--� E423�E4;304@C�E&�28.@@�?1,1@49�.;?�<4;5340�.;�1661:35,1�27231<�46�:4;230B:354;�:423�:4;304@�640�381�G04H1:3C�E&�28.@@�5?1;3567�,.05.;:12�>13A11;�.:3B.@�.;?�>B?/131?�40�1235<.31?�:4232�.;?�.?,521�#52305:3�.;?�?125/;�904612254;.@S2T�A81;1,10�.�G04H1:3�:423�1U:11?2�>B?/132�40�1235<.312C�E&�28.@@�<.;./1�381�:4;230B:354;�>5?2�.;?�:4;30.:32�5;�.::40?.;:1�A538�381�E4;230B:354;�VB?/13C��DC-*� E4;35;B.@@7�<4;5340�A813810�:4;230B:354;�:4;30.:3�01JB501<1;32�.01�>15;/�6B@65@@1?�.;?�01:4<<1;?�:4B0212�46�.:354;�34�381�#52305:3�A81;�E4;30.:340�6.5@2�34�6B@65@@�:4;30.:3B.@�01JB501<1;32C��DC-(� M81�E&�<.7�.B38405W1�<5;40�,.05.354;2�5;�381�A40F�604<�381�01JB501<1;32�46�381�:4;30.:3�?4:B<1;32�38.3�?4�;43�5;,4@,1�.;�.?HB23<1;3�5;�381�:4;30.:3�905:1�40�381�:4;30.:3�35<1�40�?125/;�.;?�A85:8�.01�:4;25231;3�A538�381�4,10.@@�5;31;3�46�381�:4;30.:3�?4:B<1;32C�M81�E&�28.@@�904,5?1�34�381�?125/;�904612254;.@S2T�.;?�381�#52305:3�:49512�46�38121�.B38405W.354;2C�DC-X� O,.@B.31�.;?�904:122�9.7<1;3�.99@5:.354;2�.;?�,10567�904/0122C��DC-+� Y10567�38.3�2.6137�904/0.<2�.01�?1,1@491?�.;?�2B><5331?�>7�381�:4;230B:354;�E4;30.:340�.2�01JB501?�>7�381�E4;30.:3C�Z153810�E&=�G04H1:3�&.;./10�;40�#52305:3�28.@@�>1�01294;25>@1�640�40�8.,1�.;7�@5.>5@537�640�E4;30.:340I2�6.5@B01�34�904,5?1=�:4<9@7�A538=�40�1;640:1�2.5?�2.6137�904/0.<2C�



�

��������� 	
����������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
����������������� ���!��"�#��������$%&�$'(�)**+,**-.�

/0./� 123452567�89:4;7<�=>67?>4�3?>@?:2A�;6=49B;6@�CDEF9;47�$?:G;6@D�:==9?:=<0�H>>?B;6:75�:6B�5-:49:75�H>67?:=7>?ID�?5=>-5?<�D=J5B945D0��/0.*� K5=>?B�7J5�3?>@?5DD�>L�7J5�M?>N5=7�O<�:�4>@0�/0.P� '>6;7>?�>6@>;6@�M?>N5=7�=>D7D�7>�-5?;L<�7J:7�3?>N5=75B�=>D7D�B>�6>7�5Q=55B�:33?>-5B�O9B@57�:6B�3?>-;B5�7J5�$;D7?;=7�7;254<�6>7;=5�>L�:6<�3>7567;:4�;6=?5:D5�;6�=>D7D�;6�5Q=5DD�>L�:33?>-5B�O9B@57D�3?>-;B5B�7>�H'0��/0.R� S5@>7;:75�H>67?:=7>?ID�3?>3>D:4D�:6B�?5-;5G�=J:6@5�>?B5?D�3?53:?5B�O<�$5D;@6�T5:2A�G;7J�$5D;@6�T5:2ID�;6397�:D�655B5BA�L>?�:33?>-:4�O<�7J5�$;D7?;=70�/0+U� V-:49:75�:6B�3?>=5DD�=J:6@5�>?B5?�?5895D7D0�':W5�?5=>2256B:7;>6D�7>�7J5�$;D7?;=70�$575?2;65�=>D7�:6B�D=J5B945�5LL5=7D�>L�=J:6@5�>?B5?D0�M?53:?5�=J:6@5�>?B5?�?53>?7D�:6B�2:;67:;6�:�=J:6@5�>?B5?�4>@�L>?�7J5�M?>N5=7�:6B�;23452567�3?>=5B9?5D�7>�5Q35B;75�3?>=5DD;6@�>L�=J:6@5�>?B5?D0�/0+.� CDD;D7�7J5�$;D7?;=7�;6�=>>?B;6:7;6@�7J5�D5?-;=5D�>L�D35=;:4�=>6D947:67D�:6B�75D7;6@�4:O>?:7>?;5D�>6�7J5�M?>N5=70�/0++� 16�=>6N96=7;>6�G;7J�7J5�$5D;@6�T5:2A�2>6;7>?�G>?W�>L�7J5�=>6D7?9=7;>6�H>67?:=7>?�7>�B575?2;65�7J:7�7J5�G>?W�;D�O5;6@�35?L>?25B�;6�:==>?B:6=5�G;7J�7J5�?589;?52567D�>L�7J5�?5D35=7;-5�=>6D7?9=7;>6�B>=92567D�L>?�7J5�M?>N5=7A�;6=49B;6@�O97�6>7�4;2;75B�7>�7J5�34:6DA�D35=;L;=:7;>6DA�:BB56B:A�:6B�:44�>7J5?�=>67?:=7�B>=92567DA�:D�G544�:D�:44�:334;=:O45�4:GDA�?5@94:7;>6D�:6B�B;?5=7;-5D�>L�:@56=;5D�G;7J�N9?;DB;=7;>6�>-5?�:6<�>L�7J5�M?>N5=70�CD�:33?>3?;:75A�G;7J�:DD;D7:6=5�>L�$5D;@6�T5:2A�2:W5�?5=>2256B:7;>6D�7>�7J5�$;D7?;=7�:6B�M?>@?:2�':6:@5?�?5@:?B;6@�D35=;:4�;6D35=7;>6�>?�75D7;6@�>L�G>?W�7J:7�;D�6>7�;6�:==>?B:6=5�G;7J�7J5�3?>-;D;>6D�>L�7J5�=>67?:=7�B>=92567D0��/0+)� T>�@9:?B�$;D7?;=7�:@:;6D7�B5L5=7D�;6�7J5�G>?W�>L�7J5�=>6D7?9=7;>6�H>67?:=7>?A�7J5�H'�DJ:44�;23452567�:�89:4;7<�=>67?>4�3?>@?:2�7>�2>6;7>?�7J5�89:4;7<�:6B�G>?W2:6DJ;3�>L�=>6D7?9=7;>6�L>?�=>6L>?2;7<�G;7JX��/0+)0.�C==5375B�;6B9D7?<�D7:6B:?BDY��/0+)0+�C334;=:O45�4:GDA�?945DA�>?�>?B;6:6=5DY�:6B��/0+)0)�TJ5�B5D;@6�B>=92567D�:6B�=>67?:=7�B>=92567D0�/0+Z� %J5?5�7J5�G>?W�>L�:�=>6D7?9=7;>6�H>67?:=7>?�B>5D�6>7�=>6L>?2�:D�D57�L>?7J�:O>-5A�7J5�H'�DJ:44A�G;7J�7J5�;6397�>L�$5D;@6�T5:2X�/0+Z0.�S>7;L<�7J5�$;D7?;=7�>L�:6<�6>6E=>6L>?2;6@�G>?W�>OD5?-5B�O<�7J5�H'Y�/0+Z0+�K5N5=7�7J5�6>6E=>6L>?2;6@�G>?WY�:6B��/0+Z0)�T:W5�:6<�:6B�:44�:=7;>6[D\�65=5DD:?<�7>�=>2354�7J5�=>6D7?9=7;>6�H>67?:=7>?�7>�=>??5=7�7J5�G>?W0��/0+,� V-:49:75A�7?:=WA�:6B�2:;67:;6�4>@D�>L�?5895D7D�L>?�;6L>?2:7;>6�[]K̂1_\�L?>2�=>6D7?9=7;>6�H>67?:=7>?�:6B�?5D3>6D5DA�DJ>3�B?:G;6@DA�D:2345DA�:6B�>7J5?�D9O2;77:4DA�O:D5BA�;6�3:?7A�>6�



�

��������� 	
����������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!�"��������#$%�#&'�())*+)),-�

./012345.1/�1654./78�0213�597�87:.;/�<2107::.1/4=>:?@�A8,.:7�#.:52.B5�4/8�C21;243�&4/4;72�4:�51�:545D:�4/8�B2.5.B4=.5E�10�FGH:@��I@*I� H3<=737/5�<21B78D27:J�./�B1==461245.1/�K.59�597�#.:52.B5J�C21;243�&4/4;72�4/8�#7:.;/�L743J�012�7M<78.5./;�597�<21B7::./;�4/8�4<<21,4=�10�:91<�824K./;:J�<218DB5�8454J�:43<=7:J�4/8�15972�:D63.554=:�012�74B9�B1/524B5@�F7B7.,7�4/8�524/:3.5�4==�:D63.554=:�0213�597�B1/:52DB5.1/�N1/524B512�51�597�#7:.;/�L743�012�27,.7K�4/8�4<<21,4=@�&4./54./�:D63.554=�4/8�:91<�824K./;�=1;:@�I@*)� F7B128�597�<21;27::�10�K12O�45�597�C21P7B5@�$97/�<27:7/5J�<27<427�84.=E�27<125:�012�597�C21P7B5�B1/54././;�4�27B128�10�K745972J�B1/:52DB5.1/�N1/524B512>:?�<27:7/5�4/8�597.2�/D3672�10�K12O72:J�K12O�4BB13<=.:978J�<216=73:�7/B1D/57278J�4/8�15972�27=7,4/5�8454@�I@*Q� C27<427�4/8�8.:52.6D57�31/59=E�<21P7B5�:545D:�27<125:�012�597�C21P7B5�./B=D8./;�D<8457:�1/�<21P7B5�4B5.,.5.7:J�<21;27::�10�K12OJ�1D5:54/8./;�.::D7:J�<157/5.4=�<216=73:J�:B978D=7J�4/8�:545D:�10�FGH:J�B94/;7�12872:J�4/8�:D63.554=:@�I@*R� N1128./457J�4::.:5J�4/8�:D<<125�A2B9.57B5�8D2./;�B1/:52DB5.1/�483./.:5245.1/�<94:7�4:�27SD.278@�I@(T� N&�:94==�34./54./�27B128:�10�<2./B.<4=�6D.=8./;�=4E1D5�=./7:J�7=7,45.1/:�10�597�615513�10�0115./;:J�0=112�=7,7=:J�4/8�O7E�:.57�7=7,45.1/:�4:�<21,.878�6E�597�B1/:52DB5.1/�N1/524B512@�A5�597�B13<=75.1/�10�597�C21P7B5J�87=.,72�4==�:DB9�27B128:�51�#.:52.B5@�N1/:52DB5.1/�N1/524B512�4/8�87:.;/�<2107::.1/4=>:?�:9427�27:<1/:.6.=.5E�51�<27<427�F7B128�#24K./;:�4/8�A:UVD.=5�#24K./;:@�I@(-� N1128./457�597�31,7�./51�597�C21P7B5:@�I@(*� $12O�K.59�#.:52.B5�5743�51�87,7=1<�=.:5:�10�./B13<=757�12�D/:45.:04B512E�K12O�>W<D/B9�=.:5:X?@��I@((� GD==E�81BD37/5�4/8�<27<427�878DB5.,7�B94/;7�12872:�012�7M524�:72,.B7:�10�B1/:D=54/5:�5945�427�597�27:<1/:.6.=.5E�10�4�N1/524B512�12�4/15972�B1/:D=54/5@�C27:7/5�:DB9�4�B94/;7�12872�012�:.;/45D27�6E�597�N1/524B512�12�B1/:D=54/5@��I@(Y� #75723./7�0./4=�B13<=75.1/�4/8�<4E37/5@�#75723./7�B13<=75.1/�8457:J�0./4=�<4E37/5:J�4/8�27=74:7�10�2757/5.1/@�N1128./457�<21BD2737/5�4/8�./:54==45.1/�10�GD2/.5D27J�G.M5D27:J�4/8�ZSD.<37/5�>WGG[ZX?@�\]� 	̂ _̀�����_�	a���_b�)@-� L97�N&�:94==�16:72,7�597�B1/:52DB5.1/�N1/524B512c:�B97BOU1D5:�10�D5.=.5.7:J�1<7245.1/4=�:E:573:�4/8�7SD.<37/5J�4/8�:5425UD<�4/8�57:5./;@�L97�N&�:94==�34./54./�27B128:�10�:5425UD<�4/8�57:5./;�4:�<21,.878�6E�597�B1/:52DB5.1/�N1/524B512�4/8�:94==�7/:D27�597�#.:52.B5�10�B13<=.4/B7�K.59�4<<=.B46=7�<21,.:.1/:�10�597�N1/524B5J�5945�4==�K12O�94:�677/�<72012378�4/8�4BB7<578J�4/8�5945�4==�:E:573:�427�B13<=757�4/8�1<7245.,7@�)@*� A5�597�<D/B9�=.:5�<94:7�10�597�C21P7B5�12�87:.;/4578�<125.1/:�5972710J�N&J�./�B1/:D=545.1/�K.59�597�A2B9.57B5J�:94==�7/:D27�597�<27<4245.1/�10�4�=.:5�10�./B13<=757�12�D/:45.:04B512E�K12O�12�K12O�K9.B9�817:�/15�B1/0123�51�597�27SD.2737/5:�10�597�B1/524B5�81BD37/5:�>W<D/B9�=.:5�K12OX?�4/8�4�:B978D=7�012�597�B13<=75.1/�10�597�<D/B9�=.:5�K12O@�N&�:94==�<21,.87�59.:�=.:5�51�597�B1/:52DB5.1/�N1/524B512@�N&�:94==�B1128./457�B1/:52DB5.1/�



�

��������� 	
����������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
����������������� ���!��"�#��������$%&�$'(�)**+,**-.�

/01234520367�893:03;4159�41<�50;8=92>01�0:�8?15@�=>72�A03BC�/'�7@4==�39->9AD�A>2@�2@9�E35@>2952�41<�$>723>52D�2@9�50;8=929<�8?15@�=>72�A03BC�/'�7@4==�917?39�2@42D�A>2@�>18?2�0:�2@9�E35@>2952D�2@9�50;8=929<�8?15@�=>72�A03B�50;8=>97�A>2@�488=>54F=9�830->7>017�0:�2@9�501723?52>01�/0123452C�*C)� /'�7@4==�<9293;>19D�A>2@�2@9�E35@>2952�41<�$>723>52D�A@91�2@9�G30H952�03�<97>I1429<�8032>017�2@9390:�439�50;8=929C�*CJ� /'�7@4==�501<?52D�A>2@�2@9�E35@>2952�41<�$>723>52D�:>14=�>178952>017�0:�2@9�G30H952�03�<97>I1429<�8032>017�2@9390:C�/'�7@4==�102>:K�2@9�$>723>52�0:�:>14=�50;8=92>01C�*C,� /'�7@4==�5017?=2�A>2@�2@9�E35@>2952�41<�$>723>52�41<�7@4==�<9293;>19�A@91�2@9�G30H952�41<�2@9�501723?52>01�/01234520367�A03B�439�:>14==K�50;8=929<C�/'�7@4==�477>72�A>2@�2@9�>77?4159�0:�4�/932>:>5429�0:�L>14=�/0;8=92>01D�41<�7@4==�830-><9�20�2@9�$>723>52�4�A3>2291�3950;;91<42>01�39I43<>1I�84K;912�20�2@9�/012345203C�*CM� /'�7@4==�5003<>1429�5=079N0?2�83059<?397D�>15=?<>1I�89370119=�234>1>1IC�E<->79�$>723>52�724::�01�7K729;7�089342>017D�234>1>1I�41<�5=079N0?2�0:�G30H952C��*C*� /'�7@4==�5003<>1429�41<�9O89<>29�/012345203�5=079N0?2�39P?>39;9127D�>15=?<>1I�I?43412997QA433412>97D�5932>:>54297D�B9K7D�;41?4=7D�E7NR?>=2�$34A>1I7D�S9503<�$34A>1I7D�7895>:>542>017D�<4>=K�=0I7D�41<�-93>:>9<�3980327C�T17?39�2@42�4==�02@93�830H952�8432>5>84127�7?F;>2�19597743K�5=079N0?2�<05?;91242>01C�*CU� /'�7@4==�5003<>1429�089342>014=�74:92K�39->9A7�A>2@�$>723>52�8072�055?8415K�41<�;414I9�5033952>-9�A03B�47�19597743KC�*CV� /'�7@4==�917?39�2@42�4==�F?>=<>1I�50;;>77>01>1I�39P?>39;9127�@4-9�F991�:?=:>==9<�>1�4�2>;9=K�;41193�2@30?I@�$>723>52�50;;>77>01>1I�4I9127C�*C.W� /'�7@4==�0F24>1�055?8415K�893;>27�XA@939�39P?>39<YD�5003<>1429�:>14=�2972>1ID�<05?;91242>01D�41<�39I?=4203K�>178952>017C�G398439�055?8415K�8=41�398032C�*C..� /'�7@4==�8398439�:>14=�4550?12>1I�3980327C��Z[� \�]̂�#_����]���@̀9�/01723?52>01�'414I93�7@4==�39->9A�41<�;01>203�4==�E7NR?>=2�$34A>1I7D�;4>12914159�41<�089342>017�;41?4=7D�41<�02@93�5=0790?2�<05?;9127�20�F9�7?39�2@42�4==�39P?>39<�<05?;9127�;992>1I�50123452�39P?>39;9127�439�830-><9<D�41<�7@4==�795?39�41<�23417;>2�20�2@9�$>723>52�41<�G30I34;�'414I93�2@079�<05?;9127�41<�4==�39P?>39<�I?43412997D�B9K7D�;41?4=7D�39503<�<34A>1I7D�41<�<4>=K�=0I7C��̀@9�/01723?52>01�'414I93�7@4==�4=70�:03A43<�4==�<05?;9127�41<�8=417�20�2@9�$>723>52�?801�50;8=92>01�0:�2@9�830H952�41<�917?39�4==�7?5@�8=417�41<�<05?;9127�439�A9==�03I41>a9<�:03�41K�4883083>429�4?<>2�03�39->9A�0:�2@9�G30H952C�b[� cdd]�e�@̀9�/01723?52>01�'414I93�7@4==�477>72�G30I34;�'414I93�47�19597743K�20�>;8=9;912�4�%433412K�f178952>01�41<�%433412K�%03B�83059<?39�:03�2@9�G30H952�2@42�/012345203�;?72�:0==0AC��̀@9�83059<?39�7@4==�>15=?<9�4�2A9=-9�X.+Y�;012@�54==�F45B�893>0<�41<�4�:>14=�A433412K�>178952>01�9=9-91�



�

��������� 	
����������������������������������
�
�����������������
��
����������������� ���!��"�#��������$%&�$'(�)**+,**-.�

/..0�123456�7849:�;:2<9=4�=21>?94@23�42�@36>9=4�459�;:2<9=4�73A�@A934@8B�73B�2C46473A@3D�E7::734B�E2:FG���HI� 	JKL�����MK��K���N2�459�9O4934�:9PC9649A�QB�$@64:@=4�2:�;:2D:71�'737D9:R�459�S2364:C=4@23�'737D9:�657??�766@64�$@64:@=4R�T:=5@49=4R�73A�;:2D:71�'737D9:�76�39=9667:B�42�936C:9�7??�@382:174@23�73A�A2=C193474@23�39=9667:B�82:�;:2<9=4�=?2692C4�E@45�459�$(T�@6�=21>?949�73A�459�;:2<9=4�@6�4@19?B�=?269A�2C4�E@45�$(TG��N5@6�@3=?CA96�QC4�@6�324�?@1@49A�42�:9>2:46�8:21�@3A9>93A934�=236C?47346R�@36>9=42:6R�4964@3D�?7Q2:742:@96R�73A�=2::96>23A@3D�2:�:9PC@:9A�$(T�82:16G��UVW'TXY$WV�Z[�;T\W�XYNWYNXZYT]]̂�]W[N�_]TY&̀���



�

��������� 	
��������������������	����
���
�
�����������������
��
������������������������ �!���������"#$�"%&�'(()*((+,�

��������-�.��/���/����0!���11�02�34/����/����/5�����678�9:;;:<=>?�@ABCD�&8C+=E8F�B:�B7=F�G?C88H8>B�F7D;;�I8�J8C9:CH8K�IL�M%�=9�>88K8K�D>K�C8NO8FB8K�IL�"=FBC=EBP�QR� SC:+=K=>?�F8C+=E8F�C8NO=C8K�I8EDOF8�:9�F=?>=9=ED>B�K:EOH8>B8K�E7D>?8F�=>�B78�SC:T8EB�=>=B=DB8K�IL�B78�"=FBC=EBU�=>E;OK=>?�IOB�>:B�;=H=B8K�B:�F=V8U�NOD;=BLU�E:HJ;8A=BLU�:C�B78�"=FBC=EBWF�FE78KO;8X�YR� SC:+=K=>?�E:>FO;BDB=:>�E:>E8C>=>?�C8J;DE8H8>B�:9�<:CZ�KDHD?8K�IL�9=C8�:C�:B78C�EDOF8�KOC=>?�E:>FBCOEB=:>�D>K�9OC>=F7=>?�F8C+=E8F�C8NO=C8K�=>�E:>>8EB=:>�<=B7�C8J;DE8H8>B�:9�FOE7�<:CZX�[R� SC:+=K=>?�F8C+=E8F�HDK8�>8E8FFDCL�IL�B78�K89DO;B�:9�M:>BCDEB:CU�:C�IL�HDT:C�K898EBF�:C�K89=E=8>E=8F�=>�B78�<:CZ�:9�B78�M:>BCDEB:CU�:C�IL�9D=;OC8�:9�J8C9:CHD>E8�:9�B78�"=FBC=EBWF�E:>FO;BD>BFX�\R� &88Z=>?�+DC=D>E8F�:C�E7D>?8F�B:�D?8>EL�?O=K8;=>8F�:>�I87D;9�:9�B78�"=FBC=EB�<78>�F:�K=C8EB8K�IL�B78�"=FBC=EBX�]R� SC8JDC=>?�B:�F8C+8�:C�F8C+=>?�DF�D�<=B>8FF�=>�E:>>8EB=:>�<=B7�D>L�JOI;=E�78DC=>?U�K=FJOB8�C8F:;OB=:>�JC:E88K=>?�:C�;8?D;�JC:E88K=>?U�:B78C�B7D>�B7DB�>8E8FF=BDB8K�IL�B78�>8?;=?8>B�DEBFU�8CC:CF�:C�:H=FF=:>F�:9�M%�:C�<78C8�B78�M%�=F�D�JDCBL�B78C8B:U�8AE8JB�9:C�D�M:>BCDEB:CWF�78DC=>?�>8E8FF=BDB8K�IL�D�I=K�JC:B8FB�:C�IL�D�M:>BCDEB:CWF�C8NO8FB�B:�FOIFB=BOB8�D�FOIE:>BCDEB:CU�:C�IL�7D>K;=>?�:9�D>L�FB:J�JDLH8>B�>:B=E8FX�R̂� S8C9:CH=>?�B8E7>=ED;�=>FJ8EB=:>�D>K�B8FB=>?X�_R� SC:+=K=>?�:B78C�F8C+=E8F�>:B�:B78C<=F8�=>E;OK8K�=>�B7=F�G?C88H8>B�D>K�>:B�EOFB:HDC=;L�9OC>=F78K�=>�DEE:CKD>E8�<=B7�B78�?8>8CD;;L�DEE8JB8K�FE:J8�:9�E:>FBCOEB=:>�HD>D?8H8>B�JCDEB=E8X�3���
��
�����������������������M%�DEZ>:<;8K?8F�B7DB�B78�"=FBC=EB�C8NO=C8F�M%WF�=>+:=E8F�B:�=>E;OK8�K8BD=;8K�8AJ;D>DB=:>F�:9�B78�&8C+=E8F�J8C9:CH8KX�̀:C�8ADHJ;8U�D�F=A�7:OC�E7DC?8�9:C�B78�8>B=C8�KDL�=F�O>DEE8JBDI;8�D>K�<=;;�>:B�I8�JDLDI;8X�G�H:C8�K8BD=;8K�8AJ;D>DB=:>�K8FEC=I=>?�FJ8E=9=E�BDFZF�=F�C8NO=C8KX����a� ��/
���������b��
����������QR� 678�9:;;:<=>?�CDB8FU�<7=E7�=>E;OK8�:+8C78DKU�DKH=>=FBCDB=+8�E:FB�D>K�JC:9=BU�F7D;;�I8�OB=;=V8K�=>�DCC=+=>?�DB�B78�988�9:C�@ABCD�&8C+=E8F�D>K�F7D;;�>:B�I8�E7D>?8K�9:C�B78�B8CH�:9�B78�G?C88H8>BX�M%�F7D;;�I=;;�=>�NODCB8Cc7:OC�=>EC8H8>BF�9:C�D;;�@ABCD�&8C+=E8FX��d�e���� �� ��a� ��/
���SC:T8EB�"=C8EB:C� f),*�&CX�SC:T8EB�%D>D?8C�� f,g*�SC:T8EB�%?C�hhiM%�=̀8;K�@>?=>88CiSC:T8EB�@>?=>88C�hh� f,jk�f,k*�



�

��������� 	
��������������������	����
���
�
�����������������
��
������������������������ �!���������"#$�"%&�'(()*((+,�

-./012/34�%252674� 8,9*�-./012/34� 8,:;�&<=7>?@74� 8,A;��BC� D=7�124EF?G�35�25H�2GG43+7>�0/71�3I�-J/42�&74+0<7.�G74I3417>�KH�.?KF<35.?@/25/L.M�34�.?K<35/42</34L.M�.=2@@�53/�7J<77>�I0+7�G74<75/�L*NMO���



�

��������� 	
��������������������	����
���
�
�����������������
��
����������������������� �!��������"#$�"%&�'(()*((+,�

��������-.����!�/��01�2034��567�89�:7;<=9>9?@ABC9D>9?E��



���
���

���
��

���
��

	
����	

�	
����

	
�	
���
�	
�	
�

���	
�
	
����	


����
��

���
���

�
���

��
����������

����� !�"#�$��
�������

%����$&%�'�� ���
�()�)�� �)$*'%)�

+������� , %�����-�.���
��

��/�
+#�0�.� ��#�.��#

��� +���#
��

��
��

��
��

��


1���2��3 

�4��3          
+#�0�.� ����5�#

$6�� 7�8�
����

����
����

�����
��

			�1���2��3 
��4���3        

+#�0�.� )�5����#
��8#�9 :��,�;�

��
����

����
����

��
�

�<
1���2��3 
��4���3          

 ����� =��)� , ����>?
��

���
���

����
������

�����
��

��
	@AB� 

�	C@
D�E        
FGHIJKLHK

MJNOPQJR
+#�0�.� ;"85��

ED@<��@���
SLL T

�2�T

%����#".����+#�.�� ��#U�.����.#�/���� %��6 &��-
��8 �.>��� ����#�.� V �.%���.>6 V ����8 �.>�8"�� , +>���

���B
���A

����5�,�WW#�U��� +#�."#�/��� �- �;;
��U� �� ��8 %�����"

�
�.�W� �- ��#U�.��X 

YNKLZ [J\L]JOL JR ̂PRL_
 NO ̀GL]J\JOPGa RHIL_b

]LR2 cd 
KIL HNOKGPKNGR RHIL_b]L

 ̀bRILR NbK ̀PRK KIJR KJ\
L]J OL 

KIL INbGR eJ]] OLL_ KN ̂
L P_fbRKL_2 

gGNhJ_L iNORKGbHKJNO \
POPjL\LOK RLGhJHLR dGN

\ kLRJjO KIGNbjI klF
 

i]NRLNbK

mnopqpr s



�

��������� 	
���������������������	����
���
�
�����������������
��
��������������������� ��!����������"#$�"%&�'(()*((+,�

��������-.�/��������0�����1���
�����23� 456�7%89�:66�96;�:<=;5�>?�;5>9�@A=66B6?;�95CDD�E6�:FDD�G<BH6?9C;><?�:<=�CDD�<:�7%89�&6=+>G69�>?GF==6I�>?�>;9�H6=:<=BC?G6J�>?GDFI>?AJ�K>;5<F;�D>B>;C;><?J�CDD�G<9;9�:<=�H6=9<??6DJ�;=C+6D�K>;5>?�;K<�5F?I=6I�L)MMN�B>D69�<:�;56�O=<P6G;�D<GC;><?�L;=C+6D�=6>BEF=96B6?;9�BF9;�E6�CHH=<+6I�EQ�">9;=>G;�H=><=�;<�;=C+6DNJ�<::>G69J�H6=�I>6B�6RH6?969J�<::>G6�9FHHD>69J�H=>?;>?AJ�H=<+>I>?AJ�<=�95>HH>?A�<:�I6D>+6=CED69�>?�;56�SFC?;>;>69�96;�:<=;5�>?��T �U���-�V.�W3� 456�CB<F?;�<:�G<BH6?9C;><?�95CDD�E6�;56�CB<F?;�96;�:<=;5�>?�;56�@A=66B6?;J�>?GDFI>?A�CDD�E>DD6I�6RH6?969X�Y<�G<BH6?9C;><?�K>DD�E6�HC>I�<=�IF6J�K>;5<F;�CI+C?G6�K=>;;6?�CHH=<+CD�<:�;56�">9;=>G;X����� ������	
����������
�������������23� 7%�95CDD�9FEB>;�B<?;5DQ�>?+<>G69�:<=�;56�H<=;><?�<:�;56�<+6=CDD�:66�=6:D6G;>?A�;56�96=+>G69�H6=:<=B6I�C?I�G<9;9�>?GF==6I�:<=�6CG5�=69H6G;>+6�B<?;5X�Z?�?<�6+6?;�95CDD�;56�;<;CD�HCQB6?;9�6RG66I�;56�7%89�:66�96;�:<=;5�>?�@=;>GD6�(�;5>9�@A=66B6?;�6RG6H;�C9�CF;5<=>[6I�F?I6=��T �U���-�V.�W3� 7%�95CDD�9FEB>;�;5696�>?+<>G69�>?�IFHD>GC;6�;<�;56�">9;=>G;�+>C�;56�">9;=>G;89�CF;5<=>[6I�=6H=696?;C;>+6X�\3� 7%�95CDD�9FEB>;�;<�">9;=>G;�<?�C�B<?;5DQ�EC9>9�I<GFB6?;C;><?�95<K>?A�H=<<:�;5C;�HCQB6?;9�K6=6�BCI6�;<�5>9]56=�9FÊG<?9FD;C?;9X�_3� H̀<?�=6G6>H;�C?I�CHH=<+CD�<:�7%89�>?+<>G69J�;56�">9;=>G;�CA=669�;<�BCa6�HCQB6?;9�<?�CDD�F?I>9HF;6I�CB<F?;9�?<�DC;6=�;5C?�;5>=;Q�L'MN�ICQ9�:=<B�=6G6>H;�<:�;56�>?+<>G6X�b3� 456�">9;=>G;�BCQ�K>;55<DI�<=�I6IFG;�:=<B�CB<F?;9�<;56=K>96�IF6�7%�56=6F?I6=�>:�7%�:C>D9�;<�;>B6DQ�C?I�G<BHD6;6DQ�H6=:<=B�BC;6=>CD�<ED>AC;><?9�;<�E6�H6=:<=B6I�<?�>;9�HC=;�F?I6=�;5>9�@A=66B6?;J�K>;5�;56�CB<F?;9�K>;556DI�<=�I6IFG;6I�E6>?A�=6D6C96I�C:;6=�7%�5C9�:FDDQ�GF=6I�9FG5�:C>DF=6�<:�H6=:<=BC?G6J�D699�G<9;9J�ICBCA69�<=�D<9969�9F9;C>?6I�EQ�;56�">9;=>G;�=69FD;>?A�;56=6:=<BX��



�

��������� 	
���������������������	����
���
�
�����������������
��
������������������������ �!���������"#$�"%&�'(()*((+,�

��������-�.��/���0�1����23/4�0!��05����3���4067�03�/	/�0��03���/��7�����40�89:;<=>?=:@>9A=>�@:BC�D*,DEF(D�GHIJHHK�ILH�&MNOMPHKIQ�=RIS�TKRURHV�&NLQQW�"RXIORNI�YZ"RXIORNI[\�MKV�$RINLHWW?=<%�]KNB�YZ=%[\�UQO�NQKXIÔNIRQK�PMKM_HPHKI�XHO+RNHX�UQO�ILH�=B$B�%N=WMINLS�̀ R_L�&NLQQW�@HJ�&QUIGMWW?aMXHGMWW�bRHWV�]PcOQ+HPHKIX�8OQdHNI�YZ=QKIOMNI[�QO�Z8OQdHNI[\B�>LH�̂KVHOXR_KHV�VQHX�LHOHGS�NHOIRUS�IQ�ILH�_Q+HOKRK_�GQMOV�QU�ILH�"RXIORNI�MX�UQWWQJXC����>LMI�]�MP�M�OHcOHXHKIMIR+H�QU�ILH�=%�N̂OOHKIWS�̂KVHO�NQKIOMNI�JRIL�ILH�"RXIORNIe�ILMI�]�MP�UMPRWRMO�JRIL�ILH�UMNIX�LHOHRK�NHOIRURHVe�MKV�ILMI�]�MP�M̂ILQORfHV�MKV�ĝMWRURHV�IQ�HhHN̂IH�ILRX�NHOIRURNMIH�QK�GHLMWU�QU�=%B�=%�NHOIRURHX�ILMI�RI�LMX�IMiHK�MI�WHMXI�QKH�QU�ILH�UQWWQJRK_�MNIRQKX�JRIL�OHXcHNI�IQ�ILH�8OQdHNI�ILMI�MOH�ILH�X̂GdHNI�QU�ILH�=QKIOMNI�YNLHNi�MWW�ILMI�MccWS\C� �j�8̂OX̂MKI�IQ�<V̂NMIRQK�=QVH�XHNIRQK�F*,)*B)k�=%�LMX�RKXIMWWHV�QO�JRWW�RKXIMWWk�cORQO�IQ�NQPPHKNHPHKI�QU�#QOik�M�cLSXRNMW�GMOORHO�MI�ILH�#QOi�&RIHk�ILMI�JRWW�WRPRI�NQKIMNI�GHIJHHK�=%lX�HPcWQSHHX�MKV�"RXIORNI�ĉcRWX�MI�MWW�IRPHXe�MKV?QO�m�8̂OX̂MKI�IQ�<V̂NMIRQK�=QVH�XHNIRQK�F*,)*B)k�=%�NHOIRURHX�ILMI�MWW�HPcWQSHHX�JRWW�GH�̂KVHO�ILH�NQKIRK̂MW�X̂cHO+RXRQK�QUk�MKV�PQKRIQOHV�GSk�MK�HPcWQSHH�QU�ILH�=%�JLQ�ILH�=MWRUQOKRM�"HcMOIPHKI�QU�;̂XIRNH�YZ":;[\�LMX�MXNHOIMRKHVk�QO�MX�VHXNORGHV�GHWQJk�JRWW�MXNHOIMRKk�LMX�KQI�GHHK�NQK+RNIHV�QU�M�+RQWHKI�QO�XHORQ̂X�UHWQKSB�>LH�KMPH�MKV�IRIWH�QU�ILH�HPcWQSHH�JLQ�JRWW�GH�X̂cHO+RXRK_�=%lX�MKV�RIX�X̂GNQKIOMNIQOXl�HPcWQSHHX�RXC�@MPHC��;HUU�"HHX� � � � � � � �>RIWHC��8OQdHNI�"ROHNIQO�� � � � � � �04��C�]U�ILH�=%�RX�M�XQWH�cOQcORHIQOk�MKV�HWHNIX�ILH�MGQ+H�QcIRQKk�=%�P X̂I�LM+H�ILH�MGQ+HEKMPHV�HPcWQSHHnX�URK_HOcORKIX�cOHcMOHV�MKV�X̂GPRIIHV�GS�ILH�"RXIORNIk�RK�MNNQOVMKNH�JRIL�<V̂NMIRQK�=QVH�XHNIRQK�F*,)*B,YL\B�@Q�JQOi�XLMWW�NQPPHKNH�̂KIRW�X̂NL�VHIHOPRKMIRQK�GS�ILH�":;�LMX�GHHK�PMVHB��AX�MK�M̂ILQORfHV�"RXIORNI�QUURNRMWk�]�MP�UMPRWRMO�JRIL�ILH�UMNIX�LHOHRK�NHOIRURHVk�MKV�MP�M̂ILQORfHV�IQ�HhHN̂IH�ILRX�NHOIRURNMIH�QK�GHLMWU�QU�ILH�"RXIORNI�MKV�̂KVHOIMiH�IQ�cOHcMOH�MKV�X̂GPRI�=%nX�URK_HOcORKIX�MX�RU�LH�QO�XLH�JMX�MK�HPcWQSHH�QU�ILH�"RXIORNIB��"MIHC��ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo�"RXIORNI�9HcOHXHKIMIR+HnX�@MPH�MKV�>RIWHC��o;HXXH�=MXIRWWQk�AXXRXIMKI�&̂cHORKIHKVHKI�QU�âXRKHXX�&HO+RNHX�"RXIORNI�9HcOHXHKIMIR+HnX�&R_KMÎOHC�oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo�j�>LH�#QOi�QK�ILH�=QKIOMNI�RX�HRILHO�YR\�MI�MK�̂KQNN̂cRHV�XNLQQW�XRIH�MKV�KQ�HPcWQSHH�MKV?QO�X̂GNQKIOMNIQO�QO�X̂ccWRHO�QU�MKS�IRHO�QU�ILH�=QKIOMNI�XLMWW�NQPH�RK�NQKIMNI�JRIL�ILH�"RXIORNI�ĉcRWX�QO�YRR\�=%nX�HPcWQSHHX�QO�MKS�X̂GNQKIOMNIQO�QO�X̂ccWRHO�QU�MKS�IRHO�QU�ILH�=QKIOMNI�JRWW�LM+H�QKWS�WRPRIHV�NQKIMNIk�RU�MKSk�JRIL�"RXIORNI�ĉcRWX�MKV�ILH�"RXIORNI�JRWW�IMiH�MccOQcORMIH�XIHcX�IQ�cOQIHNI�ILH�XMUHIS�QU�MKS�ĉcRWX�ILMI�PMS�NQPH�RK�NQKIMNI�JRIL�=QKX̂WIMKInX�HPcWQSHHXk�X̂GNQKIOMNIQOX�QO�X̂ccWRHOX�XQ�ILMI�ILH�URK_HOcORKIRK_�MKV�NORPRKMW�GMNi_OQ̂KV�RK+HXIR_MIRQK�OHĝROHPHKIX�QU�<V̂NMIRQK�=QVH�XHNIRQK�F*,)*B,�XLMWW�KQI�MccWS�IQ�=%�̂KVHO�ILH�=QKIOMNIB��AX�MK�M̂ILQORfHV�"RXIORNI�QUURNRMWk�]�MP�UMPRWRMO�JRIL�ILH�UMNIX�LHOHRK�NHOIRURHVk�MKV�MP�M̂ILQORfHV�IQ�HhHN̂IH�ILRX�NHOIRURNMIH�QK�GHLMWU�QU�ILH�"RXIORNIB��



�

��������� 	
���������������������	����
���
�
�����������������
��
������������������������ �!���������"#$�"%&�'(()*((+,�

"-./0�1111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111��"23.425.�6/74/3/8.-.2+/93�:-;/�-8<�=2.>/0�111111111111111111111111111111111��"23.425.�6/74/3/8.-.2+/93�&2?8-.@4/0�1111111111111111111111111111111111111�A�=B/�C%D�EBF�23�8F.�-�3F>/�74F742/.F4D�B-3�5F;7>2/<�E2.B�.B/�G28?/47428.28?�4/H@24/;/8.3�FG�I<@5-.2F8�CF</�3/5.2F8�J*,)*K,�E2.B�4/37/5.�.F�->>�C%93�/;7>FL//3�-8<�->>�FG�2.3�3@M5F8.4-5.F439�/;7>FL//3�EBF�;-L�B-+/�5F8.-5.�E2.B�"23.425.�7@72>3�28�.B/�5F@43/�FG�74F+2<28?�3/4+25/3�7@43@-8.�.F�.B/�CF8.4-5.D�-8<�.B/�"NO�B-3�</./4;28/<�.B-.�8F8/�FG�.BF3/�/;7>FL//3�B-3�M//8�5F8+25./<�FG�-�G/>F8LD�-3�.B-.�./4;�23�</G28/<�28�I<@5-.2F8�CF</�3/5.2F8�J*,))K,K��P�5F;7>/./�-8<�-55@4-./�>23.�FG�C%Q3�/;7>FL//3�-8<�FG�->>�FG�2.3�3@M5F8.4-5.F43Q�/;7>FL//3�EBF�;-L�5F;/�28�5F8.-5.�E2.B�"23.425.�7@72>3�<@428?�.B/�5F@43/�-8<�35F7/�FG�.B/�CF8.4-5.�23�-..-5B/<�B/4/.FR�-8<SF4�A�=B/�C%�23�-�3F>/�74F742/.F4�-8<�28./8<3�.F�5F;7>L�E2.B�.B/�G28?/47428.28?�4/H@24/;/8.3�FG�I<@5-.2F8�CF</�3/5.2F8�J*,)*K,TBU�E2.B�4/37/5.�.F�->>�C%93�/;7>FL//3�EBF�;-L�B-+/�5F8.-5.�E2.B�"23.425.�7@72>3�28�.B/�5F@43/�FG�74F+2<28?�3/4+25/3�7@43@-8.�.F�.B/�CF8.4-5.D�-8<�B/4/ML�-?4//3�.F�.B/�"23.425.93�74/7-4-.2F8�-8<�3@M;2332F8�FG�G28?/47428.3�3@5B�.B-.�.B/�"NO�;-L�</./4;28/�.B-.�8F8/�FG�.BF3/�/;7>FL//3�B-3�M//8�5F8+25./<�FG�-�G/>F8LD�-3�.B-.�./4;�23�</G28/<�28�I<@5-.2F8�CF</�3/5.2F8�J*,))K,K��:F�EF4V�3B->>�5F;;/85/�@8.2>�3@5B�</./4;28-.2F8�ML�.B/�"NO�B-3�M//8�;-</K��P3�-8�-@.BF42W/<�"23.425.�FGG252->D�X�-;�G-;2>2-4�E2.B�.B/�G-5.3�B/4/28�5/4.2G2/<D�-8<�-;�-@.BF42W/<�.F�/Y/5@./�.B23�5/4.2G25-./�F8�M/B->G�FG�.B/�"23.425.�-8<�@8</4.-V/�.F�74/7-4/�-8<�3@M;2.�C%93�G28?/47428.3�-3�2G�B/�F4�3B/�E-3�-8�/;7>FL//�FG�.B/�"23.425.K��"-./0��1111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111�"23.425.�6/74/3/8.-.2+/93�:-;/�-8<�=2.>/0�� 11111111111111111111111111111�"23.425.�6/74/3/8.-.2+/93�&2?8-.@4/0�11111111111111111111111111111111111111�� �C%93�4/37F832M2>2.L�GF4�M-5V?4F@8<�5>/-4-85/�/Y./8<3�.F�->>�FG�2.3�/;7>FL//3D�3@M5F8.4-5.F43�F4�3@77>2/43D�-8<�/;7>FL//3�FG�3@M5F8.4-5.F43�F4�3@77>2/43�5F;28?�28.F�5F8.-5.�E2.B�"23.425.�7@72>3�4/?-4<>/33�FG�EB/.B/4�.B/L�-4/�</32?8-./<�-3�/;7>FL//3�F4�-5.28?�-3�28</7/8</8.�5F8.4-5.F43�FG�.B/�C%K�Z�����[[\�����]�̂���_L0� 1111111111111111111111111111111111111�� #/8<L�CFB/8�� 4̀/32</8.� � � � �"-./0��1111111111111111111111111119/16/2023



 
 
 
 

 1 

United College Action Network, Inc. 
 
 
 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
5735 47th Ave. 
Sacramento, CA 95824 
 
July 15, 2023 
 
Proposal to:  
SCUSD College & Career Readiness Department 
5735 47th Avenue Sacramento, CA 95824 
Office:  916.643.9197 
 
Founded in 1988, the United College Action Network (U-CAN), Inc. has successfully assisted thousands of high 
school students, especially underserved, underrepresented, economically  and culturally disadvantaged youth, in 
the Sacramento City Unified School District, Twin Rivers Unified School District, Natomas Unified School District, 
San Juan Unified School District, and other school districts in Northern and Southern California, the Central Valley, 
East Bay Area and Las Vegas NV in matriculating at four-year Historically Black Colleges and Universities 
(HBCUs).  In 2000, U-CAN expanded its program to include college preparation assistance any program participant 
who wanted to attend any public or private two or four-year college or university.  To date, more than 30 million 
dollars have been awarded for academic and athletic scholarships and several thousand students have received full 
admissions to our partner HBCUs. 
 
U-CAN’s Mission 
U-CAN's successful programs are based in the belief that every child is capable of learning and succeeding in a 
nurturing environment, and the deep commitment to making college a reality for all economically and culturally 
disadvantaged youth. U-CAN fulfills its mission through strong relationships with local schools and school districts, 
parents and community leaders, and its long partnerships with the 103 HBCUs in the United States which, while 
overall providing excellent educations in every field and profession to well prepared students, as well as being more 
open to accepting promising students with below average GPAs.  U-CAN’s HBCU partners also offer smaller 
classes, more financial assistance, and critical direct support from staff and administrators.   Additionally, U-CAN’s 
wrap-around approach intentionally targets the many challenges faced by students and their parents, from financial 
aid and cultural issues to family dynamics, including the lack of knowledge about eligibility criteria for mainstream 
and historically black colleges and universities. While U-CAN serves primarily African Americans (89%), any 
student population that is underserved and underrepresented  may participate in U-CAN's on-campus 
programs and receive assistance in attaining admissions to colleges of their choice.  No student is turned 
away who wishes to participate in any U-CAN program.   
 
U-CAN proposes to re-instate an expanded service contract to provide services with a targeted intentional focus on 
continuing re-engaging students while closely monitoring and providing interventions and support of the opportunity 
gaps acquired during the pandemic crisis school closings. The monitored areas will be the following:  college 
readiness/preparation, college admissions preparation, grades/credit recovery, attendance, behavior, social-
emotional readiness/support, and diversity awareness. 
 
 



United College Action Network, Inc. Contract for Professional Services     Page 2  

U-CAN staff works with students who are recommended by counselors and teachers, recruited through U-CAN 
program outreach orientations, or attend U-CAN’s Annual Historically Black College/University (HBCU) Recruitment 
Fair scheduled to be held September 13, 2023 at Luther Burbank High School in Sacramento, CA.  Our annual 
college fair brings to the Sacramento area admissions directors and counselors from over 25 HBCUs, some who 
will be prepared to offer “on the spot” preliminary admissions and scholarship awards to seniors who will graduate 
in 2024, if students present copies of required admissions documents (scanned copy of transcripts, essays, 
SAT/ACT scores, etc.). U-CAN will assist students prepare their application packages. 
 
All U-CAN staff serving students are holders of Bachelor’s Degrees, advanced degrees, and/or State Department of 
Education certifications.  All staff have received COVID-19 vaccination. 
 
The Service Contract 
United College Action Network, Inc. (U-CAN) is pleased to provide the following 2023-2024 strategically designed 
proposal for implementation of intentionally targeted direct college and career support services to interested and/or 
referred high school students in the Sacramento City Unified School District (six (6) comprehensive to assist with 
mitigating the lost and results of valuable preparation, implementation of steps, and procedures that are required to 
successfully plan for post-secondary options (2 or 4 year college including commissioned military options/ROTC, 
etc.) 
 
As a result of the COVID-19 Pandemic, since March 2020, many of our underserved and underrepresented high 
school students have not had access to in-person instruction, therefore rendering a host of critical opportunity gaps 
that need to be addressed in order to ensure students meet a-g requirements, be prepared to graduate on time, as 
well as being prepared to begin their post-secondary plans in a timely matter, including college matriculation in the 
fall of 2024 for the 2024 graduating class.  
 
College Admissions Preparation (CAP) Program Goals: 
This proposal reflects services designed to support high school students on a successful path to career 
and college attainment and graduation by assisting students individually and in small groups to meet the 
following program goals: 

• Encourage students to see themselves as college bound and instill the belief that college is accessible to 
everyone, 

• Encourage students to assess where they are in their college search and application process and what 
steps to take to reach their goals of choosing the college that best suits their needs, 

• Help students assess their career interests and aspirations and begin researching colleges to pursue those 
goals, 

• Assist students in deeply analyzing their transcripts quarterly, including mandatory and suggestive next 
steps, 

• Assist students and their families to clearly understand the process of college admissions and financial aid, 
and 

• Ensure that students program goals and activities are aligned with District/Departmental Career and 
College Readiness Goals. 

 
Program Quantifiable Objectives:   



United College Action Network, Inc. Contract for Professional Services     Page 3  

1. One hundred per cent (100%) of students enrolled in the UCAN CAP Program will received case-
managed services and support, including college application preparation, career interest assessments, 
college financial aid information/literacy and monthly parental/guardian contacts and updates. 

2. Eighty per cent (80%) of program students will be introduced and guided through the process of 
evaluating three (3) or more colleges, as well as completing and submitting a minimum of three (3) 
applications for admissions to colleges of their choice. 

3. Eighty per cent (80%) of program 12th grade students will be introduced and guided through the 
financial aid process, including the successful completion and submission of their Free Application for 
Federal Student Aid (FAFSA). Eleventh grade students will be introduced to and take the online mock 
FAFSA. 

4. One hundred per cent (100%) of program students receiving case management services will be 
supported to complete the College and Career Guidance Initiative Program (CCGI), including the 
completion of the CCGI Portfolio (career interest inventory and post-secondary plans) or an alternative 
approved career assessment inventory. 

5. Eighty percent (80%) of program students will received quarterly transcript reviews, including how to 
calculate grade point average, review of the A-G requirements, quarterly grade checks, and 
recommendations support interventions. Each session will be followed by both mandatory and 
suggestive next steps, e.g. better study habits, time management, change classes, request different 
teacher, tutoring, alternative high school, credit recovery program, etc.  Staff will work closely with 
counselors to accomplish this objective. 

6. Eighty percent (80%) of program students will participate in our  monthly Social-Emotional Learning 
(SEL) Activities and Equity and Inclusion Activities. 

7. One hundred percent (100%) of monthly updates will be shared with designated site staff member to 
ensure that students program goals and activities are aligned with District/Departmental Career and 
College Readiness Goals 

8. One hundred per cent (100%) of program students will be required to complete a Request for U-CAN 
Program Services Form which will also service as both an (an Opt-in Program Form and a Program 
Pre-Survey Form).  If students decide to opt-out of program services, a Program Opt-Out Form will 
require a student and parent signature. 

All student progress will be documented on U-CAN Student Data Accountability System, which will be discussed 
and shared with site designated staff during quarterly/semester update program meetings. 
 
Direct services will include:  

• participation in college fairs, including U-CAN’s Annual Historically Black College/University Fair,  
• college fairs follow up sessions (including an implementation plan for “next steps”,  
• college/career prep coaching,  
• family engagement sessions,  
• social-emotional check-ins, 
• Equity and Inclusion Outreach Activities (survey/question responses/podcasts/webinars/zoom 

sessions, etc.) 
• a case management accountability model will be employed to document all program interactions 

and to monitor all measurable program outcomes, and 
• monthly site meetings with designated administrative and/or counseling program contact person to 

share student updates.  
 
Modes for Delivery of Program Related Services (synchronous and/or asynchronous): 

• bi-weekly large group, class sessions, and small group sessions/meetings,   
• bi-weekly posted office hours (3 hours x 2) for student follow-up appointments, 
• scheduled zoom/webinar sessions 



United College Action Network, Inc. Contract for Professional Services     Page 4  

• outreach via text, phone calls, and emails 
 
District/Site Level Program Support: 
To provide all services related to the stated CAP Program goals and activities, SCUSD will: 

1. Co-host with U-CAN staff/counselor’s meeting for all sites during August-September 2023.  This opportunity 
will allow U-CAN staff to begin making initial contacts, as well as scheduling future 
administrative/counselors’ team meetings to share program updates.  

2. Provide designated classroom space for class-size program presentations/meetings and individual 
sessions conduced during scheduled office hours. 

3. Provide a designated CAP Program site administrator or counselor.  Schedule monthly 
meetings/communication opportunity to share program updates and proposed program adjustments. 

4. Provide a system for student notifications for scheduled U-CAN program activities, via school 
announcements, passes, website, etc. 

5. Provide copies of student transcripts, attendance, behavior records, and test score for scheduled student 
progress/update meetings. 

6. Provide Professional Development trainings for U-CAN staff to assist staff with the information required to  
meet specific Districts goals (California Guidance Initiative). 

 
Impact of Services  
United College Action Network program/session activities/curriculum provides a comprehensive foundation to 
accomplish the program goals. 

Planned Services  Description (see more detail in Exhibit A and Exhibit B) Participants 
45-50 days of guided 
engagement/ college 
planning activities, 
discussions, 
assistance, and 
support in 
researching career 
plan and colleges 
and completing and 
submitting college 
admissions packets. 
(110 days of 
associated prep/case 
management 
activities/mentoring 
and coaching 
support/ assistance) 

• 45-50 days for large group, small group, individual, 
and family sessions involving successful high 
school mentoring and coaching targeted 
interventions  that prepare students for success in 
careers-based post-secondary options: selection of 
a-g classes, how to get additional support when 
needed, career to college selections (how career 
options support choice of college majors), 
understanding and preparing for financial support in 
college, resumes, understanding the FAFSA 
process and reflecting on options/choices selected, 
and monitoring student attendance and grades.  
California College Guidance Initiative goals and 
activities will serve as a model for many of the 
student career engagement activities of the U-CAN 
College Admissions Program (CAP) Program. 

• SEL and Equity and Diversity sessions, outreach 
surveys, activities, and follow-ups to support any 
re-engagements issues students may identify or 
exhibit. 

• 110+ days of on/off-site support and follow-up with 
students, counselors, teachers, families, and 
college officials, etc. (case management). 

• Parent/Guardian monthly updates, outreach, and 
referrals to support and assistance, if 
requested/needed. 

U-CAN will serve: 
• Up to 300 9th 

to 12th grade 
students for 
group and 
individual 
sessions/ 
presentations 

• case manage 
a minimum of 
125 seniors.  
(Official case 
management 
will begin 
after the 3rd 
student 
meeting.) 9th-
11th graders 
engagement 
activities will 
be profile an 
spreadsheet. 
 
 

 



United College Action Network, Inc. Contract for Professional Services     Page 5  

Activities are delineated in the attached Exhibit A: SCUSD will be responsible for providing appropriate student 
meeting space.  United College Action Network, Inc. (U-CAN) does provide program participants snacks and 
required materials needed to complete program projects but does not provide meals. U-CAN will provide copies of 
all student program materials. 
 
Payment Schedule 
The specific amount of fees for the services offered by U-CAN for the 2023-2024 school year in this proposal with the 
SCUSD is one hundred sixty thousand dollars ($160,000.00).  
 
United College Action Network, Inc. will invoice SCUSD in ten equal installments of Sixteen Thousand Dollars 
($16,000.00) monthly beginning October 1, 2023 for services beginning August 16, 2023 – June 30, 2024.  (U-CAN 
will schedule outreach to school sites from August 16-27, 2023 to begin advertising, registering, and scheduling 
students to attend the Annual U-CAN Historically Black College and Universities Recruitment Fair, which is 
tentatively scheduled for September 13, 2023, with no extra cost to the district.) 
 

Monthly Services Provided Monthly Invoice Submitted Request Payment on/before Date 
August 2023 September 27, 2023 October 15, 2023 
October 2023 October 25, 2023 November 15, 2023 

November 2023 November 22, 2023 December 17, 2023 
December 2023 December 17, 2023 January 17, 2024 
January 2024 January 26, 2024 February 15, 2024 
February 2024 February 23, 2024 March 15, 2024 

March 2024 March 28, 2024 April 15, 2024 
April 2024 April 26, 2024 May 16, 2024 
May 2024 May 24, 2024 June 15, 2024 
June 2024 June 22, 2024 July 15, 2024 

 
All payments should be sent to: 
United College Action Network, Inc.   
PO Box 5249  
Fair Oaks, CA 95628 
Cell: 916-591-8558   Office: 916-896-3000     
 
Key Contacts (to be completed by Sacramento City Unified Scholl District  
 
Contract/ Billing Contact   

Name Email Phone 
   

 
Professional Development Liaison  

Name Email Phone 
   

 
Reservation of Intellectual Property 
All materials developed or provided by U-CAN (dba United College Action Network, Inc.) or its agents pursuant to 
this Agreement, and any know-how, methodologies, equipment, or processes used by United College Action 
Network, Inc. to provide the Services to SCUSD including, without limitation, all copyrights, trademarks, trade 
secrets, and other proprietary rights are and will remain the sole and exclusive property of United College Action 



United College Action Network, Inc. Contract for Professional Services     Page 6  

Network, Inc.  Unauthorized copying, reverse engineering, and creating unauthorized derivative works based on 
such materials are expressly forbidden except as outlined in this Agreement. 
 
Agreement 
United College Action Network, Inc. (dba U-CAN) and Sacramento City Unified Scholl District agree to the above 
scope of services.  This scope of services may only be changed in writing and must be signed by both parties. By 
signing this agreement, you attest that you are authorized to sign on behalf of Sacramento City Unified Scholl 
District. 

    
United College Action Network, Inc.    SCUSD Representative: Jesse Castillo 

 
President/CEO    Assistant Superintendent of Business Services 
Title    Title 
 
July 15, 2023 

    

Date    Date 
 
 
Please return a signed copy of this agreement and a Purchase Order (if applicable) to                                                       
Barbara Evans, U-CAN Deputy Director, via email/scan at bevans@ucangtc.org  or via fax at (916) 591-8558. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:bevans@ucangtc.org


United College Action Network, Inc. Contract for Professional Services     Page 7  

Attachment:  Exhibit A – Proposal Activity Details  
Month of 
Service 

 

Activity 
(Re-engagement 

presentation/mentoring/coaching 
Activities, Discussions, College/Financial 

Aid (FAFSA/SAR) Research, Preparing 
and Submitting College Application 

Packets, Student Program Assessments, 
Transcript reviews, SEL and Equity and 

Inclusion checks and discussions)   

Schools and # 
of Participants 

Rosemont, 
Kennedy, 
Johnson, 
Burbank, 

McClatchy, and              
W. Campus  

Minimum 
# of 

Facilitator 
Days 

Total Cost 

August-
October 

2023 
 

5 days campus recruitment/online 
registration/field trip forms/prep for             
U-CAN Annual College Fair  
2 days Follow-up college fair activities 
4 days of group/individual support 
completing/submitting new FAFSA     
(1-day PD for FAFSA (Date TBA) 

Serve up to 300 
students 

 

20 $32,000.00 

November 
2023 - 

 
January 

2024 

Monthly:  1 day of on-site group 
support/presentations  
1 day of off-site support,   
Nov.-Jan. transcript review w/feedback 
2 days individual /family case management 
activities   
1 day of prep/follow-up): 
Adjust schedules to meet needs of specific 
school population. 
Jan.-May 9th, 10th, and 11th graders begin 
college prep activities 

Serve up to 300 
students 

 
 

30 $48,000.00 

February-
April 
2024 

Seniors-Begin to review instructions on how 
to read and analyze the FAFSA Student Aid 
Report (SAR) as seniors begin to receive 
reports. 
April transcript review w/feedback 
Continue-juniors college prep activities: 
ACT Info/prep/waivers, college evaluations, 
CCGI Career Assessments/transcript 
analysis/mock FAFSA and letters of 
recommendations   

Serve up to 300 
students 

 

30 $48,000.00 
 

May - 
June 
2024 

Follow up Feb.-April prep activities.  
June-Finalize post-secondary plans. 
Produce and submit EOY Reports 

Serve up to 300 
students 

 

20 $32,000.00 

Program/Contract Total:  100 $160,000.00 

 
Attachment:  Exhibit B Sample Monthly Activities   



United College Action Network, Inc. Contract for Professional Services     Page 8  

 
 

 October November 

Main Focus 
 
 
 

• Transcript Review  
• FAFSA 
• HS College Planning Guide 
• UCAN Orientation/Activities (new 

students) 
• School Attendance 

• Scholarship Search and 
Prioritizing   

• UCAN Orientation/ 
Activities (new students) 

• Understanding Transcripts,     
GPA,  and Course Selections  

Student          
Re-engagement 

Activities 
 
 

Discussion and Review Topics 
• FAFSA/Financial Aid-Register 

online and submit 
• College Application 
• Review FA Checklist 
• Repaying Federal Loans 
• Introduction/Registration for 

Career Assessments 
• School Attendance and 

Responsibility for Make-up work 

• Discuss the importance of 
Letters of Recommendation 
and How and Who to Ask to 
Write for You (HO) 

• Discuss the Importance of 
Good Character (HO) 

• Introduction/Registration for 
Career Assessments 

• Understanding A-G and NCAA 
course requirements 

SEL/Equity and 
Inclusion 

• See Appendix C for suggested 
topics and questions for surveys, 
webinars, zoom/discussion  
sessions 

• See Appendix C for suggested 
topics and questions for 
surveys, webinars, 
zoom/discussion sessions 

Out of School 
Tasks 

• Complete College Search 
Worksheet 
Begin Formal Scholarship Search 

• Continue Working on College 
Search Worksheet 

• Continue Formal Scholarship 
Search 

UCAN 
Follow-up 
Activities 

 

• Plan to meet with Admission 
Officers schedule 
visits/conference calls 

• Plan additional time to meet with 
students individually and/or 
families regarding college plans  

• Track, document and monitor 
students’ college acceptance data 

• Plan to meet with Admission 
Officers schedule 
visits/conference calls 

• College Planning Timeline 
Check 

• Register for SAT/ACT 
• Document and tabulate college 

acceptances and scholarship 
awards 

Other 
Information 
Handouts (HO) 

• How and Who to Ask to Write for 
You…Letters of Recommendation 
(HO) 

• Discuss the “The Importance of 
Good Character” (HO) 

• College Prep Websites 

Parent 
Connections 

• Share “Elevator Introduction 
Speech with family 

• Contact parents to encourage 
attendance at site Financial Aid 
Workshops 



United College Action Network, Inc. Contract for Professional Services     Page 9  

 
 
Attachment:  Exhibit C – Proposal Social-Emotional, Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion Activity Topics   
 

Weekly Social-Emotional, Equity, and Inclusion Activity Topics   
Skills and Competencies  

Month of 
 

October 

How well students are able to persevere through setbacks to achieve important long-
term goals (not limited to academics) taking into account their experiences and identities. 
Student perceptions of whether students have the potential to change those factors that 
are central to their performance. 
How well students manage their emotions, thoughts, and behavior in different situations. 
How well students consider the perspectives of other and empathize with them. 

 
November 

How much students believe they can succeed in achieving academic outcomes. 
How well students deliberately use strategies to manage their own learning processes 
generally. 
How much effort students put into school and learning? 

December How well students regulate their emotions. 
Supports and Environment 

December Perceptions of the overall social and learning climate of the school.  
 

         January 
 

How strong the social connection is between teachers and students within and beyond 
the school. 
How much students feel that they are valued members of the school community. 
Perceptions of student physical and psychological safety while at school. 
How diversity, integrated, and fair school is for students from different races, with 
ethnicities, or cultures. 

February 
 

How often students learn about, discuss, and confront issues of race, ethnicity, and 
culture in school. 
How attentive and invested students are in school. 
How much students feel their teachers hold them to high expectations around effort, 
understanding, persistence, and performance in class. 

March 
 

How much students feel that an academic subject is interesting, important, and useful. 
How much students feel that school is interesting, important, and useful. 

Student Well-Being 
March How frequently students feel positive emotions. 
April How frequently students feel challenging emotions. 
May How supported students feel through their relationships with friends, family, and adults at 

school. 
Sample Questions 1. What is the biggest challenge you have faced in your life? 

2. What is one thing you wish your teacher knew about you? 
3. What accomplishments are you most proud of? 
4. What do you wish your teacher would know about your experiences of race, 

ethnicity, or culture at school? 
5. What is the most important thing your school can keep doing to support students 

of different races, ethnicities, and cultures? 
6. Thinking about everything in your life right now, what makes you feel the 

happiest? 
7. Thinking about everything in your life right now, what feels the hardest for you? 
8. How can teachers or other adult at the school do to better support you? 

 



Bluum USA, Inc. (f.k.a. Troxell Communications Inc.)
4675 E. Cotton Center Blvd
Suite 155
Phoenix AZ 85040 
www.bluum.com 

Quote
#281841

07/13/2023

281841

1 of 1

Bill To Ship To
Sacramento City Unified School District
5735 47TH AVE
SACRAMENTO CA 95824-4528

Memo:
Epson PL 119W & Screen quote (200)

P23-04467
PURCHASING SERVICES & WAREHOUSE
3051 REDDING AVE
SACRAMENTO CA 95820

Expires Sales Rep Contract Terms
10/11/2023 848 Bill Pitzner 01-150 Omnia (NCPA) Net 30

Qty Item MFG Price Ext. Price

200 V11H985020 
EPSON PowerLite 119W Projector, WXGA, 4000 Lumens

Epson $542.00 $108,400.00

200 V12H002S3Y 
ES3000 Ultraportable Projector Screen (Up To 80in Diagonal) 

Epson $193.00 $38,600.00

  Subtotal $147,000.00

  Tax Total (8.75%) $12,862.50

  Shipping Cost $0.00

  Total $159,862.50

This document is subject to the terms and conditions found here: www.bluum.com/terms-conditions. For quotes over 
$25,000 a Purchase Order is required, please reference this quote number on your PO. If purchasing via credit card a 2.5% 
surcharge fee will apply. For questions please contact your Bluum Account Representative.

Please inspect product upon delivery. All claims for defective merchandise or errors in shipping must be made within five 
days after receipt of goods. Returns require an authorization number and must be made within 30 days. A minimum 25% 
restocking fee may apply with the exception of out of box failures and replacements under warranty.



















 
 

Amendment No. 1 
 

Supplemental 504 Accommodation Nursing Staff Service Agreement 
BETWEEN 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT HEALTH SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
AND 

MAXIM HEALTHCARE STAFFING SERVICES, INC. 
 

Agreement between the Sacramento City Unified School District (DISTRICT) and Maxim Healthcare 
Staffing Services, Inc. (PROVIDER) is hereby amended as follows: 

 
2.4 Scope of Work 

 
J) Contracted staff at the Medical Assistant level will assist with testing and contact tracing of 

DISTRICT staff and students and other related duties pertaining to COVID-19 mitigation 
measures. Duties include but are not limited to: 

 
• Travel to multiple sites to perform PCR and rapid antigen COVID testing 
• Register and document testing and results in online application 
• Use appropriate PPE as directed for testing tasks 
• Maintain testing area and enforce mitigation measures at all times 
• Observe and direct staff and students in self swabbing anterior nasal samples 
• Perform testing procedures, applying drops, handling specimens package, packaging 

as directed 
• Contact via phone, email, text staff and parents for contact tracing follow up. 
• Monitoring and documenting person’s quarantine, testing status and return to 

work/school per district guidelines 
• Documenting contacts and activities 
• Communicate with SCUSD school nurses for oversight and training 
• Other duties as assigned related to all COVID mitigation measures, testing and 

contact tracing of staff and students 
• Staff must successfully complete the Johns Hopkins Contact Tracing training 
• Staff will undergo other trainings as needed that support the testing protocols, contact 

tracing, or other public health measures 
 

All other clauses and conditions between DISTRICT and PROVIDER as defined by the Agreement 
remain unchanged. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby intending to be legally bound have caused this Agreement 
to be executed by their duly authorized representatives. 

 
Sacramento City Unified School District Maxim Healthcare Staffing Services, Inc. 
 
 

 

Signature Signature 
 

   
 

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title 
 

 
 

  

Date Date 
 
 
 
 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3FB4C57B-304F-4C7A-B0E1-ACFD4A09061D

Florence Ugokwe
Assistant Controller





 

 
Rev. 7/12/23  

1 

Supplemental 504 Accommodation Nursing Staff Service Agreement 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT’S HEALTH SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

AND  

    ACTION SUPPORTIVE CARE SERVICES, INC. 

This Agreement is entered into on this day of 2023, by and between SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL 

DISTRICT’S HEALTH SERVICES DEPARTMENT located at 5735 47th Avenue, Box 764, Sacramento, CA 

95824, hereinafter referred to as DISTRICT, and ACTION SUPPORTIVE CARE SERVICES, INC. located at 

7777 Greenback Lane, Suite 208, Citrus Heights, CA 95610, hereinafter referred to as PROVIDER.  

Recitals  

WHEREAS, DISTRICT operates schools, as defined by State Law located in California and wishes to engage 

PROVIDER to provide trained healthcare PERSONNEL to supplement DISTRICT staff for 504 

Accommodation Nursing needs and:  

WHEREAS, PROVIDER operates a supplemental staffing agency and employs licensed health care 

PERSONNEL to provide health care services to DISTRICT.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the covenants, and agreements set out below, 

PROVIDER and DISTRICT agree as follows:  

1. Term of Agreement  

1.1 Term. This is a one (1) year agreement for July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024 with the option to renew 

annually for up to two (2) additional years, at the sole discretion of DISTRICT. No services are to be rendered 

until PROVIDER has received a signed, valid Purchase Order from DISTRICT.   

 

1.2 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated at any time by either party, with or without cause, by giving 

30 days’ written notice of such termination. Such termination will have no effect upon the rights and 

obligations resulting from any transactions occurring prior to the effective date of the termination.  

In the event of a termination for cause, DISTRICT may secure the required services from another PROVIDER. If 

the cost to DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this Agreement, PROVIDER shall 

pay the additional cost.  

2. Responsibility of PROVIDER  

2.1 Compliance with Laws, Statutes, Regulations. During the term of this Agreement, unless otherwise 

agreed, PROVIDER shall comply with all applicable Federal, state, and local statutes, laws, ordinances, 

rules, policies, and regulations. PROVIDER shall also comply with all applicable DISTRICT policies and 

procedures unless PROVIDER and DISTRICT specifically agree, in writing, that a policy or policies, or a 

portion of a policy, does/do not reasonably apply to PROVIDER. PROVIDER hereby acknowledges and 

agrees that it accepts all risks and responsibilities for its failure to comply with DISTRICT policies and shall 

indemnify DISTRICT under the provisions of  Sections 2.9, 5 and 6  of this Agreement for all liability, loss, 

damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) resulting from or arising out of PROVIDER'S 

failure to comply with applicable DISTRICT policies (e.g., those policies relating to the provision of 504 



 

 
Rev. 7/12/23  

2 

Accommodations and/or related services, facilities for individuals with exceptional needs, DISTRICT 

student enrollment and transfer, DISTRICT student inactive status, corporal punishment, student discipline, 

and positive behavior interventions).  

 

2.2 Services. PROVIDER will, upon request of DISTRICT, one or more appropriately licensed or certified healthcare 

professionals (i.e. Medical Assistants, LVNs, RNs, and other various health and related services staff, hereinafter 

referred to as PERSONNEL) as specified by DISTRICT to supplement DISTRICT staff for 504 Accommodation 

Nursing needs, subject to availability of qualified PERSONNEL.  Subject to the terms of Section 5.9 of this 

Agreement, to the extent that PROVIDER is unable to provide the type of healthcare provider requested by 

DISTRICT, PROVIDER will supply DISTRICT with a higher skilled healthcare provider. PROVIDER must, 

however, bill that higher skilled provider at that provider’s hourly rate as defined in this Agreement.  Assignment 

of Students is at the sole discretion of DISTRICT, and DISTRICT reserves the right to assign a student to another 

contracted agency at any time for any reason. 

2.3 Scope of Work. PROVIDER will:  

A) Adhere to all guidelines outlined in DISTRICT’s “AGENCY HEALTHCARE PROFESSIONAL   

      EXPECTATIONS” document (EXHIBIT A). 

B) Provide direct healthcare services as prescribed by a “licensed authorized healthcare provider” (hereinafter 

referred to as HCP) to DISTRICT students with 504 Accommodation(s) who require such services at 

student’s school of attendance, or in certain circumstances, at agreed field trip locations.  

 

C) Coordinate with the School Nurse assigned to the school site regarding all direct care services being provided 

to the student with 504 Accommodation(s). School Nurse will function as the case manager and facilitate all 

communications with HCP, parent/guardian, teachers, and DISTRICT.  

 

D) Immediately route all forms received by PERSONNEL to DISTRICT. Upon request, assist DISTRICT with 

obtaining necessary signatures from parent/guardian when DISTRICT receives incomplete form.  

E) Follow the most recent signed written orders from HCP after verifying presence of signed authorization 

from the parent or guardian of the student, indicating consent for the student to receive the HCP-prescribed 

direct care services at school.  

F) Minimize classroom disruptions in providing care per the written orders.  

G) Review current HCP orders and recent direct care logs; maintain daily documentation records in accordance 

with the requirements of confidentiality of student records. Records including HCP orders and parent 

requests, are to be considered mandatory interim student records that must remain on campus.  

H) Provide for the safety and direct care services for the student with 504 Accommodation(s), assuring 

personal privacy and dignity of the student.  

I) Assume responsibility for following emergency procedures, according to DISTRICT policy, should the need 

arise. DISTRICT Registered Certificated School Nurse may train PROVIDER PERSONNEL to administer 

emergency medications for diabetes, seizures, anaphylaxis, and opioid overdose. The DISTRICT will 

provide documentation of indicated training to the PROVIDER. 

2.4 Amendment of Scope of Work. Scope of Work as defined in section 2.3 may be amended with written approval 

of both PROVIDER and DISTRICT.  

2.5 PERSONNEL. PROVIDER will supply DISTRICT with PERSONNEL who meet the following criteria and will 



 

 
Rev. 7/12/23  

3 

provide evidence of any or all of the following to DISTRICT upon written request:  

A) Professional Licenses. Possess current state license(s), certification(s) and/or credential(s), as applicable and 

appropriate for the services provided to DISTRICT, including cardiopulmonary resuscitation certification, all 

documentation of which will be kept in the PROVIDER employee file. PROVIDER shall monitor the status 

of licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other documents for all individuals employed, 

contracted, and/or otherwise hired by PROVIDER.  

B) Clearances. Completed state-specific background checks and health assessment requirements, as defined by 

California education code, including but not limited to obtaining clearances from both the California 

Department of Justice (CDOJ) and clearance from the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) and 

Tuberculosis clearances.  

C) Transportation. Possess a valid California driver’s license and have access to a reliable vehicle.  

D) Compliance Training. Complete annual training within the past 12 months for current Cal-OSHA, HIPAA, 

FERPA, California Minor Consent and Confidentiality, Child Abuse Mandated Reporter, and medication 

administration and basic first aid laws and regulations to be approved by DISTRICT and provided by 

PROVIDER.  

 

E) Procedural Training and Skills Check. Complete training within the past 12 months on all standard and 

individualized care procedures applicable and appropriate for the services provided to DISTRICT (such as 

counting carbohydrates and calculating insulin dosage. Administering medications including insulin and 

emergency medications for diabetes, seizures, and anaphylaxis, proper body mechanics for transfers, clean 

intermittent catheterization, g-tube feedings and replacing a g-tube), to be provided by PROVIDER, and 

passed competency skills checks for those procedures, to be administered by a PROVIDER supervising 

clinician.  

F) Acknowledgement of Expectations. Sign an acknowledgement of understanding and commitment to adhere 

to all guidelines outlined in DISTRICT’s “AGENCY HEALTHCARE PROFESSIONAL

       EXPECTATIONS” document (EXHIBIT A).  

 

 

2.6 PERSONNEL Absences. When PROVIDER PERSONNEL are unable to provide services for their scheduled 

shift due to illness, transportation challenges, or any other reason, PROVIDER will make every effort to send 

alternate qualified PERSONNEL to cover the shift. In the event that PROVIDER is able to fill the shift with 

alternate PERSONNEL, PROVIDER will notify DISTRICT via email by end of day documenting the alternate 

coverage. In the event that PROVIDER is unable to fill the shift, PROVIDER will contact DISTRICT in the 

sequence and manner outlined in DISTRICT’s “Agency Healthcare Professional Expectations” document 

      (EXHIBIT A).  

 

 

2.7 Student Absences 

 

A) Single Student Caseload. When PERSONNEL’s caseload includes services for only a single student and 

PROVIDER receives at least 2 hours advance notification of the student’s absence from DISTRICT or 

student’s guardian, PERSONNEL is not expected to report for shift.  

B) Multiple Student Caseload. When PERSONNEL’s caseload includes services for multiple students and 

PROVIDER receives at least 2 hours advance notification of a student’s absence from DISTRICT or 

student’s guardian, PERSONNEL will still report to provide services for the remaining student(s) on 

caseload, at the level and duration ordered for the remaining student(s), not to be less than 4 hours.  

C) Sometimes PERSONNEL’s caseload contains students receiving services under their IEP and ordered by 

SCUSD’s Special Education department as well as students receiving services under their 504 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1umTjz5X6QWPEgItv9RgSg6FzfHeYVxOrGCqHDKgldLA/edit


 

 
Rev. 7/12/23  

4 

Accommodations and ordered by DISTRICT. In this situation, services rendered at that school site are billed 

to SCUSD’s Special Education department because the student requiring the largest duration or complexity 

of services at that school site receives those services under their IEP. In the event that the absent student 

receives services ordered by SCUSD’s Special Education department, and the remaining student(s) receive 

services ordered by DISTRICT, PROVIDER will bill DISTRICT for services provided on that day.  

2.8 Field Trip Coverage.  

A) Single Student Caseload. When PERSONNEL’s caseload includes services for only a single student and that 

student has a scheduled field trip, PROVIDER will provide services for the duration of time needed, not to be 

less than 4 hours.  

 

B) Multiple Student Caseload. When PERSONNEL’s caseload includes services for multiple students and one of 

them have a scheduled field trip, original PERSONNEL will attend the field trip with the student  

leaving campus and provide services for the duration of time needed, not to be less than 4 hours. 

PROVIDER will supply additional PERSONNEL to provide services for the remaining student(s) on 

caseload, at the level and duration ordered for the remaining student(s), not to be less than 4 hours.  

 

C. Overnight Field Trip Coverage - When PERSONNEL’s assignment includes overnight services 

PERSONNEL and DISTRICT  agrees to terms of  School District Out of Town Agreement.  (Appendix B) 

2.9 Insurance. PROVIDER shall, at their sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect, during the term of 

this Agreement, the following insurance coverage from a California licensed and/or admitted insurer with an A 

minus (A-), VII, or better rating from A.M. Best, sufficient to cover any claims, damages, liabilities, costs and 

expenses (including counsel fees) arising out of or in connection with PROVIDER's fulfillment of any of its 

obligations under this Agreement or either party's use of the work or any component or part thereof:  

A) Commercial General Liability Insurance, including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as 

follows:  

$2,000,000 per occurrence  

$ 500,000 fire damage  

$ 5,000 medical expenses  

$1,000,000 personal & adv. injury  

$3,000,000 general aggregate  

$2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate  

       The policy may not contain an exclusion for coverage of claims arising from claims for sexual molestation 

or abuse. In the event that PROVIDER’s policy should have an exclusion for sexual molestation or abuse 

claims, then PROVIDER shall be required to procure a supplemental policy providing such coverage.  

B) Business Auto Liability Insurance for all owned scheduled, non-owned or hired automobiles with a $1 

million combined single limit.  

       If no owned automobiles, then only hired and non-owned is required.  

       If PROVIDER uses a vehicle to travel to/from school sites, between schools and/or to/from students’ 

homes or other locations as approved service locations by the DISTRICT, PROVIDER must comply with 

State of California auto insurance requirements.  

C) Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance in a form and amount covering PROVIDER’s full 

liability under the California Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Safety Act and in accordance with 

applicable state and Federal laws.  

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1yiPtIs1pU5PyX-SDNrRyiqc25eRrqa41


 

 
Rev. 7/12/23  

5 

Part A – Statutory Limits  

Part B – $1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000 Employers Liability  

       D) Errors & Omissions (E & O)/Malpractice (Professional Liability) Insurance, including sexual molestation and 

abuse coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability policy by endorsement 

or separate policy, with the following limits:  

 

$1,000,000 per occurrence  

$2,000,000 general aggregate  

E) PROVIDER, upon execution of this Agreement and periodically thereafter upon request, shall furnish the 

DISTRICT with certificates of insurance evidencing such coverage. The certificate of insurance shall include 

a ten (10) day non-renewal notice provision. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability 

policy shall name the DISTRICT as additional insured and shall be endorsed on all policies. Certificate of 

Insurance, additional insured endorsement and declaration of insurance coverages shall be provided to 

DISTRICT. All premiums on all insurance policies shall be paid by PROVIDER and shall be deemed 

included in PROVIDER’s obligations under this contract at no additional charge.  

F) Any deductibles or self-insured retentions above $100,000 must be disclosed to and approved by the 

DISTRICT. At its option, DISTRICT may require the PROVIDER, at the PROVIDER’s sole cost, to: (a) 

cause its insurer to reduce to levels specified by the DISTRICT or eliminate such deductibles or self-

insured retentions with respect to the DISTRICT, its officials and employees, or (b) procure a bond 

guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation.  

G) For any claims related to the services contracted for under this Agreement, the PROVIDER’s insurance 

coverage shall be primary insurance as respects to the DISTRICT, its subsidiaries, officials and employees. 

Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the DISTRICT, its subsidiaries, officials and employees 

shall be excess of the PROVIDER's insurance and shall not contribute with it.  

H) All Certificates of Insurance may reference the contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the 

certificate, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate on the certificate.  

2.10 Data Reporting. PROVIDER agrees to provide to DISTRICT, all data (including billing information) related 

to students who are served by the PROVIDER. PROVIDER agrees to provide all data related to or referenced in 

any and all sections of this Agreement if requested by DISTRICT. PROVIDER agrees to provide all requested 

information in the format required by DISTRICT.  

PROVIDER shall use only DISTRICT provided care logs and/or format for such data, including but not limited to 

Diabetes Medical Management Plans, Medication Authorization forms, and care logs. Documentation shall 

remain at school in the student’s care binder.  

2.11 Use of Independent Contractors and Subcontractor. PERSONNEL provided to DISTRICT are employees 

of PROVIDER and are subject to PROVIDER’s standard screening process, as well as additional qualifications 

as required in this Agreement. If PROVIDER deems it necessary to obtain the services of a subcontractor to 

fulfill its requirements under this Agreement, PROVIDER will notify DISTRICT in writing of its intent to use 

subcontractors and will obtain written approval from DISTRICT. PROVIDER will ensure that any subcontractor 

will comply with all applicable terms of this Agreement. PROVIDER will provide written notification to 

DISTRICT if it becomes necessary for PROVIDER to utilize independent contractors to fulfill its staffing  

obligations to DISTRICT. Any PERSONNEL provided to DISTRICT by and independent contractor will be  

subject to the same qualifications as PROVIDER employees.  

2.12 Employment and Taxes. PROVIDER will follow its standard employment policies and procedures to verify 

that all PERSONNEL meet applicable licensing requirements. PROVIDER, or its subcontractor if applicable,  

      maintain direct responsibility as employer for the payment of wages and other compensation, and for any 



 

 
Rev. 7/12/23  

6 

applicable mandatory withholdings and contributions such as federal, state, and local income taxes, social 

security taxes, worker’s compensation, and unemployment insurance. DISTRICT shall be responsible for any 

sales tax, gross receipts tax, excise tax, or other state taxes applicable to the Services provided by PROVIDER.  

2.13 Incident Reports. PROVIDER shall report to DISTRICT any unexpected incident known to involve any 

PERSONNEL (such as PERSONNEL errors, unanticipated deaths or other unanticipated student-related events 

or injuries known to be attributable to PERSONNEL, and any safety hazards known to be related to the services 

provided by PERSONNEL) if the incident may have an adverse impact on the DISTRICT and/or PROVIDER in 

order to comply with DISTRICT’S incident tracking program. An Incident Report on the DISTRICT form shall 

be promptly completed and provided to both DISTRICT and the school site administrator, along with any witness 

statements.  

3. Responsibility of DISTRICT  

3.1 Orientation. DISTRICT will promptly provide PROVIDER PERSONNEL with orientation to the caseload 

assignment including medication, procedures, activities of daily living needs, emergency plans and site specific 

procedures.  

3.2 Requests for PERSONNEL. DISTRICT will use its best efforts to request PERSONNEL at least twenty-four 

(24) hours prior to reporting time in order to assure prompt arrival of assigned PERSONNEL. All information 

regarding reporting time, location, duration of approved hours and additional assignment details will be provided 

by DISTRICT at the time of the initial call. Those authorized to request PERSONNEL on behalf of DISTRICT, 

and/or authorize hours beyond the original quantity ordered, are as follows:  

A) Director III, Student Support & Health Services (Jacqueline Garner)  

B) Coordinator II, Health Services (Lisa Musser)  

C) Lead School Nurse (Paula Kuhlman)  

3.3 Short-Notice Requests. PROVIDER will bill DISTRICT for the entire shift if an order for staff is made less than 

two (2) hour(s) prior to the start of the shift, as long as PERSONNEL report for work within a reasonable prompt 

period of time under existing conditions after receiving notice of the assignment.  

3.4 Staff Order Cancellation. If DISTRICT changes or cancels an order less than two (2) hours prior to the start of a 

shift, PROVIDER will bill DISTRICT for two (2) hours at the established fee for each scheduled PERSONNEL. 

PROVIDER will be responsible for contacting PROVIDER PERSONNEL prior to reporting time.  

3.5 Responsibility for Student Care. DISTRICT retains full authority and responsibility for professional and 

medical management of care for each of its students, for developing and providing Individualized Healthcare 

Plans (IHP’s) for its students, and for ensuring that services provided by PROVIDER PERSONNEL under 

this agreement are furnished in a safe and effective manner and in accordance with applicable standards.  

3.6 Placement Fee. For a period of twelve (12) months following that date on which PROVIDER PERSONNEL last 

worked a shift at DISTRICT, DISTRICT agrees that it will take no steps to recruit, hire or employ as its own  

       employees or as a contractor those PERSONNEL provided by PROVIDER during the term of this Agreement. 

DISTRICT understands and agrees that PROVIDER is not an employment agency and that PERSONNEL are 

assigned to the DISTRICT to render temporary service(s) and are not assigned to become employed by the 

DISTRICT. The DISTRICT further acknowledges and agrees that there is a substantial investment in business 

related costs incurred by PROVIDER in recruiting, training and employing PERSONNEL, to include 

advertisement, recruitment, interviewing, evaluation, reference checks, training, and supervising PERSONNEL. 

In the event that DISTRICT, or any affiliate, subsidiary, department, or division of DISTRICT hires, employs or 

solicits PROVIDER PERSONNEL, DISTRICT will be in breach of this Agreement. DISTRICT agrees to give 

PROVIDER either (a) one hundred and eighty (180) days prior written notice of its intent to hire, or employ, 

continuing to staff PERSONNEL through PROVIDER for a minimum of thirty-six (36) hours per week through 

the one hundred and eighty (180) days notice period; OR (b) to pay PROVIDER a placement fee equal to the 



Rev. 7/12/23 
7 

greater of: five thousand dollars ($5,000) or the sum of thirty percent (20%) of such PERSONNEL's annualized 

salary (calculated as Weekday Hourly Bill Rate x 2080 Hours x 20%) unless PROVIDER extends 

documentation to DISTRICT waiving this right for the individual in question. 

3.7 Per Diem or Short-Term Staff Non-Performance. If DISTRICT concludes, in its sole discretion, that any 

PERSONNEL provided by PROVIDER have engaged in misconduct, or have been negligent, had excessive 

absenteeism, DISTRICT may require the PERSONNEL to leave the premises and will notify PROVIDER 

immediately, providing in reasonable detail the reason(s) for such dismissal. DISTRICT'S obligation to 

compensate PROVIDER for such PERSONNEL services will be limited to the number of hours actually worked. 

PROVIDER will not reassign the individual to DISTRICT without prior approval of the DISTRICT.  

3.8 Insurance. DISTRICT will maintain at its sole expense valid policies of general and professional liability 

insurance with minimum limits of $2,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 annual aggregate covering the 

acts or omissions of its employees, contractors and agents which may give rise to liability in connection 

with the Services under this Agreement. DISTRICT will provide prompt written notice of any material 

change in DISTRICT coverage.  

3.9 Incident Reports. DISTRICT shall report to PROVIDER any unexpected incident known to involve any 

PERSONNEL (such as PERSONNEL errors, unanticipated deaths or other unanticipated student-related events 

or injuries known to be attributable to PERSONNEL, and any safety hazards known to be related to the services 

provided by PERSONNEL) if the incident may have an adverse impact on the DISTRICT and/or PROVIDER in 

order to comply with PROVIDER’S incident tracking program. Complaints and grievances regarding 

PROVIDER PERSONNEL may be reported to the local PROVIDER representative at any time.  

4. Compensation

4.1 Invoicing. PROVIDER will supply PERSONNEL under this Agreement at the rates listed in the Attachment(s). 

A) Billing Cycle. Monthly - PROVIDER will submit invoices to DISTRICT every month for PERSONNEL provided

to DISTRICT during the preceding month.

B) Contents. Invoices will include the following:

○ Name(s) of PERSONNEL

○ Name(s) of School Site(s)

○ Name of Student(s) served by PERSONNEL

○ Individual Service Dates

○ Hours of Service provided (separated by School Site if serving at Multiple School Sites on the same day)

○ Charges (subtotaled by School Site whenever possible)

○ Individual timesheet data that includes time start, lunch period, time end and comments.

C) Submission. Invoices shall be submitted to the following address:

Sacramento City Unified School District 

ATTN: Health Services  

Health Services - Box 764  

5735 47th Avenue  



 

 
Rev. 7/12/23  

8 

Sacramento, CA 95824  

HealthServices@SCUSD.edu  

or to specific department personnel 

4.2 Payment. The DISTRICT agrees to pay to the PROVIDER the hourly sum itemized in SCHEDULE A for 

services performed, billed by PROVIDER’S employees during the term of the Agreement. PROVIDER agrees 

that said sum shall be full compensation for all services in performing this Agreement. Compensation will be in 

accordance with all applicable laws.  

Compensation is based on the student(s) school day hours as ordered by a DISTRICT as outlined in section 3.2 

and, if previously approved by a DISTRICT as outlined in section 3.2 and required, before and/or after school 

programs, and/or field trips. Extended time reimbursement is allowed only for recognized school activities 

authorized by a DISTRICT approver as outlined in section 3.2 or emergencies which have been reported and 

documented according to the guidelines in DISTRICT’s “AGENCY HEALTHCARE PROFESSIONAL 

EXPECTATIONS” document (EXHIBIT A) and in accordance with section 2.13 Incident Reports.  

PROVIDER shall submit invoices to the DISTRICT on a monthly basis. All amounts due to PROVIDER are due 

and payable within thirty (30) days from date of invoice. DISTRICT will send all payments to the address set 

forth on the invoice.  

4.3 Right to Withhold Payment. DISTRICT may withhold payment to PROVIDER when: (a) PROVIDER has 

failed to perform, in whole or in part, under the terms of this Contract; (b) PROVIDER has billed for services 

rendered on days other than billable days of attendance or for days when student was not in attendance and/or did 

not receive services; (c) PROVIDER was overpaid by DISTRICT as determined by inspection, review, and/or 

audit of its program, work, and/or records; (d) PROVIDER has failed to provide supporting documentation with 

an invoice; (e) services are provided to DISTRICT students by PERSONNEL who are not appropriately 

credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (g) PROVIDER receives payment from Medi-Cal or from any 

other agency or funding source for a service provided to a DISTRICT student; or (h) PROVIDER fails to provide 

the required liability/insurance documentation as outlined in Section 2.5 of this Agreement. It is understood that 

no payments shall be made for any invoices that are not received by three (3) months following the close of the 

prior fiscal year, for services provided in that year.  

Rev. [DATE]  

Page 9 of 13 

4.4 Rate Change. PROVIDER will provide DISTRICT at least thirty (30) days advance written notice of any change 

in rates.  

5. General Terms  

5.1 Non-discrimination. Neither PROVIDER nor DISTRICT will discriminate on the basis of age, race, color, 

national origin, religion, sex, disability, being a qualified disabled veteran, being a qualified veteran of the 

Vietnam era, or any other category protected by law.  

5.2 Independent Contractors. PROVIDER and DISTRICT are independent legal entities. Nothing in this 

Agreement shall be construed to create the relationship of employer and employee, or principal and agent, or any 

relationship other than that of independent parties contracting with each other solely for the purpose of carrying 

out the terms of this Agreement. Neither PROVIDER nor DISTRICT nor any of their respective agents or 

employees shall control or have any right to control the activities of the other party in carrying out the terms of 

this Agreement. All services rendered by PROVIDER shall be rendered in a competent, efficient, and satisfactory 

manner and in strict accordance with the currently approved methods and practices in the Consultant’s 

professional specialty.  

5.3 Assignment. Neither party may assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party, and 



 

 
Rev. 7/12/23  

9 

such consent will not be unreasonably withheld. No such consent will be required for assignment to an entity 

owned by or under common control with assignor or in connection with any acquisition of all of the assets or 

capital stock of a party; provided however, the assigning party will provide notice of such transaction to the 

other party and remain fully responsible for compliance with all of the terms of this Agreement.  

5.4 Indemnification. PROVIDER agrees to indemnify and hold harmless DISTRICT, and its directors, officers, and 

agents from and against any and all claims, actions, or liabilities which may be asserted against them by third 

parties in connection with the sole negligent performance of PROVIDER, its directors, officers, employees or 

agents under this Agreement only. DISTRICT agrees to indemnify and hold harmless PROVIDER, its directors, 

officers, shareholders, employees and agents from and against any and all claims, actions, or liabilities which 

may be asserted against them by third parties in connection with the negligent performance of DISTRICT, its 

directors, officers, employees, contractors or agents under this Agreement.  

5.5 Attorneys’ Fees. In the event either party is required to obtain legal assistance (including in-house counsel) to 

enforce its rights under this Agreement, or to collect any monies due to such party for services provided, the 

prevailing party shall be entitled to receive from the other party, in addition to all other sums due, reasonable 

attorney's fees, court costs and expenses, if any, incurred enforcing its rights and/or collecting its monies.  

5.6 Notices. Any notice or demand required under this Agreement will be in writing; will be personally served or sent 

by certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or by a recognized overnight carrier which provides 

proof of receipt; and will be sent to the addresses below. Either party may change the address to which notices 

are sent by sending written notice of such change of address to the other party.  

Sacramento City Unified School District Health Services - Box 764 Rev. [DATE]  

Page 10 of 13

5735 47th Avenue Sacramento, CA 95824 [PROVIDER NAME]  [PROVIDER ADDRESS] 

5.7 Headings. The headings of sections and subsections of this Agreement are for reference only and will not affect 

in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.  

5.8 Entire Contract; Counterparts. This Agreement constitutes the entire contract between DISTRICT and 

PROVIDER regarding the services to be provided hereunder. Any agreements, promises, negotiations, or 

representations not expressly set forth in this Agreement are of no force or effect. This Agreement may be 

executed simultaneously in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which 

together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Facsimile and electronic signatures shall also constitute 

original signatures for the purpose of this Agreement. No amendments to this Agreement will be effective 

unless made in writing and signed by duly authorized representatives of both parties. 

5.9 Availability of PERSONNEL. The parties agree that PROVIDER's duty to supply PERSONNEL on request of 

DISTRICT is subject to the availability of qualified PROVIDER PERSONNEL. The failure of PROVIDER to 

provide PERSONNEL or the failure of DISTRICT to request PERSONNEL shall result in no penalty to 

DISTRICT or any party claiming by or through it and shall not constitute a breach of this Agreement. In 

instances where PROVIDER is providing individual care for a student(s), PROVIDER will make commercially 

reasonable efforts to ensure that student(s) care remains consistent.  

5.10 Compliance with Laws. PROVIDER agrees that all services provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be 

performed in compliance with all applicable federal, state, and/or local rules and regulations. In the event that 

applicable federal, state or local laws and regulations or applicable accrediting body standards are modified, 



 

 
Rev. 7/12/23  

10 

PROVIDER reserves the right to notify DISTRICT in writing of any modifications to the Agreement in order to 

remain in compliance with such law, rule or regulation.  

5.11 Severability. In the event that one or more provision(s) of this Agreement is deemed invalid, unlawful 

and/or unenforceable, then only that provision will be omitted, and will not affect the validity or 

enforceability of any other provision; the remaining provisions will be deemed to continue in full force and 

effect.  

5.12 Governing Law, Jurisdiction. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 

of the State of California, without regard to its principles of conflict of laws. Any dispute or claim from this 

Agreement shall be resolved exclusively in the federal and state courts of the State of Maryland and the parties 

hereby irrevocably submit to the personal jurisdiction of said courts and waive all defenses thereto.  

5.13 Limitation on Liability. Neither PROVIDER nor DISTRICT will be responsible for special, indirect, 

incidental, consequential, or other similar damages, including but not limited to lost profits, that the other party 

may incur or experience in connection with this Agreement or the services provided, however caused, even if 

such party has been advised of the possibility of such damages.  

5.14 Conflict of Interest. By entering into this Agreement, the Parties agree that all conflicts of interest shall be 

disclosed to the other Party for review in accordance with that Party’s policies and procedures. A conflict of 

interest occurs when an employee or Contractor has professional or personal interests that compete with 

his/her  

services to or on behalf of PROVIDER or the DISTRICT, or the best interests of students. Such competing 

interests may make it difficult for an employee or Contractor to fulfill his or her duties impartially.  

6. Confidentiality of Protected Health Information  

6.1 Confidentiality.  

A) Student/Customer Information: Neither party nor its employees shall disclose any financial or medical 

information regarding students/customers treated hereunder to any third-party, except where permitted or 

required by law or where such disclosure is expressly approved by DISTRICT, PROVIDER and 

student/customer in writing. Further, each party and its employees shall comply with the other party’s rules, 

regulations and policies regarding the confidentiality of such information as well as all federal and state laws and 

regulations including, without limitation, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 

(“HIPAA”) and the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (“HITECH”).  

B) Permanence. The obligations set forth in this Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement.  

6.2 HIPAA/HITECH Obligations. Each party and its respective staff shall comply with all federal and state laws 

and regulations, and all rules, regulations, and policies of the other party, regarding the confidentiality of 

student information, to include, without limitation, HIPAA, HITECH and FERPA. In addition, if necessary, the 

parties agree to resist any effort to obtain access to such records or information in judicial proceedings, except 

such access as is expressly permitted by federal/state regulations.  

To the extent that DISTRICT may be a “Covered Entity” as defined by HIPAA, and would therefore be subject to 

applicable requirements, including, but not limited to, requirements to enter into certain contracts with their 

“business associates,” by HIPAA, the parties acknowledge that a business associate agreement is not needed due 

to the nature of services provided by PROVIDER. Specifically, the parties acknowledge that under HIPAA, 

PERSONNEL provided hereunder are considered part of DISTRICT’s workforce and to that end, all Protected 

Health Information (“PHI”) is created, viewed, used, maintained and otherwise stored and safeguarded in 



Jesse Castillo, Interim Chief Business Officer



 

 
Rev. 7/12/23  

12 

EXHIBIT A 

Sacramento City Unified School District - Health Services Department 

AGENCY HEALTHCARE PROFESSIONAL EXPECTATIONS 

 

Agency healthcare PERSONNEL are expected to: 

 Arrive at assigned SCUSD site 15 minutes before the scheduled shift 

o Sign in at the front office noting the arrival time. 

 Depart at the end of shift.  

o Sign out at the front office noting departure time. 

o Do not allow hours to exceed those hours previously approved without prior 
authorization from SCUSD Health Services Department (the only approvers are Lead 
School Nurse, Coordinator, or Director).  The only exception to this would [be] for 
medical emergencies.   

 Always wear an agency identification badge with a photo.   

 Communicate promptly with your agency clinical supervisor and SCUSD Health Services 
Department staff regarding any changes to your scheduled shift such as being late or absent 
OR if the student is absent. If the assigned student is absent, PERSONNEL may be 
reassigned to another school or student until the assigned student returns. 

Contact the following for any PERSONNEL or student absences: 

 1. Agency Supervisor:(Action or Maxim)   

AND 

 2. Send an email message to directcare@scusd.edu and text 916-306-9294 
 Coordinate with the School Nurse assigned to the school site regarding all direct care 

services being provided to the student.  School Nurse will function as the case manager and 
facilitate all communications with doctors, parent/guardian, teachers, and Health Services. 

 The School Nurse will create the Individualized Healthcare Plan (IHP) outlining where 
equipment and medications are kept, as well as, when and where the care is to take place. 

 Read student’s IHP and Emergency Care Plan and medical authorization upon arrival. 

 Communicate with the agency supervisor and school nurse if new health concerns arise 

 Immediately route all forms received from families to the teacher or school nurse assigned 
to the site.  Upon request, assist the school nurse with obtaining necessary signatures from 
parent/guardian if the form is incomplete.  

 Follow the most recent signed authorization from a licensed healthcare provider 
(HCP).  Authorizations must also be signed by parent/guardian. 

 Primary role may include the following (depending on licensure): 

 Observe health related concerns, such as seizure activity or blood glucose 
monitoring. 

 Administer feeding/medication per physician authorization and at the direction of 
the school nurse’s IHP 

 Document data on assigned students as determined by their healthcare plan on 
district provided logs kept in the district provided binder. Document all 
communications with parent/guardian on care log. 

mailto:directcare@scusd.edu


 

 
Rev. 7/12/23  

13 

 Assist student with mobility, toileting, diapering and/or feeding as needed. 

 

If assigned to a student, all day in a classroom:  

 Assist with social skills and behavior management during recess and leisure times. 

 Assist with academic accommodations made by the classroom teacher or other 
Individualized Education Program team members such as Physical Therapist, 
Speech Language Pathologist or Occupational Therapist 

 Assist student in performing activities initiated by the teacher. 

 Supervise the student in the hallway, cafeteria, and on the playground as needed.  

 Assist with instructional materials for assigned student as appropriate. 

 Help student develop self-care skills to gain a greater level of independence.  

 Help in any way needed, while still providing needed support to the assigned 
student 

 Assist the teacher with crisis problems and behavior management with peers as 
needed. 

 Support the teacher’s classroom management and rules. 

 In order to promote independence and protect privacy, PROVIDER should refer to 
themselves as a “classroom assistant”, not as the assigned student’s Health Aide. 

 The full duration of your shift should be spent actively engaged in supporting the 
health and learning of your assigned student(s).  Personal tasks such as grooming, 
reading a book, and listening to music are not acceptable.  

  Follow all emergency procedures according to SCUSD policy, should the need arise. 

 Communicate effectively and professionally during all encounters. Report any negative 
interactions to your agency and SCUSD Health Services Department as soon as time and 
safety allow. 

 ALWAYS remain POLITE, OBJECTIVE, and HELPFUL. 

 PERSONNEL must AVOID doing the following: 

o May not use any cell phone while working in the classroom except for the following 
situations: 

 Using a district device to monitor blood glucose* 

 In case of emergency 911 call 

 Contacting clinical supervisor or SCUSD Health Services for urgent questions 

 Accepting an urgent call from home or child’s school or daycare 

o May not download continuous glucose monitoring applications onto personal 
phones to monitor a student’s blood glucose.  

o May not take photos of students. 

o May not providing information to the parent regarding the student’s academics, 
behaviors, or social skills (refer the parent/guardian to the teacher for all 
communications) 

o May not have conversations with the student while the teacher is giving direct 
instruction.  



 

 
Rev. 7/12/23  

14 

o May not stay after school with the student when caregivers are late picking up.  this 
is the role of the teacher. 

o May not provide “coverage” in the classroom, at recess, or during library in place of 
the teacher. 

o All SCUSD buildings are drug, alcohol and smoke free facilities, this includes vaping. 

 

Questions or concerns regarding PERSONNEL duties related to the student, classroom, or the 
campus, can be addressed to the personnel listed below: 

 Agency Supervisor 

 The student’s Case Manager on your campus (usually the teacher) 

 The site principal and/or site school nurse 

 Lead School Nurse, Paula Kuhlman at Paula-kuhlman@scusd.edu  or 916.320.1538 

 Coordinator II, Health Services, Lisa Musser at Lisa-Musser@scusd.edu or 
916.643.9152 

 

 
  

mailto:Paula-kuhlman@scusd.edu
mailto:Lisa-Musser@scusd.edur


 

 
Rev. 7/12/23  

15 

EXHIBIT B 

 

SCHOOL DISTRICT OUT OF TOWN WORK AGREEMENT 

It is understood that, _______________ (“Nurse”) has requested to accompany _________ (“Student”) on an 

out of town field trip, and that _______ School District (the “District”) has requested for Nurse to 

accompany them.  The District understands that Action Supportive Care Services (“ASCS”) has made no 

request for Nurse to accept this assignment, and that Nurse’s participation in the trip is voluntary.  

However, ASCS has approved Nurse to provide care to Student for a maximum of ___ hours per day, for 

shifts of ___ to ___ hours from ______ to _________.  The District understands that Nurse will only be 

acting as an employee during the hours in which they are providing care to Student. 

The District understands and agrees that except as set forth above and at all other times on the trip, Nurse is 

not working on behalf of ASCS.  The District further understands and agrees that ASCS shall not be 

responsible for costs associated with Nurse’s travel or any other expenses Nurse shall incur on the trip.  

All expenses associated with Nurse’s travel and participation in the trip shall be arranged between Nurse 

and the District. 

By voluntarily requesting that Nurse participate in the trip, the District on behalf of itself (and its directors, 

board members, officers, agents, independent contractors and employees) holds harmless, releases and 

forever discharges ASCS (and its directors, officers, agents, independent contractors, heirs, personal 

representatives, or employees) from any and all actions, causes of actions, claims and demands for 

damages, loss or injury, resulting from or arising out of Nurse’s participation in the trip, and covenants 

not to sue any of the persons or entities mentioned above for the claims for which the District has hereby 

provided this waiver and release. The District will also indemnify and hold harmless ASCS from any and 

all actions, causes of actions, demands, expenses, or losses whatsoever which Nurse or Student may bear 

as a result of their participation in the trip, by reason of damage to any and all property and all personal 

injuries, including death of others or themselves. 

BY SIGNING BELOW, I REPRESENT THAT I HAVE HAD SUFFICIENT OPPORTUNITY TO 

CAREFULLY READ THIS ENTIRE DOCUMENT. I HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND IT, 

AND I VOLUNTARILY AGREE TO BE BOUND BY ITS TERMS. I FURTHER UNDERSTAND 

THAT IF ANY PORTION OF THIS AGREEMENT IS FOUND TO BE VOID OR 

UNENFORCEABLE, THE REMAINING PORTIONS SHALL REMAIN IN EFFECT. 

______________________________   _______________________________ 

Print Name       Signature 

 

______________________________   ______________________________ 

Title         Date 

 



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 1 of 28  

COLLEGE BOARD’S  
COLLEGE READINESS AND SUCCESS AGREEMENT #: CB-00035347 

 
THIS AGREEMENT, including all appendices, exhibits, and schedules attached hereto (this “Agreement”), is effective 

upon fully execution (“Effective Date”), by and between Sacramento City Unified School District (“Client”) and College Board 
(“College Board”). 
 

WHEREAS, College Board shall make available, and Client may order the following College Board exams, products, 
and services related to College Board’s College Readiness and Success System. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the mutual covenants and undertakings contained herein, and 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties, intending to be 
legally bound, hereby agree to the following: 
 
1.0 Services. College Board shall furnish Client with the exams, products, licenses, services and/or materials (collectively, 
“Services”) in accordance with the applicable schedules, which outline the Services hereunder, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by this reference (“Schedule”). If Client has additional orders after the Effective Date of this Agreement, and during the 
Term (as defined in Section 2.1), the parties agree such Services shall be added by an addendum signed by both parties. 
    
2.0 Term & Termination.   
 

2.1 Term. This Agreement shall be for a term beginning as of this July 1, 2023 and, unless sooner terminated as 
provided herein, will expire on June 30, 2024 (“Initial Term”). Client may renew this Agreement in twelve (12) month increments 
(“Renewal Term”), upon notice to College Board of its intent to renew within thirty (30) days prior to the expiration date of this 
Agreement. During any Renewal Term, this Agreement shall be subject to College Board’s then-current fees and policies at the 
time of renewal. The Initial Term and each subsequent Renewal Term shall be collectively referred to as the “Term.”  If, during 
the Term, Client decides to change to the administration of a digital College Board assessment, College Board reserves the right to 
attach an additional schedule specific to such administration, containing operational policies and any additional terms and 
conditions.   
 

2.2 Termination. If either party breaches any of the provisions of this Agreement (including but not limited to 
Client’s failure to make any payment when due), either party shall have the right to give the other party written notice to cure such 
breach within thirty (30) days and, if such breach is not cured within a thirty (30) day period, either party shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement, without waiver of any other remedy, whether legal or equitable; provided, however, if Client breaches 
the Representations and Warranties or Ownership of Intellectual Property, or both, then College Board shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement immediately.  

 
2.2.1 Rights After Termination. If any Schedule is terminated for any reason, all rights granted to Client 

hereunder with respect to the Services under that Schedule shall cease, and Client shall; (a) immediately cease all use of the 
applicable Services and purge any and all software, content, and materials from Client’s computer systems, storage media and files, 
and all copies thereof, as applicable, and (b) promptly return or destroy, at College Board’s direction, content and materials, and 
all copies thereof, and all other confidential information of College Board then in Client’s possession or under Client’s control. 
Upon termination of this Agreement, College Board shall terminate Client’s access to any systems to which Client has access under 
this Agreement. 

 
2.2.2 Partial Payment Upon Termination. Client will compensate College Board for all Services, 

including any costs associated with the initial deployment of resources in preparation for providing the Services under this 
Agreement, through the effective date of any termination in accordance with invoices issued or to be issued by College Board. 

 
2.2.3 Availability of Services. In addition to its other rights hereunder, College Board may cease making 

certain Services commercially available at any time by providing Client sixty (60) days written notice. In such event, College Board 
will cease furnishing such Services under this Agreement and this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect, except for 
provisions specifically affecting such Services. College Board will refund Client any fees paid for the unused portion of such 
Services .   
 
3.0  Fees and Payment. Client shall pay those fees set forth in each Schedule for the Services furnished during the 2023-
2024 implementation year. Unless otherwise indicated in a Schedule, payment terms are Net 30. 

 
4.0 Taxes. Client agrees to pay any sales, use, value added or other taxes or import duties (other than College Board’s 
corporate income taxes) based on, or due as a result of, any fees paid to College Board under this Agreement, unless Client is 
exempt from such taxes as the result of Client’s corporate or government status and Client has furnished College Board with a valid 
tax exemption certificate. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 2 of 28  

5.0 Representations and Warranties. 
 

5.1 Authority. Client represents and warrants that it is empowered under applicable state laws to enter into and 
perform this Agreement and it has caused this Agreement to be duly authorized, executed, and delivered. 
 

5.2 College Board Services Warranty. College Board represents and warrants that it shall perform its obligations 
under this Agreement in a professional, workmanlike manner.   
 

5.3 College Board Disclaimer of Implied Warranties. EXCEPT AS PROVIDED ABOVE, COLLEGE BOARD 
MAKES NO WARRANTIES WHATSOEVER AND PROVIDES THE SERVICES, AS APPLICABLE, ON AN “AS IS” AND 
“AS AVAILABLE” BASIS. COLLEGE BOARD HEREBY DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, 
IMPLIED, OR STATUTORY, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF 
MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND NON-INFRINGEMENT OF THIRD PARTY 
RIGHTS. COLLEGE BOARD DOES NOT WARRANT THE OPERATION OF THE DELIVERABLES TO BE 
UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR-FREE OR THAT ALL DEFICIENCIES OR ERRORS ARE CAPABLE OF BEING 
CORRECTED. FURTHERMORE, COLLEGE BOARD DOES NOT WARRANT OR MAKE ANY REPRESENTATIONS 
REGARDING THE USE OF THE SERVICES OR THE RESULTS OBTAINED THEREFROM OR THAT THE 
SERVICESWILL SATISFY CLIENT’S REQUIREMENTS. 
 
6.0  Limitation of Liability. TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, AND NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER 
PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT, THE TOTAL LIABILITY, IN THE AGGREGATE, OF COLLEGE BOARD AND ITS 
OFFICERS, TRUSTEES, PARTNERS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS AND COLLEGE BOARD’S SUBCONTRACTORS AND 
CONSULTANTS, AND ANY OF THEM, TO CLIENT AND ANYONE CLAIMING BY, THROUGH OR UNDER CLIENT, 
FOR ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LOSSES, COSTS, OR DAMAGES WHATSOEVER ARISING OUT OF, RESULTING FROM 
OR IN ANY WAY RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE WORK PERFORMED BY COLLEGE BOARD PURSUANT 
TO THIS AGREEMENT FROM ANY CAUSE OR CAUSES, INCLUDED BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE NEGLIGENCE, 
PROFESSIONAL ERRORS OR OMISSIONS, STRICT LIABILITY OR BREACH OF CONTRACT OR WARRANTY 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED OF COLLEGE BOARD OR COLLEGE BOARD’S OFFICERS, TRUSTEES, PARTNERS, 
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, SUBCONTRACTORS OR CONSULTANTS OR ANY OF THEM, SHALL NOT EXCEED THE 
ACTUAL AMOUNT PAID TO COLLEGE BOARD UNDER THIS AGREEMENT FOR THE SPECIFIC SERVICE SUBJECT 
TO THE DAMAGES CLAIM. 
 
IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY, THEIR AFFILIATES OR THEIR SUBCONTRACTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY 
SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO, ANY DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF PROFITS OR SAVINGS, LOSS OF USE, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION OR THE 
LIKE), EVEN IF SUCH PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.   
 
7.0  Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law and notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, Client 
agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend College Board from and against any and all liabilities, demands, claims, fines, 
penalties, damages, forfeitures, and suits, together with reasonable attorneys’ and witnesses’ fees and other costs and expenses of 
defense and settlement, which College Board may incur, become responsible for or pay out as a result of death or bodily injury or 
threat thereof to any person, destruction of or damage to any property, any violation of local state or federal laws, regulations, or 
orders, or any other damages claimed by third parties (collectively, “Damages”) provided, however, that Client shall not be 
obligated to indemnify College Board to the extent such Damages are caused directly by the gross negligence or willful misconduct 
of College Board.  
 
8.0  Ownership of Intellectual Property. Client agrees and acknowledges that all intellectual property provided under or 
pertaining to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, any College Board publications, College Board website(s), CD-ROMs, 
videos, examinations, and all items contained therein, including all copies thereof, all data and score reports and any parts thereof, 
all copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, patents, and other similar proprietary rights are the sole and exclusive property of College 
Board. Nothing in this Agreement should be interpreted to indicate that College Board is passing its proprietary rights in and to 
College Board Intellectual Property to the Client except as specifically provided under a particular Schedule.   
 
9.0 Miscellaneous. 
 
 9.1 Cooperation. Client shall cooperate fully with College Board, its agents, consultants, and subcontractors and 
provide all assistance as reasonably necessary for College Board to furnish the Services as applicable, including but not limited to: 
(a) fulfilling its obligations under the applicable Schedule and (b) other assistance reasonably required by College Board to fulfill 
its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
 9.2  Force Majeure. Neither party shall be considered in default in the performance of its obligations under this 
Agreement to the extent that performance of its obligations is prevented or delayed in whole or in part by any cause beyond its 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 3 of 28  

reasonable control, whether foreseeable or not, including, without limitation, acts of God, acts or omissions of governmental 
authorities, strikes, lockouts or other industrial disturbances, acts of public enemies, terrorism, wars, blockades, riots, civil 
disturbances, curtailment of transportation, Client’s failure to cooperate as described in Section 9.1 (Cooperation), pandemics or 
epidemics including without limitation COVID-19 virus or new strains of the COVID-19 virus, floods, hurricanes, 
tornadoes,  environmental or nuclear contamination, and any other similar acts, events, or omissions (each a “Force Majeure 
Event”) that make it illegal, impracticable, inadvisable, unsafe, or impossible for a party to perform its obligations under this 
Agreement, provided that College Board shall have a duty to reasonably mitigate, or cause to be mitigated, any such disruptions 
(or parts thereof). College Board’s obligation to furnish the Services shall be suspended (or reduced, as applicable) during the 
period and to the extent that provision of the Services is disrupted by the Force Majeure Event, without such suspension or 
disruption constituting a material breach of its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
 9.3 Governing Law and Choice of Forum.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the terms and 
conditions set forth in this Agreement and the law of the State of California without regard to choice or conflict of laws principles 
that would cause the application of any other laws. Any dispute or controversy arising out of or relating to this Agreement or 
otherwise shall be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction in California State (or the Federal Court otherwise having 
territorial jurisdiction over such County and subject matter jurisdiction over the dispute), and not elsewhere, subject only to the 
authority of the Court in question to order changes of venue; provided, however, that prior to the instigation of any such action 
(other than an action for equitable relief) a meeting shall be held at a mutually agreed upon location, attended by individuals with 
decision-making authority to attempt in good faith to negotiate a resolution of the dispute. If within forty-five (45) days after such 
meeting the parties have not succeeded in resolving the dispute, either party may proceed at law, or in equity, in a court of competent 
jurisdiction. Client agrees not to demand a trial by jury in any action, proceeding or counterclaim. 
 

9.4 Notices. All notices or other communications hereunder shall be deemed to have been duly given and made if 
in writing and if served by personal delivery upon the party for whom it is intended on the day so delivered, if delivered by registered 
or certified mail, return receipt requested, or by courier service on the date of its receipt by the intended party (as indicated by the 
records of such of the U.S. Postal Service or the courier service), or if sent by e-mail, or if not a business day, the next succeeding 
business day, provided that the email sender retains confirmation of a “read-receipt” which acknowledges recipient’s opening of 
such email, or if not available, promptly confirms by telephone confirmation thereof, to the person at the address set forth below, 
or such other address as may be designated in writing hereafter, in the same manner, by such person: 
 

To College Board:  With a copy to  To Client: 
K-12 Contract Management  Legal Department  Jesse Castillo 
    Asst. Superintendent of Business 

Services 
College Board  College Board  Sacramento City Unified School 

District 
250 Vesey Street  250 Vesey Street  5735 47th Ave 
New York, NY  10281  New York, NY 10281  Sacramento, CA 95824-4528 
Tel: (212) 713-8000  Tel: (212) 713-8000  Tel: 916-643-9405 
Contractsmanagement@collegeboard.org   Legalnotice@collegeboard.org   jesse-m-castillo@scusd.edu 

 
9.5 Publicity. Each party agrees to promptly inform the other party of all media inquiries prior to responding 

thereto and to permit the other party to review and approve prior to release any press releases regarding the Services provided for 
under this Agreement.  

 
9.6 Relationship of the Parties. The relationship of the Client and College Board is that of independent 

contractors. Neither party nor their employees are partners, agents, employees, or joint ventures of the other party. Neither party 
shall have any authority to bind the other party to any obligation by contract or otherwise. College Board, its employees, and agents 
shall not be considered employees of the Client while performing these Services and will not be entitled to fringe benefits normally 
accruing to employees of the Client. Client and College Board recognize and agree that College Board is an independent contractor.   
 
If the Client is using federal funds to pay for all or a portion of the Services furnished by College Board under this Agreement, 
Client acknowledges and agrees that College Board shall not be categorized as a “subrecipient” receiving a federal award as 
defined by OMB Circular Subpart A.210(c) of Circular No. A-133.  College Board shall be defined as a “vendor” that provides 
good and services within normal business operations, provides similar goods or services to other purchasers and operates in a 
competitive environment. Client acknowledges and agrees that the substance of the relationship with College Board is that of a 
vendor not a subrecipient. 
 

9.7  Third-Party Rights. Nothing contained in this Agreement, express or implied, establishes or creates, or is 
intended or will be construed to establish or create, any right in or remedy of, or any duty or obligation to, any third party.  
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587

mailto:Contractsmanagement@collegeboard.org
mailto:Legalnotice@collegeboard.org


  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 4 of 28  

 9.8 Survival. It is agreed that certain obligations of the parties under this Agreement, which, by their nature would 
continue beyond the termination, cancellation, or expiration of this Agreement, shall survive termination, cancellation, or expiration 
of this Agreement, including without limitation, payment, ownership of intellectual property, representations and warranties, 
limitation of liability, confidential and proprietary information, indemnification, term and termination, and Section 9 
(Miscellaneous) herein.  
 

9.9  Amendment; Waiver. Any provision of this Agreement may be amended or waived if, and only if, such 
amendment or waiver is in writing and signed, in the case of an amendment, by the parties, or in the case of a waiver, by the party 
against whom the waiver is to be effective. No failure or delay by any party in exercising any right, power, or privilege hereunder 
shall operate as a waiver thereof nor shall any single or partial exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power, or privilege. 
Except as otherwise provided herein, the rights and remedies herein provided shall be cumulative and not exclusive of any rights 
or remedies provided by law.  
 

9.10  Severability. The provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed severable and the invalidity or 
unenforceability of any provision shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the other provisions hereof. If any provision of 
this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person or entity or any circumstance, is invalid or unenforceable, (a) a suitable 
and equitable provision shall be substituted therefor in order to carry out so far as may be valid and enforceable provision and (b) 
the remainder of this Agreement and the application of such provision to other persons, entities, or circumstances shall not be 
affected by such invalidity or unenforceability, nor shall such invalidity or unenforceability affect the validity or enforceability of 
such provision, or the application thereof, in any other jurisdiction.  
 

9.11 Order of Precedence. In the event of conflict between the terms and conditions of any Schedule and this 
Agreement the terms and conditions of the Schedule shall prevail. The parties acknowledge and agree that each shall construe the 
terms, covenants, and conditions set forth in this Agreement, including each Schedule, as consistent with one another insofar as 
possible, so as to give effect to the fullest extent possible to each particular clause. Client shall remit any required Client-issued 
purchasing documents such as a contract or purchase order prior to the scheduled delivery of any Services to ensure prompt payment 
for Services received under this Agreement (“Client Purchase Order”). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the parties hereby 
acknowledge and agree that the Client Purchase Order shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and this 
Agreement shall supersede any terms and conditions included in the Client Purchase Order; and further, Client understands that 
College Board is accepting the Client Purchase Order solely to effectuate payment but does not agree to accept any terms and 
conditions included in the Client Purchase Order. Client acknowledges and agrees that if Client is required to provide a Client 
Purchase Order, College Board may delay and/or withhold furnishing Services if Client fails to issue the Client Purchase Order for 
such Services, as applicable, prior to the scheduled delivery date for such Services. 

 
 9.12   Headings. Headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only. They shall not affect in any 
way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. 
  

9.13 Integration, Execution and Delivery.  This Agreement includes the Schedules attached hereto and constitutes 
the entire agreement between College Board and Client and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings, bids, offers, 
negotiations, or communications of every kind concerning the subject matter of this Agreement, including any Client Purchase 
Order. No course of dealing between parties and no usage of trade shall be relevant to supplement any term used in this Agreement. 
Acceptance or acquiescence in a course of performance rendered under this Agreement shall not be relevant to determine the 
meaning of this Agreement and no waiver by a party of any right under this Agreement shall prejudice that party's exercise of that 
right in the future.  This Agreement may be executed through signatures to any number of counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, which together will constitute one Agreement. Delivery of an executed counterpart of this Agreement by 
electronic transmission, including through Docusign, shall be equally as effective as delivery of an original executed counterpart 
of this Agreement. Any party delivering an executed counterpart of this Agreement by electronic transmission also shall deliver an 
original executed counterpart of this Agreement (except if the parties are using Docusign), but the failure to deliver an original 
executed counterpart shall not affect the validity, enforceability, and binding effect of this Agreement.  The foregoing execution 
and delivery shall apply to this Agreement.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023 Page 5 of 28 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT  

\S1\ 

COLLEGE BOARD 

\s2\ 

Signature Signature 

 
Name Name 

 
Title Title 

\d1\ \d2\ 
Date Date 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37

Jeremy Singer

08/28/2023

President

DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587

Jesse Castillo

Assistant Superintendent



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 6 of 28  

PSAT™ 8/9 
SHELF SCHEDULE 

I. BACKGROUND 
 

College Board owns and delivers its national standardized tests to students. This Schedule outlines how a Client sponsors a PSAT™ 
8/9 administration at its schools (‘Participating Schools’) for students and what data and reports may be provided to Client through 
our online data portal (the ‘Program’).  
 
II. PROGRAM MATERIALS AND INFORMATION 
 
College Board shall furnish PSAT 8/9 materials and information as follows: 
 

1.  Materials for Students: 
a. Link to the Student Guide 
b. PSAT 8/9 test materials delivered via College Board’s Digital Testing Platform, BlueBook™, Assessment score 

report delivered as a PDF to Client via College Board’s K-12 Reporting Portal.  
c. Information about recognition programs College Board. 
d. Access to SAT Practice Tools and Support as set forth below. 
e. Access to Bluebook and the test at school (Client will have access to a digital test preview to demonstrate the 

navigation and tools available to students in Bluebook). 
 

2. Materials for Participating Schools: 
a. Materials to support test administration. 
b. Client will receive online access to test day toolkit (TDTK), College Board’s digital test administration tool, and a 

downloadable PDF of the PSAT 8/9 Test Coordinator Guide.  
c. Access to a digital test preview to demonstrate the navigation and tools available to students in the digital testing 

platform. 
d. Materials to support students receiving accommodations which require a paper test, including applicable 

instructions and the paper testing materials.  
e. Access to individual student score reports and aggregate score reports, and downloadable student data file 

delivered via College Board’s K-12 Reporting Portal.  
f. Access to AP Potential™ via College Board website. 
 

3. Reports for District:  
a. Access to individual student score reports and aggregate score reports, and downloadable student data file, delivered 

via College Board’s K-12 Reporting Portal. 
b. Access to AP Potential via College Board website. 

 
4. Delivering SAT Practice Tools and Support. In addition to the free practice tools available at 

http://sat.collegeboard.org/practice, all students will have access to a) full-length practice tests in Bluebook and b) 
focused practice resources through College Board’s collaboration with Khan Academy. Practice materials for the SAT 
exam are available at the Khan Academy website (http://satpractice.org). Client and Participants shall use the Khan 
Academy practice tool and materials in accordance with Khan Academy’s guidelines. 

 
III. CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES  
 

1. In connection with PSAT 8/9, Client agrees that it will, or will ensure each participating school will:  
a. Comply with the Legal Terms for Educators and Institutions at https://privacy.collegeboard.org/educator-legal-

terms?navId=gf-edterms 
b. Review the information in Annex 1 below and incorporated herein about College Board’s mobile application 

available for students.  
c. Place orders by the ordering deadline. Orders cannot be decreased after the ordering deadline for PSAT 8/9. 
d. Designate personnel to act as a Test Coordinator, SSD Coordinator, Technology Coordinator, Proctors and Monitors 

(collectively, ‘Designated Personnel’).  
e. Ensure compliance with the requirements for training and other guidelines in the Guides shared with you.  
f. Verify and update, if necessary, the Test Coordinator name and contact information. 
g. Submit Eligibility Forms for students with disabilities who do not already have a College Board SSD Eligibility 

Code (see calendar for deadlines). 
h. Ensure that registered students are provided a link to the online PSAT 8/9 Student Guide 

(https://satsuite.collegeboard.org/media/pdf/psat-8-9-student-guide.pdf) at least two weeks before the anticipated 
start of testing. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 7 of 28  

i. Administer the test to students under standard College Board national test administration and security policies, 
procedures and protocols as specified in training and/or instructional material shared with Client and in compliance 
with Designated Personnel Guide directions. 

j. Administer the test only during the authorized Testing Window for which the school is registered. 
k. Receive emails from College Board regarding the tests and their related offerings and share emails and coordinate 

communications with other staff at your schools as necessary. 
l. There is always a risk of disruption during paper or digital testing, including, without limitation, computer issues. 

College Board has endeavored to put in place procedures to allow administrators and students to recover from such 
disruption and complete testing. Despite such efforts, Client understands that there are situations where College 
Board’s only option is to complete testing on the other days during the testing window. This is Client’s sole remedy 
in relation to such disruption. 
1. Testing may not be available in the case of severe weather or other disruptions, including without limitation 

epidemics, that require lengthy closures at your school that extend beyond the end of the Testing Window. 
2. For more information on what to do in the event of extended closure due to a weather or disruptions including 

without limitation epidemics, see our https://sat.org/COVID19. 
 

IV. PAPER AND DIGITAL TESTING REQUIREMENTS; ACCOMMODATIONS 
 
1. Digital Testing Requirements 

a. The Technology Coordinator at each Participating School will complete all required College Board Technology 
Coordinator Training and provide training access to other supporting staff. Client will ensure compliance with 
training requirements for all testing staff. 

b. The Technology Coordinator at each Participating School will ensure the successful and accurate completion of all 
digital readiness and technology setup activities. These include: a dedicated device for Test Coordinator(s) to 
monitor test activities, a proctor device to administer the digital test in each testing room, and devices for each test-
taking student with College Board’s Digital Testing Platform, Bluebook™, installed. Additional information on the 
devices required for test day, including recommendations on battery and power source, supported operating systems, 
supported web browsers, and network configuration can be found at https://satsuite.collegeboard.org/digital. Client 
must ensure that each Participating School can meet College Board Digital Testing Requirements as outlined on the 
referenced website. 

c. Client will ensure that Participating School(s) consult College Board guides and training and adhere to the most up-
to-date Digital Testing room seating policies. 

d. Client shall complete College Board’s Registration process for each student scheduled to test by the registration 
deadline.  

e. If you are administering the test with accommodations requiring the use of an approved assistive technology device, 
students should pre-test the device in the Student Digital Test Preview prior to test day to ensure operational 
functionality. If the digital accommodation supports within the Digital Test preview do not meet students' testing 
needs, Client should arrange for alternate accommodation supports. 

 
2. Paper Tests  

a. College Board may provide a limited number of paper test books for students requiring accommodations that cannot 
be delivered as a digital test or otherwise as approved by College Board.  

b. Client, or Participating Schools, as applicable, will keep all test books in locked storage until test date. 
c. Participating Schools will collect all test books at the end of the test.   
d. Participating Schools will promptly complete the process for submitting responses for students that test using paper 

materials in accordance with the policies and processes provided by College Board to Test Coordinators. 
e. Participating Schools will promptly return all paper test materials in accordance with the policies and processes 

provided by College Board to Test Coordinators. 
 

3. ACCOMMODATIONS 
Client will be responsible for ensuring that an appropriate accommodations coordinator (‘SSD Coordinator’) is 
designated for each Participating School to facilitate the application for and administration of approved accommodations. 
SSD Coordinators are responsible for notifying students when and where to report on test day. Early testing or testing at 
times other than those published by College Board is not permitted under any circumstances. The ‘SSD Coordinator 
Form’ (used to establish an SSD Coordinator) is availableat https://accommodations.collegeboard.org/media/pdf/ssd-
coordinator.pdf. English Learner (EL) Supports (https://satsuite.collegeboard.org/k12-educators/administration/sat-
school-day/ordering/english-learner-supports) like translated directions and the use of word-to-word glossaries do not 
require approval or special test format. 

 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 8 of 28  

V. REQUIRED INFORMATION AND TRAINING 
 

1. Client shall furnish College Board with: (a) a list of Participating Schools with their respective College Board school 
code online in College Board’s SAT Suite Ordering and Registration system located at the following location 
ordering.collegeboard.org (‘SSOR’), (b) a list of all students registered for the exam are submitted online using the 
registration template in the College Board registration system located at the following location 
ordering.collegeboard.org and (c) the Client’s contacts entered online in SSOR. 

 
a. Changes to Participating Schools. Changes to the list of Participating Schools must be made online in the SSOR 

no later than two weeks prior to the beginning of the testing window.  
 

If any of Client’s schools are omitted from the List of Participating Schools, then such schools shall not be covered 
under this Schedule. 

 
2. Training of Designated Personnel at the Participating Schools. College Board will make available online all necessary 

training and/or instructional materials to Designated Personnel. The required training and/or instructional materials will 
be made available online by College Board to Client and must be completed two weeks before the test administration 
date.  

 
Designated Personnel are required to utilize College Board’s test day tool kit (‘TDTK’) application in connection with 
the administration of the PSAT 8/9. Designated Personnel are required to adhere to all of College Board’s procedures, 
policies, and protocols related to national test administrations as specified in the PSAT 8/9 Coordinator training and 
instructional materials. College Board reserves the right to cancel the administration of the Program at any Participating 
School where any Designated Personnel fails to complete such training prior to the scheduled test administration. 

 
VI. TESTING 
 

1. PSAT 8/9 Testing Window. Client has agreed to administer the PSAT 8/9 C to registered students during the Testing 
Window(s) selected by Client in College Board’s SSOR. In order to test, Client, or Participants, as applicable, will be 
required to install Bluebook on school owned devices that meet College Board technical specifications. Participants using 
personal devices will be required to install Bluebook on compatible devices. Client shall provide internet access to each 
testing device. 

 
2. Administering the PSAT 8/9. The PSAT 8/9 will be administered to Participating Students under standard College 

Board national test administration and security protocols as specified in the PSAT 8/9 Test Coordinator Guide and PSAT 
8/9 Test Coordinator training and instructional materials, unless otherwise stated in this Schedule. In accordance with 
College Board policies, any test irregularity, including mis-administrations or security breaches, will be thoroughly 
investigated and may result in score cancellations. Client is responsible for making all necessary arrangements to ensure 
that the testing environment and the security of all test materials satisfy College Board requirements as specified in the 
PSAT 8/9 Coordinator training and instructional materials. The test will be administered by Client-employed personnel, 
who will not receive additional remuneration from College Board. Client personnel must use TDTK in connection with 
the administration of the PSAT 8/9. This Agreement does not guarantee that all Students registered by Client for the 
Program will actually test. It is the responsibility of Client to encourage Participants to complete the program. Participants 
will follow the guidelines in applicable College Board digital student materials. 

  
3. Client Testing Delays. Should an event occur that would require Participating School(s) to close for reasons beyond the 

reasonable control of such Participating School(s) (for example, including, but not limited to, severe weather, extended 
power outages, or a teacher’s strike) (a ‘Delay Event’), the Participating School(s) should adjust testing until later in their 
Testing Window. 

 
Client understands that by selecting the last week of a Testing Window as their main administration date, if there is a 
Delay Event, there may be no additional PSAT 8/9 test dates. In such cases, this Agreement remains in full force and 
effect. 
 
In a Delay Event occurs, College Board will use its best reasonable efforts to support the change of a testing date for 
paper testing. College Board will assume any additional costs associated with rescheduling and delivering paper tests to 
participating schools impacted by a Delay Event. College Board reserves the right to deny the delivery of additional paper 
materials if, in its sole opinion, the additional work will endanger its vendors or its employees, agents, consultants, or if 
Client has failed to promptly inform College Board of the need for new materials in time to allow delivery of applicable 
paper test materials. No additional administration of the assessment will be made available after the testing dates. 

 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 9 of 28  

VII. COLLEGE BOARD COLLECTION AND USE OF DATA. 
 

1. Client acknowledges and agrees that the data collected from the administration of the assessment ordered under this 
Agreement is subject to College Board’s privacy policies, available at https://privacy.collegeboard.org.  

 
College Board shall collect from Client, or Participating School, as applicable, the following student data in connection 
with the registration of the assessments you are ordering under this Agreement, with those asterisked required for 
registration. Client and College Board agree to comply with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. 
s. 1232g, and its implementing regulations, 34 C.F.R. pt. 99 (‘FERPA’), as applicable. Client will obtain any and all 
consents necessary for students to participate in the assessment(s), if any. 
 

• *First and last name 
• Middle initial  
• *Date of Birth 
• *Attending institution (AI Code) 
• *Grade 
• *Gender 
• *Test administration indicator (that is, which assessment) 
• *Season for testing 
• Student identifier 
  

For digital testing, College Board will receive certain information about the device to ensure the device is compatible 
and monitor the actions taken in Bluebook for test security purposes, as well as to develop and improve College Board 
products and services.  
 

2. College Board may also collect, retain, use and share students’ personally identifiable information to perform this 
Agreement and for the purposes outlined below. 

 
a. For SAT, State Scholarship Organizations: State affiliated scholarship organizations may receive student data for 

the purposes of eligibility for a scholarship or recognition program.   
b. For SAT, National Presidential Scholars: Eligible students are shared with the US Department of Education for 

purposes of the U.S. Presidential Scholars Programs.  
c. For PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, National Recognition Programs: College Board uses student data to determine 

eligibility and administer its National Recognition Programs and share information with the students’ high school 
and district, about the students’ recognition status.  

d. For PSAT/NMSQT, College Board will share scores and other information provided by students during testing with 
the National Merit Scholarship Corporation (NMSC) in order for NMSC to determine whether students are eligible 
for its National Merit Scholarship Program in accordance with the PSAT/NMSQT Student Guide 
(https://satsuite.collegeboard.org/media/pdf/psat-nmsqt-student-guide.pdf) and www.nationalmerit.org.  

e. Score Reporting to Students. 
f. SAT Score Sends: Students may identify institutions to receive their SAT scores. Student scores and basic 

demographic information sufficient for identity matching are only provided to higher education institutions and 
scholarship organizations when authorized by students.  

g. Score Report to Schools, Districts and State. Schools, Districts and the State will have access to students’ 
assessments score(s) and data derived from the score(s).  

h. Accommodations: College Board uses student data to process applications for testing accommodations and to 
communicate with the SSD coordinator and students regarding accommodations.  

i. Test Security: College Board may use student data to identify and investigate potential test security incidents, and 
protect and enhance test security, and disclose the results of test security investigations with third parties, including 
to the student’s school, any score recipient, college, higher education institution or agency, scholarship organization, 
potential score recipient government agency in the U.S or abroad, parents, legal guardians, or law enforcement.  

j. Research: College Board may use de-identified data obtained from student test-takers for psychometric and 
educational research purposes to evaluate the validity of our assessments and ensure that tests are unbiased in terms 
of race, gender, and culture. College Board may also use data to maintain, develop, support, improve and diagnose 
our services and applications. 

k. Other: College Board may disclose student data as required by law, when we believe in good faith that it’s necessary 
to protect our rights, protect an individual’s safety or the safety of others, investigate fraud, or respond to a 
government request. 

 
Client acknowledges that students may desire to continue and further develop a direct relationship beyond the 
administration of SAT Suite of Assessments for the purposes of students’ college and career readiness by utilizing 
College Board’s services available to all students.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement related to the collection, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 10 of 28  

maintenance, use, and disclosure of data shall only apply to the data College Board receives in connection with this 
Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to diminish or interfere with student rights in their assessment data, 
and no provisions in this Agreement are intended to address or cover data that College Board has, or may receive, for 
services which are outside the scope of this Agreement. 
 
College Board agrees to adhere to the Data Protection, Security Measures and Notice provisions set forth below.   

 
VIII. DATA PROTECTION, SECURITY MEASURES AND NOTICE 
 

1. Data Protection. College Board shall take actions to protect the security and confidentiality of personally identifiable 
information that may be obtained pursuant to this Agreement in a manner consistent with industry standards. College 
Board will maintain a SOC 2 Type II report. 

 
College Board has security measures in place designed to help protect against loss, misuse and alteration of the data 
under College Board’s control. College Board shall develop, implement, maintain and use reasonably appropriate 
administrative, technical and physical security measures to preserve the confidentiality, integrity and availability of 
personally identifiable information that may be obtained pursuant to this Agreement, as determined by College Board.  
College Board shall host content in a secure environment that uses Web Application Firewalls/security groups and other 
advanced technologies designed to prevent interference or access from outside intruders.  
 
College Board encrypts personally identifiable information that may be obtained pursuant to this Agreement in 
transmission and storage where technically feasible and when designed as being appropriate by College Board. If not, 
other security controls may be implemented to reduce risk, mitigate risk, or otherwise protect the data as determined 
solely by College Board. When College Board’s platforms are accessed using a supported web browser, Transport Layer 
Security (‘TLS’) or equivalent technology protects information while in transit, using both server authentication and data 
encryption to help secure the data and limit availability to only authorized users.  
 
Client shall be responsible for removing access to College Board’s platforms for any personnel who no longer should 
have access, or promptly notifying College Board to request removal of any such access.  

 
2. Security Measures. College Board will extend the confidentiality requirements and security measures identified in this 

Agreement by contract to subcontractors used by College Board, if any, to provide services related to this Agreement. 
College Board will use appropriate and reliable storage media, regularly backup data and retain such backup copies for 
the duration of this Agreement, as defined by College Board. You acknowledge that College Board utilizes cloud hosting 
service providers throughout its infrastructure. College Board will store personally identifiable information that may be 
obtained pursuant to this Agreement in the United States where technically feasible and reasonable, as determined solely 
by College Board. 

 
IX.  COLLEGE BOARD SCHOOL DAY CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 

1. Dedicated PSAT 8/9 Customer Service for Educators: College Board will provide Client with telephone customer 
service support for educators. Specifically, College Board will provide: 

 
a) Step-by-step assistance with College Board online tools including the SSD System, SSOR and TDTK;  
b) Assistance with completing required forms such as AI Request Form;  
c) Assistance with technical complications for Bluebook Installation and Registration login, for example; and 
d) Feedback mechanism for counselors. 

 
Dates and Times of Service: Available three months prior to primary test date. Standard hours of operation: Monday 
through Friday 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Eastern Standard Time. Customer service for the PSAT 8/9 Program can also be 
accessed online at the following web address: https://collegereadiness.collegeboard.org/contact-us. 
 

X.  ADDITIONAL PSAT 8/9 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

1. Ownership of Intellectual Property.  College Board is the exclusive owner of all rights in and to the digital Testing 
Platform, Bluebook, Test Day Toolkit (TDTK), K-12 Reporting Portal, AP Potential, guidebooks for students and 
Designated Personnel, SAT exam, SAT with Essay exam, PSAT/NMSQT, PSAT 10, and PSAT 8/9 examinations, all 
individual test items (questions) contained therein, including all copies thereof, test booklets, all examination materials 
and all data collected therefrom, including but not limited to student scores derived from the exam, are at all times 
exclusively owned by College Board. In addition, College Board is the exclusive owner of AP Potential, College Board’s 
mobile app described below,  and all publications and reports associated with SAT exam, SAT with Essay exam, 
PSAT/NMSQT, PSAT 10 and PSAT 8/9 described in this Agreement including all copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 11 of 28  

patents, and other similar proprietary rights, and all renewals and extensions thereof (all platforms, exams and related 
material referenced in this provision are collectively referred to as ‘College Board Intellectual Property’). Client 
acknowledges and agrees that nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted to indicate that College Board is passing its 
proprietary rights in and to College Board Intellectual Property to Client.  

 
Except as expressly provided herein, Client is prohibited from copying, disseminating, publishing, displaying or 
distributing in any form, or reproducing any questions from the assessments including from digital testing or paper test 
booklets (if used) in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of College Board. 

 
2. Student Score Report License. College Board hereby grants Client a limited, nonexclusive, nontransferable, non-

assignable right to access and use the student score reports provided for the assessment(s) pursuant to this Agreement for 
the legitimate educational purposes of internal analysis, which includes your internal training sessions, as long as the data 
used during training preserves the confidentiality of students. Client may not use or distribute the score reports or the 
data derived from them externally or to third parties other than the student without the express written consent of College 
Board. 

 
XI. FEE CALCULATION 
 

1. Fees. The fee calculation for this Schedule is based on the Client selections in SSOR. Pricing adjustments that reduce the 
fee per test for an amount less than the retail price are provided at the sole discretion of College Board.   

  
Clients will be charged the fee in the attached Budget Schedule based on the number of students registered via the College Board 
registration system located at https://ordering.collegeboard.org/, regardless of how many students take the PSAT 8/9 assessment. 
The test volumes and total cost indicated in the Budget Schedule are estimates.   

  
2. Restrictions. No student participating under this Schedule will be assessed an individual fee for taking the PSAT 8/9 

exam.  
 

XII. CLIENT CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

 Primary1 Procurement2 
Name:   Suzanne McKelvey Robert Aldama 
Title:   Assessment Coordinator III Purchasing Manager II 
Address:   5735 47th Ave 5735 47th Ave 
City/State/Zip:  Sacramento, CA 95824-4528 Sacramento, CA 95824-4528 
Phone:  916-643-9280 916-643-9465 
Fax:   
Email: suzanne-mckelvey@scusd.edu robert-aldama@scusd.edu 

 
 
  

 
1 This is the person to whom College Board should direct primary communications. 
2 This is the person to whom College Board should send the contract for review and approval within the district procurement/contract department. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 12 of 28  

PSAT/NMSQT®   
SHELF SCHEDULE 

 
I. BACKGROUND 

 
College Board owns and delivers its national standardized tests to students. Taking the PSAT/NMSQT®3 provides students with 
the opportunity to receive national recognition and scholarships through National Merit Scholarship Corporation. This Schedule 
outlines how a Client sponsors the PSAT/NMSQT administration at its schools (‘Participating Schools’) for students and what 
data and reports may be provided to Client through our online data portal (the ‘Program’).  
 
II. PROGRAM MATERIALS AND INFORMATION 
 
College Board shall furnish PSAT/NMSQT materials and information as follows: 
 

1. Materials for Students: 
a. Link to the Student Guide 
b. PSAT/NMSAT test materials delivered via College Board’s Digital Testing Platform, BlueBook™. Assessment 

score report delivered as a PDF to Client via College Board’s K-12 Reporting Portal.  
c. Information about scholarship and recognition programs, offered by each of National Merit Scholarship Corporation 

and College Board, as applicable. 
d. Information from College Board to help students understand and navigate post-secondary and career pathways and 

opportunities through a College Board mobile application, as described in Annex 1 attached. 
e. Access to SAT Practice Tools and Support as set forth below. 
f. Access to Bluebook and the test at school (Client will have access to a digital test preview to demonstrate the 

navigation and tools available to students in Bluebook). 
 

2. Materials for Participating Schools: 
a. Materials to support test administration. 
b. Client will receive online access to test day toolkit (TDTK), College Board’s digital test administration tool, and a 

downloadable PDF of the PSAT/NMSQT Test Coordinator Guide.  
c. Access to a digital test preview to demonstrate the navigation and tools available to students in the digital testing 

platform. 
d. Materials to support students receiving accommodations which require a paper test, including applicable 

instructions and the paper testing materials.  
e. Access to individual student score reports and aggregate score reports, and downloadable student data file 

delivered via College Board’s K-12 Reporting Portal.  
f. Access to AP Potential™ via College Board website. 
g. Insights and reporting on students’ participation in the College Board mobile application and insights to support 

student engagement in exploring college and career information and opportunities, as further described in Annex1. 
 
3. Reports for District:  

a. Access to individual student score reports and aggregate score reports, and downloadable student data file, delivered 
via College Board’s K-12 Reporting Portal. 

b. Access to AP Potential via College Board website. 
 

4. Delivering SAT Practice Tools and Support. In addition to the free practice tools available at 
http://sat.collegeboard.org/practice, all students will have access to a) full-length practice tests in Bluebook and b) 
focused practice resources through College Board’s collaboration with Khan Academy. Practice materials for the SAT 
exam are available at the Khan Academy website (http://satpractice.org). Client and Participants shall use the Khan 
Academy practice tool and materials in accordance with Khan Academy’s guidelines. 

 
III. CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES  
 

1. In connection with PSAT/NMSQT, Client agrees that it will, or will ensure each participating school will:  
a. Comply with the Legal Terms for Educators and Institutions at https://privacy.collegeboard.org/educator-legal-

terms?navId=gf-edterms. 
b. Review the information in Annex 1 below and incorporated herein about College Board’s mobile application 

available for students.  
c. Place orders by the ordering deadline. Orders cannot be decreased after the ordering deadline for PSAT/NMSQT. 

 
3 PSAT/NMSQT is a registered trademark of College Board and National Merit Scholarship Corporation. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 13 of 28  

d. Designate personnel to act as a Test Coordinator, SSD Coordinator, Technology Coordinator, Proctors and Monitors 
(collectively, ‘Designated Personnel’).  

e. Ensure compliance with the requirements for training and other guidelines in the Guides shared with you.  
f. Verify and update, if necessary, the Test Coordinator name and contact information. 
g. Submit Eligibility Forms for students with disabilities who do not already have a College Board SSD Eligibility 

Code (see calendar for deadlines). 
h. Ensure that registered students are provided a link to the online PSAT/NMSQT Student Guide 

(https://satsuite.collegeboard.org/media/pdf/psat-nmsqt-student-guide.pdf) at least two weeks before the 
anticipated start of testing. 

i. Administer the test to students under standard College Board national test administration and security policies, 
procedures and protocols as specified in training and/or instructional material shared with Client and in compliance 
with Designated Personnel Guide directions. 

j. Administer the test only during the authorized Testing Window for which the school is registered. 
k. Receive emails from College Board regarding the tests and their related offerings and share emails and coordinate 

communications with other staff at your schools as necessary. 
l. There is always a risk of disruption during paper or digital testing, including, without limitation, computer issues. 

College Board has endeavored to put in place procedures to allow administrators and students to recover from such 
disruption and complete testing. Despite such efforts, Client understands that there are situations where College 
Board's only option is to complete testing on the other days during the testing window. This is Client’s sole remedy 
in relation to such disruption. 
1. Testing may not be available in the case of severe weather or other disruptions, including without limitation 

epidemics, that require lengthy closures at your school that extend beyond the end of the Testing Window. 
2. For more information on what to do in the event of extended closure due to a weather or disruptions including 

without limitation epidemics, see our http://sat.org/COVID19. 
 
IV. PAPER AND DIGITAL TESTING REQUIREMENTS; ACCOMMODATIONS 
 

1. Digital Testing Requirements 
a. The Technology Coordinator at each Participating School will complete all required College Board Technology 

Coordinator Training and provide training access to other supporting staff. Client will ensure compliance with 
training requirements for all testing staff. 

b. The Technology Coordinator at each Participating School will ensure the successful and accurate completion of all 
digital readiness and technology setup activities. These include: a dedicated device for Test Coordinator(s) to 
monitor test activities, a proctor device to administer the digital test in each testing room, and devices for each test-
taking student with College Board’s Digital Testing Platform, Bluebook™, installed. Additional information on the 
devices required for test day, including recommendations on battery and power source, supported operating systems, 
supported web browsers, and network configuration can be found at https://satsuite.collegeboard.org/digital. Client 
must ensure that each Participating School can meet College Board Digital Testing Requirements as outlined on the 
referenced website. 

c. Client will ensure that Participating School(s) consult College Board guides and training and adhere to the most up-
to-date Digital Testing room seating policies. 

d. Client shall complete College Board’s Registration process for each student scheduled to test by the registration 
deadline.  

e. If you are administering the test with accommodations requiring the use of an approved assistive technology device, 
students should pre-test the device in the Student Digital Test Preview prior to test day to ensure operational 
functionality. If the digital accommodation supports within the Digital Test preview do not meet students' testing 
needs, Client should arrange for alternate accommodation supports. 

 
2. Paper Tests  

a. College Board may provide a limited number of paper test books for students requiring accommodations that cannot 
be delivered as a digital test or otherwise as approved by College Board.  

b. Client, or Participating Schools, as applicable, will keep all test books in locked storage until test date. 
c. Participating Schools will collect all test books at the end of the test.   
d. Participating Schools will promptly complete the process for submitting responses for students that test using paper 

materials in accordance with the policies and processes provided by College Board to Test Coordinators. 
e. Participating Schools will promptly return all paper test materials in accordance with the policies and processes 

provided by College Board to Test Coordinators. 
 

3. ACCOMMODATIONS  
 

Accommodations for Participants with disabilities will be granted and administered according to College Board’s 
standard eligibility and administration procedures. Participants must apply for accommodations under College Board’s 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 14 of 28  

Services for Students with Disabilities (SSD) program and must follow the SSD program’s published procedures, which 
can be found at https://www.collegeboard.org/students-with-disabilities. Only College Board-approved accommodations 
are permitted. Students who use accommodated test materials without the College Board's prior approval may not receive 
scores or may otherwise have their scores cancelled or invalidated, and that cannot be reported to colleges, scholarship 
programs and other designated score recipients. Client will be responsible for ensuring that an appropriate 
accommodations coordinator (‘SSD Coordinator’) is designated for each Participating School to facilitate the application 
for and administration of approved accommodations. SSD Coordinators are responsible for notifying students when and 
where to report on test day. Early testing or testing at times other than those published by College Board is not permitted 
under any circumstances.  The ‘SSD Coordinator Form’ (used to establish an SSD Coordinator) is available at 
https://accommodations.collegeboard.org/media/pdf/ssd-coordinator.pdf. Participants with accommodations previously 
approved by College Board, and who have a College Board-issued SSD code, do not need to reapply for accommodations 
under this Program. 

 
V. REQUIRED INFORMATION AND TRAINING 
 

1. Client shall furnish College Board with: (a) a list of Participating Schools with their respective College Board school 
code online in College Board’s SAT Suite Ordering and Registration system located at the following location 
ordering.collegeboard.org (‘SSOR’), (b) a list of all students registered for the exam are submitted online using the 
registration template in the College Board registration system located at the following location 
ordering.collegeboard.org and (c) the Client’s contacts entered online in SSOR. 
 

a. Changes to Participating Schools. Changes to the list of Participating Schools must be made online in the 
SSOR no later than two weeks  prior to the beginning of the testing window.  

 
If any of Client’s schools are omitted from the List of Participating Schools, then such schools shall not be 
covered under this Schedule. 

 
1. Training of Designated Personnel at the Participating Schools. College Board will make available online all necessary 

training and/or instructional materials to Designated Personnel. The required training and/or instructional materials will 
be made available online by College Board to Client and must be completed two weeks before the test administration 
date.  

 
Designated Personnel are required to utilize College Board’s test day tool kit (‘TDTK’) application in connection with 
the administration of the PSAT/NMSQT. Designated Personnel are required to adhere to all of College Board’s 
procedures, policies, and protocols related to national test administrations as specified in the PSAT/NMSQT Coordinator 
training and instructional materials. College Board reserves the right to cancel the administration of the Program at any 
Participating School where any Designated Personnel fails to complete such training prior to the scheduled test 
administration. 

 
VI. TESTING 
 

1. PSAT/NMSQT Testing. Client has agreed to administer the PSAT/NMSQT to registered students selected by Client in 
College Board’s SSOR. In order to test, Client, or Participants, as applicable, will be required to install Bluebook on 
school owned devices that meet College Board technical specifications. Participants using personal devices will be 
required to install Bluebook on compatible devices. Client shall provide internet access to each testing device. 

 
2. Administering the PSAT/NMSQT. The PSAT/NMSQT will be administered to Participating Students under standard 

College Board national test administration and security protocols as specified in the PSAT/NMSQT Test Coordinator 
Guide and PSAT/NMSQT Test Coordinator training and instructional materials, unless otherwise stated in this Schedule. 
In accordance with College Board policies, any test irregularity, including mis-administrations or security breaches, will 
be thoroughly investigated and may result in score cancellations. Client is responsible for making all necessary 
arrangements to ensure that the testing environment and the security of all test materials satisfy College Board 
requirements as specified in the PSAT/NMSQT Coordinator training and instructional materials. The test will be 
administered by Client-employed personnel, who will not receive additional remuneration from College Board. Client 
personnel must use TDTK in connection with the administration of the PSAT/NMSQT. This Agreement does not 
guarantee that all Students registered by Client for the Program will actually test. It is the responsibility of Client to 
encourage Participants to complete the program. Participants will follow the guidelines in applicable College Board 
digital student materials. 

 
3. Client Testing Delays. Should an event occur that would require Participating School(s) to close for reasons beyond the 

reasonable control of such Participating School(s) (for example, including, but not limited to, severe weather, extended 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 15 of 28  

power outages, or a teacher’s strike) (a ‘Delay Event’), the Participating School(s) should immediately notify College 
Board. 

 
In a Delay Event occurs, College Board will use its best reasonable efforts to support the change of a testing date for 
testing. College Board will assume any additional costs associated with rescheduling and delivering paper tests to 
participating schools impacted by a Delay Event. College Board reserves the right to deny the delivery of additional paper 
materials if, in its sole opinion, the additional work will endanger its vendors or its employees, agents, consultants, or if 
Client has failed to promptly inform College Board of the need for new materials in time to allow delivery of applicable 
paper test materials. No additional administration of the assessment will be made available after the testing window. 

 
VII. COLLEGE BOARD COLLECTION AND USE OF DATA 
 

1. Client acknowledges and agrees that the data collected from the administration of the assessment ordered under this 
Agreement is subject to College Board’s privacy policies, available at https://privacy.collegeboard.org.  

 
College Board shall collect from Client, or Participating School, as applicable, the following student data in connection 
with the registration of the assessments you are ordering under this Agreement, with those asterisked required for 
registration. Client and College Board agree to comply with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. 
s. 1232g, and its implementing regulations, 34 C.F.R. pt. 99 (‘FERPA’), as applicable. Client will obtain any and all 
consents necessary for students to participate in the assessment(s), if any. 
 
• *First and last name 
• Middle initial  
• *Date of Birth 
• *Attending institution (AI Code) 
• *Grade 
• *Gender 
• *Test administration indicator (that is, which assessment) 
• *Season for testing 
• Student identifier  
 
College Board may collect additional data and information from students in connection with the assessments, all of which 
is optional and subject to College Board’s privacy policies. See Annex 1 for more information.  
 
For digital testing, College Board will receive certain information about the device to ensure the device is compatible 
and monitor the actions taken in Bluebook for test security purposes, as well as to develop and improve College Board 
products and services.  

 
2. College Board may also collect, retain, use and share students’ personally identifiable information to perform this 

Agreement and for the purposes outlined below. 
 

a. For SAT, State Scholarship Organizations: State affiliated scholarship organizations may receive student data for 
the purposes of eligibility for a scholarship or recognition program.   

b. For SAT, National Presidential Scholars: Eligible students are shared with the US Department of Education for 
purposes of the U.S. Presidential Scholars Programs.  

c. For PSAT 10 and PSAT/NMSQT, National Recognition Programs: College Board uses student data to determine 
eligibility and administer its National Recognition Programs and share information with the students’ high school 
and district about the students’ recognition status.  

d. For PSAT/NMSQT, College Board will share scores and other information provided by students during testing with 
the National Merit Scholarship Corporation (NMSC) in order for NMSC to determine whether students are eligible 
for its National Merit Scholarship Program in accordance with the PSAT/NMSQT Student Guide 
(https://satsuite.collegeboard.org/media/pdf/psat-nmsqt-student-guide.pdf) and www.nationalmerit.org.  

e. Score Reporting to Students. 
f. SAT Score Sends: Students may identify institutions to receive their SAT scores. Student scores and basic 

demographic information sufficient for identity matching are only provided to higher education institutions and 
scholarship organizations when authorized by students.  

g. Score Report to Schools, Districts and State. Schools, Districts and the State will have access to students’ 
assessments score(s) and data derived from the score(s).  

h. Accommodations: College Board uses student data to process applications for testing accommodations and to 
communicate with the SSD coordinator and students regarding accommodations.  

i. Test Security: College Board may use student data to identify and investigate potential test security incidents, and 
protect and enhance test security, and disclose the results of test security investigations with third parties, including 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 16 of 28  

to the student’s school, any score recipient, college, higher education institution or agency, scholarship organization, 
potential score recipient government agency in the U.S or abroad, parents, legal guardians, or law enforcement.  

j. Research: College Board may use de-identified data obtained from student test-takers for psychometric and 
educational research purposes to evaluate the validity of our assessments and ensure that tests are unbiased in terms 
of race, gender, and culture. College Board may also use data to maintain, develop, support, improve and diagnose 
our services and applications. 

k. Other: College Board may disclose student data as required by law, when we believe in good faith that it’s necessary 
to protect our rights, protect an individual’s safety or the safety of others, investigate fraud, or respond to a 
government request. 

 
Client acknowledges that students may desire to continue and further develop a direct relationship beyond the 
administration of SAT Suite of Assessments for the purposes of students’ college and career readiness by utilizing 
College Board’s services available to all students.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement related to the collection, 
maintenance, use, and disclosure of data shall only apply to the data College Board receives in connection with this 
Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to diminish or interfere with student rights in their assessment data, 
and no provisions in this Agreement are intended to address or cover data that College Board has, or may receive, for 
services which are outside the scope of this Agreement. 

 
College Board agrees to adhere to the Data Protection, Security Measures and Notice provisions set forth below.   

 
VIII. DATA PROTECTION, SECURITY MEASURES AND NOTICE  
 

1. Data Protection. College Board shall take actions to protect the security and confidentiality of personally identifiable 
information that may be obtained pursuant to this Agreement in a manner consistent with industry standards. College 
Board will maintain a SOC 2 Type II report. 

 
College Board has security measures in place designed to help protect against loss, misuse and alteration of the data 
under College Board’s control. College Board shall develop, implement, maintain and use reasonably appropriate 
administrative, technical and physical security measures to preserve the confidentiality, integrity and availability of 
personally identifiable information that may be obtained pursuant to this Agreement, as determined by College Board.  
College Board shall host content in a secure environment that uses Web Application Firewalls/security groups and other 
advanced technologies designed to prevent interference or access from outside intruders.  

 
College Board encrypts personally identifiable information that may be obtained pursuant to this Agreement in 
transmission and storage where technically feasible and when designed as being appropriate by College Board. If not, 
other security controls may be implemented to reduce risk, mitigate risk, or otherwise protect the data as determined 
solely by College Board. When College Board’s platforms are accessed using a supported web browser, Transport Layer 
Security (‘TLS’) or equivalent technology protects information while in transit, using both server authentication and data 
encryption to help secure the data and limit availability to only authorized users.  

 
Client shall be responsible for removing access to College Board’s platforms for any personnel who no longer should 
have access, or promptly notifying College Board to request removal of any such access.  

 
2. Security Measures. College Board will extend the confidentiality requirements and security measures identified in this 

Agreement by contract to subcontractors used by College Board, if any, to provide services related to this Agreement. 
College Board will use appropriate and reliable storage media, regularly backup data and retain such backup copies for 
the duration of this Agreement, as defined by College Board. You acknowledge that College Board utilizes cloud hosting 
service providers throughout its infrastructure. College Board will store personally identifiable information that may be 
obtained pursuant to this Agreement in the United States where technically feasible and reasonable, as determined solely 
by College Board. 

 
IX.  COLLEGE BOARD SCHOOL DAY CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 

1. Dedicated PSAT/NMSQT Customer Service for Educators: College Board will provide Client with telephone 
customer service support for educators. Specifically, College Board will provide: 
a. Step-by-step assistance with College Board online tools including SSD System, SSOR and TDTK;  
b. Assistance with completing required forms such as AI Request Form;  
c. Assistance with technical complications for Bluebook Installation and Registration login, for example; and 
d. Feedback mechanism for counselors. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 17 of 28  

 Dates and Times of Service: Available three months prior to primary test date. Standard hours of operation: Monday 
through Friday 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Eastern Standard Time. Customer service for the PSAT/NMSQT Program can also 
be accessed online at the following web address: https://collegereadiness.collegeboard.org/contact-us. 

 
X.  ADDITIONAL PSAT/NMSQT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

1. Ownership of Intellectual Property.  College Board is the exclusive owner of all rights in and to the digital Testing 
Platform, Bluebook, Test Day Toolkit (TDTK), K-12 Reporting Portal, AP Potential, guidebooks for students and 
Designated Personnel, SAT exam, SAT with Essay exam, PSAT/NMSQT, PSAT 10, and PSAT 8/9 examinations, all 
individual test items (questions) contained therein, including all copies thereof, test booklets, all examination materials 
and all data collected therefrom, including but not limited to student scores derived from the exam, are at all times 
exclusively owned by College Board. In addition, College Board is the exclusive owner of AP Potential, College Board’s 
mobile app described below,  and all publications and reports associated with SAT exam, SAT with Essay exam, 
PSAT/NMSQT, PSAT 10 and PSAT 8/9 described in this Agreement including all copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, 
patents, and other similar proprietary rights, and all renewals and extensions thereof (all platforms, exams and related 
material referenced in this provision are collectively referred to as ‘College Board Intellectual Property’). Client 
acknowledges and agrees that nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted to indicate that College Board is passing its 
proprietary rights in and to College Board Intellectual Property to Client.  

 
Except as expressly provided herein, Client is prohibited from copying, disseminating, publishing, displaying or 
distributing in any form, or reproducing any questions from the assessments including from digital testing or paper test 
booklets (if used) in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of College Board. 

 
2. Student Score Report License. College Board hereby grants Client a limited, nonexclusive, nontransferable, non-

assignable right to access and use the student score reports provided for the assessment(s) pursuant to this Agreement for 
the legitimate educational purposes of internal analysis, which includes your internal training sessions, as long as the data 
used during training preserves the confidentiality of students. Client may not use or distribute the score reports or the 
data derived from them externally or to third parties other than the student without the express written consent of College 
Board. 

 
XI. FEE CALCULATION 
 

1. Fees. The fee calculation for this Schedule is based on the Client selections in SSOR. Pricing adjustment that reduce the 
fee per test for an amount less than the retail price are provided at the sole discretion of College Board. 

 
Clients will be charged the fee in the attached Budget Schedule based on the number of students registered via the College 
Board registration system located at https://ordering.collegeboard.org/, regardless of how many students take the 
PSAT/NMSQT assessment. The test volumes and total cost indicated in the Budget Schedule are estimates. 

 
2. Restrictions. No student participating under this Schedule will be assessed an individual fee for taking the 

PSAT/NMSQT exam.  
 
XII. CLIENT CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

 Primary4 Procurement5 
Name:   Suzanne McKelvey Robert Aldama 
Title:   Assessment Coordinator III Purchasing Manager II 
Address:   5735 47th Ave 5735 47th Ave 
City/State/Zip:  Sacramento, CA 95824-4528 Sacramento, CA 95824-4528 
Phone:  916-643-9280 916-643-9465 
Fax:   
Email: suzanne-mckelvey@scusd.edu robert-aldama@scusd.edu 

 
 
 
 
  

 
4 This is the person to whom College Board should direct primary communications. 
5 This is the person to whom College Board should send the contract for review and approval within the district procurement/contract department. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 18 of 28  

SAT® SCHOOL DAY PROGRAM  
SHELF SCHEDULE 

 
I. BACKGROUND 

 
College Board owns and delivers its national standardized SAT test to students. This Schedule outlines how Client sponsors a SAT 
School Day administration at its schools (‘Participating Schools’) for students during a certain designated period (‘Testing 
Window’) and what SAT data and reports may be provided to Client through our online data portal (the ‘Program’). Students who 
take the SAT exam in accordance with the provisions of this Schedule are herein referred to as ‘Participants.’  
 
II. PROGRAM MATERIALS AND INFORMATION 
 
College Board shall furnish SAT School Day materials and information as follows: 
 

1. Materials for Students: 
a. Link to the Student Guide 
b. SAT test materials delivered via College Board’s Digital Testing Platform, BlueBook™. Assessment score report 

delivered as a PDF to Client via College Board’s K-12 Reporting Portal.  
c. The ability to send SAT scores to colleges, scholarship programs and other designated score recipients via College 

Board website, collegeboard.org in the SAT section. 
d. For SAT (starting Spring 2024), information from College Board to help students understand and navigate post-

secondary and career pathways and opportunities through a College Board mobile application, as described in Annex 
1 attached. 

e. Access to SAT Practice Tools and Support as set forth below. 
f. Access to Bluebook and the test at school (Client will have access to a digital test preview to demonstrate the 

navigation and tools available to students in Bluebook). 
 

2. Materials for Participating Schools: 
a. Materials to support test administration. 
b. Client will receive online access to test day toolkit (TDTK), College Board’s digital test administration tool, and a 

downloadable PDF of the School Day Testing Coordinator Guide.  
c. Access to a digital test preview to demonstrate the navigation and tools available to students in the digital testing 

platform. 
d. Materials to support students receiving accommodations which require a paper test, including applicable 

instructions and the paper testing materials.  
e. Access to individual student score reports and aggregate score reports, and downloadable student data file 

delivered via College Board’s K-12 Reporting Portal.  
f. Access to AP Potential™ via College Board website. 
g. Insights and reporting on students’ participation in the College Board mobile application and insights to support 

student engagement in exploring college and career information and opportunities, as further described in Annex1. 
 
3. Reports for District:  

a. Access to individual student score reports and aggregate score reports, and downloadable student data file, delivered 
via College Board’s K-12 Reporting Portal. 

b. Access to AP Potential via College Board website. 
  

4. Delivering SAT Practice Tools and Support. In addition to the free practice tools available at 
http://sat.collegeboard.org/practice, all students will have access to a) full-length practice tests in Bluebook and b) 
focused practice resources through College Board’s collaboration with Khan Academy. Practice materials for the SAT 
exam are available at the Khan Academy website (http://satpractice.org). Client and Participants shall use the Khan 
Academy practice tool and materials in accordance with Khan Academy’s guidelines. 

 
Additional SAT Readiness products (e.g., publications) and services (e.g., Professional Development Workshops) are 
not included as part of the Program. Client may purchase these products and services separately. 

 
III. CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES  
 

1. In connection with SAT School Day, Client agrees that it will, or will ensure each participating school will:  
 

a. Comply with the Legal Terms for Educators and Institutions at https://privacy.collegeboard.org/educator-legal-
terms?navId=gf-edterms. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 19 of 28  

b. Review the information in Annex 1 below and incorporated herein about College Board’s mobile application 
available for students.  

c. Place orders by the ordering deadline. Orders cannot be decreased after the ordering deadline for SAT School Day. 
d. Designate personnel to act as a Test Coordinator, SSD Coordinator, Technology Coordinator, Proctors and Monitors 

(collectively, ‘Designated Personnel’).  
e. Ensure compliance with the requirements for training and other guidelines in the Guides shared with you.  
f. Verify and update, if necessary, the Test Coordinator name and contact information. 
g. Submit Eligibility Forms for students with disabilities who do not already have a College Board SSD Eligibility 

Code (see calendar for deadlines). 
h. Ensure that registered students are provided a link to the online SAT Student Guide 

(https://satsuite.collegeboard.org/media/pdf/sat-student-guide.pdf) at least two weeks before the anticipated start 
of testing. 

i. Administer the test to students under standard College Board national test administration and security policies, 
procedures and protocols as specified in training and/or instructional material shared with Client and in compliance 
with Designated Personnel Guide directions. 

j. Administer the test only during the authorized Testing Window for which the school is registered. 
k. Receive emails from College Board regarding the tests and their related offerings and share emails and coordinate 

communications with other staff at your schools as necessary. 
l. There is always a risk of disruption during paper or digital testing, including, without limitation, computer issues. 

College Board has endeavored to put in place procedures to allow administrators and students to recover from such 
disruption and complete testing. Despite such efforts, Client understands that there are situations where College 
Board's only option is to complete testing on the other days during the testing window. This is Client’s sole remedy 
in relation to such disruption. 
1. Testing may not be available in the case of severe weather or other disruptions, including without limitation 

epidemics, that require lengthy closures at your school that extend beyond the end of the Testing Window. 
2. For more information on what to do in the event of extended closure due to a weather or disruptions including 

without limitation epidemics, see our https://sat.org/COVID19. 
 

IV. PAPER AND DIGITAL TESTING REQUIREMENTS; ACCOMMODATIONS 
 

1. Digital Testing Requirements. 
a. The Technology Coordinator at each Participating School will complete all required College Board Technology 

Coordinator Training and provide training access to other supporting staff. Client will ensure compliance with 
training requirements for all testing staff. 

b. The Technology Coordinator at each Participating School will ensure the successful and accurate completion of all 
digital readiness and technology setup activities. These include: a dedicated device for Test Coordinator(s) to 
monitor test activities, a proctor device to administer the digital test in each testing room, and devices for each test-
taking student with College Board’s Digital Testing Platform, Bluebook™, installed. Additional information on the 
devices required for test day, including recommendations on battery and power source, supported operating systems, 
supported web browsers, and network configuration can be found at https://satsuite.collegeboard.org/digital. Client 
must ensure that each Participating School can meet College Board Digital Testing Requirements as outlined on the 
referenced website. 

c. Client will ensure that Participating School(s) consult College Board guides and training and adhere to the most up-
to-date Digital Testing room seating policies. 

d. Client shall complete College Board’s Registration process for each student scheduled to test by the registration 
deadline.  

e. If you are administering the test with accommodations requiring the use of an approved assistive technology device, 
students should pre-test the device in the Student Digital Test Preview prior to test day to ensure operational 
functionality. If the digital accommodation supports within the Digital Test preview do not meet students' testing 
needs, Client should arrange for alternate accommodation supports. 

 
2. Paper Tests  

a. College Board may provide a limited number of paper test books for students requiring accommodations that cannot 
be delivered as a digital test or otherwise as approved by College Board.  

b. Client, or Participating Schools, as applicable, will keep all test books in locked storage until test date. 
c. Participating Schools will collect all test books at the end of the test.  
d. Participating Schools will promptly complete the process for submitting responses for students that test using paper 

materials in accordance with the policies and processes provided by College Board to Test Coordinators. 
e. Participating Schools will promptly return all paper test materials in accordance with the policies and processes 

provided by College Board to Test Coordinators. 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 20 of 28  

3. ACCOMMODATIONS 
Accommodations for Participants with disabilities will be granted and administered according to College Board’s 
standard eligibility and administration procedures. Participants must apply for accommodations under College Board’s 
Services for Students with Disabilities (SSD) program and must follow the SSD program’s published procedures, which 
can be found at https://www.collegeboard.org/students-with-disabilities. Only College Board-approved accommodations 
are permitted. Students who use accommodated test materials without the College Board's prior approval may not receive 
scores or may otherwise have their scores cancelled or invalidated, and that cannot be reported to colleges, scholarship 
programs and other designated score recipients. Client will be responsible for ensuring that an appropriate 
accommodations coordinator (‘SSD Coordinator’) is designated for each Participating School to facilitate the application 
for and administration of approved accommodations. SSD Coordinators are responsible for notifying students when and 
where to report on test day. Early testing or testing at times other than those published by College Board is not permitted 
under any circumstances.  The ‘SSD Coordinator Form’ (used to establish an SSD Coordinator) is available at 
https://accommodations.collegeboard.org/media/pdf/ssd-coordinator.pdf. Participants with accommodations previously 
approved by College Board, and who have a College Board-issued SSD code, do not need to reapply for accommodations 
under this Program. https://satsuite.collegeboard.org/k12-educators/administration/sat-school-day/ordering/english-
learner-supports like translated directions and the use of word-to-word glossaries do not require approval or special test 
format. 

 
V. REQUIRED INFORMATION AND TRAINING 
 

1. Client shall furnish College Board with: (a) a list of Participating Schools with their respective College Board school 
code online in College Board’s SAT Suite Ordering and Registration system located at the following location 
ordering.collegeboard.org.  (‘SSOR’), (b) a list of all students registered for the exam are submitted online using the 
registration template in the College Board registration system located at the following location 
ordering.collegeboard.org and (c) the Client’s contacts entered online in SSOR. 
a. Changes to Participating Schools. Changes to the list of Participating Schools must be made online in the SSOR 

no later than two weeks prior to the beginning of the testing window.  
 

If any of Client’s schools are omitted from the List of Participating Schools, then such schools shall not be covered 
under this Schedule. 

 
2. Training of Designated Personnel at the Participating Schools. College Board will make available online all necessary 

training and/or instructional materials to Designated Personnel. The required training and/or instructional materials will 
be made available online by College Board to Client and must be completed two weeks before the test administration 
date.  

 
Designated Personnel are required to utilize College Board’s test day tool kit (‘TDTK’) application in connection with 
the administration of the SAT. Designated Personnel are required to adhere to all of College Board’s procedures, policies, 
and protocols related to national test administrations as specified in the SAT School Day Coordinator training and 
instructional materials. College Board reserves the right to cancel the administration of the Program at any Participating 
School where any Designated Personnel fails to complete such training prior to the scheduled test administration. 

 
VI. TESTING 
 

1. SAT Testing Windows. Client has agreed to administer the SAT to registered students during the Testing Window(s) 
selected by Client in College Board’s SSOR. In order to test, Client, or Participants, as applicable, will be required to 
install Bluebook on school owned devices that meet College Board technical specifications. Participants using personal 
devices will be required to install Bluebook on compatible devices. Client shall provide internet access to each testing 
device. 

 
2. Administering the SAT. The SAT will be administered to Participating Students under standard College Board national 

test administration and security protocols as specified in the SAT School Day Test Coordinator Guide and SAT School 
Day Test Coordinator training and instructional materials, unless otherwise stated in this Schedule, and will result in 
scores that are reportable to colleges for admissions purposes. In accordance with College Board policies, any test 
irregularity, including mis-administrations or security breaches, will be thoroughly investigated and may result in score 
cancellations. Client is responsible for making all necessary arrangements to ensure that the testing environment and the 
security of all test materials satisfy College Board requirements as specified in the SAT School Day Coordinator training 
and instructional materials. The test will be administered by Client-employed personnel, who will not receive additional 
remuneration from College Board. Client personnel must use TDTK in connection with the administration of the SAT. 
This Agreement does not guarantee that all Students registered by Client for the Program will actually test. It is the 
responsibility of Client to encourage Participants to complete the program. Participants will follow the guidelines in 
applicable College Board digital student materials. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 21 of 28  

3. Client Testing Delays. Participating schools select an administration date within a Testing Window for the SAT School 
Day. Should an event occur that would require Participating School(s) to close for reasons beyond the reasonable control 
of such Participating School(s) (for example, including, but not limited to, severe weather, extended power outages, or a 
teacher’s strike) (a ‘Delay Event’), the Participating School(s) should adjust testing until later in their Testing Window. 

 
Client understands that by selecting the last week of a Testing Window as their main administration date, if there is a 
Delay Event, there may be no additional SAT School Day test dates. In such cases, this Agreement remains in full force 
and effect.  

 
In a Delay Event occurs, College Board will use its best reasonable efforts to support the change of testing window for 
paper testing. College Board will assume any additional costs associated with rescheduling and delivering paper tests to 
participating schools impacted by a Delay Event up to one week prior to the end of the testing window. College Board 
reserves the right to deny the delivery of additional paper materials if, in its sole opinion, the additional work will 
endanger its vendors or its employees, agents, consultants, or if Client has failed to promptly inform College Board of 
the need for new materials in time to allow delivery of applicable paper test materials. No additional administration of 
the assessment will be made available after the Testing Window. 

 
VII. COLLEGE BOARD COLLECTION AND USE OF DATA 
 

1. Client acknowledges and agrees that the data collected from the administration of the assessment ordered under this 
Agreement is subject to College Board’s privacy policies, available at https://privacy.collegeboard.org/.  

 
College Board shall collect from Client, or Participating School, as applicable, the following student data in connection 
with the registration of the assessments you are ordering under this Agreement, with those asterisked required for 
registration. Client and College Board agree to comply with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. 
s. 1232g, and its implementing regulations, 34 C.F.R. pt. 99 (‘FERPA’), as applicable. Client will obtain any and all 
consents necessary for students to participate in the assessment(s), if any. 
 
• *First and last name 
• Middle initial  
• *Date of Birth 
• *Attending institution (AI Code) 
• *Grade 
• *Gender 
• *Test administration indicator (that is, which assessment) 
• *Season for testing 
• Student identifier  
 
College Board may collect additional data and information from students in connection with the assessments, all of which 
is optional and subject to College Board’s privacy policies. See Annex 1 for more information.  

 
For digital testing, College Board will receive certain information about the device to ensure the device is compatible 
and monitor the actions taken in Bluebook for test security purposes, as well as to develop and improve College Board 
products and services.  

 
2. College Board may also collect, retain, use and share students’ personally identifiable information to perform this 

Agreement and for the purposes outlined below. 
 

a. For SAT, State Scholarship Organizations: State affiliated scholarship organizations may receive student data for 
the purposes of eligibility for a scholarship or recognition program.  

b. For SAT, National Presidential Scholars: Eligible students are shared with the US Department of Education for 
purposes of the U.S. Presidential Scholars Programs.  

c. For PSAT 10 and PSAT/NMSQT, National Recognition Programs: College Board uses student data to determine 
eligibility and administer its National Recognition Programs and share information with the students’ high school 
and district about the students’ recognition status.  

d. For PSAT/NMSQT, College Board will share scores and other information provided by students during testing with 
the National Merit Scholarship Corporation (NMSC) in order for NMSC to determine whether students are eligible 
for its National Merit Scholarship Program in accordance with the PSAT/NMSQT Student Guide 
(https://satsuite.collegeboard.org/media/pdf/psat-nmsqt-student-guide.pdf) and www.nationalmerit.org. 

e. Score Reporting to Students. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 22 of 28  

f. SAT Score Sends: Students may identify institutions to receive their SAT scores. Student scores and basic 
demographic information sufficient for identity matching are only provided to higher education institutions and 
scholarship organizations when authorized by students.  

g. Score Report to Schools, Districts and State. Schools, Districts and the State will have access to students’ 
assessments score(s) and data derived from the score(s).  

h. Accommodations: College Board uses student data to process applications for testing accommodations and to 
communicate with the SSD coordinator and students regarding accommodations.  

i. Test Security: College Board may use student data to identify and investigate potential test security incidents, and 
protect and enhance test security, and disclose the results of test security investigations with third parties, including 
to the student’s school, any score recipient, college, higher education institution or agency, scholarship organization, 
potential score recipient government agency in the U.S or abroad, parents, legal guardians, or law enforcement.  

j. Research: College Board may use de-identified data obtained from student test-takers for psychometric and 
educational research purposes to evaluate the validity of our assessments and ensure that tests are unbiased in terms 
of race, gender, and culture. College Board may also use data to maintain, develop, support, improve and diagnose 
our services and applications. 

k. Other: College Board may disclose student data as required by law, when we believe in good faith that it’s necessary 
to protect our rights, protect an individual’s safety or the safety of others, investigate fraud, or respond to a 
government request. 

 
Client acknowledges that students may desire to continue and further develop a direct relationship beyond the 
administration of SAT Suite of Assessments for the purposes of students’ college and career readiness by utilizing 
College Board’s services available to all students.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement related to the collection, 
maintenance, use, and disclosure of data shall only apply to the data College Board receives in connection with this 
Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to diminish or interfere with student rights in their assessment data, 
and no provisions in this Agreement are intended to address or cover data that College Board has, or may receive, for 
services which are outside the scope of this Agreement. 

 
College Board agrees to adhere to the Data Protection, Security Measures and Notice provisions set forth below. 

 
VIII. DATA PROTECTION, SECURITY MEASURES AND NOTICE 
 

1. Data Protection. College Board shall take actions to protect the security and confidentiality of personally identifiable 
information that may be obtained pursuant to this Agreement in a manner consistent with industry standards. College 
Board will maintain a SOC 2 Type II report. 

 
College Board has security measures in place designed to help protect against loss, misuse and alteration of the data 
under College Board’s control. College Board shall develop, implement, maintain and use reasonably appropriate 
administrative, technical and physical security measures to preserve the confidentiality, integrity and availability of 
personally identifiable information that may be obtained pursuant to this Agreement, as determined by College Board.  
College Board shall host content in a secure environment that uses Web Application Firewalls/security groups and other 
advanced technologies designed to prevent interference or access from outside intruders.  

 
College Board encrypts personally identifiable information that may be obtained pursuant to this Agreement in 
transmission and storage where technically feasible and when designed as being appropriate by College Board. If not, 
other security controls may be implemented to reduce risk, mitigate risk, or otherwise protect the data as determined 
solely by College Board. When College Board’s platforms are accessed using a supported web browser, Transport Layer 
Security (‘TLS’)  or equivalent technology protects information while in transit, using both server authentication and 
data encryption to help secure the data and limit availability to only authorized users.  
 
Client shall be responsible for removing access to College Board’s platforms for any personnel who no longer should 
have access, or promptly notifying College Board to request removal of any such access.  

 
2. Security Measures. College Board will extend the confidentiality requirements and security measures identified in this 

Agreement by contract to subcontractors used by College Board, if any, to provide services related to this Agreement. 
College Board will use appropriate and reliable storage media, regularly backup data and retain such backup copies for 
the duration of this Agreement, as defined by College Board. You acknowledge that College Board utilizes cloud hosting 
service providers throughout its infrastructure. College Board will store personally identifiable information that may be 
obtained pursuant to this Agreement in the United States where technically feasible and reasonable, as determined solely 
by College Board. 

 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 23 of 28  

IX. COLLEGE BOARD SCHOOL DAY CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 
1. Dedicated SAT School Day Customer Service for Educators: College Board will provide Client with telephone 

customer service support for educators. Specifically, College Board will provide: 
 
a. Step-by-step assistance with College Board online tools including SSD System, SSOR and TDTK;  
b. Assistance with completing required forms such as AI Request Form;  
c. Assistance with technical complications for Bluebook Installation and Registration login, for example; and 
d. Feedback mechanism for counselors. 

 
 Dates and Times of Service: Available three months prior to primary test date. Standard hours of operation: Monday 

through Friday 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Eastern Standard Time. Customer service for the SAT Program can also be accessed 
online at the following web address: https://collegereadiness.collegeboard.org/contact-us. 

 
X. ADDITIONAL SAT SCHOOL DAY TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

1. Ownership of Intellectual Property.  College Board is the exclusive owner of all rights in and to the digital Testing 
Platform, Bluebook, Test Day Toolkit (TDTK), K-12 Reporting Portal, AP Potential, guidebooks for students and 
Designated Personnel, SAT exam, SAT with Essay exam, PSAT/NMSQT, PSAT 10, and PSAT 8/9 examinations, all 
individual test items (questions) contained therein, including all copies thereof, test booklets, all examination materials 
and all data collected therefrom, including but not limited to student scores derived from the exam, are at all times 
exclusively owned by College Board. In addition, College Board is the exclusive owner of AP Potential, College Board’s 
mobile app described below,  and all publications and reports associated with SAT exam, SAT with Essay exam, 
PSAT/NMSQT, PSAT 10 and PSAT 8/9 described in this Agreement including all copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, 
patents, and other similar proprietary rights, and all renewals and extensions thereof (all platforms, exams and related 
material referenced in this provision are collectively referred to as ‘College Board Intellectual Property’). Client 
acknowledges and agrees that nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted to indicate that College Board is passing its 
proprietary rights in and to College Board Intellectual Property to Client.  

 
Except as expressly provided herein, Client is are prohibited from copying, disseminating, publishing, displaying or 
distributing in any form, or reproducing any questions from the assessments including from digital testing or paper test 
booklets (if used) in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of College Board. 

 
2. SAT Suite Question Bank and License.  The SAT Suite Question Bank provides educators with the ability to access 

released PSAT 8/9, PSAT 10, and SAT questions by content domain, and score bands are provided for each question.  
College Board will release at least one full ‘adaptive test panel’ of content for each section of each assessment each year.  

 
College Board grants Client a non-exclusive, limited and revocable license to use the SAT Suite Question Bank and any 
other released questions for the sole purpose of classroom teaching and internal reporting purposes. Client understands 
and acknowledges that the questions and answers explanation include College Board copyrighted content and may also 
include third party copyrighted content for which you may only use for the aforementioned purposes. Client 
acknowledges and agrees that it has no right to upload or post online, cache, reproduce, modify, display, edit, alter or 
enhance any portion of the SAT Suite Question Bank questions and answers or the third-party content in any manner 
unless it has express written permission from College Board and the owner of the third-party content. 

 
College Board reserves the right to revoke the above license grant if Client violates the terms of the license. In addition, 
College Board shall not be liable to Client nor any third party for Client’s use of the question and answers explanation 
(including but not limited to, any copyright infringement claims) beyond the scope of the license.  

 
3. Student Score Report License. College Board hereby grants Client a limited, nonexclusive, nontransferable, non-

assignable right to access and use the student score reports provided for the assessment(s) pursuant to this Agreement for 
the legitimate educational purposes of internal analysis, which includes your internal training sessions, as long as the data 
used during training preserves the confidentiality of students. Client may not use or distribute the score reports or the 
data derived from them externally or to third parties other than the student without the express written consent of College 
Board. 

 
XI. FEE CALCULATION 
 

1. Fees. The fee calculation for this Schedule is based on Client selections in SSOR. Pricing adjustments that reduce the fee 
per test for an amount less than the retail price are provided at the sole discretion of College Board. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 24 of 28  

Clients will be charged the fee in the attached Budget Schedule based on the number of students registered via the College 
Board registration system located at https://ordering.collegeboard.org/, regardless of how many students take the SAT 
School Day assessment. The test volumes and total cost indicated in the Budget Schedule are estimates. 

 
2. Restrictions. No student participating under this Schedule will be assessed an individual fee for taking the SAT School 

Day exam.  
 
XII. CLIENT CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

 Primary6 Procurement7 
Name:   Suzanne McKelvey Robert Aldama 
Title:   Assessment Coordinator III Purchasing Manager II 
Address:   5735 47th Ave 5735 47th Ave 
City/State/Zip:  Sacramento, CA 95824-4528 Sacramento, CA 95824-4528 
Phone:  916-643-9280 916-643-9465 
Fax:   
Email: suzanne-mckelvey@scusd.edu robert-aldama@scusd.edu 

 
 
 
 
  

 
6 This is the person to whom College Board should direct primary communications. 
7 This is the person to whom College Board should send the contract to, if different from the Primary Contact. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 25 of 28  

Annex 1 to PSAT/NMSQT Schedule (Fall), PSAT 10 Schedule (Spring), SAT School Day Schedule (Spring) 
 

College Board shall provide the following educational services to help students navigate post-secondary and career pathways and 
to help K-12 educators and counselors serve their students' needs (collectively, ‘Educational Services’). 
 
‘App’ refers to a College Board mobile application that students can download from the App Store to access Educational 
Services. 
 
SCORE INFORMATION: In the App, students may access their scores and other score information (collectively, ‘Score 
Information’) for College Board assessments delivered pursuant to this Agreement and pursuant to other agreements that College 
Board has with Client’s school, district, or state, as applicable (collectively, ‘Covered Assessments’). 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: In the App, College Board will provide students with educational information and recommendations 
about college and career options including, for example, postsecondary options and opportunities, career pathways, scholarships, 
National Recognition Program potential eligibility, financial aid and paying for college information, and opportunities to 
participate in College Board research studies (collectively, ‘Recommendations’). In providing and customizing 
Recommendations, College Board may use student information collected in connection with Covered Assessments and through 
students’ use of Educational Services. 
 
CONNECTIONS*: Connections is a College Board program through which students are provided information about non-profit 
colleges, universities, scholarship organizations and other nonprofit educational organizations (‘Eligible Institutions’) based on 
criteria provided by those Eligible Institutions, which may include student interests, demographics, assessment score ranges, 
students’ use of Educational Services, and other information collected by College Board during Covered Assessment(s) for which 
the student opts-in to Connections. The students’ interests and preferences, such as through user controls within the App, may 
also influence and personalize the students’ experiences within the App and the content delivered to them through Connections. 
Connections is entirely optional, and students must affirmatively opt-in if they wish to participate.  Unless you direct College 
Board to exclude your students from Connections (as further described below), students can opt-in during Covered Assessment(s) 
or in the App. Students can opt-out any time, as described more fully below. 
 
Opted-in students may receive information and messages from Eligible Institutions in the App, by hard copy mail, and by email, 
subject to the student providing their home address, email, and/or downloads the mobile application, all of which data elements 
are optional (collectively, ‘Messages’). Eligible Institutions do not know the identity of a student to which they have been 
matched unless and until the student chooses to provide their personal information directly to the Eligible Institution, which the 
student can only do outside of the App and outside of the Educational Services. For example, a student may be able to link from 
the application to a webpage or webform hosted by that college. College Board may track students access to such links/webpages 
for purposes of reporting and analytics, but College Board will not disclose such information to Eligible Institutions other than in 
de-identified and aggregated form.  College Board never shares students’ personally identifiable information with Eligible 
Institutions as part of Connections.  
 
Messages are created by Eligible Institutions and may include text, images, videos, and interactive elements. While the messages 
may be personalized by College Board (e.g., student name at the top of an email) through automated means, College Board does 
not create, edit, or approve of Messages and is not responsible for Messages.       
 
Students who choose to opt-in to Connections can opt out at any time, for any or all Covered Assessment(s).  Students can also 
choose to remain in Connections for any or all Covered Assessment(s) but opt-out of individual communications channels 
(emails, hardcopy mailings, and in-App). Students have multiple ways to opt-out, including, an opt-out feature within the App, an 
unsubscribe option from Connections emails, opt-out instructions included in each mailing, and by contacting College Board’s 
customer service.   
 
ADDITIONAL DETAILS REGARDING EDUCATIONAL SERVICES:   
 
There is no incremental cost for Educational Services. 
 
College Board shall provide Client with reporting on your students’ use of Educational Services, with the content and cadence 
within College Board’s sole discretion.  
 
College Board collects certain information from students during Covered Assessments to ensure test validity and fairness, for 
identity matching and the purposes described above under the ‘College Board Collection and Use of Data’ section.  College 
Board also uses that information in Educational Services, as described above. For students who use the App, they may be able to 
update this information within the App, if they so choose. All questions are optional. More information about College Board’s 
Privacy Policies is located at https://privacy.collegeboard.org/?navId=gf-pp. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 26 of 28  

Questions include the following:  
 

- Home/Mailing Address  
- Mobile Phone Number  
- Email Address  
- Race  
- Ethnicity 
- First Language  
- Best Language  
- GPA  
- Intended College Major  
- Level of Education Aspirations  
- Parents’ Level of Education  
 

The following are only asked for the PSAT/NMSQT: 
 

- Whether the student is enrolled in high school traditional or homeschooled 
- Whether the student will complete or leave high school and enroll full-time in college  
- How many total years the student will spend in grades 9-12   
- Whether the student is a U.S. citizen  
 

To use the App, students provide a mobile number during the administration of the Covered Assessment and are encouraged to 
provide an email address solely for App account recovery purposes. By providing their mobile number, the student authorizes 
College Board to text them to download the App and authenticate into the App, about their scores, including when their scores 
are available, and with App notifications (if the student elects to turn on those notifications). The foregoing is clearly explained to 
the student. The student’s phone number authenticates the student into the App. College Board does not use mobile numbers 
collected during Covered Assessments for any other purposes. 
 
Client may direct College Board to automatically exclude its students from Connections for one or more Covered Assessments by 
contacting College Board Customer Service at (866) 609-1369. Client may visit collegeboard.org/connections-tc for more 
information about Connections and for access to an opt-out form.  
 

- Opt-outs must be submitted before the Ordering Deadline to suppress displaying the Connections opt-in to students 
during their testing experience for the Covered Assessment(s).  

• If a student had already opted-in to Connections before Client opted-out of Connections for a Covered 
Assessment, (i) the student’s data from Covered Assessment(s) for which Client opted out of Connections 
will no longer be used for Connections upon College Board’s implementation of Client’s opt out; (ii) the 
student’s data from any Covered Assessment(s) for which Client chose not to opt-out of Connections may 
continue to be used for Connections and the student may still use the Connections feature within the App; and 
(iii) if Client excludes its students from Connections for all Covered Assessments, use of the student data for 
Connections for those Covered Assessments will cease upon College Board’s implementation of Client’s opt 
out, the students will not receive any new Messages, and any previously delivered Messages may be still 
accessed by students.  

- In some instances, Client’s state may have elected to opt-out its students and College Board will abide by that exclusion 
for Client’s students.   

- If Client opts-out, Client may revoke this opt-out election by contacting College Board at SAT Customer Service at 
888-SAT-HELP, +1-212-520-8600 (International), or email sateducator@collegeboard.org.   

- If Client opts-out, Client’s students will not going forward be able to opt-in to Connections for the Covered 
Assessment(s) for which Client opted out of Connections.  

- Upon opt-out, students will still be able to use the App to receive Score Information and Recommendations, so long as 
the student provides their mobile number during the Covered Assessment.  

 
Students may have opportunities to link from the App to BigFuture® and to other college and career planning services on College 
Board’s website, www.collegeboard.org. Those services are not part of Educational Services and do not use student data 
collected under this Agreement, the only exception being scores on College Board assessments, as all students have independent 
rights in their own test scores. Students use BigFuture in their personal capacity and may need a personal College Board account 
to use certain features. Students with personal College Board accounts may also be able to access their scores through their 
personal accounts. Students may also have opportunities to copy data from their personal College Board accounts to Educational 
Services for use by Connections.  Such data copies shall be considered part of Educational Services and those copies are subject 
to the same privacy rules as student data collected during Covered Assessments https://privacy.collegeboard.org/. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 27 of 28  

Some states, districts and other organizations send data protection agreements or similar as part of their procurement 
process. Client agrees that any such agreement that College Board may receive in connection with this Agreement is not intended 
to and does not contradict this Agreement. 
  
*Not offered in New York at this time. There may be other exclusions. 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



  Contract # CB-00035347 

REV 1.2023  Page 28 of 28  

Budget Schedule 
 

Product Name Start Date End Date Quantity Unit Price  Cost  Discount  Total Cost 
PSAT/NMSQT: Fall 
2023 

July 1, 2023 June 30, 2024 3,059 $18.00 $55,062.00 
 

$10,461.78 $44,600.22 

PSAT 8/9: Fall 2023 July 1, 2023 June 30, 2024 6,492 $14.00 $90,888.00 
 

$17,268.72 $73,619.28 

SAT School Day: Spring 
2024 

July 1, 2023 June 30, 2024 3,040 $60.00 $182,400.00 
 

$91,929.60 $90,470.40 

Subtotal: $328,350.00 
Total Discount:  $119,660.10 

Total Cost:  $208,689.90  
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 59F74247-C9DA-4EFD-9A7A-E9F5515C8B37DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSR WVD

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$

PRO-

OTHER:

LOCJECT

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
$(Ea accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ANY AUTO
OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED PROPERTY DAMAGE $

AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $ $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

POLICY

NON-OWNED

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION   DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE   WITH   THE   POLICY   PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW  HAVE BEEN ISSUED  TO THE  INSURED  NAMED ABOVE  FOR THE  POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.   NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY   REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR  OTHER  DOCUMENT  WITH  RESPECT  TO  WHICH  THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,   THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN  IS  SUBJECT  TO  ALL  THE  TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS  AND  CONDITIONS  OF  SUCH  POLICIES.   LIMITS  SHOWN  MAY  HAVE  BEEN  REDUCED  BY  PAID  CLAIMS.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORDACORD 25 (2016/03)

ACORDTM CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

The First Liberty Insurance Corporation

Liberty Mutual Fire Insurance Company

Liberty Insurance Corporation

AIG Specialty Insurance Company

12/22/2022

Conner Strong & Buckelew
TRIAD1828 CENTRE
2 Cooper St
Camden, NJ  08102

Timothy Costello
856-479-2132

tcostello@connerstrong.com

College Board
250 Vesey Street
New York, NY  10281

33588
23035
42404
26883

A X
X

X

TB6Z51292899023 01/01/2023 01/01/2024 1,000,000
1,000,000
10,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

B

X X

AS2Z51292899033 01/01/2023 01/01/2024 1,000,000

C X X TH7Z51292899063 01/01/2023 01/01/2024 25,000,000
25,000,000

C

N

WC7Z51292899013 01/01/2023 01/01/2024 X
1,000,000

1,000,000
1,000,000

D Professional
Liability

021407690 01/01/2023 01/01/2024 $10,000,000 Per Claim
$10,000,000 Aggregate

Evidence of Insurance
  

1 of 1
#S3787738/M3778220

COLLEBOARDClient#: 353512

T4C
1 of 1

#S3787738/M3778220

DocuSign Envelope ID: E947F747-9062-421C-A9E0-2ABC6A2F0587



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 12.1b 
 

 
Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023 
 
 
Subject:  Approve Personnel Transactions 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Human Resources Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Personnel Transactions 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  N/A 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Safe, Clean and Healthy Schools 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Certificated Personnel Transactions Dated October 5, 2023 
2. Classified Personnel Transactions Dated October 5, 2023 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 

Submitted by:   Cancy McArn, Chief Human Resources Officer 
Approved by:  Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent  

 
 Page 1 of 1 



Page 1 of 3

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

Attachment 1:  CERTIFICATED 10/5/2023

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
EMPLOY/ REEMPLOY
AHMAD TAMKINAT B Teacher, Middle School WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE SCHOOL 8/25/2022 6/30/2023 AMEND EMPLOY PROB 8/25/22                                                                              
ALCALA PELAYO DIANA B Teacher, Middle School UMOJA INTERNATIONAL ACADEMY 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
BJURSTROM FRANCESCA 0 Teacher, Elementary THEODORE JUDAH ELEMENTARY 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
BUSH DANTE E Teacher, High School JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY TC 8/31/23                                                                                                       
CALDERON AMBRIZ LISSETH B Teacher, High School LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
CARBONEL LAARNI 0 Teacher, Spec Ed JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 9/7/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/7/23                                                                                                   
COBOS-GUTIERREZ JANET E School Nurse HEALTH SERVICES 8/28/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY TC 8/28/23                                                                                                       
COLLETTE JASON B Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
CORNELL RENEE 0 Teacher, High School LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
CORY JACQUELIN B Teacher, High School C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 8/28/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/28/23                                                                                                   
FEKADU RUTH E Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 8/24/2023 9/8/2023 EMPLOY TC 8/24/23 
FIGUEROA VANESSA 0 Teacher, Elementary LEATAATA FLOYD ELEMENTARY 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
FLORES FABIOLA B Teacher, Elementary PARKWAY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 8/28/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/28/23                                                                                                   
GAMEZ MARTINEZ I JORDAN B Teacher, High School LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 8/28/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/28/23                                                                                                   
HANKINS JASON 0 Teacher, Elementary LEATAATA FLOYD ELEMENTARY 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
HENDERSON DANA 0 Teacher, Spec Ed MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/31/23                                                                                                   
HER PAKOU 0 Teacher, High School C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
HERNANDEZ TERESA B Morning Duty CAROLINE WENZEL ELEMENTARY 9/25/2023 6/30/2024 REEMPLOY PROB 9/25/23                                                                                                   
HERNANDEZ JR BILLY 0 Teacher, High School JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
HOFFMAN CLAIRE B Teacher, High School ENGINEERING AND SCIENCES HS 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
JONES STEPHON 0 Teacher, Elementary DAVID LUBIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 8/28/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/28/23                                                                                                   
KATZ ERICA B Teacher, Elementary Spec Subj WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
KESSLER NATALIE B Counselor, High School LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 8/21/2023 6/30/2024 AMEND EMPLOY PROB 8/21/23                                                                                            
KIRKENDOLL MICHAEL 0 Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 RE-EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                
KORTOKRAX SUSAN B Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 9/5/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/5/23                                                                                                   
LANGLEY JOHN 0 Teacher, High School LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 9/7/2023 9/12/2023 EMPLOY TC 9/7/23                                                                        
LO CURTO THOMAS B Teacher, High School C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
LUCERO-KENISTON SHENANDOAH 0 Teacher, High School C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 7/1/23                                                                                                    
MONTONYE NICOLE B School Nurse HEALTH SERVICES 8/23/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/23/23                                                                                                   
MORENO RAMON B Teacher, High School HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 8/29/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/29/23                                                                                                  
NAVARRO CHRISTINA B Teacher, K-8 LEONARDO da VINCI ELEMENTARY 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 7/1/23                                                                                                    
NEREU MICHAEL B Teacher, High School C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 8/28/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/28/23                                                                                                          
PARILO JOHN 0 Teacher, K-8 JOHN H. STILL - K-8 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
PEREZ-GONZALEZ ISSAC 0 Teacher, High School JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
PICHININO HOLLY B Teacher, K-8 ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - K-8 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 7/1/23                                                                                                    
POWELL RACHEL 0 Teacher, High School THE MET 8/28/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
RAMIREZ RICARDO 0 Teacher, Elementary EARL WARREN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
REED KEVIN B Teacher, Middle School ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE SCHOOL 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 AMEND EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                            
REHM NATALIE B Teacher, Elementary ETHEL I. BAKER ELEMENTARY 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
RISBRY ADDISON B Teacher, Middle School CALIFORNIA MIDDLE SCHOOL 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
RIVERA MANUEL 0 Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
ROSSI MICHELLE B Teacher, Elementary GOLDEN EMPIRE ELEMENTARY 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
SELBY SHAD 0 Teacher, High School LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 9/8/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/8/23                                                                                                   
SHTEVNIN YEVGENIYA C Teacher, High School C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/30/21                                                                                                   
SMITH KRISTIN E Teacher, Elementary LEATAATA FLOYD ELEMENTARY 9/8/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY TC 9/8/23-6/30/24                                                                                                
SRAN JESSICA B School Nurse HEALTH SERVICES 8/23/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/23/23                                                                                                   
TAYLOR JONDELL 0 Teacher, K-8 JOHN H. STILL - K-8 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
TERRAZAS JOLIE B Teacher, Middle School UMOJA INTERNATIONAL ACADEMY 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
THAO MAIA 0 Teacher, Elementary SUY:U ELEMENTARY 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
VREELAND VICTORIA 0 Teacher, Elementary JOHN D SLOAT BASIC ELEMENTARY 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           
WADA JACLYN 0 Teacher, Middle School SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE SCHOOL 8/30/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 7/1/23                                                                                                    
WARGARDN AARON E Teacher, Middle School FERN BACON MIDDLE SCHOOL 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY TC 8/31/23                                                                                                       
WESTERHOUT-JUSTUS MICHELLE B Teacher, Spec Ed PONY EXPRESS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 9/6/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/6/23                                                                                                    
YANG CHONG B Teacher, Elementary PARKWAY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 8/24/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/24/23                                                                                                           

LEAVES 
ARSENIA KISHA EDEN C Teacher, Spec Ed JOHN H. STILL - K-8 9/8/2023 6/30/2024 LOA RTN (UNPD) 9/8/23                                                                                                   
BAHRAMZI GHAZALA A Teacher, Spec Ed FERN BACON MIDDLE SCHOOL 9/4/2023 9/10/2023 LOA EXT (PD)  9/4-9/10/23                                                                                         
BAHRAMZI GHAZALA A Teacher, Spec Ed FERN BACON MIDDLE SCHOOL 9/11/2023 6/30/2024 LOA (UNPD) 9/11-6/30/24                                                                                                 
BERNARDINO ANGELA A Teacher, High School HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 8/28/2023 10/1/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 8/28-10/1/23                                                                                      

Sacramento City Unified School District Personnel Transactions
October 5, 2023



Page 2 of 3

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
CLELAND-BRINZER JENNIFER A Teacher, Middle School MIWOK MIDDLE SCHOOL 8/31/2023 1/1/2024 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 8/31-1/1/24                                                                                       
MATHANY CHRISTOPHER B Teacher, Elementary NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 9/8/2023 6/30/2024 LOA (PD) ADMIN 9/8/23                                                                                               
MCCLATCHY AARON A Teacher, Spec Ed LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 8/31/2023 12/4/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 8/31-12/4/23                                                                                      
MORALES VILMA A Teacher, Elementary FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 9/14/2023 6/30/2024 LOA (PD) ADMIN 9/4/23                                                                                                   
SANCHEZ YESENIA A Teacher, Elementary SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/23/2023 11/17/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 10/23-11/17/23                        
SINGLEY GLENN A Teacher, High School HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 9/11/2023 6/30/2024 LOA (PD) ADMIN 9/11/23                                                                                                    
VAN LANINGHAM RAYMOND A Teacher, Spec Ed SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 8/17/2023 8/27/2023 LOA RTN (PD) AMIN 8/17/23                                                                                              

RE-ASSIGN/STATUS CHANGE
ALLEN ROBERT A Teacher, Elementary Spec Subj EDWARD KEMBLE ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                          
BOLTZ CASSANDRA A Teacher, Resource HUBERT H BANCROFT ELEMENTARY 8/28/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 8/28/23                                                                                                    
CALLAHAN ELINA A Teacher, High School WEST CAMPUS 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                     
DANZINGER ALEXANDRA A Teacher, Resource, Elementary ROSA PARKS MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 REA 7/1/23                                                                                                             
DENNIS MAYA B Counselor, Middle School UMOJA INTERNATIONAL ACADEMY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                    
DUNKLEY KELLY B Principal, Middle School CAPITAL CITY SCHOOL 9/21/2023 6/30/2024 REASSIGN/STCHG 9/21/23                                                                                               
FEKADU RUTH E Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 8/24/2023 9/8/2023 SEP/RESIGN 9/8/23                                                                                  
FULGHAM SONJA B Teacher, Child Development EARLY LEARNING & CARE PROGRAMS 8/30/2023 6/30/2024 REA 8/30/23                                                                                                             
GALLEGOS TORIBIA B Teacher, Child Development EARLY LEARNING & CARE PROGRAMS 8/30/2023 6/30/2024 REA 8/30/23                                                                                                             
GEDDES JOSEPH A Teacher, High School JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 REA 7/1/23                                                                                                           
JONES MITCHELL Q Principal, High School ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG/INTERIM 7/1/23-6/30/24                                                                                   
KEM-GREY VIDALYN C School Nurse HEALTH SERVICES 8/1/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 8/1/23                                                                                                        
KOEHLER MONICA B Asst Principal, Supt Pr Sch K8 ROSA PARKS MIDDLE SCHOOL 8/23/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 8/23/23                                                                                                
KRAFT KARA A Teacher, Elementary Spec Subj ISADOR COHEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                     
LABORDE LAGRAVE CATHERINE 0 Teacher, High School C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                    
LANGLEY JOHN 0 Teacher, High School LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 9/7/2023 9/12/2023 SEP/RESIGN 9/12/23                                                                                  
LATCHAM-TOM BRITTANY A Training Specialist, Spec. Ed SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 9/18/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 9/18/23                                                                                                       
LEE YVETTE B Teacher, Child Development EARLY LEARNING & CARE PROGRAMS 8/30/2023 6/30/2024 REA 8/30/23                                                                                                             
LOR SIA A Teacher, Child Development EARLY LEARNING & CARE PROGRAMS 8/30/2023 6/30/2024 REA 8/30/23                                                                                                             
MISCA MIHAELA A Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE SCHOOL 9/13/2023 6/30/2024 REA 9/13/23                                                                                                             
PADILLA YOLANDA A Teacher, Child Development EARLY LEARNING & CARE PROGRAMS 8/30/2023 6/30/2024 REA 8/30/23                                                                                                             
PEOPLE JASMINE A Clinician Psych/ Soc Wrkr SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 9/18/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 9/18/23                                                                                                  
PIATT DAISY A Training Specialist, High Sch ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 REA 7/1/23                                                                                             
ROBINSON JOSALYN A Teacher, Elementary BOWLING GREEN ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 REA 7/1/23                                                                                             
RUIZ LEANNE 0 Teacher, High School C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                    
SCHROEDER ADRIANNA B Teacher, High School WEST CAMPUS 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                    
SCHROER KRISTIN C Teacher, Middle School CALIFORNIA MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                    
SPARKS JENNIFER A Teacher, Resource, Elementary ETHEL I. BAKER ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 REA 7/1/23                                                                                             
SWEETEN HALEY A Teacher, Resource NICHOLAS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 REA 7/1/23                                                                                             
TRAN PHOEBE A Teacher, Elementary JOHN H. STILL - K-8 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 REA 7/1/23                                                                                             
VILLANUEVA ELIZABETH B Principal, Elem/Charter Schl BOWLING GREEN ELEMENTARY 8/29/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG/INTERIM 8/29-6/30/24                                                                                   
YAANGH STACY A Teacher, Resource BOWLING GREEN ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                     

SEPARATE / RESIGN / RETIRE
BATTS DAVID A Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2023 9/13/2023 SEP/RESIGN 9/13/23                                                                                                      
BILLERBECK SETH 0 Teacher, High School HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2022 6/16/2023 SEP/RESIGN 6/16/23                                                                                                      
BUCIO LETICIA B Prncpl, New Innovative Sm HS HEALTH PROFESSIONS HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 9/20/2023 SEP / TERM 9/20/23                                                                                                      
CHANG KEVIN 0 Teacher, High School LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 8/31/2023 SEP/RESIGN 8/31/23                                                                                                      
DAVIS CHRISTINA B Teacher, Elementary FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 7/1/2023 8/24/2023 SEP/RESIGN 8/24/23                                                                                                      
GIORDANO LISA-MARIE 0 Teacher, Elementary A. M. WINN - K-8 7/1/2023 8/22/2023 SEP / RESIGN 8/22/23                                                                                                    
HAMMOND HANNAH 0 Counselor, High School LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 8/31/2023 SEP/RESIGN 8/31/23                                                                                                      
MEYERS MORGAN A Teacher, Elementary CESAR CHAVEZ INTERMEDIATE 7/1/2023 8/7/2023 SEP/RESIGN 8/7/23                                                                                                       
POLICE RENA B Counselor, Elementary School PONY EXPRESS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 9/8/2023 SEP/RESIGN 9/8/23                                                                                                       
RODRIGUEZ ANGELICA A Teacher, K-8 JOHN H. STILL - K-8 7/1/2023 8/16/2023 SEP/RESIGN 8/16/23                                                                                                      
SCHMELZER KEITH A Teacher, Elementary CAPITAL CITY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 9/15/2023 SEP/RETIRE 9/15/23                                                                                                    
SHAFFER KIMBERLY A Counselor, Middle School MIWOK MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2023 9/8/2023 SEP/RESIGN 9/8/23                                                                                                     
SMITH TONY B Teacher, High School WEST CAMPUS 7/1/2023 8/19/2023 SEP/DECEASED 8/19/23                                                                                                  
TAYLOR JONDELL A Library Media Tech Asst JOHN H. STILL - K-8 7/1/2023 8/7/2023 SEP/RESIGN 8/7/23                                                                                                       
VANG-HER YEE A Teacher, High School HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 8/11/2023 SEP/RESIGN 8/11/23                                                                                                      
WONG ELLEN A Teacher, High School C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 7/31/2023 SEP/RETIRE 7/1/23                                                                                                     

TRANSFER
ARNOLD JUDITH A Teacher, Elementary GENEVIEVE DIDION ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                       
BULL TARA A Teacher, Spec Ed SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 8/28/2023 6/30/2024 TR 8/28/23                                                                                                      



Page 3 of 3

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
CORTEZ CARA A Teacher, Middle School MIWOK MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
DA CASTELLO TODD A Teacher, Spec Ed ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
DIX ROGER A Teacher, Elementary Spec Subj JAMES W MARSHALL ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
DO VERNA A Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
EWING CHARLES A Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. ROSA PARKS MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
FOUCHARD SHANNON A Teacher, High School ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
HIETT KRISTINE A Teacher, Elementary DAVID LUBIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 8/28/2023 6/30/2024 TR 8/28/23                                                                                                      
HJALTALIN JEANNIE A Teacher, Spec Ed ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 9/5/2023 6/30/2024 TR 9/5/23                                                                                                
HUERTA ESPINOZA TANIA A Teacher, Elementary HOLLYWOOD PARK ELEMENTARY 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 TR 8/31/23                                                                                            
JAIME GRICELDA A Teacher, Elementary FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 8/28/2023 6/30/2024 TR 8/28/23                                                                                                      
JENKS DANA A Teacher, High School ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
KINTER ZACHARY A Teacher, Elementary Spec Subj JOHN CABRILLO ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
LANGE-SANCHEZ HECTOR 0 Teacher, Traveling Music MUSIC SECTION 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
LANGE-SANCHEZ HECTOR 0 Teacher, Traveling Music ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
LOSOYA DEMETRE C Teacher, Elementary Spec Subj OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
MALTBY MICHAEL A Teacher, Middle School CALIFORNIA MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
PARKER BRANDON A Teacher, High School HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
PERRY SAMANTHA A Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. JAMES W MARSHALL ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
RANKINS SARAH A Teacher, Elementary CROCKER/RIVERSIDE ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
ROBINSON DAWN A Teacher, Elementary CROCKER/RIVERSIDE ELEMENTARY 9/5/2023 6/30/2024 TR  9/5/23                                                                                              
SANCHEZ YESENIA A Teacher, Elementary SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/23/2023 11/17/2023 TR 8/28/23                                                    
SANCHEZ YESENIA A Teacher, Elementary SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 8/28/2023 10/22/2023 TR 8/28/23                                                                                                      
SAUNDERS MICHELLE A Teacher, High School ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
SCINTO KAREN A Teacher, Elementary PHOEBE A HEARST BASIC ELEM. 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
SMITH SHANNON 0 Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. UMOJA INTERNATIONAL ACADEMY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
SMITH MARIA A Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. CESAR CHAVEZ INTERMEDIATE 9/14/2023 6/30/2024 TR  9/14/23                                                                                                 
SOLIS CHRISTOPHER C Teacher, Elementary Spec Subj GOLDEN EMPIRE ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
STEINMAN CONNIE A Teacher, High School ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
STROBEL JOSEPH A Teacher, Middle School WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
TREW TAYLER A Teacher, Elementary ABRAHAM LINCOLN ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
VALLEJO REBECA A Teacher, High School HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
VAN LANINGHAM RAYMOND A Teacher, Spec Ed SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE SCHOOL 8/28/2023 6/30/2024 TR 8/28/23                                                                                                      
VANG XALEE C Teacher, Elementary Spec Subj SUSAN B. ANTHONY ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
YOUNG-GUNNING ROBIN A Teacher, Spec Ed SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               



Page 1 of 3

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

Attachment 2:  CLASSIFIED 10/5/2023

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
EMPLOY/ REEMPLOY

ANDAL ANGELINE B Health Aide HEALTH SERVICES 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/31/23                                                                                                   
AOUAJ MOUNIA B Inst Aid, Spec Ed PARKWAY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 9/7/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/7/23                                                                                                      
BARBEE-MEADOWS SHALLIN B Inst Aid, Spec Ed MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 REEMPLY 8/31/23                                                                                                         
BATISTE KEVIN A School Plant Ops Mngr I PARKWAY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 3/1/2024 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/1/23                                                                                                      
BATISTE KEVIN B School Plant Ops Mngr I PARKWAY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 9/1/2023 2/29/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/1/23                                                                                                      
CARRILLO SAMMY B Fiscal Services Tech I EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 8/2/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/2/23                                                                                                  
CONTRERAS DOLORES B Clerk III HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/31/23                                                                                                   
COWARD MARVA B Instructional Aide HOLLYWOOD PARK ELEMENTARY 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/31/23                                                                                                     
DELIZO KRISTINE B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/31/23                                                                                                   
DEWITT INDIA B Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 9/1/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/1/23                                                                                                      
DIAZ CARBAJAL BRENDA B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/31/23                                                                                                   
DOBBINS TYRESE B Custodian PACIFIC ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 9/18/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/18/23                                                                                                     
ETHLEY DESIREE B Clerk II GOLDEN EMPIRE ELEMENTARY 9/5/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/5/23                                                                                                      
FREEBURN BRIANNA B Instructional Aide ETHEL I. BAKER ELEMENTARY 9/15/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/15/23                                                                                                     
GALSTYAN-SMITH NAZIK B School Community Liaison ABRAHAM LINCOLN ELEMENTARY 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/31/23                                                                                                     
GARCIA ISABEL B Campus Monitor BOWLING GREEN ELEMENTARY 9/5/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/5/23                                                                                                      
GOMEZ MIRIAM B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/31/23                                                                                                   
GUEVARA ARACELI B Health Aide HEALTH SERVICES 9/13/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/13/23                                                                                                     
HABIBOLLAH HAMIDEH B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 9/18/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/18/23                                                                                                   
HAUGHT AIMEE B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 9/18/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/18/23                                                                                                   
HUANG XIAOFENG B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/31/23                                                                                                   
JIMENEZ FLORES DOLORES B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/31/23                                                                                                   
KUMAR NITEN B Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 9/1/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/1/23                                                                                                    
LUCAS NADINE B Attendance Tech I CAPITAL CITY SCHOOL 9/5/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/5/23                                                                                                    
MARTIN JENNIFER B Instructional Aide O. W. ERLEWINE ELEMENTARY 9/22/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/22/23                                                                                                     
MILLER ARIELLE B Inst Aid, Spec Ed SUY:U ELEMENTARY 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/31/23                                                                                                     
MONTOYA ESPERANZA B Clerk II JOHN D SLOAT BASIC ELEMENTARY 9/5/2023 6/30/2024 REEMPLOY PROB 9/5/23                                                                                                    
PADILLA HANNA CARMEN B Office Tchncn III HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 9/7/2023 6/30/2024 REEMPLOY PROB 9/7/23                                                                                                   
PETERSON MATTHEW B Inst Aid, Spec Ed HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 9/18/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/18/23                                                                                                     
RAMIREZ ASHLEY B School Community Liaison HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/31/23                                                                                                     
RICH JAYVON B Custodian SUY:U ELEMENTARY 9/18/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/18/23                                                                                                     
RIOS ARROYO HECTOR B Custodian ROSA PARKS MIDDLE SCHOOL 9/1/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/1/23                                                                                                      
RIVAS, JR RONNIE B Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 9/1/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/1/23                                                                                                   
SMITH ROBERT B Custodian ROSA PARKS MIDDLE SCHOOL 9/5/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/5/23                                                                                                      
VEGA ALEJANDRA B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 9/18/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/18/23                                                                                                  
VERA ALICIA B Inst Aid, Spec Ed DAVID LUBIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 9/20/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/20/23                                                                                                     

LEAVES
CREEL JESSICA B Noon Duty HUBERT H BANCROFT ELEMENTARY 8/1/2023 8/5/2023 LOA EXT (PD) 8/1-8/5/23                                                                                          
CREEL JESSICA B Noon Duty HUBERT H BANCROFT ELEMENTARY 8/6/2023 9/30/2023 LOA RTN (PD) 8/6/23                                                                                              
HARPER BRAD A Campus Monitor ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 LOA (PD) 8/31-12/31/23                                                                                               
HENG VEASNA A Custodian JOHN H. STILL - K-8 8/25/2023 6/30/2024 LOA RTN (PD) FMLA/CFRA 8/25/23                                                                                          
MILLAN DA'MONIK A School Intervention Staff Asst UMOJA INTERNATIONAL ACADEMY 9/21/2023 6/30/2024 LOA (PD) ADMIN                                                                                                          
PAULY ZACHARY B Facilities Maint Laborer I FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 9/18/2023 6/30/2024 LOA ADMIM (PD) 9/18/23                                                                                                     
RHYM JAMILAH A Office Assistant, HR Services HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES 9/8/2023 11/3/2023 LOA PD/FMLA/CFRA 9/8-11/3/23                                                                                            
SESSIONS LATASHA A Campus Monitor SUCCESS ACADEMY 9/20/2023 6/30/2024 LOA (PD) ADM, 9/20/23                                                                                                   
VAN AIRSDALE CONNIE A Fiscal Services Tech I EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 9/11/2023 12/21/2023 LOA PD/ FMLA/CFRA 9/11-12/21/23                                                                                         
VAN AIRSDALE CONNIE A Fiscal Services Tech I EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 12/22/2023 3/31/2024 LOA PD/ FMLA/CFRA 9/11-12/21/23                                                                                         

RE-ASSIGN/STATUS CHANGE
ABERNATHY TRACEY A Morning Duty THEODORE JUDAH ELEMENTARY 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 8/31/23                                                                                                           
ACEVEDO VARGAS ALMA B Food Service Lead, School Site NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 8/31/23                                                                                                     
AGPOON MARLON B Electronics Technician FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 9/11/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 9/11/23                                                                                                
AGUILERA SHERYL A Noon Duty GENEVIEVE DIDION ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            

Sacramento City Unified School District Personnel Transactions
October 5, 2023



Page 2 of 3

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
ARROYO-CARRILLO RAYNA B Noon Duty ETHEL PHILLIPS ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 2/29/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
ARROYO-CARRILLO RAYNA B Noon Duty ETHEL PHILLIPS ELEMENTARY 3/1/2024 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
BARTHOLOMEW CHRISTINA A Food Service Lead, School Site NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 8/31/23                                                                                               
CALVIN JR MICHAEL A Noon Duty CESAR CHAVEZ INTERMEDIATE 8/31/2023 10/31/2023 STCHG 8/31/23                                                                                               
CALVIN JR MICHAEL A Noon Duty CESAR CHAVEZ INTERMEDIATE 11/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 8/31/23                                                                                               
CAPSHAW MORGAN B Facilities Project Tech FACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES 9/18/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 9/18/23                                                                                         
CHARLES LETICIA A Noon Duty BRET HARTE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
CONTRERAS GRICELDA A Teacher Assistant, Bilingual C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 9/25/2023 6/30/2024 REA 9/25/23                                                                                                         
CORMAN JOANNA B Instructional Aide SUTTERVILLE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 8/31/2023 8/31/2023 STCHG 8/31/23                                                                                                    
DAY THERESA A Noon Duty PACIFIC ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
FERREYRA BARRAGAN VERONICA B Teacher Assistant, Bilingual WOODBINE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 9/25/2023 1/31/2024 REA 9/25/23                                                                                                             
GALINDO RUBIO MARLENE A Clerk II CESAR CHAVEZ INTERMEDIATE 11/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 8/18/23                                                                                                           
GALINDO RUBIO MARLENE A Clerk II CESAR CHAVEZ INTERMEDIATE 8/18/2023 10/31/2023 STCHG 8/18/23                                                                                              
GARCIA THOMAS A Custodian JOHN MORSE THERAPEUTIC 9/11/2023 6/30/2024 REA 9/11/23                                                                                                        
GOFF KEVIN B Food Service Lead, School Site NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 8/31/23                                                                                              
GONZALES FRED JUANITA A Noon Duty PACIFIC ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
HAENGGI LYNDA A IEP Desig Inst Para-Sp Ed ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - K-8 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
HALL RICKI B Inst Aid, Spec Ed SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2023 3/31/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
HARPER BRAD A Campus Monitor ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 8/30/2023 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
HARPER LA TOYA A Campus Monitor ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
HERNANDEZ BRENDA A Noon Duty ETHEL I. BAKER ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 11/30/2023 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
KANE VIRGINIA A Library Media Tech Asst DAVID LUBIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
LEA ANTHONY B Mngr III, Project Manager FACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES 9/11/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 9/11/23                                                                                               
LEOU-DALVI LINDA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed GOLDEN EMPIRE ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
LEOU-DALVI LINDA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed HUBERT H BANCROFT ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
LOPEZ GARCIA LAURA A Noon Duty PONY EXPRESS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 12/31/2023 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
LUGO JESSICA A Food Service Lead, School Site NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 8/31/23                                                                                                     
MILLER NORMAN A Noon Duty JOHN CABRILLO ELEMENTARY 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 8/31/23                                                                                                  
MOUA BEE B Budget Analyst CONTINUOUS IMPRVMNT & ACNTBLTY 9/11/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 9/11/23                                                                                                
OCHOA CYNTHIA A Noon Duty EDWARD KEMBLE ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
ORR GREGORY A Campus Monitor ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
OSTAPENKO NELLYA A IEP Desig Inst Para-Sp Ed ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - K-8 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
PEREZ SERRATO KARLA B Inst Aid, Spec Ed EARL WARREN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 9/18/2023 3/31/2024 REA/STCHG 9/18/23                                                                                                    
PEREZ-ZURAWSKI DESTINY A NUTRI SERV PROGRAM SPECIALIST NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 9/14/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 9/14/23                                                                                       
PHAM HOA A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 10/2/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 10/2/23                                                                                                     
PHONG CUONG A Fire Alarm Tech FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
RAMIREZ ROSANNE A Instructional Aide ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - K-8 7/1/2023 10/31/2023 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
RIVERA VALDEMAR ALBA A Parent Advisor OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 9/30/2023 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
SAEPHARN NAI HIN A Fire Alarm Tech FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
SIMPSON TATIANNA A Noon Duty THEODORE JUDAH ELEMENTARY 8/31/2023 10/31/2023 STCHG 8/31/23                                                                                                           
SNOWDON TIFFANY A Budget Analyst CONSOLIDATED PROGRAMS 8/28/2023 3/31/2024 REA/STCHG 8/28/23                                                                                                  
VALDEZ VERONICA A Noon Duty EDWARD KEMBLE ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
VAN DER KAMP TRACY A Instructional Aide JAMES W MARSHALL ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
VESSELS KATHLEEN B Inst Aid, Spec Ed ABRAHAM LINCOLN ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 2/29/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
WEAVER LYNNETTE A Instructional Aide ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - K-8 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            
ZAPATA JENNIE A Instructional Aide ETHEL I. BAKER ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 2/29/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                            

SEPARATE / RESIGN / RETIRE
MCCOLL JAMIE A Inst Aid, Spec Ed ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - K-8 7/1/2023 7/31/2023 SEP/RESIGN 7/31/23                                                                                                    
ALONSO RUSELLY A Custodian LEATAATA FLOYD ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 9/5/2023 SEP/RESIGN 9/5/2                                          
AMARO ARIANNA B Instructional Aide BOWLING GREEN ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 9/12/2023 SEP/RESIGN 9/12/23                                                                                                      
ANDERSON TATSIANA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed EDWARD KEMBLE ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 10/2/2023 SEP/RESIGN 10/2/23                                                                                                      
BORZOTRA ARMAND A Inst Aid, Spec Ed NICHOLAS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/1/2022 6/15/2023 SEP/RESIGN 6/15/23                                                                                                      
BROWN ELIZABETH A Noon Duty DAVID LUBIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 9/1/2022 6/15/2023 SEP/RESIGN 6/15/23                                                                                                      
CARDOZA GUTIERREZ EDGAR B Board Cert Behavior Analyst SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 7/1/2023 10/6/2023 SEP/RESIGN 10/6/23                                                                                                      
CRANERT SARAH B Inst Aid, Spec Ed C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 8/30/2023 SEP/RESIGN 8/30/23                                                                                                    
FELIX MELISSA A School Office Manager I ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 8/28/2023 SEP/RESIGN 8/28/23                                                                                                      
GRAY KADEESHA B Inst Aid, Spec Ed PARKWAY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 7/20/2023 SEP/RESIGN 7/20/23                                                                                                      
HARRILL KATIE A Inst Aid, Spec Ed CALIFORNIA MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2023 9/1/2023 SEP/RESIGN 9/1/23                                                                                                       
HERNANDEZ ROSA B Noon Duty FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 7/1/2023 8/31/2023 SEP/RETIRE 8/31/23                                                                                                      



Page 3 of 3

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
HOFF CRYSTAL A Construction/Bond Accntng Spec ACCOUNTING SERVICES DEPARTMENT 7/1/2023 10/3/2023 SEP/RESIGN 10/3/23                                                                                                      
HUFFMAN LEAH A Noon Duty CROCKER/RIVERSIDE ELEMENTARY 9/1/2022 6/15/2023 SEP/RESIGN 6/15/23                                                                                                      
KERKSIECK JAMIE A Noon Duty EARL WARREN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 8/15/2023 SEP/RESIGN 8/15/23                                                                                                      
KORGE DEBRA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed ROSA PARKS MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2023 8/1/2023 SEP/RETIRE 8/1/23                                                                                                       
LEE SUSAN A Inst Aid, Spec Ed MARTIN L. KING JR ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 9/19/2023 SEP/RETIRE 9/19/23                                                                                                      
MORALES LILLIAN A Inst Aid, Spec Ed HOLLYWOOD PARK ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 8/31/2023 SEP/RETIRE 8/31/23                                                                                                      
MOUA YULEELI A Clerk II WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 8/28/2023 SEP/RESIGN 8/28/23                                                                                                      
ORTIZ ELBIA A School Community Liaison BOWLING GREEN ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 9/28/2023 SEP/RESIGN 9/28/23                                                                                                      
PRADO CHAVEZ CRISTI A Teacher Assistant, Bilingual BG CHACON ACADEMY 7/1/2023 8/30/2023 SEP/RESIGN 8/30/23                                                                                                      
RAO AVANTIKA B Teacher Asst Bil I - Spanish MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 8/31/2023 SEP/RESIGN 8/31/23                                                                                                      
RIVERA JEANIE A Noon Duty WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 9/15/2023 SEP/RESIGN 9/15/23                                                                                                      
RODRIGUEZ SONIA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 8/30/2023 SEP/RESIGN 8/30/23                                                                                                      
SANCHEZ ONNIEL B Supervisor III, Stdnt Servcs ENROLLMENT CENTER 7/1/2023 9/15/2023 SEP/RESIGN 9/15/23                                                                                                    
SMITH NORMAN KAYJHONNIE B Noon Duty BG CHACON ACADEMY 7/1/2023 8/1/2023 SEP/RESIGN 8/1/23                                                                                                       
THOMPSON III GLENN A Inst Aid, Spec Ed EARL WARREN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 8/9/2023 SEP/RESIGN 8/9/23                                                                                                       
URBINA QUINTERO ALICIA B Inst Aid, Spec Ed LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 9/1/2022 6/15/2023 SEP/RESIGN 6/15/23                                                                                                      
VILLARREAL RENEE A Inst Aid, Spec Ed PONY EXPRESS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 8/31/2023 SEP/RESIGN 8/31/23                                                                                                      

TRANSFER
ALONSO RUSELLY A Custodian LEATAATA FLOYD ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 9/5/2023 TR 7/1/23                                                                  
HERRERA ELISABETH A Inst Aid, Spec Ed A. M. WINN - K-8 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                               
LUTHER CAROL A Inst Aid, Spec Ed CROCKER/RIVERSIDE ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                  
MOYO BEATRIZ A Inst Aid, Spec Ed HOLLYWOOD PARK ELEMENTARY 9/11/2023 6/30/2024 TR 9/11/23                                                                                                  
RAMIREZ ADREENA B Inst Aid, Spec Ed HOLLYWOOD PARK ELEMENTARY 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 TR 8/31/23                                                                                                
YU CHIU WAI SAM ANNIE A Instructional Aide GENEVIEVE DIDION ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                  



Page 1 of 1 
 

            SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
        BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _12.1c___ 

 
 
Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023 
 
Subject: Approve Business and Financial Report: Warrants, Checks and Electronic 

Transfers Issued for the Period of July 1-31, 2023 and August 1-31, 2023 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:   Business Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve attached list of warrants and checks. 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  The detailed list of warrants, checks and electronic transfers issued 
for the period of July 1-31, 2023 and August 1-31, 2023 are available for the Board members 
upon request. 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  Normal business items that reflect payments from district funds. 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
 
Documents Attached: 

• Warrants, Checks and Electronic Transfers – July 1-31, 2023 
• Warrants, Checks and Electronic Transfers – August 1-31, 2023 

 
 
 
Estimated Time:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Jesse Castillo, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Approved by:  Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent    



.lkl

Page 1 : 2Sacramento City Unified School District
Warrants, Checks and Electronic Funds Transfers July 2023

Account Document Numbers Fund Amount 

97416865 - 97418214 1350 items 36,725,731.49$         
General (01) 23,808,215.88$         
Charter (09) 465,762.86$              
Adult Education (11) 107,975.94$              
Child Development (12) 531,809.10$              
Cafeteria (13) 997,700.19$              
Deferred Maintenance (14)
Building (21) 9,321,431.52$           
Developer Fees (25) 4,745.66$                  
Mello Roos Capital Proj (49)
Cafeteria Enterprise (61) 678.93$                     
Self Insurance (67) 28,115.20$                
Self Ins Dental/Vision (68) 1,448,900.95$           
Retiree Benefits (71)
Payroll Revolving (76) 10,395.26$                

00002314 - 00002330 17 items 63,451.56$                
General (01) 41,901.14$                
Charter (09)
Adult Education (11) 6,329.85$                  
Child Development (12)
Cafeteria (13)
Deferred Maintenance (14)
Building (21)
Developer Fees (25)
Mello Roos Capital Proj (49)
Self Insurance (67)
Self Ins Dental/Vision (68)
Retiree Benefits (71)
Payroll Revolving (76) 15,220.57$                

97892930 - 97893696 767 items 1,776,308.96$           
General (01) 964,179.46$              
Charter (09) 33,954.25$                
Adult Education (11) 7,745.63$                  
Child Development (12) 18,596.44$                
Cafeteria (13) 62,846.51$                
Deferred Maintenance (14)
Building (21)
Developer Fees (25)
Mello Roos Capital Proj (49)
Cafeteria Enterprise (61)
Self Insurance (67)
Self Ins Dental/Vision (68)
Retiree Benefits (71)
Payroll Revolving (76) 688,986.67$              

County Accounts 
Payable Warrants

Alternate Cash 
Revolving Checks

Payroll and Payroll 
Vendor Warrants



.lkl

Page 2 : 2Sacramento City Unified School District
Warrants, Checks and Electronic Funds Transfers July 2023

Account Document Numbers Fund Amount 

ACH 01528636 - 01533716 5083 items 15,525,205.14$         
EFT 00000130 - 00000132 General (01) 14,147,961.59$         

Charter (09) 426,518.02$              
Adult Education (11) 149,465.65$              
Child Development (12) 271,577.58$              
Cafeteria (13) 394,655.96$              
Deferred Maintenance (14)
Building (21) 41,171.26$                
Developer Fees (25)
Mello Roos Capital Proj (49)
Cafeteria Enterprise (61) 76.72$                       
Self Insurance (67) 16,306.90$                
Self Ins Dental/Vision (68) 5,529.96$                  
Retiree Benefits (71)
Payroll Revolving (76) 71,941.50$                

9700349978 - 9700349983 6 items 2,129,946.88$           
General (01) 29,077.24$                
Charter (09)
Adult Education (11)
Child Development (12)
Cafeteria (13)
Deferred Maintenance (14)
Building (21)
Developer Fees (25)
Mello Roos Capital Proj (49) 1,175,647.00$           
Self Insurance (67)
Self Ins Dental/Vision (68)
Retiree Benefits (71)
Payroll Revolving (76) 925,222.64$              

Total 7223 items 56,220,644.03$         

Payroll ACHs and  
Payroll Vendor EFTs

County Wire Transfers 
for Benefit, Debt & Tax



.lkl

Page 1 : 2Sacramento City Unified School District
Warrants, Checks and Electronic Funds Transfers August 2023

Account Document Numbers Fund Amount 

97418215 - 97419188 974 items 40,760,340.83$         
General (01) 23,868,903.47$         
Charter (09) 501,159.36$              
Adult Education (11) 49,969.22$                
Child Development (12) 44,450.83$                
Cafeteria (13) 1,022,126.78$           
Deferred Maintenance (14)
Building (21) 14,572,962.54$         
Developer Fees (25) 391,890.32$              
Mello Roos Capital Proj (49) 7,694.00$                  
Cafeteria Enterprise (61) 38.37$                       
Self Insurance (67) 113,929.91$              
Self Ins Dental/Vision (68) 146,639.49$              
Retiree Benefits (71)
Payroll Revolving (76) 40,576.54$                

00002331 - 00002345 15 items 106,191.91$              
General (01) 76,426.88$                
Charter (09)
Adult Education (11)
Child Development (12)
Cafeteria (13) 1,348.33$                  
Deferred Maintenance (14)
Building (21)
Developer Fees (25)
Mello Roos Capital Proj (49)
Self Insurance (67)
Self Ins Dental/Vision (68)
Retiree Benefits (71)
Payroll Revolving (76) 28,416.70$                

97893701 - 97894339 639 items 2,191,973.52$           
General (01) 967,774.19$              
Charter (09) 53,672.69$                
Adult Education (11) 4,263.68$                  
Child Development (12) 15,324.95$                
Cafeteria (13) 40,835.06$                
Deferred Maintenance (14)
Building (21)
Developer Fees (25)
Mello Roos Capital Proj (49)
Cafeteria Enterprise (61)
Self Insurance (67)
Self Ins Dental/Vision (68)
Retiree Benefits (71)
Payroll Revolving (76) 1,110,102.95$           

County Accounts 
Payable Warrants

Alternate Cash 
Revolving Checks

Payroll and Payroll 
Vendor Warrants



.lkl

Page 2 : 2Sacramento City Unified School District
Warrants, Checks and Electronic Funds Transfers August 2023

Account Document Numbers Fund Amount 

ACH 01533717 - 01538574 4860 items 17,588,511.93$         
EFT 0000133 - 0000135 General (01) 16,094,523.64$         

Charter (09) 478,372.49$              
Adult Education (11) 179,787.90$              
Child Development (12) 270,905.91$              
Cafeteria (13) 426,755.66$              
Deferred Maintenance (14)
Building (21) 34,114.75$                
Developer Fees (25)
Mello Roos Capital Proj (49)
Cafeteria Enterprise (61)
Self Insurance (67) 16,306.90$                
Self Ins Dental/Vision (68) 5,529.96$                  
Retiree Benefits (71)
Payroll Revolving (76) 82,214.72$                

9700349987 - 9700350014 28 items 29,607,224.02$         
General (01) 413,508.52$              
Charter (09)
Adult Education (11)
Child Development (12)
Cafeteria (13)
Deferred Maintenance (14)
Building (21)
Developer Fees (25)
Mello Roos Capital Proj (49)
Self Insurance (67)
Self Ins Dental/Vision (68)
Retiree Benefits (71)
Payroll Revolving (76) 29,193,715.50$         

Total 6516 items 90,254,242.21$         

Payroll ACHs and  
Payroll Vendor EFTs

County Wire Transfers 
for Benefit, Debt & Tax



Page 1 of 1 
 

            SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
        BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _12.1d___ 

 
 
Meeting Date:   October 5, 2023 
 
Subject:   Donations to the District for the Period of July 1-31, 2023 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:   Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Accept the donations to the District for the period of July 1-31, 2023. 
   
Background/Rationale:  Per Board Policy 3290 Gifts, Grants and Bequests, the Board of 
Education accepts donations on behalf of the schools and the District. After Board approval, 
the Board Office will send a letter of recognition to the donors.  
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy and 
Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached: 
• Donations Report for the period of July 1-31, 2023  
 

 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Jesse Castillo, Assistant Superintendent of Business Services 
Approved by:  Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent    



Receipt DetailAR06a

B OF A   - BANK OF AMERICA

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

07/26/23 7/26/23 BENEVITY FUND FOR WILLIAM LANDBA24-0000436 (000454) BENEVITY FUND Electronic Funds Xfer8052Posted 60.00 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0384- 60.00 

60.00 Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  

Fund-Object Recap

01-8690 60.00 Donation Board Acknowledgement

60.00 Fund 01 - General Fund   

Fiscal Year 2024      

Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  60.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 97, Starting Receipt Date = 7/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 7/31/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Object = 8690, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for NAI SAELEE (NAI-SAELEE), Sep 26 2023  1:17PM

Page 1 of 3



Receipt DetailAR06a

BOTW AP  - Bank of the West (AP)

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

07/19/23 Donation, Crocker Riverside PTO, Ck1906BW24-0000046 BOTW071923(0300-2) CROCKER RIVERSIDE ELEM SCHOOL PARENT TEACHER ORGANIZATIONCheck 19068025Posted 1,300.00 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0300- 1,300.00 

1,360.00 Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  

Fund-Object Recap

01-8690 1,300.00 Donation Board Acknowledgement

1,300.00 Fund 01 - General Fund   

Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  1,360.00 

Org Recap

Sacramento City Unified School District

60.00 E - Electronic Funds Xfer

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 97, Starting Receipt Date = 7/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 7/31/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Object = 8690, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for NAI SAELEE (NAI-SAELEE), Sep 26 2023  1:17PM

Page 2 of 3



Receipt DetailAR06a

BOTW AP  - Bank of the West (AP)

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

Org Recap

Sacramento City Unified School District (continued)

1,300.00 C - Check

Total Receipts 1,360.00 

Report Total 1,360.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 97, Starting Receipt Date = 7/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 7/31/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Object = 8690, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for NAI SAELEE (NAI-SAELEE), Sep 26 2023  1:17PM

Page 3 of 3



Page 1 of 1 
 

            SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
        BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _12.1e___ 

 
 
Meeting Date:   October 5, 2023 
 
Subject:   Donations to the District for the Period of August 1-31, 2023 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:   Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Accept the donations to the District for the period of August 1-31, 2023. 
   
Background/Rationale:  Per Board Policy 3290 Gifts, Grants and Bequests, the Board of 
Education accepts donations on behalf of the schools and the District. After Board approval, 
the Board Office will send a letter of recognition to the donors.  
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy and 
Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached: 
• Donations Report for the period of August 1-31, 2023  
 

 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Jesse Castillo, Assistant Superintendent of Business Services 
Approved by:  Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent    



Receipt DetailAR06a

B OF A   - BANK OF AMERICA

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

08/24/23 8/24/23 BENEVITY FUND FOR WILLIAM LANDBA24-0000440 (000454) BENEVITY FUND Electronic Funds Xfer8053Posted 60.00 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0384- 60.00 

60.00 Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  

Fund-Object Recap

01-8690 60.00 Donation Board Acknowledgement

60.00 Fund 01 - General Fund   

Fiscal Year 2024      

Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  60.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 97, Starting Receipt Date = 8/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 8/31/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Object = 8690, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for NAI SAELEE (NAI-SAELEE), Sep 26 2023 11:41AM

Page 1 of 3



Receipt DetailAR06a

BOTW AP  - Bank of the West (AP)

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

08/02/23 Retirement Social, Schools First C U, Ck235394BW24-0000074 BOTW080323(000688) SCHOOLS FIRST FEDERAL CREDIT UNIONCheck 2353948031Posted 750.00 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0770- 750.00 

810.00 Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  

Fund-Object Recap

01-8690 750.00 Donation Board Acknowledgement

750.00 Fund 01 - General Fund   

Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  810.00 

Org Recap

Sacramento City Unified School District

60.00 E - Electronic Funds Xfer

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 97, Starting Receipt Date = 8/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 8/31/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Object = 8690, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for NAI SAELEE (NAI-SAELEE), Sep 26 2023 11:41AM

Page 2 of 3



Receipt DetailAR06a

BOTW AP  - Bank of the West (AP)

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

Org Recap

Sacramento City Unified School District (continued)

750.00 C - Check

Total Receipts 810.00 

Report Total 810.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 97, Starting Receipt Date = 8/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 8/31/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Object = 8690, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for NAI SAELEE (NAI-SAELEE), Sep 26 2023 11:41AM

Page 3 of 3



Page 1 of 2 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 12.1f__ 

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3349: Authorizing the district to apply for and sign 

applications for local, state, and federal programs and grants pertaining to low 
emission vehicle incentive programs 

 
 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: _____)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
 

Division:  Facility Support Services 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 3349 authorizing the district to apply for and sign 
applications for local, state, and federal programs and grants pertaining to low emission vehicle 
incentive programs. 
 
Background/Rationale:  Sacramento City Unified School District (SCUSD) is continuing on the 
process to electrify their yellow and white fleets over time. This will help the District achieve 
carbon neutrality by 2045, which is set by California Executive Order B-55-18, 2018, as well as 
eliminate harmful diesel emission pollution. There are many local, state, and federal grants and 
programs helping districts offset the costs of electrifying their fleets.  
 
Financial Considerations:  None. This is to apply for local, state, and federal grants and 
programs helping District’s offset the costs of electrifying their fleets.  
 
LCAP Goal(s): College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally 
Healthy and Engaged Students; Family and Community Engagement; Operational 
Excellence 
 
Documents Attached:  

1. Resolution No. 3349 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 

Submitted by: Nathaniel Browning, Director I of Facilities 

  Chamberlain Segrest, Environmental Sustainability Manager  

Approved by:  Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

Resolution No. 3349  
 

RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE DISTRICT TO APPLY FOR AND SIGN APPLICATIONS FOR LOCAL, STATE AND 
FEDERAL PROGRAMS AND GRANTS PERTAINING TO LOW EMISSION VEHICLE INCENTIVE PROGRAMS 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District (SMAQMD) provides grant funding to 
public and private organizations to replace combustion-engine school buses with battery-electric school buses; and 

WHEREAS, Sacramento City Unified School District (SCUSD) must authorize someone by resolution, as the 
"Authorized Individual" to make application and administer the 2022 SMAQMD Lower Emission Vehicle 
Incentives Program (LEVIP); and 

WHEREAS, SCUSD authorizes as "Authorized Individual" the Environmental Sustainability Manager to apply for 
school bus grant funding from the SMAQMD LEVIP to replace old school buses; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that if recommended for funding by the SMAQMD for replacement school 
bus grant funding, the SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES authorizes SCUSD to 
accept a grant for a school bus replacement; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chief Business Operating Officer (CBOO) is hereby authorized and 
empowered to execute in the name of SCUSD all necessary documents to implement and carry out the purpose 
of this resolution, and to undertake all actions necessary to undertake and complete the projects. 

State of California  
County of Sacramento 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education on this 5th day of 
October 2023, by the following vote: 
 
  
AYES: 
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
  
              
ATESTED TO:     
   
 
________________________________                                             ________________________________  
Chinua Rhodes                                                                                     Lisa Allen  
President of the Board of Education                                                   Secretary of the Board of Education  
       

 



Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 12.1g 

 
Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3350:  Resolution Regarding Board Stipends 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Board of Education 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 3350: Resolution Regarding Board 
Stipends.  
 
Background/Rationale:  Education Code section 35120 fails to define hardship which 
has led to uncertainty regarding payment of stipends for Board members who may be 
deserving of payment due to absence resulting from hardship or other duties such as 
jury duty or performing duties or services for the District at the time of a Board meeting.  
All stipend payments will be based on an attendance sign-in sheet as well as any Board 
resolution(s) excusing absences in compliance with law.  A Board member who is 
absent from a meeting may be eligible for payment by reporting the excused absence to 
the Board Office.  A Board resolution will be periodically placed, as needed, on the 
Board agenda to state that the reason for the absence complies with Education Code 
section 35120 and shall be reflected in the minutes. 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Resolution No. 3350: Resolution Regarding Board Stipends 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Chinua Rhodes, Board President 
Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent  



 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 3350 

 
RESOLUTION REGARDING BOARD STIPENDS 

 
WHEREAS, Education Code section 35120 and Board Bylaw 9250 of the Sacramento City 

Unified School District (“District”) authorize Board members to be paid stipends for meetings they 
were unable to attend due to illness, hardship or other duties such as jury duty or performing duties or 
services for the District at the time of a Board meeting; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that the Board members may be paid, or retain, stipends for 
meetings they were unable to attend as stated in Attachment A. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Sacramento City Unified School District 
Board of Education which finds and determines as follows:   

 
1.   Adopts the foregoing recitals as true and correct; 
 
2.   Authorizes stipends for meetings the Board members were unable to attend pursuant to  

Attachment A; and 
 
3.   Incorporates herein by reference Attachment A. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education on 
this 5th day of October, 2023, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  ____ 
NOES:  ____ 
ABSTAIN: ____ 
ABSENT: ____ 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED TO: 
  
______________________________________  
Lisa Allen        Chinua Rhodes 
Secretary of the Board of Education                                       President of the Board of Education 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 3350 
 

1. Absence Due to Other Duties: Stipends are authorized to the following Board 
member(s) due to hardship: 

a. Board member Christina Pritchett for the Special Board meeting on October 19, 
2023. 

 



Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _12.1h__ 

 
Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023 
  
Subject:  Approve Minutes for the September 10, 2023 Special Board of Education 

Meeting 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Superintendent’s Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Minutes for the September 10, 2023, Special Board of 
Education Meeting. 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Minutes of the September 10, 2023, Special Board of Education Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 
Approved by:  Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 



September 7, 2023 – Special Board Meeting 1 

 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Special Board Meeting 
 
 
 

Board of Education Members    
Chinua Rhodes, President (Trustee Area 5) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips, Vice President (Trustee Area 7) 
Jasjit Singh, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Tara Jeane (Trustee Area 1) 
Christina Pritchett (Trustee Area 3) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Taylor Kayatta (Trustee Area 6) 
Liliana Miller Segura, Student Member 
 

Sunday, September 10, 2023 
11:00 a.m.-3:00 p.m. 

 
Central Kitchen 

3101 Redding Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95820 

 

MINUTES 
2023/24-5 

 
 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER  

 
Meeting was called to order at 11:00 a.m. 
 
Member Present: 
Member Rhodes 
Member Phillips 
Member Singh 
Member Kayatta 
Member Jeane 
Member Villa 
Member Pritchett 
 
Members Absent: 
None 

 
 2.0    PUBLIC COMMENT  

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC COMMENT AND DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION  
Members of the public may address the Board on-agenda items only. Public comment may be (1) emailed to 
publiccomment@scusd.edu; (2) submitted in writing through the District’s website at 
https://www.scusd.edu/submit-public-comment; or (3) provided in-person at the meeting.  The submission 
deadline for written public comments shall be no later than noon on the day of the meeting.  If you intend to 
address the Board in-person, please fill out a yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be called 
in the order that requests are received, or grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are limited to 
two (2) minutes with no more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be 
heard.  By law, the Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda.  The Board may, at its 
discretion, refer a matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.    

  
   3.0 OPEN SESSION 

     
         3.1         Strategic Community/Board Priorities                                                 Information 



September 7, 2023 – Special Board Meeting 2 

 
 4.0  ADJOURNMENT 

 
Meeting adjourned at 4:00 p.m. 
 
________________________________________________ 
Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent and Board Secretary 
 

NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the 
public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at 
least 24 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to 
accommodate you.  [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. 
§12132)]   Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 24 hours in advance of the meeting 
and relating to an open session item are available for public inspection at 5735 47th Avenue at the Front Desk 
Counter and on the District’s website at www.scusd.edu 

 

http://www.scusd.edu/


Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _12.1i__ 

 
Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023 
  
Subject:  Approve Minutes for the September 12, 2023 Special Board of Education 

Meeting 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Superintendent’s Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Minutes for the September 12, 2023, Special Board of 
Education Meeting. 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Minutes of the September 12, 2023, Special Board of Education Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 
Approved by:  Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 



September 12, 2023 – Special Board Meeting 1 

 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Special Board Meeting 
 
 
 

Board of Education Members    
Chinua Rhodes, President (Trustee Area 5) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips, Vice President (Trustee Area 7) 
Jasjit Singh, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Tara Jeane (Trustee Area 1) 
Christina Pritchett (Trustee Area 3) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Taylor Kayatta (Trustee Area 6) 
Liliana Miller Segura, Student Member 
 

Tuesday, September 12, 2023 
6:30p.m.-9:30p.m. 

 
Serna Center 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 

MINUTES 
2023/24-6 

 
 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER  

 
Meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Members Present: 
Member Phillips 
Member Jeane 
Member Villa 
Member Kayatta 
Member Singh 
 
Members Absent: 
Member Pritchett 
Member Rhodes 

 
 2.0     PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED AND   

          OPEN SESSION 
 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC COMMENT AND DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION  
Members of the public may address the Board on-agenda items only. Public comment may be (1) emailed to 
publiccomment@scusd.edu; (2) submitted in writing through the District’s website at 
https://www.scusd.edu/submit-public-comment; or (3) provided in-person at the meeting.  The submission 
deadline for written public comments shall be no later than noon on the day of the meeting.  If you intend to 
address the Board in-person, please fill out a yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be called 
in the order that requests are received, or grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are limited to 
two (2) minutes with no more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be 
heard.  By law, the Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda.  The Board may, at its 
discretion, refer a matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.    
 
No public comment 

  
 3.0     CLOSED SESSION 

 



September 12, 2023 – Special Board Meeting 2 

         3.1 Government code 54957—Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
 

 4.0      RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 

 5.0      ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
           No announcements of action taken in closed session 
 

 6.0 BOARD GOVERNANCE WORKSHOP 
     
         6.1         Strategic Community/Board Priorities                                                 Information 
 
 
         6.2         Review Board Communication Protocols                                  Information/ Action  
                        
                      Communication Protocols: 
                      Table the conversation and any action until Superintendent and all board members   
                       present. 
 
                      Strategic Community/Board Priorities: 
                      Continuing work on scheduling community sessions with board members. 

 7.0  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 
 
 
________________________________________________ 
Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent and Board Secretary 
 

NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the 
public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at 
least 24 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to 
accommodate you.  [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. 
§12132)]   Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 24 hours in advance of the meeting 
and relating to an open session item are available for public inspection at 5735 47th Avenue at the Front Desk 
Counter and on the District’s website at www.scusd.edu 

 
 

http://www.scusd.edu/


Page 1 of 1 
 

                     SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
                       BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _12.1j__ 

 
Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve Agreement to Reimburse for Board Member Leave 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Board of Education Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Agreement to Reimburse for Board Member Leave 
 
Background/Rationale:  Pursuant to Education Code section 44987.3, Board Member Jeane, 
may make a request for leave from her position as a teacher at Western Placer Unified School 
District (“WPUSD”), without loss of any compensation.  Consistent with that same statute, 
Sacramento City Unified School District must notify WPUSD of Member Jeane’s service as a 
governing board member and agree to reimburse WPUSD for any actual administrative costs 
related to the requested leave of absence.  State law limits the amount of reimbursed leave to 
twenty (20) school days per year.  
 
Financial Considerations:  Board Member Jeane has agreed to allocate discretionary funds to 
cover the reimbursement of any requested leave under this agreement.   
 
LCAP Goal(s):   
 
Documents Attached:   
Notice and Letter Agreement to Western Placer Unified School District. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

Estimated Time of Presentation: Consent  
Submitted by: Board of Education Office 
Approved by: Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent  





Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 12.1k 

 
Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3355:  Resolution Regarding Board Stipends 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Board of Education 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 3355: Resolution Regarding Board 
Stipends.  
 
Background/Rationale:  Education Code section 35120 fails to define hardship which 
has led to uncertainty regarding payment of stipends for Board members who may be 
deserving of payment due to absence resulting from hardship or other duties such as 
jury duty or performing duties or services for the District at the time of a Board meeting.  
All stipend payments will be based on an attendance sign-in sheet as well as any Board 
resolution(s) excusing absences in compliance with law.  A Board member who is 
absent from a meeting may be eligible for payment by reporting the excused absence to 
the Board Office.  A Board resolution will be periodically placed, as needed, on the 
Board agenda to state that the reason for the absence complies with Education Code 
section 35120 and shall be reflected in the minutes. 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Resolution No. 3355: Resolution Regarding Board Stipends 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Chinua Rhodes, Board President 
Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent  



 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 3355 

 
RESOLUTION REGARDING BOARD STIPENDS 

 
WHEREAS, Education Code section 35120 and Board Bylaw 9250 of the Sacramento City 

Unified School District (“District”) authorize Board members to be paid stipends for meetings they 
were unable to attend due to illness, hardship or other duties such as jury duty or performing duties or 
services for the District at the time of a Board meeting; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that the Board members may be paid, or retain, stipends for 
meetings they were unable to attend as stated in Attachment A. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Sacramento City Unified School District 
Board of Education which finds and determines as follows:   

 
1.   Adopts the foregoing recitals as true and correct; 
 
2.   Authorizes stipends for meetings the Board members were unable to attend pursuant to  

Attachment A; and 
 
3.   Incorporates herein by reference Attachment A. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education on 
this 5th day of October, 2023, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  ____ 
NOES:  ____ 
ABSTAIN: ____ 
ABSENT: ____ 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED TO: 
  
______________________________________  
Lisa Allen        Chinua Rhodes 
Secretary of the Board of Education                                       President of the Board of Education 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 3355 
 

1. Absence Due to Other Duties: Stipends are authorized to the following Board 
member(s) due to hardship: 

a. Board member Christina Pritchett for the Special Board meeting on September 
26, 2023. 

 



Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 12.1l 

 
Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3356:  Resolution Regarding Board Stipends 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Board of Education 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 3356: Resolution Regarding Board 
Stipends.  
 
Background/Rationale:  Education Code section 35120 fails to define hardship which 
has led to uncertainty regarding payment of stipends for Board members who may be 
deserving of payment due to absence resulting from hardship or other duties such as 
jury duty or performing duties or services for the District at the time of a Board meeting.  
All stipend payments will be based on an attendance sign-in sheet as well as any Board 
resolution(s) excusing absences in compliance with law.  A Board member who is 
absent from a meeting may be eligible for payment by reporting the excused absence to 
the Board Office.  A Board resolution will be periodically placed, as needed, on the 
Board agenda to state that the reason for the absence complies with Education Code 
section 35120 and shall be reflected in the minutes. 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Resolution No. 3356: Resolution Regarding Board Stipends 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Chinua Rhodes, Board President 
Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent  



 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 3356 

 
RESOLUTION REGARDING BOARD STIPENDS 

 
WHEREAS, Education Code section 35120 and Board Bylaw 9250 of the Sacramento City 

Unified School District (“District”) authorize Board members to be paid stipends for meetings they 
were unable to attend due to illness, hardship or other duties such as jury duty or performing duties or 
services for the District at the time of a Board meeting; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that the Board members may be paid, or retain, stipends for 
meetings they were unable to attend as stated in Attachment A. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Sacramento City Unified School District 
Board of Education which finds and determines as follows:   

 
1.   Adopts the foregoing recitals as true and correct; 
 
2.   Authorizes stipends for meetings the Board members were unable to attend pursuant to  

Attachment A; and 
 
3.   Incorporates herein by reference Attachment A. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education on 
this 5th day of October, 2023, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  ____ 
NOES:  ____ 
ABSTAIN: ____ 
ABSENT: ____ 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED TO: 
  
______________________________________  
Lisa Allen        Chinua Rhodes 
Secretary of the Board of Education                                       President of the Board of Education 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 3356 
 

1. Absence Due to Other Duties: Stipends are authorized to the following Board 
member(s) due to illness: 

a. Board member Jamee Villa for the Special Board meeting on September 26, 
2023. 

 



Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _12.1m__ 

 
Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023 
  
Subject:  Approve Minutes for the September 26, 2023 Special Board of Education 

Meeting 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Superintendent’s Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Minutes for the September 26, 2023, Special Board of 
Education Meeting. 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Minutes of the September 26, 2023, Special Board of Education Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 
Approved by:  Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 



September 26, 2023 – Special Board Meeting 1 

 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Special Board Meeting 
 
 
 

Board of Education Members    
Chinua Rhodes, President (Trustee Area 5) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips, Vice President (Trustee Area 7) 
Jasjit Singh, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Tara Jeane (Trustee Area 1) 
Christina Pritchett (Trustee Area 3) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Taylor Kayatta (Trustee Area 6) 
Liliana Miller Segura, Student Member 
 

Tuesday, September 26, 2023 
7:00p.m.-9:00p.m. 

 
Serna Center 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 

AGENDA 
2023/24-8 

 
 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER  

 
The meeting was called to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 
Members Present: 
Member Rhodes 
Member Singh 
Member Kayatta 
Member Phillips 
Member Jeane 
 
Members Absent: 
Member Pritchett 
Member Villa 
 

 2.0     PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED AND   
          OPEN SESSION 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC COMMENT AND DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION  
Members of the public may address the Board on-agenda items only. Public comment may be (1) emailed to 
publiccomment@scusd.edu; (2) submitted in writing through the District’s website at 
https://www.scusd.edu/submit-public-comment; or (3) provided in-person at the meeting.  The submission 
deadline for written public comments shall be no later than noon on the day of the meeting.  If you intend to 
address the Board in-person, please fill out a yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be called 
in the order that requests are received, or grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are limited to 
two (2) minutes with no more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be 
heard.  By law, the Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda.  The Board may, at its 
discretion, refer a matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.    

 
No public comment 
  

 3.0     CLOSED SESSION 



September 26, 2023 – Special Board Meeting 2 

 
  3.1 Government code 54957—Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
 
  3.2 Existing Litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1) of Government Code section 54956.9 

(PERB Case No. SA-CE-3086-E.) 
 

 4.0      RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 

 5.0      ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
The Board voted 5-0 with Members Pritchett and Villa absent, to approve charges to dismiss a 
certificated employee. 
 

 6.0 BOARD GOVERNANCE WORKSHOP 
 
 6.1 Strategic Community/Board Priorities; Community Engagement and Outreach       Information 
 
 

7.0      CONSENT AGENDA                                                                                                    Action 
                                                                                                                                         2 minutes 

Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion.  The Superintendent or a Board 
member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately. 
 

     7.1  Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session:  
             
            7.1a Approve BPSB et al. v. SCUSD et al., U.S.D.C., E.D. Cal., Case no. 2:19-cv-01768- 
                    DJC-KJN Independent Monitor Services Contract (Yvonne Wright) 
 
The Board voted 4-0 with Members Pritchett, Villa, and Singh absent, to approve the items on 
consent. 
             

 8.0  ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:55 p.m. 
 
 
________________________________________________ 
Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent and Board Secretary 
 

NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the 
public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at 
least 24 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to 
accommodate you.  [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. 
§12132)]   Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 24 hours in advance of the meeting 
and relating to an open session item are available for public inspection at 5735 47th Avenue at the Front Desk 
Counter and on the District’s website at www.scusd.edu 

 
 

http://www.scusd.edu/


Page 1 of 1 
  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _13.1__ 

 
 
Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023 
 
 
Subject:  Business and Financial Information 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Receive business and financial information. 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  Enrollment and Attendance Report for Month 9, Ending Friday, 
May 19, 2023 and Enrollment and Attendance Report for Month 10, Friday, Ending June 
16, 2023. 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  Reflects standard business information. 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
 
Documents Attached:   

• Enrollment and Attendance Report for Month 9, Ending Friday, May 19, 2023 
• Enrollment and Attendance Report for Month 10, Friday, Ending June 16, 2023. 

 
 
  Estimated Time:  N/A 
  Submitted by: Jesse Castillo, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
  Approved by:  Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT
MONTH 9, ENDING FRIDAY, MAY 19, 2023

TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Page 1

PERCENTAGE 
FOR THE 
MONTH

Cum Attd                 
Days/162
2022-2023

A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 57 125 117 17 316 93.59% 283.48 91.47%
Abraham Lincoln El 77 219 238 2 536 92.30% 482.03 90.89%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 72 144 162 2 380 94.93% 349.25 92.54%
Bret Harte Elementary 23 70 77 35 205 90.64% 177.96 90.26%
Caleb Greenwood 52 215 211 4 482 95.03% 459.80 94.72%
Camellia Basic Elementary 66 135 166 22 389 96.54% 373.45 95.25%
Capital City School 27 103 119 0 249 88.42% 203.14 89.16%
Caroline Wenzel Elementary 20 86 81 22 209 92.13% 194.61 90.02%
Cesar Chavez ES 0 0 356 22 378 93.21% 346.66 92.29%
Crocker/Riverside Elementary 94 280 244 2 620 96.02% 586.56 94.58%
David Lubin Elementary 47 194 181 28 450 94.33% 418.68 92.94%
Earl Warren Elementary 70 163 185 13 431 93.72% 399.56 92.34%
Edward Kemble Elementary 117 374 0 19 510 91.52% 458.73 90.36%
Elder Creek Elementary 85 294 336 7 722 93.57% 658.33 93.21%
Ethel I Baker Elementary 76 270 236 3 585 90.88% 532.08 90.24%
Ethel Phillips Elementary 83 185 178 9 455 92.21% 404.29 90.39%
Father Keith B Kenny K-8 School 24 77 131 25 257 87.57% 221.21 88.08%
Genevieve Didion Elementary 66 204 198 5 473 95.66% 450.34 94.85%
Golden Empire Elementary 56 184 208 16 464 92.18% 426.72 91.87%
H W Harkness Elementary 51 85 120 2 258 91.65% 232.15 90.54%
Hollywood Park Elementary 23 90 98 38 249 89.26% 220.71 89.13%
Home/Hospital 13 23 33 3 72 100.00% 14.67 100.00%
Hubert H.  Bancroft Elementary 66 176 156 17 415 92.39% 372.45 91.28%
Isador Cohen Elementary 66 114 110 36 326 92.74% 288.57 90.84%
James W Marshall Elementary 40 133 142 27 342 93.86% 308.13 91.83%
John Bidwell Elementary 52 117 77 12 258 92.46% 228.91 89.95%
John Cabrillo Elementary 39 112 126 47 324 92.21% 284.24 90.18%
John D Sloat Elementary 32 80 81 12 205 91.62% 183.64 89.83%
John H. Still K-8 47 175 234 13 469 91.50% 425.18 89.56%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 0 0 0 12 12 86.09% 8.32 82.77%
Leataata Floyd Elementary 24 110 110 4 248 86.80% 216.78 85.50%
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 112 270 279 23 684 95.28% 647.68 94.78%
Mark Twain Elementary 38 88 99 22 247 93.47% 223.83 90.92%
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 60 118 94 22 294 91.93% 274.94 90.41%
Matsuyama Elementary 54 188 209 8 459 94.73% 431.03 93.78%
Nicholas Elementary 71 212 236 18 537 90.17% 475.96 89.15%
O W Erlewine Elementary 29 101 112 23 265 91.08% 235.64 89.77%
Oak Ridge Elementary 59 206 198 3 466 90.41% 408.63 89.51%
Pacific Elementary 92 289 300 2 683 91.25% 624.24 90.83%
Parkway Elementary School 77 173 177 31 458 88.51% 396.50 86.58%
Peter Burnett Elementary 42 162 170 27 401 92.99% 369.47 92.27%
Phoebe A Hearst Elementary 92 283 277 1 653 95.67% 621.03 94.94%
Pony Express Elementary 35 133 160 18 346 92.30% 329.10 92.41%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 38 126 138 16 318 90.39% 284.54 89.83%
Sequoia Elementary 51 161 171 30 413 90.87% 371.36 89.58%
Success Academy K-8 0 0 12 0 12 70.14% 3.65 65.32%
Susan B Anthony Elementary 55 131 120 2 308 96.37% 291.14 93.63%
Sutterville Elementary 38 158 184 7 387 96.02% 366.71 94.37%
Tahoe Elementary 72 111 97 34 314 91.81% 280.04 90.63%
Theodore Judah Elementary 88 145 184 19 436 93.86% 401.07 93.00%
Washington Elementary 43 141 113 25 322 92.35% 295.98 90.20%
William Land Elementary 45 138 161 0 344 94.69% 327.89 94.04%
Woodbine Elementary 43 130 95 26 294 89.22% 254.43 87.94%
TOTAL ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS 2,799       8,001            8,297         833             19,930             92.69% 18,125.48             91.57%

23 48                    Change from prior month

ELEMENTARY TRADITIONAL GENERAL EDUCATION

PERCENTAGE 
2022-2023

Special 
Education 
Grades K-6

TOTAL MONTH-
END 

ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE ACTUAL 
ATTENDANCE

Kdgn Grades 1-3 Grades 4-6 2022-2023 
Actual 

Attendance



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT
MONTH 9, ENDING FRIDAY, MAY 19, 2023

TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Page 2

PERCENTAGE 
FOR THE 
MONTH

Cum Attd 
Days/162

2022-2023
A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 35 28 63 1 64 93.13% 59.22 91.56%
Albert Einstein MS 326 309 635 31 666 91.35% 605.42 90.77%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 58 51 109 0 109 94.50% 102.05 93.39%
California MS 372 386 758 13 771 91.83% 704.49 90.78%
Capital City School 67 67 134 0 134 72.67% 75.34 68.21%
Fern Bacon MS 307 317 624 39 663 91.37% 602.35 90.35%
Genevieve Didion Elementary 59 51 110 1 111 96.13% 104.94 95.20%
Home/Hospital 18 21 39 1 40 100.00% 9.04 100.00%
John H. Still K-8 145 119 264 16 280 92.03% 261.32 92.60%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 0 0 0 15 15 79.12% 12.38 79.07%
Kit Carson IB Academy 146 160 306 18 324 88.10% 292.88 87.13%
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 42 53 95 12 107 94.81% 102.01 93.13%
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 11 11 22 0 22 92.50% 23.96 92.27%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 204 195 399 20 419 89.61% 371.72 88.49%
Sam Brannan MS 142 155 297 37 334 91.94% 303.76 90.69%
School of Engineering and Science 119 104 223 1 224 94.55% 218.12 93.94%
Success Academy K-8 7 14 21 0 21 76.84% 7.71 78.04%
Sutter MS 517 512 1,029 24 1,053 95.10% 1003.98 94.11%
Will C Wood MS 314 323 637 46 683 90.38% 614.37 89.98%
TOTAL MIDDLE SCHOOLS 2,889       2,876       5,765            275             6,040               91.59% 5,475.05     90.79%

5                  9                       Change from prior month

MIDDLE SCHOOLS GENERAL EDUCATION

PERCENTAGE 
2022-2023

Special 
Education 
Grades 7-8

TOTAL MONTH-
END 

ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 
ACTUAL ATTENDANCE 

Grade 7 Grade 8 Total Grades 
7-8

2022-2023 
Actual 

Attendance



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT
MONTH 9, ENDING FRIDAY, MAY 19, 2023

TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Page 3

PERCENTAGE 
FOR THE 
MONTH

Cum Attd 
Days/162
2022-2023

American Legion HS 171 0 0 0 0 171 0 171 65.78% 125.22 69.00%
Arthur A. Benjamin Health Prof 0 33 36 41 42 152 26 178 89.53% 158.15 87.41%
C K McClatchy HS 0 601 611 512 512 2,236 35 2,271 90.18% 2076.52 89.86%
Capital City School 0 55 65 91 90 301 0 301 82.60% 234.81 80.40%
Hiram W Johnson HS 0 397 371 349 283 1,400 124 1,524 87.21% 1368.19 87.22%
Home/Hospital 0 10 21 23 3 57 5 62 100.00% 14.80 100.00%
John F Kennedy HS 0 411 387 465 395 1,658 129 1,787 90.74% 1645.80 90.36%
Kit Carson 7-12 0 50 57 42 20 169 2 171 93.07% 164.83 92.07%
Luther Burbank HS 0 320 379 351 307 1,357 99 1,456 88.14% 1340.25 88.76%
Rosemont HS 0 343 339 327 299 1,308 102 1,410 88.13% 1279.66 88.76%
School of Engineering and Science 0 105 82 61 67 315 1 316 92.86% 301.76 92.85%
West Campus HS 0 218 221 197 188 824 1 825 95.18% 796.96 96.16%
Sacramento Accelerated Academy* 0 3 29 106 294 432 0 432 **N/A **N/A **N/A
TOTAL HIGH SCHOOLS 171                   2,546    2,598      2,565       2,500      10,380       524               10,904             88.90% 9,506.95         89.24%

Change from prior month 6                    (41)                    

* Change in internal process required separate row for Sacramento Accelerated Academy instead of dual enrollment at home high school sites. 
** Sacramento Accelerated Academy attendance data only available during state reporting periods. 

HIGH SCHOOLS GENERAL EDUCATION AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 
ACTUAL ATTENDANCE

Continuation Grade 9 Grade 10 Grade 11 Grade 12 2022-2023 
Actual 

Attendance

PERCENTAGE 
2022-2023

TOTAL 
MONTH-END 
ENROLLMENT

Special 
Education 

Grades 9-12

Total Grade 
9-12



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT
MONTH 9, ENDING FRIDAY, MAY 19, 2023

TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Page 4

PERCENTAGE FOR 
THE MONTH

Cum Attd 
Days/162

2022-2023
ELEMENTARY 19,930 92.69% 18,125 91.57%

MIDDLE 6,040 91.59% 5,475                  90.79%
HIGH SCHOOL 10,904 89.15% 9,507                  89.24%

TOTAL ALL DISTRICT SEGMENTS 36,874 91.49% 33,107 90.75%

Total Non-Public Schools as of 06/08/2023 251

Non-Public change from prior month -7

DISTRICT TOTALS
TOTAL MONTH-

END 
ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE ACTUAL 
ATTENDANCE

2022-2023 Actual 
Attendance

PERCENTAGE 
2022-2023



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT
MONTH 9, ENDING FRIDAY, MAY 19, 2023

TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Page 5

PERCENTAGE 
FOR THE 
MONTH

Kdgn Grades 1-3 Grades 4-6 Grades 7-8 Grades 9-12 2022-2023 
Actual 

Attendance

2022-2023 PERCENTAGE 
2022-2023

Bowling Green McCoy 48 180 175 0 0 10 413 93.00% 374.42 91.88%
Bowling Green-Chacon 42 133 140 0 0 11 326 94.45% 298.30 93.11%
George W. Carver SAS 0 0 0 0 181 11 192 85.95% 183.79 91.62%
New Joseph Bonnheim Charter 32 103 110 0 0 3 248 93.66% 213.59 91.60%
New Tech High 0 0 0 0 157 2 159 88.50% 139.11 90.77%
The Met High School 0 0 0 0 204 2 206 94.19% 196.46 94.81%
Total Dependent Charter Schools 122 416 425 0 542 39 1,544 92.22% 1,405.67 92.39%

Change from prior month 0 1

2022-2023 INDEPENDENT CHARTER 
SCHOOLS

PERCENTAGE 
FOR THE 
MONTH

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 
ACTUAL ATTENDANCE

Kdgn Grades 1-3 Grades 4-6 Grades 7-8 Grades 9-12 2022-2023 
Actual 

Attendance

2022-2023 PERCENTAGE 
2022-2023

Aspire Capitol Heights Academy 24 65 63 24 0 0 176 87.89% 161.65 90.10%
CA Montessori Project Capitol Campus 71 121 119 38 0 1 350 95.50% 326.41 93.12%
Capitol Collegiate Academy 41 146 145 79 0 0 411 93.17% 373.15 92.52%
Growth Public Schools 60 113 91 0 0 0 264 92.69% 246.79 91.49%
Language Academy 88 198 200 129 0 0 615 94.79% 573.09 93.84%
PS 7 Elementary 72 165 162 160 0 0 559 85.57% 490.86 87.33%
Sacramento Charter HS 0 0 0 0 349 0 349 86.09% 321.20 89.66%
SAVA 0 0 0 106 657 0 763 93.60% 647.37 95.18%
Sol Aureus College Preparatory 44 115 129 66 0 0 354 92.64% 326.86 91.86%
Yav Pem Suab Academy 67 188 180 0 0 0 435 92.13% 385.91 89.68%
TOTAL INDEPENDENT CHARTER SCHOOLS 467   1,111         1,089          602              1,006            1                   4,276               91.41% 3,853.28    91.48%

Change from prior month 0 -16

TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOLS 589   1,527         1,514          602              1,548            40                 5,820               91.81% 5,258.95    91.93%

Special 
Education 

Grades K-12

TOTAL MONTH-
END 

ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 
ACTUAL ATTENDANCE

2022-2023 DEPENDENT CHARTER SCHOOLS

GENERAL EDUCATION

Special 
Education 

Grades K-12

TOTAL MONTH-
END 

ENROLLMENT

GENERAL EDUCATION



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT
MONTH 9, ENDING FRIDAY, MAY 19, 2023

TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Page 6

CONCURRENT OTHER TOTAL CONCURRENT OTHER TOTAL

A. Warren McClaskey Adult Center 222 0 11,179.75    11,179.75     0 149.87 149.87
Charles A. Jones Career & Education Center 432 0 15,321.91    15,321.91     0 247.30 247.30
TOTAL ADULT EDUCATION 654                     0 26,501.66    26,501.66    0 397.17 397.17

2022-2023 CUMULATIVE ADAADULT EDUCATION ENROLLMENT HOURS EARNED



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT
MONTH 9, ENDING FRIDAY, MAY 19, 2023

GRADE BY GRADE ENROLLMENT

Page 7

Kdgn Grade 1 Grade 2 Grade 3 Grade 4 Grade 5 Grade 6
A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 57 40 40 45 32 48 37 299
Abraham Lincoln El 77 75 69 75 78 88 72 534
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 72 48 48 48 60 53 49 378
Bret Harte Elementary 23 36 24 10 25 26 26 170
Caleb Greenwood 52 81 64 70 78 68 65 478
Camellia Basic Elementary 66 45 47 43 55 58 53 367
Capital City School 27 26 38 39 33 48 38 249
Caroline Wenzel Elementary 20 26 27 33 25 19 37 187
Cesar Chavez ES 0 0 0 0 110 114 132 356
Crocker/Riverside Elementary 94 93 91 96 79 86 79 618
David Lubin Elementary 47 68 70 56 57 60 64 422
Earl Warren Elementary 70 47 58 58 66 54 65 418
Edward Kemble Elementary 117 127 118 129 0 0 0 491
Elder Creek Elementary 85 92 100 102 116 111 109 715
Ethel I Baker Elementary 76 92 87 91 77 83 76 582
Ethel Phillips Elementary 83 55 63 67 61 52 65 446
Father Keith B Kenny K-8 School 24 23 24 30 47 32 52 232
Genevieve Didion Elementary 66 65 70 69 65 66 67 468
Golden Empire Elementary 56 59 64 61 71 61 76 448
H W Harkness Elementary 51 22 28 35 43 44 33 256
Hollywood Park Elementary 23 40 23 27 32 39 27 211
Home/Hospital 13 2 10 11 8 9 16 69
Hubert H.  Bancroft Elementary 66 69 51 56 48 42 66 398
Isador Cohen Elementary 66 46 45 23 41 37 32 290
James W Marshall Elementary 40 42 44 47 55 41 46 315
John Bidwell Elementary 52 34 46 37 23 27 27 246
John Cabrillo Elementary 39 34 34 44 36 37 53 277
John D Sloat Elementary 32 20 23 37 26 30 25 193
John H. Still K-8 47 56 56 63 79 64 91 456
John Morse Therapeutic Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Leataata Floyd Elementary 24 41 35 34 30 40 40 244
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 112 85 95 90 93 94 92 661
Mark Twain Elementary 38 23 33 32 33 33 33 225
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 60 38 33 47 24 26 44 272
Matsuyama Elementary 54 64 54 70 65 81 63 451
Nicholas Elementary 71 72 69 71 85 74 77 519
O W Erlewine Elementary 29 34 39 28 37 44 31 242
Oak Ridge Elementary 59 69 66 71 65 56 77 463
Pacific Elementary 92 95 92 102 91 113 96 681
Parkway Elementary School 77 53 51 69 67 52 58 427
Peter Burnett Elementary 42 47 58 57 52 59 59 374
Phoebe A Hearst Elementary 92 94 94 95 93 91 93 652
Pony Express Elementary 35 45 43 45 54 58 48 328
Rosa Parks K-8 School 38 43 47 36 38 50 50 302
Sequoia Elementary 51 56 57 48 54 53 64 383
Success Academy K-8 0 0 0 0 1 4 7 12
Susan B Anthony Elementary 55 51 43 37 44 42 34 306
Sutterville Elementary 38 47 53 58 63 64 57 380
Tahoe Elementary 72 36 31 44 32 32 33 280
Theodore Judah Elementary 88 53 45 47 59 64 61 417
Washington Elementary 43 48 48 45 31 33 49 297
William Land Elementary 45 43 52 43 55 50 56 344
Woodbine Elementary 43 46 42 42 36 28 31 268
TOTAL 2,799 2,646 2,642 2,713 2,728 2,738 2,831 19,097

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS GENERAL EDUCATION ENROLLMENT TOTAL 
GENERAL 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT
MONTH 9, ENDING FRIDAY, MAY 19, 2023

CUMULATIVE TOTAL ABSENCES

Page 8

A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 316 4,256 45,641 49,897 91.47%
Abraham Lincoln El 536 7,776 77,606 85,382 90.89%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 380 4,533 56,229 60,762 92.54%
Bret Harte Elementary 205 3,091 28,652 31,743 90.26%
Caleb Greenwood 482 4,129 74,028 78,157 94.72%
Camellia Basic Elementary 389 2,997 60,126 63,123 95.25%
Capital City School 249 3,976 32,705 36,681 89.16%
Caroline Wenzel Elementary 209 3,474 31,332 34,806 90.02%
Cesar Chavez ES 378 4,665 55,812 60,477 92.29%
Crocker/Riverside Elementary 620 5,413 94,436 99,849 94.58%
David Lubin Elementary 450 5,118 67,407 72,525 92.94%
Earl Warren Elementary 431 5,337 64,329 69,666 92.34%
Edward Kemble Elementary 510 7,875 73,855 81,730 90.36%
Elder Creek Elementary 722 7,716 105,991 113,707 93.21%
Ethel I Baker Elementary 585 9,267 85,665 94,932 90.24%
Ethel Phillips Elementary 455 6,921 65,091 72,012 90.39%
Father Keith B Kenny K-8 School 257 4,821 35,615 40,436 88.08%
Genevieve Didion Elementary 473 3,933 72,504 76,437 94.85%
Golden Empire Elementary 464 6,076 68,702 74,778 91.87%
H W Harkness Elementary 258 3,905 37,376 41,281 90.54%
Hollywood Park Elementary 249 4,334 35,534 39,868 89.13%
Home/Hospital 72 0 2,377                                                   2,377                          100.00%
Hubert H.  Bancroft Elementary 415 5,729 59,964 65,693 91.28%
Isador Cohen Elementary 326 4,685 46,460 51,145 90.84%
James W Marshall Elementary 342 4,411 49,609 54,020 91.83%
John Bidwell Elementary 258 4,117 36,855 40,972 89.95%
John Cabrillo Elementary 324 4,982 45,763 50,745 90.18%
John D Sloat Elementary 205 3,346 29,566 32,912 89.83%
John H. Still K-8 469 7,983 68,454 76,437 89.56%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 12 277 1,331 1,608 82.77%
Leataata Floyd Elementary 248 5,918 34,902 40,820 85.50%
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 684 5,741 104,277 110,018 94.78%
Mark Twain Elementary 247 3,597 36,036 39,633 90.92%
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 294 4,697 44,266 48,963 90.41%
Matsuyama Elementary 459 4,604 69,396 74,000 93.78%
Nicholas Elementary 537 9,329 76,629 85,958 89.15%
O W Erlewine Elementary 265 4,324 37,938 42,262 89.77%
Oak Ridge Elementary 466 7,711 65,789 73,500 89.51%
Pacific Elementary 683 10,147 100,502 110,649 90.83%
Parkway Elementary School 458 9,891 63,837 73,728 86.58%
Peter Burnett Elementary 401 4,982 59,485 64,467 92.27%
Phoebe A Hearst Elementary 653 5,329 99,986 105,315 94.94%
Pony Express Elementary 346 4,322 52,656 56,978 92.41%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 318 5,154 45,526 50,680 89.83%
Sequoia Elementary 413 6,954 59,789 66,743 89.58%
Success Academy K-8 12 310 584 894 65.32%
Susan B Anthony Elementary 308 3,188 46,873 50,061 93.63%
Sutterville Elementary 387 3,503 58,674 62,177 94.37%
Tahoe Elementary 314 4,663 45,087 49,750 90.63%
Theodore Judah Elementary 436 4,863 64,572 69,435 93.00%
Washington Elementary 322 5,180 47,653 52,833 90.20%
William Land Elementary 344 3,348 52,790 56,138 94.04%
Woodbine Elementary 294 5,620 40,963 46,583 87.94%
TOTAL 19,930                           268,518                  2,917,225                                           3,185,743                  91.57%

PERCENTAGE OF 
ATTENDANCE

ELEMENTARY TOTAL ENROLLMENT TOTAL ABSENCES ACTUAL DAYS OF ATTENDANCE DAYS ENROLLED



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT
MONTH 9, ENDING FRIDAY, MAY 19, 2023

CUMULATIVE TOTAL ABSENCES

Page 9

A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 64 879 9,535 10,414 91.56%
Albert Einstein MS 666 9,909 97,473 107,382 90.77%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K-8 109 1,163 16,430 17,593 93.39%
California MS 771 11,523 113,423 124,946 90.78%
Capital City School 134 5,653 12,129 17,782 68.21%
Fern Bacon MS 663 10,358 96,979 107,337 90.35%
Genevieve Didion K-8 111 852 16,895 17,747 95.20%
Home/Hospital 40 0 1465 1465 100.00%
John H. Still K-8 280 3,363 42,072 45,435 92.60%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 15 524 1,980 2,504 79.07%
Kit Carson 7-12 324 6,964 47,154 54,118 87.13%
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 107 1,211 16,424 17,635 93.13%
Martin Luther King Jr K-8 22 323 3,857 4,180 92.27%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 419 7,735 59,475 67,210 88.49%
Sam Brannan MS 334 5,023 48,905 53,928 90.69%
School of Engineering and Science 224 2,265 35,118 37,383 93.94%
Success Academy K-8 21 347 1,233 1,580 78.04%
Sutter MS 1,053 10,118 161,641 171,759 94.11%
Will C Wood MS 683 11,009 98,913 109,922 89.98%
TOTAL 6,040                             89,219                    881,101                                      970,320                              90.81%

PERCENTAGE OF ATTENDANCEMIDDLE TOTAL ENROLLMENT TOTAL ABSENCES ACTUAL DAYS OF 
ATTENDANCE

DAYS ENROLLED



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT
MONTH 9, ENDING FRIDAY, MAY 19, 2023

CUMULATIVE TOTAL ABSENCES

Page 10

American Legion HS 171 9,059 20,160 29,219 69.00%
Arthur A. Benjamin Health Prof 178 3,667 25,462 29,129 87.41%
C K McClatchy HS 2,271 37,734 334,319 372,053 89.86%
Capital City School 301 9,214 37,805 47,019 80.40%
Hiram W Johnson HS 1,524 32,286 220,279 252,565 87.22%
Home/Hospital 62 0 2,398 2,398 100.00%
John F Kennedy HS 1,787 28,269 264,973 293,242 90.36%
Kit Carson 7-12 171 2,287 26,537 28,824 92.07%
Luther Burbank HS 1,456 27,167 214,440 241,607 88.76%
Rosemont HS 1,410 26,088 206,025 232,113 88.76%
School of Engineering and Science 316 3,743 48,584 52,327 92.85%
West Campus HS 825 5,123 128,311 133,434 96.16%
Sacramento Accelerated Academy* 432 **NA **NA **NA **NA
TOTAL 10,904               184,637                  1,529,293                                       1,713,930                                90.75%

TOTAL 
ENROLLMENT

TOTAL ABSENCES ACTUAL DAYS OF ATTENDANCE DAYS ENROLLED PERCENTAGE OF ATTENDANCE

TOTAL ALL SCHOOLS 36,874 542,374 5,327,619 5,869,993 90.76%

Students in Non 
Public Schools

Total
Enrollment

ADA ADA % % Change

2021-22 Actual 37,165 33,490 90.11%
2022-2023 Projected 36,193 0 0.00%

Month 01 234 37,212 33,827 92.56%
Month 02 247 37,265 33,754 92.27% -0.29%
Month 03 251 37,276 33,516 91.60% -0.67%
Month 04 252 37,258 33,245 91.13% -0.47%
Month 05 257 37,078 33,161 90.56% -0.57%
Month 06 257 36,996 33,098 90.60% 0.04%
Month 07 260 36,910 33,081 90.64% 0.04%
Month 08 258 36,858 33,097 90.66% 0.02%
Month 09 251 36,874 33,107 90.75% 0.09%

PERCENTAGE OF ATTENDANCEHIGH SCHOOL ENROLLMENT TOTAL ABSENCES ACTUAL DAYS OF ATTENDANCE DAYS ENROLLED



-5,000

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

Elementary Middle High Total Variance Dependent
Charter

Non-Public
Schools

Independent
Charter

Adult Ed.

Month 1 9/23/2022 19,781 6,089 11,342 37,212 0 1,378 234 4,211 399
Month 2 10/21/2022 19,825 6,121 11,319 37,265 53 1,539 247 4,245 669
Month 3 11/18/2022 19,913 6,101 11,262 37,276 11 1,533 251 4,251 576
Month 4 12/16/2022 19,906 6,086 11,266 37,258 -18 1,525 252 4,261 545
Month 5 1/27/2023 19,861 6,037 11,180 37,078 -180 1,509 257 4,164 457

  

19,781

6,089

11,342

37,212

0
1,378

234

4,211

399

19,825

6,121

11,319

37,265

53

1,539

247

4,245

669

19,913

6,101

11,262

37,276

11
1,533

251

4,251

576

19,906

6,086

11,266

37,258

-18
1,525

252

4,261

545

19,861

6,037

11,180

37,078

-180
1,509

257

4,164

457

19,879

6,046

11,071

36,996

-82
1,524

257

4,218

532

19,869

6,050

10,991

36,910

-86
1,534

260

4,282

560

19,882

6,031

10,945

36,858

-52
1,543

258

4,292

546

19,930

6,040

10,904

36,874

16
1,544

251

4,276

654En
ro

llm
en

t

Monthly Attendance 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 10, ENDING FRIDAY, JUNE 16, 2023
TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Page 1

ELEMENTARY 
TRADITIONAL

Cum Attd                 
Days/180
2022-2023

A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 57 125 116 17 315 92.56% 284.30 91.58%
Abraham Lincoln El 77 211 236 2 526 89.44% 481.13 90.75%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 69 144 162 3 378 95.03% 350.37 92.79%
Bret Harte Elementary 23 70 77 35 205 89.19% 178.45 90.15%
Caleb Greenwood 52 215 211 4 482 95.40% 459.80 94.79%
Camellia Basic Elementary 65 134 165 22 386 95.18% 373.05 95.24%
Capital City School 26 103 118 0 247 84.59% 203.80 88.66%
Caroline Wenzel Elementary 21 84 81 23 209 90.47% 194.03 90.06%
Cesar Chavez ES 0 0 357 22 379 92.97% 347.10 92.36%
Crocker/Riverside Elementary 95 280 244 2 621 95.92% 587.41 94.71%
David Lubin Elementary 47 195 181 28 451 93.35% 418.79 92.98%
Earl Warren Elementary 70 163 185 13 431 93.09% 399.73 92.41%
Edward Kemble Elementary 118 373 0 19 510 89.88% 458.63 90.32%
Elder Creek Elementary 87 293 335 7 722 91.56% 658.43 93.04%
Ethel I Baker Elementary 76 269 234 3 582 88.67% 530.61 90.08%
Ethel Phillips Elementary 83 185 175 12 455 89.17% 404.44 90.26%
Father Keith B Kenny K-8 School 24 77 131 24 256 86.40% 221.26 87.91%
Genevieve Didion Elementary 67 203 198 5 473 95.92% 450.72 94.96%
Golden Empire Elementary 57 182 209 17 465 93.46% 427.41 92.03%
H W Harkness Elementary 49 86 120 2 257 90.23% 232.18 90.51%
Hollywood Park Elementary 23 90 98 38 249 85.59% 219.94 88.77%
Home/Hospital 11 19 17 5 52 100.00% 13.20 100.00%
Hubert H.  Bancroft Elementary 66 176 154 18 414 91.26% 373.03 91.28%
Isador Cohen Elementary 65 116 110 36 327 91.40% 289.67 90.90%
James W Marshall Elementary 40 133 142 27 342 92.85% 309.08 91.94%
John Bidwell Elementary 51 116 77 13 257 89.36% 228.92 89.89%
John Cabrillo Elementary 38 110 125 47 320 87.75% 284.07 89.93%
John D Sloat Elementary 32 79 81 13 205 87.40% 183.19 89.59%
John H. Still K-8 47 174 232 13 466 88.44% 423.98 89.45%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 0 0 0 13 13 76.86% 8.47 82.04%
Leataata Floyd Elementary 24 107 110 3 244 84.11% 215.62 85.37%
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 112 268 278 26 684 95.38% 648.16 94.84%
Mark Twain Elementary 38 88 99 22 247 92.15% 224.21 91.05%
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 60 119 94 22 295 92.53% 274.68 90.61%
Matsuyama Elementary 53 187 208 10 458 94.79% 431.42 93.88%
Nicholas Elementary 73 211 234 19 537 88.05% 475.67 89.04%
O W Erlewine Elementary 28 101 112 23 264 90.85% 236.06 89.88%
Oak Ridge Elementary 59 205 198 4 466 88.05% 408.82 89.36%
Pacific Elementary 93 292 302 2 689 90.49% 623.97 90.80%
Parkway Elementary School 77 172 175 31 455 84.49% 395.43 86.37%
Peter Burnett Elementary 42 162 171 27 402 93.03% 369.91 92.35%
Phoebe A Hearst Elementary 92 283 277 1 653 96.04% 621.65 95.05%
Pony Express Elementary 35 133 160 18 346 91.89% 327.97 92.36%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 39 125 137 18 319 87.44% 283.85 89.59%
Sequoia Elementary 51 158 170 30 409 90.08% 371.19 89.63%
Success Academy K-8 0 0 14 0 14 58.33% 4.11 63.79%
Susan B Anthony Elementary 55 131 120 2 308 95.13% 291.31 93.78%
Sutterville Elementary 38 158 184 7 387 95.68% 367.07 94.50%
Tahoe Elementary 72 111 97 34 314 90.99% 280.50 90.66%
Theodore Judah Elementary 88 145 185 19 437 93.25% 401.69 93.02%
Washington Elementary 42 142 113 26 323 91.83% 296.05 90.36%
William Land Elementary 45 138 161 0 344 95.66% 328.01 94.20%
Woodbine Elementary 43 130 92 27 292 86.59% 254.31 87.80%
TOTAL ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS 2,795       7,971            8,262         854             19,882             91.45% 18,126.82             91.55%

21 (48)                   Change from prior month

ELEMENTARY TRADITIONAL GENERAL EDUCATION

PERCENTAGE 
2022-2023

Special 
Education 
Grades K-6

TOTAL MONTH-
END 

ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE ACTUAL 
ATTENDANCE

Kdgn Grades 1-3 Grades 4-6 2022-2023 
Actual 

Attendance



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 10, ENDING FRIDAY, JUNE 16, 2023
TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Page 2

PERCENTAGE 
FOR THE 
MONTH

Cum Attd 
Days/180

2022-2023
A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 36 28 64 1 65 92.45% 59.29 91.65%
Albert Einstein MS 323 304 627 32 659 88.67% 603.41 90.56%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 58 51 109 0 109 94.04% 102.10 93.45%
California MS 371 384 755 14 769 89.54% 702.97 90.65%
Capital City School 67 68 135 0 135 57.88% 75.68 66.96%
Fern Bacon MS 303 318 621 39 660 89.16% 601.05 90.23%
Genevieve Didion Elementary 59 51 110 1 111 95.10% 105.00 95.19%
Home/Hospital 18 13 31 1 32 100.00% 8.14 100.00%
John H. Still K-8 145 120 265 17 282 92.87% 261.23 92.63%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 0 0 0 15 15 72.96% 12.23 78.48%
Kit Carson IB Academy 145 160 305 18 323 87.19% 291.77 87.14%
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 42 53 95 12 107 93.98% 101.87 93.22%
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 11 11 22 0 22 94.19% 23.63 92.44%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 204 194 398 20 418 85.59% 370.33 88.20%
Sam Brannan MS 142 152 294 37 331 89.93% 303.19 90.61%
School of Engineering and Science 117 104 221 1 222 94.68% 217.38 94.01%
Success Academy K-8 7 15 22 0 22 76.77% 8.63 77.78%
Sutter MS 518 512 1,030 24 1,054 93.24% 1001.83 94.02%
Will C Wood MS 312 321 633 46 679 85.31% 611.00 89.52%
TOTAL MIDDLE SCHOOLS 2,878       2,859       5,737            278             6,015               89.04% 5,460.72     90.62%

3                  (25)                    Change from prior month

MIDDLE SCHOOLS GENERAL EDUCATION

PERCENTAGE 
2022-2023

Special 
Education 
Grades 7-8

TOTAL MONTH-
END 

ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 
ACTUAL ATTENDANCE 

Grade 7 Grade 8 Total Grades 
7-8

2022-2023 
Actual 

Attendance



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 10, ENDING FRIDAY, JUNE 16, 2023
TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Page 3

PERCENTAGE 
FOR THE 
MONTH

Cum Attd 
Days/180
2022-2023

American Legion HS 120 0 0 0 0 120 0 120 59.15% 121.22 68.19%
Arthur A. Benjamin Health Prof 0 33 36 41 42 152 26 178 88.42% 157.98 87.51%
C K McClatchy HS 0 601 611 510 510 2,232 35 2,267 92.28% 2077.65 90.10%
Capital City School 0 55 66 89 46 256 0 256 75.19% 232.26 79.90%
Hiram W Johnson HS 0 397 372 349 282 1,400 123 1,523 85.65% 1360.88 87.06%
Home/Hospital 0 4 17 17 2 40 5 45 100.00% 13.32 100.00%
John F Kennedy HS 0 408 386 464 392 1,650 131 1,781 92.26% 1645.19 90.55%
Kit Carson 7-12 0 50 57 42 20 169 2 171 93.66% 164.36 92.22%
Luther Burbank HS 0 320 377 352 306 1,355 100 1,455 88.41% 1334.30 88.72%
Rosemont HS 0 342 339 328 297 1,306 102 1,408 89.45% 1278.30 88.83%
School of Engineering and Science 0 104 82 61 67 314 1 315 96.58% 302.04 93.21%
West Campus HS 0 218 221 197 188 824 1 825 96.35% 796.65 96.18%
Sacramento Accelerated Academy* 0 3 30 104 273 410 0 410 **N/A **N/A **N/A
TOTAL HIGH SCHOOLS 120                   2,535    2,594      2,554       2,425      10,228       526               10,754             89.86% 9,484.16         89.28%

Change from prior month 2                    (150)                 

* Change in internal process required separate row for Sacramento Accelerated Academy instead of dual enrollment at home high school sites. 
** Sacramento Accelerated Academy attendance data only available during state reporting periods. 

HIGH SCHOOLS GENERAL EDUCATION AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 
ACTUAL ATTENDANCE

Continuation Grade 9 Grade 10 Grade 11 Grade 12 2022-2023 
Actual 

Attendance

PERCENTAGE 
2022-2023

TOTAL 
MONTH-END 
ENROLLMENT

Special 
Education 

Grades 9-12

Total Grade 
9-12



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 10, ENDING FRIDAY, JUNE 16, 2023
TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Page 4

PERCENTAGE FOR 
THE MONTH

Cum Attd 
Days/180

2022-2023
ELEMENTARY 19,882 91.57% 18,127 91.55%

MIDDLE 6,015 90.79% 5,461                  90.62%
HIGH SCHOOL 10,754 89.24% 9,484                  89.28%

TOTAL ALL DISTRICT SEGMENTS 36,651 90.60% 33,072 90.73%

Total Non-Public Schools as of 06/08/2023 251

Non-Public change from prior month 0

DISTRICT TOTALS
TOTAL MONTH-

END 
ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE ACTUAL 
ATTENDANCE

2022-2023 Actual 
Attendance

PERCENTAGE 
2022-2023



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 10, ENDING FRIDAY, JUNE 16, 2023
TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Page 5

PERCENTAGE 
FOR THE 
MONTH

Kdgn Grades 1-3 Grades 4-6 Grades 7-8 Grades 9-12 2022-2023 
Actual 

Attendance

2022-2023 PERCENTAGE 
2022-2023

Bowling Green McCoy 48 180 175 0 0 10 413 89.59% 373.97 91.65%
Bowling Green-Chacon 42 133 140 0 0 11 326 92.72% 298.70 93.07%
George W. Carver SAS 0 0 0 0 180 11 191 92.46% 182.79 91.70%
New Joseph Bonnheim Charter 33 101 109 0 0 3 246 92.88% 215.55 91.76%
New Tech High 0 0 0 0 154 2 156 88.34% 139.01 90.45%
The Met High School 0 0 0 0 204 2 206 93.63% 196.08 94.69%
Total Dependent Charter Schools 123 414 424 0 538 39 1,538 91.54% 1,406.09 92.30%

Change from prior month 0 -5

2022-2023 INDEPENDENT CHARTER 
SCHOOLS

PERCENTAGE 
FOR THE 
MONTH

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 
ACTUAL ATTENDANCE

Kdgn Grades 1-3 Grades 4-6 Grades 7-8 Grades 9-12 2022-2023 
Actual 

Attendance

2022-2023 PERCENTAGE 
2022-2023

Aspire Capitol Heights Academy 24 65 63 24 0 0 176 88.35% 160.94 89.90%
CA Montessori Project Capitol Campus 71 121 119 38 0 1 350 95.33% 327.33 93.36%
Capitol Collegiate Academy 40 146 143 78 0 0 407 90.96% 372.90 92.35%
Growth Public Schools 60 114 91 0 0 0 265 93.41% 246.77 91.72%
Language Academy 88 198 200 129 0 0 615 95.58% 574.74 94.03%
PS 7 Elementary 70 164 161 159 0 0 554 86.58% 489.22 87.24%
Sacramento Charter HS 0 0 0 0 346 0 346 87.95% 318.80 89.46%
SAVA 0 0 0 105 656 0 761 94.40% 655.18 95.09%
Sol Aureus College Preparatory 43 115 129 65 0 0 352 91.96% 326.60 91.87%
Yav Pem Suab Academy 68 186 180 0 0 0 434 93.35% 387.48 89.99%
TOTAL INDEPENDENT CHARTER SCHOOLS 464   1,109         1,086          598              1,002            1                   4,260               91.79% 3,859.97    91.50%

Change from prior month 0 -16

TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOLS 587   1,523         1,510          598              1,540            40                 5,798               91.66% 5,266.06    91.90%

Special 
Education 

Grades K-12

TOTAL MONTH-
END 

ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 
ACTUAL ATTENDANCE

2022-2023 DEPENDENT CHARTER SCHOOLS

GENERAL EDUCATION

Special 
Education 

Grades K-12

TOTAL MONTH-
END 

ENROLLMENT

GENERAL EDUCATION



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 10, ENDING FRIDAY, JUNE 16, 2023
TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Page 6

CONCURRENT OTHER TOTAL CONCURRENT OTHER TOTAL

A. Warren McClaskey Adult Center 245 0 12,236.25    12,236.25     0 173.17 173.17
Charles A. Jones Career & Education Center 400 0 17,426.80    17,426.80     0 280.49 280.49
TOTAL ADULT EDUCATION 645                     0 29,663.05    29,663.05    0 453.66 453.66

2022-2023 CUMULATIVE ADAADULT EDUCATION ENROLLMENT HOURS EARNED



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 10, ENDING FRIDAY, JUNE 16, 2023
GRADE BY GRADE ENROLLMENT

Page 7

Kdgn Grade 1 Grade 2 Grade 3 Grade 4 Grade 5 Grade 6
A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 57 40 40 45 31 48 37 298
Abraham Lincoln El 77 74 66 71 77 87 72 524
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 69 48 48 48 60 53 49 375
Bret Harte Elementary 23 36 24 10 25 26 26 170
Caleb Greenwood 52 81 64 70 78 68 65 478
Camellia Basic Elementary 65 45 47 42 55 57 53 364
Capital City School 26 26 38 39 33 47 38 247
Caroline Wenzel Elementary 21 26 26 32 25 19 37 186
Cesar Chavez ES 0 0 0 0 111 114 132 357
Crocker/Riverside Elementary 95 93 91 96 79 86 79 619
David Lubin Elementary 47 69 70 56 57 60 64 423
Earl Warren Elementary 70 47 58 58 66 54 65 418
Edward Kemble Elementary 118 126 118 129 0 0 0 491
Elder Creek Elementary 87 91 100 102 116 111 108 715
Ethel I Baker Elementary 76 92 87 90 75 83 76 579
Ethel Phillips Elementary 83 55 63 67 58 52 65 443
Father Keith B Kenny K-8 School 24 23 24 30 47 32 52 232
Genevieve Didion Elementary 67 64 70 69 65 66 67 468
Golden Empire Elementary 57 58 64 60 72 61 76 448
H W Harkness Elementary 49 23 28 35 43 44 33 255
Hollywood Park Elementary 23 40 23 27 32 39 27 211
Home/Hospital 11 4 8 7 4 4 9 47
Hubert H.  Bancroft Elementary 66 69 51 56 47 42 65 396
Isador Cohen Elementary 65 47 45 24 41 37 32 291
James W Marshall Elementary 40 42 44 47 55 41 46 315
John Bidwell Elementary 51 34 46 36 23 27 27 244
John Cabrillo Elementary 38 34 33 43 36 37 52 273
John D Sloat Elementary 32 20 22 37 26 30 25 192
John H. Still K-8 47 56 56 62 78 64 90 453
John Morse Therapeutic Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Leataata Floyd Elementary 24 40 34 33 30 40 40 241
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 112 84 95 89 93 93 92 658
Mark Twain Elementary 38 23 33 32 33 33 33 225
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 60 38 34 47 24 26 44 273
Matsuyama Elementary 53 63 54 70 65 80 63 448
Nicholas Elementary 73 72 69 70 85 72 77 518
O W Erlewine Elementary 28 34 39 28 37 44 31 241
Oak Ridge Elementary 59 70 65 70 65 56 77 462
Pacific Elementary 93 97 93 102 91 115 96 687
Parkway Elementary School 77 53 50 69 66 51 58 424
Peter Burnett Elementary 42 47 58 57 52 59 60 375
Phoebe A Hearst Elementary 92 94 94 95 93 91 93 652
Pony Express Elementary 35 45 43 45 54 58 48 328
Rosa Parks K-8 School 39 42 47 36 38 50 49 301
Sequoia Elementary 51 54 56 48 53 53 64 379
Success Academy K-8 0 0 0 0 1 5 8 14
Susan B Anthony Elementary 55 51 43 37 44 42 34 306
Sutterville Elementary 38 47 53 58 63 64 57 380
Tahoe Elementary 72 36 31 44 32 32 33 280
Theodore Judah Elementary 88 53 45 47 59 65 61 418
Washington Elementary 42 49 48 45 31 33 49 297
William Land Elementary 45 43 52 43 55 50 56 344
Woodbine Elementary 43 46 42 42 34 27 31 265
TOTAL 2,795 2,644 2,632 2,695 2,713 2,728 2,821 19,028

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS GENERAL EDUCATION ENROLLMENT TOTAL 
GENERAL 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 10, ENDING FRIDAY, JUNE 16, 2023
CUMULATIVE TOTAL ABSENCES

Page 8

A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 315 4,678 50,890 55,568 91.58%
Abraham Lincoln El 526 8,782 86,122 94,904 90.75%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 378 4,872 62,716 67,588 92.79%
Bret Harte Elementary 205 3,490 31,943 35,433 90.15%
Caleb Greenwood 482 4,528 82,305 86,833 94.79%
Camellia Basic Elementary 386 3,334 66,775 70,109 95.24%
Capital City School 247 4,664 36,481 41,145 88.66%
Caroline Wenzel Elementary 209 3,832 34,731 38,563 90.06%
Cesar Chavez ES 379 5,143 62,131 67,274 92.36%
Crocker/Riverside Elementary 621 5,868 105,146 111,014 94.71%
David Lubin Elementary 451 5,656 74,964 80,620 92.98%
Earl Warren Elementary 431 5,873 71,551 77,424 92.41%
Edward Kemble Elementary 510 8,803 82,095 90,898 90.32%
Elder Creek Elementary 722 8,810 117,858 126,668 93.04%
Ethel I Baker Elementary 582 10,457 94,979 105,436 90.08%
Ethel Phillips Elementary 455 7,808 72,394 80,202 90.26%
Father Keith B Kenny K-8 School 256 5,449 39,605 45,054 87.91%
Genevieve Didion Elementary 473 4,281 80,679 84,960 94.96%
Golden Empire Elementary 465 6,622 76,507 83,129 92.03%
H W Harkness Elementary 257 4,358 41,560 45,918 90.51%
Hollywood Park Elementary 249 4,980 39,370 44,350 88.77%
Home/Hospital 52 0 301                                                      301                             100.00%
Hubert H.  Bancroft Elementary 414 6,381 66,772 73,153 91.28%
Isador Cohen Elementary 327 5,192 51,850 57,042 90.90%
James W Marshall Elementary 342 4,851 55,325 60,176 91.94%
John Bidwell Elementary 257 4,608 40,977 45,585 89.89%
John Cabrillo Elementary 320 5,692 50,848 56,540 89.93%
John D Sloat Elementary 205 3,811 32,791 36,602 89.59%
John H. Still K-8 466 8,955 75,892 84,847 89.45%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 13 330 1,507 1,837 82.04%
Leataata Floyd Elementary 244 6,616 38,596 45,212 85.37%
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 684 6,310 116,020 122,330 94.84%
Mark Twain Elementary 247 3,946 40,134 44,080 91.05%
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 295 5,093 49,168 54,261 90.61%
Matsuyama Elementary 458 5,034 77,224 82,258 93.88%
Nicholas Elementary 537 10,485 85,145 95,630 89.04%
O W Erlewine Elementary 264 4,759 42,255 47,014 89.88%
Oak Ridge Elementary 466 8,714 73,179 81,893 89.36%
Pacific Elementary 689 11,323 111,690 123,013 90.80%
Parkway Elementary School 455 11,166 70,782 81,948 86.37%
Peter Burnett Elementary 402 5,486 66,213 71,699 92.35%
Phoebe A Hearst Elementary 653 5,794 111,275 117,069 95.05%
Pony Express Elementary 346 4,827 58,379 63,206 92.36%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 319 5,872 50,526 56,398 89.59%
Sequoia Elementary 409 7,687 66,443 74,130 89.63%
Success Academy K-8 14 415 731 1,146 63.79%
Susan B Anthony Elementary 308 3,458 52,145 55,603 93.78%
Sutterville Elementary 387 3,804 65,339 69,143 94.50%
Tahoe Elementary 314 5,170 50,210 55,380 90.66%
Theodore Judah Elementary 437 5,394 71,902 77,296 93.02%
Washington Elementary 323 5,655 52,992 58,647 90.36%
William Land Elementary 344 3,617 58,713 62,330 94.20%
Woodbine Elementary 292 6,326 45,521 51,847 87.80%
TOTAL 19,882                           299,059                  3,241,647                                           3,540,706                  91.55%

PERCENTAGE OF 
ATTENDANCE

ELEMENTARY TOTAL ENROLLMENT TOTAL ABSENCES ACTUAL DAYS OF ATTENDANCE DAYS ENROLLED



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 10, ENDING FRIDAY, JUNE 16, 2023
CUMULATIVE TOTAL ABSENCES

Page 9

A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 65 967 10,613 11,580 91.65%
Albert Einstein MS 659 11,255 108,011 119,266 90.56%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K-8 109 1,280 18,275 19,555 93.45%
California MS 769 12,972 125,832 138,804 90.65%
Capital City School 135 6,684 13,546 20,230 66.96%
Fern Bacon MS 660 11,648 107,588 119,236 90.23%
Genevieve Didion K-8 111 950 18,795 19,745 95.19%
Home/Hospital 32 0 98 98 100.00%
John H. Still K-8 282 3,723 46,760 50,483 92.63%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 15 597 2,177 2,774 78.48%
Kit Carson 7-12 323 7,709 52,227 59,936 87.14%
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 107 1,327 18,234 19,561 93.22%
Martin Luther King Jr K-8 22 346 4,230 4,576 92.44%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 418 8,820 65,918 74,738 88.20%
Sam Brannan MS 331 5,624 54,271 59,895 90.61%
School of Engineering and Science 222 2,478 38,911 41,389 94.01%
Success Academy K-8 22 439 1,537 1,976 77.78%
Sutter MS 1,054 11,401 179,327 190,728 94.02%
Will C Wood MS 679 12,810 109,369 122,179 89.52%
TOTAL 6,015                             101,030                  975,719                                      1,076,749                           90.62%

PERCENTAGE OF ATTENDANCEMIDDLE TOTAL ENROLLMENT TOTAL ABSENCES ACTUAL DAYS OF 
ATTENDANCE

DAYS ENROLLED



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 10, ENDING FRIDAY, JUNE 16, 2023
CUMULATIVE TOTAL ABSENCES

Page 10

American Legion HS 120 10,122 21,699 31,821 68.19%
Arthur A. Benjamin Health Prof 178 4,036 28,279 32,315 87.51%
C K McClatchy HS 2,267 40,879 371,900 412,779 90.10%
Capital City School 256 10,458 41,575 52,033 79.90%
Hiram W Johnson HS 1,523 36,194 243,597 279,791 87.06%
Home/Hospital 45 0 160 160 100.00%
John F Kennedy HS 1,781 30,744 294,489 325,233 90.55%
Kit Carson 7-12 171 2,482 29,420 31,902 92.22%
Luther Burbank HS 1,455 30,192 237,505 267,697 88.72%
Rosemont HS 1,408 28,777 228,815 257,592 88.83%
School of Engineering and Science 315 3,937 54,065 58,002 93.21%
West Campus HS 825 5,665 142,601 148,266 96.18%
Sacramento Accelerated Academy* 0 **NA **NA **NA **NA
TOTAL 10,344               203,486                  1,694,105                                       1,897,591                                90.75%

TOTAL 
ENROLLMENT

TOTAL ABSENCES ACTUAL DAYS OF ATTENDANCE DAYS ENROLLED PERCENTAGE OF ATTENDANCE

TOTAL ALL SCHOOLS 36,241 603,575 5,911,471 6,515,046 90.74%

Students in Non 
Public Schools

Total
Enrollment

ADA ADA % % Change

2021-22 Actual 37,165 33,490 90.11%
2022-2023 Projected 36,193 0 0.00%

Month 01 234 37,212 33,827 92.56%
Month 02 247 37,265 33,754 92.27% -0.29%
Month 03 251 37,276 33,516 91.60% -0.67%
Month 04 252 37,258 33,245 91.13% -0.47%
Month 05 257 37,078 33,161 90.56% -0.57%
Month 06 257 36,996 33,098 90.60% 0.04%
Month 07 260 36,910 33,081 90.64% 0.04%
Month 08 258 36,858 33,097 90.66% 0.02%
Month 09 251 36,874 33,107 90.75% 0.09%
Month 10 251 36,241 33,072 90.73% -0.02%

PERCENTAGE OF ATTENDANCEHIGH SCHOOL ENROLLMENT TOTAL ABSENCES ACTUAL DAYS OF ATTENDANCE DAYS ENROLLED



-5,000

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

Elementary Middle High Total Variance Dependent
Charter

Non-Public
Schools

Independent
Charter

Adult Ed.

Month 1 9/23/2022 19,781 6,089 11,342 37,212 0 1,378 234 4,211 399
Month 2 10/21/2022 19,825 6,121 11,319 37,265 53 1,539 247 4,245 669
Month 3 11/18/2022 19,913 6,101 11,262 37,276 11 1,533 251 4,251 576
Month 4 12/16/2022 19,906 6,086 11,266 37,258 -18 1,525 252 4,261 545
Month 5 1/27/2023 19,861 6,037 11,180 37,078 -180 1,509 257 4,164 457
Month 6 2/24/2023 19,879 6,046 11,071 36,996 -82 1,524 257 4,218 532

  

19,781

6,089

11,342

37,212

0
1,378

234

4,211

399

19,825

6,121

11,319

37,265

53

1,539

247

4,245

669

19,913

6,101

11,262

37,276

11
1,533

251

4,251

576

19,906

6,086

11,266

37,258

-18
1,525

252

4,261

545

19,861

6,037

11,180

37,078

-180
1,509

257

4,164

457

19,879

6,046

11,071

36,996

-82
1,524

257

4,218

532

19,869

6,050

10,991

36,910

-86
1,534

260

4,282

560

19,882

6,031

10,945

36,858

-52
1,543

258

4,292

546

19,930

6,040

10,904

36,874

16
1,544

251

4,276

654

19,882

6,015

10,754

36,651

-223

1,538
251

4,260

645

En
ro

llm
en

t

Monthly Attendance 


	8 October 5 2023 FINAL
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	MEETING AND WORKSHOP
	AGENDA

	9.2 Recognition of the Week of the School Administrators
	9.2 Cover Page - Week of the School Administrators_
	Meeting Date: October 5, 2023

	9.2.1 Resolution No. 3288 Week of School Administrators
	SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION


	9.3 Recognition of National School Lunch Week
	9.3  CS Week of the National School Lunch_V2
	Meeting Date: October 5, 2023

	9.3.1 Resolution 3353 National School Lunch Week
	SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION


	9.4 Res no. 3348 Adopting Carbon Neutral Goals and Guidelines for SCUSD Buildings
	9.4 Cover Sheet-Resolution Carbon Neutral Goals and Guidelines for SCUSD Buildings
	Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023

	9.4.1 SCUSD_Board Resolution Final SMUD+NBI
	9.4.2 Carbon Nuetral Goals for Sacramento City School District_Final
	9.4.3 Carbon Neutral Guidelines for SCSUD Final
	District Energy and Carbon Emissions Goals  The District is committed to leveraging each opportunity to further progress toward achieving these goals. This includes bond-funded new construction and modernization projects, facilities retrofit projects ...
	Portfolio Level Goals:
	(1) All new construction projects will:
	 Achieve a site energy use intensity of 19-24 kBtu/sqft/yr without photovoltaic (PV), depending on building type,
	 Have no on-site gas combustion (and will be all electric),
	 Be PV-ready (where site appropriate),
	 Incorporate renewable energy sources to offset annual electricity use, including, but not limited to, solar and geothermal,
	 Reduce life cycle impacts associated with high embodied carbon materials wherever possible,
	 Prioritize local products, manufacturers, and contractors to reduce carbon impacts in the supply chain,
	 Utilize low Global Warming Potential (GWP) refrigerants that minimize (if not eliminate) global warming impacts that are non-toxic to the environment,
	 Consider the addition of charging infrastructure for staff electric vehicles (including protected electric bicycle parking) and the District fleet (including buses and other heavy duty service vehicles),
	 Consider battery storage (including parked school buses at the campus) and/or microgrid solutions supporting the PV system, for District and school resiliency, where practicable.
	(2) All major modernization projects will:
	 Achieve a site energy use intensity of 25-35 kBtu/square foot/year before PV, depending on the building type,
	 Eliminate on-site gas combustion completely or include a designed plan to eliminate gas by 2045.  The plan will come in the form of a board approved resolution and/or document signed by the Department Director, Project Sponsor, or Superintendent)
	(3) All school facility retrofits will improve the site Energy Use Intensity (EUI) by 20-50% from a 2018-2019 baseline:
	 Retrofitted systems should prioritize a shift to all-electric.
	 All retrofitted systems must be the most efficient equipment available whether gas or electric.




	10.1 Bond Oversight Committee Measures Q and R Annual Report 2022-2023
	10.1 Agenda Cover Measures Q and R Annual Report 2022-2023
	Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023

	10.1.1 Executive Summary Measures Q and R Annual Report 2022-2023

	12.1a Grants Entitlements and Other Income Agreements
	12.1a 10-5-23 FINAL
	Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023

	12.1a.1 A24-00014 MOU University of Phoenix Multiple and Single Subject-REV
	12.1a.2 A24-00027 GAN CPA Law Justice Suffix 07 at LBHS
	12.1a.3 A24-00028 GAN Bldg Trades Academy Suffix 06 at LBHS
	12.1a.4 A24-00029 GAN Criminal Justice Comm Serv Suffix 05 at JFK
	12.1a.5 A24-00030 GAN Law Criminal Justice Suffix 04 at HJHS
	12.1a.6 A24-00031 GAN Health and Medical Sciences Academy Suffix 03 at HJHS
	12.1a.7 A24-00032 GAN Corporate Business Academy Suffix 02 at HJHS
	12.1a.8 A24-00033 GAN Law and Public Services Academy Suffix 01 at CKM
	12.1a.9 A24-00036 CDE Homeless Children & Youth
	12.1a.10 SA24-00321 Nacht & Lewis Fern Bacon
	EXHIBIT “A” – RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT A-1
	EXHIBIT “B” – CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES B-1

	This Agreement for Architectural Services is made as of October 5, 2023, between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district (“District”), and Nacht & Lewis (“Architect”) (collectively “Parties”), for the followin...
	Fern Bacon Middle School Modernization and New Construction
	Article 1. Definitions
	1.1. In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions of words or phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits:
	1.1.1. Agreement:  The Agreement consists exclusively of this document and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated by reference.
	1.1.2. Architect:  The Architect identified in the first paragraph of this Agreement, including all Consultants to the Architect.  The term Architect means the Design Professional in General Responsible Charge on this Project.
	1.1.3. As-Built Drawings (“As-Builts”):  Any document prepared and submitted by District’s Contractor(s) that details on a Conforming Set, the actual construction performed during the Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change Docu...
	1.1.4. Bid Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Construction Documents Phase that the Division of the State Architect (“DSA”) has approved and that the District can use to go out to bid for construction of the Project.
	1.1.5. Conforming Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, issued during the Bidding Phase.  The Architect shall ensure that DSA has approved all revisions to the Bid Set that ...
	1.1.6. Construction Budget:  The total amount of funds indicated by the District for the entire Project plus all other costs, including design, construction, administration, and financing.
	1.1.7. Construction Change Documents (“CCD”):  The documentation of changes to the DSA-approved construction documents.
	1.1.8. Construction Cost Budget: The total cost to District of all elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect, as adjusted at the end of each design phase in accordance with this Agreement.  The Construction Cost Budget does not in...
	1.1.9. Construction Manager:  The District’s representative on the Project if the District retains a construction manager, project manager, or owner’s representative.
	1.1.10. Contractor:  One or more licensed contractors under contract with the District for construction of all or a portion of the Project.
	1.1.11. Consultant(s):  Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the Architect.
	1.1.12. District:  The Sacramento City Unified School District.
	1.1.13. DSA:  The Division of the State Architect.
	1.1.14. Extra Services:  District-authorized services outside of the scope in Exhibit “A” or District-authorized reimbursable not included in Architect’s Fee.
	1.1.15. Laboratory of Record: The District-designated laboratory(ies) for testing of concrete, soils, materials, and other required testing.
	1.1.16. Project:  Fern Bacon Middle School located at 4140 Cuny Avenue, Sacramento CA  95823.
	1.1.17. Record Drawings:  A final set of drawings prepared by the Architect that incorporates all changes from all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications.  This includes a “1A” sheet.
	1.1.18. Service(s):  All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and work that the Architect is required to perform and that are required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and that are necessary for the design and completion of t...
	1.1.19. Visually Verify: To verify to the fullest extent possible by physical inspection and reasonable investigation and without any destructive action.

	Article 2. Scope, Responsibilities, and Services of Architect
	2.1. Architect shall render the Services described in Exhibit “A,” commencing with receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District representative.  Architect’s Services will be completed in accordance with the schedule attached as Exhibi...
	2.2. Architect and its Consultants shall provide Services for the Project (i) using its professional skill and judgment; (ii) acting with due care and in accordance with respective applicable standards of care under California law for those providing ...
	2.3. The District intends to award the Project to Contractor(s) pursuant to a competitive bid process.  District reserves its right to use alternative delivery methods and the Architect’s scope of work may be adjusted accordingly.
	2.5. Architect shall contract for or employ at Architect’s expense, Consultant(s) to the extent deemed necessary for completion of the Project including, but not limited to: architects; mechanical, electrical, structural and civil engineers; landscape...
	2.6. Architect shall coordinate with District personnel or its designated representatives as may be requested and desirable, including with other professionals employed by the District for the design, coordination or management of other work related t...
	2.9. Architect shall coordinate the work of the District’s DSA project inspector(s) (“Project Inspector(s)”) and the Laboratory of Record.  Architect shall provide code required supervision of special inspectors not provided by the Laboratory of Record.
	2.10. Architect shall give efficient supervision to Services, using its professional skill and attention.  Architect shall carefully study and compare all contract documents, drawings, specifications, and other instructions (“Contract Documents”) and ...
	2.11. Architect recognizes that the District may obtain the services of a Construction Manager and that Architect may have to assume certain coordination and management responsibilities, including tracking Requests for Information (“RFI”), providing R...

	Article 3. Architect Staff
	3.1. Architect has been selected to perform the Services herein because of the skills and expertise of key individuals.
	3.2. Architect agrees that the following key people in Architect’s firm shall be associated with the Project in the following capacities:
	Principal In Charge: Brian Maytum
	3.3. Architect shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without prior written approval by the District, unless said personnel cease to be employed by Architect.  In either case, the District shall be allowed to interview and approve repl...
	3.4. If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of the District, then upon written notice Architect shall have five (5) calendar days to remove that person from the Project and replace that person with one acceptable to ...
	3.5. Architect represents that Architect has no existing interest and will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement and that no person hav...
	3.6. Architect shall comply with Education Code section 17302(a) and agrees that any plans and/or specifications included in the Services shall be prepared under the supervision of licensed personnel, and that licensed personnel shall be in “responsib...

	Article 4. Schedule of Services
	Architect shall commence Services under this Agreement upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed and shall prosecute the Services diligently as described in Exhibit “A,” so as to proceed with and complete the Services in compliance with the schedule...
	Article 5. Construction Cost Budget
	5.1. Architect hereby accepts the District’s established Construction Cost Budget and Project scope.  In accordance with Exhibit “A,” the Architect shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget for th...
	5.2. Architect shall complete all Services as described in Exhibit “A,” including all plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other Contract Documents, so that the cost to construct the work designed by the Architect will not exceed the Construct...
	5.4.1. The lowest responsive base bid received is in excess of five percent (5%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or
	5.4.2. If the combined total of base bid and all additive alternates come in ten percent (10%) or more under the Construction Cost Budget; or
	5.4.3. If the Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes in the condition of the construction market in the county in which the District is located, in so far as these ha...


	Article 6. Fee and Method of Payment
	6.1. The District shall pay Architect for all Services contracted for under this Agreement an amount equal to the following (“Fee”):
	A fixed fee amount of $3,600,000. The fee represents 6% of the proposed construction value of $60,000,000.00 million.  At the completion of Schematic Design phase, a one-time fee reconciliation to a final, confirmed construction cost shall occur.
	6.2. The District shall pay Architect the Fee pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit “D.”
	6.3. Architect shall bill for performance of Services under this Agreement in accordance with Exhibit “D.”
	6.4. No increase in Fee will be due from CCDs and/or change orders generated during the construction period to the extent caused by Architect’s error or omission.
	6.5. The Architect’s Fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof as indicated in Exhibit “D.”
	6.6. Regardless of the structure of Architect’s Fee, the Architect’s Fee may be adjusted downward if the Scope of Services of this Agreement is reduced by the District in accordance with this Agreement.
	6.7. Neither the District’s review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable to the District in acco...

	Article 7. Payment for Extra Services or Changes
	Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in Exhibit “B” only upon certification that the claimed Extra Service was authorized as indicated herein and that the Extra Services have been satisfactorily completed.  If any ...

	Article 8. Ownership of Data
	8.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 17316, this Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for the District to use, at its discretion, all plans including, but not limited to, record drawings, specifications, estimates and other docum...
	8.2. Architect retains all rights to all copyrights over designs and other intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, estimates, and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or cause to be prepared p...
	8.3. Architect shall perform the Services and prepare all documents under this Agreement with the assistance of Computer Aided Design Drafting Technology (“CADD”) (e.g., AutoCAD).  Architect shall deliver to District all drawings in DWG format.  As to...
	8.4. In order to document exactly what CADD information was given to the District, Architect and District shall each date and sign a “hard” copy of reproducible documents that depict the information at the time Architect produces the CADD information....
	8.5. Following the termination of this Agreement, for any reason whatsoever, Architect shall promptly deliver to the District upon written request and at no cost to the District the following items (hereinafter “Instruments of Service”), which the Dis...
	8.5.1. One (1) set of the Contract Documents, including the bidding requirements, specifications, and all existing cost estimates for the Project, in hard copy, reproducible format.
	8.5.2. One (1) set of fixed image CADD files in DXF format of the drawings that are part of the Contract Documents.
	8.5.3. One (1) set of non-fixed image CADD drawing files in DXF or DWG or both formats of the site plan, floor plans (architectural, plumbing, structural, mechanical and electrical), roof plan, sections and exterior elevations of the Project.
	8.5.4. All finished or unfinished documents, studies, reports, calculations, drawings, maps, models, photographs, technology data and reports prepared by the Architect under this Agreement.
	8.5.5. The obligation of Section 8.5 of this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever.

	8.6. In the event the District changes or uses any fully or partially completed documents without Architect’s knowledge or participation or both, the District agrees to release Architect of responsibility for such changes, and shall hold Architect har...

	Article 9. Termination of Contract
	9.1. District’s Request for Assurances:  If District at any time reasonably believes that Architect is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in its sole discretion notify Architect of this fact and request written assurances from Arc...
	9.2. District’s Termination of Architect for Cause:  If Architect fails to perform Architect’s duties to the satisfaction of the District, or if Architect fails to fulfill in a timely and professional manner Architect’s material obligations under this...
	9.3. District’s Termination of Architect for Convenience:  District shall have the right in its sole discretion to terminate the Agreement for its own convenience.  In the event of a termination for convenience, Architect may invoice District and Dist...
	9.4. Architect’s Termination of Agreement for Cause:  Architect has the right to terminate this Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material obligations under this Agreement and fails to cure such material default within sixty (60) days of ...
	9.5. Effect on Pre-Termination Services:  Except as indicated in this Article, termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of the Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective date of such terminat...
	9.6. Ceasing Services upon Termination:  If, at any time in the progress of the Design of the Project, the Governing Board of the District determines that the Project should be terminated, Architect, upon written notice from the District of such termi...
	9.7. Project Suspension:  If the District suspends the Project for more than one hundred twenty (120) consecutive days, Architect shall be compensated for Services performed prior to notice of that suspension. When the Project is resumed, the schedule...

	Article 10. Indemnity/Architect Liability
	10.3. Architect’s duty to indemnify under this Agreement shall apply during the term of this Agreement and shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement until such Claim(s) are barred by the applicable statute of limitations and is in ...

	Article 11. Fingerprinting
	11.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, the District has determined on the basis of scope of Services in this Agreement, that Architect, its Consultants and their employees will have only limited contact with pupils. Architect shall promptly...
	11.2. For all workers on District property, the Architect shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19.  Further, except to the extent the Order provides otherwise, the Architect and Architect’s personnel shall con...

	Article 12. Responsibilities of the District
	12.1. The District shall examine the documents submitted by the Architect and shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of the Architect’s Services.
	12.2. The District shall verbally or in writing advise Architect if the District becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, including any errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s documents.  Failure to provide such notice shal...
	12.3. The District shall furnish the services of a hazardous material consultant or other consultants when such services are requested in writing by Architect and deemed necessary by the District or are requested by the District. These services shall ...
	12.4. The District shall timely provide to the Architect all relevant information in its possession regarding the Project that is necessary for performance of Architect’s services.

	Article 13. Liability of District
	13.1. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s financial obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation provided in this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event s...
	13.2. District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by Architect, or by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to Architect by District.

	Article 14. Nondiscrimination
	Architect agrees to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment and Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government Code, commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set forth ...

	Article 15. Insurance
	15.1. Architect shall comply with the insurance requirements for this Agreement, set forth in Exhibit “E.”
	15.2. Architect shall provide certificates of insurance and endorsements to District prior to commencement of the work of this Agreement as required in Exhibit “E.”

	Article 16. Covenant against Contingent Fees
	Article 17. Entire Agreement/Modification
	Article 18. Non-Assignment of Agreement
	Article 19. Law, Venue
	19.1. This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State of California.
	19.2. To the fullest extent permitted by California law, the county in which the District administration office is located shall be the venue for any action or proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by reason of this Agr...

	Article 20. Alternative Dispute Resolution
	20.1. All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be decided through mediation as the first method of resolution.  Notice of the demand for mediation of a...
	20.2. If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Architect shall comply with all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 90...
	20.3. Pending resolution of the dispute, Architect agrees it will neither rescind the Agreement nor stop the performance of the Services.
	Article 21. Tolling of Claims
	Architect agrees to toll all statutes of limitations for District’s assertion of claims against Architect that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to Contractors’ or subcontractors’ claims against District involving Architect’s work, until the Contrac...
	Article 22. Attorneys’ Fees
	Article 23. Severability
	Article 24. Employment Status
	24.1. Architect shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be an independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it be construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture relationship, or to allow the Dis...
	24.2. Architect understands and agrees that Architect’s personnel are not and will not be eligible for membership in or any benefits from any District group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance or for membership in any District retirement ...
	24.3. Should the District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development Department, or both, determine that Architect, or any employee or Consultant of Architect, is an empl...
	24.4. Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services performed by Architect for the District, upon notification of such fact by the District, Architect shall promptly remit such amount due or arrange with the District to ha...
	24.5. A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two (2) paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, and for all other purposes of this Agreement, Architect shall not be considered an employee of ...
	24.6. Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons or entities not a party to this Agreement.

	Article 25. Certificate of Architect
	25.1. Architect certifies that the Architect is properly certified or licensed under the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the professional services that it has herein agreed to perform.
	25.2. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code that require every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that cod...
	25.3. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of California Labor Code and California Code of Regulations that require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain “public works” and “mainten...

	Article 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports
	Article 27. Notice & Communications
	Article 28. Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Participation
	Pursuant to section 17076.11 of the Education Code, the District has a participation goal for disabled veteran business enterprises (“DVBEs”) of at least three percent (3%), per year, of funds expended each year by the District on projects that use fu...
	Article 29. District’s Right to Audit
	29.1. District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of access to Architect’s and any Consultant’s premises to review and audit the Architect’s compliance with the provisions of this Agreement (“District’s Right”). The Distri...
	29.2. The District’s Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether Architect is in compliance with ...
	29.3. If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the District’s Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, and any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices that the District determi...
	29.4. Architect shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices in the industry. Architect shall make available to the District for review and audit all Project-related accounting records and doc...
	29.5. Architect shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants.
	29.6. Architect shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the District’s written request to review and audit any or all of Architect’s Project-related records and information.
	Article 30. Other Provisions
	30.1. Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this Agreement was the product of ...
	30.2. The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Architect warrants and represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and bind the CM to all terms hereof.
	30.3. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. A facsimile or electronic signature shall be deemed to be the equivalent of the actual original signature. All counterparts so executed shall ...
	30.4.  Architect shall issue a credit to the District as an offset to the Architect’s Fee, an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the actual tax benefit derived by the Architect or its shareholders, after deducting associated tax consulting fees ba...

	Article 31. Exhibits “A” through “H” attached hereto are hereby incorporated by this reference and made a part of this Agreement.
	SCOPE OF PROJECT
	Project Name:  Fern Bacon MS Modernization and New Construction
	Cost Budget:  $60,000,000 (Construction budget)

	BASIC SERVICES
	3. The District shall provide all information available to it to the extent the information relates to Architect’s scope of work.  This information shall include, if available,
	a. As-builts;
	b. Physical characteristics;
	c. Legal limitations and utility locations for the Project site(s);
	d. Written legal description(s) of the Project site(s);
	e. Grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, and adjoining property and structures;
	f. Adjacent drainage;
	g. Rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, and boundaries and contours of the Project site(s);
	h. Locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements and trees;
	i. Information concerning available utility services and lines, mechanical and other services, both public and private, above and below grade, including inverts and depths;
	j. Surveys, reports, as-built drawings, record drawings; and
	k. Subsoil data, chemical data, and other data logs of borings.
	Architect shall Visually Verify this information and all existing Project utilities, including capacity, and document the location of existing utility lines, telephone, water, sewage, storm drains and other lines on or around the Project to the extent...
	If Architect determines that the information or documentation the District provides is insufficient for purposes of design, or if Architect requires:  a topographical survey; a geotechnical report; structural, mechanical, and/or chemical tests; tests ...
	High Performance Schools.  If the District adheres to the Collaborative for High Performance School (“CHPS”) Best Practice Standards, the Services provided by the Architect shall incorporate the CHPS Best Practice Standards and criteria to the extent ...
	d. Based on survey and topography data provided by the District, input into computer and develop existing conditions base for the Schematic Design Phase.
	e. Administer Project as required to coordinate work with the District and among Consultants.
	f. Review District-provided standards for facilities and construction, including but not limited to designation of any material, product, thing or service by specific brand or trade name pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400, subdivision (c).

	6. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis.
	10. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

	12. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis.
	9. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis.
	[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

	3. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a monthly basis.
	1. Contact potential bidders and encourage their participation in the Project.
	2. Coordinate the development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents with the District.
	6. Attend bid opening.
	7. Coordinate with Architect Consultants.
	8. Respond to District and potential bidder questions and clarifications.
	9. Deliverables and Number of Copies
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:
	7. As-Built Drawings.  Architect shall review and evaluate for District the Contractor(s)’ documentation of the actual construction performed during the Project that the Contractor(s) should prepare and submit as As-Builts.  As-Builts are documents th...
	8. Record Drawings.  Architect shall incorporate all information on all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications, and prepare one (1) set of final Record Drawings for the District.  The Record Drawings shall incorporate onto one (1) set of dra...
	These drawings [or corrected specifications] have been prepared based on information submitted, in part, by others.  Architect has provided a review consistent with its legal standard of care.

	12. Deliverables and Number of Copies
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

	13. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis.
	g. Architect shall review and prepare a package of all warranty and O&M documentation.
	h. Architect shall organize electronic files, plans and prepare a Project binder.
	i. Architect shall have primary responsibility to coordinate all Services required to close-out the design and construction of the Project with the District and among Consultants.

	3. Deliverables and Number of Copies
	a. Punch list; and
	b. Upon completion of the Project, all related Project documents, including As-Builts and Record Drawings.  These are the sole property of the District.

	4. Meetings
	During this phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as needed.

	CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES
	The following Extra Services to the Agreement shall be performed by Architect if needed and if authorized or requested by the District:
	A. Providing services as directed by the District that are not part of the Basic Services of this Agreement, or otherwise included within Exhibit “A.”
	B. Providing deliverables or other items in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit “A.”  Before preparing, providing, sending, or invoicing for extra deliverables, Architect shall inform the District that expected deliverables may be in excess of t...
	C. Making revisions in drawings, specifications, or other documents when such revisions are required by the enactment or revisions of codes, laws, or regulations subsequent to the preparation of the Conforming Set.
	D. Providing consultation concerning replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause during construction and furnishing services required in connection with replacement of that work.
	E. Providing services made necessary by the default of Contractor(s).
	F. In the absence of a final Certificate of Payment or Notice of Completion, providing services more than ninety (90) days after the date of completion of work by Contractor(s) and after Architect has completed all of its obligations and tasks under t...
	G. Providing services as an expert and/or witness for the District in any mediation, arbitration, and/or trial in which the Architect is (1) not a party, and (2) did not in any way cause the dispute that is being adjudicated.
	H. The following rates, which include overhead, administrative cost, and profit, shall be utilized in arriving at the fee for Extra Services and shall not be changed for the term of the Agreement.
	I. The mark-up on any approved reimbursable item of Extra Services shall not exceed five percent (5%).
	1. The following items are approved for mark-up:
	a. Sub-consultant Invoices.
	2. Any approved item of Extra Services not identified in the above list may not be marked-up.
	J. Format and Content of Invoices (Extra Services Only)
	Architect acknowledges that the District requires Architect’s invoices to include detailed explanations of the Services performed.  For example, a six hour charge for “RFIs and CORs” is unacceptable and will not be payable.  A more detailed explanatio...
	SCHEDULE OF SERVICES
	A. Promptly after the execution of this Agreement, Architect shall prepare and submit for approval to the District a Schedule of Services showing the order in which Architect proposes to carry out Architect's Services (“Schedule of Services”).  The Sc...
	B. Architect shall complete Services required under the Development of Architectural Program section within _three (3)_ months after written authorization from the District to proceed.
	C. Architect shall complete Services required under the Schematic Design Phase within _Four (4)_ months after written authorization from District to proceed.
	D. Architect shall complete Services required under the Design Development Phase within _Four (4) months after receipt of a written authorization from District to proceed.
	E. Architect shall complete Services required under Construction Documents Phase within _Eight (8)__ months after written authorization from District to proceed, and as more specifically indicated below.  Excluded from this duration is the time associ...
	F. The durations stated above include the review periods of _48__ months required by the District.
	G. All times to complete tasks set forth in this Exhibit are of the essence, as indicated in the Agreement.  If delays in the Schedule of Services are incurred as a result of the District’s inability to comply with requested meeting schedules, Archite...
	PAYMENT SCHEDULE
	A. Compensation
	1. The payment of consideration to Architect as provided herein shall be full compensation for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof, including, printing and shipping of deliverables in the quantities set forth in Exhibit “A,”...
	2. The total compensation to Architect shall be as stated in Article 6 of the Agreement.
	3. District shall pay Architect as follows for all Services contracted for under this Agreement:
	B. Method of Payment
	1. Invoices shall be on a form approved by the District and are to be submitted to the District via the District’s authorized representative.
	2. Architect shall submit to District on a monthly basis documentation showing proof that payments were made to its Consultant(s).
	3. Architect shall submit to the District for approval a copy of the Architect’s monthly pay request format.
	4. Upon receipt and approval of Architect’s invoices, the District agrees to make payments of undisputed amounts within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice as follows:
	a. Pre- Design/Architectural Program Development Phase:
	Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon acceptance and approval of the Pre-Design/Architectural Program.
	b. For Schematic Design Phase:
	Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon acceptance and approval of the Schematic Design Phase by the District.
	c. For Design Development Phase:
	d. For Construction Documents Phase:
	e. For Bidding Phase:
	f. For Construction Contract Administration Phase:
	g. For Close Out:
	INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
	A. Architect shall procure, prior to commencement of the Services of this Agreement and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the ...
	B. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance:  Coverage shall be at least as broad as the following scopes and limits. Umbrella or Excess Liability policies are acceptable where the need for higher liability limits is noted and shall provide liability cov...
	1. Commercial General Liability.  Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggrega...
	2. Commercial Automobile Liability. Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per accident for bodily injury and property damage.
	3. Workers' Compensation Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are subject to this Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or federal law, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, a Workers' Compensation polic...
	4. Employers’ Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are subject to this Agreement, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, an Employment Practices Liability policy with minimum liability coverage of two million dollars ($2,000,00...
	5. Professional Liability.  This insurance shall cover the prime design professional and his/her consultant(s) on a Claims Made basis for two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate limit subject to no more than two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) ...

	C. District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with appropriate credits or changes to be negotiated for such changes.
	D. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention:  Architect shall inform the District in writing if any deductibles or self-insured retention exceeds two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000).  At the option of the District, either:
	1. The District can accept the higher deductible;
	2. Architect’s insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retention as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or
	E. Other Insurance Provisions:  The general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
	1. The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers (“Additional Insureds”) are to be covered as additional insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on beh...
	2. For any claims related to the projects, Architect’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the Additional Insureds.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of Architect’s insuranc...
	3. Architect shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers.
	4. Architect’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.
	5. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.
	6. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt r...
	7. Architect shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for required waivers of subrogation or the endorsement of additional insureds. If Architect fails to maintain insurance, District may take out comparable insurance, and deduct and re...
	8. Architect shall require all sub consultants to maintain the level of insurance Architect deems appropriate with respect to the consultant’s scope of the Work unless otherwise indicated in the Agreement. Architect shall cause the sub consultants to ...

	F. Acceptability of Insurers:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in California with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: VII.  Architect shall inform the District in writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best’s rating...
	1. Accept the lower rating; or
	2. Require Architect to procure insurance from another insurer.
	G. Verification of Coverage:  Prior to commencing with its provision of Services under this Agreement, Architect shall furnish District with:
	1. Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverages; and
	2. Original endorsements affecting general liability and automobile liability coverage.  The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverages on its behalf.  All endorsements are to be received and approved by the...

	H. Copy of Insurance Policy(ies): Upon the District’s request, Architect will furnish District with a copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services under this Agreement.
	END OF EXHIBIT


	12.1a.11 SA24-00319 Kitchell CKM HVAC
	SA24-00319 Kitchell CKM HVAC
	SA24-00319 Kitchell CKM HVAC

	SCUSD Proposal MHS HVAC_8-21-23 - Kitchell Construction Management Services UPDATED

	12.1a.12 SA24-00320 Kitchell CKM Baseball Softball
	SA24-00320 Kitchell CKM Baseball Softball
	ARTICLE 6. Construction Cost Budget
	6.7 If any of the following events occur, the District may exercise any one, or any combination, of the actions set forth in Article 6.6 above:
	6.7.1 The lowest responsive base bid received is five percent (5%) or more in excess of the Construction Cost Budget or
	6.7.2 The combined total of base bid and all additive alternates equal or exceed ten percent (10%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or
	6.7.3 The Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes in the condition of the construction market in the Sacramento Area, in so far as these have not been caused by Acts o...


	ARTICLE 7. Fee and Method of Payment for Basic Services
	7.1 District shall pay CM an amount not to exceed Two Hundred Eighteen Thousand Six Hundred Seventy Dollars ($218,670) for all services contracted for under this Agreement and based on the Fee Schedule set forth in Exhibit “D.”
	7.2 District shall pay CM the Fee pursuant to the provisions herein and the method of payment set forth in Exhibit “D.”
	7.3 CM shall bill its work under this Agreement on a percent of completion basis in accordance with Exhibit “D.”
	7.4 No increase in fee will be due from change orders generated during the construction period to the extent caused by CM’s error(s) or omission(s).
	7.5 The CM’s fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of CM’s Services incurred in the performance hereof as indicated in Exhibit “D,” including, without limitation, all costs for personnel, travel within two hundred (200) mi...


	SA24-00320 Kitchell CKM Baseball Softball

	12.1a.13 SA24-00314 United College Action Network
	12.1a.14 R24-01099 Blum
	12.1a.15 SA24-00232 Vision 2000-REV
	12.1a.16 SA24-00225 Maxim Amendment No. 1
	12.1a.17 SA24-00223 Action Support Amendment No. 1
	12.1a.18 SA24-00221 Action Supportive Care
	23-24 Action 504 Service Agreement Signed
	23-24 Action 504 Service Agreement

	12.1a.19 SA24-00338 College Board
	9.3 Governing Law and Choice of Forum.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and the law of the State of California without regard to choice or conflict of laws principles that woul...
	1.  Materials for Students:
	a. Link to the Student Guide
	b. PSAT 8/9 test materials delivered via College Board’s Digital Testing Platform, BlueBook™, Assessment score report delivered as a PDF to Client via College Board’s K-12 Reporting Portal.
	c. Information about recognition programs College Board.
	d. Access to SAT Practice Tools and Support as set forth below.
	e. Access to Bluebook and the test at school (Client will have access to a digital test preview to demonstrate the navigation and tools available to students in Bluebook).
	a. Materials to support test administration.

	1. Materials for Students:
	a. Link to the Student Guide
	b. PSAT/NMSAT test materials delivered via College Board’s Digital Testing Platform, BlueBook™. Assessment score report delivered as a PDF to Client via College Board’s K-12 Reporting Portal.
	c. Information about scholarship and recognition programs, offered by each of National Merit Scholarship Corporation and College Board, as applicable.
	d. Information from College Board to help students understand and navigate post-secondary and career pathways and opportunities through a College Board mobile application, as described in Annex 1 attached.
	e. Access to SAT Practice Tools and Support as set forth below.
	f. Access to Bluebook and the test at school (Client will have access to a digital test preview to demonstrate the navigation and tools available to students in Bluebook).
	a. Materials to support test administration.

	1. Materials for Students:
	a. Link to the Student Guide
	b. SAT test materials delivered via College Board’s Digital Testing Platform, BlueBook™. Assessment score report delivered as a PDF to Client via College Board’s K-12 Reporting Portal.
	c. The ability to send SAT scores to colleges, scholarship programs and other designated score recipients via College Board website, collegeboard.org in the SAT section.
	d. For SAT (starting Spring 2024), information from College Board to help students understand and navigate post-secondary and career pathways and opportunities through a College Board mobile application, as described in Annex 1 attached.
	e. Access to SAT Practice Tools and Support as set forth below.
	f. Access to Bluebook and the test at school (Client will have access to a digital test preview to demonstrate the navigation and tools available to students in Bluebook).
	a. Materials to support test administration.

	Budget Schedule


	12.1b Approve Personnel Transactions
	12.1b 10-5-2023 Cover page Personnel Transactions_
	Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023

	12.1b.1 10-5-2023 Certificated Board Agenda
	Sheet1

	12.1b.2 10-5-2023 Classfied Board Agenda
	Sheet1


	12.1c Warrants checks and electronic transfers for July 1-31 2023 and August 1-31 2023
	12.1c Warrants Report Cover Oct. 5 2023
	Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023

	12.1c.1 July 2023 Warrants Board Report
	12.1c.2 Aug 2023 Warrants Board Report-2

	12.1d Donations to the District for July 1-31 2023
	12.1d Donations Report Cover Sheet 07.31.23
	Meeting Date:   October 5, 2023

	12.1d.1 AR06a Details July 2023
	Receipt Detail
	Main Body
	97
	B OF A
	1
	
	
	BA24-0000436



	2
	2024
	01
	




	BOTW AP
	1
	
	
	BW24-0000046



	2
	2024
	01
	






	Recap
	97
	B OF A
	1
	
	
	E




	BOTW AP
	1
	
	
	C









	12.1e Donations to District for August 1-31 2023
	12.1e Donations Report Cover Sheet 08.31.23
	Meeting Date:   October 5, 2023

	12.1e.1_ AR06a Details Aug 2023
	Receipt Detail
	Main Body
	97
	B OF A
	1
	
	
	BA24-0000440



	2
	2024
	01
	




	BOTW AP
	1
	
	
	BW24-0000074



	2
	2024
	01
	






	Recap
	97
	B OF A
	1
	
	
	E




	BOTW AP
	1
	
	
	C









	12.1f Res No 3349 Authorizing District to apply and sign for local state and federal programs and grants EV
	12.1f Cover Sheet-Resolution Applying and Signing for EV grants
	Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023

	12.1f.1 SMAQMD School District Board Resolution for Grant Application

	12.1g Resolution 3350 Board Stipends-Pritchett
	12.1g Board Stipends-Pritchett Cover
	Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023

	12.1g.1  Board Stipends-Pritchett Other Duties Cover Sheet - Copy

	12.1h Approve September 10 2023 Minutes
	12.1h September 10 2023 Cover Sheet
	Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023

	12.1h.1 September 10 2023 Minutes
	Sacramento City Unified School District
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	Special Board Meeting
	MINUTES


	12.1i Approve September 12 2023 Minutes
	12.1i September 12 2023 Cover Sheet
	Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023

	12.1i.1 September 12 2023 Minutes
	Sacramento City Unified School District
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	Special Board Meeting
	MINUTES


	12.1j Approve Agreement to Reimburse for Board Member Leave
	12.1j Cover Sheet Reimbursement Agreement with WPUSD (Oct 5) 4867-2032-1398 2
	Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023

	12.1j.1 img09222023_0001

	12.1k Res No 3355 Board Stipends-Pritchett
	12.1k Board Stipends-Pritchett Cover
	Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023

	12.1k.1  Board Stipends-Pritchett Other Duties Cover Sheet - Copy

	12.1l Res No 3365 Board Stipend-Villa
	12.1l Board Stipends-Villa Cover
	Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023

	12.1l.1  Board Stipends-Villa Illness

	12.1m Approve September 26 2023 Minutes
	12.1m September 26 2023 Cover Sheet
	Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023

	12.1m.1 September 26 2023 MINUTES
	Sacramento City Unified School District
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	Special Board Meeting
	AGENDA


	13.1 Business and Financial Information
	13.1 Business and Financial Enrollment Cover_10.05.23
	Meeting Date:  October 5, 2023

	13.1.1 22-23 MONTH 9 FINAL
	22-23 Month 9 TraditionalSchool
	Elementary
	Middle
	HighSchool
	Totals
	Charter
	Adult

	22-23 Month 9 GradeByGrade
	Grade-by-Grade

	22-23 Month 9 CumTotalAbsences
	Elementary
	Middle
	HighSchool

	22-23 Month 9 Trends
	2022-2023


	13.1.2 22-23 MONTH 10 FINAL
	22-23 Month 10 TraditionalSchool
	Elementary
	Middle
	HighSchool
	Totals
	Charter
	Adult

	22-23 Month 10 GradeByGrade
	Grade-by-Grade

	22-23 Month 10 CumTotalAbsences
	Elementary
	Middle
	HighSchool

	22-23 Month 10 Attendance Trends District-Wide
	2022-2023



	9.1 Resolution No 3351 Recoginition of Filipino American History Month.pdf
	9.1  JS Filipino American History Month
	Meeting Date: October 5, 2023

	9.1.1 -1 scusd- fahm proclamation 2022 (002)




